Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34

Basant Tiwari · Vivek Tiwari Kinkar Chandra Das Durgesh Kumar Mishra Jagdish C. Bansal *Editors*

Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication



Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems

Volume 34

Series editor

Janusz Kacprzyk, Polish Academy of Sciences, Systems Research Institute, Warsaw, Poland e-mail: kacprzyk@ibspan.waw.pl The series "Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems" publishes the latest developments in Networks and Systems—quickly, informally and with high quality. Original research reported in proceedings and post-proceedings represents the core of LNNS.

Volumes published in LNNS embrace all aspects and subfields of, as well as new challenges in, Networks and Systems.

The series contains proceedings and edited volumes in systems and networks, spanning the areas of Cyber-Physical Systems, Autonomous Systems, Sensor Networks, Control Systems, Energy Systems, Automotive Systems, Biological Systems, Vehicular Networking and Connected Vehicles, Aerospace Systems, Automation, Manufacturing, Smart Grids, Nonlinear Systems, Power Systems, Robotics, Social Systems, Economic Systems and other. Of particular value to both the contributors and the readership are the short publication timeframe and the world-wide distribution and exposure which enable both a wide and rapid dissemination of research output.

The series covers the theory, applications, and perspectives on the state of the art and future developments relevant to systems and networks, decision making, control, complex processes and related areas, as embedded in the fields of interdisciplinary and applied sciences, engineering, computer science, physics, economics, social, and life sciences, as well as the paradigms and methodologies behind them.

Advisory Board

Fernando Gomide, Department of Computer Engineering and Automation—DCA, School of Electrical and Computer Engineering—FEEC, University of Campinas—UNICAMP, São Paulo, Brazil

e-mail: gomide@dca.fee.unicamp.br

Okyay Kaynak, Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering, Bogazici University, Istanbul, Turkey

e-mail: okyay.kaynak@boun.edu.tr

Derong Liu, Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering, University of Illinois at Chicago, Chicago, USA and Institute of Automation, Chinese Academy of Sciences, Beijing, China

e-mail: derong@uic.edu

Witold Pedrycz, Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering, University of Alberta, Alberta, Canada and Systems Research Institute, Polish Academy of Sciences, Warsaw, Poland

e-mail: wpedrycz@ualberta.ca

Marios M. Polycarpou, KIOS Research Center for Intelligent Systems and Networks, Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering, University of Cyprus, Nicosia, Cyprus e-mail: mpolycar@ucy.ac.cy

Imre J. Rudas, Óbuda University, Budapest Hungary

e-mail: rudas@uni-obuda.hu

Jun Wang, Department of Computer Science, City University of Hong Kong Kowloon, Hong Kong

e-mail: jwang.cs@cityu.edu.hk

More information about this series at http://www.springer.com/series/15179

Basant Tiwari · Vivek Tiwari Kinkar Chandra Das · Durgesh Kumar Mishra Jagdish C. Bansal Editors

Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication

ICRAC 2017



Editors Basant Tiwari Computer Science and Engineering Technocrats Institute of Technology Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh India

Vivek Tiwari Computer Science and Engineering DSPM IIIT Naya Raipur, Chhattisgarh India

Kinkar Chandra Das Department of Mathematics Sungkyunkwan University Suwon Korea (Republic of) Durgesh Kumar Mishra Microsoft Innovation Academy, Computer Science and Engineering Sri Aurobindo Institute of Technology Indore, Madhya Pradesh India

Jagdish C. Bansal Department of Mathematics South Asian University New Delhi, Delhi India

ISSN 2367-3370 ISSN 2367-3389 (electronic) Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems ISBN 978-981-10-8197-2 ISBN 978-981-10-8198-9 (eBook) https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9

Library of Congress Control Number: 2018930372

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

This work is subject to copyright. All rights are reserved by the Publisher, whether the whole or part of the material is concerned, specifically the rights of translation, reprinting, reuse of illustrations, recitation, broadcasting, reproduction on microfilms or in any other physical way, and transmission or information storage and retrieval, electronic adaptation, computer software, or by similar or dissimilar methodology now known or hereafter developed.

The use of general descriptive names, registered names, trademarks, service marks, etc. in this publication does not imply, even in the absence of a specific statement, that such names are exempt from the relevant protective laws and regulations and therefore free for general use.

The publisher, the authors and the editors are safe to assume that the advice and information in this book are believed to be true and accurate at the date of publication. Neither the publisher nor the authors or the editors give a warranty, express or implied, with respect to the material contained herein or for any errors or omissions that may have been made. The publisher remains neutral with regard to jurisdictional claims in published maps and institutional affiliations.

Printed on acid-free paper

This Springer imprint is published by the registered company Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. part of Springer Nature

The registered company address is: 152 Beach Road, #21-01/04 Gateway East, Singapore 189721, Singapore

Preface

On May 25–26, 2017, the iMPLab Research & Innovation at Bhopal organized the first International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication (ICRAC 2017).

In an era of sensor, high-speed wireless communication, energy-efficient device, huge data, information security, ubiquitous computing, and Internet of Things (IoT) are undergoing considerable change. The rapid influx of digital technologies is redefining communication processes, altering media structures and operations, and transforming the availability and accessibility of information. While these developments enable new social, cultural, political, and economic activities, they can also produce adverse ramifications for consumers and communities in terms of all aspects of security.

Overall, the conference hosted nearly 82 presentations by academicians from India and abroad. The speakers covered a broad range of issues and challenges in the Internet and telecommunications fields including the influence of IoT application to make things smarter; digital infrastructure developments and opportunities for further connectivity, particularly in relation to mobile and public Wi-Fi prospects; new methods for information security; advancing communication practices to facilitate social inclusion; energy-efficient sensors and other devices; and the other challenges associated with changing technologies and communication.

The papers published in the volume represent an overview of the issues explored at the conference and accentuate the diversity of both research topics and methodologies used in the communication. Moreover, they reflect salient, nuanced, and interrelated emerging issues surrounding information flow, digital participation, IoT. These papers have undergone double-blind peer review, with Indian and international academics assisting in this process. Many thanks to all of the authors for the time and effort spent developing papers for the proceedings. Hosting the International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication first year was no small feat and certainly would not have been possible without the broad support it received. In particular, sincere thanks to all our friends, colleagues, mentors, and research scholars who helped out each day. In addition to people from industry and academia helping to promote it, assisting with the peer review process, chairing sessions, presenting research, contributing to the proceedings, and engaging with speakers in the sessions—we would not have been able to hold the event without your support and greatly appreciate the efforts and willingness of all who were involved.

Bhopal, India Naya Raipur, India Suwon, Korea Indore, India New Delhi, India Basant Tiwari Vivek Tiwari Kinkar Chandra Das Durgesh Kumar Mishra Jagdish C. Bansal

Contents

Impact of Various Networks Security Attacks on Wireless Sensor Localization Algorithms Based upon WSN Node's	
Residual Energy	1
Santosh Soni and Manish Shrivastava	
Fitting a Neural Network Classification Model in MATLAB and <i>R</i> for Tweeter Data set	11
Syed Muzamil Basha and Dharmendra Singh Rajput	
A Novel Approach for Blast-Induced Fly Rock Prediction Based on Particle Swarm Optimization and Artificial Neural Network Navdeep Kumar, Balmukund Mishra and Vikram Bali	19
Algorithms for Synchrophasor-Enabled Digital Relay in DifferentialProtection SchemesAnurag S. D. Rai, Reeta Pawar, Durga Sharma, Shaurabh Senand Sanjeev Kumar Gupta	29
A Prototype for Grievance Redressal System	41
Design and Development of Symmetric Cipher for Text Data Aumreesh Kumar Saxena, Vijay Bhandari, Aasif Hasan, Sitesh Kumar Sinha and Piyush Shukla	51
Comprehensive Method of Knowledge-Based Approach for Word-Sense Disambiguation Pornima Gidhe and Leena Ragha	63
Reversible Data Hiding by Utilizing AES Encryption and LZWCompressionAkshay Kumar Joshi and Sanjay Sharma	73

Microstrip Antenna Array Design for Generalized Spatial Modulation—Multiple Input Multiple Output (GSM-MIMO) Applications	83
Raj Rajeshwari Lunawat, Debashis Adhikari and Priyanka Tupe Waghmare	00
Wireless Assistive Communication System for Speech Impaired	0.5
Vaijayanti Gajul, Pranita Sharangdhar, Shanta Shinde and Smita S. Pawar	95
Effect of Varying Pause Time on Performance of QoS Parameters	
in MANET	105
Deadlock Prevention in Single-Server Multi-CS Distributed Systems Using Voting- and Priority-Based Strategies	115
Remapping Attack Detection and Prevention for Reliable Data Service	
in MANET Aradhana Saxena and Manish Khule	125
Web Log Analysis Tools: At a Glance Metric Vinod Kumar and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur Metric	135
A Benign and Malignant Mass Classification Based on Second-Order Statistical Parameters at Different Offset Pravin Palkar and Pankaj Agrawal	143
Support Vector Machine (Linear Kernel) and Interactive Genetic Algorithm-Based Content Image Retrieval Technique Ankita Dayma, Amit Shrivastava, Aumreesh Kumar Saxena and Manish Manoria	151
A Research Paper on: Online Summarization and Real-Time Timeline Generation Using Stream of Tweets	161
Performance Analysis of Multidimensional Indexing in Keyword Search	171
K. S. Sampada, Lalit Adithya and N. P. Kavya	171
Performance Forecasting of National Stock Exchange of India Using Symbolic Versus Numerical Methodology Sachin Kamley, Shailesh Jaloree and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur	185
Comparative Study of Chronic Kidney Disease Prediction Using	
Different Classification Techniques Pritha Tikariha and Prashant Richhariya	195

Contents

Compressed Medical Image Transmission in Telemedicine Architecture	205
Analyzing and Preprocessing the Twitter Data for Opinion Mining Neetu Anand, Dhruvi Goyal and Tapas Kumar	213
Intelligent Decision Making Real-Time Automated System for Toll Payments Aditya Vikram Agarwal, Navneet Verma and Sanjeev Kumar	223
A New Face Recognition Technique by Landmark-Based PCA Modeled Scheme in Unconstrained Environment	233
WordNet-Based Text Categorization Using Convolutional Neural Networks	243
DTFA Rule Mining-Based Model to Predict Students' Performance Sushil Kumar Verma, Shailesh Jaloree and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur	253
Toward Smarter Hadoop's Slaves Nodes by Deploying Game Theory Strategies	263
An Abstract Model for Adaptive Access Control in Cloud Computing Amardeep Kaur and Amandeep Verma	269
Role of Electric Field on Peristaltic Flow of a Micropolar Fluid M. K. Chaube	279
Prevention of DOS and Routing Attack in OLSR Under MANET Madhvi Chaurasia and Bhanu Pratap Singh	287
A Simulation-Based Comparison on Code Excited Linear Prediction (CELP) Coder at Different Bit Rates	297
A Survey of Feature Extraction for Content-Based Image Retrieval System Neha Ghosh, Shikha Agrawal and Mahesh Motwani	305
A Use of Social Media for Opinion Mining: An Overview (With the Use of Hybrid Textual and Visual Sentiment Ontology) Chandra Gupta Maurya, Sandeep Gore and Dharmendra Singh Rajput	315

Contents	
----------	--

Learning Contextual Knowledge Structures from the Web for Facilitating Semantic Interpretation of Tweets				
An Efficient Technique for Online Iris Image Compression and Personal Identification	335			
Automatic Integration and Clustering of Marathi Documents inDifferent Formats for Effective Information RetrievalSonigara Prachi, Phuge Kirti, Newase Pooja, Sherekar Alishaand Vispute Sushma	345			
Frequent Term-Based Text Clustering Using Hidden Support	355			
Breast Cancer Diagnosis from Digital Mammograms Using RF and RF-ELM R. D. Ghongade and D. G. Wakde	365			
Home Automation Using Internet of Things (IoT) for Smart Cities	375			
Review on Interface Designing and Human–Computer Interaction Siddharth Kanaskar, Khushboo Satpute and Minal Chalakh	385			
Computational Model of Episodic Memory Formation, Recalling,and ForgettingRahul Shrivastava and Sudhakar Tripathi	395			
Heart Risk Prediction System Based on Supervised ANN Ashima Kalra, Richa Tomar and Udit Tomar	405			
Automated Path Search and Optimization of Robotic Motion UsingHybrid ART-SOM Neural NetworksV. M. Aparanji, Uday V. Wali and R. Aparna	415			
Data Mining Models for Anomaly Detection Using Artificial ImmuneSystemVaishali Mehare and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur	425			
A Framework for Weblog Data Analysis Using HIVE in Hadoop Framework Pushpendra Kumar and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur	433			
Sentiment Analysis Using Lexicon and Machine Learning-Based Approaches: A Survey Binita Verma and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur	441			

Contents

A Survey on Hyperspectral Image Segmentation Approaches with the Integration of Numerical Techniques Satish Kumar Soni, Ramjeevan Singh Thakur and Anil Kumar Gupta	449
An Efficient Image Enhancement Method for Dark Images P. V. V. S. Srinivas, Lakshmana Phaneendra Maguluri and Maganti Syamala	457
Finding Adulteration of Food Grains with Novel Digital Weighing	165
K. D. Gaikwad and P. B. Dahikar	405
Review of Clustering Methods: Toward Phylogenetic Tree Constructions	475
A New Method to Preserve Privacy of Utility Item Sets Using Differential Privacy	481
Lavi Bandil, Rishi Soni and Sugandha Rathi Face Detection in Hybrid Color Space Using HBF-KNN Vinay Singh and Deepa Aswani	489
Multi-channel-Based Neighbor Discovery in Cognitive Radio Ad Hoc Networks Rajiv Kumar Berwer and Santosh Kumar	499
New Approach for Animal Migration Optimization Algorithm Riya Rai and Virendra Singh Kushwah	509
A Character Image Classification Technique for Collecting Training Data for Very Large Classes Dharam Veer Sharma and Harmohan Sharma	517
Feature Extraction and Classification Techniques in CharacterRecognition Systems—A Comparative StudyPreeti Malviya and Maya Ingle	527
Capability-Based Multipath Routing for Increasing Scalability andReliability in Ad hoc NetworksJyoti Shrama and Ashish Singh Baghel	539
A Comparative Study of Various Techniques Used in Current HGRSs Akanksha Mantri and Maya Ingle	549
A Compact Monopole Antenna Using Meander Lines and Defected Ground Structure for Applications in TV Band Sanjeev Kumar, Ajinkya Joshi and Neela Rayavarapu	561

Interference and Congestion Control Using Multichannel Energy-Based Routing in MANET Astha Mishra and Ashish Singh Baghel	571
Computational Study of Duality in Facial Expressions	581
Computation Offloading in Hand-Held Devices Using Ternary Decision Maker in Accountance with Time and Energy N. L. Chourasiya and Tanu Preet Singh	595
Modelling of Tunnel Field-Effect Transistor for Ultra-low-power	
Applications	609
Genetic Annealing-Based IDS System for Attack Detection	619
Artificial Immune Recognition System-Based Classification Technique Kirti Bala Bahekar and Anil Kumar Gupta	629
Optimization of EHR Data Flow Toward Healthcare Analytics Vivek Tiwari, Ramjeevan Singh Thakur and Basant Tiwari	637
Multiclustered Energy-Efficient Routing Algorithm with Mobile Sink Node Moving in Clockwise Direction Habila Basumatary and Moirangthem Marjit Singh	645
A Detection Technique for Overhead Minimization in Tunneling Attack	655
A Review of the Quality of Service for Time-Sensitive Applications Through Admission Control in 802.11 WLAN Dharm Singh Jat, Arun Shejwal, Guy Lusilao and Charu Singh	665
Internet Victimization Patterns Over Mobile Phone in Namibia Husin Jazri, Elizabeth Paulus, Dharm Singh Jat and Durgesh Kumar Mishra	673
Author Index	681

About the Editors

Dr. Basant Tiwari is currently serving as Professor and Head in Computer Science and Engineering Department at Technocrats Institute of Technology, Bhopal. He has rich experience in teaching undergraduate and postgraduate classes. He has many international and national publications to his credit in conferences and journals. He has also attended many national and international conferences, workshops, seminars, and symposiums all over India and abroad. His current area of research is "Pervasive Healthcare and Remote Medical Care." He is a Senior Member of IEEE, ACM, CSI, and IACSIT. Currently, he has been honored as Bhopal Representative in IEEE M.P. Sub-section, Treasurer in ACM Udaipur Chapter, and Secretary in CSI Bhopal Chapter. He has organized various national and international conferences, delivered invited talks, and also chaired the technical sessions. He is a reviewer of various reputed international journals and books. He did his Ph.D. from Devi Ahilya University, Indore.

Dr. Vivek Tiwari is an Assistant Professor of Computer Science and Engineering at DSPM International Institute of Information Technology, Naya Raipur, India. He is alumni of Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology (MANIT), Bhopal. Previously, he worked with the universities of national repute and Caresoft Incorporation (based at Middlesex, NJ, USA) as Software Engineer. He is the recipient of Young Scientist Fellowship (MPYSC_2014_814) for the year 2014–2016 by the Madhya Pradesh Council of Science & Technology (MPCST), Government of Madhya Pradesh. He has published more than 30 research papers, book, and chapters in the areas of data mining, data warehousing, pattern warehousing, distributed computing, and cloud computing in leading international journals (Springer, Inderscience, Elsevier, ACM, and IGI Global) and conferences. He is editor in chief of book "Handbook of Research on Pattern and Data Analysis in Healthcare Settings" under the series of Advances in Data Mining & Database Management (ADMDM), published by IGI Global, USA. A research project

"Aakash for Education" of cost 5 lakh funded by MHRD, India, is in his credit. He is associated with National Mission on Education through ICT (NMEICT) supported by IIT Bombay and MHRD since 2012.

Dr. Kinkar Chandra Das obtained his M.Tech. degree in Computer Science and Data Processing and Ph.D. degree in Spectral Graph Theory from Indian Institute of Technology Kharagpur, India, in 2004. He won the French Scholarship from Ministry of France, helping him to be a part of LRI, University Paris XI, France, for 1 year. After that, he joined the Department of Mathematics, Sungkyunkwan University, in 2006, and presently, he holds the position of Associate Professor in the same university. His main areas of research interest are spectral graph theory. molecular graph theory, degree sequence of graphs, and graph coloring. He has published almost 200 research papers in these areas in reputed international journals, guided two Ph.D. students, and supervised five postdoctoral researchers, and four Ph.D. students are working at the moment. He has written a book on "The Harary Index of a Graph" with two coauthors, published by Springer, Heidelberg, Germany, in 2014. He has recently edited three monographs on Mathematical Chemistry: (i) Bounds in Chemical Graph Theory-Basics, (ii) Bounds in Chemical Graph Theory-Mainstreams, and (iii) Bounds in Chemical Graph Theory-Advances. He has been on the editorial boards of various reputed journals.

Dr. Durgesh Kumar Mishra has received his M.Tech. degree in Computer Science from DAVV, Indore, in 1994 and Ph.D. degree in Computer Engineering in 2008. Presently, he has been working as a Professor (CSE) and Director, Microsoft Innovation Centre, Sri Aurobindo Institute of Technology, Indore, MP, India. He is also a visiting faculty at IIT Indore, MP, India. He has 24 years of teaching and 10 years of research experience. He has completed his Ph.D. under the guidance of late Dr. M. Chandwani on Secure Multi-Party Computation for Preserving Privacy. He has published more than 90 papers in refereed international/national journals and conferences including IEEE and ACM. He visited and delivered his invited talk in Taiwan, Bangladesh, Singapore, Nepal, USA, UK, and France. He has authored a book on "Database Management Systems." He had been Chief Editor of Journal of Technology and Engineering Sciences.

Dr. Jagdish C. Bansal is an Assistant Professor at South Asian University, New Delhi, India. Holding an excellent academic record, he is an outstanding researcher in the field of swarm intelligence at the national and international levels, having written several research papers in journals of national and international repute.

Impact of Various Networks Security Attacks on Wireless Sensor Localization Algorithms Based upon WSN Node's Residual Energy

Santosh Soni and Manish Shrivastava

Abstract Presently, wireless sensor network localization algorithms attracted various researchers toward research study and experiments. The location of nodes can be determined by various localization algorithms. These wireless sensor network localization algorithms are vulnerable and can be compromised for their security. There are various network security attacks like wormhole, impersonation, compromise, and duplicate attacks which degrade the performance of WSNs. In this research paper, under various network security attacks, we have tested wireless sensor network localization algorithms under certain performance matrices like mobility of WSN node's, size of packets, temperature, and node density to find out the compromised WSN node's residual energy. The simulation result shows how these localization algorithms are vulnerable to network security attacks.

Keywords Wireless sensor network • WSN localization algorithms Network security attacks

1 Introduction

In the defense, civil, and critical types of fields, wireless sensor networks contain a lot of various features like autonomous system which can be installed in various locations and able to perform secure gathering of data, surveillance or monitoring the desired location. In this type of situations, the main aspect is security of wireless sensor network [1]. The localization plays key role in wireless sensor network and having

S. Soni (🖂)

Department of IT, Institute of Technology,

Guru Ghasidas Vishwavidyalaya, Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh, India e-mail: santoshsoni.77@gmail.com

M. Shrivastava

Department of CSE, Institute of Technology, Guru Ghasidas Vishwavidyalaya, Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh, India e-mail: manbsp@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_1

vulnerabilities, this system may become target for any network security attacks. In this research study, we have shown that presently available localization algorithms are vulnerable to these network security attacks. The impact of network security attacks finally reduces the residual energy of wireless sensor network's node. Mainly, the gathered data and sensor motes should be positioned in space to find the exact location of an event. This position-based system is able to get execute using a localization-based approach. Localized systems are really critical issue of WSNs, because they aim to find events as well as used as the main station for routing, controlling density, tracking, and some other protocols [2]. Following are the various section of this research study:

Section 1 Introduction	Section 2 Previous Work
Section 3 WSN Localization Algorithms	Section 4 Network Security Attacks
Section 5 Simulation Setup and Results	Section 6 Conclusion and Future Work

2 Previous Work

Various research studies have been taken into account to consider the research outcome based upon certain performance matrices. Some of them are as follows:

- [I] Azzedine Boukerche, Horacio A. B. F. Oliveira, Eduardo F. Nakamura, Antonio A. F. Loureiro [2] have studied and described localization system under various network security attacks with various security techniques.
- [II] Ismail Güvenc., Member, Chia-Chin Chong [3] have shown various numerous localization algorithms along with certain accuracies.
- [III] Nick Iliev, Igor Paprotny [4] have provided a complete review and implementations.
- [IV] Svarika Goyal, Tarunpreet Bhatia, A. K. Verma [5] In this paper, different attacks are studied along with various defensive techniques.
- [V] T. Meena, M. Nishanthy, Mr. E. Kamalanaban [6] proposed how to detect spoofing attacks.
- [VI] Xu Huang, Muhammad Ahmed, Dharmendra Sharma [7] described various cryptographic methods defend against various network security attacks.
- [VII] Asma Mesmoudi, Mohammed Feham, Nabila Labraoui [8] In general, localization techniques are classified with two types of algorithms: range-based and range-free.

3 WSN Localization Algorithms

Localization systems, which give critical location information of sensors and event occurrences, which can be the point of attacks can lead to compromise the working of a WSN [9]. There are various WSN localization algorithms like KALMAN,

MCL, IMCL, MPL, and SMPL. Localization schemes usually focus on static sensor networks where the sensor nodes do not move once they are deployed, and sensor nodes. The issue of location indicates the method of searching location for sensor motes with specified coordinate techniques. For the localization of a sensor network with the GPS, certain specific motes shall be known of their place of installation mainly from already developed system or placing manually, which are known anchors (beacons). Other ones, which are specifically called unknown nodes generally used to get installed place through certain algorithms [10]. This contains of two steps: (a) measure of distance among motes and (b) typical measurement methods. Using the distance measurement methods, localization algorithms are fallen between range and free of range methods. The algorithms can be estimated based on both the coordinate estimation errors and the distance estimation errors [11, 12]. This is presumed that distance measurements between given pair of nodes that are exists within the radio range [12], which is

$$d(i,j) = d(i,j) + \varepsilon ij, \quad 1 \le i, j \le N, i \ne j$$
(1)

where N is node from network, ij is distance estimation error, and

$$d(i,j) = \sqrt{(xi - xj)^{2} + \sqrt{(yi - yj)^{2}}}$$
(2)

where (xi, yi) and (xj, yj) are the coordinates of nodes *i* and *j*, respectively. All the systems discussed in that research need a complete setup and are equipped with toward location sensing for office applications than for sensor nodes. That is why we cannot allow them in truly ad hoc WSNs [13]. Below are the two methods for sensor mote's installed place:

(a) Relative location: This is better shown by given formulas [3]:

$$\sqrt{(x - xa)^{2} + (y - ya)^{2}} = da \sqrt{(x - xb)^{2} + (y - yb)^{2}} = db \sqrt{(x - xc)^{2} + (y - yc)^{2}} = dc }$$
(3)

(b) Triangulation: This calculates the exact position of unknown node which is depending on the angular distance among three various pairs of anchor nodes represented by below equations [4].

$$\sqrt{(xo1 - xa)^{2} + (yo1 - ya)^{2}} = r1 \sqrt{(xo1 - xb)^{2} + (yo1 - yb)^{2}} = r1 \sqrt{(Xa - xc)^{2} + (ya - yc)^{2}} = 2r1^{2} - 2r1^{2}\cos\alpha$$

$$(4)$$

4 Network Security Attacks

Security attacks which represent distance and position computations are very specific attacks in existing localized systems. Moreover, the various parts of a localization system, develops the equal type of vulnerabilities connected along towards various systems, since it is distributed multihop algorithm. For example, these below attacks include Sybil, replay, wormhole along with duplicate attack [2, 5–7, 14].

Sybil Attack: Here, a malicious node is a set of different node and continues sending wrong information. Such wrong information can be distance, positions estimation, various hops, or beacons.

Replay Attack: Here, from beacon node, a compromised node copies a received packet and starts resending the same packet after some time. This is the clone of the initial packet, The neighboring nodes wrongly deduct that the infected node is the node which has sent out the initial packet. Here, distance computation is obtained on the basis of compromised node where the final position in the packet highly depends on the initial node, and then, position computation gets affected. Mainly, signal strength with time-based distance calculations are affected, since the packets sent by the compromised node will have a totally discrete signal strength as well as discrete propagation time [2, 5–7, 14].

Wormhole Attack: Here, the information obtained by single infected node is sent to other side of the network and cloned by other infected node on the different side of the network. The given path between mentioned two attackers is a wormhole in the manner that a packet coming on one side is copied and forwarded on the different side of the network, representing as if it came from different neighboring node. Such kind of attack is shown in. Finally, these attacks can deeply destroy an insecure localization system through setting completely different and erroneous reference points in the position computations [2, 5–7, 14].

Compromise Attack: This is having three stages: physically compromising the sensors, deploying the compromised sensors, and compromised nodes after starting attacks [1, 15].

5 Simulation Setup and Result

WSN localization estimation is the process of getting the final position of sensor nodes; such position is based upon estimation but not right. Because GPS got high cost and calibrated outdoors only, here some localization algorithm looks to be perfect in calculating the exact position of sensor nodes [16]. The used WSN localization simulation tool is based upon two layers, a core simulator layer and a localization layer. Here, Table 1 presents various WSN localization simulation parameters information:

Simulation Results: Simulation results are specified in Table 1. The graph in Figs. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and Tables 2, 3, 4, 5 show the performance of localization algorithms in form of WSN node's residual energy against various network security attacks.

Simulator	WSN Localization Simulator
WSN localization	Kalman, Monte Carlo, improve Monte Carlo, mobility prediction
Algorithms	localization, secure MPL
Network security attacks	Wormhole, Sybil, compromise and replay
Mobility of WSN nodes	10, 20, and 30 m/s
Packet size	256, 512, and 1024 Bytes
Temperature	20°, 25°, and 30°
WSN node density	50, 100, and 150
Sensor's mobility model	Modified random waypoint
Anchor's mobility model	Modified random waypoint
Number of anchor nodes	150
Sensor model	Mica2
Propagation model	Two-ray ground
Simulation time	150 s

Table 1 WSN localization simulation parameters



Fig. 1 Performance of WSN localization algorithms versus network security attacks under mobility speed 10 M/S



Fig. 2 Performance of WSN localization algorithms versus network security attacks under mobility speed 20 M/S



Mobility Speed 30 M/Sec 99.86 99.84 ENERGY 99.82 99.8 99.78 KALMAN MCI IMCL MPL SMP ALGORITHM

■ Wormhole ■ Sybil ■ Compromise ■ Replay

Fig. 4 Performance of WSN localization algorithms versus network security attacks under packet size 256 Bytes



Fig. 5 Performance of WSN localization algorithms versus network security attacks under packet size 512 Bytes

Fig. 6 Performance of WSN localization algorithms versus network security attacks under packet size 1024 Bytes

Fig. 7 Performance of WSN localization algorithms versus network security attacks under 20° temperature









	Wormhole	Sybil	Compromise	Replay
1. Kalman	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable
2. MCL	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable
3. IMCL	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
4. MPL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable
5. SMPL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable

 Table 2
 Vulnerability of WSN localization algorithm against various network security attacks under the performance matrices of mobility of WSN nodes

 Table 3
 Vulnerability of WSN localization algorithm against various network security attacks under the performance matrices of packet size of WSN nodes

	Wormhole	Sybil	Compromise	Replay
1. Kalman	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
2. MCL	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable
3. IMCL	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable
4. MPL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable
5. SMPL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable

 Table 4
 Vulnerability of WSN localization algorithm against various network security attacks under the performance matrices of temperature

	Wormhole	Sybil	Compromise	Replay
1. Kalman	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not Vulnerable
2. MCL	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
3. IMCL	Not vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable
4. MPL	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
5. SMPL	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable

 Table 5
 Vulnerability of WSN localization algorithm against various networks security attacks under the performance matrices of WSN node density

	Wormhole	Sybil	Compromise	Replay
1. Kalman	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
2. MCL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable
3. IMCL	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
4. MPL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable
5. SMPL	Not vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable	Vulnerable

6 Conclusion and Future Scope

Finally, this research study has shown the nature of vulnerability and impact of WSN localization algorithms which is summarized in Tables 2, 3, 4, and 5. Mainly, localization algorithms show basic help and support toward various location-based protocols along with different implementation areas. Accuracy of localization is deeply integrated to the QoS of WSNs [17]. In a nutshell, we can say that Kalman algorithm is vulnerable to wormhole and Sybil attacks. MCL, IMCL, and SMPL algorithms show good performance against Sybil attack. Now researchers can use these findings to develop/improve more secure WSN localization algorithms against various network security attacks. MPL algorithm shows good performance against compromise attack. In the future, we will study the security techniques/methods to better improve the further performance of localization algorithms against network security attacks.

References

- Nema, A., Tiwari, B., Tiwari, V.: Improving accuracy for intrusion detection through layered approach using support vector machine with feature reduction. In: Proceedings of the ACM Symposium on Women in Research 2016, pp. 26–31, ACM (2016)
- 2. Boukerche, A., Oliveira, H.A.B.F., Nakamura, E.F., Loureiro, A.A.F.: Secure localization algorithms for wireless sensor networks. IEEE Commun. Mag. **08**, 96–101 (2008)
- Güvenc, I., Chong, C.-C.: A survey on TOA based wireless localization and NLOS mitigation techniques. IEEE Commun. Surv. Tutor. 11(3), 107–124 (2009)
- Nick, I., Paprotny, I.: Review and comparison of spatial localization methods for low power wireless sensor networks. IEEE Sens. J. 15(10), 5971–5987 (2015)
- Goyal, S., Bhatia, T., Verma, A.K.: Wormhole and Sybil attack in WSN: a review. In: 2015 2nd International Conference on Computing for Sustainable Global Development (INDIACom), New Delhi, pp. 1463–1468, INDIACom (2015)
- Meena, T., Nishanthy, M., Kamalanaban, E.: Cluster-based mechanism for multiple spoofing Attackers in WSN. In: International Conference on Information Communication and Embedded Systems (ICICES2014), Chennai, pp. 1–5 (2014)
- Huang, X., Ahmed, M., Sharma, D.: Protecting from inside attacks in wireless sensor networks. In: IEEE Ninth International Conference on Dependable, Autonomic and Secure Computing, Sydney, NSW, pp. 186–191, IEEE, New York (2011)
- Mesmoudi, Asma, Feham, Mohammed, Labraoui, Nabila: Wireless sensor networks localization algorithms: a comprehensive survey. Int. J. Comput. Netw. Commun. (IJCNC) 5(6), 45–64 (2013)
- Yang, W., Zhu, W.T.: Voting-on-grid clustering for secure localization in wireless sensor networks. IEEE ICC 2010 Proceedings, pp. 01–05, IEEE, New York (2010)
- Hong, S.H., Kim, B.K., Eom, D.S.: Localization algorithm in wireless Sensor networks with network mobility. IEEE Trans. Consum. Electron. 55(4), 1921–1928 (2009)
- 11. Dai, H., Chen, A.G., Gu, X.F., He, L.: Localization algorithm for large-scale and low-density Wireless sensor networks. Electron. Lett. **47**(15), 881–883 (2011)
- 12. Yu, K., Guo, Y.J.: Anchor-free localization algorithm and performance analysis in wireless sensor Networks. IET Commun. **3**(4), 549–560 (2009)

- 13. Zhang, Y., Wu, W., Chen, Y.: A range based localization algorithm for wireless sensor networks. J. Commun. Netw. 7(4), 429 (2005)
- Shaukat, H.R., Hashim, F., Sali, A., Fadlee Abdul Rasid, M.: Node replication attacks in mobile wireless sensor network: a survey. Int. J. Distrib. Sens. Netw. 2014(Article ID 402541), 01–15 (2014)
- Lin, Z.-T., Qu, Y.-G., Jing, L., Zhao, B.-H.: AP Web Workshops 2006 Compromised Nodes in Wireless Sensor Network, pp. 224–230, Springer, New York (2006)
- https://www.codeproject.com/articles/606364/wireless-sensor-networkLocalizationsimulator-v
- Han, G., Jiang, J., Zhang, C., Duong, T.Q., Guizani, M., Karagiannidis, G.K.: A survey on mobile anchor node assisted localization in wireless sensor networks. IEEE Commun. Surv. Tutor. 18(3), 2220–2243 (2016)
- Chen, L.: Distributed range-free localization algorithm for Wireless Sensor networks. Electron. Lett. 50(12), 894–896 (2014)
- Lin, X.: CAT: building couples to early detect node compromise attack in wireless sensor networks. In: GLOBECOM 2009—2009 IEEE Global Telecommunications Conference, Honolulu, HI, pp. 1–6, IEEE, New York (2009)
- Messai, M.-L.: Classification of attacks in wireless sensor networks. In: International Congress on Telecommunication and Application'14 University of A.MIRA Bejaia, Algeria, pp. 23–24 (2014)
- 21. Bharath Srinivas, V.: Spoofing attacks in wireless sensor networks. IJCSET **3**(6), 201–210 (2013)

Fitting a Neural Network Classification Model in MATLAB and *R* for Tweeter Data set

Syed Muzamil Basha and Dharmendra Singh Rajput

Abstract Nowadays, the interest among the research community in sentiment analysis (SA) has grown exponentially. Our paper aims to find the prediction error occurred when we perform SA on tweets. The data set considered for the demonstration has 1129 tweets, and output parameters having predictor identifiers. Artificial neural networks (ANNs) are designed with ten hidden layers and one output layer. Additionally, trained the designed system with the help of MATLAB software to find the prediction error and also, derived sentiments using ggplot2 package in R.

Keywords SA \cdot ANN \cdot ggplot2 \cdot R

1 Introduction

This instruction file for A classifier C is a mapping, $C : R_n \to N_{Lc}$, where R_n is multidimensional space and N_{Lc} is the set of vectors with different labels assigned for a specific class (C) problem and is termed as

$$N_{\text{Lc}} = y \in R_c; \quad y_i \in \{0, 1\} \forall_i, \quad \sum_{i=1}^c y_i = 1.$$

By default, the nature of all the traditional classification algorithms is binary, which can be further enhanced to address multi-class problems. The goal of classification is to accurately predict the target class for each case in the data having 134 tweets as training data collected from http://www.sananalytics.com/lab/twitter-sentiment. This data set contains 5513 human-categorized reviews based on topic in the form of

S. M. Basha (🖂) · D. S. Rajput

Vellore Institute of Technology University, Vellore 632014, India e-mail: muza.basha@gmail.com

D. S. Rajput e-mail: dharmendrasingh@vit.ac.in

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_2

tweets. Each entry contains tweet id, tweet text, tweet creation date, topic used for sentiment, sentiment label: *{positive (p), Neutral (N), Negative (Ne), Others (O)}.* The entire classification of reviews was done by an American male who is fluent in English. Niek J. Sanders njs@sananalytics.com, http://linkedin.com/in/niekjsanders.

2 Related Work

The author [1] has proposed an algorithm, addressing multi-class problems by considering seven different data sets and made an extensive comparison of time and accuracy in training the model with classical Kozas model, whereas the author in [2] also addressed the multi-class problem in the application area called ConveNets with all possible scenarios. In [3], the author proposed a new version of convolution neural network multi-scale spatial partition network, which can handle both text and image data. In [4], the author has proposed a classifier which can achieve fine-granularity aesthetic quality prediction with an accuracy of 87.1%. In [5], the author made an attempt to improve the classification performance of fuzzy minimum and maximum algorithm using hyper-box expansion rule. In [6], author proposed deep neural network system (DNN) that uses hidden Markov model toolkit to generate transformed MFCC features from BNF extractor. In [7], the author addresses the problem of feature selection from noisy data by combining two techniques discrete wavelet transform and probabilistic neural network. The author in [8] developed an ANN model using a back-propagation learning rule and achieved higher classification accuracies for both the training (95%) and testing (82%) data sets. In [9], the author addresses the problem of classifying eight different heartbeat conditions using arrhythmia classification method and achieved 92.74% classification rate, whereas in [10] the author made use of image data and classified human gender and age using local gabor binary pattern histogram and yield an accuracy of 94.17%. In [11], the author uses multi-crop polling operation for feature selection on image data in identifying the proper lung functioning. In [12], the author built their own ANN to classify pollutants made up of sixty-one input neuron, three output neurons with three hidden layers. In [13], the author makes use of deep convolution neural network and support vector machine in classifying EEG signal images and achieved the average accuracy 92.24%. In [14], the author combined convolution neural network with extreme learning machine for hyperspectral imagery without spectral distortion. In [15], the author made an investigated on multi-distribution deep neural network in intonation classification of English language and yield the classification accuracy rate of 93.0%. In [16], the author modified version of the particle swarm optimization algorithm is used to train the radial basis function network for classification of the electroencephalogram signal for epileptic seizure identification, proposed method produced a maximum accuracy of 99%. In [17], the author set up an artificial neural networks model using standard merceological parameters to classify NIR data. In [18], author uses 47 images of teeth and uses wavelet Fourier descriptor in extracting features of teeth with support vector machine, achieved classification accuracy of 94% and repeated the same for about 30 CT cases.

3 Methodology

Let us consider, the input data collection as $X = \{I_1, I_2, ..., I_n\}$ and its associated set of label vectors $Y = \{L_1, L_2, ..., L_n\}$. For a two-dimensional classification problem, a possible GONN classifier is represented by a single GONN tree (GONN T (*x*)). For any simple pattern assume *x*, the single GONN tree can be constructed for two classes as in Eq. 1:

$$\begin{cases} class 1 & GONN(X) \ge 0 \\ class 2 & GONN(X) < 0 \end{cases}$$
 (1)

By using relative mean squared error (MSE) of the GONN, one can easily evaluate the fitness value of proposed algorithm as given in Eq. 2.

$$F_{c} = \frac{1}{1 + \frac{1}{x} \sum_{y}^{x} (D_{y} - A_{y})}$$
(2)

where X is the length of training data set, D_y is the expected output on y and A_y is the GONN expected output, when Y is given as input.

3.1 Identifying a Collection of Input Parameters and Corresponding Collection of Output Parameters

We can start neural network toolbox in MATLAB with nnstart command. The GUI of ANN tool can be displayed. The screen wizard to select input data set and target data set. The target data is prepared based on the class labels. The target data can have many number of vectors. Each vector should consist of either 0 or 1. We have selected 15% of total input data set samples for validation, another 15% for testing. Remaining 70% input data set will be for training. Training is the process to adjust the network weights and bias according to its error. NN toolbox provides wide variety of training algorithms, each having their own learning inbuilt function. Validation is the process to measure the process generalization and to halt the training when generalization stops improving. Testing is the process to measure the performance of network during and after training. This will never affect on training.

To extract the wanted columns from the data set, the below given code is used in order to generate required output file (.txt) comma as separator. The generated output file has only the classified field called class obtaining values $\{0, 1\}$.

3.2 Structure of ANN

The hidden layer parameter is set to 10. Hidden layer: it is a neuron in feedforward network that connects as input to another layer. The hidden layer processes the weights and biases using sigmoid function.

Output layer: it is another neuron that will take the input from hidden layer and process with softmax function.

Output: it is set to 1. The out neuron is defined itself based on the target vector.

3.3 Training the System with the Help of MATLAB Software

To show the wizard of training, the network using scaled conjugate gradient back-propagation process. The performance of network will show based on cross-entropy and confusion matrices. Representing the algorithm details and numbers of iteration made to train the entire system.

4 Results

Figure 1 represents the best validation performance which occurrs at epoch 17. Figure 2 shows the confusion matrices of network. The bottom matrices will define the accuracy of the network. Here we got 73:7% for classified correctly and 26:3% are misclassified. If the network result is not satisfactory, then network can retrain by adjusting network size. Cross-entropy is to be evaluated for each class of output variables as in Eq. 3.

$$Entropy = -training_rate \times \log(Output)$$
(3)

The aggregate cross-entropy performance is the mean of the individual values as in Eq. 4:

Performance of Model =
$$\frac{\text{sum}(\text{Entropy Values})}{\text{nume1}(\text{Entropy})}$$
 (4)



Best Validation Performance is 5.9291e-08 at epoch 17

Fig. 1 Best validation performance



Fig. 2 Confusion Matrix

As a special case, when N = 1, i.e. when output consists of only one variable that can be interpreted as binary variable. The output variable consists of more than one variable that can be computed as in Eq. 4.

$$Entropy = -training_rate \times \log(Y) - (1 - training_rate) \times \log(1 - Y)$$
(5)

Confusion matrices: one can easily interpret the plot of confusion matrix, as rows representing the output class and columns representing target class, whereas the diagonal cells show rate of prediction.

The cell in the bottom right of Fig. 2 shows the overall accuracy as 73.7% and classification error as 26.3%.

Plot ROC: plotroc (targets, outputs) The more the curve nearer the left and top edges indicated the efficiency of classification.

Epoch: it is used to indicate the number of times vector is trained for each update in their associated weights. The gradient ascent algorithm is used to update the weights of each vector to improve the classification accuracy.

4.1 Sentiment Analysis with Machine Learning

The term "great" occurrs 225 times which is a positive sign on the review of the product. We plot the *wordcloud* of the same tweets. Fig. 3 is a plot of sentiments derived from the tweets.



Fig. 3 Total sentiment based on scores

- http://datascienceplus.com/fitting-neural-network-in-r/
- http://datascienceplus.com/sentiment-analysis-with-machine/learning-in-r/

5 Conclusion

The finding in our research is that multi-class classification, the artificial neural network (ANN) model is designed with ten hidden layers and one output layer. Trained the designed system with the help of MATLAB software and found the prediction error of 26.3%. In future, we would like to find scope for improvement in prediction on multi-variant data using ANN.

References

- 1. Bhardwaj, A., Tiwari, A., Bhardwaj, H., Bhardwaj, A.: A genetically optimized neural network model for multi-class classification. Expert Syst. Appl. **60**, 211–221 (2016)
- 2. Nogueira, K., Penatti, O.A., dos Santos, J.A.: Towards better exploiting convolutional neural networks for remote sensing scene classification. Pattern Recogn. **61**, 539–556 (2017)
- 3. Bai, X., Shi, B., Zhang, C., Cai, X., Qi, L.: Text/non-text image classification in the wild with convolutional neural networks. Pattern Recognit. (2016)
- 4. Tan, Y., Tang, P., Zhou, Y., Luo, W., Kang, Y., Li, G.: Photograph aesthetical evaluation and classification with deep convolutional neural networks. Neurocomputing, 534–547 (2016)
- 5. Mohammed, M.F., Lim, C.P.: Improving the fuzzy min-max neural network with a k-nearest hyperbox expansion rule for pattern classification. Appl. Soft Comput., 12–19 (2016)
- Qawaqneh, Z., Mallouh, A.A., Barkana, B.D.: Deep neural network framework and transformed fMFCCsg for speaker's age and gender classification. Knowl. Based Syst. 115, 5–14 (2017)
- Khokhar, S., Zin, A.A.M., Memon, A.P., Mokhtar, A.S.: A new optimal feature selection algorithm for classification of power quality disturbances using discrete wavelet transform and probabilistic neural network. Measurement **95**, 246–259 (2017)
- Tjolleng, A., Jung, K., Hong, W., Lee, W., Lee, B., You, H., Son, J., Park, S.: Classification of a driver's cognitive workload levels using artificial neural network on fECGg signals. Appl. Ergon. 59(Part A), 326–332 (2017)
- Gutirrez-Gnecchi, J.A., Morfin-Magaa, R., Lorias-Espinoza, D., del Carmen Tellez-Anguiano, A., Reyes-Archundia, E., Mndez-Patio, A., Castaeda-Miranda, R.: DSP-based arrhythmia classification using wavelet transform and probabilistic neural network. Biomed. Signal Process. Control 32, 44–56 (2017)
- Jagtap, J., Kokare, M.: Human age classification using facial skin aging features and artificial neural network. Cogn. Syst. Res. 40, 116–128 (2016)
- Shen, W., Zhou, M., Yang, F., Yu, D., Dong, D., Yang, C., Zang, Y., Tian, J.: Multi-crop convolutional neural networks for lung nodule malignancy suspiciousness classification. Pattern Recogn. 61, 663–673 (2017)
- Denisov, I.A.: Luciferase-based bioassay for rapid pollutants detection and classification by means of multilayer artificial neural networks. Sens. Actuators B: Chem. 242, 653–657 (2017)
- Tang, Z., Li, C., Sun, S.: Single-trial fEEGg classification of motor imagery using deep convolutional neural networks. Optik Int. J. Light Electron Opt. 130, 11–18 (2017)

- 14. Li, Y., Xie, W., Li, H.: Hyperspectral image reconstruction by deep convolutional neural network for classification. Pattern Recogn. **63**, 371–383 (2017)
- Li, K., Wu, X., Meng, H.: Intonation classification for fL2g english speech using multi-distribution deep neural networks. Comput. Speech Lang. 43, 18–33 (2017)
- 16. Satapathy, S.K., Dehuri, S., Jagadev, A.K.: fEEGg signal classification using fPSOg trained fRBFg neural network for epilepsy identification. Inf. Med. Unlocked 6, 1–11 (2017)
- Binetti, G., Del Coco, L., Schena, F.P.: Cultivar classification of Apulian olive oils: Use of artificial neural networks for comparing NMR, fNIRg and merceological data. Food Chem. 219, 131–138 (2017)
- Miki, Y., Muramatsu, C., Hayashi, T., Zhou, X., Hara, T., Katsumata, A., Fujita, H.: Classification of teeth in cone-beam fCTg using deep convolutional neural network. Comput. Biol. Med. 80, 24–29 (2017)

A Novel Approach for Blast-Induced Fly Rock Prediction Based on Particle Swarm Optimization and Artificial Neural Network

Navdeep Kumar, Balmukund Mishra and Vikram Bali

Abstract Fly-rocks are the excessive rock fragments. There random throw from a blast can travel a large distance which may be beyond the blast safety area. This process of the blasting operation results in human injuries, fatalities, and structural damage. In this research work, a method is proposed to predict the fly-rocks. This approach is built on the mixture of particle swarm optimization and artificial neural network. Here ANN is used to predict fly-rock distance. Generally, ANN is used as one of the forceful areas of research in advanced and varied applications of science. ANN has the ability to right to map the input to output patterns. Also, it utilizes all influential parameters in case of prediction of fly-rock distance. But, there are still some limitations concerned to ANN, i.e., the rate of slow learning and getting stuck in local minima. This research work offers a mix PSO-ANN predictive model for fly-rock prediction. The results of the developed model are compared to the results of ICA-ANN, BP-ANN, empirical equation, and multivariate regression analysis (MRA). The parameters for comparison are root mean square error, coefficient of determination (R^2) , and least cost. These parameters are firstly calculated by comparing testing and training data from ANN. These parameters are then compared with that of the existing methods, i.e., ICA-ANN, BP-ANN, empirical equation, and multivariate regression analysis (MRA). MATLAB R2013a is used as an implementation platform using general MATLAB toolbox.

Keywords Artificial neural network • Imperialist competitive algorithm Flies rock • Blasting

N. Kumar (🖂) · B. Mishra · V. Bali

Computer Science Department, P.I.E.T Samalkha, Panipat, India e-mail: navdeepkumarsharma01@gmail.com

B. Mishra e-mail: balmukund.mishra92@gmail.com

V. Bali e-mail: vikram.cse@piet.co.in

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_3

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

1 Introduction

One of the crucial components of the surface mining is blasting. It serves as the most important role in dividing [1] burden and disclosing coal and in other mineral deposits [2]. The boundaries of the blast area are determined by the blaster, and the fly-rock is not probable to travel outside the blast zone. For the period of blasting, all employees must be detached from the blast part. Also, all entries to the blast area must be guarded. If someone is essential to visit classified the blast area, a proper blasting safety should be taken [3].

2 Imperialist Competition Algorithms

It is new overall search [4] experiential that uses colonization [5] and imperialistic competition process and uses expansively to solve different types of optimization problems [6]. This algorithm starts with some early countries. Each singular of the population is called country. Population is divided into two parts, colonies and imperialist state. The competition between imperialists to take ownership of the colonies of each other forms this algorithm. In this competition, the weak empires collapse slowly and finally one imperialist and other country is its colony [7]. After dividing all colonies among imperialists. This movement is simple model of assimilation policy that was assumed.

2.1 Initial Empires Optimization Procedure

Starts with initializing the entities section which are called countries [8]. In this problem, a country has 1 * N variables range. This array is defined as follows:

$$Country = [A1, A2, A3, \dots, AN variable]$$

In this the particle which need to best solution. In a country, each parameter can be considered as a human-related characteristic such as culture and language, in which this makes an attempt to find the best combination of these characteristics. Cost function country is as follows:

$$F(\text{Country}) = [A1, A2, A3, \dots, AN \text{ variable}]$$

The technique of ICA optimization [9] starts with size of countries (N country) and select a powerful countries as the N imperialist, remaining of the countries are measured as a colonies (N colony). The colonies are distributed into imperialists

based on power to make original empires. Therefore, the normalized cost of each imperialist is defined as follows:

$$c_n = c_n - \max(c_i)$$

In this, c_n is the cost of *n*th imperialist and c_n is its normalized cost. The normalized power of each imperialist is as follows:

$$\rho_n = \frac{C_n}{\sum_{i=1}^{N \text{ imp}} C_i}$$

The number of initial colonies for each empire is as follows:

$$N.Cn = \text{round} \{p_n \cdot N \text{colony}\}$$

in which *N*.*Cn* is the initial colonies of *n*th empire and *N* colony is the total number of initial colonies [10].

2.2 Assimilation, Revolution, and Uniting

In this step, assimilation and revolution are the processes. Assimilation is the movement of colonies toward the imperialists where imperialists attempt to accept their colonies and make part of them. This process is simulated by affecting all colonies to the imperialist along different axis. Unite alike empires when distance between two imperialists becomes minus than the threshold distance. In this scenario, these imperialists are united and a new empire is formed.

3 Artificial Neural Network

Mathematical model that works on the basis of simulating the human brain. In other words, a relationship between desired input data and output data. ANNs require training to learn and accordingly map a relationship from the data. The capability of ANN [11] that learn the samples and increase the performance. Learning is the property that makes ANN dissimilar to other networks. This ability comes from training algorithm [2].

The output of the neurons in the input layer becomes input for the neurons in the hidden layer, and the same scenario applies to connection between hidden and output layers.

The full steps for implementation are as follows:

1. Reading and inputting of data
- 2. Extraction of last column (Y) and rest of the data (X) separately
- 3. Calculation of number of rows and columns of extracted data
- 4. Normalization of extracted data
- 5. Finding of minimum and maximum value from the extracted matrix X
- 6. Finding minimum and maximum value from the extracted matrix Y
- 7. Declaration of a loop according to number of column of X
- 8. Normalization of X matrix column wise
- 9. Normalization of X matrix column wise
- 10. Generation of feed-forward back-propagation network using number of rows of X matrix
- 11. Training of network using PSO method
 - Extraction of all the elements of network one by one
 - Computation of total number of elements in the network
 - · Creation of one's matrix according to total number of elements
 - Inputting of PSO algorithm's parameters, i.e., size of swarm and maximum number of iterations, cognition coefficient social coefficient
 - Generation of initial population according to size of swarm and computation of best position and best cost of particle using ANN
 - Optimization of cost and position of the particles at each iteration
 - Updation of particle velocity using cognition coefficient and social coefficient
 - Updation of position using updated velocity of particle
 - Updation of the cost using updated position of the particle and ANN
 - Final updation of the position and cost of particle
 - Display and accumulation of best cost at each iteration
 - Plotting of all the best cost
- 12. Simulation of trained network using testing and training data matrix and getting of testing and training simulated optimized object
- 13. Calculation of mean square error by comparison of optimized object matrix with initial *Y* matrix testing and training objects
- 14. Display of initial and final optimized training data
- 15. Display of initial and final optimized testing data
- 16. Display of coefficient of determination (R^2) for training data
- 17. Display of coefficient of determination (R^2) for testing data.

4 Experimental Results

Platform using general MATLAB [12] and Artificial neural Network toolbox. In this research work, a method is proposed to predict the fly-rocks. This approach is based on the combination of particle swarm optimization (PSO) and artificial neural network (ANN). Here ANN is used to predict fly-rock distance. But, there are still some limitations concerned to ANN, i.e., the measured speed of learning and

getting stuck in limited jots [13]. PSO can be used to overcome these shortcomings. PSO is generally utilized in the various optimization engineering problems. This research work presents a hybrid PSO-ANN predictive model for fly-rock prediction. The results of the developed model are compared to the results of ICA-ANN, BP-ANN, empirical equation, and multivariate regression analysis (MRA). The parameters for comparison are root mean square error, coefficient of determination, and minimum cost. These parameters are firstly calculated by comparing testing and trained data from ANN. These parameters are then compared with that of existing methods, i.e., ICA-ANN, BP-ANN, empirical equation, and multivariate regression analysis (MRA). The value of these parameters has been given in Table 1. Figures 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 are the snapshot of comparison of ANN output and actual input of training data w.r.t. number of nodes in unseen layer.

Method/parameters	RMSE (root mean square error)	Coefficient of determination (R^2)	Minimum cost
PSO-ANN (proposed)	0.0393	0.9927	0.0030
ICA-ANN	6.582	0.981	0.067
BP-ANN	13.478	0.919	NA
MRA	23.877	0.743	NA
Empirical	109.064	0.118	NA

Table 1 Comparison of RMSE and minimum cost



Fig. 1 Comparison of ANN output and actual input of training data w.r.t. number of nodes in hidden layer



Fig. 2 Fly-rock distance versus predicted fly-rock distance in meters according to ANN testing data



Fig. 3 Fly-rock distance versus predicted fly-rock distance in meters according to ANN training data



Fig. 4 Bar chart showing comparison of RMSE for ICA-ANN and PSO-ANN



Fig. 5 Bar chart showing comparison of coefficient of determination (R^2) for testing data for ICA-ANN and PSO-ANN



Fig. 6 Bar chart showing comparison of minimum cost value for ICA-ANN and PSO-AN

5 Conclusion

A predictive model based on the arrangement of PSO and ANN is developed to predict fly-rock which is made by blasting. An exactly recorded and collected data are utilized to train the PSO-ANN predictive model. Hole depth, load to spacing ratio, reducing length, burden per delay, powder factor, rock density are considered as input limitations. Fly-rock distances are assigned as the output parameter. It can be concluded from the experimental results that the proposed model is well able to expect fly-rock distance with high mark of correctness. The proof of previous statement is the snapshots of measured fly-rocks for testing and training data in last chapter. Measured fly-rocks are very much closer to that of predictive fly-rocks. Also, for comparison purpose, the results of proposed method are compared with existing methods such as ICA-ANN, BP-ANN, empirical equation, and multivariate regression analysis (MRA). Also, it is surveyed that the existing predictors provide very quick and simple prediction, whereas the proposed PSO-ANN model exhibited higher prediction performance model compared to other methods.

References

- 1. Armaghani, D.J.: Application of two intelligent systems in predicting environmental impacts of quarry blasting. Arab. J. Geosci. **8**(11), 9647–9665 (2015)
- 2. Marto, A.: A novel approach for blast-induced flyrock prediction based on imperialist competitive algorithm and artificial neural network. Sci. World (2014)
- Bajpayee, T., Verakis, H., Lobb, T.: An analysis and prevention of flyrock accidents in operations. In: Proceedings of the Annual Conference on Explosives and Blasting Technique, vol. 2, ISEE (2004)

- Biabangard-Oskouyi, A.: Application of imperialist competitive algorithm for materials property characterization from sharp indentation test. Int. J. Eng. Simul. 10(1), 11–12 (2009)
- 5. Ghanavati, M.: An efficient cost function for imperialist competitive algorithm to find best clusters. J. Theor. Appl. Inf. Technol. (2011)
- Niknam, T.: A new hybrid imperialist competitive algorithm on data clustering. Sadhana 36 (3), 293–315 (2011)
- Khoshnevisan, B.: A clustering model based on an evolutionary algorithm for better energy use in crop production. Stoch. Env. Res. Risk Assess. 29(8), 1921–1935 (2015)
- 8. Maadi, M., Maad, M.: Optimization of cluster heads selection by imperialist competitive algorithm in wireless sensor networks. Int. J. Comput. Appl. **89**(19), 29–34 (2014)
- Kaveh, A., Talatahari, S.: Optimum design of skeletal structures using imperialist competitive algorithm. Comput. Struct. 88(21), 1220–1229 (2010)
- 10. Lucas, C., Nasiri Gheidari, Z. Tootoonchian, F.: Application of an imperialist competitive algorithm to the design of a linear induction motor. Energy Manag. **51**(7) (2010)
- 11. Trivedi, R., Singh T.N., Gupta, N.: Prediction of blast-induced fly rock in opencast mines using ANN and ANFIS. Geotech. Geol. **33**(4), 875–891 (2015)
- Trivedi, R.: Application of artificial neural network for blast performance evolution. Int. J. Res. Eng. Technol. 3(5), 564–574 (2014)
- Zhou Z.: Safety Evaluation of Blasting Flyrock Risk with FTA Method, vol. 1, pp. 1184–1187. ISEE (2001)
- 14. Foster, I., Kesselman, C. (eds.): The Grid 2: Blueprint for a New Computing Infrastructure. Elsevier (2003)
- 15. Rehak, T.: Flyrock issues in blasting. In: Proceedings of the Conference on Explosives and Blasting Technique, vol. 1, ISEE (2001)

Algorithms for Synchrophasor-Enabled Digital Relay in Differential Protection Schemes

Anurag S. D. Rai, Reeta Pawar, Durga Sharma, Shaurabh Sen and Sanjeev Kumar Gupta

Abstract The synchronized phasor measurement system along with differential protection scheme becomes popular, which provides in-zone fault detection and mitigation by continuous monitoring. Point-to-point monitoring of electrical parameters using synchrophasor technique and inheriting the differential protection in digital relay improve the protection of system. Differential protection involves communication wires or communication band channels. With the improvement of GPS and communication technology day by day, measurement through PMU is also enhanced by enabling protection of transmission line and cables by synchrophasor-based digital relay. Algorithms that are step-by-step methodology need to develop solution here; in this chapter, algorithm for synchrophasor-enabled relay is discussed as for each operation different algorithms are required, so was here different algorithms, and there perception to digital protection was taken. The behavior of the measured phasor is between the 1 PPS point and the response. Non-steady-state (transient) conditions will vary with the algorithms used.

A. S. D. Rai (🖂) · R. Pawar · S. K. Gupta

Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering,

R. Pawar e-mail: reetapawar2010@gmail.com

S. K. Gupta e-mail: sanjeevgupta73@yahoo.com

D. Sharma

Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering,

Dr. C. V. Raman University, Kota, Bilaspur 495113, Chhattisgarh, India e-mail: drgshrm@gmail.com

S. Sen

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

AISECT University, Chiklod Road, Bhopal 464993, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: rai.anurag71@gmail.com

Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Swami Vivekananda College of Engineering, Indore 452020, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: shaurabh.sirtex@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_4

Keywords Synchrophasor • Synchrophasor-enabled digital relay Off-nominal frequency operation of PMU • Relay algorithms

1 Introduction

PMUs are sensing device, which sense the phasor of electrical transmitting quantity enabling the measurement by collecting data through Global Positioning System with high precision. When phasor measurement is done periodically, it will be termed as synchrophasor measurement, as it enables synchronized measurement voltage and current quantity along with difference of phasor at constant frequency of operation [1]. The data which was universally collected by the utilization of PMUs' at grids revitalizing satellite and GPS navigation a large point to point online monitoring network is setup for collecting data and there analysis from Wide Area Measurement System. Each network had some hierarchy, here PMUs followed by PDCs and the lateral one followed by next-level PDCs [2]. The topology and its broadness of hierarchy depend upon the strategy for control and operation, along with locating the PMUs in the power system grid. PMU is an upcoming tool by proper utilization of it congestion management, and monitoring over physical– economical constraint can be done, also helping in black out mitigation and future operational planning [3].

1.1 Synchrophasor

As the modern power systems are expanding, grids are working in the their maximum operating limits, and thus, further operation of grid with excess power led to thermal limit violations. A continuous monitoring of power at power corridors is required and, for this conventional technology, is not further sufficient. Synchronized phasor measurement led to new technique allowing the measurement through distance and centralized way by point-to-point measurement through PMU-enabled devices [4]. These devices are compatible with analog measurement unit, as nowadays analog-to-digital conversion becomes quite easier and compact. In this measurement technique, frequency remains constant letting the comparison of phase of different electrical quantity with their respective reference frames, which truly helps in taking point-to-point measurement [5]. Standards for every technique are referred as it makes it globally accepted, and here, also standards are followed so that synchrophasor-enabled device and substation equipment remain interfaced [6]. The phasor diagram for the reference wave will be expressed mathematically as: Algorithms for Synchrophasor-Enabled Digital Relay ...

$$\vec{V} = \frac{V}{\sqrt{2}} \ge 0 = \frac{V_m}{\sqrt{2}} e^{j0} \tag{1}$$

Signal with amplitude of $V_{\rm m}$ and phase angle of ϕ leading, phase angle of the measured waveform is given by measuring the occurrence of its peak with respect to the rising edge of the 1 PPS signal. Synchrophasor combines the concept of phasor with that of synchronization in time [6]. The synchrophasor technology has become possible because of the ability, through GPS, to precisely refer to t = 0 instant, all over the power system, and all times, the concept of phasor is a strictly steady-state concept. However, in practice, we encounter situation where the amplitude as well as phasor angle is continuously varying according to a low-frequency signal. The IEEE Standard for synchrophasor now covers both the steady-state and transient conditions [7].

1.2 Application of PMU in Power Systems

- (1) **State Estimation**: Improved computational ability in addition to PMU is deployed to measure the phasor of electrical quantity with reference to phasor at accuracy of one microseconds.
- (2) **Oscillation Detection and Control**: PMUs could be used as the eye of the power system to detect oscillations early enough before they lead to critical consequences.
- (3) Voltage Stability Monitoring and Control: Voltage stability improvement and its controlling utilizing synchronized phasor measurement units are improvising as fast response, better and effective controlling. This is possible through the following applications:
 - Voltage stability and rotor angle stability assessment during load shedding.
 - Controlling and monitoring of wide area.
- (4) Protection of Power Systems: A number of severe protection problems have been resolved by PMUs. PMUs are having fast response time, leading to efficient operation of protection system. The latency of remote measurements for such protection functions is not really a significant issue.

1.3 Synchrophasor-Enabled Digital Relay

The architecture of a synchrophasor-enabled digital relay: It can be seen that it has been evolved from the block diagram of the digital relay Fig. 1, by adding the GPS clock a phasor locked and a phasor-locked oscillator to the 1 PPS signal given by the Global Positioning System clock. The GPS also provides the DSP



Fig. 1 Block diagram of a synchrophasor-enabled relay or phasor measurement unit

microprocessor with the time stamp using IRIG-B protocol [8]. A phasor measurement unit will have very similar organization. To difference between Synchrophasor enabled digital relay and a PMU just computes the Phasor, time stamps than, assembles the data frames and either store them (record them) or transmits them to a remote entity which may be a Phasor data concentrator or a digital computer, whereas a digital protective relay is tasked with taking a trip/ restrain decision after computing the Synchrophasor [9].

2 Proposed Methodology

2.1 Off-Nominal Frequency Operation of PMU

We need to give careful thought to the effect of sampling frequency on the phasor computation, because in the real-life power system the signal frequency is almost never exactly equal to the nominal frequency of 50 Hz [9]. If we lock the sampling frequency to the nominal frequency of 50 Hz, as we do in synchrophasor, we will end up with inaccurate measurement due to the leakage effect. This inaccurate measurement will have to be corrected or "compensated" by accounting for the actual signal frequency [6]. If we wish to get rid of this error (rather than compensating it), then we will have to lock the sampling to the actual power system



Fig. 2 Sampling locked with a fictitious 50 Hz signal via GPS



Fig. 3 Sampling locked with system frequency

frequency by actually measuring it. Thus, in both cases, extra work than that indicated by the DFT algorithm is needed. We keep the sampling frequency locked to factious cosine wave whose positive peak is synchronized with 00 h: 00 min: 00 s on January 1, 1970 (Figs. 2 and 3).

2.2 Relay Algorithms

The algorithms for digital protection of power systems: One may feel awe and wonder at the variety of approaches that the researchers have taken. It seems that the search for algorithmic solution to problems in the area of power system protection is an unending one. Inventions and discoveries made in other fields like communication, statistics, artificial neural networks, fuzzy logics, genetic algorithm, and expected systems have fueled research in this area. It should note that other methods of estimating phasor have been discussed in the literature. However, to the best of our knowledge, Mann and Morrison, Differential Equation Algorithm, based Phasor estimation in this chapter [9].

2.2.1 Algorithm for Mann and Morrison

A relay voltage and current are as follows:

$$v = V_{\rm m}\sin(\omega t + \theta_{\rm v}) \tag{2}$$

$$i = I_{\rm m}\sin(\omega t + \theta_i) \tag{3}$$

The phasor relation between voltage and current is as follows:

$$\theta = \theta_v - \theta_i \tag{4}$$

We keep on varying our frame containing RMS values of voltage and current; thus, variation of phase angle between voltage and current led to the computation of the apparent impedance taken from the relay location. The algorithm represents step-by-step procedure and provides mathematical and computational solution with simplicity. However, on examining Mann and Morrison method, it was investigated that it had waveform which is undistorted fundamental sine wave, and frequency is also constant and does not have variable nature (Fig. 4).

2.2.2 Differential Equation Algorithm

In this line is modeled R-L series circuit, which is lumped while computing the shunt capacitance and other line parameters which are distributed are neglected. Thus, with the help of differential equation, the impedance of fault location can be fed to relay by voltage and current variations (Figs. 5 and 6).



Fig. 4 Instantaneous OC relay based on Mann and Morrison algorithm



Fig. 5 Block diagram showing inputs to differential equation algorithm and block for implementation of specific distance relay



Fig. 6 Framework of conventional measurement using reference voltage

$$v = i_x \mathbf{R} + \mathbf{L} \frac{\mathrm{d}i_y}{\mathrm{d}t} \tag{5}$$

3 Results and Discussions

In this MATLAB script, we demonstrate the effect of off-nominal frequency upon the discreet Fourier transform magnitude calculation when the DFT computation is based on the sample drawn at multiples of nominal frequency. In this script, a 50, 45, and 55 Hz signal is sampled at 4×5 Hz. Author kept the amplitude of signal constant, but changed its phase from 0° to 360°. As expected, the 50 Hz signal traces out ellipses. Thus, off-nominal frequency operation of DFT whose sampling is locked to nominal frequency gives rise to error in phasor calculation (Figs. 7 and 8).



variation magnitude w.r.t.phase for 50HZ signal sample at 4*50Hz

Fig. 7 Variation of magnitude w.r.t phase for 50 Hz signal sampled at 4×50 Hz



Fig. 8 Variation of magnitude w.r.t phase for 45 and 55 Hz signal sampled at 4×50 Hz

Algorithm is based on undistorted sine wave signal frequency [10]. Whereas, algorithms' are classified into Time-domain and Frequency-domain system based on the need and simplification of solution. As we are using undistorted sine wave for analysis purpose, then basic Mann and Morrison algorithm can be used, which is utilized here also [9].

S. No.	Actual value at relay location	MATLAB output at relay location	Percent error
(1) V _m	141.4214	140.3572	0.7524
(2) actual_angle	30.0000	29.9664	-0.1120
(3) mean_angle		29.9664	

Table 1 Mathematical results for Mann and Morrison: MATLAB output at relay location

3.1 Mann and Morrison Algorithm

Figure 6 shows voltage v and voltage derivative $\frac{dv}{dt}$, estimated V_{peak} , and estimated phase between voltage and current at relay location (Table 1).

Computation of one derivative requires three samples. Now, we cannot base the trip decision on the signal estimation (which involved only three samples). Authors have to continuously keep estimating the peak and phase angle and hence the phasor, in order to be sure about what way the phasor is really going (Fig. 9).

Thus, there is error, both in magnitude and in phase. It can be seen that error in magnitude is only 0.7524% which is less than 0.1%, while the error in phase angle is 0.0336° . Thus, Mann and Morrison algorithm is suitable for measuring voltage and phase angle at relay location [9].



Fig. 9 Voltage, v, and voltage derivative $\frac{dv}{dt}$, estimated V_{peak} , and estimated phase between voltage and current at relay location



Fig. 10 Voltage, current, reactance, and resistance at relay location

S. No.	Actual value at relay location	MATLAB output at relay location	Percent_Error_
(1) Reactance	4	3.33436	1.6641
(2) Resistance	3	3	0

Table 2 Mathematical results: MATLAB output at relay location

3.2 Differential Equation Algorithm

If faulted line modeled with differential equation Algorithm. Thus there is error, both in Reactance and in Resistance. It can be seen that error reactance is only 1.6641%, while the error in resistance is 0%. Thus, differential equation is suitable for modeling R-L series circuit in relay location (Fig. 10; Table 2).

4 Conclusion

In this chapter, algorithms are discussed for digital protection of power systems. One may feel awe and wonder at the variety of approaches that the researchers have taken. It seems that the search for algorithmic solution to problems in the area of power system protection is an unending one. Inventions and discoveries made in other fields like communication, statistics, artificial neural networks, fuzzy logics, genetic algorithm, and expected systems have fueled research in this area. It should note that other methods of estimating phasor have been discussed in the literature; However, to the best of our knowledge, Mann and Morrison, Differential Equation Algorithm.

References

- Mohanta, D.K., Murthy, C.: A brief review of phasor measurement units as sensors for smart grid. Electric Power Compon. Syst. 44(4), 411–425 (2016) (Taylor & Francis Group, LLC)
- Yuehai, Y., Ying, M., Yuxiang, S.: The research of synchronized phasor measurement unit testing and evaluation. J. Int. Counc. Electr. Eng. 1(4), 418–424, (2014) (Taylor and Francis Group, LLC)
- Gao, F., Thorp, J.S., Gao, S., Pal, A.: A voltage phasor based fault-classification method for phasor measurement unit only state estimator output. Electric Power Compon. Syst. 43, 22–31 (2014) (Taylor & Francis Group, LLC)
- Vaganov, A.B., Gel'fand, A.M., Narovlyanskii, V.G.: An algorithm for processing synchronized vector measurements of the operating parameters of a power system. Power Technol. Eng. 46(4) (2012) (Springer Science + Business Media, New York)
- Rai, A.S.D., Mishra, S., et al.: Impact of load elasticity in restructured power system. Eduved Int. J. Interdisc. Res. 01(06) (2014). ISSN: 2348-6775 (online)
- Castello, P., Ferrari, P., Flammin, A.:: A new IED with PMU functionalities for electrical substations. IEEE Trans. Instrum. Measur. 62(12) (2013)
- Martin, K.E., Benmouyal, G., Adamiak, M.G., Begovic, M., Bumett Jr., R.O., Carr, K.R., Cobb, A., Kusters, J.A., Horowitz, S.H., Jensen, G.R., Michel, G.L., Murphy, R.I., Phadke, A.G., Sachdev, M.S., Thorp, J.S.: IEEE standard for synchrophasors for power systems. IEEE Trans. Power Deliv. 13(1) (1998)
- 8. Stojković, Z.: Application of software tools in power engineering calculations. Comput. Aided Des. Power Eng. (2012) (Springer, Berlin)
- 9. Chaturvedi, K.T., Rai, A.S.D., Rohit, B.: Algorithms for synchrophasor enabled digital relay. HCTL Open Int. J. Technol. Innov. Res. (IJTIR) **21**(1) (2016). e-ISSN: 2321-1814
- Vanfretti, L., Baudette, M.: A phasor measurement unit based fast real-time oscillation detection application for monitoring wind-farm-to-grid sub-synchronous dynamics. Electric Power Compon. Syst. 44(2), 123–134 (2015) (Taylor & Francis Group, LLC)
- Nakajima, A., Morita, M., Hayashi, T.: Development of an advanced wide-area special protection system. J. Int. Counc. Electric. Eng. 3(4), 334–339 (2013, 2014) (Taylor and Francis Group, LLC)
- Martin, K.E., Hamai, D., Adamiak, M.G., Anderson, S., Begovic, M., Benmouyal, G., Brunello, G., Burger, J., Cai, J.Y., Dickerson, B., Gharpure, V., Kennedy, B., Karlsson, D., Phadke, A.G., Salj, J., Skendzic, V., Sperr, J., Song, Y., Huntley, C., Kasztenny, B., Price, E.: Exploring the IEEE standard C37.118–2005 synchrophasor for power systems. IEEE Trans. Power Deliv. 23(4) (2008)
- Laverty, D.M., Best, R.J., Brogan, P.: The open PMU platform for open-source phasor measurements. IEEE Trans. Instrum. Measur. 62(4) (2013)

A Prototype for Grievance Redressal System

Shaligram Prajapat, Vaibhav Sabharwal and Varun Wadhwani

Abstract A grievance is a discontent or dispute which could arise at any level in any organization. If the organization is an academic institution, then this issue becomes more sensitive and important. Students are the most vulnerable entities at educational institutions often fail to express and sometimes fail to seek proper support for the issues they face arising at numerous levels. Thus, on analyzing the prevailing state of redressed mechanisms of grievances at some of the prestigious colleges of Madhya Pradesh, it came as a revelation that none of them had a completely formulated grievance redressal mechanism to address the arising conflicts in the lives of the students. In wake of the above-mentioned problem as an implication, a prototype of grievance redressal has been worked out which could comply well with the solution provision for the arising conflicts for students. In this paper, we focus on the development and the execution of the above-mentioned prototype which could be incorporated to adhere to the grievance redressal for students. This paper puts deep insight into incorporating all those problem areas which were found on the basis of the analysis phase plus some additional necessary areas.

Keywords Grievance · Redressal · Prototype · Grievance redressal system (GRS)

S. Prajapat (🖂) · V. Sabharwal · V. Wadhwani

International Institute of Professional Studies, Devi Ahilya University, Indore, India e-mail: shaligram.prajapat@gmail.com

V. Sabharwal e-mail: vaibh.sabh@gmail.com

V. Wadhwani e-mail: varunwadhwani324@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_5

1 Introduction

A grievance is an oppressive state of things caused due to any wrong or hardship suffered by an individual which forms legitimate grounds of complaint and the complaint demands a remedial action. Grievance redressed mechanism is a part of the prevalent machinery of any administration. Redressal of the grievances is considered as a parameter to measure the efficacy of an organization. No organization can claim to be responsive and user-friendly unless it has established a well-versed system of grievances/complaints redressal. A redressal mechanism would cover complaints of not only a refusal to the return of documents or certificates, any irregularities in the admission process, but also complaints regarding harassment and victimization including harassment.

A typical grievance redressal system (GRS) is shown in Fig. 1, and it works functions for several purposes including ensuring a democratic campus environment, acquainting all the faculty and students about their rights thus ensuring qualitative as well as the quantitative development of the organization. Moreover, considering the nature of and the severity of the grievances, the due inquiry is made by the members of the cell, followed by giving punishment if anyone is found guilty.



Fig. 1 Generalized model for grievance redressal

2 Related Work

In the literature, time to time reporting is available regarding demand and usage of GRS for various domains such as e-governance, public administration, Municipal Corporation, ragging offenses in student community, and sexual harassment in an organization. The key observations during the literature survey are enlisted below.

In [1], analysis of various online services provided by, specifically four Indian states, has been presented and the importance of online grievances redressal mechanism is highlighted to combat corruption in the bureaucracy. Various metrics associated with the GRSs have been taken into account, and a scale has been devised. The performance of the states into consideration has been measured on the scale.

Dipankar [2] explores the utility of complaint registration system in India. Fear of revealing the identity makes complainant go anonymous or pseudonymous. It becomes a tough job for the authorities to know the authenticity of the complainant. Therefore, the solution is presented so that complainants can complain being intrepid, at the same time allowing the authorities to examine the originality of the complaints.

In [3], redress procedures are said important for basic fairness. Effective functioning of the system is possible when both demand and supply sides work well. It is also pointed out that grievances and complaints redressal regarding basic service delivery are not sufficiently developed in many countries and deserve further analysis, investigation, and subsistence.

The success of an e-governance system, online public grievance redressal system (OPGRS), from the perspective of the citizens of India in [4] is examined using an integrated IS success model. The model includes the elements like system quality, information quality, service quality, perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, perceived satisfaction, perceived risk, and behavioral intention. It is hence emphasized as a useful tool for a transparent and corruption free country.

The study in [5] inferred that in grievance administration role of insurance ombudsman is very important and constant increase in the number of complaints received by various ombudsmen across India shows that the policyholders are gaining their confidence and trust in the institution of Insurance Ombudsman.

The studies displayed in [6] expand on suggestions and outcomes of systems to handle feedback and open criticism related to services provided to and managed for the inhabitants of different cities.

Designed to make government-citizen relationship more effective and transparent, the implications described in [7] are that new forms of GRSs result in an e-based divide between those who utilize newer forms of grievance redressal for quality improvements in service provision and adverse incorporation of those who still work through 'negotiated spaces' to realize a basic level of service provision. In [8], there is an emphasis on developing a value-based work culture in educational institutes. Also, there are some ways suggested to structure a preventive measure and fair procedure to develop a better and reliable organizational culture in educational institutions free from issues related to sexual harassment and exploitation. Challenges associated with the automation of non-profit organizations (NPOs) and non-governmental organizations (NGOs) is addressed in [9] along with guidelines to automate them easily.

In [10], practice of ragging in educational institutions of South Asia has been highlighted and ways to curb the menace of ragging have been explored. Similarly in [11], there is a study of sexual victimization of college women and its methodologically sound assessment is given.

Our work includes the ideologies mentioned in the papers in some or other way. We have used and reconfigured them according to the needs of the educational institutions of India.

We have analyzed the working of current systems, what facilities being provided to the students, and how their grievances are being redressed in various educational institutes and found where they lag or fall behind. Using the analyzed facts and information, we propose some additional features and attributes to fill the aperture in the current system.

There have been various researches done and papers available on GRSs but all of them are for public sectors companies, municipal corporations, and e-governance systems or contain only one or two of the problems faced by the students in the educational institutions but none of them include each and every domain of grievances related to students.

In addition to that, many systems lack in proper channelization of complaints to solve them in time with proper understanding and solution. There is also a need for more transparency and guaranteed solutions.

Proper channelization means a structured way or passage to forward complaints by categorizing them according to their nature, intensity, and urgency and passing them to the concerned authorities in that way. There has no work been done specifically in the domain of problems faced by students in the educational institutions, especially in India. So, there is a need for developing a system that is robust, transparent, and fair and allows fast and reliable solutions to each and every problem faced by the students.

Thus, the communication gap between the students and the system may be managed by an automated system of GRS, where students generally are unaware of their rights and hence do not know what to do and what action to take at the time of difficulty or trouble. This lack of information and unawareness among the students is only due to the hazy way of working. At times, students do not want to reveal their identities due to the severity of complaints or afraid of being harmed, and there is no such provision available in the current systems of various educational institutions in India.

3 Approach for Handling the Presented Issue

To design and implement GRS, the entire process is divided into study and analysis phase and design phase. The former phase includes the development of questionnaire made to know the facilities and problem encountered by the student in different institutions. In the design phase, identification of the entities and their relationships is done along with designing numerous UML diagrams of the proposed system. The logical model of the system has been designed, normalizing the relations. Data flow diagram of the whole system has been constructed. Flowchart of each process of DFD is constructed for better flow of data and its verification (included in project report). The proposed model is the physical design of the system defining the software and hardware requirements.

The coding phase may be considered as a deployment stage for GRS. The design of the system is implemented through actual code. Proper validation of data is used. Proper validation on important fields is provided. The user does not need to have the knowledge of the code, and the output is defined user-friendly.

Testing phase can also be followed on various test cases and data set. Testing could be done by taking different use cases. A record is updated every time a student enters details. Update when a complaint is registered. Records are managed when a student checks the complaint status.

4 Modeling of Grievance Redressal System

The modeling of proposed GRS system requires a completely automated system, thus helping the user retrieve the information as soon as possible. The backup plans are provided in the form of the database helping avoiding data in case of catastrophic situations. Hence, the system is reliable to perform in adverse situations. The system is scalable and can be expanded and customized to meet the needs of the firms for which it will be implemented. Moreover, the system provides a user-friendly interface with a realistic view.

The system provides search facilities to search a specific entry matching in the database, and this system consists of an auditor as a supreme body to monitor the entire system's performance. The system consists of an administrator and a collector within whom the tasks can even be passed at the time of encountering someone not proficient in handling the given task, and thus the system works smoothly without further delays. Victim's authentication is done beforehand in order to avoid the nuisance which might arise in the manual system.

The aim of the proposed GRS (prototype in Fig. 2) is to address the issues present in the current system, implement validation techniques (with respective stakeholders, as shown in Fig. 3) that will help reduce the margin of error in operations, providing adequate data backup facilities in order to ensure system restart even after a calamity and ensures consistency. It is a foolproof system that simulates and replaces the present manual system.



Fig. 2 Prototype of the proposed system



Fig. 3 Stakeholders involved in the GRS

5 Conceptual Flow of Data in GRS

To develop a working GRS, the flow of data from one component of the system to other is depicted by Fig. 4.



Fig. 4 Context flow of grievance redressal system

6 Pros and Cons

The pros and cons of the proposed GRS system primarily includes human negligence since the system, though an automatic prototype to redress the complaints of the students/victims, will be handled by humans who could be negligent at times in forwarding complaints to the respective committee member or while providing solutions to the respective administrator.

Another shortcoming includes a poor network which could persist at times; as a result, the system of forwarding and resolving the complaints in the form of sending back the answers to the respective administrators and then to the respective students could get delayed, the proposed GRS system being based on simple mail transfer mechanism.

7 Future Enhancements

The GRS working on the pretext of the grievance redressal for the students currently works as a Web application among the various members and the targeted audience. To extend this further to fulfill various requirements, following enhancements are suggested:

(1) Though many future enhancements of the system worked upon are possible, the prime focus includes the development of a mobile application in order to increase the mobility of the application since the future demarcates the usage of mobile applications and as seen portable devices are ubiquitous which will facilitate the receiving of all the notifications in the cell phone by the members

and students associated with the application further increasing the reliability of the system and the rate of problem-solving.

- (2) The mobile application is targeted to enhance the user experience by providing the user with additional features for uploading the pictures the proofs in the form of audio or video files, which might enhance the case solving ability especially in such cases with a high rate of severity.
- (3) A toll-free helpline could be made available on a 24×7 basis for the victims in order to lodge complaints at emergency hours or to seek counsel in case of catastrophes.
- (4) Above all, a tracker could be added as a part of the future perspectives in order to track the performance of various committee members involved into the process on the pretext of the provided feature of the report generation.

8 Conclusion

This paper is an attempt to highlight the fact that there are hardly such systems prevailing curtailing to the complaint redressed for students enrolled in numerous organizations. This paper has demonstrated a proposed GRS system for the grie-vance redressed of students covering various domains of complaints which could be lodged easily and thus leading to easy and sure solutions or redressed to the problems being faced by a student on a regular basis. The technologies used comprise of HTML and CSS to design a user-friendly graphical user interface, PHP, and SQL to keep track of the records at the back end. This system would be suitable for any organization for the resolution of complaints and thus lead to a qualitative and quantitative development of the organization.

References

- Subhash, C., Ashwani K.: Assessing grievances redressing mechanism in India. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 52(5), 12–19 (2012)
- Dipankar, M.: Solution towards effective complaint registration system in Indian scenario. In: IJCA Proceedings on National Conference on Advancement of Technologies—Information Systems & Computer Networks (ISCON—2012), vol. 1, pp. 1–2 (2012)
- 3. Varun, G.: Redressing grievances and complaints regarding basic service delivery. World Dev. 41, 109–119 (2013)
- Nripendra, P.R., Yogesh, K.D., Michael, D.W., Vishanth, W.: Investigating success of an e-government initiative: validation of an integrated IS success model. Inf. Syst. Front. 17(1), 127–142 (2015)
- Rajesh, K.Y., Sarvesh, M.: Role of insurance ombudsman and grievance management in life insurance services in Indian perspective. Int. Lett. Soc. Humanist. Sci. 31, 9–13 (2014)
- Gianluca, M., Karin, P., Javier, M., Rahul, D.: Openness May Not Mean Democratization-e-Grievance Systems in Their Consequences. 14th N-AERUS and GISDECO, University of Twente, The Netherlands (2013)

- van Jasper, T., Isa, B.: Exercising citizenship invited and negotiated spaces in grievance redressal systems in Hubli-Dharwar. Environ. Urbanization ASIA 2(2), 169–185 (2011)
- Anju, T.: Incidents of sexual harassment at educational institutions in India: preventive measures and grievance handling. Int. J. Res. Rev. Health Sci. Recent Adv. Multidisc. Res. 2, 317–322 (2015)
- Misha, P.M., Sunny, R., Rahul, S., Shaligram, P.: Challenges associated with automation of NPO: requirement engineering phase. In: Qi, E., Shen, J., Dou, R. (eds.) Proceedings of the 21st International Conference on Industrial Engineering and Engineering Management 2014. pp. 665–669. Atlantis Press, Paris (2015)
- Singh, C.P..: Ragging: a human rights abuse. Indian J. Dev. Res. Soc. Action 7(1-2), 17-30 (2011)
- Bonnie, S.F., Francis, T.C., Michael, G.T.: The sexual victimization of college women. Research Report. National Institute of Justice, Department of Justice, Washington, DC. Bureau of Justice Statistics (2000)

Design and Development of Symmetric Cipher for Text Data

Aumreesh Kumar Saxena, Vijay Bhandari, Aasif Hasan, Sitesh Kumar Sinha and Piyush Shukla

Abstract Security of information is a prime concern in today's world, and cryptography is one of the solutions. To enlarge the authenticity and confidentiality of the data, there is a continuous development in cryptography with higher efficiency. With this continuation, we propose 16-byte block cipher symmetric key cryptography algorithm which is suitable for various types and sizes of text data. The beauty of the proposed algorithm is the use of logical (XOR and circular shift) operation. Experiments are showing the proposed algorithm to be safe, effortless and hard to crack.

Keywords Cryptography • Symmetric key • Asymmetric key • Security Encryption • Decryption

1 Introduction

In the increasing connected world of modern information technology system, cryptography has become the essential component because it provides confidentiality and security to the data or information in public communication medium like

V. Bhandari e-mail: vijaysirt@gmail.com

A. Hasan DU, New Delhi, Delhi, India

S. K. Sinha AISECT, Bhopal, India e-mail: siteshkumarsinha@gmail.com

P. Shukla UIT RGPV Bhopal, Bhopal, India e-mail: pphdwss@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_6

A. K. Saxena (⊠) · V. Bhandari SIRTS Bhopal, Bhopal, India e-mail: aumreesh@gmail.com

Internet [1]. Cryptography is mainly used for the e-commerce transactions and secure electronic mails [1]. It is the branch of computer science which deals with the use of mathematical operations for encryption or decryption of the data [2]. In this, the plain text which is also known as unencrypted data is encrypted to produce cipher text [2]. This cipher text is sent to the receiver where it will be decrypted using decryption algorithm and converted into plain text again [1, 2]. The encryption and decryption of the data totally depend on the type of cryptography scheme used [1, 2]. In formula, it is written as follows:

$$C = E_{k}(P)$$
$$P = D_{k}(C)$$

where

- P plain text,
- *C* cipher text,
- *E* the encryption method,
- D the decryption method, and

k the key.

There are many cryptography algorithms in use nowadays, producing cipher for the security and confidentiality of the data. The two most common cryptography algorithms are shown in Fig. 1 [3].

The symmetric key cryptography is the mechanism in which there is only one private common key shared and used to encrypt and decrypt the data [4]. Only one key is used to convert plain text into cipher text and decrypt again to plain text. In Fig. 2 the symmetric key cryptography scheme is shown [4, 5].

In the symmetric key cryptography system, both sender and receiver share a key [4, 5]. The key is kept secret to maintain the confidentiality and security of the data. The key size in bits depends on the algorithm used in symmetric cryptography system [5]. In asymmetric key cryptography system, two keys are used; first is the public key which is used for encryption of the plain text by the sender, and second is the private key which is kept secret by the receiver to decrypt the data which has been received [6]. The sender encrypts the data using the receiver's public key, and then, the receiver decrypts that received data through its private key [6]. Figure 3 shows the asymmetric key cryptography system, where Pub K refers to public key



Fig. 1 Cryptography



Fig. 3 Asymmetric cryptography



and Pri K refers to private key. The most common function for the cryptography algorithms are confidentiality, authentication, integrity non repudiation and key exchange [2, 4]:

2 Related Work

Many researches and studies have been done related to symmetric key cryptography. The symmetric cipher algorithm can be implemented in the following two ways. Firstly, the plain text in the form of file is sent to the database, where every single count of character is stored [7]. For every character in the plain text file the binary digit '1' is used for the number of times it is occurred in the plain text and the '0' is used for the previously recognized character then all the 0's and 1's are concatenated using '@' operator at last [7]. Another way for encryption of the presented algorithm is that for every character of the plain text, a three-digit number is used which is unique and then arranged in the ascending order in the database [7]. For the next digit, insert '1', and for the previous digit, insert '0'. Then, the received binary data are converted into ASCII code after dividing that received binary data into seven bits for compressing the data [7]. The proposed work of symmetric cryptography algorithm [8] has been divided into three stages: the substitution phase, the key generation phase, and the algorithm phase. In this proposed algorithm the plain text is converted to cipher text using advanced substitution mechanism in step 1 [8] then this cipher is again encrypted in step 2 [8] and in step 3 [8] the encrypting text is produced. This is a three-step encryption technique which is very time-consuming. Another approach of symmetric key cryptography algorithm is presented in [9] in which template generation, key generation and key regeneration, all the three components, are used for the fingerprint capturing. Generation of key for encryption as well as decryption is used respectively for the fingerprint analysis. The folding and bitwise circular shift operation method is done in another proposed work in a content-based algorithm. The plain text is encrypted two times in presented algorithm. The encryption of the plain text is done leaving the space and calculating the ASCII value for every character, and then again, the encryption is done by taking the random value which produces the encryption key using the folding method [10]. The another proposed work in which the plain text are converted into upper case and perform three stage of encryption in asymmetric cryptography algorithm where in step-1 all blank spaces are converted to '\$' and '#' [11]. Even spaces are converted to '\$' and odd spaces into '#', in step-2 all alphabets are switched to complementary alphabets for example A with Z and B with Y and so on in step-3 Second alphabet will be switched which is not blank to the generated code which is calculated as follows n = ASCII (char) and $n = n + (Key)^2$ and last append the char to encoded sequence [11]. Comparative analysis of existing symmetric cryptography algorithms are shown in Table 1.

3 Proposed Work

There are two cryptography techniques which are available for encryption and decryption; first is symmetric key, and second is asymmetric key cryptography. The symmetric key algorithms are 1000 (approx) times faster as compared to asymmetric key algorithms. Usually, symmetric key technique is used for data encryption/decryption in stream cipher mode or block cipher mode, whereas asymmetric key technique is used for key encryption/decryption. An important difference between block cipher mode and stream cipher mode is that block cipher encrypts a collection of plain text as one block whereas stream ciphers convert one character of text directly into a character of cipher text. Proposed symmetric key algorithm is based on symmetric block cipher cryptography concept. Here, the plain text is encrypted in the form of block using the 128-bit symmetric key. The key should be same for both the encryption and decryption. Figure 4 shows the architecture of proposed algorithm.

3.1 Encryption

The proposed encryption is shown in Fig. 5 where the 16-byte block of plain text is divided into four blocks of four bytes. Logical operation XOR and circular shift operation are performing on every block of the plain text with corresponding block of 4 bytes key (see fig. 5) which is 16 bytes long.

Table 1 Comp	arative analysis of existing symmetric cry	ptography algorithm	SL				
S.No.	Title and authors	Technique	Key size	Text size	Encryption time	Decryption time	Constraint
1	Kaushik, Al., Gupta, K.,: Ask Cipher For Small Amount of Data-2014 [7]	Symmetric key cryptography	Not fixed	7463 bytes	8 s	8 s	It is good for small amount of data
5	Gomathi, S.:: A Cryptography Using Advanced Substitution Technique and Symmetric Key Generating Algorithm-2014 [8]	Substitution symmetric key cryptography	Not fixed	X	Х	x	Encryption done in two phase and one time pad key used
n	Barman, S., Chattopadhyay, S.,: Fingerprint Based Symmetric Cryptography-2014 [9]	Feature extraction and symmetric key cryptography	Not fixed	x	Х	X	Storage for fingerprint for individual text
4	Chandraa, S., Mandalb, B., Alamc, Sk., Siddhartha Bhattacharyyad: Content based double encryption algorithm using symmetric key cryptography-2015 [10]	Content-based symmetric key cryptography	Not fixed	Х	х	x	Presently worked on only eight-bit binary data
S	Anand, A., Raj, A., Kohli, R., Bibhu, Dr. V.,: Proposed Symmetric Key Cryptography Algorithm for Data Security-2016 [11]	Symmetric key cryptography	Not fixed	x	X	х	Presented algorithm are comparing with low level as well as classical alcorithm



PT-Plain Text, CT-Cipher Text, E-Encryption, D-Decryption



Fig. 5 Proposed encryption

The steps of the proposed encryption algorithm are as follows:

- 1. Input plain text (P) of 128 bits.
- 2. Input Key (K) of 128 bits.
- 3. Divide plain text (P) and Key (K) into four parts like P-1 to P-4 and K-1 to K-4, respectively.
- 4. Apply XORing between P-1 and K-1 to produce output new P-1. Similarly XORing between P-2 & K-2, P-3 & K-3 and P-4 & K-4 to produced new output to P-2 to P-4 respectively.
- 5. Apply two-bit circular shift (left and right) operation on produced results in Step 4. Left circular shift on P-1 & P-3 and right circular shift on P-2 & P-4.
- 6. Now once again apply XORing between P-1 to P-4 of step-5 and K-1 to K-4 where P-1 XORing with K-3, P-2 XORing with K-4, P-3 XORing with K-1 and P-4 XORing with K-2 to produced C-1, C-2, C-3 and C-4 as a cipher text respectively.

- 7. Combine C-1, C-2, C-3, and C-4 into cipher text (C).
- 8. Repeat process eight times.
- 9. Exit.

3.2 Decryption

During decryption 16 bytes block of cipher text is divided into four blocks of 4 bytes and 16 bytes key is divided into 4 keys of 4 bytes each. Then perform XOR and reverse circular shift logical operation on the corresponding pair of 4 bytes cipher text and keys. Figure 6 shows the proposed decryption.

The steps of the proposed decryption algorithm are as follows:

- 1. Input cipher text (C) of 128 bits.
- 2. Input Key (K) of 128 bits.
- 3. Divide cipher text (P) and Key (K) into four parts like C-1 to C-4 and K-1 to K-4, respectively.
- 4. Apply XORing between C-1 and K-3 to produce output new C-1. Similarly XORing between C-2 & K-4, C-3 & K-1 and C-4 & K-2 to produced new output to C-2 to C-4 respectively.
- Apply two-bit reverse circular shift (left and right) operation on produced results in Step 4. Reverse left circular shift on C-1 & C-3 and reverse right circular shift on C-2 & C-4.



Fig. 6 Proposed decryption

- 6. Now once again apply XORing between C-1 to C-4 of step-5 and K-1 to K-4 where C-1 XORing with K-2, C-2 XORing with K-3, C-3 XORing with K-4 and C-4 XORing with K-1 to produced P-1, P-2, P-3 and P-4 as a plain text respectively (see fig. 6).
- 7. Combine P-1, P-2, P-3, and P-4 into plain text (P).
- 8. Repeat process eight times.
- 9. Exit.

4 Results

In this work, the proposed secret key algorithms are implemented on Pentium[®] dual core CPU E5200 @ 2.50 GHz with 2 GB RAM on window platform, and their performance is evaluated by encrypting input files of varying sizes and contents. The proposed secret key algorithms are implemented in an identical language 'Java,' with their standard requirements. The performances of the proposed algorithms are shown in Tables 2, 3, 4 and Figs. 7, 8, 9. The proposed algorithm is cost-effective, efficient, and secure due to its simplicity. In cryptography technique, the avalanche effect is the enviable assets of cryptographic algorithms; usually

Table 2 Avalanche effect of	File size (KB)	File type	PA (%)
proposed algorithm	1	TXT	50
	5	TXT	50
	25	TXT	58
	50	TXT	60
	100	ТХТ	68

Table 3 Enc/Dec time of	File size (KB)	File type	PA
proposed algorithm	1	TXT	0.45
	5	TXT	1.00
	25	TXT	1.57
	50	TXT	3.25
	100	TXT	3.75

Table 4	CPU	utilization	of
proposed	algor	ithm	

File size (KB) File type PA (%) 1 TXT 65 5 TXT 67 25 TXT 75 50 TXT 80 100 TXT 87			
1 TXT 65 5 TXT 67 25 TXT 75 50 TXT 80 100 TXT 87	File size (KB)	File type	PA (%)
5 TXT 67 25 TXT 75 50 TXT 80 100 TXT 87	1	TXT	65
25 TXT 75 50 TXT 80 100 TXT 87	5	TXT	67
50 TXT 80 100 TXT 87	25	TXT	75
100 TXT 87	50	TXT	80
	100	TXT	87



block ciphers technique and cryptographic hash functions technique wherein if when an input (Key or Text) is changed slightly (for example, flick a solitary bit) the output (cipher text) changes drastically (e.g., almost half the output bits flick) [12, 13]. By changing the single bit in the key more than 50% of the bits changes in cipher text, Avalanche Effect of Proposed Algorithm which is shown in Table 2 with corresponding graphical analysis of avalanche effect of proposed algorithm, are shown in Fig. 7.

Due to high avalanche effect, we can say that a proposed secret key algorithm is very secure. Moreover, the efficiency of the proposed algorithm is evaluated and execution time is one of the prime attributes to evaluate efficiency. Execution time is the time in which the proposed algorithm is converting plain text into cipher text. There are two ways to evaluate execution time of proposed algorithm; first is encryption time and second is decryption time of proposed algorithm which is shown in Table 3, and corresponding graphical analysis of encryption/decryption time of proposed algorithm is shown in Fig. 8. It is clearly shown in Fig. 8 that with the increase in size of the files, execution time (encryption and decryption) is also increasing. CPU utilization of the proposed secret key algorithm is evaluated which

is shown in Table 4, and corresponding graphical analysis of CPU utilization of proposed algorithm is shown in Fig. 9. Normally CPU utilization refers to the usages of processing resources by computer's or we can say that the quantity of work knobbed by a CPU. CPU utilization depends on the quantity of work and computing tasks managed by computers. Some tasks need heavy CPU utilization, while others need less. On an average 75% of CPU utilization is showing by the proposed algorithm.

5 Conclusion

The proposed secret key algorithm will speed up the operation performed to produce cipher text. For the XOR logical operation and circular shift logical operation, the instruction set support is added. The proposed secret key algorithm has been analyzed on various file sizes. More than 50% avalanche effect has been analyzed during encryption and decryption process. The simulated result shows that the encryption time and CPU utilization are directly proportional to data and its size. It is clearly shown that with the increase in size of the files, CPU utilization is also increasing. The proposed secret key algorithm is easy in implementation due to its simple architecture and very difficult to crack because of its 16-byte key size, so it can be useful in commercial and other areas where data security and confidentiality are must. This proposed secret key algorithm can be further enhanced to suit the need of the user.

References

- Burke, J., McDonald, J., Austin, T.: Architectural support for fast symmetric-key cryptography. In: Ninth International Conference on Architectural Support for Programming Languages and Operating Systems (ASPLOS'00), pp. 178–189. ACM, New York, USA (2000)
- 2. Lenstra, A.K., Verheul, E.R.: Selecting cryptographic key sizes. J. Cryptol. **14**(4), 255–293 (2001) (Springer, New York)
- Pointcheval, D.: Practical security in public-key cryptography. In: Proceedings of the 4th International Conference on Information Security and Cryptology, pp. 1–17. LNCS 2288, Springer, South Korea (2001)
- Cook, D.L., Keromytis, A.D.: Conversion functions for symmetric key ciphers. J. Inf. Assur. Secur. 2(2006), 41–50 (2005)
- Patrick, T.K.: One way functions and public key cryptography. Afr. J. Math. Comput. Sci. Res. 4(6), 213–216 (2011)
- Kumar, D.S., Suneetha, C.H., Chandrasekh, A.: Encryption of data using elliptic curve over finite fields. Int. J. Distrib. Parallel Syst. (IJDPS) 3(1), 301–308 (2012)
- Kaushik, Al., Gupta, K.: Ask cipher for small amount of data. In: International Conference on Reliability Optimization and Information Technology (ICROIT), India, pp. 318–321 (2014)
- 8. Gomathi, S.: A cryptography using advanced substitution technique and symmetric key generating algorithm. In: IEEE 8th International Conference on Intelligent Systems and Control (ISCO), India, pp. 224–228 (2014)
- Barman, S., Chattopadhyay, S.: Fingerprint based symmetric cryptography. In: IEEE International Conference on High Performance Computing and Applications (ICHPCA), India, pp. 1–6 (2014)
- Chandraa, S., Mandalb, B., Alamc, Sk., Bhattacharyyad, S.: Content based double encryption algorithm using symmetric key cryptography. In: 3rd International Conference on Recent Trends in Computing (ICRTC-2015) Procedia Computer Science, vol. 57, pp. 1228–1234. Elsevier (2015)
- 11. Anand, A., Raj, A., Kohli, R., Dr. Bibhu, V.: Proposed symmetric key cryptography algorithm for data security. In: International Conference on Innovation and Challenges in Cyber Security (ICICCS-INBUSH), India, pp. 159–162 (2016)
- 12. Dewangan, C.P., Agrawal, S.: A novel approach to improve avalanche effect of AES algorithm. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Eng. Technol. 1(8), 248-252 (2012)
- Landge, I., Contractor, B., Patel, A., Choudhary, R.: Image encryption and decryption using blowfish algorithm. In: National Conference on Emerging Trend in Information Technology NCETIT-2012, India, pp. 151–156 (2012) (World Journal of Science and Technology)

Comprehensive Method of Knowledge-Based Approach for Word-Sense Disambiguation

Pornima Gidhe and Leena Ragha

Abstract We share our knowledge, thoughts, and information on the Web through our Natural Language (NL). Most of the words in NL are ambiguous and change the meaning of a sentence. Humans can disambiguate the meaning through perceived intelligence, but it is challenging task for a system. Many researchers are working on Word-Sense Disambiguation (WSD) which is used to get correct sense out of context to make the sense of a text understandable by machine/application. We focus on Knowledge-Based (KB) approaches which rely on knowledge resource like WordNet. We compared KB algorithms such as Lesk, Walker, and Conceptual Density with the help of common dataset of sentences. Comparative analysis is done to find the limitations of individual algorithms based on the analysis; we propose a comprehensive method of KB approach.

Keywords Knowledge based · Word-sense disambiguation (WSD) Natural language processing (NLP)

1 Introduction

Nowadays, we communicate with each other on the Web using regional languages and lot of text data is generated. This text data is used by Natural Language Processing (NLP) which combines the strength of artificial intelligence, computational linguistic and computer science to make the system intelligent like humans. Word is the basic element of sentence and paragraph; it is present in NLP applications like sentiment analysis, machine translation where word ambiguity needs to be resolved. Most of the words in NLP are ambiguous due to multiple meanings, called as lexical ambiguity. For example, the word "object" is having senses like

P. Gidhe (🖂) · L. Ragha

Computer Engineering Department, RAIT Mumbai, Mumbai, India e-mail: pornimagidhe@yahoo.com

L. Ragha e-mail: leena.ragha@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_7

"physical object" and "aim." WSD techniques are divided into three approaches. Knowledge-Based (KB) Approach: Rely on knowledge resources like WordNet [1, 2], thesaurus. KB approach encompasses of Overlap-Based (OB) approaches which require a Machine-Readable Dictionary (MRD) [3]. Machine Learning (ML)-Based Approach: Rely on train model [4] and use tagged or untagged corpus [5, 6]. Hybrid Approach: KB and ML approaches [3] are combined. ML and hybrid approaches do not contain global dataset, and the performance is inferior. KB methods are based on Knowledge-Based dictionary which contains global dataset so it gives better performance; thus, we are focusing on Knowledge-Based (KB) approach.

Subsequent sections are organized as follows: In Sect. 2, we have done survey about literature. It gives overview of work done in this field. Section 3 gives overview of WSD techniques. Section 4 is about comparative analysis of WSD techniques. In Sect. 5, we have proposed a method to overcome the limitations of KB techniques. Finally, Sect. 6 concludes this study.

2 Literature Review

Literature survey shows that lot of work is still going on in WSD using various techniques.

George A. Miller et al. gave WordNet. It is an online lexical database for English language [7] which includes POS and organized into synonym set. Satanjeev Banerjee et al. use glosses of words for disambiguation [8]. WSD specific WordNet of polysemy words [9] is given by Udaya Raj et al. which organizes polysemy words as well as single-sense words. WordNet for Assamese language which is topical-based approach and thesaurus with tagged category is developed by Purabi Kalita et al. with modified version of Assamese WordNet. WSD algorithms, namely Lesk [10], Walker [11] and WSD using Conceptual Density [12], use WordNet for disambiguation. For Indian script, IndoWordNet [13, 10, 11] is used by researchers. Lesk algorithm is used for English word disambiguation by Radhike Swaheny et al. This algorithm is modified using dynamic context window [10] which requires hand coding, hand tagging of lexicons or training dataset; thus, Enko Agirre et al. gave a solution in the form of a fully automatic method, i.e., WSD with Conceptual Density [12] which depends on CD formula. The WordNet was originally designed for English language. WordNet is having limitations for other regional languages [7] and needs exclusive modifications to suit the regional language. WordNet lacks a cross-categorical semantic relation [12] which may increase performance of CD. Modified Lesk [8] uses dynamic context window, but window size is not mentioned and it increases processing time. Conceptual Density approach works on hypernymy [12], but it will not work on file/document level. It is observed that all three algorithms disambiguate different types of cases. In the next section, we will solve different cases using Word-Sense Disambiguation (WSD) techniques.

les

Case 1: On burning coal we get ash
Case 2: The money in this bank fetches an interest of 8% per annum
Case 3: They were riding side by side down the south bank of the creek, to develop interest and
get command on riding in slimy land
Case 4: The actors were awesome in play, group members delivered a message of team spirit

3 Word-Sense Disambiguation (WSD) Techniques

Manually we have created a dataset (Table 1) of ambiguous cases. KB algorithms are applied on it to find the efficiency and downside of each algorithm.

We applied each WSD algorithm on the ambiguous cases to understand the power of disambiguation and the effect which is explained above.

3.1 Lesk Algorithm

It is an overlap-based approach. It looks for overlap between sense bag which contains the words in the definition of a candidate sense of the ambiguous word and context bag which contains the words in the definition of each sense of each context word [10, 14]. Consider Case 1 from Table (1), i.e., Case 1: On burning coal we get ash.

Here, ash and burn are overlapping words from Table (2); therefore, Sense 1, i.e., ash as a residue is selected and ambiguity of ash is removed. Now consider Case 2 from Table (1), i.e., <u>Case 2</u>: The money in this bank fetches an interest of 8% per annum.

From Table 3 we can say the clue word money does not resolve the ambiguity of a word bank as it gives two different senses for bank, i.e., Sense 1 and Sense 2. So, ambiguity remains.

Table 2 Different senses for word "ASH" from WordNet

1. Ash (the residue that remains when something is burned)	
2. Ash, ash tree (any of various deciduous pinnate-leaved ornamental or timber trees)	
^a Context bag: burning, ash ^b Sense bag: burned, ash	
bense bug. bulled, ush	

Table 3 Different senses for word "BANK" from WordNet

1. Bank depository financial institution, banking company(accepts deposits and channels the money into leading activities) he cashed a check at the bank

2. Bank savings bank(coin bank), (money box) (a container usually with a slot in the top for keeping money at home) the coin bank was empty

^aContext bag: bank, money, interest

^bSense bag: bank, money from Table (3)

3.2 Walker Algorithm

Walker is a Thesaurus-Based approach [11]. For a target word, thesaurus category is formed using possible sense. Clue words are selected from the sentence. It categorizes clue words into different senses with the help of WordNet. If clue word is overlapping with the sense ontology, then sense score is incremented by +1. The sense having higher score will be selected in a correct sense. Consider Case 2 and Case 3 from Table (1), i.e., <u>Case 2</u>: The money in this bank fetches an interest of 8% per annum.

<u>Case 3:</u> They were riding side by side down the south bank of the creek, to develop interest and get command on riding in slimy land.

Table (4) says ambiguity of word bank is resolved by selecting high score Sense 1, i.e., Finance. Table (5) gives equal score for both sense; thus, ambiguity of Case 3 remains.

Clue words from Case 2	Sense 1: Finance	Sense 2: Location
Money	+1	0
Interest	+1	0
Fetch	0	0
Annum	+1	0
Total	3	0

Table 4 Case 2: Walker's algorithm Step 2

 Table 5
 Case 3: Walker's algorithm Step 2

Clue words from Case 3	Sense 1: Finance	Sense 2: River/location
Land	0	+1
Interest	+1	0
Total	1	1

3.3 Conceptual Density Algorithm

Conceptual Density generates hyponymy with the help of WordNet [12]. Working: Senses are retrieved for an ambiguous word from WordNet. For each sense, the hierarchy is generated by considering relatedness. Relatedness is measured in terms of conceptual distance (CD) [15]. The concept with highest CD is selected.

$$CD(C,M) = \frac{\sum_{i=0}^{m-1} (nhyp)i^{0.2}}{\text{decendence of } c}$$
(1)



Sense 1: Bank of river Sense 2: Financial Bank

where C = concept, nhyp = mean no. of hyponyms, and M = no. of sense of the word. Consider Case 3 and Case 4 from Table (1), i.e., <u>Case 3</u>: They were riding side by side down the south **bank** of the creek, to develop interest and get command on riding in slimy land. <u>Case 4</u>: The actors were awesome in **play**, group members delivered a message of team spirit.

With the help of hierarchy given in Fig. 1, CD of Sense 1 = 1.24 and Sense 2 = 1; thus, high score Sense 1, i.e., Bank of River is selected, solved the ambiguity of Case 3. From Fig. 2, CD of Sense 1 =Sense 2 = 1; thus, ambiguity of Case 4 remains.

From subsequent study of cases with WSD techniques, we compared the three WSD methods in Sect. 4.

4 Comparative Analysis

From Table (6) comparative analysis, we find that Lesk can handle cases which contain polysemous words and less ambiguous context. The cases that we handled by Lesk can be handled by Walker as it is based on thesaurus. The cases handled by Walker are handled by Conceptual Density in a better way as it is extension of Walker. Still Conceptual Density has some limitations like if cases have same number of clues or hyponym then it gives equal CD value and ambiguity remains. To disambiguate such cases, we proposed a combined solution in Sect. 5.



Technique	Basic overview	Dataset	Accuracy	Pros	Cons
1. Lesk approach	Looks for the overlapping word from context bag and sense bag to find the correct sense	First 2 examples from 1	The ambiguity of 1 context out of 4	Gives good performance when a context has less number of ambiguous words and polysemous words	If words in a context bag have overlapping senses in more than one sense bag, then it fails
2. Walker's algorithm	Use thesaurus to find the correct sense category by calculating score	First 3 examples from 1	Resolve the ambiguity of 2 contexts out of 4	Resolve the cons of Lesk and considers both the polysemous and synonymy words	Looks for overlapping words from the context bag and does not consider hyponym
3. WSD using Conceptual Density	It selects the sense based on the relatedness of that word sense to the context by measuring CD	All the examples from 1	Resolve the ambiguity of all the contexts	1. Considers hyponym to generate sense tree 2. Does not require tagged corpus and resolve the cons of Walker	Senses have equal number of clues or hyponym; it gives equal CD value

 Table 6
 Comparative analysis of WSD techniques

5 Proposed Method

From all the cases, we have studied and understood that Conceptual Density is the extension of Walker's algorithm; thus, our proposed method is concatenation of Lesk and Conceptual Density which increases the quantifiability of cases by conquering the limitations of each algorithm. Consider <u>Case 4</u>: The actors were awesome in **play**, group members delivered a message of team spirit.

<u>Working</u>: Step 1: Create context bag by considering target word, collocating word, and all the clue words from the sentence. Context bag: actors, play, group, team, team spirit. Step 2: Select the senses for target word from WordNet. Check for overlapping words and add those in the sense bag. Step 3: Now retrieve the senses for remaining words present in context bag. Update the sense bag with overlapping words. Sense bag: actors, play, group, team, and team spirit. Step 4: Generate hypernymy based on relatedness of words from sense bag and context bag for each sense. Step 5: Find Conceptual Density, i.e., CD value for each sense. Step 6: The sense having higher CD value will be selected as correct sense.

From Fig. 3, Sense 1 having CD value = 1.34 and Sense 2 = 1.14; thus, our method has correctly disambiguated the word play as act, i.e., Sense 1 is selected.

Fig. 4 describes the working system of WSD when individual method fails to solve ambiguity of words. When Lesk fails, then Conceptual Density is able to



Fig. 3 Different hierarchies for the word Play [13]



Fig. 4 Flow diagram for WSD

solve the ambiguity. When all the algorithms fail, then our proposed method, i.e., Lesk's + Conceptual Density will work. To work on document, we can consider dynamic context window. Still if ambiguity remains, then we can go for cross-lingual.

6 Conclusion

NLP is the trendy topic and WSD is a part of NLP. Many things are yet to be explored in WSD domain. We performed comparative analysis of KB algorithms using our dataset to understand the strength and weakness of each algorithm. Lesk performs well for polysemous words, but if context have more than one sense bag then it fails. Walker solves the cases handled by Lesk using thesaurus approach, but it does not consider hyponym. Conceptual Density fails to disambiguate when senses give same CD value; such complications are handled by proposed method.

The individual thinks different and based on thinking, sentences are formed. So it may happen that our proposed method may not give results to some of the cases, but the method accurately disambiguates the cases from our dataset.

References

- 1. Fard, M.H.: Word sense disambiguation based on gloss expansion. In: Information and Knowledge Technology (IKT), pp. 7–10, IEEE (2014)
- Dhungana, U.R: Word Sense Disambiguation using WSD specific WordNet of polysemy words, Semantic Computing (ICSC), pp. 148–152, IEEE (2015)
- Giyanani, R.: A survey on word sense disambiguation. IOSR J. Comput. Eng. (IOSR-JCE) 14, 30–33 (2013)
- Kalita, P.: Word sense disambiguation: a survey. Int. J. Eng. Comput. Sci. 4, 11743–11748 (2015)
- Singh, H., Gupta, V.: Performance analysis of recent Word Sense disambiguation techniques. In: 2nd International Conference on Recent Advances in Engineering and Computational Sciences (RAECS), pp. 1–6, IEEE (2015)
- Zhou, X., Hyoil, H.: Survey of word sense disambiguation approaches. In: FLAIRS Conference, pp. 307–313 (2005)
- 7. Miller, G.A.: Introduction to WordNet: an on-line lexical database. Int. J. Lexicogr. 3, 235–244 (1990)
- Banerjee, S., Pedersen, T.: An adapted Lesk algorithm for word sense disambiguation using WordNet. In: International Conference on Intelligent Text Processing and Computational Linguistics, pp. 136–145, Springer, Berlin Heidelberg (2002)
- Dhungana, U.R.: Word sense disambiguation using WSD specific WordNet of polysemy words. In: International Conference on Semantic Computing (ICSC), pp. 148–152, IEEE (2015)
- Sawhney, R., Arvinder K.: A modified technique for Word Sense disambiguation using Lesk algorithm in Hindi language. In: Advances in Computing, Communications and Informatics (ICACCI), pp. 2745–2749, IEEE (2014)

- Kalita, P., Barman, A.K.: Implementation of Walker algorithm in Word Sense disambiguation for assamese language. In: Advanced Computing and Communication (ISACC), International Symposium on, pp. 136–140, IEEE (2015)
- 12. Agirre, E., Rigau, G.: Word sense disambiguation using conceptual density. In: Proceedings of the 16th Conference on Computational linguistics, vol. 2, pp. 16–22 (2008)
- Sinha, M.: Hindi word sense disambiguation. In: International Symposium on Machine Translation, Natural Language Processing and Translation Support Systems (iSTRANS), pp. 10–17, Delhi, India (2004)
- Farazi, F.: WordNet powered faceted semantic search with automatic sense disambiguation for bioenergy domain. In: Tenth International Conference on Semantic Computing (ICSC), pp. 112–115, IEEE (2016)
- 15. Agirre, E., Rigau, G.: Word sense disambiguation using conceptual density. In: Proceedings of the 16th Conference on Computational linguistics, vol. 1, pp. 16–22 (2008)
- Fulmari, A., Manoj, B.C.: A survey on supervised learning for word sense disambiguation. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. 2, 4667–4670 (2013)

Reversible Data Hiding by Utilizing AES Encryption and LZW Compression

Akshay Kumar Joshi and Sanjay Sharma

Abstract The Increase of digital media transfer made the modification of the image very easy. So one major issue of proprietorship is raised, as copying and transferring are very soft practices. Here this paper has to resolve proprietorship problem by embedding the digital data with encryption. In this work, embedding of data is done applying the LZW algorithm. Then robustness is provided by using the AES algorithm. Finally by using spatial technique, embedding of digital data is done in encrypted image. Experiment is done on real dataset image. Evaluation parameter values show that proposed work has maintained the SNR and PSNR values with high robustness of the data.

Keywords Color format • Digital watermarking • Frequency domain LSB

1 Introduction

As Internet facility is growing drastically, users are attracted by various service providers day by day. Some of them are online shops, digital marketing, social network, registrations, etc. This easy access lead to violate the proprietorship easily, as users can stolen others work and make digital print with their name. But this technology gives rise to new problem of piracy or in other words proprietary get easily stolen. In order to overcome this issue, many techniques were suggested and proprietary of the digital data is preserved [1, 2]. So to overcome this, different techniques are used for preserving the proprietary of the owner. Out of many

A. K. Joshi · S. Sharma (🖂)

A. K. Joshi e-mail: Joshia253@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

Computer Science & Engineering, OIST, RGPV, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: sanjaysharmaemail@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_8

approaches, digital data embedding which is also known as digital watermarking plays an important role. In order to provide proprietorship of the data owner, digital data was embedded into the image, video, or data as in [3, 4]. As some of the available software can remove those watermark or change to new one, invisible copyright was highly required.

In few of approaches, inclusion of third party was done by most of the researcher where secret message is held by one while carrier signal is held by other [5, 6]. Here embedding is done in fix part of the image where information can be hidden. Similarly at the receiver side, extraction of the digital data from the received image is done.

2 Related Work

In [4], digital data was embedded in the selected portion of the image where edge region was select for embedding. Here paper has developed a new approach of finding pixel-representing edges. By utilizing Dam and BCV approach, image was segmented into edge and non-edge regions. The drawback of this work that it was done on binary image, means data hiding can be done by this method for binary image. This leads to another imitation that is embedding of data should be in binary form. With above issues, image was highly robust against different type of attacks like filter, noise.

In [7], author has extended the work done in [4] by increasing the overall capacity of the embedding data space. Here in Dam and BCV technique, author starts looking at the surrounding of the edge region pixel. So overall capacity of the data hiding was drastically increased in this paper. Here even after embedding more data, embedded image was robust against different type of attack as well.

In [8], self-embedding concept was proposed by the authors where image itself generates the data for embedding while in order to protect data in network fountain, codes were developed for lost packed regeneration. As in fountain codes more than one required packet format was send in the network, which helps in regenerating the missed or corrupt data packets. This work has great limitation was that after embedding of data the image is not available in original format before extraction. So main purpose of this work is transferring the data packet from sender to receiver only.

In [9] concept of image watermark self generation was used, in this image is utilized in this way so it can generate its own watermark information. This paper focuses on the image development where spatial area was utilized for inserting the digital data as a carrier object. At the same time, similar information is required at the receiver which helps in finding the digital data back. But to cover both intracodeblock and inter-codeblock method is utilized. In [10], author adopts KSVD technique for embedding the digital data. Hereby utilizing the DES algorithm, encryption of the digital data was done. Here one dictionary was maintained at the receiver and transmitter end for reducing the size of carrier signal. In this work, after embedding some vacant space between the data was utilized for the data embedding. This work gives freedom for extraction of image or digital data or both in any order.

3 Proposed Methodology

Center of attention in this work was to hide digital data in the image. Whole work was done in two steps of embedding digital data and extraction of digital data. In proposed work, the color image is first divided into three different color channels, which are Red, Green, and Blue. Each color channel is encrypted and compressed in row-wise fashion by using AES encryption and LZW compression. Secret information which is hidden into the cover image is first encrypted and then embedded into the compressed encrypted image (Fig. 1).



Fig. 1 Block diagram of proposed work

3.1 Preprocessing

Collection of different number on fixed range represents a type of image format. So reading pixel values of that image matrix is done in this step of the proposed model [11, 12]. Such that for the grayscale format, it is in the range of 0–255.

3.2 Bit Plane in Rows

In this step, all the color channels Red, Green, and Blue are divided into row-wise as per the matrix. Now each row is converted into its equivalent binary value. As single vector was created in this work for each row, pixel value of each color channel is consecutive to the pixel value of same row in the same color channel for each row in all three channels.

3.3 AES

In this encryption algorithm, four stages are performed in each round. These steps are common for both encryption as well as decryption algorithm where decryption algorithm is inverse of the encryption one. Now common step for all kind of data is that each data needs to be converted into 16 element set of input. Here each input needs to be in integer data type. So each round consists of following four stages.

- Byte substitution (one S-box used on every byte)
- Shift rows (permute bytes between groups/columns)
- Mix columns (subs using matrix multiply of groups)
- Add round key (XOR state with key material).

3.4 LZW Compression

In this technique trick is that string-to-codeword mapping is created dynamically by the encoder also recreated dynamically at the decoder no need to pass the code table to decoder. It is a lossless compression algorithm degree of compression hard to predict depends on data, but gets better as codeword table contains more strings.

- step 1. Initialize table with single character strings
- step 2. STRING = first input character
- step 3. WHILE not end of input stream

- a. CHARACTER = next input character
- b. IF STRING + CHARACTER is in the string table
 - i. STRING = STRING + CHARACTER
- c. ELSE
 - i. Output the code for STRING
 - ii. Add STRING + CHARACTER to the string table
 - iii. STRING = CHARACTER
- step 4. END WHILE
- step 5. Output code for string

3.5 Embedding

Row is first encrypted because of the AES encryption and then compressed by LZW compression, and this process of compression compresses the row and provides space to accommodate the secret data in that place. At the stage of embedding, we take the compressed row to hide the secret data and used as separator.

3.6 Extraction Steps

In this extraction steps, receiver can extract data and image by using above block diagram (Fig. 2).

Fig. 2 Block diagram of data extraction at receiver end, where **a** represents extraction of original image while **b** represents extraction of original data



3.7 Extraction of Image

Here first LZW compressed data was extracted from the packet. In order to differentiate image values and hiding data in the packet, zero is used as a separator. So values before 0 are considered as the image data. Now this image data is first decompressed by LZW algorithm. So resultant series is row of cover image. In similar fashion, all the rows are extracted from the compressed data files. Now all extracted value in form of row is decrypted by AES algorithm having same key values. In this way, all the planes in form of rows are combined to make single image for output of the image.

3.8 Extraction of Data

This section of proposed work is for data extraction at receiver side. Here first embedded data was extracted from the packet. In order to differentiate image values and hiding data in the packet, zero is used as a separator. So values after 0 are considered as the image data. Now all extracted value is decrypted by AES algorithm having same key values. Now ASCII values are converted into corresponding characters.

3.9 Algorithm

Input: CI (Cover Image), HD (Hiding Data)

Output: EP (Embedded Packet)

- CI ← Preprocessing(CI)
- Loop 1:3 // for Each C (Channel) {Red, Green, Blue}
- C ← CI
- Loop 1:n // n : number of row in channel C
- $R \leftarrow C[n]$
- ER ← AES_Encryption(R) // ER: Encrypted Row
- CR ← LZW_Compression(ER) // CR: Compressed Row
- P ← CR // P packet
- EndLoop
- EndLoop
- While P is blank AND count <=:m // m number of characters in hiding data
- EHD ← AES encryption(HD) // EHD : Encrypted hiding data
- EP ← EHD[count] // EP : Embedded Packet
- $\operatorname{count} = \operatorname{count} + 1$
- EndWhile

4 Experiment and Results

This section presents the experimental evaluation of the proposed work. All algorithms and utility measures were implemented using the MATLAB tool. The tests were performed on 2.27 GHz Intel Core i3 machine, equipped with 4 GB of RAM, and running under Windows 7 Professional.

4.1 Dataset

Experiment is done on the standard images such as Mandrilla, Lena, Tree. These are standard images which are derived from http://sipi.usc.edu/database/?volume=misc. System is tested on day-to-day images.

4.2 Results

From Table 1, it is obtained that under ideal condition, proposed work is better as compared to the previous work in [10] under PSNR evaluation parameters. As compression algorithm has regenerated images in color format only, so this parameter is high as compared to the previous value.

From Table 2, it is obtained that under ideal condition, proposed work is better as compared to the previous work in [10] under SNR evaluation parameters. As compression algorithm has regenerated images in color format only, so this parameter is high as compared to the previous value.

Table 1 PSNR-based comparison between proposed and previous work	PSNR-based comparison			
	Images	Proposed work	Previous work	
	Mandrilla	35.5347	9.3	
	Tree	34.3451	10.425	
	Lena	32.09	9.2113	

Table 2 SNR-based comparison between proposed and previous work	SNR-based comparison			
	Images	Proposed work	Previous work	
	Mandrilla	16.3864	2.46871	
	Tree	16.8352	2.4174	
	Lena	16.293	2.63165	

Table 3 Execution time-	Execution time comparison			
Table 4 Embedding	Images	Proposed work	Previous work	
	Mandrilla	44.6171	62.8	
	Tree	50.7853	65.5632	
	Lena	38.6011	68.263	
Table 4 Embedding	Embedding capacity comparison			

capacity-based comparison between proposed and previous work	Embedding capacity comparison		
	Images	Proposed work	Previous work
	Mandrilla	5120	6413
	Tree	5120	6042
	Lena	5120	6219

From Table 3, it is obtained that under ideal condition, proposed work is better as compared to the previous work in [10] under execution time evaluation parameters. As proposed work regenerates dictionary from the same data, so execution time for the same is less as compared to the previous work.

From Table 4, it is obtained that under ideal condition, proposed work is better as compared to the previous work in [10] under hiding position evaluation parameters. As proposed work regenerates dictionary from the same data, so execution time for the same is less as compared to the previous work.

5 Conclusion

Here proposed work has efficiently embedded data in the carrier image while security of the carrier is also maintained by encrypting using AES algorithm. Embedding is done in reserved positions which are obtained by LZW compression. Proposed algorithm will recover or reverse complete data at receiver end. Results show that the proposed work is producing the results which maintain the image quality as well as robustness. In future, work can be improved for other attacks such as geometry of image.

References

- 1. Yadav, S., Tiwari, V., Tiwari, B.: Privacy preserving data mining with abridge time using vertical partition decision tree. In: Proceedings of the ACM Symposium on Women in Research 2016, pp. 158–164. ACM (2016)
- 2. Masry, M.A.: A Watermarking algorithm for map and chart images. In: Proceedings of the SPIE Conference on Security, Steganography and Watermarking of Multimedia Contents VII, pp. 495–504 (2005)

- 3. EL-Emam, N.N.: Hiding a large amount of data with high security using steganography algorithm. J. Comput. Sci., 223–232 (2007)
- Chandramouli R., Memon. N.D.: Analysis of LSB based image steganography techniques. In: International Conference on Image Processing, vol. 3, pp. 1019–1022 IEEE (2001)
- Khalilian, H., Bajic, I.V.: Video watermarking with empirical PCA-based decoding. IEEE Trans. Image Process. 22(12) (2013)
- Chang, C.C., Chou, Y.C., Kieu, D.: An information hiding scheme using Sudoku. In: The 3rd International Conference on Innovative Computing Information and Control, Liaoning, Dalian (2008)
- 7. Piper, A., Safavi-Naini, R.: Scalable fragile watermarking for image authentication. IET Inf. Secur. (2012)
- Korus, P., Dziech, A.: Efficient method for content reconstruction with self-embedding. IEEE Trans. Image Process. 22(3) (2013)
- 9. Chimanna, M.A., Kho, S.R.: Digital video watermarking techniques for secure multimedia creation and delivery. **3**(2), 839–844 (2013)
- Cao, X., Du, L., Wei, X., Meng, D., Guo, X.: High capacity reversible data hiding in encrypted images by patch-level sparse representation. IEEE Trans. Cybern. 46, 1132–1143 (2016)
- Makbol, N.M., Khoo1, B.E., Rassem, T.H.: Block-based discrete wavelet transform singular value decomposition image watermarking scheme using human visual system characteristics. IET Image Process. 10(1), 34–52 (2016)
- 12. Brandão, S., Jorge, D.C.: Artificial neural networks applied to image steganography. IEEE Latin Am. Trans. 14(3) (2016)

Microstrip Antenna Array Design for Generalized Spatial Modulation— Multiple Input Multiple Output (GSM-MIMO) Applications

Raj Rajeshwari Lunawat, Debashis Adhikari and Priyanka Tupe Waghmare

Abstract An array of patch antenna aims at improving the gain of the antenna as well as improves the radiation in different directions. By selecting two antennas out of four in 4 * 1 array, the power can be increased to a great extent, and by this switching technique of the antenna in the array, the transmission of bits is done in an efficient way. In this, the 4 * 1 array of rectangular microstrip antenna along with single RMSA is designed and simulated to get proper gain and radiation pattern at around 2.54 GHz frequency.

Keywords Switching • Patch antenna • RMSA • Array • 4 * 1 array Ansys HFSS • Improved gain and bandwidth

1 Introduction

Spatial modulation is a technique in which selection of single antenna is done from a group of transmitting antennas in order to transmit the information bits. This increases the system efficiency but has error probability issues. To overcome this issue, Generalized Spatial Modulation (GSM) came into existence. In GSM, a combination of two or more antennas is selected at a time to transmit the data. This concept helps to minimize the error probability, and the system efficiency is also increased. Let us consider that the number of transmitting antennas is N_t and the number of active antenna chosen to transmit the data at any instant of time is N_p . Therefore, the available number of combinations to select N_p antennas out of N_t will be given by $C_{N_t}^{N_t}$, where C is the symbol used for combination.

R. R. Lunawat (🖂) · P. T. Waghmare

Department of Electronics & Telecommunications, Symbiosis Institute of Technology, Pune, India

e-mail: raj.lunawat@sitpune.edu.in

D. Adhikari

Department of Electronics & Telecommunications, MIT Academy of Engineering, Pune, India

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_9

But the combination used will be in the power of two, so the permitted combination will be $N = 2^{\lfloor \log_2 C_{N_p}^{N_t} \rfloor}$. The information bits through first part of the system model is given as $l_1 = \lfloor \log_2 C_{N_p}^{N_t} \rfloor$, while the second part is $l_2 = N_p \log_2 M$, where *M* is the set of constellation points. Hence, the transmitted part will be addition of both the parts $L = l_1 + l_2 = \lfloor \log_2 C_{N_p}^{N_t} \rfloor + N_p \log_2 M$. For example, if $N_t = 4$ and $N_p = 2$, then the total number of combinations will be 6, but the acceptable combinations will be only 4. The length of information bits will be $l_1 = 2$ bits and $l_2 = 4$ bits for M = 4 which makes L = 6 bits [1]. But in this paper, all possible six antenna combinations have been simulated.

In this paper, the design of an array with the design of each possible combination of selecting two antennas out of four in 4 * 1 array along with the simulation and obtained results is shown. The array is designed by selecting proper parameters of the patch antenna. The design and analysis are done using Ansys HFSS software. The design is based on the selection of proper dimensions of the substrate, ground plane, patch, cut-out, feed line and the source required for feeding the antenna.

2 Methodology and Software Used

Ansys HFSS software provides best way to model the patch antenna and helps to analyse the radiation pattern, S-Parameters, polar plot, etc., very efficiently. The steps followed for the design of the antenna are to first model the design based on the parameters listed below [2]. For designing of the patch antenna, we must know about the dielectric constant ε_r , operating frequency f_0 and height of the substrate h. After selecting the above parameters as per the requirement for the desired application, the other necessary parameters for the design of patch antenna can be selected using the equations stated as under [3].

A. Width of the patch [4]:

$$W = \frac{C_0}{f_0} \sqrt{\frac{2}{\varepsilon_r + 1}} \tag{1}$$

 C_0 = speed of the light; f_0 = operating frequency; ε_r = effective dielectric constant of substrate.

B. Length of the patch [5]:

$$L_e = L + 2\Delta L = \frac{\lambda_0}{2\sqrt{\varepsilon_0}} \tag{2}$$

 $\Delta L = h/\sqrt{\varepsilon_e}$; λ_0 = wavelength; ε_0 = dielectric constant.

Microstrip Antenna Array Design for Generalized Spatial ...

C. Effective dielectric constant of the patch [4]:

$$\varepsilon_e = \left(\frac{\varepsilon_r + 1}{2}\right) \left(\frac{\varepsilon_r - 1}{2}\right) \left(\frac{1 + 10h}{W}\right)^{-1/2} \tag{3}$$

h = height of substrate.

D. Length of the ground plane [5]:

$$L_g = 6h + L \tag{4}$$

E. Width of the ground plane [5]:

$$W_g = 6h + W \tag{5}$$

- F. Length of the feed = decided on the basis of length to be elongated from the patch to the edge of the substrate [6]
- G. Width of the feed selected on the basis of characteristic imp of transmission line (50Ω) .

These basic equations stated above helps in deciding all the basic dimensions of the single patch antenna. The design and analysis of single patch antenna help in the implementation of the patch antenna array with all the known and calculated dimensions. The antenna parameters are thus studied obtaining the simulated results. The design is done using Ansys HFSS 2015.

2.1 Design Considerations

Knowing all the above parameters and doing calculations, the required design of patch antenna at 2.5-GHz frequency is made and it is simulated to obtain the results. This design is then used to further move towards the design of 4 * 1 patch antenna array. Table 1 shows all the dimensions calculated and used in the design of the single patch antenna and patch antenna array in the design (shown in the simulated results section). The required operating frequency is $f_o = 2.54$ GHz, but these results after simulation using this operating frequency are obtained at less than 2.54 GHz.

The above calculations are used to implement single patch antenna and 4 * 1 patch antenna array. The array needs to have proper dimensions and results, so that the switching circuit can be implemented in that array to have the ultimate aim accomplished.

Calculated patch dimensions	Single patch	4 * 1 array
Dielectric substrate	Rogers RT/duroid 5880 (2.2)	FR4 Epoxy (4.4)
Length of substrate (L_s) (mm)	53.63	82.11
Width of substrate (W_s) (mm)	61.89	657.68
Height of substrate (h) (mm)	2.54	2.54
Length of patch (L_P) (mm)	38.39	27.57
Width of patch (W_p) (mm)	46.65	55.91
Length of ground plane (mm)	55.65	82.11
Width of ground plane (mm)	61.89	657.68
Length of feed (L_f)	7.62 mm	As per required elongations to reach till the edge
Width of feed (W_f) (mm)	1.885	1.885
Length of source (L) (mm)	1.885	1.885
Width of source (<i>h</i>) (mm)	2.54	2.54
Length of the air-box (L_b) (mm)	70	100
Length of the air-box (W_b) (mm)	85	460
Height of the air-box (H_t) (mm)	15	15
Gap between the antennas in the array (G)		59.5 mm ($\lambda/2$ between each antenna)

Table 1 Dimensions for single patch and patch antenna array

3 Simulated Design Details with the Results

Ansys HFSS software is used to design the array of 4 * 1 patch antenna array, and the design is simulated to obtain the results. The array is then implemented by selecting two antennas out of four at a time. Thus, it will have six possible combinations of selection of two antennas out of four in the array. Each possible combination is simulated. The results are studied in order to have the implementation of switching circuit in the array as the results of each combination are known well.

3.1 Single Patch Antenna Design with Results

The single patch antenna is designed using the parameters mentioned in Table 1. The effect of dimensions of the patch by changing is observed carefully on the simulated results. This is the first step towards to design the array and getting the proper knowledge about the parameters of the patch antenna to be analysed.

The above result in Fig. 1 shows that the S-Parameter plot is at -25 dB at 2.5 GHz, and bandwidth is shown using the marker points m1 and m2 which is around 900 MHz. The 3D-polar plot in Fig. 2 shows maximum gain of about 5 dB (Fig. 3).



Fig. 1 Single patch antenna design



Fig. 2 Single patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 3 Single patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot



Fig. 4 Single patch antenna VSWR plot

The VSWR plot shown in Fig. 4 shows that the VSWR of the simulated antenna is 1.1176.

3.2 4 * 1 Array Patch Antenna Design with Results

The 4 * 1 array is implemented on the basis of single patch antenna designed, and dimensions are calculated as shown in Table 1. The array is basically designed to get improved antenna parameters. The array results are simulated and analysed so that it can be proceeded further for implementation of the switching circuit. The design of 4 * 1 patch antenna array simulated results is shown below.

The above result in Fig. 5 shows that the S-Parameter plot is at -46.39 dB and the bandwidth is shown using the marker m1 and m2 which is around 950 MHz.



Fig. 5 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 6 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot



Fig. 7 4 * 1 array patch antenna VSWR plot

The 3D-polar plot in Fig. 6 shows maximum gain of about 9 dB. The VSWR plot in Fig. 7 shows that the VSWR of the deigned antenna is 1.0096.

4 Combination of Antenna Selection Simulated Results

The 4 * 1 array patch antenna is then used for the selecting of two antennas at a time out of four with all the possible combinations, viz. (1,2), (1,3), (1,4), (2,3), (2,4) and (3,4) antennas out of all four antennas in the array. The implemented designs of each combination are simulated, and simulated results are shown in Figs. 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19.



Fig. 8 1&2 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 9 1&2 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot & radiation pattern plot



Fig. 10 1&3 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 11 1&3 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot



Fig. 12 1&4 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 13 1&4 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot



Fig. 14 2&3 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 15 2&3 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot



Fig. 16 2&4 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 17 2&4 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot



Fig. 18 3&4 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna S-Parameter plot



Fig. 19 3&4 antennas selected in 4 * 1 array patch antenna 3D-polar plot and radiation pattern plot

All the above implemented design gives good results in gain, bandwidth and efficiency as per the theoretical standard results [7]. The switch can now be implemented in the array in order to select two antennas out of four in the array. The above design for the 4 * 1 patch antenna array as shown in Fig. 5 is chosen in this way so as to have equal length for the division of power from the source even when two antennas out of four are selected randomly at a time.

The design of two antennas selection out of four in the 4 * 1 patch antenna array is done in order to study the changes on antenna parameters when two antennas out of four will be selected with the help of the implemented switch.

5 Conclusion

The switching technique to be implemented in the array will give the efficient transfer of bits, and thus the selection of two antennas out of four in the array is simulated. The simulated results are studied to implement the switching circuit in the 4 * 1 patch antenna array. When the switching of antenna occurs, two antennas are selected randomly out of four; however, the design is for four antennas working simultaneously in 4 * 1 patch antenna array. For two antennas to be selected, the proper switching circuit network needs to be implemented in the array. The switching circuit must be implemented such that the design gives required results of *S*-Parameter, radiation pattern and VSWR even if two antennas are selected randomly at a time.

References

- 1. Mesleh, R.Y., Ahn, C.W.: Spatial modulation. IEEE Trans. Veh. Technol. 57 (2008)
- 2. Ansoft HFSS 2015 version 16 Manual
- 3. Balanis, C.A.: Antenna Theory Analysis and Design. Wiley India (p.) Ltd. (2005)
- Chosh, C.K., Bhattacherjee, A.K., Roy, B.C.: Design and performance analysis of microstrip patch array antennas with different configurations. Int. J. Future Gener. Commun. Netw. 9, 97– 110 (2016)
- Wahab, N.Ab., Maslan, Z.B., Muhamad, W.N.W., Hamzah, N.: Microstrip rectangular 4x1 patch array antenna at 2.5 GHz for WiMax application. In: Second International Conference on Computational Intelligence, Communication Systems and Networks (2010)
- 6. Garg, R., Bhartia, I., Bahl, P., Ittipiboon, A.: Microstrip Antenna Design Handbook. Artech House, INC Publications (2001)
- Ray, K.P., Kumar, G.: Broadband Microstrip Antennas. Artech House, INC Publications (2003)

Wireless Assistive Communication System for Speech Impaired Person

Vaijayanti Gajul, Pranita Sharangdhar, Shanta Shinde and Smita S. Pawar

Abstract Speech is a necessary element for every human being, importance of which is summed up into two: expression and conception. People suffering from speech disability are apprehensive while communicating with normal people and even to involve in community interaction. This paper proposes development of a wearable assistive vocalizer, designed as two distinct modules communicating wirelessly, with Gesture Sensing Module placed on wrist of person and speech synthesizing module provided with portability to either mount around waist or connect to any audio device. Every gesture is assigned one word message that is transmitted employing Amplitude Shift keying modulation at 433.92 MHz radio frequency. The error probability for receiving multiple messages that were transmitted consecutively is plotted to analyze wireless response of system.

Keywords MEMS accelerometer · Flex sensor · Manchester encoding

1 Introduction

Assistive Technology came into existence with the aspiration of developing devices to compensate for physical disability and improve quality of life [1]. Augmentative and alternative communication (AAC) devices are special assistive devices designed for speech disabled people for generating voice. The major aspect of implementation of idea presented in paper is to enhance the AAC technology by

V. Gajul (⊠) · P. Sharangdhar · S. Shinde · S. S. Pawar MIT Academy of Engineering, Pune, India e-mail: vaijayantigajul@gmail.com

P. Sharangdhar e-mail: pranitasharangdhar13@gmail.com

S. Shinde e-mail: shantashinde@gmail.com

S. S. Pawar e-mail: sspawar@entc.maepune.ac.in

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_10 extending features like modularity (wireless connectivity between modules), and portability which will raise comfort of use. Data Glove is used which enables us to practice sign language without being connected to a PC [2].

Oral communication is most effective way of communicating one's ideas, emotions and thoughts. Speech disability includes both type of people who are completely and partially aphasiac. A person may or may not be speech impaired by birth. Elderly population can become susceptible to speech disorders by disease of larynx, or as a side effect of stroke or cancer [3].

1.1 Speech Disability Statistics

See Table 1.

1.2 A Survey for Gesture Recognition Techniques

The goal was to study different technologies involved in recognizing physical human gestures since the method of communication adopted by deaf-dumb people to interact with each other is Sign Language that employs use of gestures made by hands, face and body. Sign Language practiced by speech disabled people varies in different countries. India being culturally diverse country, the gestures vary up to large extent even within a single state. This raised a crucial need for development of a common sign language across the country which led to establishment of Indian Sign Language Dictionary [4]. Technologies that employ recognition of gestures are broadly classified into two types: Vision based and Sensor based [5].

The drawback of vision based solution is the level of complexity of algorithms implemented in capturing a movement. MicroElectroMechanical Sensor is a sensing technology consisting of electronic parts (such as capacitors, diodes etc.) and mechanical parts (such as mass-spring system, strain gauge) of size of order of microns which are capable of movement with or without application of external force [6]. MEMS sensors can be easily placed on gesture formulating human body parts like hand and arm. Bending of fingers possess significant role in performing gestures by hands. Flex sensor is one of the examples of bend sensors structured in thin and elongated design and hence can be attached along the length of fingers to

Table 1 Disability statistics2011Indian Census [15]	Disability	Total	Male	Female
	Total	26,810,557	14,986,202	11,824,355
	In speech	1,998,535	1,122,896	875,639

sense bending motion. This project takes into consideration the gestures performed by hands of person, thus a combination of accelerometer and flex sensors is implemented.

2 System Model

The system is designed in two communication modules: a transmitter module and a receiver module. Transmitter section is comprised of Data Sensing Module, Data Processing Module and Data transmitting Module, while the Data Processing Module in Receiver section is incorporated with a Data Receiver and Speech Synthesizer. If the two modules would be integrated as one complete device, the interaction of user would be restricted only up to one-to-one communication. The modularity of the system provides the flexibility of community interaction by means of coupling the receiver section to suitable audio amplifier.

2.1 Block Diagram

The system model as shown in Fig. 1 consists a Data Sensing Module that captures the gesture performed by hand movements of the person which is then processed by a microcontroller that allocates a message for corresponding gesture which is then wirelessly communicated to receiver section where the message is given voice. Data sensing module is basically a data glove which is to be worn by the person performing gestures, the transmitter module is placed on the wrist connected to data glove by means of wires, while the receiver module is placed on a belt which can be worn at waist.



Fig. 1 Block diagram of system

2.2 Data Sensing Module

Data Glove is mounted with accelerometer, at back of hand, and flex sensors along the length of fingers. Analog Devices' IC, ADXL335, is a differential capacitance based model accelerometer measuring the change in acceleration, tilt of object in three axes i.e. *X*, *Y*, *Z*. When even a slight movement is subjected to accelerometer, the floating capacitor plate gets displaced resulting in an electrostatic force proportional to change in capacitance between fixed and moving plate. The total force exerted by single plate is addition of two oppositely directed forces. The analog output for a single axis is proportional to this net force [6]. The position of accelerometer on hand is placed in a manner that *X*-axis should be sensitive to pitch, *Y*-axis to yaw, while *Z*-axis sensitive to direction parallel to g-force exerted by earth. The sensor values are tabulated in Tables 2 and 3.

Bend sensors reconciles with the flexile structure of human body that embellishes wearable technology. Flex sensor used is made up of conductive black plastic ploy bag whose resistance changes proportional to bending of fingers. One finger position can be captured as two states i.e. bent and relaxed [7]. The voltage supplied to one pin of flex is $V_{\text{flex}} = 5$ V, It has an internal resistance of $R_1 = 25$ k Ω straight position (specified in datasheet), the other pin is connected to analog port of microcontroller as well as grounded via a resistor of $R_2 = 10$ k Ω . The output analog voltage V_{analog} , obtained by voltage divider formula [8], is varied by varying flex resistance, R_1 , due to bending motion and rest two external parameters, V_{flex} and R_2 , being constant.

g-force exerted	Axis	X-out (V)	Y-out (V)	Z-out (V)
+1g	X	1.31	1.52	1.55
+1g	Y	1.53	1.32	1.53
+1g	Ζ	1.52	1.55	1.31
-1g	X	1.72	1.53	1.54
-1g	Y	1.56	1.71	1.55
-1g	Ζ	1.53	1.52	1.69

Table 21g force: X, Y andZ analog voltage equivalent toelectrostatic force

Table 3Voltage values offlex sensor for bending atvarious angles in bothdirection

_

Angle (°)	Direction	Flex output (V)
0	Straight	2.6 ± 0.5
45	Forward	2.1 ± 0.2
90	Forward	1.7 ± 0.2
45	Backward	2.72 ± 0.2
90	Backward	2.75 ± 0.2

2.3 Transmitter Module

The design of transmitter module should be compact for the system to become compatible as a wearable device. The microcontroller used for data processing is PIC18F4550. The major reason behind picking up this particular controller is the 10-bit ADC resolution provided to digitize the sensor data [9]. The process of assigning a message to the captured gesture is programmed on transmitter module processor. Radio Frequency (RF) Transmitter, operating at 433.92 MHz is being employed for transmission of messages. The communication is of simplex type. RF being a low power transmitter, a string transmission results in high Bit Error Rate (BER). Hence, a message is substituted with a short symbol. Manchester encoded form of this symbol is sent to RF transmitter where it is modulated by the technique of Amplitude Shift Keying(ASK) and further transmitter wirelessly. It is represented graphically in Fig. 2. A dedicated short range communication is accomplished via Manchester encoding technique that provides dc balance and enhances signal reliability [10].

Fig. 2 Symbol A is transmitted as a substitute for a message. Binary representation is 01000001. The first plot represents the original data bits to be sent, second plot is encoded form of Data bits, the third plot represents ASK modulation carried out by RF Transmitter


2.4 Receiver Module

Receiver module consist a RF receiver (433.92 MHz) and PIC18F4550 microcontroller responsible for decoding the message from symbol. Once original message is retrieved, speech is synthesized. The text to speech module is of type The IC used in speech synthesis is PIC24FJ64GB002. The EPROM of IC is programmed with phonemes of English Language [11]. A string is sent to PIC24 IC via UART protocol, phoneme of each letter is accessed from EPROM memory and passed to speaker for being expressed in audio output.

2.5 Data Flow of System

The algorithm, as in Fig. 3, starts with receiving the gesture co-ordinates at analog port of controller [12]. There should be an appropriate amount of delay while taking data from sensors to avoid detection of unwanted gesture while transitioning from one desired gesture to other. This reduces the error in gesture recognition. To establish communication between transmitter and receiver it is necessary to send a synchronization wave before transmitting each symbol. This ensures secure communication between transmitter and receiver pair [13].

3 Result and Analysis

The values of sensors for assigned message are tabulated in Table 4. The hardware unit is shown in Fig. 5. Basic gestures are captured and audio output is achieved successfully. Each message is transmitted ten times continuously and a graph is plotted representing the effectiveness of system, which is shown in Fig. 4.

Static gestures can be combined to form a meaningful sentence. The Text-to-Speech module is of type Concatenative, since it provides a natural speech compared to other types [14].



Fig. 3 Data flow of system from gesture sensing to its voice conversion



Fig. 4 X-axis represents different messages transmitted where each message is transmitted ten times. Y-axis represents probability of each message received

Message Conveyed	e	X-axis (V)	Y-axis (V)	Z-axis (V)	Flex 1 (V) (Index finger)	Flex 2 (V) (Middle finger)
Food		1.427	1.501	1.352	2.197	2.250
Home		1.354	1.432	1.698	2.548	2.549
Thank you		1.335	1.473	1.468	2.548	2.540
Mother		1.393	1.578	1.357	1.598	1.893
Water		1.400	1.378	1.513	1.598	1.893
Wait		1.294	1.520	1.597	2.548	2.549
Reading		1.489	1.473	1.326	2.558	2.550
Writing		1.486	1.367	1.775	1.910	1.893
Good		1.626	1.572	1.279	1.598	2.540
Morning		1.626	1.572	1.279	2.500	2.544

Table 4 Values of accelerometer sensor: X, Y, Z and two flex sensors for corresponding gesture



Fig. 5 Data Glove gesture co-ordinates for message 'wait' which is displayed on LCD at transmitter. The message is received at receiver module that is displayed on LCD

4 Conclusion and Future Scope

This paper has described the development of a portable and modular wireless communication system for speech disabled to enable them not only for one-to-one talk with normal people but also in a community talk. Basis words used by speech impaired are studied and voice generation is tested successfully. Practically for 30 m, messages are received without errors by receiver module. The system can become better user customizable by interfacing a memory chip port in which user can insert SD card programmed with various messages in a language compatible for them.

References

- 1. Edmund, F.L., Cathy, B., Clayton, L.: Assistive technology for cognition [Understanding the needs of persons with disabilities]. IEEE Eng. Med. Biol. Mag. **27**(2), 29–39 (2008)
- Kunal, K., Rucha, G., Ankita, B., Joshi, S.D.: American Sign Language Interpreter. In: IEEE Fourth International Conference on Technology for Education, pp. 157–159. IEEE press, Hyderabad, India (2012)
- 3. Aphasia and Speech Disorder in seniors. http://www.jewihhome.org
- 4. Indian Sign Language. http://www.indiansignlanguage.org
- 5. Sushmita, M., Tinku, A.: Gesture recognition: a survey. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern. Part C (Applications and Reviews) **37**(3), 311–324 (2007)
- Brain, B.G.: Using an accelerometer sensor to measure human hand motion. Thesis submitted to Department of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science. Massachusetts Institute of Technology (2000)
- Monique, B.H.F., Charles, M.B.S., Carlos, O., Luisito A.: User oriented finger-gesture glove controller with hand movement virtualization using flex sensors and a digital accelerometer. In: International Conference on Humanoid, Nanotechnology, Information Technology, Communication and Control, Environment and management (HNICEM), pp. 1–4. IEEE Press, Palawan (2014)
- Luis, M.B., Norberto, B., Fernando J.V., Antonio S.L.: Smart-clothing wireless flex sensor belt network for foetal health monitoring. In: IEEE 3rd International Conference on Pervasive Computing Technologies for Healthcare, pp. 1–4. IEEE Press, London (2009)
- Vikram, M.S., Vinay, N.K., Shruti, C.M., Suma, M.N.: Virtual talk for deaf, mute, blind and normal humans. In: Texas Instruments India Educator's Conference, pp. 316–320. IEEE Press, India (2013)
- Raghul, G., Sudhakar, K., Devi, M.G.: Design and implementation of encoding techniques for wireless applications. In: International Conference on Circuits, Power and Computing Technologies, pp. 1–7. IEEE press, Nagercoil, India (2015)
- Neela, H., Poonguzhali, S.: Design and development of hand gesture recognition system for speech impaired people. In: International Conference on Industrial Instrumentation and Control (ICIC), pp. 1129–1133. IEEE Press, Pune, India (2015)
- Plawiak, P., Sosnicki, T., Neidzwiecki, M., Tabor, Z., Rzecki, K.: Hand body language gesture recognition based on signals from specialized glove and machine learning algorithm. IEEE Trans. Ind. Inf. 12(3), 1104–1113 (2016)
- Girjia, S.D., Swetalima, R., Omprakash, S.: WiBeD2: a communication aid for deaf and dumb. In: International Conference on Information, Communication and Embedded Systems (ICICES), pp. 1–4. IEEE Press, Chennai (2016)

- Swarna, K., Naser, A.: A TDPSOLA based concatenation technique for Bengali text to speech synthesis system Subachan. In: 9th International Conference on Electrical and Computer Engineering (ICECE), pp. 102–105. IEEE Press, Dhaka (2016)
- 15. Census of India 2011 data on Disability. http://www.censusindia.gov.in

Effect of Varying Pause Time on Performance of QoS Parameters in MANET

Shashikant Gupta, Sumitra Ranjan Sinha and Pallavi Khatri

Abstract Ad hoc network is spontaneous on the fly, self-adaptive network without requirements of a centralized access point or an existing infrastructure. These aspects lead the infeasibility and inconsistency for providing Quality of Services (QoS) in mobile–ad hoc network (MANET). Real-time multimedia traffic demands high degree of QoS improvements on MAC layer. This work proposes the QoS performance in a new variant of AODV routing protocol using compression and named as compressed AOMDV (AOMDVc). Proposed routing protocol uses MPEG-4 compression in order to improve routing performance on data transmission as well with different network scenarios. Evaluation of AOMDVc is done with respect to frequent changing pause-time and data packet size. Performance of the QoS parameters and network reliabilities are verified by simulation using Network simulator (NS-2). The experimental result shows how the proposed protocol improves the QoS of a network over already existing protocols.

Keywords MANET · QoS · Compression · Pause-time · AOMDVc

1 Introduction

A mobile ad hoc network [1] is a self-directed system consisting of multiple nodes acting as self-configured routers. The router nodes are free to correspond with different nodes arbitrarily due to their unpredictable network topology. Mobile nodes within the scalable network are communicating with each other in a self-doubting error-prone network channel. The ever-increasing use of mobile

S. Gupta (🖂) · S. R. Sinha · P. Khatri

Department of CSE, ITM University, Gwalior, India e-mail: shashikantgupta@itmuniversity.ac.in.com

S. R. Sinha e-mail: jitsumitra@gmail.com

P. Khatri e-mail: pallavi.khatri.cse@itmuniversity.ac.in.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent* Advancement on Computer and Communication, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_11



Fig. 1 Flow diagram of video compression

devices and the stipulation of multimedia data applications are facing a major challenge in streaming due to this nature of MANET and unable to provide the QoS in terms of scalability. The real-time multimedia data transmission needs to be fast and error-free and should meet Quality of Service (QoS) [3] parameters and assurance for successful data delivery. Concurrent use of multimedia video data maintains some strict QoS such as bandwidth, delay, throughput, and packet delivery ratio (PDR). Numerous improvements related to multimedia video transmission were made in very recent year for effecting on efficient QoS parameters in MANET. Standard techniques like H.263, H.264, IEEE 802.11b offer an enhanced multimedia video transmission technology which provides better QoS performance on efficient and reliable multimedia MANET over different network behavior and network proceedings. This work uses the MPEG-4 compression techniques for data compression and video data transmission. An overall compression technique that is followed for reduction in number of bits using compression and smooth transmission of video data on MANET is demonstrated in Fig. 1. The remainder of this paper is followed by Sect. 2 with literature review of the existing system and proposed methodology in Sect. 3. Simulation setup used for study is discussed in Sect. 4 followed by results analysis and conclusion in Sects. 5 and 6, respectively.

2 Literature Review

Previous researchers contributed immensely on the basis of supporting and provision QoS over video data as well as multimedia streaming transmission. Different compression techniques, routing algorithms, and other aspects come in consideration for improvement of QoS. This proposed research mainly focuses on combined study of QoS constraints and lossless compression in multipath routing to enhance the performance of routing protocol to improve the QoS parameters. In this section, the research papers are reviewed and the methods that already exist to handle the QoS and compression techniques of the network are identified. For enhancement of QoS, different QoS increasing techniques and video compression techniques are used.

2.1 Compression Techniques

Different effective and efficient routing protocol has been designed for providing the QoS improvement in different aspects with respect to network pause-time and mobility phenomena. Problem regarding video transmission over IEEE 802.11b-based protocol is discussed by Calafate [1], and they discuss the implication H.264 real-time video compression technique over MANET. Mpeg-4 compression technique over large-scale MANET is discussed by Malgi and Gaikward [2] for improving the compression scenario as well as network criteria. An optimal Coding strategy that is used for dropping the data rate for scalable and optimistic video streaming is discussed on [3]. A QoS-driven algorithm [4] based on the forecast model of layer-architecture multiple rate is designed, and its better performance is verified with simulations over frequent and very effective real-world experiments over scalable wireless networks. Some recent video compression techniques are applicable [5] for Mpeg format. H.264 technique is applied to videos within which bit rate is a smaller amount than the prevailing protocol like mpeg. Existing work on MPEG-4 [6] is a large standard compression tool containing and addressing a new class of applications requiring access to coded audio-visual object. It compresses the data by reducing them according to respective bit-rates. Many profile levels such as the Simple and the Advanced have been widely implemented for MPEG-4. Chiariglione [7] has presented an overview of the MPEG standards including requirements, technology, and applications for different versions of Mpeg like MPEG-1 video, MPEG-2 video, and MPEG-4 video standards. Mpeg-4 is a technique which is easily compatible with any type of network and multimedia data. MPEG-4 provides some better realistic results. Different standards of compression and mpeg versions (1, 2, 3, 4, 7, and 21) that are applied on IP-based large-scale network for resulting best effort QoS network are discussed by Md. Hossain [8]. Joint picture expert group (JPEG) compression is also a very recent technique that is implacable for image as well as video data.

2.2 Pause Time Effect on Routing Protocols

In MANET, pause time effects on the performance of the overall network as well as the quantitative parameters that are used for the network evaluation. Scalability issue of the entire network for AODV and other protocol with respect to different pause times is discussed by Ambhaikar in [9]. The paper elaborates the performance of QoS parameters like delay, PDR, throughput. Comparative performance over different routing protocol on scalable network for multiple number of nodes is demonstrated in [10] by Suresh. Routing protocols like AODV, DSR, OLSR are effecting differently in accordance with their respective pause time. Enhancement of QoS somehow depends on the optimal pathfinding and optimal route maintenance [11] with the efficient simulation time and pause time. An optimal QoS-aware routing protocol by varying the pause time is evaluated on a scalable network for providing the best effort routing protocol. The working of multimedia transmission for forwarding data in multipath network in MANET including RTCP—Real-Time Control Protocol for multimedia data is briefed in [12]. The primary function of RTCP is to enhance the transmission rate at the server level and alleviates the problems related to the QoS parameters like PDR, throughput, delay.

3 Proposed Methodology

Different approaches have been discussed in literature for improving the QoS on multipath video data transmission using existing routing protocols. Proposed work is implemented on video data as well as multimedia Mpeg traffic. Initially, video data are transmitted through a multimedia MANET network by routing protocol such as AODV or AOMDV, and compression is applied on the data for improvement of QoS and improves the performance of previously designed compressed AOMDV [13] AOMDVc over relevant and different pause-times. In the proposed system, packet size for the data is set fixed at 1500 bytes. Video data are sent through the entire network with the rate factor 1 and initial seed of 0.5. Video data are categorized into different frames like I, B, and P.

3.1 Rate Factor

Rate factor defines as the amount of data that are needed to scale up or scale down during the video transmission having different frame rate and pause-time. Rate factor is set in application layer of the protocol for controlling the network traffic by setting the packet size being same. In proposed protocol, rate factor is set to be 1 according to the different pause-times and packet size is to be 1500 kb.

3.2 Initial Seed

Initial seed is set at 0.5 for generating the first frame of the video within the entire network.

4 Simulation Setup

Network simulator (NS2) is a simulation tool which is used to study performance of different aspects of any communication networks. This paper evaluates the performance matrices of compressed video streaming simulations using NS2. Simulation parameters used for this study are tabulated in Table 1.

5 Result and Analysis

This section analyzes the effect of varying pause time during data transmission on network parameters. The results of AOMDVc are compared with existing protocols AODV. The results clearly show that performance of AOMDVc is better than AODV routing protocol.

5.1 Average End-to-End Delay

It is defined as the time taken or total time duration for any data packet that transmitted across a network from source to destination.

Avg. delay =
$$\frac{\sum \text{Arrival time} - \text{Start time}}{\sum \text{Node}}$$
 (1)

Table 1Simulationparameters

Simulation parameters	Value
Topology	1000 * 1000
No. of nodes	200
MAC protocol	MAC/802_11
Propagation model	Random waypoint
Routing protocol	AODV, AOMDVc
Antenna type	Omni antenna
Data traffic	CBR
Packet size	1500 Bytes
Simulation time	50 s
Mobility	2.5, 5, 10, 25, 40
Compression technique	Mpeg-4
Rate factor	1.0
Initial seed	0.5
Number of connections	20



Fig. 2 Average delay

Figure 2 Graph shows that the average network delay of proposed AOMDVc is less than the existing AODV.

5.2 Throughput

Throughput =
$$\frac{\sum \text{Data transmit}}{\text{Time}}$$
 (2)

Figure 3 shows the network throughput for the AOMDVc protocol with respect to different pause-times. For enhancing the overall network performance, throughput plays a vital role among the other QoS parameters.

5.3 Packet Delivery Ratio (PDR)

Packet delivery ratio (PDR) is said to be the ratio of packet delivered to the network to the total number of packet received by that same network.

$$PDR = (pd|ps) * 100 \tag{3}$$

where pd = total packet delivered, ps = the total packet sent.

Figure 4 exhibits the network PDR with respect to different pause-times. PDR must be higher as much possible for the enhancement of network performance as well as QoS improvements. Higher value of PDR of AOMDVc over existing AODV shows the betterment of scalable network performance as well as QoS improvements.



Fig. 3 Throughput



Fig. 4 PDR graph

Table 2 exhibits all the results of QoS parameters like end-to-end delay, throughput, PDR according to various pause times that change simultaneously during simulation.

Protocol	AOMDVc			AODV		
Pause-time	Delay	Th. put	PDR	Delay	Th. put	PDR
2.5	0.31	2.2	0.19	0.46	1.8	0.178
5	0.2	1.98	0.17	0.35	1.6	0.2
10	0.60	5.8	0.58	0.45	4.3	0.38
25	0.65	8.2	0.69	0.68	7.08	0.82
30	1.97	9.8	0.991	2.05	8.5	0.87

Table 2 Analysis and comparative table

6 Conclusion

This work analyzed the performance of a QoS-aware compressive routing protocol (AOMDVc) varying with different pause-times. Multiple QoS-related performance metrics like average end-to-end delay, throughput, and PDR are analyzed according to the predefined pause-time like 2.5, 5, 10, 25, 30. Generated results are plotted through graph and compare with the existing AODV routing protocol. The parametric graphs show that our proposed AOMDVc protocol performs better in many cases with respect to pause-time. This is because after applying compression in the network the network becomes very congestion less due to the absence of redundant data. Also, bit rate of the video data as well as multimedia data is reduced by the invocation of compression. Due to various pause-times, the data which are transmitted through the network are getting as much time for successful and congestion less transmission. Proposed protocol gives much better results in case of QoS parameters like throughput, PDR, and average delay over existing counterparts.

Acknowledgements The authors would like to express their heartiest gratitude to the researchers who have helped in this work. Further, we would like to thank ITM University Gwalior and Network simulator (NS2) tool, for providing the platform to implement and analyze the work.

References

- Calafate, C.T., Malumbres, M.P., Manzoni, P.: Performance of H. 264 compressed video streams over 802.11 b based MANETs. In: Distributed Computing Systems Workshops, 2004. Proceedings 24th International Conference on, pp. 776–781. IEEE (2004)
- Malgi, M.A., Gaikwad, G.N.: A study on QoS enhancement of MPEG-4 video transmission over wireless mesh network. In: Pervasive Computing (ICPC), 2015 International Conference on, pp. 1–5. IEEE (2015)
- Hung, L.E., Hsiao, H.F.: QoS-driven optimization for video streaming using layer-aligned multipriority rateless codes. In: Circuits and Systems (ISCAS), 2015 IEEE International Symposium on, pp. 1666–1669. IEEE (2015)
- Samanchuen, T., Kiattisin, S.: Implementation and quality evaluation of video telephony using Session Initiation Protocol. In: Asia-Pacific Signal and Information Processing Association, 2014 Annual Summit and Conference (APSIPA), pp. 1–4. IEEE (2014)

- Mamata, R.B.: A comparative study of video compression techniques-H. 264/Avc. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Sci. Softw. Eng. 4(11) (2014)
- 6. Chiariglione, L. (ed).: The MPEG Representation of Digital Media. Springer Science & Business Media (2011)
- Chiariglione, L.: An introduction to MPEG digital media. In: The MPEG Representation of Digital Media, pp. 1–5. Springer, New York (2012)
- 8. Md Hossain, A., ANM Rashid, B.: Performance evaluation of MPEG-4 video transmission over IP-networks: best-effort and quality-of-service. Perform. Eval. **3**(3) (2012)
- Ambhaikar, A., Sharma, H.R., Mohabey, V.K.: Scalability performance of MANET routing protocols with reference to variable pause time. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Eng. (IJCSE) 2, 3021– 3024 (2010)
- 10. Suresh. K., Jogendra. K.: Comparative performance analysis of routing protocols in MANET using varying pause time. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975 888), **47**(12) (2012)
- Chauhan, G., Nandi, S.: QoS aware stable path routing (QASR) protocol for MANETs. In: Emerging Trends in Engineering and Technology, 2008. ICETET'08. First International Conference on, pp. 202–207. IEEE (2008)
- 12. Li, Z.N., Drew, M.S., Liu, J.: Fundamentals of Multimedia. Upper Saddle River (NJ): Pearson Prentice Hall (2004)
- Sinha, S.R., Khatri, P., Gupta, S.: QoS on multimedia streaming using compression in MANET. In: Communication Networks (ICCN), 2015 International Conference on, pp. 252– 257. IEEE (2015)
- 14. Mahmood, Z., Nawaz, M.A., Dr. Iqbal, M.:Varying pause time effect on AODV, DSR and DSDV performance. Int. J. Wirel. Microw. Technol. 1, 21–33 (2015)

Deadlock Prevention in Single-Server Multi-CS Distributed Systems Using Voting- and Priority-Based Strategies

Kamta Nath Mishra

Abstract In order to solve the concurrency and starvation control problems of distributed systems, the voting- and priority-based optimal and feasible solution is presented in this research work. In voting-based approach, a process getting the majority of votes will be only allowed to enter into the critical section (CS). But, this method has a disadvantage as if no process remains in the situation of achieving majority of votes then the system will remain in idle state although a considerable amount of minority processes will remain in waiting queue. In the prioritized distributed mutual exclusion-based algorithm, the process having highest priority amongst all the processes of distributed system is allowed to enter into the critical section (CS). Hence, leaving the other lower priority processes into the waiting queue which results an increase in the length of waiting queue. The proposed technique allows the creation of multiple critical sections in a distributed system and prevents the processors from entering into idle state which leads towards increase in throughput.

Keywords Critical section • Maskable/Non-maskable interrupts Mutual exclusion • Priority-based distributed systems • Voting-based distributed systems

1 Introduction

The mutual exclusion achievement in distributed systems can basically be categorized into two categories, namely token-based and non-token-based algorithms. Almost all the solutions in this field lie under these two conditions. One of the oldest works in this field was given by a researcher named Lamport [1, 2] of Digital Equipment Corporation in 1987. He worked on the original problem of Dijkstra's

K. N. Mishra (🖂)

Department of Computer Science & Engineering,

Birla Institute of Technology, Alld. Campus, Mesra, Ranchi, India e-mail: mishrakn@yahoo.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_12

algorithm where he propounded a new solution of the MUTEX problem which was presented in the absence of contention, requiring only memory access and assuming the atomic read and atomic write to the shared registers. In his work 'A fast mutual exclusion algorithm' [3], a solution was presented for only five writes and two reads of a shared memory having time complexity of O(N) and total number of message required was 3(N - 1). This algorithm was a non-token-based algorithm [4–6].

As we have encountered a number of solutions in the literatures for the problem of mutual exclusion (MUTEX), still a practical and suitable approach has been missing in most of these algorithms of distributed systems [2]. As far as distributed systems are concerned, many solutions like token-based, non-token/ permission-based [7], priority-based, voting-based and coterie-based [8] has been provided in literatures till date. Researchers like Lamport, Maekawa, Ricart-Agarwala, Raymond, Niami-Trehel and Suzuki-Kasami have come with their various suitable solutions for mutual exclusion problems [1, 9]. But all these proposed solutions have their own pros and cons. Thus, in order to provide a suitable and logical solution for mutual exclusion in distributed systems [10, 11], we have proposed 'An efficient voting- and priority-based technique for deadlock prevention in distributed systems' where we have tried to propose a cumulative solution for MUTEX based upon the two different algorithms, i.e. 'A new voting-based MUTEX exclusion algorithm for distributed systems' [8] and 'A prioritized distributed mutual exclusion algorithm balancing priority inversions and response time' by Mishra [12] and Thiare et al. [13].

Michael Fischer proposed the simplest possible algorithm with worst time complexity of O(N). He has used angle brackets for enclosing 'atomic' operations and 'await b' as an abbreviation. Later on Ricart G. solely in his paper 'An optimal algorithm for mutual exclusion' [4] proposed another non-token-based algorithm with total number of message requirement 2(N - 1) with synchronization delay of T. The researcher Chandy [14] proposed a probe-based algorithm in which each site had a controller that maintained a Boolean array named 'Depend' which was known as dependency table 'k' for every constituent process 'P_k' where Depend_k is true only if P_k's controller knows that P_i is dependent on itself and hence is deadlocked [15]. But this algorithm had a drawback as some deadlocks were not detected when the degree of contention remained high for some special cases. The researchers Suzuki I. and Kasami K. in their paper 'A distributed mutual exclusion' [16] proposed a new token-based algorithm in 1985, requiring a total number of messages equivalent to 'N' with a synchronization delay of 'T' [17, 18].

Our main aim behind proposing this algorithm is to develop an efficient algorithm which can provide the optimum opportunity to a job/process for entering into critical section (CS) of a system irrespective of its obtained majority (voting-based algorithm) or the attained high-order priority (priority-based algorithm).

2 Proposed Technique

In this section, an efficient voting- and priority-based deadlock prevention technique is proposed for a distributed system and the proposed technique is capable to provide a solution for the distributed system. Here, we have divided the incoming process requests based upon two constraints: (a) Voting (V_i) and (b) Priority (P_b). Next we have divided the voting and priorities obtained by various processes into four different categories based on their equivalent percentage. These categories are: (i) 75.1–100%, (ii) 50.1–75%, (iii) 25.1–50% and (iv) 0.1–25%. Here, percentage window (W_i) is applicable for both the categories [19, 12]. There are various other useful variables which are decisive in elaborating this algorithm. These variables are *Voting-based* (V_i) and *Priority-based* (P_b).

2.1 Proposed Algorithm

The steps of proposed voting- and priority-based deadlock prevention algorithm are presented in this section. The proposed algorithms take input in two different forms, namely voting and priority generally denoted as V_i and P_r in individual and V_iP_r as a joint expression.

The proposed algorithm for single server with single CS- and multiple CS-based deadlock prevention mechanism is presented in Fig. 1.

Step 1: Process $(P_i) \rightarrow (Enter CS); /* All processes wants to enter into critical section*/$ Step 2: $P_i \rightarrow$ (Enter CS); /*Only one process will be allowed at a time*/ Step 3: $(P_i-1) \rightarrow Wait_queue(W_q)$; /*Since only one process is allowed to enter into C.S. at a time, rest of the process will keep waiting as P Req_v in the wait queue $(W_a)^*/$ Step 4: if $(P_i(\equiv P_p) == NMI)$ $\{ P_i \rightarrow (Enter_CS); \}$ else { $P_i = P_i + 1 (\equiv P_p) \rightarrow (Enter CS)$ } Step 5: while $(P_i!= NMI)$ {Check for test cases from $V_1P_1(\alpha)$ to $V_4P_4(\pi)$ }. Step 6: if $(\forall V_1P_1(\alpha) \text{ to } V_4P_4(\pi)) \exists P_i == T)$ $\{ P_i \rightarrow (Enter_CS) \}$ else{ $P_i = P_i + 1 (\equiv P_p) \rightarrow (Enter CS);$ } Step 7: \forall ($P_i \in W_a$); $\{(P_i = Pi + 1)\}$ Step 8: while $(P_i (\equiv P_p) \rightarrow Enter CS == Null > T_{con})$ $\{(\forall P_i \in (V_i P_i \Leftrightarrow P_r P_i) == 100\%) == P_i (\equiv P)_p \rightarrow \text{Enter CS}\}$ *Step 9:* while $(\forall (NMI \cup V_1P_1(\alpha) \text{ to } V_4P_4(\pi)) \rightarrow P_i = F)$ {case 3 (SJSF): $P_i \rightarrow (Enter CS)$ } Step 10: End.

Fig. 1 Algorithm for single server with multiple CS-based deadlock prevention in distributed system

In Fig. 1, a single server which is already connected to multiple computer systems in a distributed environment wants to inject its processes (P_i) into multiple critical sections for execution.

2.2 Description of Proposed Technique

The exact phenomenon of single server and single CS is shown in Fig. 2. Here, in Fig. 2, every single process coming from various individual computer systems of the distributed environment will gather at server 1. Therefore, a race condition will occur amongst the processes at server 1 in order to make an entry into the critical section for execution. For selecting the most prominent process (P_p) from the available processes, the selection will be based on voting-based (V_i) and priority-based (P_r) processes. In our proposed approach, either *case 1* or *case 2* or *case 3* will be used by server 1 to select a process. In case of conflict between voting- and priority-based processes, the prominent process will be decided by the value of time stamp (T_s).

In the proposed approach, the race condition processes will be checked for 'non-maskable interrupt (NMI)'. If the selected process is a NMI, then it will directly enter into the critical section of the system. If the process is not of NMI type, then according to case 2 of our proposed technique, the processes will be



Fig. 2 Diagrammatical representation of process movement in single server and multiple CS-based distributed system [12, 20]

checked out for the different cases, i.e. from V_1P_1 to V_4P_4 ; depending upon those cases, one particular process will be allowed to enter into the CS.

In case 2 of proposed approach, four percentage windows are defined and used for deciding the process priority. If a process satisfies the criteria of case 2, then the process will enter in critical section and priority of other processes waiting in waiting queue (W_q) will be increased by one in order to maintain the priority level and fairness. Even after the execution of *case 2*, the system may not find any prominent process (P_p); then after a certain time constraint (T_{con}), the priority percentage of the waiting requests from the waiting queue will be increased to 100% along with the other requesting processes. If case 2 does not find any prominent process for entering in critical section, then case 3 will be applicable in which the process having shortest job scheduling first (SJSF) will be applied. In this case, the process from voting- or priority-based section having shortest job scheduling will be considered as the prominent process for entry into the critical section.

If two or more processes become a candidate for prominent process, then the decision is made by comparing their normalized time stamps (T_s) and the process having smallest time stamp value will enter into the critical section. In worst case, if the proposed system is unable to find any prominent process after executing case 1 and case 2 then case 3, i.e. SJSF, will be applied to bring a process into CS. In case 3, the job having shortest scheduling will enter into the critical section as a prominent process (P_p) . If case 3 also fails to bring a process into CS, then the value of requesting process waiting into the waiting queue (W_q) will be incremented to 100% according to their weight. In this way, we would be able to find out the new prominent process for entry into the CS.

3 Result Analysis and Discussions

In some algorithms, complexity is defined in terms of time and space. The term *Deadlock-Free* (*D*) here refers to the unavailability of any kind of deadlock from the proposed algorithm. The term *Fairness* (*F*) here denotes that free and fair chance should be provided to every process waiting in the queue to be selected at least once for making an entry into the critical section. The term *Throughput* (*T*) is defined as the rate at which processes of distributed system are successfully executing in CS using our proposed algorithm. The *Number of Messages* (*M*) defines the total number of messages entering or handled by the critical section of the proposed system at a time. Normally, the complexity of any algorithm heavily relies on M. If numbers of messages are higher in a distributed system, then the system will have greater complexity [21].

3.1 Voting-Based Methodology

In this method, a voting technique is implemented for all the participating nodes in order to find out one system with highest percentage of votes. The process selected for the highest percentage of votes is said to attain the majority amongst all processes and it is said to be the most suitable candidate for entering into CS for execution. The components of Fig. 3a and Table 1 describe the exact approach of process selection for a distributed system using voting-based technique.

In Fig. 3a, b, the working of voting- and priority-based process selection methodology is demonstrated. Here, we can see that there are three different systems lying in a distributed system sending its request to enter into the critical section. As we can witness that system 2 is having highest percentage of votes (majority, 54%), process requested by system 2 will only enter into CS while the other two systems will remain in the queue.



(a): Voting based process selection methodology.



(b): Priority based requesting methodology.

Fig. 3 Functionality of voting- and priority-based proposed system

S. No.	Name of algorithm	Complexity (C)	Deadlock- free (D)	Fairness (F)	Throughput (T)	No. of messages (M)
1.	Proposed technique (Single server with multiple CS)	Low	Yes	Yes	Min = 1, Max = N	Min = 1, Max = N
2.	Voting-based algorithm [8]	Low	No	No	Low	$Max = 2 \times (N - 1)$
3.	Priority-based algorithm [15]	High	No	No	Low	Min = 0.1 Max = 0.5
4.	Distributed groups mutual exclusion algorithm [23]	High	No	Yes (FIFO)	Medium	Min = 0/1 $Max = m$

 Table 1 Comparison of proposed algorithm with existing MUTEX algorithms [12]

3.2 Priority-Based Methodology

The priority-based methodology decides the most prominent candidate on the basis of priority assigned to processes [22]. The priority of a process is decided on the basis of total number of requests made by any node for executing a particular process. The example in Fig. 3b describes that out of seven requests, total number of requests claimed by request_1 is to 5, whereas request claimed by request_2 is three and request_3 is 1. Therefore, in this scenario, request_1 becomes the most prominent candidate in this system to enter into CS.

In Table 1, we have given comparison view of our proposed algorithms amongst each other and with the algorithms of other researchers. Table 1 compares our proposed algorithms with other standard algorithms for five factors, namely Complexity (C), Deadlock-Free (D), Fairness (F), Throughput (T) and Messages (M). Each factor is evaluated on the basis of three scales, namely low (L), medium (M) and high (H). The results of Table 1 show that the proposed algorithm is better than other algorithms in term of factors 'D' and 'F'. In the case of complexity (C), the complexity of single server with single critical section along with the voting-based algorithm is on the lower side. The complexity level of single server with multiple critical sections remains on the medium level.

4 Conclusions

The proposed technique (algorithms) of this work provides a better chance of deadlock prevention by allowing at most one process into every CS, and it provides a very fair chance to all the participating processes for entering into CS. The proposed algorithm of this research work reduces the CS-related problems like deadlock, starvation and unfairness. The implementation of proposed technique with the help of CW BNC mobility work benchmark tool reveals that the proposed technique increases the throughput and efficiency of existing distributed systems. The main motive behind proposing the new technique is that the CS should never remain empty even under worst situation and this motive is achieved with the help of proposed technique.

References

- 1. Lamport, L.: Time, clocks and the ordering of events in a distributed system. ACM Commun. **21**(1), 558–565 (1978)
- 2. Lamport, Leslie: A new approach to proving the correctness of multi-process programs. ACM Trans. Program. Lang. Syst. 1(1), 84–97 (1979)
- 3. Lamport, L.: A fast mutual exclusion algorithm. ACM Trans. Comput. Syst. 5(1) (1987)
- 4. Ricart, G., Agrawala, A.K.: An optimal algorithm for mutual exclusion in computer networks. ACM Commun. **24**(1), 9–17 (1981)
- Maekawa, M.: A:N algorithm for mutual exclusion in decentralized systems. ACM Trans. Comput. Syst. 3(1), 145–159 (2012)
- 6. Niami, M.: Uncadre structure arborescente pour une classe d'algorithmes distributes déxclsuion mutuelle, Ph.D. Thesis of University of Franche-Comté, pp. 1–201 (1987)
- Kanrar, S., Chattopadhyay, S., Chaki, N.: A new voting-based mutual exclusion algorithm for distributed systems. In: NIMS University IEEE International Conference on Engineering, pp. 1–7 (2013)
- Kanrar, S., Chaki, N.: A new fairness algorithm for priority process mutual exclusion in distributed systems. J. Networks 5(1), 11–18 (2010)
- Kshemkalyani, A.D., Singhal, M.: Correct two-phase and one-phase deadlock detection algorithms for distributed systems. In: IEEE Symposium on Parallel and Distributed Computing, pp. 126–129 (1990)
- Goscinski, A.M.: Two algorithms for mutual exclusion in real-time distributed computer systems. J. Parallel Distrib. Comput. 9(1), 77–82 (1990)
- 11. Muller, F.: Prioritized token-based mutual exclusion for distributed systems. In: International Conference on IPPS-SPDP, pp. 791–795 (1998)
- Mishra, K.N.: An efficient voting and priority based mechanism for deadlock prevention in distributed systems. In: IEEE International Conference on Control Computing Communication and Materials, pp. 1–6 (2016)
- Thiare, O., Naimi, M., Gueroui, M.: Distributed groups mutual exclusion based on dynamical data structures. J. Theor. Appl. Exclusion Based Dyn. Data Struct. 2(2), 277–285 (2009)
- Chandy, K.M., Misra, J.: The drinking philosopher's problem. ACM TOPLAS 6(4), 632–646 (1984)
- Lejeune, J., Arantes, L., Sopena, J., Sens, P.: A prioritized distributed mutual exclusion algorithm balancing priority inversions and response time. In: 42nd IEEE International Conference on Parallel Processing, pp. 290–299 (2013)
- Suzuki, I., Kasami, T.: A distributed mutual exclusion algorithm. ACM Trans. Comput. Syst. 3(4), 344–349 (1985)
- Johnston, B.M., Javagal, R.D., Datta, A.K., Ghosh, S.: A distributed algorithm for resource deadlock detection. In: 10th IEEE Annual International Phoenix Conference on Computer and Communications, pp. 252–256 (1991)
- Singhal, M.: Deadlock detection in distributed systems. IEEE Survey & Tutorial Series, pp. 37–48 (1989)
- Lejeune, J., Arantes, L., Sopena, J., Sens, P.: Service level agreement for distributed mutual exclusion in cloud computing. In: 12th IEEE/ACM International Symposium on Cluster, Cloud and Grid Computing, pp. 180–187 (2012)
- Singhal, M., Manivannan, D.: A distributed mutual exclusion algorithm for mobile computing environments. In: IEEE International Conference on Intelligent Information System, pp. 557–561 (1997)

- Raymond, K.: A tree-based algorithm for distributed mutual exclusion. ACM Trans. Comput. Syst. 7(1), 61–77 (1989)
- 22. Muller, F.: Priority inheritance and ceilings for distributed mutual exclusion. In: IEEE International Symposium on Real-Time Systems, pp. 1–14 (1999)
- Bukhres, O.: Performance comparison of distributed deadlock detection algorithms. In: 8th IEEE ICDC, pp. 210–217 (1992)

Remapping Attack Detection and Prevention for Reliable Data Service in MANET

Aradhana Saxena and Manish Khule

Abstract Mobile ad hoc Network is a promising technology in recent years. The number of nodes are forming dynamic link in between sender and receiver. The Mobile ad hoc Network (MANET) are operating in absence of centralized administration and because of that attackers are simply changed or acting malicious activities in network. One in all the most important challenge in wireless mobile ad hoc sensor networks nowadays is protection. In this title we tend to plan a completely unique security scheme for Remapping Attack. This type of attacks is amendment the priority of communication and acting misbehavior through flooding of huge quantity of reserve packets in communication network. The attacker node is provides the primary priority itself for information sending and remainder of the nodes priority is come back when attacker. The proposed results of assaulter malicious activities are consumed link bandwidth and additionally actual data delivery in network is affected. The aim of this research is to measure the malicious performance of Remapping attack in MANET and identifies the node/s that are affected the routing performance. The proposed security theme are check the priority order of each sender node in network that require to communicate and solely the offender is one altogether the node that flooded the reserve packets in network and in addition the assaulter node is not the sender or receiver. The proposed security scheme against remapping are block the activity of offender. The performance of network is measured on the basis of performance metrics like as network throughput, PDF and routing overhead, attacker node identification.

Keywords MANET · Security · Remapping attack · Flooding Routing

A. Saxena $(\boxtimes) \cdot M$. Khule

Computer Science and Engineering, Gwalior Institute of Technology and Science, Gwalior, India e-mail: saxena.aradhna@gmail.com

M. Khule e-mail: mannykhule@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_13

1 Introduction

Mobile ad-hoc network is a collection of spontaneous devices, where each device communicates through radio zone. In the past decade numerous routing are design to optimize the performance of the mobile ad hoc network i.e. energy based routing, capacity based load distribution, security issue resolver etc. due to node mobility those network are unreliable in various zone. Mobile nodes are capable to generate temporary routing and provide infrastructure less service to end devices. While the routing decision take place by the communicator nodes than data delivery starts, but dynamical node motion generates the distortion in the communication. MANET is more vulnerable as compare to infrastructure based communication, because no one can store the historic information to analyze the network behavior and calculate the trust of the nodes, another issue dynamic device motion that generate the unreliability to the communication. So in this paper study about various security threats, its impact and prevention mechanism, in the next face proposed the remapping attack prevention mechanism and secures the mobile ad hoc communication [4].

The offenders in network endlessly deliver the massive quantity of packets in network at whole entirely totally different live and besides modification the priority of communication of senders. This kind of behavior of offender unit of measurement referred to as Traffic Remapping Attack (TRA). This attack are consumes the complete link capacity of network by that nodes don't seem to be deliver the any info in network. Throughout this paper the authors are to develop a replacement profile based theme for shielding network from attack [1–3].

2 Related Work

Konorski and Szott [1] "Discouraging Traffic Remapping Attacks in local Ad hoc Networks" this research work is provides the security scheme of discouragement theme supported the threat of TRA detection and human action. The theme doesn't suppose station identities or a real third party, nor will it might like change of state with the MAC protocol. These authors are analyze an arising non-cooperative TRA scheme and see that at a lower place bound realistic assumptions it solely incentivizes TRAs if they harmless to entirely totally different stations otherwise the egotistical stations return to mind to search out those TRAs square measure harmful.

Wu et al. [4] "A Survey on Attacks and Countermeasures in Mobile Ad hoc Networks" in this paper proposed countermeasures are choices or functions that produce or eliminate security vulnerabilities and attacks. First, they offer an outline of attacks reliable with the protocols stacks, and to security attributes and mechanisms. Then they proposed security approaches following the order of the superimposed protocol stacks. They are in addition suggests an outline of MANET Intrusion Detection Systems (IDS), that are reactive approaches to frustrate attacks and used as a second line of defense.

Rai et al. has been planned a title [5] "Different varieties of Attacks on Integrated MANET-Internet Communication" during this work they focus on varied varieties of attacks on integrated MANET-Internet communication. They take into consideration commonest varieties of attacks on mobile unintentional networks and on access purpose through that MANET is connected to the online. Specifically, they study but varied attacks influence the performance of the network and choose the safety issues that haven't solved until currently.

Manikandan et al. has planned a paper on title [6] "Survey on Attacks and Defense Metrics of Routing Mechanism in Mobile ad hoc Networks" during this title we tend to tend identified the existent security threats an ad hoc network faces, the safety services needed to be achieved and together the countermeasures for attacks in routing protocols. To accomplish our goal, they have done literature survey in gathering info associated with varied varieties of attacks and solutions. Finally, they have well-known the challenges and projected solutions to beat them. In our survey, we tend to tend to specialize at intervals the findings and connected works from that to supply secure protocols for MANET. However, in short, we tend to are ready to say that the complete security resolution desires the hindrance, detection and reaction mechanisms applied in MANET.

Saha et al. [7] "Study of various Attacks In MANET With Its Detection and Mitigation Schemes" This title additionally classifies many common attacks against the unintentional networks routing protocols primarily based upon the techniques that might be employed by attackers to take advantage of routing messages.

Jain faith [8] "Security Threats in MANETs: A Review" during this title they discuss MANET are the special networks shaped for specific applications. Operative throughout MANET permits all wireless devices at intervals vary of every entirely totally different to search out and communicate throughout a peer-to-peer fashion whereas not involving central access points. Several routing protocols like AODV, DSR etc. are proposed for these networks to hunt out an end to end path between the nodes. These routing protocols are in danger of attacks by the malicious nodes. There's a demand to look at and stop these attacks throughout a timely manner before destruction of network services.

Tayal and Gupta [9] "A Survey of Attacks on MANET Routing Protocols" in this title they have got tried to represent an outline of AODV, the attainable attacks on MANET and a few security mechanism to those attacks.

Sulthana et al. [10] "An Efficient Mechanism of Handling MANET Routing Attacks victimization Risk Aware Mitigation with Distributed Node Control" in this work these authors are proposed debate a risk—aware response mechanism to consistently modify the famous routing attacks. This risk aware approach relies on an extended Dempster-Shafer mathematical theory of proof introducing a notion of importance factors. Additionally, their experiments demonstrate the effectiveness of our approach with the thought of the various performance metrics.

Sen and Clark [11] "Evolutionary Computation Techniques for Intrusion Detection in Mobile Ad hoc Networks" in this paper authors are proposed to explore the use of evolutionary computation techniques, considerably genetic programming and grammatical evolution, to evolve intrusion detection programs for such tough environments. Aware of the particular importance of power potency we tend to analyze the power consumption of evolved programs and use a multi-objective evolutionary algorithmic rule to induce best trade-offs between intrusion detection ability and power consumption.

Gagandeep and Kumar [12] "Analysis of various Security Attacks in MANETs on Protocol Stack A-Review." Focus is on routing and security issues associated with MANET that are required therefore on offer secure communication. On the basis of the character of attack interaction, the attacks against MANET also are classified into active and passive attacks. Attackers against a network are typically classified into 2 groups like insider and outsider. Whereas are outsider offender isn't a legitimate user of the network, an executive director offender is a licensed node and a district of the routing mechanism on MANET.

Narang, Sonal [13] "A Study of various Attacks in MANET and Discussion concerning Solutions of Blackhole Attack on AODV Protocol" this title represent, a review of varied types of attacks and existing solutions of blackhole attack and their demerits. Therefore MANET is accessible to every legitimate network users and malicious attackers. There are many routing attacks caused due to lack of security. The one in every of best suited protocol is AODV for MANET and it's liable to part attack by malicious nodes. It's virtually just like the part at intervals the universe at intervals that things disappear. The part attack is that where a malicious node advertises itself as a result of it's the optimum route to the destination by causing RREP message with highest sequence selection and minimum hop count.

3 Proposed Work

The Traffic remapping attack is similar as Denial of service attack. Denial of Service (or DoS) attacks are a kind of attacks against computers connected to the Internet and spread of flood the unwanted junk message in the network. The traffic remapping attack similarly generate the unwanted message in huge amount and sense the ideal terminal and sends junk of message in continues manner, that attack consume the network security as well as change the data priority. So here we design algorithm for detection and protection of traffic remapping attack mobile ad hoc network communication, very first we initialize all variable and check the behavior of remapping attacker, if any node send undefined type packet in very higher rate means lunching the remapping attack that change the priority of communication in network and damage the protocols of network. The traffic remapping attack detected by analyzing the traffic behavior and its data sending rate based methodology. After that detection of attack we apply protection scheme so we create protector node p that node watch neighbor node activity as well as their vulnerabilities and retrieve the information about attack and rate of data exchanging between attacker and captured by attacker node that behavior for useful for protector p node for protection. But initially p node send the rate control message to the attacker node and if attacker node will not control there rate so p node block the particular traffic remapping attacker node and protect the whole mobile ad hoc network.

3.1 Proposed Algorithm

In our mobile sensor communication all node play a important role because all are work collaborative form or dependent base route, that provide one measure issue is security so here we design algorithm for detection and protection of traffic remapping attack under sensor communication, very first we initialize all variable and check the behavior of traffic remapping attack, if any node send undefined type packet in very higher rate means lunching the remapping attack that change the priority of communication in network, but that type of attack measured through historic data analysis base technique and detect the attacker node, after that we apply protection scheme so we create protector node p that node watch whole neighbor node activity as well as vulnerable node and retrieve the information about attack and rate of data exchanging between attacker and vulnerable node, and send the rate control message to the attacker node.

That historic analysis base detection and future time real time protection provide strength to the communication network in the form of security issue.

```
Input parameter
   Step 1: Sensor Nodes: N;
   MAC laver: 802.11
   Routing Protocol: AODV
   Attack Type: Remapping
   Security Mechanism: PPS (Profile based Protection Scheme)
   Inter Arrival Time = IAT (priority based)
  //Attacker launches remapping attack
  Attacker-node (capture vulnerable node information && send = abnormal packet
&& rate = 2^{20} * 0.1s)
  If (vulnerable receiver data)
        Infected:
        Call Remapping attack Module;
         3
   Step generate trace file for further analysis
   Step analysis trace for detection
   If (data type == Remapping a&& rate \geq= normal)
        Packet is unwanted remapping attack type;
        Find infection ratio:
        Priority of attacker is high
  Step: Call protector PPS
        While (PPS-Check susceptible node && total data receives && rate &&
        sender)
If (rate \geq = normal && packet =Remapping)
Send rate control message at different Inter Arrival Time If
(control rate = true)
£
Cannot block;
Proper provides priority to senders;
Else {block the sender node ;}
         }
}
```

4 Outcome of Our Proposed Work

In this section describe our result outcomes in thirty mobile node cases and conclude our results.

A. Overall Analysis

The overall performance of network is mentioned in Table 1. In this analysis the priority based scenarios of normal routing performance are represents by S1, S2 and S3. Also include the scenario of remapping attack and security against attack. The scenario represent the individual performance of both transport layer protocol like TCP and UDP and identified that the security scheme is provides secure communication in dynamic network.

B. Attacker Node Analysis

The attacker is always performing misbehavior in network and the routing performance of network is completely degrades due to less packets receiving and heavy packet loss. Table 2 is represents the attacker nodes packet capturing analysis. In this table the six nodes are identified in network that performing malicious activities in network. The node 1 is captures highest number of packets and node 9 is lowest.

C. PDR Analysis

In following graph (Fig. 1), we measure the Packet Delivery Ratio performance at the time of Routing, Attack and after the proposed security mechanism. The proposed mechanism improves the performance and provides efficient packet delivery in the network. The graph showing simulation time (in Sec.) and

Parameter	Overall summery S1	Overall summery S2	Overall summery S3	Overall summery secure	Overall summery attack
TCP SEND	3326	4350	4828	2733	1260
UDP SEND	4979	4979	4979	4979	4979
TCP RECV	3309	4310	4809	2678	1221
UDP RECV	3155	4797	3844	4978	724
ROUTINGPKTS	1789	860	1053	561	210,268
TCP-PDF	99.49	99.08	99.61	97.99	96.9
UDP-PDF	63.37	96.34	77.2	99.98	14.54
Average e-e delay (ms)	1017.3	396.06	426.18	533.58	1470.25
NRL	0.28	0.09	0.12	0.07	108.11
Attack	0	0	0	0	360,104
Total drop	1841	222	1154	56	4294

Table 1 Summarized performance analysis

Attacker node	Packet capture	Percentage of infection
1	151,084	57.18
5	55,378	20.96
7	58,726	22.23
9	58	0.02
15	52,420	19.84
22	42,438	16.06

 Table 2
 Attacker analysis



Fig. 1 PDR performance analysis

Percentage of data receiving, during difference scenarios. The Result concludes that proposed security mechanism defends the attacker node from data transmission or participation in communication, meanwhile our data transmission ratio is improved.

D. Throughput Analysis

The throughput performance is evaluated through number of packets is received at destination in unit time (Fig. 2). The throughput performance of remapping attacker is about 1300 pks/s up to time 83 s but in security scheme the throughput is



Fig. 2 Throughput performance analysis

enhanced about 2200 pks/s. The performance of rest of the normal scenario is equivalent to secure routing performance and also the S2 reaches to 3000 pks/s.

5 Conclusion and Future Work

In MANET (Mobile Ad hoc Network) mobile nodes are continuously interchanging the information in the foam of packets or bits in network. The MANET is completely dynamic network because of random motion of mobile nodes. The sender in floods request and reply packets in network for identifying destination. The attacker in network is not interacting at the time of route establishment but it directly enhances the flooding capability by that network bandwidth is unnecessary consume. The remapping attacker behavior is same as that, flooding huge amount of packets unnecessarily to set their priority higher. The proposed security scheme is prevents the network from attacker. In this research three normal module S1, S2 and S3, one attacker module and one security module are simulated. The three normal modules are designed on the basis of different priority. The security module observe that the attacker and block their malicious activities. In proposed scheme decentralized network is looking and work like a centralized network and it easily defend and prevent from attack behaviors during mobility environment. The results show that the presence of a Remapping Attack increases the packet loss and routing load in the network considerably. The proposed security mechanism against Remapping Attack protects the network through identified the nodes priority based communication and heavy flooding of malicious node/s.

The nodes of MANET depend on one factor also i.e. node battery power or node energy. The nodes working capability is decided through remaining battery power of node/s. The energy efficient routing will surely improves the network life time in network. In future we will propose the energy efficient routing algorithm to improve network life time and also simulate remapping attack effect on energy consumption.

References

- Konorski, J., Szott, S.: Discouraging traffic remapping attacks in local ad hoc networks. IEEE Trans. Wirel. Commun. 13(7), 3752–3767 (2014)
- Chlamtac, I., Conti, M., Liu, J.J.-N.: Mobile ad hoc networking: imperatives and challenges. Ad Hoc Netw. 1(1), 13–64 (2003)
- Nema, A., Tiwari, B., Tiwari, V.: Improving accuracy for intrusion detection through layered approach using support vector machine with feature reduction. In: Proceedings of the ACM Symposium on Women in Research 2016, pp. 26–31. ACM, 2016
- 4. Wu, B., Chen, J., Wu, J., Cardei, M.: A survey on attacks and countermeasures in mobile ad hoc networks, Wirel./Mob. Netw. Secur. 103–135 (2006)
- Rai, A.K., Tewari, R.R., Upadhyay, S.K.: Different types of attacks on integrated MANET-internet communication. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Secur. (IJCSS) 4(3), 265–274 (2010)
- Manikandan, K.P., Satyaprasad, R., Rajasekhararao, K.: A survey on attacks and defense metrics of routing mechanism in mobile ad hoc networks. Int. J. Adv. Comput. Sci. Appl. 2 (3), 7–12 (2011)
- Saha, H.N., Bhattacharyya, D., Pk, Banerjee: Study of different attacks in MANET with its detection & mitigation schemes. Int. J. Adv. Eng. Technol. IJAET 3(1), 383–388 (2012)
- 8. Jain, S.: Security threats in MANETS: a review. Int. J. Inf. Theor. (IJIT) 3(2) (2014)
- Tayal, S., Gupta, V.: A survey of attacks on MANET routing protocols. Int. J. Innov. Res. Sci. Eng. Technol. 2(6), 2280–2285 (2013)
- Sulthana, S.R., Reddy, D.S.C., Manohar, T.B.: An efficient mechanism of handling MANET routing attacks using risk aware mitigation with distributed node control. Int. J. Mod. Eng. Res. (IJMER) 3(5), 2996–3004 (2013)
- 11. Sen, S., Clark, J.A.: Evolutionary computation techniques for intrusion detection in mobile ad hoc networks. Comput. Netw. **55**, 3441–3457 (2011)
- Gagandeep, A., Kumar, P.: Analysis of different security attacks in MANETs on protocol stack a-review. Int. J. Eng. Adv. Technol. (IJEAT) 1(5) (2012). ISSN: 2249-8958
- Narang, E.K.: A study of different attacks in MANET and discussion about solutions of black hole attack on AODY protocol. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Eng. Technol. 2(4), 1601–1606 (2013)

Web Log Analysis Tools: At a Glance

Vinod Kumar and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract Current cyber space is now flooding with huge number of Web sites, and the analysis of the Web sites is extremely needed to extract the gainful information. For the analysis task on Web sites' log file, there exist various log analysis tools. However, the impeccable trouble emerges in determination of suitable tools. This work provides an examination of open source and commercial toolsets available for the analysis and its basic internal analysis process; the study will provide many choices to pick from when deciding a toolset to manage and analyze log data. The paper will help to review the set of tools currently available and positively hook the right tool to get started on analyzing logs files.

Keywords Web log analyzer • Web usage mining • Web log analysis Web log

1 Introduction

Web has changed into the environment where people of all ages, dialects, and cultures spend their daily digital lives. Working or entertaining, learning or hang out, home or on the way, discretely or as an assembly, people are ubiquitously encircled by a setup of devices, networks, and applications. This infrastructure combined with the continuously rising amount of information supports the user's intellectual or physical activity. Whether searching, using, or creating and disseminating the information, users leave behind a great deal of data disclosing their information requirements, attitudes, private, and environmental facts. Web designers assemble these artifacts in a variety of Web logs for subsequent analysis.

V. Kumar (🖂) · R. S. Thakur

Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: vinodkumarfbkp@gmail.com

R. S. Thakur e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_14 Hence, it is interesting and required to study the user actions and its result on analysis task one of the key tasks. Web log mining is to discover the hidden facts, such as user's browsing habit, and deliver it to the Web site managers or service providers for improving content organization. Today, Web log mining [1] is being performed at its peak over World Wide Web. Web mining is categorized into three basic classes—Web content mining, Web structure mining, and Web usage mining (WUM) [2]. Here, Web usage mining [3] focuses on determining the user's behavior [4, 5] from Web log data. A variety of tools are available that can perform Web usage mining, taking Web access logs as an input and generating the reports as an output. Thus, a log analysis tool is defined as a piece of software that allows analytical processing of log files according to user-specified instructions.

2 Comparison of Various Web Log Analyzers

The large set of Web log analyzer software tools is available in the market for performing the analysis from Web log [6] to get the fruitful information in simple and effective way. Among the large set of tools available today, it is a tedious and time-consuming task to find the suitable tool to perform the analysis economically, efficiently, and effectively. The summarized and comparative [7–10] representation of study in Table 1 clearly discovers the right tool for the work to help the reader commence on analyzing log files. Although, there are a great number of features available in each Web analyzer tools, some of the significant and steering features are included to perform comparison.

3 Methodology for Web Log Analysis

This section focuses and describes entire methodology for Web log analysis how the Web log analysis function is performed. The Web log analysis in the lack of analyzer is quite complex and time consuming and difficult task. Now, the analysis work is simplified by using the automated software tools with the simplified basic steps which are adopted in Web log analysis [11] process. The steps are detailed below.

3.1 Log Data Collection

The first step in the Web log analysis process is the collection of the log data from the sources. There exist many sources of Web log data from which the log data can be obtained. These sources may be your computer system, proxy server, Web server, etc. The log data exists in various sources such as Web server log, application software log, system log.

TAINET		niipaiauve presentauon	W SUDURY IN	ou tog allary sis wors				
Serial	Name of Web	Vendor	Current	Log file formats	Web site	License	Language	User
No.	analysis tool		version		linkage			interface
1	Google Analytics	Google Inc.	Single	CLF, XLF, ELF	Yes	Free	Java Script	GUI
2	Deep Log analyzer	Deep Software Inc.	7.0	Apache, IIS, CLF, XLF, ELF	Imported	Proprietary	In-built	GUI
3	Web Log Expert	Alentum Software	9.3	Apache, IIS	Imported	Proprietary	In-built	GUI
4	Visitors	Salvatore Sanfilippo	0.7	CLF, Apache, IIS, W3C	Imported	GNU-GPL	С	CLI
S	Webalizer	Webalizer	2.23-08	CLF, XLF, ELF, FTP	Imported	GNU-GPL	С	CLI
9	Analog	Community Development	6.0.	CLF, IIS W3C	Imported	GNU-GPL	С	CLJ
7	Piwik	Piwik Inc.	2.16.5	Apache, IIS, Ngnix	Imported	GNU-GPL	Python/Ruby	GUI
8	Open Web Analytics	Open web analytics	1.5.7	CLF, XLF, ELF	Imported	GNU-GPL	PHP	GUI
6	AW Stats	AW Stats Inc.	7.5	CLF, XLF, ELF, W3C, etc.	Imported	GNU-GPL	Perl	GUI
10	Web log Storming	Dataland Software	3.2	IIS W3C Extended log file format Apache	Yes	Proprietary	С	GUI
11	Webtrax	John Callender	23	NCSA combined format	Imported	GNU-GPL	Perl	CLI
12	Dailystats	Perlfect Solutions	3.0	CLF, XLF, ELF, W3C, etc.	Imported	GNU-GPL	Perl	CLI
13	Relax	Free Software Foundation, Inc.	2.80	Apache combined, NCSA extended/CTL, WebSTAR	Imported	GNU-GPL	Perl	CLI
14	StatCounter	StatCounter	3	Embedded in Web page	In-Built	Proprietary	I	GUI
15	SAWMILL	Flowerfire Inc.	8.7.8	IISW3C, ELF format, Apache	In-Built	Proprietary	С	GUI
16	GoAccess	MIT Licensed	1.0	Apache, ginx, CLF CloudFront, ELF	In-Built	Open Source	C	GUI-CLI
17	Nihuo Log Analyzer	Nihuo Software Inc.	4.19	Apache, Zeus, Lighttpd/NCSA, IIS 4/5/6/7 logs	Imported	Proprietary	JavaScript, HTML	GUI-CLI
18	HTTP-ANALYZE [10]	RENT-A-GURU, Inc.	2.4	NCSA CLF, W3C ELF	In-Built	Proprietary	C	GUI-CLI
19	Log Analytics Sense	Statspire Software	2.3	More than 40 formats	Imported	Proprietary		GUI-CLI
20	AlterWind Log Analyzer	Alterwind Software	4.0	ApacheCommon, Combined, and IIS log file formats	Imported	Proprietary	I	GUI-CLI
							(co)	ntinued)

 Table 1
 Summarized and comparative presentation of various Web log analysis tools
Table 1 (continued)								
Platform	Report format	Availability of dynamic reports	E-mail facility	Report scheduler	Ability to handle compressed files	Real-time analysis	Mobile tracking	Source URL
Platform	Report format	Availability of dynamic reports	E-mail facility	Report scheduler	Ability to handle compressed files	Real-time analysis	Mobile tracking	Source URL
Windows, Mac, Linux, Solaris	HTML, PDF, CSV	Yes	Yes	Exterior	No	Yes	Yes	http://www.google. com/analytics
Windows	HTML/Ms-Excel	Yes	No	In-Built	YES	Yes	No	http://www.deep- oftware.com/
Windows	HTML, PDF, CSV	Yes	Yes	In-Built	YES	No	No	http://www. weblogexpert.com/
Unix/Linux/Mac	HTML	No	No	Exterior	No	Yes	No	http://www.hping. org/visitors/
Unix/Linux/Mac	HTML	No	No	Exterior	Yes	No	No	http://www. webalizer.org/
Windows/ Unix/Linux/Mac	HTML	No	No	Exterior	Yes	No	No	http://analog.gsp. com/
Windows/ Mac/Linux/Solaris	HTML/PDF	Yes	Yes	Exterior	No	Yes	Yes	http://www.piwik. org/
Windows	HTML	No	No	Exterior	No	No	No	http://www. openwebanalytics. com
Windows	HTML/PDF	Yes	Yes	Exterior	No	Yes	No	http://www. awstats.org/
Windows	HTML/PDF	Yes	Yes	Exterior	Yes	Yes	No	http://www. weblogstorming. com
Windows/Unix/Linux/Mac	HTML	No	No	Exterior	No	No	No	http://multicians. org/thvv/webtrax- help.html
								(continued)

(continued)
-
Table

I able 1 (continued)								
Platform	Report format	Availability of dynamic reports	E-mail facility	Report scheduler	Ability to handle compressed files	Real-time analysis	Mobile tracking	Source URL
Windows/Unix/Linux/Mac/	HTML	No	°Ž	Exterior	°N	No	No	http://www. perlfect.com/ freescripts/ dailystats/
Linux	HTML/CSV/Text	No	No	Exterior	No	No	No	http://ktmatu.com/ software/relax/
Windows	CSV	YES	No	In-Built	No	Yes	Yes	https://statcounter. com/
Windows/Unix/Linux/Mac	HTML	YES	Yes	In-Built	No	Yes	Yes	http://sawmill.net/
Unix/Linux/Mac	HTML, CSV, JSON	YES	No	Exterior	No	Yes	No	https://goaccess.io/
Windows/Linux/ Mac OS/FreeBSD	HTML	YES	No	In-Built	Yes	Yes	No	http://www. loganalyzer.net
Windows/Linux/ Unix Mac OS/	HTML	YES	No	Exterior	No	Yes	No	http://analyze.org/ index.php
Windows	HTML	YES	No	Exterior	Yes	No	No	http://www. statspire.com/
Windows	HTML	YES	I	No	Yes	No	No	http://www. alterwind.com/

3.2 Preprocessing Phase

This is the preliminary task in the Web log analysis work. The preprocessing of Web log [1, 12] data encompasses the following subtasks.

3.2.1 Data Cleaning

During data cleaning, irrelevant and extraneous data are eliminated. It deals with detecting and removing errors and inconsistencies from data in order to improve the quality of data. Now, cleaned data is used by the Web log analyzer mentioned in Table 1 for further processing.

3.2.2 User Identification

The task user identification [13] is to find the different user who has visited the Web site. This is done by all the available Web log analyzer as an important analysis task in Web log data analysis.

3.2.3 Session Identification

According to Habin et al. [13] a session can be described as a sequence of activities carried out by a user between the entry and exit from the Web site. This result helps in finding out the potential visitors over the Web site. This is also the significant feature in the analysis task performed by the above log analyzers.

3.2.4 Path Completion

The local caching and proxy servers pose the problems for path completion [1, 13, 14] because users may reach the pages in the local caching or the proxy server caching devoid of leaving any trace in server's access log. The purpose of the path completion is to accomplish task by appending the discovered user's travel pattern and the missing pages in the user access path.

3.2.5 Pattern Discovery

Pattern discovery [15, 16] is the crucial course of action in Web usage mining which comprises grouping of users centered on similarities in their profile and search behavior. This available feature is significantly helpful in finding out the

Web page navigation pattern used by the users to design the Web site. Deep log analyzer, Web log expert, Webalizer depicts it well. The software tool "Visitor" lacks this feature.

3.3 Pattern Analysis

Pattern analysis [11, 17] is the final phase in Web usage mining which is aimed at mining interesting rules, pattern [18–21], or statistics from the result of pattern discovery step, by discarding unrelated rules or statistics. Finally, the result obtained from pattern analysis is the main crux of the Web log analysis task. Thus, report generated from the Web log analyzer may be saved as HTML, CSV, and PDF, etc.

4 Conclusion

There is range of tools available online for this type of analysis and producing the reports, some of which are open source and proprietary. A comparative investigation on the widely used analyzing tools had discovered a variety of several features which are superior to the other. If somebody wishes to use commercial software, the deep Web log analyzer and Web log expert analyzer are very powerful and useful giving the almost similar result. In case of open source, Piwik is very helpful for Web log analysis. For online and real-time Web log analyzer. These tools help in taking decisions to incorporate and improve the Web site as per user requirement. Using the reports and results generated by the tool of the visitors visiting a Web site, one can get a rational and true idea about the behavior of the visitors and their navigational paths and patterns which support in determining the influence and popularity of the Web site.

Acknowledgements This work was supported by the Dept. of Computer Application, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India

References

- 1. Etzioni, O.: The world wide web: quagmine or gold mine. Commun. ACM **39**(11), 65–68 (1996)
- 2. Mobasher, B.: Web Usage Mining and Personalization. CRC Press, LLC (2005)
- 3. Carmona, C.J., et al.: Web usage mining to improve the design of an e-commerce website: OrOliveSur.com. Expert Syst. Appl. **39**, 11243–11249 (2012)

- Anitha, V., Isakki, P.: A survey on predicting user behavior based on web server log files in a web usage mining. In: International Conference on Computing Technologies and Intelligent Data Engineering (ICCTIDE'16), Kovilpatti, India, pp. 1–4 (2016)
- 5. Kumar, V., Thakur, R.S.: Exploring behavior of visitors activity at granular level from web log data using deep log analyzer. Int. J. Syst. Softw. Eng. 4(1), 16–26 (2016)
- Wongsirichot, T., Sukpisit, S., Hanghu, W.: A preliminary analysis of web usage behaviors from web access log files. Proc. Int. Conf. Soft Comput. Tech. Eng. Appl. 250, 325–332 (2013)
- Kumar, V., et al.: A brief investigation on Web Usage Mining Tools (WUM). Saudi J. Eng. Technol. 2(1), 1–11 (2017)
- Bhuvaneswari, S., Anand, T.: A comparative study of different log analyzer tools to analyze user behaviors. Int. J. Recent Innov. Trends Comput. Commun. 3(5), 2997–3002 (2015). ISSN: 2321-8169
- Kaur, N., Aggarwal, H.: A comparative study of WUM Tools to analyze user behaviour pattern from web log data. Int. J. Adv. Eng. Res. (IJAER) 10(4), 123–138 (2015). ISSN: 2231-5152
- Dhandi, M., Chakrawarti, R.K.: A comprehensive study of web usage mining. In: 2016 Symposium on Colossal Data Analysis and Networking (CDAN), Indore, pp. 1–5 (2016)
- 11. Joshila Grace, L.K., Maheswari, V., Nagamlai, D.: Web log data analysis and mining. Adv. Comput. Commun. Comput. Inf. Sci. **133**, 459–469 (2011)
- Lakshmi, N., Rao, R.S., Reddy, S.S.: An overview of preprocessing on web log data for web usage analysis. Int. J. Innov. Technol. Explor. Eng. (IJITEE) 2(4), 274–279 (2013). ISSN: 2278-3075
- Habin, L., Vlado, K.: Combining mining of web server logs and web content for classifying user's navigation pattern and predicting users future request. J. Data Knowl. Eng. 61, 304– 330 (2007)
- 14. Li, Y., Feng, B., Mao, Q.: Research on path completion technique in web usage mining. In: International Symposium on Computer Science and Computational Technology (2008)
- Adeniyi, D.A., Wei, Z., Yongquan, Y.: Automated web usage data mining and recommendation system using K-Nearest Neighbor (KNN) classification method. Appl. Comput. Inform. 12, 90–108 (2016)
- Tiwari, V., Thakur, R.S.: Contextual snowflake modelling for pattern warehouse logical design. Sadhana Acad. Proc. Eng. Sci. 40, 15–33 (2015)
- Tiwari, V., Thakur, R.S.: Pattern warehouse: context based modeling and quality issues. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. India Sect. A: Phys. Sci. 86, 417–431 (2016)
- Cooley, R., Mobasher, B., Srivastava, J.: Web mining: information and pattern discovery on the World Wide Web. In: Proceedings of Ninth IEEE International Conference Tools with Artificial Intelligence, pp. 558–567 (1997)
- Facca, F.M., Lanzi, P.L.: Mining interesting knowledge from weblogs: a survey. Data Knowl. Eng. 53(3), 225–241 (2005)
- Federico, M.F., Pier, L.L.: Mining interesting knowledge from weblog: a survey. J. Data Knowl. Eng. 53, 225–241 (2005)
- Iváncsy, R.: Frequent pattern mining in web log data. Acta Polytechnica Hungarica 3(1) (2006)

A Benign and Malignant Mass Classification Based on Second-Order Statistical Parameters at Different Offset

Pravin Palkar and Pankaj Agrawal

Abstract The objective of this paper is to investigate the classification of masses on digitized screening mammograms as benign or malignant with second-order statistical parameters. Many CAD tools were developed over the past two decades to help radiologists in detecting and diagnosing breast cancer. The proposed method removes and deletes unwanted signs present in the digitized mammogram sample's background and applies enhancement process to eliminate noise and find the breast region. After that, segmentation phase is performed for automatic mass detection. From detected mass, second-order texture features from gray level co-occurrence matrix (GLCM) are extracted. These extracted parameters for different offset are plotted and based on the relation of direction's plots; the mass is classified as benign or malignant.

Keywords Breast cancer • Mammogram • Statistical parameters Segmentation • GLCM • Mass classification

1 Introduction

Cancer is a disease that causes cells in the body to change and grow out of control. It is uncontrolled multiplication of a group of cells in a particular location of the body [1]. Mostly, the cancer cells are a tumor and the cancer is named after the part of the body where the tumor originates [2]. Breast cancer begins in breast tissue. In recent years, occurrence of breast cancer has increased significantly and deaths occurred due to it is a recognized world health problem. It is one of the leading causes of fatality, with approximately 1 out of 12 women affected by the disease

RTMNU, Nagpur, India e-mail: p_palkar@yahoo.com

P. Agrawal

143

P. Palkar (🖂)

G. H. Raisoni Academy of Engineering and Technology, Nagpur, India e-mail: pankaj.agrawal@raisoni.net

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_15

during their lifetime. In India, breast cancer is the second most common cancer in female after lung cancers and the death rate is reported as one in eight women [3]. The most effective way to reduce deaths caused by breast cancer is to detect and treat it early as there are chances of successful treatment. Currently, many imaging techniques for breast cancer detection are available [4] and the mammogram is the most efficient system to detect abnormal masses [5], recommended for breast cancer screening. Detecting suspicious abnormalities to radiologist is a repetitive and fatiguing task. Due to this, abnormality may be overlooked. Hence, a number of computer-aided detection (CAD) systems has been developed in past few decades to aid radiologists in detecting mammographic suspicious mass, which may indicate the presence of breast cancer. These systems can only assist to improve accuracy of detection, but the final decision has to be made by the radiologist only [6]. The input to computer-aided detection (CAD) systems can be obtained either from a conventional or a digital mammogram. The computer software then searches abnormal masses in mammogram, which may indicate the presence of breast cancer. The CAD system enhances these masses by preprocessing. In CAD system, first stage covers the mammogram preprocessing and detection of the breast region. The second stage detects suspicious masses in the breast region. It then finds ROI and its statistical features. These obtained statistical features indicate some quantifiable information of detected mass of mammogram which is input to the classification stage. Based on this, the suspicious mass is classified further as benign or malignant [7].

2 Preprocessing and Mass Detection

In our proposed method, we are using MIAS's database images [8]. This database includes both right and left-sided mammograms. For simplifying the preprocessing, we swap right-sided mammograms to left side. Then we deleted the unwanted signs, labels, and noises of the image. For deleting these, we act as follow: first, we performed median filtering. It is mainly used to reduce or eliminate noise presents in the image. Nonlinear median filter not only reduces the noise but also preserves useful information in the image [9]. This filter efficiently removes the salt and pepper noise and retains the sharpness of image edges [10]. Then compared median filtered image with threshold intensity value to get processed digital mammogram image by doing following process [11]. From the binary objects in the mammogram image, the regions with fewer than 50 pixels are removed by using the bewareaopen function. Then a morphological operation is performed to reduce distortion and remove isolated pixels (individual 1's surrounded by 0's) of the binary images using the function *bwmorph* with parameter 'clean.' After this, we removed the left, right, and background parts of the mammogram which is redundant as it does not cover breast region. Now it is also important to detect the pectoral muscle and defines the region of interest (ROI) for further analysis. The pectoral muscle,

slightly brighter compared to the rest of the breast tissue as shown in Fig. 1, can appear in the mammogram.

For removing redundant parts and for detecting and removing the pectoral muscle of the breast, the following method is applied. As shown in Fig. 1, initially trace the mammogram from left side and find first nonzero column to get the cutline AB then determine the middle point C at the top margin and straight-line CD plotted from the point C to lower left corner point D of the mammogram. This line CD crosses the line AB at point E. The resulted inverted right-angle triangle ACE is cropped from the breast region. In this way, the pectoral muscle is detected and removed efficiently in most of the cases [12]. Next, to get straight-line FG, trace the mammogram from right side and find first nonzero column.

In this way, we successfully removed unwanted pectoral muscle and left-hand, right-hand black stripe from the mammogram. The above method is tested on MIAS database and as per expectation, it detects and removes the pectoral muscles with good success ratio [13]. The mammogram carries the information in the form of different intensities and textural variations. Our approach is to isolate the spatially interconnected structures in the image to form regions concentrated around prominent intensities. Hence after getting interested breast contour as shown in Fig. 2, we found brightest pixel to get threshold value for getting spicules. Once getting intended spicules, we identified seed point and grown that dynamically to get mass region as shown in Fig. 3.

In the figure, we observe that abnormal areas of density, mass, or calcification are easily detected and with respect to the size of mass, size of ROI is defined dynamically [14]. This defined dynamic ROI of digital mammogram is used to extract the statistical features to detect the breast cancer.





Fig. 2 Mammogram without pectoral muscle and background



Fig. 3 Automatic detection of mass region in digital mammograms



3 Feature Extraction

The mammogram tissues are characterized by random and no homogeneous structures. For this reason, the analysis by the statistical methods will be preferentially used [15]. Statistics that describe a texture can be computed from the gray tones (or colors) themselves. This approach is less intuitive but is computationally efficient and can work well for classification of textures [16]. Texture features have been proven to be useful in differentiating masses of breast tissues as benign and

malignant [17]. In our proposed method, we have extracted second-order statistical features of GLCM. These features provide information about the texture of the mammogram. The GLCM matrices are constructed with distance varying from d = 1-10 in step of 1 in orientation of 0°, 45°, 90,° and 135°. At any single orientation and distance, it will provide insufficient texture information, so we have considered four different orientations with different offsets for benign and malignant mammograms. We have considered following gray levels values of GLCM matrices:

- Contrast: It is a measure of local level variations and takes high graylevel values for the mass of mammogram of high contrast.
- Energy: It is referred as uniformity and takes high graylevel values for the mass of mammogram which has very similar pixels.
- Homogeneity: It is measures of closeness of the distribution of elements in GLCM to the diagonal of GLCM and is high for uniform gray levels.
- Correlation: It measures the joint probability occurrence of the specified pixel pairs.

4 Experiment Results

After extraction of features, the graphical representation of second-order statistical features with respect to different offset is very interesting. The observation of variation of each features with different directions given as 0° , 45° , 90° , and 135° at different offsets are very useful to classify the mass. The detected mass is used to calculate graylevel values of GLCM second-order statistical features such as contrast, homogeneity, energy, and correlation with respect to different orientation for d = 1 in benign and malignant cases and is shown in Tables 1 and 2, respectively.

The graphical representation of the energy contrast, homogeneity, and correlation values for benign and malignant masses is also cited in Figs. 4 and 5, respectively.

Direction (°)	Statistical parar	meters at $d = 1$		
	Energy	Contrast	Homogeneity	Correlation
0	0.4689	0.0323	0.9839	0.938
45	0.4526	0.0525	0.9738	0.8989
90	0.4633	0.0382	0.9809	0.9269
135	0.459	0.0443	0.9779	0.9148

 Table 1
 Statistical parameters of benign mass

Direction (°)	Statistical parar	meters at $d = 1$		
	Energy	Contrast	Homogeneity	Correlation
0	0.3482	0.065	0.9675	0.9294
45	0.3263	0.0964	0.9518	0.8955
90	0.3516	0.0591	0.9705	0.9362
135	0.3428	0.0716	0.9642	0.9223

Table 2 Statistical parameters of malignant mass



Fig. 4 Relation of second-order statistical parameters at different direction for benign mass

The graphical representation shows that the variation in values of energy contrast, homogeneity, and correlation for mass of sample mammogram is highly different as per our expectation for benign and malignant masses, and the variation for both the cases is different and easily recognizable. It shows effectiveness of the proposed method in discrimination of the masses as benign and malignant.



Fig. 5 Relation of second-order statistical parameters at different direction for malignant mass

5 Conclusion

In this paper, we have presented a method to detect the suspicious mass of a digital mammogram and characterize this mass region based on statistical parameters with different directions at different offsets. Investigation of the preliminary results obtained from graphical representation reveals that the variation in mentioned statistical parameters w.r.t offset clearly distinguishes the mass between benign and malignant. Thereafter, the variation in parameters with different direction at different offset could be used to define criteria of decision that will permit to distinguish a mammogram as benign or malignant.

References

- Ganesan, K., Acharya, U., Chua, K.C., Min, L.C., Abraham, K.T., Ng, K.: Computer-aided breast cancer detection using mammograms: a review. IEEE Rev. Biomed. Eng. 6, 77–98 (2013)
- Bandyopadhyay, S.K., Maitra, I.K., Kim, T.: Identification of abnormal masses in digital mammography images. In: 2011 International Conference on Ubiquitous Computing and Multimedia Applications (UCMA), vol. 2, pp. 35–41. IEEE (2011)
- Sara, D., Dezfooli, M.A.: A method for improve preprocessing images mammography. Int. J. Inf. Educ. Technol. 1(1), 90 (2011)
- 4. Bick, U., Diekmann, F.: Digital Mammography. Springer, Berlin (2009)
- Hosseini, H.G., Fatemi, M., Alizad, A.: Registration of vibro-acoustography images and X-ray mammography. In: 27th Annual International Conference on Engineering in Medicine and Biology Society, 2005, IEEE-EMBS 2005, pp. 1846–1849. IEEE (2006)

- Ponraj, D.N., Evangelin Jenifer, M., Poongodi, P., Samuel Manoharan, J.: A survey on the preprocessing techniques of mammogram for the detection of breast cancer. J. Emerg. Trends Comput. Inf. Sci. 2(12), 656–664 (2011)
- Padmanabhan, S., Sundararajan, R.: Enhanced accuracy of breast cancer detection in digital mammograms using wavelet analysis. In: 2012 International Conference on Machine Vision and Image Processing (MVIP), pp. 153–156. IEEE (2012)
- Bandyopadhyay, S.K.: Detection of abnormal masses in mammogram images. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Inf. Technol. 1(1), 438–442 (2010)
- Sharma, J., Rai, J.K., Tewari, R.P.: Identification of pre-processing technique for enhancement of mammogram images. In: 2014 International Conference on Medical Imaging, m-Health and Emerging Communication Systems (MedCom), Greater Noida, pp. 115–119 (2014)
- Ramani, R., Suthanthira Vanitha, N.: The pre-processing techniques for breast cancer detection in mammography images. MECS (http://www.mecs-press.org/) 5, 47–54 (2013)
- Nagi, J., Abdul Kareem, S., Nagi, F., Khaleel Ahmed, S.: Automated breast profile segmentation for ROI detection using digital mammograms. In: IEEE EMBS Conference on Biomedical Engineering and Sciences, Kuala Lumpur, pp. 87–92 (2010)
- Bandyopadhyay, S.K.: Pre-processing of mammogram images. Int. J. Eng. Sci. Technol. 2 (11), 6753–6758 (2010)
- Palkar, P., Agrawal, P.: Preprocessing of mammograms for computer-aided diagnosis of breast cancer. Int. J. Mod. Comput. Sci. 4(5), 59–62 (2016)
- Palkar, P., Agrawal, P.: ROI detection in digital mammograms for detection of breast cancer. Int. J. Eng. Sci. Comput. 7(2), 4472–4475 (2017)
- 15. Sheng, L.: The analysis of digital mammograms: speculated tumor detection and normal mammogram characterization. Sch. Electr. Comput. Eng. (1999)
- Palkar, P., Agrawal, P.: A technique to extract statistical parameters of digital mammogram to detect breast cancer. Int. J. Adv. Res. Sci. Eng. Technol. 3(12), 3033–3038 (2016)
- 17. Palkar, P., Agrawal, P.: An approach to analyse digital mammogram using statistical parameters. Int. J. Res. Appl. Sci. Eng. Technol. 5(1), 1–8 (2017)

Support Vector Machine (Linear Kernel) and Interactive Genetic Algorithm-Based Content Image Retrieval Technique

Ankita Dayma, Amit Shrivastava, Aumreesh Kumar Saxena and Manish Manoria

Abstract Images are used to understand better and efficient services in many fields like crime prevention, government, hospitals, fashion and graphics, journalism. The popularity of the entire digital image tends to the huge amount of digital data in image database. It is difficult for the system to retrieve and search the query image from the large amount of data in database. This process takes a lot of time, and to overcome this problem Content-based image retrieval was introduced (CBIR). In CBIR, the image is searched or retrieved by sending the query image by the user and the visual feature extraction is done of the CBIR to retrieve the query image. The main ingredient of the proposed work is support vector machine along with the genetic algorithm. Here the chromosome is made differently. This work is implemented in MATLAB and calculates its performance.

Keywords Support vector machine • Genetic algorithm • Content-based image retrieval • Precision • WANG image dataset

1 Introduction

The technique to search and list the images in a huge collection of data based on the visual contents like textures, shapes, colors, and spatial layouts is known as content-based image retrieval (CBIR) [1, 2]. In CBIR, metadata description keywords or tags are not used which are associated with the image in that database.

A. Dayma (⊠) · A. Shrivastava · A. K. Saxena · M. Manoria CSE, SIRTS, Bhopal, India e-mail: ankitadayma19@gmail.com

A. Shrivastava e-mail: sagar.amitshri@gmail.com

A. K. Saxena e-mail: aumreesh@gmail.com

M. Manoria e-mail: manishmanoria@sirtsbhopal.ac.in

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_16 The extracting of data from the database in CBIR is typically done by one or many multidimensional vectors from every image [3]. This process is done in the very beginning phase of extracting data. Similar query image is extracted at the query time so the similarity function is used which will get the difference between the same query images and the actual query image vector [4, 5]. There are various applications of using CBIR such as in GIS, medical diagnostics, military applications, computer vision, pattern recognition, and many others. In some of the application, only the feature extract is done by CBIR which has certain properties of the query image vector locally for its region or globally for that image. There are some features which are widely used in content-based image retrieval like color feature because it is independent of image orientation and size. They are extracted by calculating the color moments, color histogram, or dominant color for different color spaces like HSV, YCbCr, and RGB [3, 6].

1.1 CBIR Techniques

Color-Based Method—The most vital feature of any image is color. In color model or space, the color feature is the subject to be described for the particular image. In the 3D space, every single pixel of the color image can be pointed and embodied. There are various color spaces that are used in CBIR like LUV, HSV, and RGB for image retrieval. Uniformity is the main characteristic of any color space feature used for appropriate picture retrieval. For the picture display, RGB space is the most utilized color space [3]. The color constitutes in this space are red, green, and blue. For the computer graphic display, HSV space is most commonly used in color space is hue, worth (brightness), and saturation (Lightness). There are three main methods used in color-based method for image retrieval in CBIR. They are as follows [7, 8]:

- 1. Color Moment (CM)—It is utilized in the arrangement which is countless and encompasses after the object. In this technique, the mean early order, the variance (subsequent), and the skewness which is the third-order color moments are computed. The main advantage of using this technique is that it is very compact, effective, and competent as difference to the supplementary feature extraction. The limitation of this technique is that it does not describe every color and also does not provide spatial information.
- 2. Color Histogram (CH)—If the picture is contrasted along the side of the rest of data set than the color histogram is used which acts as an competent representation of the colored part of that particular image. The benefit of using this technique is that computation is easy and it provides rotation about the view axis and robust to translate.
- 3. Color Coherence Vector (CCV)—It is a dissimilar method to assimilate spatial data into the color coherence and color histogram method proposed. The

histogram bit is divided into two bits that is incoherent if the bit does not belong to the colossal uniformly colored span, or consistent if it belongs to it. In this technique, picture is described as the vector. The advantage of using CCV over color histogram is that it shows the spatial information which retrieves better image but it is not cost efficient and also needed high dimension.

2 Support Vector Machine (SVM) Model

Classification SVM is a support vector machine classifier for one- or two-class learning. To trained a data then classification done by SVM classifier. Trained classification SVM classifiers store the training data, parameter values, prior probabilities, support vectors. Support vectors are observations corresponding to strictly positive estimates of $a_1...a_n$. SVM classifiers that yield fewer support vectors for a given training set are more desirable. The SVM binary classification algorithm searches for an optimal hyper lane that separates the data into two classes. For separable classes, the optimal hyper lane maximizes a margin (space that does not contain any observations) surrounding itself, which creates boundaries for the positive and negative classes. For inseparable classes, the objective is the same, but the algorithm imposes a penalty of the length of margin for every observation that is on the wrong side of its class boundary. The linear SVM score function is $f(x) = x'\beta + b$ (Fig. 1).



Fig. 1 SVM generation model

3 Proposed Methodology

3.1 Genetic Algorithm in CBIR

Genetic algorithms are the problem-solving methods which use genetics as a model shown in Fig. 2. It is a technique in which the approximate solution to the search and optimized problem is solved. There are some phases in genetic algorithm to solve the problem. There is first the selection than crossover and then the mutation. The very basic genetic algorithm is as follows [9]:

- Step 1 START (*n* number of chromosomes, appropriate solutions for the problem).
- Step 2 FITNESS (Assess the worth of each chromosome in population).
- Step 3 NEW POPULATION (Apply the following steps for creating new population).
- Step 4 SELECTION (Selection of better fit chromosome from the population).
- Step 5 CROSSOVER (crossover of the new parents to make a new children, copy of parent).
- Step 6 MUTATION (Due to probability, mutation at each position in chromosome is done).
- Step 7 ACCEPTANCE (Placing the newly born chromosome to population).
- Step 8 REPLACE (The new population is summed up for new algorithm).
- Step 9 TESTING (Return of the optimal solution in current population).
- Step 10 LOOPING (Return to the step 2 for evaluating fitness).



Fig. 2 Genetic algorithm flowchart

3.2 FlowChart

Content-based image retrieval is a process which needs to implement the following features:

- 1. Improve the precision of the target query images.
- 2. Decrease the false positive rate of the image retrieval (Fig. 3).

3.3 Formulas

Precision: It is a static quantity which measures the efficiency of the algorithm to find the relevant images out on retrieved images in search domain.



Fig. 3 Flowchart of proposed work

$$Precision = \frac{No. of Relevant Images * 100}{No. of Retrieved images}$$

Here hybrid approach based on SVM and genetic algorithm is used to achieve better precision and decreased false positive rate. In this proposed work, SVM is used to enhance the efficiency of the interactive genetic algorithm. The SVM used in this proposed work is implemented through linear kernel.

Proposed Work()

{ Input: query image and database Output: some selected image from database

- 1. Read database and calculate chromosome value for each image.
- 2. Read query image and calculate its chromosome.
- 3. Calculate difference between query image and other dataset images.
 - distance_CAC(Dataset Image) = pdist2(q_chrom.colorAutoCorrelogram (Query Image),image_db(Dataset Image).colorAutoCorrelogram);
 - (2) distance_CM(Dataset Image) = pdist2(q_chrom.colorMoments(Query Image),image_db(Dataset Image).colorMoments);
 - (3) distance_h(Dataset Image) = pdist2(q_chrom(Query Image)HSV,image_db(Dataset Image).HSV);
 - (4) distance_MA(i) = pdist2(q_chrom.meanAmplitude(Query Image),image_db(Dataset Image).meanAmplitude);
 - (5) distance_msEnergy(Dataset Image) = pdist2(q_chrom.msEnergy(Query Image),image_db(Dataset Image).msEnergy);
 - (6) fit_value(i) = distance_CAC(i) + distance_CM(i) + distance_h
 (i) + distance_MA(i) + distance_msEnergy(i);
 - (7) fit_value(i) = fit_value(i)/5;
- 4. Consider image dataset as input for SVM.
- 5. Train SVM from imagesdataset along with Linear kernel.
 - (1) databaseValue = [distance_CAC',distance_CM',distance_h'];
 - (2) [sortedDistindx] = sortrows(fit_value');
 - (3) svm(databaseValue, Image_name);
- 6. Select Close Image = SVM (each member image with respect to query image).
- 7. Calculate fitness of solution by selecting the two fittest parent came from step 3 through SVM.
- 8. Crossover the parent to form new offspring. If no new offspring is formed then offspring will be same as parent
- 9. If fitter offspring is produced then keep them in population else

keep parent

10. Repeat step 5 to 7 step till stopping condition is reached

}

4 Result Analysis

Image dataset WANG [10] is used while performing experiments. There is various kind and features of images such as flowers, horses, buses, butterfly. These images are 100 in each of the categories. These dataset images are shown in figure mentioned below:

Some flower images are shown in row-4, mountain in row-5, butterfly in row-6, and tree in row-7.

Table 1 shows the results when we pick a flower image 600.jpg as a query image and search the dataset images. The target is to find all similar images through our proposed work. Table 1 shows that how many similar images are found in the

Table 1 Flower images	Image file	Precision (in %)
	600.jpg	100
	609.jpg	100
	608.jpg	100
	610.jpg	95
	601.jpg	95

Table 2 Mountain images

Image file	Precision (in %)
800.jpg	85
811.jpg	90
807.jpg	95
876.jpg	85
804.jpg	95

Table 3Butterfly images

Image file	Precision (in %)
1.jpg	95
2.jpg	90
3.jpg	90
4.jpg	90
6.jpg	95

Table 4 Tree images	Image file	Precision (in %)
	899.jpg	85
	901.jpg	95
	976.jpg	95
	910.jpg	95
	914.jpg	90



Fig. 4 Comparison of precision values with existing work

Table 5 Comparison of precision values with existing work

Images	Flower	Mountain	Butterfly	Tree
Proposed work	98	90	92	92
Existing work [10]	84	84	92	85

process. This number of similar images, out of all retrieve images, is numerically shown through precision values in the percentage. Similarly, Tables 2, 3, and 4 show the results (Fig. 4).

5 Conclusion

There is tremendous growth in the social network and multimedia technology in the recent years which leads to the large amount of images or digital data. Due to this reason, content-based image retrieval is the active topic of research for many researchers. The main problem is to retrieve the image fast and accurate, for this reason many algorithms are proposed to provide efficient and good performance [11]. The content-based image retrieval (CBIR) technology is used in various

applications like crime prevention, medical, historical research, fingerprint identification, biodiversity information system, digital libraries, and many others. It is very much transparent from Table 5 along with the graph 1 that the performance of the proposed work is far better than the existing work. This efficiency got increase due to the fact of combination of SVM with genetic algorithm in association with chromosome structure. Percentage Increase Precision Value is as follows: flower: 16.66, mountain: 7.14, butterfly: 0, tree: 8.23. Overall Improve Precision Propose Methodology is 8%.

References

- Singh, J., Patidar, K., Saxena, G.: Development of content based image retrieval system using neural network and multi-resolution analysis. IJESRT (2016). ISSN: 2277-9655 (I2OR), Publication Impact Factor: 4.116
- Mirchandani, K., Mangala, T.R.: Content based image retrieval. IJIEEE 4(3) (2016). ISSN: 2347-6982
- 3. Vetrithangam, D., Uma Maheswari, N., Venkatesh, R.: Dynamic content-based image search and retrieval by combining low level features. IJAET 7(2) (2016). ISSN 0976-3945
- 4. Hole, A.W., Ramteke, P.L.: Content based image retrieval using dominant color and texture features. IJARCCE 4(10) (2015)
- Alkhawlani, M., Elmogy M., Elbakry, H.: Content-based image retrieval using local features descriptors and bag-of-visual words. IJACSA 6(9) (2015)
- Dass, M.V., Ali, M.R., Ali, M.M.: Image retrieval using interactive genetic algorithm. In: 2014 International Conference on Computational Science and Computational Intelligence, IEEE (2014)
- 7. Vaca-Castano, Gonzalo, Shah, Mubarak: Semantic Image Search From Multiple Query Images. ACM Multimedia Brisbane, Australia (2015)
- Mary, J.S., Christina Magneta, S.: Content based image retrieval using color, multi-dimensional texture and edge orientation. IJSTE 2(10) (2016)
- 9. Heikkila, M., Pietikainen, M., Heikkil, J.: A texture-based method for detecting moving objects (2003)
- Huneiti, A., Daoud, M.: Content-based image retrieval using SOM and DWT. J. Softw. Eng. Appl. (2015)
- 11. Singh, M.S., Hemachandran, K.: Content-based image retrieval using color moment and Gabor texture feature. IJCSI 9(5), 1 (2012)

A Research Paper on: Online Summarization and Real-Time Timeline Generation Using Stream of Tweets

Geeta G. Dayalani, Balkrishna K. Patil and Rajesh A. Auti

Abstract Twitter is the most popular microblogging service where millions of tweets are being posted daily on a wide range of topics. Short text messages are called tweets. The length of the tweet is limited to 140 characters. They are initiated at a very high rate. Tweets contain large amount of data which is noisy and redundant in nature. In this paper, a unique framework called Summblr for the summarization of continuous tweet data to deal with the issue is introduced. Traditional summarization procedures pact with smaller sets of data those are also static while Summblr, is introduced to deal with large data stream of tweets which arrives dynamically at an actual quicker rate. The framework comprises of three components. As a primary step, an algorithm to cluster the data stream of short text messages called tweets is developed that is networked which binds the tweets together and also maintains it in a novel data structure called TCV that is tweet cluster vector. Secondly, a new technique called TCV Rank summarization for producing both online and historical summaries of random time durations is projected. Thirdly, an approach for effectively recognizing the topic evolution is developed. This method analyzes progressively the alterations that are based on summary or else the quantity-based deviations to generate the timelines from large data of tweet streams automatically.

Keywords Summarization • Timeline • Tweet stream • Cluster Specification • Extractive summary • Tweet rank summarization Pyramidal time frame

1 Introduction

The huge amount of short text messages are being shared among the multiple users today. These short messages are called tweets on social networking and microblogging sites. Twitter, the microblogging site, which was started in the year

G. G. Dayalani (🖂) · B. K. Patil · R. A. Auti

Computer Science Engineering, Everest College of Engineering, Aurangabad, India e-mail: geetadayalani@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_17

2006, has grown into a social significant happening. Millions of tweets are collected by Twitter on a daily basis. In the unprocessed form, tweets, while being expressive, can also be overpowering. If seeking for any latest Twitter topic, it may produce heap of tweets, ranging from weeks. Even if some filtering criteria are applied, seeking though ample amount of tweets for the relevant data would be an illusion, by taking into account the huge volume of repetition or redundancy and noise that one may come across it. Moreover, new tweets that satisfy the criterion of filtering the tweets may appear at an incalculable speed continuously. There are *n* numbers of ways to the overload problem of tweet data. One solution that is possible to overload problem of data is summarization. Summarization symbolizes a collection of few documents with a synopsis which comprises of very few numbers of sentences. A summary which is good should possibly cover all the significant topics including the subtopics and have diversification between various sentences to lessen the redundancy to a larger extent [1]. There are *n* numbers of uses of summarization like content or data presentation which is one of them. This case is especially when users surf on the net with the help of notebook or PDA devices like mobile phones which usually have very shorter screens when it is compared to PCs called personal computers. Existing methods to summarize the documents are of less valuable for tweets by considering both the plenty of tweets count and the quick essentials of the incoming tweets which are endless. Therefore, tweet summarization is in need of the features that differ from the traditional summarization functionalities to a greater extent. In extension, the tweet summarization has to consider the temporal nature of the plenty number of approaching tweets. The summarization system of tweets that is Summblr framework must encourage the two queries as follows: summaries of random durations of time and also the real-time timelines. Such kind of applications would be very supportive to simply move in the most important topics of tweets and will also support different examining tasks like immediate reports or the historical survey. In this paper, a novel method is proposed that summarizes the tweets together by taking into consideration the continuous nature of arriving tweets.

To execute continuous summarization of tweet data stream is a very complicated job, considering ample of tweets that are not relevant and contain lot of tweet data which is noisy. Hence, such tweet data is valueless in nature. In addition, all the tweets relate very strongly with the posted time and recent tweets continuously appear at a very quicker rate. Eventually, an enhanced solution for continuous or endless summarization of tweet data is needed which has to consider the following three points:

(1) Effectual, (2) adaptability, (3) topic advancement or evolution.

Traditional techniques of summarization do not complete the above three necessities because:

- (1) They target small data sets that are also static in nature, and hence, these techniques are not helpful for too large data sets and streams.
- (2) Iterative summarization is needed to perform for each and every time duration, which is not at all feasible.

(3) Results that are obtained from the summary do not take into consideration the timing factor. Thus, it not simple to find out the change in any tweet topic.

In this paper, it is intended to propose a novel framework to summarize the tweets called Summblr. Summblr implies continuous summarization by clustering of tweet data stream.

The main goal of this framework is as follows:

- A novel framework Summblr is proposed. Summblr indicates summarization by clustering. This is used to produce the short tweet summaries and timelines of the data streams.
- TCV, a novel data structure, is build up for the functioning of the tweet data.
- TCV Rank summarization algorithm is proposed for summarizing the online as well as historical tweet data.
- A new topic progression recognition algorithm that produces the timelines by supervising three different forms of deviations is also proposed.

2 Literature Survey

Here, related existing research work is illustrated here, and we also explain how our work is different from it. Summarizing the tweets altogether is a process that involves two steps. In the very first step, clustering together of tweet data is done, and in the next step, precise summarization of tweets is carried out.

A vast number of algorithms have been created for the summarization of documents during the most recent years. Out of this, well-known algorithms are Sum Basic [2] and also the centroid algorithm [3]. Sum Basics indicate that the words that take place across the documents very frequently have a higher chance of choosing for human-constructed multiple document summaries rather than the words that take place very less frequently in multiple documents. The 'centroid algorithm' considers a centrality calculation of a sentence formulated on the overall topic of the complete cluster of documents or to a document if it is the summarization of a single document. The LexRank algorithm [4] computes the significance of textual data units or the sentences in a single document or in the multiple documents. The TextRank algorithm [5] is basically an approach that is graph-based which tries to filter out the most high-priority sentences or specifically the keywords from the document using the algorithm called PageRank [6].

A. Data Stream Clustering: Data stream clustering is used for different varieties of applications that generally involve huge amounts of stream data. BIRCH [7] aggregates the information by utilizing the main memory structure which is called CF-tree structure in place of the unusual bulky data set. Bradley [8] advanced another important framework used for clustering which saves only the significant chunks of the data specifically and eliminates the remaining parts of the data which is of no use to the user. CluStream [9] is another stream

clustering method. It comprises of two phases: One is online microclusters, and the other is offline microclusters. The authors also developed PTF that is pyramidal time frame [9] to recover the historical data clusters of random time durations specified. The clustering algorithm of tweet stream data is an online technique which does not require any clustering that is offline.

- B. Microblogging and Twitter: The recent interest has been emerged in determining and also tracking the progress of different dealings on Twitter and also other social medium Websites, e.g., talks related to a volcanic eruption or earthquakes on Twitter [10], to detect novel procedures that are also called initial stories in the tweet stream data [11], visualizing the development of tags [12]. The difficulty has also been experienced from the point of vision of effectiveness: [13] suggests indexing and squeezing or compression methods to hurry up event discovery exclusive of sacrificing detection exactness. We suppose that the event detection has already been carried out, and our objective is to combine all the data in the tweets and bring out a timeline of the event in a summarized form.
- C. Document/Microblog Summarization: Summarization of more than one document or multiple documents can be done by using two ways: One is summarization by extractive, and the second one is abstractive. Extractive summarization is a simple process. In this process, the data or the sentences are preferred from many of the documents itself, and on the other hand, abstractive summarization generates the group of words called phrase which may not be at hand in the definite active document.

In this paper, we ponder on the summarization that is extractive. Relevant scores are given to the statement of the documents and that sentences are particulated based on their ranking. Top ranked sentences are firstly selected [14, 15]. Some of the authors try to regain the summarises by neglecting the salient scores. Abstractive summarization is too difficult on the tweet data since it is very simply influenced by the noise and also the redundancy or by the huge changes in tweet data.

D. **Timeline Detection**: The requirement for examining extensive contents in social media rises to the development in different techniques related to visualization. Timeline is one of the famous methods which can make our investigating task very easy and also fast. Timeline is a better way to display a record of summaries of tweets in a proper sequential order.

3 The SUMMBLR Framework

As revealed in Fig. 1, our Summblr structure composes of three important components, namely clustering of tweet stream module, the high-level specification module, and the timeline creation module. In the section below, each of the modules in detail will be considered.



Fig. 1 The framework of Summblr

In the clustering of tweet stream module, the clustering algorithm that is highly effective is developed. An algorithm is online which allows clustering together the tweets with only a single pass over the entire tweet data. This algorithm makes use of two new data structures. The first one is called the tweet cluster vector (TCV). During the stream processing of tweets, TCVs are preserved dynamically in the main memory. The second data structure is the pyramidal time frame (PTF). To cache and systematize the snapshots of tweet cluster at various altered points, PTF is used. PTF permits the historical information of all the tweets to be fetched by any random period of time.

The high-level specification or summarization module helps to generate two kinds of summaries, namely online summary and historical summary.

- (i) For producing the online summaries, the input is given by TCV which consists of the active or the current clusters that are maintained dynamically in memory. An algorithm called TCV Rank summarization is proposed for the same. The algorithm computes the centrality score of all the tweets that are maintained in the memory and selects that tweets which are highly ranked in terms of maximum content coverage and new topics.
- (ii) Similarly, to generate the historical summary, the input is given by pyramidal time frame (PTF). PTF stores the tweet cluster snapshots. Here, we initially obtain two historical snapshots of cluster which indicates the beginning as well as the ending points and the time duration is specified by the user. Then, based on the change in the specified snapshots of the cluster, the TCV Rank summarization algorithm is finally used to create the summaries of tweets.

The third module that is timeline creation module is an identification algorithm of topic evolution, which consumes online summaries in addition to historical summaries and is given as an input to finally produce real-time timelines. This module detects the subtopic evolution by supervising the large quantifying variations when the tweet data stream is being processed.

4 Methodology

By using three different modules for tweet data, the proposed work can be successfully implemented. The modules are (A) tweet stream clustering, (B) summarization of tweet data, and (C) timeline generation of tweets.

A. Tweet Stream Clustering

In this module, initially, a tiny amount of tweets are heaped. A tweet cluster vector that is TCV is formed which consists of the tweets along with their respective time stamps. Thereafter, *K*-means algorithm is used, and preliminary clusters are formed. Then, the clustering process of tweet stream starts to update the vectors of tweet clusters incrementally. In incremental clustering, any of the tweets that comes at a certain timing factor t is headed to the minimum bounding similarity (MBS) and is determined whether that tweet should be added to existing clusters or created as a novel cluster. It resolves whether to perceive 't' in one of the present clusters or enhance t as completely a novel cluster. It finds that cluster whose centroid is nearest to time t. The updating process is carried out as soon as the new tweet arrives.

B. Summarization of Tweet Data

This module gives us the summary of tweets of any arbitrary or random durations of time. Historical summarization provides the effective data to the end user. Online summary particularizes what is at present argued socially or among the public. While historical summary supports us to be aware of the main actions during the specified period of time. This module removes the entire tweets that consist of unwanted data, outside of that mentioned period. These clusters are eliminated as the outdated clusters. The TCV Rank summarization method is being used to create the summaries of the clusters of tweets.

C. Timeline Generation of Tweets

This module deals with the topic evolution detection to generate real-time timelines. During the stream processing, the algorithm detects the subtopic changes by supervising the quantified variations. A hefty difference signifies a subtopic alteration which eventually creates a novel node on the timeline. This method initially collects all the tweets based on the time factors and then processes the tweet stream progressively. Whenever the large variation occurs, it creates a new node on the existing timeline.

5 Results and Analysis

The Summblr framework which comprises of three modules, namely tweet stream clustering, tweet summarization, and timeline generation of tweets, was successfully executed. Clusters of continuous tweet stream were created, and also, the summarizations of tweets between the defined timelines are also generated.

Input:

- (1) We choose a data set of Twitter containing large number of tweets. The reference timelines are then generated.
- (2) We perform searching operation of any particular query which is usually entered by a user in tweet data set.

Output:

(1) Gives the summarization of the related query that is given as an input.

System Boundaries:

Fig. 2 Performance

evaluation

The older data which is very not often visited by users or preceded by the users of Twitter is deleted and that the average time stamp of the most recent 10% tweets is above three days old and is considered obsolete and hence eliminated (Fig. 2).

To evaluate the performance of our system, we take into consideration the time essential to generate the summarization of large number of tweets and also the size of data. For existing system, to produce the summarization of tweet data of size 50,000 requires 60 s. For recommendation system, to produce the summarization of tweet data of size 5000 is expected to require 25 s. Clustering is executed with some tweets that are given as an input to cluster them altogether into their respective clusters depending on the togetherness or proximity of each and every tweet with the single topic of the cluster. Summarization is achieved with the help of rank formation on every tweet based on the reaction given by the users. Eventually, the tweets in addition to the time slots are also grabbed at which they are formed because of which the seeking method becomes easier. The graph shown below presents a complete visual illustration of the large deviations in the amount of tweets falling in at dissimilar bins of time in a month.

Figure 3 shows the results produced by the tweet data stream. The graph shows how the Summblr performs with respect to the tweet data continuously generating





within the seconds. Summblr is faster even if the data size is increased. So, our framework performs better as it is very flexible with respect to the tweet data.

Figure 4 shows the quality of the summary produced by our framework. Higher quality of summary is produced by more recent durations of time.

Figure 5 gives us the results produced for different step sizes. Summblr supports largely the continuous summarization. As the step size increases, Summblr performs very well in terms of the quality of summary and also the computational cost. Summblr balances between the efficiency and the quality of the summary produced.

Research Work 6

The framework Summblr effectively overcomes the drawbacks of traditional approaches. Traditional approaches are not effective since the volume of tweets is very large and the nature of tweet arrival is fast and continuous. Also, they mainly pay attention to very small size of data sets that are also static in nature. In addition,

size



their summary results do not focus on the timing factor. Summblr takes into regard the temporal characteristic of the large arriving tweets. Summblr effectively implements continuous tweet stream summarization addressing the three issues, namely efficiency, flexibility, and topic evolution. Summblr produces very precise summary and generates it on timeline. Summblr is even not influenced by step size as it supports continuous tweet stream summarization. It strikes a superior stability between summary excellence and efficiency. Similarly, in addition to single topic, we have also implemented the framework for multiple topics.

7 Conclusion

In this paper, the system focusses on the collection and summarization of tweet streams with reference to the up-to-the-minute topics along the timelines to create the overview of evolution in topics that is characterized by subtopics. A framework called Summblr is projected which chains the summarization of tweets continuously. To reduce the large stream of tweets, Summblr uses clustering algorithm to cluster together the tweets into TCV structure and preserves them dynamically in an online manner. Consequently, a TCV Rank summarization algorithm is used for producing two kinds of summaries, namely online as well as historical summaries with the random time period. Eventually, the topic evolution can also be automatically discovered, which permits the Summblr framework to generate the timelines dynamically for ample of tweet data streams. In future, we try to improve our system to generate more meaningful summary and implement this framework on distributed system to evaluate large data sets.

References

- Dayalani, G.G.: Tweet streams online summarization and timeline generation. Int. J. Adv. Sci. Res. Eng. Trends 1(3), 79–82 (2016)
- Vanderwende, L., Suzuki, H., Brockett, C., Nenkova, A.: Beyond SumBasic: task-focused summarization with sentence simplification and lexical expansion. Inf. Process. Manage. 43 (6), 1606–1618 (2007)
- 3. Radev, D., Blair-Goldensohn, S., Zhang, Z.: Experiments in single and multi-document summarization using mead. In: DUC-01, vol. 1001, p. 48109 (2001)
- Erkan, G., Radev, D.: Lexrank: graph-based centrality as salience in text summarization. J. Artif. Intell. Res. 22, 457–480 (2004)
- 5. Mihalcea, R., Tarau, P.: TextRank: bringing order into texts. In: EMNLP. ACL, Barcelona, pp. 404–411 (2004)
- Brin, S., Page, L.: The anatomy of a large-scale hypertextual Websearch engine. Comput. Netw. ISDN Syst. 30(1–7), 107–117 (1998)
- Zhang, T., Ramakrishnan, R., Livny, M.: BIRCH: an efficient data clustering method for very large databases. In: Proceedings of ACM SIGMOD International Conference on Management of Data, pp. 103–114 (1996)
- Bradley, P.S., Fayyad, U.M., Reina, C.: Scaling clustering algorithms to large databases. In: Proceedings of Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, pp. 9–15 (1998)
- Aggarwal, C.C., Han, J., Wang, J., Yu, P.S.: A framework for clustering evolving data streams. In: Proceedings of 29th International Conference on Very Large Data Bases, pp. 81– 92 (2003)
- Wang, D., Li, T., Zhu, S., Ding, C.: Multi-document summarization via sentence-level semantic analysis and symmetric matrix factorization. In: Proceedings of 31st Annual International ACM SIGIR Conference on Research and Development in Information Retrieval, pp. 307–314 (2008)
- Yih, W.-T., Goodman, J., Vanderwende, L., Suzuki, H.: Multi-document summarization by maximizing informative content-words. In: Proceedings of 20th International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, pp. 1776–1782 (2007)
- He, Q., Chang, K., Lim, E.-P., Zhang, J.: Bursty feature representation for clustering text streams. In: Proceedings of the 2007 SIAM International Conference on Data Mining, pp. 491–496 (2007)
- Aggarwal, C.C., Yu, P.S.: On clustering massive text and categorical data streams. Knowl. Inf. Syst. 24(2), 171–196 (2010)
- Xu, J., Kalashnikov, D.V., Mehrotra, S.: Efficient summarization framework for multi-attribute uncertain data. In: Proceedings of ACM SIGMOD International Conference on Management of Data, pp. 421–432 (2014)
- Sharifi, B., Hutton, M.-A., Kalita, J.: Summarizing microblogs automatically. In: Proceedings of Human Language Technologies: The 2010 Annual Conference of the North American Chapter of the Association Computation Linguistics, pp. 685–688 (2010)
- Gong, L., Zeng, J., Zhang, S.: Text stream clustering algorithm based on adaptive feature selection. Expert Syst. Appl. 38(3), 1393–1399 (2011)

Performance Analysis of Multidimensional Indexing in Keyword Search

K. S. Sampada, Lalit Adithya and N. P. Kavya

Abstract Information retrieval from large collections of Web pages might require support of multidimensional index structures to speed up retrieval. Given a query with multiple keywords and range position that a user is concerned in, a range-based search in Web should reclaim and score the most pertinent Web pages. These queries are to be searched using both the spatial and indexed textual information. Range index and textual index are applied discretely or in efficient hybrid index structures are used in many of the proposed approaches which results in poor performance. Since merging of range and text is not straightforward to combine into current search engines, these approaches might not rank Web pages accurately. In this paper, a hybrid index technique, called range inverted index [RI2], is proposed to handle range-based Web searches. To flawlessly search and rank relevant documents, we have used R^* tree and KD tree for spatial search and *term-frequency-inverted document frequency* (TF-IDF) for ranking the keywords in that range. Performance of these two trees are analyzed for their scalability and accuracy.

Keywords Multidimensional index \cdot Keyword search \cdot Information retrieval R^* tree \cdot KD tree \cdot Spatial index

K. S. Sampada (⊠) · L. Adithya · N. P. Kavya Department of Computer Science & Engineering, RNS Institute of Technology, VTU, Bengaluru, India e-mail: k.s.sampada@gmail.com

L. Adithya e-mail: lalitadithya5071@gmail.com

N. P. Kavya e-mail: npkavya@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_18

1 Introduction

Users may search for different type of information from anywhere. The expected results are based on the query consisting keywords and the range submitted by the user. The results are to be optimized as the users are increasing exponentially. Let us consider that we have a group of records, and every record expresses objects, where objects can be reviews, Web pages, photographs, videos tagged with geo-locations [1, 2]. It is required that we want to construct a system to allow users to search on these records. Consider an example where a user, Michel, who relocates to the central part of Phoenix. He desires to go for breakfast to celebrate birthday. He puts forward a query to the system with two keywords "birthday breakfast" and indicates "Downtown Phoenix" as the range. The result should comprise the list of restaurants in downtown.

Phoenix is popular for breakfast. Our aim is to find the best records that are of concern to Michel. Consider there are six reviews for the restaurants in the depository with locations nearby Downtown Phoenix. Figure 1 shows these locations represented as points, and the shaded region demonstrates the interested area of user query. In addition, each review's keywords have been extracted as shown in Fig. 1.

Every record has text keywords in its content. Frequencies of query keywords "birthday and breakfast" in the records are shown in Fig. 2. We want to discover the top-*k* results to the query. The query keywords "birthday and breakfast" may not fetch the results of user interest, since no record may have the keyword specified as a range "Downtown Phoenix" or even "Phoenix" in them. To find the response to the query is to discover the reviews with a location contained in the query region and with the multiple query keywords, as projected in some studies in the literature [3, 4]. With this mechanism, we can only discover review R1 as an answer, since it satisfies both conditions. Even though record R4 contains both the keywords, it is not an answer as its region is not completely enclosed in the query region. The key



limitation of this technique is that it may not consider the records with partial spatial and/or textual matching, even though they comprise data that could be of user's interest.

In this paper, we demonstrate the search of multiple keywords in spatial datasets. We unveil the ranking mechanism of documents by relating range and textual features, to discover top-k results to user queries. It is also necessary to apprehend the relevance of the document with respect to the query. Effectively, a record could be of concern to the user if it at least matches the partial query keywords, and its position is nearby region as stated in the query. Record R4 is not very applicable to the query, since its region is far from the query region. Hence, the records which overlap in a specified region are to be ordered since the user may be interested in the top-k results of the documents. The mechanism which efficiently indexes and searches the position-specific records has to address some of the challenges. Primarily, the range and text are two unlike data types entailing diverse data structures. Secondly, the ordering and exploration techniques are not being alienated. Thirdly, the hybrid technique of combining spatial relevance and textual relevance should fetch user the top-k results.

In this paper, we present a new grading mechanism which integrates both spatial and textual significance to retrieve the query results. We put forward an innovative mixed index structure called range inverted index, which can handle the range and textual topographies of data concurrently.

To recapitulate, we recommend subsequent contributions:

- We describe the issues of scoring queries on records with range and textual topographies.
- We run through TF-IDF to compute the indexing and ordering of the records which comprises of textual significance.
- We drill *R** tree and KD tree which are efficient multidimensional indexing trees in spatial datasets.
- We have combined the spatial R^* tree and KD tree with TF-IDF a textual relevance.
- We have performed an investigational assessment on real datasets for the accuracy and scalability of these two approaches.

Location	Deview	Keywords	
Location	Review	Birthday	Breakfast
Monroe Street	R1	1	1
Washington Street	R2	1	0
W Madison Street	R3	0	1
E Villa Street	R4	1	1
E Van Buren Street	R5	0	0
E Jefferson Street	R6	0	1

Fig. 2	Reviews	containing
keywor	ds	

2 Related Work

Constructing spatial information retrieval system has created lot of interest. Range-keyword search has been explored for years as the search engines are commercialized. R tree and its alternatives are applied as range index and inverted file for text index in the majority of the index structures [5–9]. Yufei et al. developed method spatial inverted index that extending the inverted index to cope up with multidimensional data and proposed algorithm which can answer the spatial queries supported with keywords in real time which can be easily incorporated with any search engine to achieve the parallelism [10]. The popular index structures integrate range and textual indices depending on the merger schemes [11]. Among them, Felipe et al. [8] proposed scheme that blends signature file instead of inverted file into each node of the R tree. Inverted file- R^* tree (IF- R^*) and R^* -tree-inverted file (R^*-IF) [9] are spatio-textual indices that mix the R^* -tree and inverted file freely. Hariharan et al. [3] recommend KR^* tree, a framework for GIR systems focusing indexing strategies, but does not address the distributed databases. Cary et al. [6] projected SKI that assimilates R tree with an inverted index by the inclusion of location indication. The IR tree is recommended in [5] to generate the summary of the textual information of the objects to each node of the R tree, and the position term is expressed as bitmaps rather than records. An IR tree as suggested by Li and Chen stores one inverted file for all the nodes, and in [12], S2I index structure based on R tree and inverted file is recommended. The objects as suggested in [13] are laid diversely based on document frequency and infrequency of the term. [ND6] proposed Integrated Inverted Index (I3), where data space is partitioned into cells known as keyword cells based on the Quad tree structures. In [11], X. Cao and G. Cong suggest a Web Object Retrieval System (SWORS) by using IR tree and inverted file for index, which considers the range queries to obtain spatial Web objects as response. Two types of queries are supported such as location-aware top-k text retrieval (LKT) and spatial keyword group (SKG). The system proposed in reference [14] discusses the capability of amalgamation of range and text indexes and also describes the way to search the resulting index to find response. This paper suggests the usage of IR tree index and tries to bridge the gap between queries and data; it is important to support approximate keyword search on spatial database. Reference which proposed the MHR tree supports a wide range of query including range and NN queries. This paper used the R tree, the min-wise signature and the linear hashing technique for efficiently answering approximate string match queries in large spatial databases.
3 Preliminaries

3.1 Problem Definition

We presume a compilation R = (r0, r1, ..., rn) of n records, where every record R contains of a set of keywords Kr and a location Lr. Every location is characterized by a minimum bounding rectangle (MBR) even though any other random shape can be exercised. A range-keyword query is labeled as Q = (Kr; Lr), where Lr of query specifies the location characterized as one or more minimum bounding rectangles, and Kr is a cluster of keywords in the query.

3.2 Multidimensional Index

A multidimensional index, clusters the entries so as to exploit "nearness" in multidimensional space. The basic motivation for multidimensional indexing is that for efficient information retrieval. Existing multidimensional indexes can be categorized into two: *low-dimensional indexes* and *high-dimensional indexes*. The basic data structures used for indexing multidimensional datasets are KD tree, Quad tree, Grid, R^* tree. The data structures for the text used are inverted files. When user submits a geo-tagged keyword query, index structures are applied in isolation for textual part and spatial part of the query. Hence, the results are also retrieved separately, which might not be the expected results.

3.2.1 KD Tree

KD tree [15] is a data structure for storage of information to be retrieved by associative searches, where k defines the dimensionality of the search range. Figure 3 shows the point of locations and construction of KD tree. Figure 4 shows the split of KD tree.



16 18



0

2 4

8 10

12 14

3.2.2 *R** Tree

The *R* tree (Guttmann 1984) is a balanced tree structure used for multidimensional index. *R* trees are deliberated for indexing based on minimum bounding rectangles which results as sets of rectangles and other polygons. Each key stored in a leaf entry is intuitively a box, or collection of intervals, with one interval per dimension. Figure 5 shows the construction of R^* tree, and Fig. 6 demonstrates the * split of the tree.





Fig. 6 R* tree



3.2.3 Textual Index

Keyword generation: The words in the documents may appear in any inflected form, such as nature, natural, naturally. There are some words which are derived from the same family such as far, jar, car. In many circumstances, it seems as if it would be useful to search for one of these words to return record that contain another word in the set. Different algorithms have been proposed to generate keywords; popular ones are *Stemming* and *Lemmatization*.

Example: The word "Conduct" can have base form of a noun or of a verb depending on the context, e.g., "his Conduct is good" or "he conducts workshop". Lemmatization in contrast to Stemming attempts to select the correct lemma depending on the context. In this paper, we have used Lemmatization for generating keywords. Figure 7 shows the keywords generated.

4 Range Inverted Index

Various types of range-keyword queries are being used. The Boolean range query [8] q = (Lq, Kq) where Lq is a specified range and Kq is a cluster of keywords provides all places that are specified in the range Lq and that contain all the keywords in Kq as response. Diverse of this query may also score the qualifying places. The Boolean KNN query q = (Pq, Lq, k) considers three arguments; Pq is a specific point in a range, Lq is as above, and k is the number of places to return. The response includes k places, each of which contains all the keywords in Lq, ranked in increasing range distance from Pq. The top-k range query q = (Lq, Kq, k), where Lq, Kq, and k are as above, reclaims up to k places that are located in the query region Lq, now ordered according to the significance of text relevance to Kq.



Fig. 7 Calculation of inverted index

4.1 Combining Spatial and Textual Relevance

The proposed system creates hybrid range-textual index structure that integrates location index and text index to process range-keyword queries efficiently. In this system, KD tree and R^* tree are freely amalgamated with inverted file. KD tree and R^* tree are used for range queries, and inverted file is used for keywords index which is considered the most effective index for information retrieval. For every location referred in the query identified as a node by of KD tree/ R^* tree, an inverted file is created for indexing the text components of objects contained in the node. It retrieves k objects ranked according to a score that takes into consideration spatial proximity and text relevance.

Figure 8 shows the construction of hybrid tree. First range tree will be constructed based on the spatial locations. Given multiple keywords, the textual index is being created for that location.



Fig. 8 Hybrid tree



Fig. 9 Flowchart for query processing

4.2 Query Processing

The range-keyword query can be partitioned into query keywords Kq and the query location Lq. To execute range-keyword queries, Lq is to be converted into to a set of cells Cq. Cq is the cluster of cells overlap with the record at location Lq. After calculating Cq, Tq is the set of terms defined as follows: $Tq = Kq \cup Cq$ for every query. The algorithm proposed for range query in a hybrid approach is as given in Fig. 9.

5 Experimental Results

In this section, we experimentally evaluate the performance and accuracy of the hybrid approach of range inverted query. KD tree and R^* tree are combined with IDF and are compared for their accuracy and scalability.

We have used Yelp datasets for our experimental study. The description of the dataset is as follows:

- 4.1 M reviews and 947 k tips by 1 M users for 144 k businesses
- 1.1 M business attributes, e.g., hours, parking availability, ambience
- Aggregated check-ins over time for each of the 125 k businesses

The 229,907 reviews of various restaurants were chosen as the dataset for all the experiments. Each review consisted of two parts, text information and location information. The text portion of the review is the text of the review in natural language. The location information contains the latitude and longitude of the objects for which the review was written. The location information in the review is never modified. Using this dataset, the accuracy and scalability of the proposed system are analyzed. The accuracy of the system is analyzed by increasing the number of keywords and, time taken to retrieve results is measured. In order to measure scalability, the dataset size is increased keeping the number of keywords constant and time taken to retrieve results is measured.

In order to perform the tests, a machine with Intel core i3-6100 CPU with four cores and each core clocked at 3.7 GHz, and 8192 MB of RAM running Microsoft Windows 10 Pro was used. No other processes were running on the target machine throughout the period of testing.

The first step is the process of keyword generation. The text part of each review is taken, and keywords are extracted from it by using Lemmatization. Now, each review will contain three parts, the raw review text, the location information, and a list containing all the keywords that have been generated for that particular review. The information is inserted into a multidimensional index tree: R^* tree and KD tree individually. The tree will not be serialized and placed on a disk but instead will be kept in the main memory itself. Once the tree has been constructed, the system will run *auto-generated range queries* on the tree and results are considered in terms of time taken to complete the query.

For each review, we generate a query, where the query string is the review text and we set the query range as a circle with its center being the location of the object, and the radius of query range is randomly assigned between 10 and 100 km. Once all the queries are generated, the system will run the query on the tree individually and the time taken to retrieve the top-k results is compared.

For every query, the query keywords are extracted using Lemmatization. In view of the location, the minimum bounding box is calculated and this bounding box is specified as a range query to the tree and records pertaining to that range are retrieved. The keywords of these results and the query keywords are used to rank the reviews based on TF-IDF. Once the keywords are assigned with scores, the records are ordered and top-k results are presented to the user, with the most relevant record first and the least relevant record at the last.

6 Performance Analysis

Keywords are varied from 10 to 200 with the datasets varying from 1000 to 10000. Time taken for searching query keywords on KD tree and R^* tree is compared.

Figure 10 above shows the comparison of KD tree and R^* tree for varying keywords ranging from 10 to 200 and with constant dataset size of 10,000. Performance of both the trees has similar characteristics as shown in the graph (Fig. 10). We can observe that R^* tree takes lesser time than KD tree for varying number of keywords. In Fig. 10, the difference in the performance of both the trees is similar, and the performance of both the trees becomes constant after 100 keywords.

Figure 11 shows the comparison of KD tree and R^* tree for varying keywords ranging from 10 to 200 and with constant dataset size of 1,000. After 100 keywords, the time taken by KD tree increases exponentially, whereas it increases



linearly in case of R^* tree as shown in Fig. 11. Hence, we can conclude that performance of R^* tree increases with the increase in dataset size.

The trees are also compared for the varying number of dataset size from 1000 to 30,000. Figure 12 shows the performance of trees with 10 keywords with varying dataset size. Here also we can see that the performance of R^* tree is 1.15% better than the KD tree. Figure 13 shows the performance of 100 keywords with varying dataset size. Performance of R^* tree is 1.14% better than the KD tree. This also shows the overall performance of keyword query with TF-IDF.



7 Conclusion

In this paper, a new fusion technique of integrated range and textual query significance is suggested. R^* -tree and KD tree are considered for range queries, and inverted index for keyword index is used. Both the range trees for multidimensional indexing are combined with the inverted index tree for keywords. These trees are compared for their accuracy and scalability. Performance of R^* tree both in terms of varying data size and varying datasets is considerable. In this experiment, the trees are constructed for the range mentioned in the datasets before execution of the query. The construction time of R^* tree takes considerable amount of time when compared to KD tree.

References

- Singh, V., Venkatesha, S., Singh, A.K.: Geo-clustering of images with missing geotags. In: Proceedings of IEEE International Conference on Granular Computing, pp. 420–425 (2010)
- Singh, V., Bhattacharya, A., Singh, A.K.: Querying spatial patterns. In: Proceedings 13th International Conference on Extending Database Technology: Advance Database Technology, pp. 418–429 (2010)
- Hariharan, R., Hore, B., Li, C., Mehrotra, S.: Processing spatial-keyword (SK) queries in geographic information retrieval (GIR) systems. In: 19th International Conference on Scientific and Statistical Database Management (SSDBM 2007), Banff, Alta., pp. 16–16 (2007)
- Cao, X., Chen, L., Cong, G., Jensen, C.S., Qu, Q., Skovsgaard, A., Wu, D., Yiu, M.L.: Spatial keyword querying. J. Proc. VLDB Endow. 6(3), 217–228 (2012)
- Lee, W.-C., Zheng, B., Li, Z., Lee, K.C.K., Wang, X., Lee, D.L.: Ir-tree: an efficient index for geographic document search. IEEE Trans. Knowl. Data Eng. 23, 585–599 (2011)
- Cary, A., Wolfson, O., Rishe, N.: Efficient and scalable method for processing top-k spatial Boolean queries. In: Gertz, M., Ludäscher, B. (eds.) Scientific and Statistical Database Management. SSDBM 2010. Lecture Notes in Computer Science, vol. 6187. Springer, Berlin (2010)
- 7. Göbel, R., Henrich, A., Niemann, R., Blank, D.: A hybrid index structure for geo-textual searches. In: CIKM, pp. 1625–1628 (2009)
- Felipe, I.D., Hristidis, V., Rishe, N.: Keyword search on spatial databases. In: Proceeding ICDE'08 Proceedings of the 2008 IEEE 24th International Conference on Data Engineering, pp. 656–665 (2008)
- 9. Hariharan, R., Hore, B., Li, C., Mehrotra, S.: Processing spatial-keyword (sk) queries in geographic information retrieval (gir) systems. In: SSDBM (2007)
- Tao, Y., Sheng, C.: Fast nearest neighbor search using keywords. IEEE Trans. Data Mining Knowl. Eng. 26(4) (2014)
- Cao, X., Cong, G., Jensen, C.S., Ng, J.J., Ooi, B.C., Phan, N.T., Wu, D..: SWORS: a system for the efficient retrieval of relevant spatial web objects. In: PVLDB, vol. 5(12) pp. 1914– 1917 (2012)
- Li, W., Chen, C.X.: Efficient data modeling and querying system for multi-dimensional spatial data. In: Proceeding of 16th ACM SIGSPATIAL International Conference on Advance Geographic Information Systems, pp. 58:1–58:4 (2008)

- Vaid, S., Jones, C.B., Joho, H., Sanderson, M.: Spatio-textual indexing for geographical search on the web. In: Bauzer Medeiros, C., Egenhofer, M.J., Bertino, E. (eds) Advances in Spatial and Temporal Databases. SSTD 2005. LNCS, vol. 3633. Springer, Berlin (2005)
- Alsubaiee, S., Behm, A., Li, C.: Supporting location-based approximate-keyword queries. In: ACM GIS' 10, 2–5 Nov 2010, San Jose, CA, USA (2010)
- Aung, S.N., Sein, M.M.: Geo-textual index structure for approximate keyword search within given range on spatial database. In: Proceedings of Seventh The IIER International Conference, Singapore (2015). ISBN: 978-93-84209-80-354

Performance Forecasting of National Stock Exchange of India Using Symbolic Versus Numerical Methodology

Sachin Kamley, Shailesh Jaloree and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract Though stock market holds instability in nature and due to instability, its knowledge representation and forecast procedure is exceptionally complicated. For the previous couple of decades, various tools and techniques are developed to forecast symbolic and numerical stock prices. However, these tools and techniques have been totally failed to make inferences from stock market knowledge base. During this direction, backward reasoning and back-propagation methods are adopted for symbolic and numerical forecasting, respectively. This study mainly highlights the performance comparison of both the approaches. The common LISP 3.0 and MATLAB R2011a tool are used to make inferences from stock market knowledge base. Finally, experimental results had shown that back-propagation method.

Keywords Stock market • Artificial intelligence • Backward reasoning Back-propagation • Common LISP 3.0 • MATLABR2011a

1 Introduction

From the beginning, stock price forecasting has become one of the popular subject areas in financial time series forecasting. This is due to the fact that various business analysts, investors, and researchers have paid attention to the longer-term estimation of stock values [1, 2, 18].

S.A.T.I, Vidisha, MP, India e-mail: skamley@gmail.com

S. Jaloree

R. S. Thakur Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

S. Kamley (🖂)

Department of Appl. Math's and C.Sc, S.A.T.I, Vidisha, MP, India e-mail: shailesh_jaloree@rediffmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent* Advancement on Computer and Communication, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_19

In artificial intelligence (AI), especially artificial neural network (ANN) is populated as most powerful prediction technique which has mystery to solve stock market problems. The most important characteristics of ANN have an ability to determine nonlinear relationship in the input data set without a prior assumption of the knowledge of relation between the input and the output [3]. An expert system (ES) is one of the oldest and powerful areas of AI that has shown its importance and utility in designing successful business applications [4]. Throughout the previous few years, the stock market has shown its worthiness in the fastest growing economy, but accurate share price prediction is still challenging and difficult process. Previously, various algorithms have been proposed for symbolic and numerical forecast, but no authors have attempted the comparison of both approaches. Some important concerns for this research study are :

- (1) This study employs a comparative study between backward reasoning and back-propagation methods.
- (2) Various fundamental, technical, and macroeconomic parameters are considered to model stock market knowledge base.
- (3) To aware stock analysts, investors and researchers by providing a clear picture of (AI) tools and techniques.
- (4) Improving the forecasting performance of stock market by the selection of an appropriate strategy.

2 Literature Review

This section briefly describes the some significant researchers' works over the years.

Dutta et al. [5] have presented ANN approach for nonlinear time series forecasting. However, they have considered the weekly close prices of BSE SENSEX as input data and future day price as output data. Finally, their experimental results showed the very low RMSE and MAE, i.e., 4.82 and 3.93%, respectively.

Hammady and Rizka [6] have proposed NN model to predict stock prices of Egypt's Stock Exchange (ESE) index as Commercial International Bank (CIB). The proposed system is trained using recurrent neural network based on ARIMA analysis as differentiating the CIB data. However, the nonlinear version of ARIMA (1, 1, 2) is identified and examined using ACF and PACF plots. Finally, experimental results stated that NN had excellent forecasting accuracy over ARIMA model.

Zarandi et al. [7] have presented fuzzy rule-based approach to predict the worth of the stock market. They have used fuzzy linguistic variables for determining the quantitative judgment. Therefore, knowledge base is mapped based on various fundamental stock variables such as capital structure, employee's knowledge, customer capital. At last, system has great extensive power to predict stock prices in terms of linguistic variables. Patel et al. [8] have presented the fusion of machine learning techniques for predicting the movement of an Indian stock market. However, the techniques used such as ANN, support vector machine (SVM), random forest (RF) and Naïve Bayes. Finally, experimental results had stated that performance accuracy for all models is improved when technical indicators are considered as input variables.

Mohamed et al. [9] have used forward and backward reasoning inference methods to predict multiple-input linear and nonlinear time series data. In their study, they have considered various fundamental and technical parameters to map the stock knowledge base. Therefore, the proposed approaches show outstanding performance over other methods.

Olivera et al. [10] have presented the short-term forecasting model to predict the movement of Petrobras, Brazil market based on NN approach. They have considered the close prices as input parameters, and the network is trained based on three different window sizes. Moreover, the best prediction accuracy is achieved using window size 3, i.e., 93.62%.

Tsai and Wang [11] have proposed MLP model to predict the future worth of the stock index. In their study, they have considered various macroeconomic indicators such as inflation rate, interest rate to model the stock database. Finally, the proposed model had shown 78% prediction accuracy over other approaches.

Bola et al. [12] have used ANN and Bayesian network (BN) approaches to forecast the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). In their study, they have considered various technical parameters to model stock sample database. Finally, experimental results stated that BN approach had shown 78.13% prediction accuracy over ANN approach.

Kamley et al. [13] have presented comparative study between forward and backward chaining techniques over global stock exchanges. In their study, they have considered various macroeconomic indicators such as gross domestic product (GDP), inflation rate, unemployment rate, and interest rate and stock knowledge base is mapped with 50 expert rules. At last, experimental results stated that backward chaining has excellent performance over forward chaining approach.

3 Proposed Methodologies

3.1 Backward Reasoning

Backward reasoning procedure firstly begins by searching the top-level goal or required goal. However, the procedure continues to find the required goal, i.e., whatever the facts and evidences are needed to prove the required goal. Algorithm 1 describes the backward reasoning procedure in detail [4, 14].

Algorithm 1 Backward Reasoning Procedure

- (1) Start
- (2) Check to see all the given facts against the knowledge base and compare with the required goal.
- (3) Pop out all corresponding precedents (Comes from the Rules that is "Fired" in Previous Steps and Called "Sub-Goals").
- (4) If no precedents and rules are exhausted:
 - (4.1) Declare preposition can't be proved (based on existing information in the rule base).
 - (4.2) If all precedents are true:
 - (4.2.1) Proved and declare Success.
 - (4.2.2) Finally compile a list of sub-goals must be resolved by the procedure.

(5) Stop

3.2 Back-Propagation Learning Algorithm

Back-propagation is one of the well-known and popular learning algorithms that adjust the weights in the network by propagating weight changes in the backward direction (i.e., output nodes to the input nodes). The most important capability of back-propagation learning is that it is easy to understand and is generally applicable in classification and prediction problems. Algorithm 2 describes back-propagation learning process [4, 14].

Algorithm 2 Back-Propagation Learning Process

- (1) Start
- (2) Variable selection and apply data normalization step.
- (3) Accept the input for training purpose as well as decide desired output.
- (4) Perform some weighted summation and apply it to input layer neurons to hidden layer neurons using by transfer functions (Sigmoid).
- (5) Calculate the output at output layer.
- (6) Calculate error (i.e. Actual Value- Predicted Value).
- (7) If there are errors then changing the weights and biases again by applying the same procedures i.e. go to step 4.
- (8) Finally check that errors are acceptable.
- (9) Stop

4 Experimental Results

For the last seven decades, List Processing (LISP) has been widely used for designing the commercial expert system applications. In this study, common LISP 3.0 editor is selected for the implementation of backward reasoning algorithm. However, the knowledge base is encoded in the form of all applicable rules [4, 15]. The inference engine (IE) is in charge of looking all the applicable rules within the knowledge base and updated the actual fact base once execution of rules. Rule invocation environment for backward reasoning is shown by Fig. 1.

Figure 2 shows the relationship graph among iterations, facts, and rules.

Figure 2 depicts that as increasing no. of rules, no. of iterations also increasing. Forecasting performance of backward reasoning method is given in Table 1.

The results given in Table 1 depicts that forecasting performance of the stock market as well as provided an opportunity to stock users to invest money in the market and earn profit regarding decision. Figure 3 shows performance graph of back-propagation training algorithm.



Fig. 1 Rule invocation environment for backward reasoning



Fig. 2 A relationship graph among iterations, facts, and rules

S. No.	Fact	Inference result	Investment decision
1	Falling gross domestic product and inflation rate	Falling NSE	Buying
2	Falling oil prices and gross domestic product	Falling NSE share prices	Buying
3	Falling inflation rate	Rising open price	Selling
4	Rising gross domestic product	Falling NSE and close price	Buying
5	Falling unemployment rate	Rising NSE share prices	Selling
6	Rising foreign direct investment	Rising NSE and high price	Selling
7	Rising open price and close price	Rising high price	Selling
8	Falling unemployment rate and volume	Falling NSE shares	Buying
9	Rising high prices	Rising NSE share prices and volume	Selling
10	Rising oil prices	Falling NSE	Buying
11	Rising dividend and EPS	Falling NSE	Buying
12	Falling open price and high price	Falling close price	Holding
13	Falling foreign direct investment and PE ratio	Falling NSE shares and low price	Holding
14	Rising PE ratio and falling open price	Rising NSE	Selling

 Table 1 Forecasting performance of backward reasoning method [16, 18]

Figure 3 depicts that in the beginning mean square error (MSE) is very high [17]. Thus, best validation performance got at epoch 9. Table 2 shows forecasting performance of back-propagation training algorithm.

Finally, back-propagation method had an overall 92.5% accuracy, while back-ward reasoning method had 77% accuracy.



Best Validation Performance is 337.8323 at epoch 9

Fig. 3 Performance graph of back-propagation training algorithm

Date	Actual output	Predicted output	Forecasting error (%)	Investment decision
12/01/2016	2377	2365	0.6	Selling
12/02/2016	2384	2379	0.25	Buying
12/05/2016	2391	2397	0.3	Holding
12/06/2016	2447	2432	0.75	Buying
12/07/2016	2457	2440	0.85	Buying
12/08/2016	2453	2462	0.45	Holding
12/09/2016	2461	2449	0.6	Selling
12/12/2016	2499	3006	0.3	Holding
12/13/2016	2506	2498	0.4	Holding
12/14/2016	2545	2550	0.25	Buying
12/01/2016	2559	2564	0.25	Buying
12/02/2016	2526	2517	0.45	Holding
12/05/2016	2510	2499	0.55	Buying
12/15/2016	2502	2512	0.5	Selling
12/16/2016	2584	2571	0.65	Buying
12/19/2016	2592	2598	0.3	Holding
12/20/2016	2598	2587	0.55	Holding
12/21/2016	2464	2462	0.1	Holding
12/22/2016	2577	2582	0.25	Buying
12/23/2016	2580	2571	0.45	Holding

 Table 2
 Forecasting performance of back-propagation training algorithm [16, 18]

5 Conclusion and Future Scopes

In this study, backward reasoning and back-propagation learning approaches are implemented for symbolic and numerical forecast of stock data. However, various technical and macroeconomic indicators are considered for forecasting the stock performance. Based on the results, it is observed that back-propagation training algorithm has outstanding forecasting performance as compared to backward chaining strategy. The back-propagation training algorithm has vast capability to train the large data size networks and has very good predictive power to forecast the output patterns. On the other side, backward reasoning approach takes long time to infer the goal from the large knowledge base as well as modeling is too much complicated. Therefore, rule enhancement process also degrades the performance of expert systems. In the near future, fuzzy- and frame-based approaches will be considered to numeric and symbolic forecast, respectively.

References

- 1. Brown, D.P., Jennings, R.H.: On technical analysis. Rev. Financ. Stud. 2(4), 527-551 (1989)
- Velumoni, D., Rau, S.S.: Cognitive intelligence based expert system for predicting stock markets using prospect theory. Indian J. Sci. Technol. 9(10), 1–6 (2016)
- 3. Rich, E., Knight, K.: Artificial Intelligence, 3rd edn. McGraw-Hill, New York (1991)
- 4. Russell, S., Norvig, P.: Artificial Intelligence: A Modern Approach, 3rd edn. Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, NJ (2009)
- Dutta, G., Jha, P., Laha, A.K., Mohan, N.: Artificial neural network models for forecasting stock price index in the Bombay stock exchange. J. Emerg. Market Finan. 5(3), 283–295 (2006)
- El-Hammady, A.I., Abo-Rizka, M.: Neural network based stock market forecasting. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Netw. Secur. (IJCSNS) 11(8), 204–212 (2011)
- 7. Zarandi, F.M., Neda, M.H., Bastani, S.: A fuzzy rule based expert system for evaluating intellectual capital. Adv. Fuzzy Syst. 12, 1–11 (2012)
- Patel, J., Shah, S., Thakkar, P., Kotecha, K.: Predicting stock market index using fusion of machine learning techniques. Expert Syst. Appl. 42(4), 2162–2172 (2015)
- Mohamed, T., Gayar, N.E., Atiya, A.F.: Forward and backward forecasting ensembles for the estimation of time series missing data. Artif. Neural Netw. Pattern Recogn. (ANNPR) 8774, 93–104 (2014)
- Oliveira, F.A., Nobre, E.N., Zarate, L.E.: Applying artificial neural networks to prediction of stock price and improvement of the directional prediction index—case study of PETR4, Petrobas, Brazil. Expert Syst. Appl. 40, 7596–7606 (2013)
- Tsai, C.F., Wang. S.P.: Stock price forecasting by hybrid machine learning techniques. In: Proceedings of the International Multi-Conference of Engineers and Computer Scientists (IMECS), vol. 1. Hong Kong, 18–20 March 2009
- Bola, A.A., Adesola, A.G., Olusayo, O.E., Adebisi, A.A.: Forecasting movement of the nigerian stock exchange all share index using artificial neural and Bayesian networks. J. Finan. Invest. Anal. 2(1), 41–59 (2013)
- Kamley, S., Jaloree, S., Thakur, R.S.: Performance comparison between forward and backward chaining rule based expert system approaches over global stock exchanges. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Infor. Secur. (IJCSIS) 14(3), 74–81 (2016)

- Markic, B., Tomic, D., Pavlovic, I.: An expert system approach in stock selection attractive for investment. In: 13th International Research/Expert Conference, Trends in the Development of Machinery and Associated Technology, pp. 297–300. Hammamet, Tunisia 16–21 (2009)
- Burney, S.M.A., Mahmood, N.: A brief history of mathematical logic and applications of logic in CS/IT. J. Sci. 34(1), 61–75 (2006)
- 16. Online Stock Market Dataset Available on Yahoo Finance Site. http://www.yahoofinance. com
- Tiwari, V., Tiwari, V., Gupta, S., Tiwari, R.: Association rule mining: a graph based approach for mining frequent itemsets. In: International Conference on Networking and Information Technology (ICNIT), pp. 309–313. IEEE (2010)
- 18. Online Macroeconomic Variables Data Available on Site. http://www.indexmondi.com

Comparative Study of Chronic Kidney Disease Prediction Using Different Classification Techniques

Pritha Tikariha and Prashant Richhariya

Abstract There are many fields where data mining is effectively applicable like marketing retail e-business, which has made it noticeable to the alternate sectors also. One of such sector is healthcare. Healthcare sector has colossal data, but those data are not utilized in a productive way, which make it knowledge poor. Also they lack in a proficient tool which helps to discover the concealed relationship among the available data. This paper presents analysis on some data mining techniques particularly in chronic kidney diseases (CKDs). K-nearest neighbor (KNN), C4.5, support vector machine (SVM), and Naïve Bayes classification algorithm are applied on the same dataset. The experimental result implemented in Weka tool shows that the KNN algorithm gives more accurate result when contrasted with different algorithms.

Keywords Classification \cdot KNN \cdot Naïve Bayes \cdot Chronic kidney diseases SVM \cdot C4.5

1 Introduction

Data is extremely significant for healthcare services; however before utilizing that data, it should be changed into information. Medicinal data mining gives an approach to explore the concealed relationship present in the dataset of the medical realm. This relationship can be utilized for the diagnosis purpose. Be that as it may, these medicinal datasets are distant, heterogeneous, and expansive. They should be organized and integrated to form a medical information system. Data mining technology gives an approach to accomplish these things.

P. Tikariha (🖂) · P. Richhariya

Department of Computer Science and Engineering, Chhatrapati Shivaji Institute of Technology, Durg, Chhattisgarh, India e-mail: prithatikariha1@gmail.com

P. Richhariya e-mail: prashantrichhariya@csitdurg.in

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_20 195

Patients normally contrast in various medical, physical, and economic attributes, for instance, by age, seriousness of illness, inconveniences, and speed of recovery [1]. Patients who suffers from a particular disease from quite a while or the patients who are raced into the hospitals for a few crises ought to be categories as the group with comparable needs. These groups of patients have heterogeneous medicinal services needs and therefore require a more detailed classification model. This heterogeneous healthcare need requires more effective and efficient management of the data. Accordingly from this point of view, these heterogeneous groups must be separated into small homogeneous gatherings. Homogeneity brings the advantages of increased certainty in clinical diagnosis, anticipating individual patient needs and resource utilization.

Chronic kidney diseases (CKDs) sometimes also known as chronic kidney failure is a slow but progressive loss of kidney functions over a period of many years. Ultimately, it prompts to permanent kidney failure. Kidney disease is a standout among the most widely recognized disease, and frequently it is left undetected in the early stages. It is basic for individuals to recognize about it exactly when their kidney is 75% damaged than of the normal. As the kidney disease propels, the risk level of waste fluid can quickly grow in the body. On the off chance that it is analyzed at the end stages, it is not possible for the patient to get by without regular dialysis or kidney transplant. So, early diagnosis of CKD is an imperative task.

Many classification techniques have been applied for the prediction of CKD. In this study, CKD is predicted using four classification algorithms, K-nearest neighbor (KNN), support vector machine (SVM), C4.5, and Naïve Bayes. Their performance is evaluated on the premise of accuracy, precision, recall, and F-measure.

The rest of the paper is organized in the accompanying way: Sect. 2 audits the past work done on the endless kidney ailment. Section 3 portrays the methodology and the dataset. Section 4 incorporates the experimental setup comes about; lastly, Sect. 5 has conclusion of the research work and the future extension.

2 Literature Survey

Kourou et al. [2] researched on a study of machine learning applications in cancer disease and its prediction. In the research, they reviewed various recent machine learning approaches for the prediction of cancer disease. They have presented a survey of recent work done as such far in prediction of cancer diseases.

Baby et al. [3] proposed a system for diagnosis and prediction based on predictive mining. They have employed a dataset on kidney disease for analysis using Orange software. They have studied the performance of many machine learning algorithms such as AD Trees, J48, K-star, Naïve Bayes, Random forest. They have presented a statistical analysis for predicting kidney disease using these algorithms. According to their observation, K-star and random forest algorithms perform best for their dataset, where ROC value is 1.

Lakshmi et al. [4] have put their efforts to evaluate the performance of various data mining techniques for predicting survivability of kidney dialysis. They have applied various data mining techniques such as artificial neural networks (ANN), Decision tree and Logical Regression to mine the relation between many variables and patients survival. They have compared the performance of these data mining techniques for extracting the knowledge about the kidney dialysis survivability. These techniques ids are tested on the data collected from various dialysis centers. The results are analyzed, and ANN is marked as the best algorithm for kidney dialysis survivability with better accuracy and performance.

Shah et al. [5] researched on various data mining techniques for predicting the survival of kidney dialysis patients. Many data mining techniques are used to extract the knowledge about the patients and kidney dialysis. Knowledge is mined in the form of decision rules using two data mining techniques. Data mining algorithms are applied on the individual visits of the patient's dataset rather than the aggregate dataset. Most invariant patients form a signature for making the decision rules. It is observed that the performance of the data mining algorithms is much higher when applied on the individual visit dataset as compared to the aggregate dataset. The accuracy of prediction for individual visit-based rule sets is significantly higher over the aggregate-based rule sets.

Dhayanand et al. [6] have done a comparative research on SVM and ANN to predict kidney diseases. They compared the performance of these two data mining algorithms on the basis of execution time and accuracy. From the analysis, it is found that the ANN algorithm performs better than the SVM algorithm for the dataset he used.

3 Methodology

In this research work, four classification techniques are applied on the dataset to predict the CKD in the patient. The classifier applied is KNN, SVM, C4.5, and Naïve Bayes. These four classifiers are applied on the dataset to predict the disease, i.e., CKD and non-CKD. Performance of the each classifier is assessed on the premise of accuracy, precision, recall, and F-measure.

The working of the architecture is as follows: The dataset is extracted from the UCI repository. Extracted dataset contains many missing values. To expel the missing values, filter is applied on the dataset. Once the missing values are expelled, different classification algorithm is applied on the preprocessed data. Result of the evaluation will determine the best classifier algorithm for this dataset by contrasting the assessment parameters (Fig. 1).



Fig. 1 Architecture of predictive data mining

3.1 Dataset and Preprocessing

The dataset is gathered from the UCI repository and fed as input to the Weka tool for predicting the CKD and non-CKD. The data is gathered from Apollo Hospital in Tamil Nadu in July 2015. Dataset contains 400 instances which are already classified as CKD and non-CKD. There are 250 instances delegated CKD and 150 as non-CKD. It has 25 nominal and numeric attributes, for example, age, circulatory strain, sugar, potassium, hemoglobin. Out of 25 characteristics, last one is the class which can be either CKD or non-CKD [7]. The dataset is found to have lots of missing values. Missing qualities from the dataset are expelled in the Weka tool utilizing unsupervised attribute filter. Replace missing values filter replaces the nominal and numeric missing qualities in a dataset by taking mean and modes from the training data [8]. Once the missing qualities are expelled, each of the four classification algorithms is applied on the preprocessed information.

3.2 Evaluation Parameters

Accuracy: Accuracy is defined as the number of predictions which are correct.

$$Acc = \frac{(Tp + Tn)}{(Tp + Tn + Fp + Fn)}$$
(1)

Precision: Precision is defined as the probability by which the randomly selected instance is relevant.

$$Pre = \frac{Tp}{(Tp + Fp)}$$
(2)

Comparative Study of Chronic Kidney Disease Prediction Using ...

Recall: Recall is defined as the probability that the randomly selected instance is relevant in the search.

$$Re = \frac{Tp}{(Tp + Fn)}$$
(3)

F-measure: F-measure is calculated as the harmonic mean of precision and recall.

$$F_{\text{mean}} = \frac{2 * (\text{Pre } * \text{Re})}{(\text{Pre } + \text{Re})}$$
(4)

where,

- Tp true positive, i.e., CKD is classified as CKD.
- Fn false negative, i.e., CKD is classified as non-CKD.
- Fp false positive, i.e., non-CKD class will classify as CKD.
- Tn true negative, i.e., non-CKD class will classify as non-CKD.

3.3 Classification Algorithms

KNN

KNN stands for K-nearest neighbor. It is a nonparametric lazy learning algorithm; this means that it does not make any presumptions on the basic information dispersion. It is an instance-based learning algorithm. The input to the algorithm is example of K closest training set. Output of the algorithm is a class membership. K in KNN varies from 1, 2, 3... n. When K = 1, the class is single nearest neighbor. In a simple weighting plan, singular neighbor is allocated to a weight of 1/d if d is the distance to the neighbor. The shortest distance calculated between the two neighbors is always plotted as a straight line, and this shortest distance is called Euclidean distance [9].

• SVM

Support vector machine is a supervised machine learning algorithm. It is used for both classification and regression. It is based on nonlinear and linear classification. SVM algorithm builds a model which classifies the new example to one of the training classes. Thus, it is also called non-probabilistic binary linear class [10]. An SVM model is represented as mapped points in space so that the different categories are separated from each other as wide as possible. New examples are then classified into one of the categories depending upon which side they fall.

• J48

C4.5 decision for classification is implemented using a simple J48 classifier in Weka tool. It is a statistical classifier. It is the most approachable classifier for any classification problem. It constructs a binary tree from the training data. Each node of the tree splits into sub-node in such a way that the sub-tree formed is enriched in one or the other class. Once the tree is built, all the tuples in the database are classified according to the tree [11].

• Naïve Bayes

The Naïve Bayes algorithm is a simple probabilistic classifier which is based on Bayes theorem [12]. It is a type of supervised learning algorithm which uses the method of maximum likelihood. It generates a probability set calculating and counting the frequencies of the values on the dataset. The algorithm assumes that all the attributes are independent given the value of the class variable. It constructs a class model from some finite set. One of the advantages of Naïve Bayes is that it requires very small number of training data to calculate the parameters required for classification.

4 Experimental Results

This work is carried on Weka tool. The Waikato Environment for Knowledge Analysis (Weka) is one of the best tools for machine learning. It has many inbuilt algorithms; however, in the meantime it permits the analysts to implement their own particular algorithms. The preprocessed data is taken as input to the Weka tool, and four classification algorithms are applied on it. The performance of the classifiers is assessed on the premise of different evaluation parameters. The performance of the classifiers is evaluated on the basis of various evaluation parameters (Table 1).

Table 1 shows the accuracy of KNN is highest, i.e., 98.5% when contrasted with the rest of the classifiers. Below there are the graphs which demonstrate the results of various evaluation parameters when the preprocessed dataset is applied on the Weka tool (Figs. 2, 3, 4, and 5).

Table 1 Experimental	Classifier	Evaluation parameter				
on dataset		Accuracy (%)	Precision	Recall	F-measure	
	KNN	98.5	0.985	0.985	0.985	
	SVM	97.75	0.979	0.978	0.978	
	Naïve Bayes	94.5	0.951	0.945	0.946	
	C4.5	96.75	0.967	0.968	0.967	



Fig. 2 Accuracy graph



Fig. 3 Precision graph



Fig. 4 Recall graph



Fig. 5 F-measure graph

5 Conclusion and Future Work

This paper aims at the comparative study of various classification algorithms using Weka tool. Classifiers utilized for this review are KNN, Naïve Bayes, SVM, and C4.5. Dataset of CKD is taken as an input for the Weka tool to assess the performance of all the classifier. KNN gives best results for accuracy, precision, and F-measure, whereas SVM shows good result while calculating recall value. From

the analysis, it is presumed that KNN performs superior to different classifiers for predicting CKDs.

KNN gives an accuracy of 98.5%; there is an extent of other evolutionary techniques which can enhance the execution of the classifiers. For early prediction of the CKD, a decision support system is required as very little work is done in a similar territory.

References

- 1. Tiwari, B., Kumar, A.: Role based access control through on-demand classification of electronic health record. Int. J. Electron. Healthc. (IJEH) 8(1), 9–24 (2015)
- Kourou, K., Exarchos, T.P., Exarchos, K.P., Karamouzis, M.V., Fotiadis, D.I.: Machine learning applications in cancer prognosis and prediction. Comput. Struct. Biotechnol. J. 13, 8–17 (2015)
- 3. Baby, P.S., Vital, T.P.: Statistical analysis and predicting kidney diseases using machine learning algorithms. Int. J. Eng. Res. Technol. 4, (2015)
- Lakshmi, K.R., Nagesh, Y., VeeraKrishna, M.: Performance comparison of three data mining techniques for predicting kidney dialysis survivability. Int. J. Adv. Eng. Technol. 7, 242–254 (2014)
- Kusiak, A., Dixon, B., Shah, S.: Predicting survival time for kidney dialysis patients: a data mining approach. 311–327 (2005)
- Vijayarani, S., Dhayanand, S.: Kidney disease prediction using SVM and ANN algorithms. Int. J. Comput. Bus. Res. 6, (2015)
- 7. UCI repository: archive.ics.uci.edu/ml/datasets/chronic_kidney_disease
- 8. WEKA Tool: www.cs.waikato.ac.nz/ml/weka/downloading.html
- Leung, R.K.K., Wang, Y., Ma, R.C., Luk, A.O., Lam, V., Ng, M.: Using a multi-staged strategy based on machine learning and mathematical modeling to predict genotype phenotype risk patterns in diabetic kidney disease: a prospective case–control cohort analysis. BMC Nephrol. vol. 14, (2013)
- Sinha, P., Sinha, P.: Comparative study of chronic kidney disease prediction using SVM and KNN. Int. J. Eng. Res. Technol. 4, (2015)
- 11. Othman, M.F., Yau, T.M.S.: Comparison of different classification techniques using WEKA for breast cancer. In: Biomed 06, IFMBE Proceedings, vol. 15, pp. 520–523. (2007)
- Bala, S., Kumar, K.: A literature review on kidney disease prediction using data mining classification technique. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Mob. Comput. 3, 960–967 (2014)

Compressed Medical Image Transmission in Telemedicine Architecture

Vibha Tiwari, Prashant P. Bansod and Abhay Kumar

Abstract To implement widespread use of Telemedicine services, high data rate supporting networks are required. In this work, Telemedicine network architecture has been implemented using existing widely available networks such as WPAN, WLAN, and LAN. To transfer huge size medical images on such networks, it is imperative to use suitable compression techniques. Compressive Sensing technique has been used in this work which reduces the image scanning duration so as to comfort the patient and reduces the storage and transmission time as well. The transmission times for various considered network scenarios have been obtained. Real-time WPAN transmission of images has been done using Bluetooth L2CAP protocol. A client and server are established to implement transmission on LAN and WLAN networks. It is observed that suitable quality of US and MRI images has been obtained after compression at reduced transmission times.

Keywords Telemedicine network architecture • Medical image compression Compressed sensing

V. Tiwari (🖂)

P. P. Bansod

A. Kumar

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

Medi-Caps University, Indore, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: getvibha@gmail.com

Biomedical Engineering Department, Shri G. S. Institute of Technology and Science, Indore, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ppbansod43@gmail.com

School of Electronics, Devi Ahilya Vishwavidyalaya, Indore, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: dr.abhaykumar@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_21

1 Introduction

Moving toward fifth generation of wireless systems, ubiquitous high-speed data network with 1 Gbps data rate and less than 1 ms latency will enable provision of faster global health care services. Body implantable medical devices (IMDs) and physiological parameter measuring sensors can be used to transmit vital information for earlier diagnosis and planned treatment of critical disease [1]. Regular monitoring of patient's health record and better consultation may be obtained from specialized practitioners residing at any distant place, if high-speed data network is available.

Millimeter wave with massive MIMO consisting of hundreds of antenna array elements promises to provide more than 1 Gbps of data rate with reliable backhaul links [2]. Existing 2.5G and 3G packet data services supports data rate of 20–40 kbps and >100 kbps, respectively. 4G LTE supports data rate of about 100 Mbps in uplink and 50 Mbps in downlink with 20 MHz bandwidth. To implement Telemedicine network architecture, apart from licensed, unlicensed services are becoming more popular as it is cheaper and provides considerable data rate. Next-generation high-speed providing Wireless Local Area Network (WLAN) standard based on multi-user MIMO and OFDMA technique promises to support 1 Gbps rate [3].

Body Area Network (BAN) covering a range of 2 m allows collecting physiological information like glucose level, cardiac activity, blood pressure and pulse rate of human body using low-power IMDs or sensors [4] and then this information can be transmitted to far places using Wireless Personal Area Network (WPAN) gateways connecting Internet. By the end of the year 2020, with efficient machine-to-machine (M2M) communication using heterogeneous BAN, WLAN, LAN, or cellular 3G/4G/5G networks, Internet of Things (IoT) will revolutionize the growth of health care industry [5].

To transfer huge size medical images on existing networks, it is necessary to use suitable compression technique which reduces size of image without loss of clinical information [6]. In this paper, Compressive Sensing (CS) technique has been used to reduce the imaging duration [7, 8]. Since reduced number of samples is collected, so it reduces the acquired and stored image size. The medical images used in the paper are taken from Ultrasound (US) and Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) modalities. Analysis of network performance in different heterogeneous Telemedicine network scenario is performed by measuring the transmission times taken by original and compressed size medical images.

The quality of compressed medical images has been evaluated by measuring Peak Signal to Noise Ratio (PSNR), Mean Square Error (MSE), Structural Similarity Index (SSIM), Normalized Error (NE), and Normalized Cross-Correlation (NKR). The existing network architecture which has been used for transmission of medical images includes WPAN, WLAN, and LAN. Bluetooth protocol has been used to transmit images over WPAN, IEEE 802.11n standard for WLAN and 1 Gbps Ethernet standard for LAN. The rest of the paper is organized

as follows. CS technique adopted to reduce the size of medical images is illustrated in Sect. 2. In Sect. 3, simulation and results analysis is done.

2 CS Technique for Medical Images

CS technique allows samples to be collected at rate lesser than Nyquist rate and reconstructs faithful signal/image using sparse approximation algorithms, under the constraint that the signal is sparse and incoherence property is satisfied. In simplified manner, CS technique can be understood by considering an image of size $N \times N$ and its column vector as \tilde{s} in the transform domain, such that $\tilde{s} = \psi s$ where ψ is transform or sparsity matrix ($\psi \in R^{N \times N}$). The reduced number of measurements (M < N) is obtained by using sensing matrix $\phi \in R^{M \times N}$ as,

$$y = A\tilde{s} \tag{1}$$

where $y \in \mathbb{R}^{M \times 1}$ and $A = \phi \psi$ are a measurement matrix. In Eq. (1), y and A are known and \tilde{s} needs to be estimated. Equation (1) is an optimization problem which can be solved by L₀-norm minimization,

$$\min\|\tilde{s}\|_0 s \cdot t \cdot y = A\tilde{s} \tag{2}$$

Unfortunately L₀-minimization is non-convex and the problem becomes NP-hard [8]. Solution can be obtained using L₁-norm or smooth L₀-norm minimization. The signal is reconstructed by taking inverse transform of the estimated signal \tilde{s} ($s = \psi^T \tilde{s}$).

a. CS technique adopted on US images

US image pixel values are measured in wavelet transform domain. Reduced numbers of measurements are taken by using sampling/sensing matrix of size $M \times N$, where M < N. Image is sparsified by eliminating insignificant coefficients using hard thresholding. Fast smooth L₀-norm (SL0) minimization algorithm has been used as a sparse recovery algorithm [9].

Using sparse recovery algorithm, it is possible to reconstruct the image from fewer number of measurements, if image is sparse and sensing and sparsity matrices are incoherent [10]. The sensing matrix is constructed based on sparse block circulant matrix approach [11], and the sparsity matrix is constructed using Daubechies wavelet transform (10 db) [12]. To fulfill incoherence criteria, mutual coherence (μ) between sensing and sparsity matrix must be within Welch bound obtained as [13],

$$\sqrt{\frac{(N-M)}{(N-1)M}} \le \mu \le 1 \tag{3}$$

As per image size, value of *M* is selected between 100 to 768 and value of *N* as 128, 256, 512, or 1024. The Welch lower bound obtained is 0.031, and the value of μ lies in range 0.7219–0.8126. As μ lies within the limits, so it is possible to reconstruct the images faithfully by adopting the optimization technique.

b. CS technique adopted on MRI images

Few samples of MRI images are obtained in partial Fourier domain called as under-sampled k-space data. As MRI image of internal organs is sparse in wavelet domain and has small total variation so the optimization problem of Eq. (1) for MRI can be solved efficiently by including the total variation and wavelet transform of an image in the objective function as [14],

$$\tilde{s} = \arg\min_{s} \left\{ \frac{1}{2} \|As - y\|^2 + \alpha \|s\|_{TV} + \beta \|\psi s\|_1 \right\}$$
(4)

where A represents the partial Fourier transform, ψ is wavelet transform, and $\alpha \& \beta$ are the two positive parameters set to 0.001 and 0.035, respectively. Variable and operator splitting composite algorithm has been used with fast iterative shrinkage thresholding algorithm (FISTA) [15] to minimize total variation and L₁-norm regularization of Eq. (4) so as to reconstruct accurate MRI images in lesser time. As the number of measured samples is reduced, so the image scanning duration gets reduced.

3 Simulation and Results Analysis

US and MRI images in DICOM format have been taken from online database to perform simulation [16]. Images considered are of size 50, 100, 150, 200, 250, 300, 400, 500, 600, and 1024 KB. US and MRI images are compressed as elaborated in Sect. 2, thereby choosing 25, 50, and 75% of coefficients. Real-time transmission of medical images using Bluetooth protocol is done by using Bluez protocol stack [17] in Ubuntu 14.04 operating system. To implement WLAN, LAN or WLAN to LAN connection, TCP/IP client and server transmission is established between the two nodes. Programs are written in C language for real-time image transmission.

WLAN to LAN setup is shown in Fig. 1a. LAN-to-LAN scenario is shown in Fig. 1b. In Fig. 1c, the heterogeneous network setup is shown, where data/image captured from patient is transmitted using Bluetooth Logical Link Control and Adaptation Protocol (L2CAP), to nearby personal computer (PC) or personal digital assistant (PDA). The collected data/image is then transmitted using WLAN network present in Hospital to remote server using wired network. Transmission times for transmitting original and compressed medical images over these three scenarios have been obtained.



Fig. 1 Various network scenarios

It has been observed that Bluetooth L2CAP protocol with MTU size 32,768 takes minimum time to transmit as compared to other MTU sizes because of lesser overhead. Thus for WPAN transmission L2CAP protocol with MTU size 32,768 has been used and transmission time obtained is shown in Fig. 2a. Transmitting an original image of size 1024 KB using Bluetooth protocol takes approximately 4.04 s to transmit and after compressing the same image to contain 25, 50, and 75% of pixel coefficients, it takes approximately 1.75, 2.12, and 3.94 s to transmit.

Transmission time obtained after transmitting images over LAN is shown in Fig. 2b. To transmit an image of size 1024 KB over LAN takes approximately 0.094 s and after it is compressed to contain 25, 50, and 75% of pixel coefficients, approximately 0.02, 0.04, and 0.07 s, respectively, are required. Using WLAN, the obtained transmission time is shown in Fig. 2c.

In second setup, an image captured from imaging modality connected wirelessly with access point is transmitted to remote server connected with wired network using seamless connection. The time taken to transmit over WLAN and wired network is shown in Fig. 2d. An image of size 1024 Kb is transmitted in approximately 4.46 s in this setup. The compressed images containing 25, 50, and 75% of coefficients take approximately 0.42, 0.79, and 1.73 s, respectively.



Fig. 2 Transmission times

In Bluetooth, WLAN and LAN heterogeneous network setup, the time taken to transmit different size of images is shown in Fig. 2e. In this setup, an image of size 1024 KB is transmitted in approximately 8.51 s and its compressed size containing 25, 50, and 75% of coefficients takes approximately 2.18, 2.92, and 5.68 s to transmit.

Analysis of reconstructed image quality is then discussed taking example of MRI image. MRI reconstructed image quality parameters are given in Tables 1 and 2 for 25 and 50% chosen pixel coefficients, respectively, which shows that with 25% chosen pixels, average PSNR ~ 32 dB, MSE ~ 0.09 , SSIM ~ 0.86 , NE ~ 0.082 , and NKR ~ 0.9944 . Choosing 50% pixel coefficients, average PSNR ~ 44 dB, MSE ~ 0.003 , SSIM ~ 0.95 , NE ~ 0.04 , and NKR ~ 0.9966 . Similar results have been obtained for US images as well. Thus, with 25% pixel coefficients, storage cost and transmission time over WPAN–WLAN–LAN network is reduced by a factor four approximately and considerable quality of image quality is recovered. Choosing 50% of pixel coefficients, storage cost is halved and transmission time over the similar

Compressed Medical Image Transmission ...

Image no.	PSNR	MSE	SSIM	NE	NKR
Image 1	35.97	0.00363	0.8682	0.0820	0.9944
Image 2	26.10	0.30161	0.6277	0.7245	0.6772
Image 3	28.85	0.17183	0.7660	0.4768	0.8159
Image 4	26.86	0.02663	0.7887	0.1500	0.9727
Image 5	29.77	0.24734	0.7396	0.5896	0.7429
Image 6	25.18	0.03884	0.7746	0.1959	0.9568
Image 7	61.28	0.00012	0.9945	0.0173	0.9993
Image 8	22.55	0.08272	0.6805	0.3741	0.8610
Image 9	38.60	0.00251	0.9282	0.0579	0.9952
Image 10	36.85	0.05556	0.9652	0.3159	0.9143
Average	32.80	0.0930	0.8633	0.2984	0.9124

 Table 1
 Image quality parameters in MRI (25% of coefficients)

Table 2 Image quality parameters in MRI (50% of coefficients)

Image no.	PSNR	MSE	SSIM	NE	NKR
Image 1	45.12	0.0004	0.9308	0.0282	0.9994
Image 2	39.85	0.0012	0.9605	0.0390	0.9983
Image 3	29.10	0.0171	0.8847	0.1404	0.9813
Image 4	35.66	0.0036	0.8930	0.0543	0.9963
Image 5	40.69	0.0020	0.9520	0.0488	0.9978
Image 6	36.67	0.0008	0.9377	0.0290	0.9990
Image 7	70.42	1.47E-05	0.9999	0.0055	0.9999
Image 8	49.92	0.0001	0.9998	0.0109	0.9999
Image 9	46.97	0.0003	0.9899	0.0218	0.9994
Image 10	47.00	0.0053	0.9998	0.0869	0.9956
Average	44.14	0.00308	0.9548	0.0464	0.9966

network is reduced by a factor three approximately with comparatively increased recovered image quality having increment in average PSNR by approximately 11 dB.

4 Conclusion

Telemedicine network architecture has been implemented using existing Bluetooth, LAN, and WLAN networks. Performance of different scenarios is analyzed by establishing real-time networks to transfer original and compressed size US and MRI medical images. When the original image size is less than 100 KB, transmission using L2CAP Bluetooth protocol is least of about 1 ms. As the image size increases above 100 KB, the transmission time in LAN is the least. An image of

1024 KB takes approximately 4.07 s to transmit using L2CAP protocol and 4.45 s from client connected in WLAN to server connected on LAN. The total transmission time to transmit 1024 KB size image using L2CAP and WLAN to LAN transmission is 8.51 s approximately. The compressed size image takes approximately 2.18 s using L2CAP and WLAN to LAN transmission. Thus over existing networks, it is possible to transmit medical images at reduced radiation exposure, storage, and transmission cost using CS technique.

References

- Tiwari, B., Kumar, A.: Standard Deviation (SD) based data filtering technique for body sensor network data. Int. J. Data Sci. (IJDS)—Inderscience 1(2), 189–203 (2015)
- Bogale, T.D., Le, L.B.: Massive MIMO and mmWave for 5G wireless HetNet: potential benefits and challenges. IEEE Veh. Technol. Mag. 11(1) (2016)
- 3. Bellalta, B.: IEEE 802.11 ax: high-efficiency WLANS. IEEE Wirel. Commun. 23(1) (2016)
- Tiwari, B., Kumar, A.: Aggregated Deflate-RLE compression technique for body sensor network, CSI sixth international conference on software engineering (CONSEG). https://doi. org/10.1109/conseg.2012.6349522 (2012)
- 5. Laplante, P.A., Laplante, N.: The Internet of Things in healthcare: potential applications and challenges. IT Prof. **18**(3) (2016)
- Tiwari, B., Kumar, A.: Aggregated Deflate-RLE compression technique for body sensor network. In Software Engineering (CONSEG), 2012 CSI Sixth International Conference on, pp. 1–6, IEEE (2012)
- 7. Candes, E., Romberg, J., Tao, T.: Stable signal recovery from incomplete and inaccurate measurements. Commun. Pure Appl. Math. **59**(8), 1207–1223 (2005)
- 8. Donoho, D.L.: Compressed sensing. IEEE Trans. Inform. Theory 52(4), 1289-1306 (2007)
- Mohimani, G.H., Massoud, B.Z., Christian, J.: Fast sparse representation based on smoothed L₀ norm. ICA 2007, 389–396 (2007)
- Nguyen, T.L.N., Shin, Y.: Deterministic sensing matrices in compressive sensing: a survey. Sci. World J. 2013, 1–6 (2013) Article ID 192795
- 11. Tiwari, V., Bansod, P.P., Kumar, A.: Designing sparse sensing matrix for compressive sensing to reconstruct high resolution medical images. Cogent Eng. 2(1) (2015)
- Mamaghanian, H., Khaled, N., Atienza, D., Vandergheynst, P.: Compressed sensing for real-time energy-efficient ECG compression on wireless body sensor nodes. IEEE Trans. Biomed. Eng. 58, 2456–2466 (2011)
- 13. Ben-Haim, Z., Eldar, Y.C., Elad, M.: Coherence based performance guarantees for estimating a sparse vector under random noise. IEEE Trans Signal Process **58**(10), 5030–5043 (2010)
- Huang, J., Zhang, S., Dimitris, M.: Efficient MR image reconstruction for compressed MR imaging. Med. Image Anal. 15(5), 670–679 (2011)
- Beck, A., Marc, T.: A fast iterative shrinkage-thresholding algorithm for linear inverse problems. SIAM J. Imaging Sci 2(1), 183–202 (2009)
- Online Database, S. Barre, Medical imaging: samples. http://www.barre.nom.fr/medical/ samples
- 17. Bluez Package. http://www.bluez.org
Analyzing and Preprocessing the Twitter Data for Opinion Mining

Neetu Anand, Dhruvi Goyal and Tapas Kumar

Abstract With a rapid growth of the world of Internet, the social media is eventually growing and is playing a very major role in most of our lives. There are various social networking sites such as Twitter, Google+, Facebook which provide a platform for the people to present themselves. Twitter is an efficient micro-blogging tool which has become very popular throughout the world. Nowadays, there is an ongoing trend of posting every thought and emotion of one's life on these social networking sites. Due to this, emotion analysis has gained popularity in analyzing the thoughts, opinions, feelings, sentiments, etc., of various people. The present paper is based on the demonstration of a complete step-by-step process of analyzing emotions from tweets related to Budget 2017.

Keywords Twitter • Data analysis • Sentiments • Social media Emotion analysis • Budget 2017

1 Introduction

Social media is becoming the most essential part in the life of most of the people worldwide. Day by day, the number of people being a part of social networking sites is rapidly increasing. Social networking sites provide an ease to communicate with any person living in any corner of the world, and it also allows to share one's thoughts, opinions, views, and emotions with others in the real-time environment which takes just a fraction of milliseconds or even less than that. The popular social

N. Anand $(\boxtimes) \cdot D$. Goyal

Maharaja Surajmal Institute, New Delhi, India e-mail: neetuanand@msi-ggsip.org

D. Goyal e-mail: dhruvigoyal98@gmail.com

T. Kumar Lingayas University, Faridabad, India e-mail: Kumartapas534@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_22 medias of nowadays are Facebook, Twitter, Google+, Pinterest, Blogs, etc. Twitter is the most popular among them. Twitter is a micro-blogging tool which allows its users to share whatever they wish to share with rest of the world in maximum of 140 characters. It has 319 million users, as of fourth guarter of 2016. People often tweet something depending upon the emotion of their minds at that point of time [1]. Mental state or sentiments (emotions) of anyone at the time of posting can be interpreted by analyzing the tweet that a person has made. The type of tweets that a person makes helps us to know about the nature of that person. Also, nowadays, many companies promote their products or the goods and services provided by them on Twitter, so that billions of people worldwide could know about their products being launched and may also give their feedback to it. By analyzing the views of various people, the firm gets to know about the liking and disliking of customers toward their products as well as they would be able to analyze the position of their goods and services in the current market. It is abysmally necessary to analyze different types of data on Twitter. Analysis helps to understand a person in a psychological manner. It gives a better view of positive and negative mindsets of people toward a particular thing, some product, any changes taking place, or a specific rule being implemented [2]. Emotion analysis helps in analyzing various sentiments of a person, like if a person is happy, sad, angry, excited. A comment of a person could be judged as if it was said in a positive or negative manner, or if it was just neutral. Twitter data analysis is therefore becoming a very crucial task nowadays [3]. R is a widespread statistical platform provides roughly 6000 packages and offers different data analytics techniques. It is a strong platform for data analysis and exploration. Data analysts, scientists, engineers, and big data analyst use R language for statistical computing and analysis purpose. R is a most popular open-source platform with different version on Windows, Linux, and Mac OS. Therefore, our aim was to use R language and RStudio for development. The rest of the paper is organized as follows: In Sect. 2, we delineate the term "Sentiment Analysis". Section 3 discusses the literature survey in the field of Sentiment Analysis on Twitter data. Section 4 deals with the need of data analysis. In Sect. 5, we portray the methodology adopted in analyzing emotions. Section 6 presents the detailed experiment. Section 7 draws conclusion and future scope.

2 Sentiment Analysis

Sentiment in a simple language is the emotion or feelings through which one undergoes. A sentiment of a person refers to the state of mind he or she has at that point of time. Sentiment Analysis is measuring the people's opinions, attitudes, views, emotions and classifying them mainly as positive or negative, and sometimes neutral as well. With the advancement of social media and increase in the people connected with it, there is a great need of analyzing the sentiments [4].

Social media posts are short, unstructured, fast-evolving, and domain-specific, though they provide convenience in instant communications for users so it becomes the challenging task to accurately identify the overall sentiment polarity from the text.

Sentiment Analysis of twitter data involves analyzing views, emotions, thoughts, attitudes, opinions, etc., of a person from his or her tweet toward any other individual, product, organization, topic, services, etc. Therefore, Sentiment Analysis is becoming a trend nowadays. Various approaches for automatically classifying sentiments from tweets related to products and movie reviews have been extensively studied for years [5, 6] and can roughly be divided into supervised and unsupervised Sentiment Analysis.

3 Literature Survey

In the past few years, there are many research works done by various researchers in the field of emotion analysis of Twitter data. Some of the works are discussed in this section. In the very first stage, the emotions were classified as bipolar, i.e., either positive or negative. Neutral emotions were not taken into consideration. R. Parikh and M. Movassate [7] considered two models, i.e., a Maximum Entropy Model and a Naive Bayes Bigram Model for classifying tweets. After analyzing the tweets through both the models, the result of Naive Bayes Bigram Model was considered much efficient as compared to Maximum Entropy Model. Go. R. Bhayani and L. Huang [8] used distant supervision for performing emotion analysis on tweets, where they collected the sample data with emoticons for analysis, and emoticons were termed as noisy elements. They built a new model based on the pre-existing models, i.e., Naive Bayes and Support Vector Machine (SVM) models. A. Pak and P. Paroubek [9] proposed a new model for performing both the subjective and the objective classifications of data, which classified the tweets as objective, positive, and negative. To perform the classification on objective data, they collected the tweets which ended with some emoticons. They collected tweets having ":)" or ":-)" depicting positive emotion and ":(" or ":-(" showing negative emotion of a person. For the classification of subjective data, they gathered the tweets from the accounts of the popular newspapers of that period like "Washington Posts" and "New York Times". They built their own emotion analysis model by utilizing the already existing models, i.e., Maximum Entropy, Naive Bayes, and Support Vector Machine (SVM) and found that the result of SVM was more efficient as compared to the other two. Bifet and E. Frank [10] collected the Twitter data (tweets) using Firehouse API that enabled all the public data from all the users, which is available in the real-time environment. They analyzed multinomial Naive Bayes, Hoeffding Tree, and Stochastic Gradient Descent (SGD) on the collected data, and they concluded that with a proper learning rate, SGD model produced much better results as compared to other two.

4 Need of Data Analysis

Data analysis means interpreting various data and categorizing them in different predefined categories. It is usually performed either on the basis of pre-existing algorithms or models, or by creating a new model for the analysis. Data analysis is generally performed on the large sets of data, and therefore, some tools are used to perform this tedious task rather than performing it manually [11]. With the passes of time, analyzing data has become a very crucial task.

Day by day, data analysis is becoming more and more advanced, either by the development of new tools and models, or by increasing the efficiency of already existing models. There are various tools built in different languages, which can be utilized to analyze the sentiments of twitter data effectively. Multiple languages used for analysis purpose are python, R, hadoop, JavaScript, ruby, etc. [12–14]. There are various data analyzing techniques which are used for Sentiment Analysis, such as Naive Bayes, Maximum Entropy, Support Vector Machine, Tree Kernel, Feature-based model [15, 16].

5 Methodology

The complete life cycle adopted to determine the emotions of a particular tweet is broadly comprised of the following four phases:

Twitter Data Extraction: This phase involves creating a Twitter API and downloading the tweets as per the requirements, i.e., downloading tweets of a particular user or tweets having particular keyword. Twitter API supports extracting the linguistic tweets or the locality-based tweets. The data can be retrieved in any format particularly as .txt, .csv, .doc, etc., according to the convenience.

Tweets Preprocessing: Create an R program to ingest data from—Twitter; it requires several packages to install like twitterR, devtools, digest, Rcpp, tables, and many more. The extracted tweet contains various unwanted things in it. Preprocessing involves keeping the relevant data by removing the noisy and inconsistent elements such as URLs, hash (#) tags, @ symbols, stop words, special characters. [17].

Emotion Analysis: The processed data is classified by using R program. The results of the analysis will be in the form of positive, negative, and neutral emotions or sentiments [18].

Experimental Result: The result of Sentiment Analysis is represented in the form of various graphical tools, such as bar graph, pie chart or in the form of tables. It depicts the total number of tweets in each of the positive, negative, and neutral emotions.

The flowchart showing the detailed approach used for classification of sentiments is shown in Fig. 1.



6 Experiment

The detailed description of each step performed in the experiment is as follows:

6.1 Data Collection

We made a Twitter API so as to collect the tweets. All the tweets related to Budget 2017 were downloaded by providing the keyword "Budget2017" in RStudio [19–21]. The downloaded file was saved in the .csv format. Screenshot of the raw data which was collected is shown in Fig. 2.

6.2 Data Preprocessing

The collected data has many inconsistent and redundant elements that are to be filtered so as to perform Sentiment Analysis techniques on the collected tweets [22, 23]. A number of tasks performed in data preprocessing are as follows:

```
[[21]]
[1] "gstnashik: RT @bcs_llp: #GST legislation enters the final lap | @bcs_llp @gstnashik
#gstcouncil #Budget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/VEAXtVGYPM https://t.co/4ro.."
[[22]]
[1] "gstnashik: RT @bcs_llp: Tax slabs: Should #GST Bills be tabled as Money Bills? @bcs
_llp @gstnashik #gstcouncil #Budget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/7NA8eYI6Gk h.."
[[23]]
[1] "sanket215: RT @bcs_llp: Tax slabs: Should #GST Bills be tabled as Money Bills? @bcs
_llp @gstnashik #gstcouncil #Budget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/7NA8eYI6Gk h.."
[[24]]
[1] "bcs_llp: Tax slabs: Should #GST Bills be tabled as Money Bills? @bcs
_llp @gstnashik #gstcouncil #Budget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/7NA8eYI6Gk h.."
[[24]]
[1] "bcs_llp: Tax slabs: Should #GST Bills be tabled as Money Bills? @bcs_llp @gstnashik
#gstcouncil #Budget2017... https://t.co/v4Xlopdvr1"
[[25]]
[1] "sanket215: RT @bcs_llp: #GST legislation enters the final lap | @bcs_llp @gstnashik
#gstcouncil #Budget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/VEAXtVGYPm https://t.co/4ro..."
[[26]]
[1] "bcs_llp: #GST legislation enters the final lap | @bcs_llp @gstnashik
#gstcouncil #Budget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/VEAXtVGYPm https://t.co/4ro..."
[[26]]
[1] "bcs_llp: #GST legislation enters the final lap | @gstnashik #gstcouncil #B
udget2017 \n\nhttps://t.co/VEAXtVGYPm https://t.co/4rokxasy8N"
[[27]]
```

Fig. 2 Data collected (raw) from the Twitter API on "Budget2017"

Converting to lower characters: Text in the tweets will be in the combination of both upper and lower characters. Data is converted into the lower case so that it would become easy to analyze by doing case-insensitive comparison.

Removing URLs: URLs have got nothing to do with emotion analysis. They sometimes mislead the emotional interpretation of the tweet. So, URLs should be removed from the tweets for effective analysis.

Removing hash (#) tags: Hash (#) tags are just used to highlight a particular word(s) in the whole tweet, and it does not share any contribution toward analyzing the emotions of a person. Hence, they should be removed to make analysis process easy.

Removing @ **symbol**: "@" symbol is used to specify a user's name so as to alert them toward a particular tweet. It does not represent any opinion and is therefore filtered from the collected tweets.

Replace emoticons: Emoticons like ":)" and ":-)" represent a positive sentiment and hence are replaced with the word "happy" so as to count it as a positive emotion. Also, the emoticons like ":(" and ":-(" show the negative sentiments and are therefore replaced with the word "sad" so that it could be counted as a negative emotion during analysis.

Remove all non-English words: In our research, we had taken into consideration all the English tweets for analyzing the sentiments. So, all the linguistic words other than English are removed from the data.

Remove stop words: Stop words are the most commonly used words in the sentences that do not show any sentiments. Therefore, they have to be removed from the data so as to not overcrowd the essential data.

Expand acronyms: There are various acronyms used in the tweets which should be expanded so as to perform emotion analysis task efficiently. Hence, the acronyms are expanded to produce effective results.

[1] "changes in income tax laws from apribudget budget capitalgaintax incometaxtaxes investmentplan taxes"
[2] "so narendramodi govt promised in the budget saying transparency and accountabilit y in political fundings\ncontd"
[3] "whatever said amp done ground reality economy is in mess many businesses struggling to survive demo budget gstfailin..."
[4] "whatever said amp done ground reality economy is in mess many businesses struggling to survive demo budget gstfailin..."
[5] "whatever said amp done ground reality economy is in mess many businesses struggling to survive demo budget gstfailin..."

Anger	Anticipation	Disgust	Fear	Joy	Sadness	Surprise	Trust
0	1	0	0	1	2	0	2
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
0	0	1	0	0	0	0	3
0	0	1	0	0	0	0	3
0	1	1	0	0	0	0	3
1	1	0	1	1	0	0	3

Fig. 3 Dataset after performing preprocessing

Fig. 4 Emotions and their values

Remove special characters: Special characters have no significant meaning. They are just used as punctuations in the phrases and sentences. They do not play any vital role in emotion analysis and hence should be removed.

Remove recurring characters: A new trend has been started of using words with concurrent characters on social media to express the intensity of the emotions for a particular word. But machine does not understand those words as it is not present in their dictionaries. So it is mandatory to remove these letters to correctly analyze the emotions of tweets. Hence, we replace all the characters that are recurring more than three times with three consecutive characters.

The screenshot of data after preprocessing, i.e., after performing all the above steps is as shown in Fig. 3.

6.3 Visualizing the Tweets

The next step is to create visual plots to envisage the sentiments of the user. The words within a sentence can be associated with eight emotions (anger, fear, anticipation, trust, surprise, sadness, joy, and disgust). Below shown is a data frame in which each row represents a sentence from the original file. The columns include one for each emotion type (Fig. 4).

Finally, the percentage of each emotion in the text can be plotted as a bar graph (Fig. 5).





Fig. 5 Bar graph showing percentage of each emotion in a text

7 Conclusion

The data is gathered by using Twitter API, which provides up-to-date information. The collected tweets will be stored in a data frame. RStudio is used to analyze data by using various packages. A sentence-level Sentiment Analysis is performed on the collected tweets of "Budget 2017". This is done in various phases. In the first phase, preprocessing is performed. Secondly, the processed data is analyzed, and score is provided to each tweet based on various emotions. In the final step, the percentage of each emotion is plotted. In future, we will represent the results of emotion analysis in the form of numerous types of graphs. To further alleviate these issues, we will apply machine learning algorithms. Overall with the use of sentiment analyzer, various social and political issues can be analyzed in a better way.

References

- Agarwal, A., Xie, B., Vovsha, I., Rambow, O., Passonneau, R.: Sentiment analysis of twitter data. In: Proceedings of the Workshop on Languages in Social Media, LSM'11, pp. 30–38, Stroudsburg, PA, USA (2011)
- Wilson, T., Wiebe, J., Hoffmann, P.: Recognizing contextual polarity in phrase-level sentiment analysis. In Proceedings of the Conference on Human Language Technology and Empirical Methods in Natural Language Processing, HLT'05, pp. 347–354, Stroudsburg, PA, USA (2005)
- Liang, M., Trejo, C., Muthu, L., Ngo, L., B., Luckow, A., Amy, W.: Evaluating *R*-based big data analytic frameworks. In: IEEE International Conference on Cluster Computing, pp. 508– 509 (2015)
- Rosenthal, S., Nakov, P., Kiritchenko, S., Mohammad, S., Ritter, A., Stoyanov, V.: Semeval-2015 task 10: sentiment analysis in twitter. In: Proceedings of the 9th national Workshop on Semantic Evaluation, SemEval '2015, Denver, Colorado (2015)
- 5. Pang, B., Lee, L., Vaithyanathan, S.: Sentiment classification using machine learning techniques. In: Proceedings of ACL, pp. 79–86 (2002)

- O'Connor, B., Balasubramanyan, R., Routledge, B.R., Smith, N.A.: From tweets to polls: linking text sentiment to public opinion time series. In Proceedings of ICWSM (2010)
- 7. Parikh, R., Movassate M.: Sentiment analysis of user-generated twitter updates using various classification techniques. CS224 N Final Report (2009)
- 8. Go, A., Bhayani, R., Huang, L.: Twitter sentiment classification using distant supervision. Stanford University, Technical Paper (2009)
- Pak, A., Paroubek, P.: Twitter as a corpus for sentiment analysis and opinion mining. In: Proceedings of the Seventh Conference on International Language Resources and Evaluation, pp. 1320–1326 (2010)
- Bifet, A., Frank, E.: Sentiment knowledge discovery in twitter streaming data. In: Proceedings of the 13th International Conference on Discovery Science, Springer, Berlin, Germany, pp. 1– 15 (2010)
- Tiwari, V., Thakur, R.S.: Contextual snowflake modelling for pattern warehouse logical design. Sadhana—Academy Proceedings in Engineering Science, vol. 40, pp. 15–33, Springer (2015)
- 12. Jahiruddin: Sentiment analysis of twitter data using statistical methods. In: International Journal of Innovative Research in Engineering & Management (IJIREM) (2015)
- 13. Anber, H., Salah, A., El-Aziz A.A. Abd.: A literature review on twitter data analysis. In: International Journal of Computer and Electrical Engineering (2016)
- 14. Hemalatha, I., Varma, G.P.S., Govardhan, A.: Preprocessing the informal text for efficient sentiment analysis. IJETTCS (2012)
- 15. https://sites.google.com/site/miningtwitter/questions/sentiment/sentiment
- 16. https://twitter.com
- 17. https://apps.twitter.com/app/
- 18. https://www.r-bloggers.com/in-depth-analysis-of-twitter-activity-and-sentiment-with-r/
- 19. http://www.bigdatanews.com/profiles/blogs/learn-everything-about-sentiment-analysis-using-r
- 20. http://www.mjdenny.com/Text_Processing_In_R.html
- Agarwal, A., Xie, B., Vovsha, I., Rambow, O., Passonneau R.: Sentiment analysis of twitter data. In: Proceedings of the ACL Workshop on Languages in Social Media, pp. 30–38 (2011)
- Liang, P.-W., Dai B.-R.: Opinion mining on social media data. In: IEEE International Conference on Mobile Data Management, Milan, Italy, June 3–6, 2013, pp. 91–96, ISBN: 978-1-494673-6068-5, http://doi.ieeecomputersociety.org/10.1109/MDM (2013)
- Kharde, Vishal A., Sonawane. S.S.: Sentiment analysis of twitter data—a survey of techniques. In: International Journal of Computer Applications (0975-8887), vol. 139, no. 11 (2016)

Intelligent Decision Making Real-Time Automated System for Toll Payments

Aditya Vikram Agarwal, Navneet Verma and Sanjeev Kumar

Abstract Automation is a major concern in the modern age with an increasing number of cases related to traffic jams, caused due to the lack of proper traffic management, contributing to various problems directly and indirectly. Internet of Things can potentially minimize this chaos. We can use sensors, along with some processing devices and algorithms, to minimize human efforts in regulating traffic and to definitively smoothen and fasten vehicle flow on roads. Tollbooths on highways can be automated with the help of Internet of Things and digital payment mode which will reduce, or even remove, the long toll payment queues for vehicles, can be introduced. We, in this paper, present an implementation of Internet of Things, using infrared light sensors, cameras, and image processing algorithms to develop such vehicle detection systems according to their types (heavy vehicles, small vehicles, and the like), in coherence with a database to automate tollbooth processing.

Keywords Internet of Things • Genetic Algorithm • Real-time systems Databases • Image processing • Automation • Intelligent decision making Infrared light sensors

1 Introduction

In the modern world, automation of things is very important and, in fact, ponderable. It improves productivity, quality of living, robustness, and security, and also efficiency in day-to-day life [1, 2]. Due to the internetworking and interconnectivity of physical devices, vehicles, sensors, and all such objects capable of some kind of processing made possible by using the implementations of Internet of Things, automation of almost everything is possible and, now, is becoming more and more

A. V. Agarwal (🖂) · N. Verma · S. Kumar

Department of Computer Science, School of Engineering and Technology, Jaipur National University, Jaipur, India e-mail: adityavagarwal.research@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_23

prevalent [3]. Information handling services forecast that there will be around 75.4 billion electronic devices around us by 2025. Integration of sensors and data can also make, for that matter, automation of traffic system very possible, efficient, reliable, and secure, just like the automation of various other areas of applications including the industrial sector, agricultural sector. There are increasing numbers of cases of where due to lack of automation, frequent traffic jams are caused. Tons of carbon dioxide is produced when vehicles get stuck in such situations. The number of accidents due to defying traffic rules is continuously rising. Using the very concepts of Internet of Things and vehicle connectivity to processing software for making a better, prominent, and automated traffic management system is the optimum solution to address such problems associated with not only traffic management but also any type of processing that requires vehicle identification. Constructing an intelligent vehicle-type identification technique based on Internet of Things [4, 5], which has a number of benefits including the improvement of traffic conditions, the reduction in traffic jams and management costs, the increase in reliability, the increase in traffic safety, the reduction of human labor, and the independence and autonomy of weather conditions, is not only an urgent need and obligation but also can be an adjunct to many more areas of applications. Thus, in this paper, we are using Internet of Things to identify the vehicles, especially vehicles running on highways, and use that data to automate the toll payment system and, for that matter, use that data to automate any type of process that requires the identification of vehicles. All the sensors used in our technique will be connected to the database where further processing of data will be done. The information collected from all vehicles by our sensors can be used not only for automating the toll system on highways but also for any other processing and by anyone for smooth driving. The system also needs to be protected from potential hackers in order to keep it safe from any menace. Hence, having a prototype implementation for keeping the data collected safely will be an added advantage, a boon, to our system [6].

Hence, the goal of this paper is to present an overview of the real-time traffic information acquisition of the vehicle types running on roads, particularly highways, and monitoring architecture based on Internet of Things. This technology can be mingled with existing communication infrastructures for an intelligent traffic management system [7]. The system gathers real-time data, generated by the sensory units, and automation of toll payment system will be monitored. Specific actions will be taken by the devices with a degree of intelligence and autonomy, and interact with their environment in a useful way, thus decreasing the network load, facilitating Internet of Things to provide support for collaboration in Internet of Things, programmable infrared frequency identification devices, and wireless sensor networks to overcome network latency, resulting in an autonomous execution [8, 9].

2 Related Work

A lot of research dealing with the problems of intelligent traffic monitoring and controlling has been done. Bhadra et al. [10] applied an agent-based fuzzy logic technology for traffic controlling situations, which convoluted multiple approaches for different vehicle movements. The author of the paper proposed a system based on a service-oriented architecture for an effective integration of Internet of Things in enterprise services [5, 11].

Recently, researchers [12–15] have shifted their attention to the Internet of Things-based solutions and making a paradigm shift in their approach to developing systems which are very popular in various domains of the society, like health care, business inventories, intelligent house, smart environment, monitoring electrical equipment. Different Internet of Things systems, such as UbiComp [16], are using simple message-passing techniques for communicating with different devices having certain IPv4 or IPv6 addresses [17, 18]. Agent technologies are implemented to help vehicles in traffic congestion and to provide optimal routes for the vehicles. Using architecture integrating objects and cloud computing to develop decentralized smart objects within the Internet of Things was also proposed [19], while other system comprising of mobile agents to handle not just the communications among different devices coming under the Internet of Things but also to conduct searching for needed resources [20–23].

3 The Setup

Many automobile companies are doing a lot to make the vehicles smart. There are a number of sensors which are already fit in vehicles to make them intelligent like hall sensors to detect the position of moving components, the inductive sensor to measure the speed of the vehicle, digital compass for better orientation of vehicles, night vision system to travel safely at night [6]. Instead of making vehicles smart, even roads can be made smart. This is a different yet effective approach of seeing problems and finding solutions to them. These additional features will upgrade the current traffic management scenario.

3.1 Infrared Light Sensors

In order to determine the height of a vehicle traveling on the road, we need an infrared light sensor having high voltage due to large gaps between the poles and the vehicles. The infrared light sensor's functionality as a whole is to emit and receive infrared light when it reflects after striking a surface. This infrared light sensor consists of two component parts: the infrared light emitter and the infrared

light receiver. Each of these two component parts has a purpose. These light sensors are situated on the pole above in such a manner that if vehicles pass below them, the infrared light sensors will strike any point on the surface of those vehicles. However, the infrared light emitted by the infrared light sensors strike a vehicle only if the vehicle is directly below the infrared light sensor. So, for this reason, we need to have more than one infrared light sensors situated on the pole above. If we have the number of infrared light sensors greater than or equal to the minimum number of infrared light sensors required for any vehicle to be below at least one infrared light sensor, then this problem of a vehicle going on the road with no infrared light sensor above will be removed. If W is the width of the highway road and w is the minimum possible width of a vehicle, then the minimum number of infrared light sensors we need is W/w and we arrange them in such a manner on the pole such that if the first sensor is at a distance between 0 and w from the left end of the road then each successive light sensor is at a distance just less than w from the previous sensor. This arrangement of sensors on the pole above ensures that a minimum number of sensors are used such that every vehicle passes below at least one sensor.

Infrared light emitter. In order to determine the height of a vehicle traveling on the road, we need an infrared light sensor. The infrared light emitter will be used to



Fig. 1 When a vehicle passes below the sensor then the height h of the vehicle is determined. The infrared light emitted by the infrared light emitter strikes the vehicle and is reflected and detected in time t by the infrared light receiver

emit light in the infrared region. We use infrared light due to it being harmless for living beings and also because it is blocked and reflected by surfaces which might otherwise not block higher energy lights. This emitter when emitting infrared waves, the light will strike a surface and reflect, thus producing a receiving capability for the infrared light receiver. The light emitted will continuously travel toward the road and will return back when no vehicle is passing at some instance of time (as shown in Fig. 1). However, whenever a vehicle passes on the road and below the infrared light sensor, the path to the road will be obstructed and light will travel lesser distance to travel back, thus giving a potential computation for the height of the vehicle that passed by.

Infrared light receiver. The infrared light receiver will detect when it comes back after reflected back from road or vehicle (as shown in Fig. 2). The light will travel more distance when there is no vehicle passing by and travel less when there is a vehicle passing by. The difference in the time required to come back to the receiver by the light will be used to determine the height of the vehicle, as the height determines the toll tax the driver has to pay for his vehicle.

In order to determine the height of a vehicle traveling on the road, we need an infrared light sensor. The light sender will be used to detect the vehicle sensor. The device will emit infrared waves to detect the vehicles. The light will continuously



Fig. 2 Normal condition of the road where no vehicle passes by. The infrared light emitted by the infrared light emitter strikes the road below at a distance H from the sensor and reflects back, reaching the sensor in time t, and is detected by the infrared light receiver

travel toward the road and will return back. Whenever a vehicle comes, the path to the road will be obstructed and light will travel less distance to travel back.

3.2 Camera

We also need to detect the vehicle number in order to determine the details of the person whom that vehicle belongs to. This is to enable the digital toll payment system. So, we use cameras, with preferably wide-angle high resolution, to click images of the highway road at successive time intervals and use a vehicle number detection algorithm which involves image processing to detect the number printed on the number plates of the vehicles. After the camera captures the images of the vehicles, we apply the Genetic Algorithm to determine the characters present in the number plate of the vehicle. We use contours and shape information of the pixels, with a Digital Board (DB) with window panes which recognizes each character uniquely. Character pixels are mapped into the panes as lines on the second level. This vehicle number information is sent to the database where, according to the vehicle type and vehicle number determined, the toll amount is deducted from the person's account. This image reading is an imperative phenomenon for the database to keep track of the vehicles in order to implement the automated toll system.

However, there are certain problems with this approach that have to be addressed. At the time of capturing images, there can be a possibility of two side-by-side vehicles coming at the same time. So, how will we know which vehicle came under which light sensor? For that, we have to fix one camera to each infrared light sensor. So, the number of cameras is equal to the number of sensors used, that is, W/w. We trim out the pixel columns in the image which are beyond the minimum width of a vehicle, that is, w. So, effectively, the image captured by the camera has the pixel width such that only one car in a row is present in the image of one camera. Hence, each camera can span a width of only w, which is same as the minimum width of a vehicle.

After the first case is tackled, there is still another case left unsolved. The case which we need to tackle wisely is when the camera will click images of two vehicles not side-by-side this time but one behind the other. So, we need to identify which vehicle is the one under the sensor and which vehicle is behind the sensor while the vehicle numbers of both the vehicles being present in the image at the same time. To sort out this problem, we consider the number information to process for the vehicle nearer to the sensor as the one whose number plate occupies the lower pixels and the vehicle farther from the sensor as the one whose number plate occupies the upper pixels of the image. In the image, the pixels of the vehicle which are identified to occupy the lowest positions are, thus, contemplated as the nearer vehicle and as the number plates occupy upper positions in the image the vehicle is considered to be farther.

3.3 Database

A database is required to keep the information of the vehicle types, vehicle numbers, and the owner names. This information is stored in a secured place. The digital payments will play a major role to pay the tolls in advance, and the payment information will be kept in the database to ensure the safety of data.

Security is a major issue for almost any type of application, be it computer science or any other field. Thus, by providing security to our database, we protect the data from any type of vulnerability or manipulation by any factor and deal with this issue.

4 Linking the Components

The setup is simple; however, we ought to link all of these components so that they work in cohesion. The toll payment check poles are fixed with infrared light sensors and cameras. The infrared light sensors contain infrared light emitters and infrared light detectors (or infrared light receivers). One camera is set with each infrared light sensor, so the number of cameras is equal to the number of infrared light sensors. These infrared light sensors and cameras are connected to a highly secure database in order to keep track of records of payments of toll taxes, vehicle types, and vehicle numbers. For the identification of each vehicle uniquely, the camera captures images frequently. The number of sensors present on the pole is decided by the average width of the vehicles arriving on that road. For the checking of each vehicle, high-quality sensors and high-quality cameras for capturing good quality images are set. Each vehicle is identified by its height, and the image clicked by the camera at the time of the arrival of that vehicle will fasten the payment procedure with the help of digital payments. The records have to be kept at high-security levels in the databases. The system needs proper management to keep the cameras and sensors well working. To provide the energy to the sensors and the cameras, solar panels are used.

5 Working

The working of the system is based on optics. Initially, infrared light waves will be emitted from infrared light emitter toward the highway road. Depending on the presence of the vehicle below the infrared light sensor, there will be two cases.

Case 1: When there is no vehicle passing below the infrared light sensor, which is also the normal condition, then the path of the emitted infrared light is unobstructed between the road and the infrared light sensor. So, the infrared light will travel by its universal velocity c (speed of light in vacuum or air). The infrared light

strikes the road and then reflects back to the light receiver. If the time taken by the infrared light to return back to the receiver, in this case, is denoted by T and the distance between road and receiver is denoted by H, then

$$c = 2H/T.$$
 (1)

Case 2: In this case, when a vehicle arrives between the infrared light sensor and the road, the light travels lesser distance. If the time taken by the light to return back to receiver, in this case, is denoted by t and the unknown height of the vehicle is denoted by h, then

$$c = 2(H - h)/t.$$
⁽²⁾

Since the speed of light remains constant in vacuum, we equate (1) and (2) to get

$$2H/T = 2(H-h)/t.$$
 (3)

$$h = H(1 - t/T).$$
 (4)

Since we know the values of T, H, and t, the value of h can be computed. However, as the vehicle passes below the infrared light sensor, the infrared light will fall on different parts of the vehicle, thus giving different height values. So, we get a set of values of h for a certain vehicle which comprising of different heights. For example, the front and the back part of a vehicle may be having a lesser height than the middle part of the vehicle. So, this problem has to be sorted out. Hence, we keep updating the height value every time once we encounter height values more than the current height value. Hence, the highest value, which we now have, is actually the required height of the vehicle.

When the camera capture the image of a vehicle, the Genetic Algorithm processes the image and the characters of the number plate are determined, and this data along with the vehicle height are sent to the database where the toll amount to be paid is determined and the record is saved. The same method is applied for the next vehicle once the height value, H, is obtained; then the value storing the height of the vehicle is reset to process for the next vehicle. The database is kept at a high-security level to keep the information of the vehicle owner safe and accessible only through the officially permissible persons [24, 25].

6 Future Scope

The total system involved in making the tollbooths system intelligent and smart will make the highway traffic management chaos free to a certain extent. However, the security needed to keep the data safe in the database is a major errand. Day by day, data security is becoming a major concern. The energy that is provided to the

infrared light sensors adds to the total cost. The increasing growth in microelectronics promises to provide efficient and less energy-consuming sensors. Usage of an alternative power supply, by using solar panels and using sunlight, to run the sensors and cameras instead of using electricity, or using better physical principles by avoiding the usage of so many sensors conjointly might make the Internet of Things-based traffic system an even more robust and cost-efficient technology. Adverse weather can be a major problem in the case of vehicle detection because the cameras may not be able to click proper images in stormy weather thus affecting the accuracy of the Genetic Algorithm for image processing. Proper maintenance of cameras is also a major task to keep the information updated in the database by clicking images. So, better and sophisticated techniques can be developed to overcome such issues.

7 Conclusion

The Internet of Things can solve many problems associated with undisciplined drivers, improper collection of toll taxes, improper collection of road taxpayers, automation of traffic management system, and the like. This will definitely revolutionize the whole class of tollbooths systems and highways (and such roads) throughout the world. Apart from keeping the traffic at a good pace, it is also cost-efficient and provides a simple and easy system development. So, this would serve as a boon in the modern times where Internet of Things is already playing a major role to solve the problems faced by living organisms, be it any part of life. This paper promises a better future for the automation of such toll systems involving the processing of vehicles and also for humanity.

References

- Gaur, A., Scotney, B., Parr, G., McClean, S.: Smart city Architecture and its applications based on IoT. In: The 5th International Symposium on Internet of Ubiquitous and Pervasive Things, vol. 52, pp. 1089–1094 (2015)
- Tiwari, V., Thakur, R.S.: Improving knowledge availability of forensic intelligence through forensic pattern warehouse (FPW). In: Encyclopedia of Information Science and Technology, 3rd edn, pp. 1326–1335. IGI Global (2015)
- Spiess, P., Karnouskos, S., Guinard, D., Savio, D., Baecker, O., Souza, L., et al.: SOA-based integration of the internet of things in enterprise services. In: Proceedings of the IEEE 7th International Conference on Web Services (ICWS), pp. 968–975 (2009)
- Bagula, A., Castelli, L., Zennaro, M.: On the design of smart parking networks in the smart cities: an optimal sensor placement model. Sens. Smart Cities 15(7), 15443–15467 (2015)
- Yin, Y., Dalin, J.: Research and application on intelligent parking solution based on internet of things. In: 5th International Conference on Intelligent Human-Machine Systems and Cybernetics (IHMSC), pp. 101–105 (2013)

- Chen, M.S., Gonzalez, S., Zhang, Q., Victor Leung, C.M.: Code-centric RFID system based on software agent intelligence. IEEE Intell. Syst. 25(2), 12–19 (2010)
- Stankovic, J.A.: Research Directions for the internet of things. IEEE Internet Things J. 1(1), 3–9 (2014)
- Atzori, L., Iera, A.G., Morabito, G.: The Internet of Things: a survey. Comput. Netw. 54(15), 2787–2805 (2010)
- 9. Ashton, K.: That "Internet of Things" thing. RFiD J. 22, 97-114 (2009)
- Bhadra, S., Kundu, A., Guha, S.K.: An agent based efficient traffic framework using fuzzy. In: Fourth International Conference on Advanced Computing & Communication Technologies, pp. 464–470 (2014)
- 11. Joo, D.Y., Kim, J.K.: Creative & active convergence model of IoT. Korea Institute for Industrial Economics & Trade, Korea (2014)
- 12. Libelium Communications Distributed as S.L.: 50 sensor applications for a smarter world (2014)
- 13. Miorandi, D., Sicari, S., De Pellegrini, F., Chlamtac, I.: Internet of things: vision, applications and research challenges. Ad Hoc Netw. **10**(7), 1497–1516 (2012)
- Domingo, M.C.: An overview of the Internet of Things for people with disabilities. J. Netw. Comput. Appl. 35(2), 584–596 (2012)
- López, T.S., Ranasinghe, D.C., Harrison, M., Duncan McFarlane.: Adding sense to the Internet of Things—an architecture framework for smart object systems. Pers. Ubiquit. Comput. 16(3), 291–308 (2012)
- 16. Goumopoulos, C., Kameas, A., Hellas, P.: Smart objects as components of UbiComp applications. Int. J. Multimedia Ubiquit. Eng. 4(3), 1–20 (2009)
- 17. Shiwani, S., Purohit, G.N.: IPv4 compared to IPv6 networks for recital analysis in omnet++ environment. Global J. Comput. Sci. Technol. **13**(11), 28–40 (2013)
- Gupta, P., Shiwani, S.: Recital investigation of Ipv4 and Ipv6 using wired networks in omnet++. Int. J. Commun. Comput. Technol. 1(5), 167–171 (2013)
- Fortino, G., Guerrieri, A., Russo, W., Savaglio, C.: Integration of agent-based and cloud computing for the smart objects-oriented IoT. In: Proceedings of the 18th International Conference on Computer Supported Cooperative Work in Design, pp. 493–498 (2014)
- Jara, A.J., Varakliotis, S., Skarmeta, A.F., Kirstein, P.: Extending the Internet of Things to the Future Internet through IPv6 support. Mobile Inf. Syst. 10(1), 3–17 (2014)
- Nakamiti, G., Silva, V.E., Ventura, J.H., Goncalves, J.M.: An agent-based simulation system for traffic control in the Brazilian intelligent cities project context. In: Proceedings of the 2012 Symposium on Agent Direct Simulation, Article No. 3 (2012)
- Chen, B., Cheng, H.H., Palen, J.: Integrating mobile agent technology with multi-agent systems for distributed traffic detection and management systems. Transp. Res. Part C: Emerg. Technol. 17(1), 1–10 (2009)
- Karthikeyan, T., Sujatha, S.: Optimization of traffic system using TCL algorithm through FMSA and IMAC agents. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Eng. Technol. 1(6), 56–61 (2012)
- 24. Guillemin, P., Friess, P.: Internet of things strategic research roadmap. The Cluster of European Research Projects, Tech. Rep. (2009)
- Singh, D., Tripathi, G., Jara, A.J.: A survey of Internet-of-Things: future vision, architecture, challenges and services. IEEE World Forum Internet Things 1, 287–292 (2014)
- Bandyopadhyay, D., Sen, J.: Internet of things: applications and challenges in technology and standardization. Int. J. Wirel. Pers. Commun. 58(1), 49–69 (2011)

A New Face Recognition Technique by Landmark-Based PCA Modeled Scheme in Unconstrained Environment

Naresh Kumar

Abstract There is ever scope of real-time face recognition in various applications ranging from social to commercial sectors. The methods of face recognition for these applications show considerably good performances in restricted conditions. The sounding benchmark demonstrates that all these methods are not adequate for randomly changing environment. The limitations of holistic method divert the researches' attention to more local features and largely robust set of non-monotonic distortions. In this paper, an attempt is made to develop a method for face recognition that refines the recognition rate in the unrestricted environment. The originality derives from weight generation are considered the landmarks in facial images by computing the ratio of inter-variance to the intra-variance. The cumulative sum of weights supplements to find the distinctive features in the facial images and thus the matched person get the highest weight. Our experimental results show that the proposed framework achieves better accuracy for recognition of face than others highlighted techniques on the globally accessible challenging database.

Keywords Linear discriminant analysis (LDA) • Scale-invariant feature transform (SIFT) • Principal component analysis (PCA) • Local binary patterns (LBP) Histogram of oriented gradient (HOG)

1 Introduction

The growth of face processing is exponential, comprising many technical areas including image processing, surveillance, suspicious activity analysis, and security, telecommunication, sign language recognition and human–computer interaction [1]. This common application includes control of facilities, tools and information. To put forward an example, robust face recognition [2, 3] is used by hotels and casinos

N. Kumar (\boxtimes)

IEEE & Computer Society of India (CSI), Department of Mathematics, Indian Institute of Technology, Roorkee, India e-mail: atrindma@iitr.ac.in

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_24

to recognize fingerprint recognition and blacklisted of individuals. These determinations can also provide useful information on identity, age, ethnicity, etc., of a person. The objective of this work is to propose a method which is compared with three famous other techniques of face recognition: (1) Principal component analysis (PCA) which is a statistical pattern recognition technique for feature extraction and dimensionality reduction [4], (2) Linear discriminant analysis (LDA) [5], which removes the limitations of PCA methods by incorporating the Fisher's linear discriminant scheme which is aiming at maximizing the ratio of determinant of the samples of between-class scatter matrix to that of with-in class scatter matrix, (3) Histogram of Oriented Gradient (HOG) [6], which are the well-known local descriptors based on gradient images.

The rest of the paper is organized that Sect. 2 presents the summary of existing works and the details of the different components of the proposed methods are figured out in Sect. 3. The analysis of database description and experimental results of the proposed model is presented in Sect. 4. Last section refers the future scope of the problem and conclusion regarding the proposed model.

2 Related Work

Face recognition in 2D can be categorized as holistic and feature-based methods. Holistic-based methods use the global information from face images in order to perform the recognition task. The PCA locates the principal components of the original component of face image space which finally provides optimal transformation for face representation [7]. The only challenge with PCA is that it is sensitive to illumination, expressions and other variations. The result of the incapability due to illumination to discriminate images is that the same person can be classified as two distinct people, whereas, LDA reduces with-in class variance, while emulsifying the between-class variance of a given set of the images using linear transformation [5]. In feature-based methods [8-12], face images are processed to extract the distinctive features first then recognition task [3] involves matching of features taken from different areas of face considering multiple images. There are different types of feature descriptors, some of the most frequently used are histogram of oriented gradient (HOG) [6], local binary patterns (LBP) [13], scale-invariant feature transform (SIFT) [14] and Gabor filters [15]. The features extracted by pyramid of histogram of gradient (PHOG) and local histogram of gradient (LHOG) are have been proved the state of art in the domain of biometric [7] and sense classification. It is very tough to recognize emotions when partial face occurs in unconstrained environment [8, 16], in which Gabor Ternary pattern and without alignment of facial points, and a new multi-key point descriptor is developed. Furthermore, Pinto et al. [11] raise the issues of computational efficiency due to huge size of natural image face datasets, which is opening the scope for simple feature so that size of dataset may remain under control.

In literature survey, SIFT-based face recognition addresses the two main aspects of key point pruning and illumination invariant key point detection. As far as computation is concerned they are similar but both have different applications. SIFT is used to identify of specific objects using bag of words model for example, whereas HOG is used suitable for classification.

3 Proposed Methods

3.1 Affine Transform

Geometrical perspective of images can be presented by operands and projected sets due the transformation applied on training set of images. Affine transform is one of geometrical transforms which depicts its nature by the preserving the feature points, set parallel lines and planes but it does not guaranty for angle and distance between the line in an image. The most effective properties preserved by affine transform are collinearity, convexity, parallelism and ratio of lines in the images. The sounding affine transforms for images are seared maps, rotation, reflection, scaling and translation. In this work, it has been applied rotation and shearing transform at landmark template which is used to generate model PCA of the training set of face images. Mathematical aspect for processing on landmark model is presented 2-D sheared transform (1) in x- and y-axis directions and 2-D and 3-D rotational transform (2) and (3) where α , β and γ are angle rotations in x-, y- and z-axis directions, respectively.

$$S_x(\alpha) = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & \alpha \\ 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix}; \quad S_y(\beta) = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 \\ \beta & 1 \end{bmatrix}$$
(1)

$$R(\theta) = \begin{bmatrix} \cos \theta & \sin \theta \\ -\sin \theta & \cos \theta \end{bmatrix}; \quad R_x(\alpha) = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & \cos \alpha & \sin \alpha \\ 0 & -\sin \alpha & \cos \alpha \end{bmatrix}$$
(2)

$$R_{y}(\beta) = \begin{bmatrix} \cos \beta & 0 & \sin \beta \\ 0 & 1 & 0 \\ -\sin \beta & 0 & \cos \beta \end{bmatrix}; \quad R_{z}(\gamma) = \begin{bmatrix} \cos \gamma & \sin \gamma & 0 \\ -\sin \gamma & \cos \gamma & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 1 \end{bmatrix}$$
(3)

3.2 Shape Alignment of Face Images

All the face images are aligned by gradient booting technique of ensemble learning which is based on minimization of loss function defined by weak learning of training set. Before proper alignment of face images, it is mandatory to normalize the facial data. The normalized shape $T_I^{\circ}I$ (4) is obtained from the input shape I where \overline{I} is mean shape of input shape I.

$$T_I = \arg\min_{T} \|\bar{I} - T^{\circ}I\|_2 \tag{4}$$

In testing phase, from initial shape I° cascading normalized techniques (5) is used for updating the she,

$$I_t^k = I_t^{k-1} + T_{I_t^{k-1}}^{-1} T_I$$
(5)

The stage processor is k and I_t^k is new shape at stage k. It is notable that we have sheared and rotated the images using affine transform.

The schematic diagram of the proposed model diagrammatically is repeated for both training and testing phases. For facial landmark detection, we are using constrained local neural field model. The number of landmarks used in this experiment is 68. We apply affine transformation to the assembled landmarks obtained from the dataset. At every landmark, a matrix set of 64×64 pixels (patch) is generated so as to calculate variation in the nearby locations. Finally, the weight is assigned to each landmark which is computed by the ratio of inter-variance to intra-variance and the PCA model of each of 68 landmarks is generated. The affine transformation, thereafter applied, refines the distortions by various physical elements. Further for each landmark apply PCA model and find the nearest person that is found to be matched. The algorithmic steps of experimental work are represented by block diagram in Fig. 1.

4 Experimental Results Discussion and Analysis

4.1 Performance Measures

(a) Euclidean distance

The Euclidean distance of test face image to each face image is defined for two face matrices. If *x* and *y* be two face images represented as $x = (x^1, x^2, x^3, ..., x^{MN})$ and $y = (y^1, y^2, y^3, ..., y^{MN})$, then the Euclidean distance is given by Eq. (6)

$$d_E^2(x, y) = \sum_{k=1}^{MN} \left(x^k - y^k \right)^2$$
(6)

where x^k is a vector describing the *k*th face class.





(b) False Positive Rate (FPR) and True Positive Rate (TPR)

The sensitivity and specificity of the methods have been evaluated for ensuring the success rate of the methods. Sensitivity and specificity are defined as the probability of correctly recognizing a face and probability of correct rejected represented in (7) and (8), respectively.

$$Sensitvity = TP/(TP + FN)$$
(7)

In general, positive means identified and negative means rejected. Therefore, false positive rate is defined in terms of True Negative (TN) and False Positive (FP).

Specificity =
$$TN/(TN + FP)$$
 (8)

Each of terms used in (7) and (8) False negative (FN), False positive (FP), True negative (TN) and True positive (TP) has its meaningful importance like incorrectly rejected, incorrectly identified, correctly rejected and correctly identified, respectively.

(c) Receiver Operating Characteristics (ROC)

An ROC curve is a plot of a test's sensitivity (or true positive rate) versus false positive rate (or 1-specificity). This is the reason why it is preferred over simple estimates of sensitivity of specificity. The performance testing of algorithms is represented by drawing ROC curve which lies between True Positive Rate (or Sensitivity) and False Positive Rate (or specificity) and the further studies suggest that ROC curve which has a high sensitivity and specificity predict the better performance.

4.2 Performance Measures of the Proposed Method on ORL Database

The number of grayscale images of 40 persons is 400 in the AT&T database in which 10 images belongs to single person, with the resolution of 112×92 pixels. The sets of images were captured against a dark and homogeneous background, with scale variation up to 10% and tilt rotation up to -20° [17].

The training of ORL dataset. Figure 2 contains whole dataset while 20% of each individual are used as a testing samples. Figure 3 clearly shows that the area under the curves (AUC) corresponding to overall accuracy, illustrates that the proposed algorithm has maximum sensitivity and specificity as compared with other reported algorithms. In Table 1, the maximum recognition rate is 98.61 for PCA, PHOG and LHOG methods using Face95 database.

However, the maximum recognition rate with proposed method has been obtained as 98.95 for the same database. Referring this table, the minimum



Fig. 2 Sample image set of a subject in ORL database



Fig. 3 ROC plot for performance of face recognition algorithms on ORL database

Different datasets	PCA	LDA	PHOG	LHOG	Proposed method
ORL	91.13	97.46	94.43	97.46	98.73
Face94_female	87.50	90.75	86.25	87.50	88.50
Face_95	98.61	92.23	98.61	98.61	98.95

Table 1 Performance comparison of our model on different database

recognition rate obtained with PHOG methods is 86.25 for Face94_female database. From the above discussion, the proposed method offers better recognition rate than other reported techniques.

4.3 Performance Proposed Method on Face94 Database

The Face94 database is grouped into three directories such that the female (20), male (113) and male staff (20) of total 153 individuals. There are 20 images of each individual having a resolution of 180×200 pixels. The images of the individuals have been taken under considerable expression variation. All the images were captured against a plane of green background, with minor variation of head turn, tilt and slant [14]. Figure 4 shows the variation in the curve. It is reported in Table 2 that PHOG feature is stronger at ORL and Face_95 database. PHOG features are much more important in the domain of temporal analysis of facial matrices.



Fig. 4 ROC for performance comparison of PCA modeled algorithms on Face_95 and Face94_female database

4.4 Performance of the Proposed Method on Face95 Database

This is reported that local histogram of gradient (LHOG) is outperforming at PHOG, PCA and LDA for all the datasets. Our modeled PCA-based features are better than LHOG features which adds contribution marks for novelty to this work. PHOG and LHOG are good features which can extract very sensitive information to work in face biometric, sensitivity analysis and scene localization of any secured spatiotemporal data. It is shown in Fig. 4 by ROC curve for Face_95 and Face94_female database that the proposed modeled PCA architecture outperforms at the state of art for to recognize face in unconstraint environment.

5 Conclusion and Future Scope

The paper study was inspired by PCA, LDA, SIFT and HOG techniques available for face recognition. The proposed method in observation table generated shows that the proposed algorithm performed comparatively a contributed result in the state of art of the present scenario considering in unrestricted environment. Further studies and more real-time applications of the technique are highly encouraged and the improvement is being made to get further better results. The future scope of this work encourages the facial expression analysis and suspicions human facial action recognition in unconstraint environment using deep learning criterion.

References

- Kashyap, R., Tiwari, V.: Energy-based active contour method for image segmentation. Int. J. Electr. Healthc. 9(2–3), 210–225 (2017)
- Brendan, F.K., Jain, A.K.: Heterogeneous face recognition using kernel prototype similarities. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 35 (2013)
- 3. Min, R., Hadid, A., Dugelay, J.L.: Efficient detection of occlusion prior to robust face recognition. Sci. World J. (2014) (Article ID 19158, Hindawi Publishing Corporation)
- 4. Turk, M.A., Pentland, A.P.: Eigen faces for recognition. J. Cogn. Neurosci. 71-86 (1991)
- Belhumeur, P.N., Hespanha, J.P., Kriegman, D.J.: Eigenfaces vs. fisherfaces: recognition using class specific linear projection, IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 711–720 (1997)
- Dalal, N., Triggs, B.: Histograms of oriented gradients for human detection. In: International Conference on Computer Vision & Pattern Recognition, INRIA Rhone-Alpes, ZIRST-655, av. de l'Europe, Montbonnot-38334, vol. 2, pp. 886–893 (2005)
- 7. Bonnen, K., Klare, B., Jain, A.K.: Component-Based Representation in Automated Face Recognition. IEEE Trans. Inf. Forensics Secur. (2014)
- 8. Hua, G., Akbarzadeh, A.: A robust elastic and partial matching metric for face recognition. In: IEEE 12th International Conference on Computer Vision, pp. 2082–2089 (2009)
- Albiol, A., Monzo, D., Martin, A., Sastre, J., Albiol, A.: Face recognition using hog-ebgm. Pattern Recognit. Lett. 1537–1543 (2008)

- 10. Shen, L., Bai, L.: A review on Gabor wavelets for face recognition. Pattern Anal. Appl. 273–292 (2006)
- 11. Pinto, N., Carlo, D., J.J., Cox, D.D.: How far can you get with a modern face recognition test set using only simple features? In: IEEE CVPR (2009)
- 12. Wiskott, L., Fellous, J.M., Kuiger, N., Malsburg, C.V.D.: Face recognition by elastic bunch graph matching. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 775–779 (1997)
- Ojala, T., Pietikainen, M., Maenpaa, T.: Multiresolution gray-scale and rotation invariant texture classification with local binary patterns. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 971–987 (2002)
- Lowe, D.G.: Distinctive image features from scale-invariant keypoints. Int. J. Comput. Vis. 91–110 (2004)
- 15. Liu, C., Wechsler, H.: Gabor feature based classification using the enhanced fisher linear discriminant model for face recognition. IEEE Trans. Image Process. 467–476 (2002)
- Liao, S., Jain, A.K., Li, S.Z.: Partial face recognition: alignment-free approach. IEEE Trans. PAMI, 1193–1205 (2013)
- 17. Yi, D., Lei, Z., Li, S.Z.: Towards pose robust face recognition. In: Proceedings of the IEEE Conference on Computer Vision and Pattern Recognition, pp. 3539–3545 (2013)

WordNet-Based Text Categorization Using Convolutional Neural Networks

K. Premchander, S. S. V. N. Sarma, K. Vaishali, P. Vijaypal Reddy, M. Anjaneyulu and S. Nagaprasad

Abstract Text Categorization is a task of assigning documents to a fixed number of predefined categories. Concept is the grouping of semantically related items under a unique name. Dimensionality space and sparsity of the document representation can be reduced using concept generation. Conceptual representation of a text can be generated using WordNet. In this paper, an empirical evolution using Convolutional Neural Networks (CNN) for text categorization has been performed. The Convolutional Neural Networks exploit the one-dimensional structures of the text such as words, concepts, word embeddings, and concept embeddings to improve the categorical label prediction. The Reuter's dataset is evaluated with Convolutional Neural Networks on four categories of data. The representation of a text with word embeddings and concept embeddings together results to a better classification performance using CNN compared with word embeddings and concept embeddings individually.

S. S. V. N. Sarma Department of CSE, Vaagdevi College of Engineering, Warangal, India e-mail: ssvn.sarma@gmail.com

K. Vaishali Department of CSE, Jyothismathi Institute of Technology and Sciences, Karimnagar, India e-mail: vaishali5599@gmail.com

S. Nagaprasad S.R.R. Government Arts & Science College, Karimnagar, India e-mail: nagkanna80@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_25

K. Premchander (🖂) · M. Anjaneyulu

Department of Computer Science, Dravidian University, Kuppam, India e-mail: kpc.1279@gmail.com

M. Anjaneyulu e-mail: anjan.lingam1@gmail.com

P. Vijaypal Reddy Department of CSE, Matrusri Engineering College, Hyderabad, India e-mail: drvijayapalreddy@gmail.com

Keywords Text categorization • Convolutional Neural Networks Word embeddings • Concept embeddings • WordNet

1 Introduction

With the advent of Internet, the usage of Internet users was a big explosion in the history of information technology. As the availability of information increased and people were unable to utilize large amounts of information. Text Categorization is the main source for handling and organizing text data in which it assigns one or more class labels to a document according to their content. WordNet contains a set of synsets. A synsets are group of words having similar meaning. In WordNet, it establishes different relationships such as hyponym, hyponymy, or ISA relation among synsets. WordNet can be used in various applications such as Natural Language Processing (NLP), Text Processing, and Artificial Intelligence.

Deep Neural Networks have been the inspiration to various NLP tasks, and the Recursive NN considers the semantics of a sentence through a tree structure which reduces the effectiveness when we want to consider the whole document. To find a solution to this problem, in latest studies the Convolution Neural Network (CNN) model is used for NLP. The problem of high dimensionality and sparsity of data is addressed using Deep Neural Networks [1]. Word embedding is a generation of concepts from words. There are many tools available for word embeddings such as word2vec, Sen2Vec, and Glove. Word embeddings are an important concept in deep neural networks. In Bag-of-words model, the document is represented as a vector which contains words and their weights. The word embedding is used to generate concept vectors for a given word vectors. By using concept vectors, a semantic relationship among the objects is established.

The paper has organized into five sections. The related work has explained in Sect. 2. The proposed model is described, the detailed flow of work explained in Sect. 3. The description about the dataset, the performance evaluation measures, and the experimental evaluations are presented in Sect. 4. The inference from the obtained results and possible extensions to the proposed work is presented in Sect. 5.

2 Related Work

The text documents are represented using linear approaches such as bag-of-words approach and *n*-gram approach as in [1, 2]. But, the nonlinear approaches are proved to be more effective for text categorization in [3, 4]. In this paper, the focus is on Convolutional Neural Network approach for text categorization as proposed in [5].

For Text categorization, the documents are represented with set of features such unigrams, bigrams, *n*-grams. But the traditional methods to represent the document using bag-of-words representation suffer with the problem of identifying the semantically relationships among the terms in the document. There are some features such as second-order *n*-gram tree structures [6], proposed to capture the semantic relations among the terms in the document. But these features are suffered with the problem of data sparsity which reduces the performance of the classifiers. Nowadays, the developments in the deep neural networks and word embeddings lead to address the problems such as data sparsity in NLP tasks. As in [7, 8], word embeddings capture the semantic and syntactic relations among the terms in the document. As proposed in [9], the Recursive Neural Network (RNN) is more effective for sentence representation in semantic space. But RNN uses tree structures to represent the sentence in a document which is not suitable for long sentences. Another drawback is its heavy time complexity. RNN model stores the semantics of the term for each word using hidden layers as in [10].

Text Categorization contains three topics such as feature engineering, feature selection and machine learning algorithms. The Bag-of-Words (BOW) model is used for feature engineering. Some other features such as noun phrases, POS tagging have proposed in [11] and tree kernels in [12]. Identification of the suitable features from the documents can improve the performance the classification system. The commonly used process for text classification is elimination of stop words from the document. There are some approaches such as information gain, chi-square indexing, mutual information is used to identify the importance of the features in [13]. There are various machine learning algorithms which are used to build a learning model for classification. These methods lead to the problem of data sparsity. Deep neural networks as in [14] and representation learning in [15] are proposed to come out from the high dimensionality space and sparsity of data problems in the document representation as in [6, 16].

The representation of a word in the form of a neuron is known as embedding of word in the form of a vector. The word embedding is used to measure semantic relationship between two words using word vectors. With word embeddings in neural networks, the performance of classification models is improved. As in [17], semi-supervised recursive auto-encoders are used to identify sentiment terms from the sentences. As in [18], RNN is used to predict the paragraph detection. As in [19], the sentiments in tensor networks are explored using recursive neural tensor networks. As in [20], the language models are built using RNN. In [21], RNN is used for dialogue act classification.

3 Proposed Work

The proposed model consists of various phases such as preprocessing the training and testing dataset, constructing a vector space model using word embeddings and concept embeddings of the document and finally building a classification model Fig. 1 Preprocessing for the document



using CNN and assigning a class label to the test document using the classification model. The various steps are explained as follows:

3.1 Preprocessing

There are four steps involved in preprocessing the documents. In the first step, the non-content words are removed from the text. In the second step, the words are converted into their root forms. In third step, Part-Of-Speech (POS) tagging is assigned to each of the words. In the last step, stop words are removed from the text. The flow is shown in Fig. 1.

3.2 Proposed Model

The proposed model has presented in Fig. 2.

3.3 Convolutional Neural Network

Convolutional Neural Network (CNN) was proposed for handling various applications on digital image processing in [5]. CNN is a feed-forward neural network which contains a set of layers with a combination of pooling layers. In CNN, data are presented in the form of dimensional vectors in each layer. These low-dimensional vectors are called word embeddings. Using these embeddings, the



Fig. 2 Proposed model for text categorization

features which are presented in various layers can be identified. In CNN, the document is represented as a sequence of layers. The data presented in the layers are grouped into small regions. These regions are represented using low-dimensional vectors which are called word embeddings. The pooling layer in CNN combines the region of a word embeddings to represent a document vector to achieve maximum value per component. This method is proved to be better in performance for various applications compared with existing approaches.

3.4 Word2Vec

Each word in the text can be represented as a dimensional vector. These vectors are called word embeddings. Representation of words with its corresponding word embeddings is called Word2Vec model. The Word2Vec model is basically of two types such as Continuous Bag-Of-Words model (CBOW) and the Skip-Gram Bag-of-words model (SBOW). In CBOW model, the target words are derived from source context words, and in SBOW model, source words are predicted from the target words. CBOW model generates a smoothed curve on distributional information. The CBOW model is more useful for smaller datasets. SBOW model is more useful in the context of larger datasets. For text categorization, CBOW model is used to produce concept and word embeddings.

3.5 WordNet

WordNet is a thesaurus for the English language. It has many applications in various fields such as NLP, text mining, and information retrieval. WordNet is useful to find the semantic relationship among the words in a document. Many algorithms consider the height and depth of a word in the WordNet using synsets to get the closeness among the words based on its meaning. WordNet-based texts categorization has two stages. The first stage is learning phase, in which we get a new text by combining the terms with their relevant concepts. This enables to create categorical profiles based on characteristic features, and the second stage relates to the classification phase in which weights are given to the features in the categorical profiles.

3.6 Algorithm

Input: Training dataset and Test dataset

- Step 1: Preprocess the data for both training and test datasets using various preprocessing techniques.
- Step 2: Identify content terms from the training dataset and test dataset.
- Step 3: Identify unique concepts using WordNet from content terms.
- Step 4: Generate word embeddings and concept embeddings for content words and concepts derived from WordNet using Word2vec.
- Step 4: Represent each document of training and test datasets in vector space model using word embeddings and concept embeddings.
- Step 5: Construct a classifier using vector space model of documents with convolution neural networks.
- Step 6: Identify the class label of test document by inputting the vector space model to the classification model.

4 Evaluation and Discussions

In this paper, Reuter's dataset is used to carry the experiments to label the documents with predefined categories. The precision, recall, and F_1 measures are used to measure the performance of proposed classification model.

4.1 Dataset Description

In this paper, the experiments were performed on the Reuter's dataset. It contains four categories of dataset namely CRAN, CISI, CACM, and MED. For empirical evaluations, 800 documents are considered based on the minimum number of sentences in the document. From 800 documents, 640 documents were considered as training set and the remaining were considered as test set. After applying various preprocessing techniques, the vector representation of the documents with their word embeddings and concept embeddings are inputted to CNN model for classification model generation.

4.2 Evaluation Measures

The performance of the obtained classification model is measured using precision, recall, and F_1 measures. The formulas for calculating precision, recall, and F_1 measures are as follows:

Precision =
$$\frac{X}{X+Y}$$

Recall = $\frac{X}{X+Z}$
 $F_1 = \frac{2 * \text{Recall} * \text{Precision}}{\text{Recall} + \text{Precision}}$

X is the number of documents retrieved and relevant, Y shows the number of documents retrieved but not relevant, Z is the number of documents relevant but not retrieved for a given query. F_1 measure is calculated using precision and recall.

4.3 Results

The efficiency of a classifier is measured on the test set by using precision, recall, and F_1 measures. Out of 800 documents, 640 documents are considered as training set and the remaining 160 are documents as test set. The results of our experiments are given in Table 1.

From the results, it is observed that the learning a classification model using word embeddings gains better precision, recall, and F_1 measure values compared with classification model with concept embeddings only. But combining word embeddings and concept embeddings together to train the Convolutional Neural Network leads to best classification performance.
Document representation	Precision	Recall	F_1 measure
Word embeddings	0.85	0.92	0.88
Concept embeddings	0.79	0.84	0.81
Word embeddings + Concept embeddings	0.89	0.95	0.92

Table 1 Precision, recall, and F_1 measure values using Convolution Neural Networks approach for word embeddings, concept embeddings and with their combination

5 Conclusions and Future Scope

The proposed model captures contextual information and constructs the representation of text using a Convolutional Neural Network for Text Categorization. It demonstrates that our model of Convolutional Neural Network gives best results using four different Reuter's datasets. In this paper, a new approach for Text Categorization is proposed by considering concept embeddings using WordNet. The experimental results with Reuters 21,578 dataset proved that the background knowledge to establish the relationships between words leads to effective classification performance. A possible extension to the proposed work is utilization of more suitable weighting techniques for representation of terms and concepts. It is also required to experiment with various possible Deep Neural Network approaches for different term representation techniques.

References

- 1. Thorsten: TC with SVM and Learn relevant features, ECML (1998)
- Yang, E.T.: Semi supervised RNN classification of text with word embedding. JMLR Res. 5, 361–397 (2004)
- Dai, A.M., Le, Q.V.: Semi-supervised sequence learning. Adv. Neural Inf. Process. Syst. 3079–3087 (2015)
- Zhang, X., Zhao, J., LeCun, Y.: Character-level convolutional networks for text classification. Adv. Neural Inf. Process. Syst. 649–657 (2015)
- Johnson, R., Zhang, T.: Semi-supervised convolutional neural networks for text categorization via region embedding. Adv. Neural Inf. Process. Syst. 919–927 (2015)
- Aggarwal, C.C., Zhai, C.: A survey of text classification algorithms. Mining text data, 163– 222 (2012)
- 7. Dinu, G.: Predict a systematic compare of context counting using context predict semantic vector. ACL, 238–247 (2012)
- 8. Vincent, P.: ANN probabilistic model of a language. JMLR 3, 1137, 1155 (2003)
- Bengio, Y., Courville, A., Vincent, P.: Representation learning: a review and new perspectives. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 35(8), 1798–1828 (2013)
- Bottou, L.: Learning of gradient in networks using CNN. In: Proceedings on Neuro-Nimes, vol. 91 (1999)
- 11. Bloehdorn, S., Hotho, A.: Boosting for text classification with semantic features. In: WebKDD, pp. 149–166 (2004)
- 12. Johnson, M.: Maxent discriminative re-ranking and Coarse-to-fine n-best parsing. In: Association for Computational Linguistics, pp. 173–180 (2005)

- 13. Collobert, R., Weston, J., Bottou, L., Karlen, M., Kavukcuoglu, K., Kuksa, P.: Natural language processing (almost) from scratch. J. Mach. Learn. Res. **12**, 2493–2537 (2011)
- 14. Cover, T.M., Thomas, J.A.: Elements of Information Theory. Wiley (2012)
- 15. Glänzel, Wolfgang, Thijs, Bart: Using 'core documents' for detecting and labelling new emerging topics. Scientometrics **91**(2), 399–416 (2012)
- Hinton, G.E, Salakhutdinov, R.R.: Reducing the dimensionality of data with neural networks. Science, 313(5786), 504–507 (2006)
- Huang, E.H., Socher, R., Manning, C.D., Ng, A.Y.: Improving word representations via global context and multiple word prototypes. In: Proceedings of the 50th Annual Meeting of the Association for Computational Linguistics: Long Papers, vol. 1, pp. 873–882. Association for Computational Linguistics (2012)
- Kalchbrenner, N., Blunsom, P.: Recurrent convolutional neural networks for discourse compositionality. arXiv preprint arXiv:1306.3584 (2013)
- 19. Klementiev, A., Titov, I., Bhattarai, B.: Inducing crosslingual distributed representations of words (2012)
- 20. Mikonos, T.: Distributed representations of sentences and docs. ICML (2014)
- Sutskever, I.: Distributional representations of words and phrases and their composite. NIPS, 3111–3119 (2013)
- 22. Mikolov, T., Yih, W., Zweig, G.: Linguistic regularities in continuous space word representations. In hlt-Naacl 13, 746–751 (2013)

DTFA Rule Mining-Based Model to Predict Students' Performance

Sushil Kumar Verma, Shailesh Jaloree and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract Nowadays data mining plays an important role in various fields. This field may be related to education, agriculture or medicine. Education is an important part of human life. With the help of data mining in education called educational data mining, we achieve quality education, which is very essential not only for growth of students as well as country. Based on quality education, we achieve and improve performance of students. We can use the different data mining techniques to improve performance of students. This paper's contents indicate the sort out the performance of students basis on 12th and graduation level marks, previous semester marks (PSM), mid sem marks (MSM), attendance (ATT) and end semester marks (ESM). Using attributes, conclude the recital of students in end semester. In this paper, for classification, we used decision tree algorithm, and for fuzzy association mining, we used the modified Apriori-like method. In this paper, we will merge these rules which are generated from decision tree algorithm and Apriori-like algorithm.

Keywords Educational data mining (EDM) • Knowledge discovery Decision tree • Classification • Fuzzy association rule mining

S. K. Verma (🖂)

S.A.T.I, Vidisha, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: sushilverma81@gmail.com

S. Jaloree

Department of Applied Mathematics and Computer Science, S.A.T.I, Vidisha, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: shailesh_jaloree@rediffmail.com

R. S. Thakur Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_26

1 Introduction

In the present day, data gathering is no longer costly and hard job. As an effect, datasets are growing explosively. To take out the knowledge from these datasets has attracted a great deal of scientific attention and has become an important research area. "Data mining is a flourishing research field and has become a synonym for the process of extracting hidden and useful information from datasets" [1–3]. Data mining in education belongs to Educational Data Mining that investigates information from data which find out from educational environments [4–6]. One of the main concerns of higher educational system is evaluating and enhancing the educational organization. These days' higher educational organizations are placing in a high competitive environment and are aiming to get more competitive advantages over the other business competitors [7-9]. The focus of higher educational institutions is to serve merit education to its students. Educational data mining uses many techniques such as decision trees, neural networks, k-nearest neighbor, naive Bayes, support vector machines and many others. Using these techniques, various kinds of knowledge can be discovered such as association rules, classifications and clustering [9-11]. In this paper, student's performance is figured out with the help of decision tree algorithm and fuzzy association rule mining. For classification, we used decision tree algorithm, and for fuzzy association mining, we used the modified Apriori-like method.

2 Rules Generated by Decision Tree

2.1 Preparation of Data

The data used in this work was acquired from SATI, Vidisha (Madhya Pradesh) and size of the data is 50. Here, we have described only few student records as shown in Table 1 [12]. Here, PAR means previous academic records, PSM means previous semester marks, ATT means attendance, MSM means mid sem marks and ESM means end semester marks (Fig. 1).

S. No.	Sch. No.	12	Graduate	PAR	PSM	ATT	MSM	ESM
1	MCA/19373	75.61	80.39	78.00	77.00	81	18	65.00
2	MCA/19353	71.11	72.89	72.00	82.00	80	15	65.00

Table 1 Student record dataset



Fig. 1 Extracting information from data [12, 19]

2.1.1 Data Cleaning

The dataset which is collected from SATI Vidisha needs to undergo cleaning. All the predictor and response variables which were derived from the database are given in Table 2 for Refs. [11-14].

2.1.2 Data Transformation

Transform of student data record is shown in Table 3 [12, 14–16]. Data transformation such as PAR is split into four class values: first $\geq 60\%$, second $\geq 45\%$ and <60\%, third $\geq 33\%$ and <45\%, Fail <33%.

2.1.3 Rules Obtained by Using Decision Tree

if $PSM = first$ then $ESM = first$
if PSM = second, if PAR = first, if ATT = poor then ESM = second
if PSM = second, if PAR = first, if ATT = good average then ESM = first
if $PSM = fail$ then $ESM = fail$
if $PSM = third$, if $PAR = second then ESM = third$
if PSM = third, if PAR = first then ESM = second

 Table 2 Highlighted records after data cleaning process

S. No.	PAR	PSM	ATT	MSM	ESM
1	78.00	77.00	81	18	65.00
2	72.00	82.00	80	15	65.00

Table 3 Data transformation

S. No.	PAR	PSM	ATT	MSM	ESM
1	'first'	'first'	'good'	'good'	'first'
2	'first'	'first'	'good'	'average'	'first'

Define fuzzy set → Data Transformation → Fuzzy Normalization→ Frequent Itemset→ Analysis of Result→ Knowledge Discovery
۱۱

Fig. 2 Schematic view of frequently closed itemset discovery [17, 18]

Above rules are generated using decision tree on dataset50 with 100% density. We can observe from the above rule that if the student fails in last semester or got third division and PAR is second then ESM will be third division.

3 Rules Generated by Fuzzy Association Rule Mining

Fuzzy association rule mining is separated into different steps [17, 18] (Fig. 2).

3.1 Rules Obtained by Using the Apriori-Like Algorithm

if $MSM = good$ then $ESM = first$
if $PAR = first$, if $MSM = good$ then $ESM = first$
if ATT = poor, if MSM = poor then ESM = fail
if PAR = third, if MSM = poor then ESM = fail

Above rules are generated on dataset50 with highest percentage support count and confidence. We can observe from above rule that student is good in MSM then he/she will be first in ESM.

4 Proposed Methodology

In this section, the classification based on decision tree and fuzzy association rule mining algorithm is used to evaluate student's performance.

4.1 Algorithm

Input: Training quantitative data D, parameters control: minsup. **Output**: Rules Generated by Decision Tree and Fuzzy Classification Association mining.

Preprocessing Phase:

The dataset D needs to undergo cleaning.

Method:

Step 1: In order to use student data record D for generating rules, the data is to be transformed. So another set of records D1 with same attributes is used but, in this case, the numeric values are converted into string values according to the given criteria given is Sect. 2.

D1 := DataTransform(D);

Step 2: Apply the decision tree algorithm as defined in Sect. 2 on the data D1 received from the previous step. We also supply Target_Attribute C and Attribute_List L to the decision tree algorithm. The output of this step is the rules generated by decision tree. Store these rules to variable R1.

R1 = DecisionTree(DataSetD1, Target Attribute C, Attribute List L);

Step 3: Recent dataset D2 enabling the mining of fuzzy association rules has to be built out of the data D. For every fuzzy set that we have defined in Sect. 3, there is one column in the new database containing the grade of membership of the single items to the specific set.

D2 = FuzzyDomain(D);

Step 4: The quantitative attribute showed by fuzzy sets D2 may contribute more than one in rows. Here, the fuzzy normalization procedure takes place. So in this step, fuzzy normalization is applied on the dataset, which yields normalized data DN.

$$DN = Normalization(D2);$$

Step 5: In this step, we apply improved Apriori algorithm based on matrix and vector multiplication and support matrix to identify frequent itemset. The rule generated by this step is stored in variable R2.

$$R2 = Apriori(D2);$$

Step 6: Merge the rule generated by Step 2 and Step 5, to find out the best appropriate rules that present in first or second or both techniques.

Rules =
$$R1 \cup R2$$
;

Based on the rule generated in Step 6, we can conclude the knowledge that describes students' potentials in end semester examination. It helps to identify the poor students who need of observation.

5 Result and Discussion

Table 4 depicts the statistics of test dataset. On different densities, methods were able to discover all closed patterns for both the database. The results show that our method outperforms rules generation and provides the minimum running times in all cases, especially when the number of rows is higher. It observed that number of rules and entropy of dataset increased when we increase the density of dataset. The Gini index measures the impurity of dataset, a data partition or set of training tuples. We can see from the table when the density of dataset50 increases, values of Gini Index also increased means impurity of dataset50 also increases but when the density of dataset154 increases, values of Gini Index decreased means impurity of dataset50 decreases.

It was observed that the as the percentage of minimum support and minimum confidence increases, infrequent itemsets are removed that lead to decreasing in no. of rules generated. We can also observe from table that increases execution time is conversely proportional to minimum support, since it grows as minimum support diminishes. We depict that the effect of no. of rules obtained and execution time with respect to minsup and minconf (Figs. 3 and 4).

Table 5 depicts merged decision tree and fuzzy rule mining results, and this will helpful for the students to enhance academic performance.

Dataset	Density (%)	Entropy	Gini index	Time (s)	Rules
Dataset50	25	0.77323	0.27219	0.04899	04
Dataset50	50	1.4692	0.6112	0.06885	10
Dataset50	75	1.7083	0.69252	0.08351	12
Dataset50	100	1.9790	0.7432	0.13302	15
Dataset154	25	1.1487	0.52465	0.07293	09
Dataset154	50	1.0850	0.51138	0.09253	11
Dataset154	75	1.0197	0.47893	0.09981	11
Dataset154	100	0.94812	0.43793	0.1426	19

Table 4 Performance test using proposed method



Fig. 3 Representation of minsup, minconf on no. of rules on dataset50



Fig. 4 Representation of minsup, minconf on time on dataset50

Tuble C itales obtained by proposed D if it infining on Datasets o	Table 5	Rules	obtained	by	proposed	DTFA	mining	on	Dataset50
---	---------	-------	----------	----	----------	------	--------	----	-----------

S. No.	Rules generated by DTFARM
1	if PAR = first, if MSM = good then ESM = first
2	if PSM = fail then ESM = fail
3	if PSM = first then ESM = first
4	if PSM = second, if PAR = first, if ATT = average then ESM = first
5	if PSM = second, if PAR = first, if ATT = good then ESM = first
6	if PSM = second, if PAR = first, if ATT = poor then ESM = second
7	if PSM = second, if PAR = second, if ATT = average then ESM = second
8	if PSM = second, if PAR = second, if ATT = good then ESM = second
9	if PSM = second, if PAR = second, if ATT = poor, if MSM = average then
	ESM = second
10	if PSM = second, if PAR = second, if ATT = poor, if MSM = poor then ESM = third

6 Conclusion

There is large amount of work to do, especially on fuzzy association mining algorithm. In first place, its quality has to be investigated by comparing results of decision tree to the results of fuzzy frequent itemset discovery method. Comparing these algorithms would make it possible to evaluate the quality of the implemented proposed algorithm by finding out whether it discovers all relevant itemsets or not. Also, the speed of both methods is still to be compared because it is not known whether the proposed algorithm is as efficient as other algorithms in a fuzzy context. In this paper, we have proposed a novel and efficient method to find out the frequent closed itemsets on the dataset50 and dataset154.

References

- 1. Romero, C., Ventura, S., Garcia, E.: Data mining in course management systems: moodle case study and tutorial. Comput. Educ. **51**(1), 368–384 (2008)
- Krpan, D., Stankov, S.: Educational data mining for grouping students in e-learning system. In: Proceeding of ITI 2012 34th International Conference on Information Technology Interfaces (2012)
- Tiwari, V., Tiwari, V., Gupta, S., Tiwari, R.: Association rule mining: a graph based approach for mining frequent itemsets. In: International Conference on Networking and Information Technology (ICNIT), pp. 309–313. IEEE (2010)
- 4. Han, J., Kamber, M.: In: Jim Gray (Series ed.) Data Mining: Concepts and Techniques. The Morgan Kaufmann Series in Data Management Systems, 2nd ed. (2006)
- Smith, W.: Applying data mining to scheduling courses at a university. Commun. Assoc. Inf. Syst. 16(23) (2005)
- Kifaya, S.: Mining student evaluation using associative classification and clustering. Commun. IBIMA 11, 1943–7765 (2009)
- 7. Romero, C., Ventura, S.: Educational data mining: a Survey from 1995 to 2005. Expert Syst Appl **33**, 135–146 (2007)
- Romero, C.: Educational data mining: a review of the state of the art. IEEE Trans. Syst. MAN Cybern. Part C Appl. Rev 40(6) (2010)
- Ayesha, S., Mustafa, T., Raza Sattar, A., Inayat Khan, M.: Data mining model for higher education system. Eur. J. Scientific Res. 43(1), 24–29 (2010)
- Henrik, C.A.: Clustering as a Data Mining Method in a Web-based System for Thoracic Surgery (2001)
- Khan, Z.N.: Scholastic achievement of higher secondary students in science stream. J. Social Sci. 1(2), 84–87 (2005)
- 12. Sushil, V., Thakur, R.S., Jaloree, S.: A novel approach to predict the performance of student and knowledge discovery based on previous record. Br. J. Comput. Sci. Math. **9**(1) (2015)
- 13. Mannila, H.: Data mining: machine learning, statistics, and databases. IEEE (1996)
- 14. Han, J., Kamber, M.: Data Mining: Concepts and Techniques. Morgan Kaufmann (2000)
- 15. El-Halees, A.: Mining students data to analyze e-learning behavior: a case study (2009)

- Hijazi, S.T., Naqvi, R.S.M.M.: Factors affecting student's performance: a case of private colleges, Bangladesh. e-J. Sociol. 3(1) (2006)
- 17. Zadeh, L.A.: Fuzzy sets as a basis for a theory of possibility. Fuzzy Sets Syst. 3-28 (1965)
- Verma, S., Thakur, R.S., Jaloree, S.: Fuzzy association rule mining based model to predict students' performance. IJECE Scopus Indexed J. (2017) (accepted)
- 19. Fayadd, U., Piatetsky-Shapiro, G., Smyth, P.: Data Mining to Knowledge Discovery in Databases. AAAI Press, The MIT Press, Massachusetts Institute Of Technology (1996)

Toward Smarter Hadoop's Slaves Nodes by Deploying Game Theory Strategies

Ahmed Qasim Mohammed and Aman Singh

Abstract As each one of us recognized the high speed of evaluation in the technologies field, the result of which is generating a huge amount of data which is known as Big Data. For this Big Data, there is need for an efficient distributed system to process this data and here came the Hadoop. Hadoop is one of the important frameworks in distributed system that has many other applications to process data. There are many researchers working to improve the performance of Hadoop, but in all literature the main focus is to improve the Master node, while it is important to try and provide a smarter Slaves node that can cooperate or predict what other Slaves node strategies to pick up the Job. In this paper, our study focuses on Game theory domain such as Nash equilibrium and bargaining strategy, second is Artificial intelligent to propose a smarter system even slave nodes in it can take a decision, especially that the core of Hadoop System is adopting a pull-scheduling strategy. We believe our work is going to improve resources utilization and minimize the processing time of Jobs.

Keywords Hadoop • Nash equilibrium • Bargaining strategy • Big data Artificial intelligent • Resource utilization

1 Introduction

From long back, organization has been generating data, but as uprising of the new technologies (Social Media, Smart phones, etc.) more and more data is being generated, according to a survey that shows 90% of data was generated in last five years. For example, most people have a cell phone; whenever your cell phone is switched on it is connected to service provider towers as you are changing your

Savitribai Phule Pune University, Pune, India e-mail: Ahmed.altaj@yahoo.com

A. Singh e-mail: be.cse.aman@gmail.com

A. Q. Mohammed $(\boxtimes) \cdot A$. Singh

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_27

place you will be connected to different towers and this generates data which is beneficial for the service provider to find dead spots in the coverage, many another example such as in social media where they analyze your data to predict what are you looking for so they will show you advertisement related to your preferences.

The increase in the amount of data leads to a problem of how the data will be stored and processed, etc. Many useful things can be done by using Big Data but before all of that, there is need for an efficient framework to store and process this messy amount of data; developers at Google published various research papers which were the first step toward one of the important frameworks nowadays which is known as Hadoop.

Hadoop [1–6] came to life in 2006 with the help of Yahoo and many other researchers. Day after day, Hadoop continues growing as an open-source system to be used now by thousands of companies, as there were many others projects growing up parallel with Hadoop. This growth led Hadoop to be the kernel of an operating system for Big Data and many other tools were added in Hadoop framework, to make processing of data easier by these tools and MapReduce.

Hadoop core project consists of mainly two parts which we like to call them heart and memory of Hadoop.

- MapReduce [1] is the heart of Hadoop where all data are processed.
- HDFS [1] (Hadoop Distributed File System) is the memory of Hadoop and has very important features which work to make Hadoop a fault tolerance system.

As it's shown in Fig. 1 the Hadoop Processing Diagram. Hadoop consists of many software that made its environment easier to be used even by

Fig. 1 Hadoop processing diagram



non-programmer users such as Pig, Hive, Impala, and HBase. In this paper, our main focus is how to deploy Game theory strategies such as Nash equilibrium so here we are going to take look on Game theory. Game theory is taking care on any case where there are two or more factors or organization, etc., both of them taking some strategies that effect on the other side. Game theory it's one of the important science which was very efficient in the strategies of the cold war, in economics taking decision etc., it started by the Mathematician John von Neumann in 1943. Mathematicians were wrong when they consider the one party will always be selfish while taking any strategies; here, John Nash invented his law bargaining strategy [7] and said his revision on Adam Smith had said: In competition, individual ambition serves the common good. But John said that each party must cooperate to let each one win and no one crosses others line, so all will be the winner and this form of bargaining strategy became a theory and we are going to deploy it into Hadoop framework.

Scheduling task in MapReduce is one of the critical issues. Therefore, many researches have been done in this area to improve performance of Hadoop, such as The Capacity Scheduler [8] which proposed by Yahoo!, Hadoop Fair Scheduler [8] which worked to share resources between tasks, Qauincy scheduler [9] provided for Dryad environment [10]. There is DynamicMR framework to optimize slot allocation in MapReduce v1. Also, there is effort to propose new schedulers with a different idea such as PRISM [11] algorithm which schedules phases instead of the task to increase parallelism and uses management law to manage the queue of a task which leads to finding way of balancing between Makespan time and total completion time [12].

2 Motivation

All previous researchers were working on improving the scheduling algorithms, dynamic slots configuration, tuning parameters, or job ordering. All previous techniques are important to improve but no one went into giving more authorities to Slave node to take decision and pick up the most utilize job to give the best process to it and all this process will be under control of master node. In our proposed system, slave will be cooperative or the will have others slave features to be able to predict the best decision and this will increase resource utilization, will minimize overload on Mast node, and minimize processing time.

3 Proposed System Architecture

Our proposed system is significant as nobody before us went toward giving an ability to slave node to take the decision, according to our research and the uprising in the hardware field this made slave node much powerful. The proposed system



Fig. 2 System architectures

depends on game theory strategies, especially on the Nash equilibrium where everyone will do best for himself and for the group so all will win. Figure 2 is the proposed architecture for deploying Nash equilibrium in the infrastructure of Hadoop.

The work of proposed system explained following:

- Master node will receive jobs in the same strategies that default Hadoop follows.
- Jobs in Master node will be listed in Job list and will be updated periodically to the Slave node.
- Master Node will update all other slave nodes periodically with node features of other nodes.
- Each Slave node will update master node with a HeartBeat message periodically to update master node with new features which will be distributed to another node.
- Slave node will work according to data which was updated from Master node, and Slave node will work according to two conditions to pick up job and start processing
 - Compare local node features with the job requirements, if this node is able to
 process that job, it will compute the second condition.
 - Is that job will maximize resource utilization? If yes it will continue to process it otherwise it will give to another node which will have more utilized resources while processing that job.
- Always Master node will be in the position to control all this process to guarantee the best result.

The example explains our proposed system more clearly. There are four porters each one of them has different capacity to carry different weight, and there are four different types of goods with different weight. If the powerful porter will carry lighter weight and he will finish his job quickly but he has to wait for other three to complete the job, so in this case, there will be waste of time and consumption for other three Porter's power. But if each one of porter will be cooperative with others, they will complete the work with minimum time and waste less power.

4 Conclusion and Future Work

The high speed of rising in the technologies field which generates enormous data every day need more efficient system to process and store data, for that there is Hadoop but even the successes of Hadoop there is need to improve the performance of Hadoop, there are many researchers trying to improve scheduling algorithms, I/O, and much other technique. But no one goes toward slave nodes to make them smarter and able to take decision instead of processing only. So in this paper, we are proposing a significant system architecture that will improve Hadoop performance by deploying game theory strategies in default Hadoop. Future work will continue in implementing our proposed system with adding more characteristics such as dynamic slot configuration and monitoring job processing in each phase of MapReduce. Also, we are doing more research to understand more strategies of game theory.

References

- Dean, J., Ghemawat, S.: MapReduce: simplified data processing on large clusters. Commun. ACM 51(1), 107–113 (2008)
- White, T.: How the MapReduce works, Hadoop: The Definitive Guide, 3rd edn. O'Reilly Inc., Tokyo, Japan (2012)
- Borthakur, D.: The hadoop distributed file system: architecture and design. Hadoop Project Website 11(2007), 21 (2007)
- 4. deRoos, D.: Hadoop for Dummies. A Wiley Brand (2014)
- 5. Lam, C.: Hadoop in Action. Manning Publications Co. http://hadoop.apache.org (2010)
- 6. Yahoo! Inc.: Capacity scheduler. http://developer.yahoo.com/blogs/hadoop/posts/2011/02/ capacity-scheduler/
- 7. Nash Jr., J.F.: The bargaining problem. Econometr. J. the Econometr. Soc., 155-162 (1950)
- Zaharia, M., Konwinski, A., Joseph, A.D., Katz, R., Stoica, I.: Improving MapReduce performance in heterogeneous environments. In: OSDI 2008, pp. 29–42. USENIX Association, Berkeley (2008)
- Isard, M., Prabhakaran, V., Currey, J., Wieder, U., Talwar, K., Goldberg, A.: Quincy: fair scheduling for distributed computing clusters. In: Proceedings of the ACM SIGOPS 22nd symposium on operating systems principles, pp. 261–276. ACM (2009)
- Isard, M., Budiu, M., Yu, Y., Birrell, A., Fetterly, D.: Dryad: distributed data-parallel programs from sequential building blocks. In: ACM SIGOPS Operating Systems Review, vol. 41, No. 3, pp. 59–72. ACM (2007)

- 11. Zhang, Q., Zhani, M., Yang, Y., Boutaba, R., Wong, B.: PRISM: fine-grained resource-aware scheduling for MapReduce. IEEE Trans. Cloud Comput. **3**, 182–194 (2015)
- 12. Tang, S., Lee, B.S., He, B.: Dynamic job ordering and slot configurations for MapReduce workloads. IEEE Trans. Serv. Comput. 9, 4–17 (2016)
- 13. Polo, J., Becerra, Y., Carrera, D., Steinder, M.: Deadline-based MapReduce workload management. IEEE Trans. Netw. Serv. Manag. 10, 231–244 (2013)
- 14. Tang, S., Lee, B.S., He, B.: MROrder: Flexible Job Ordering Optimization for Online MapReduce Workloads, vol. 8097, pp. 291–304 (2013)

An Abstract Model for Adaptive Access Control in Cloud Computing

Amardeep Kaur and Amandeep Verma

Abstract Cloud computing is a paradigm that presents network access to pooled configurable computing resources on demand. Resource management has an immense role in authorization and access control. In computing clouds, it is desirable, to avoid underutilization and over-utilization of computing resources because these may result wasting of resources or leads to lengthy response times. The factors related to operational and situational awareness can affect an access control system and ultimately the utilization of resources. The present study is intended to develop an adaptive access control model. The user behaviour is assessed in terms of the usage of resources by characterizing the cloud workload. This assessment is stored in the knowledge base. A recommender system uses the knowledge base to make the decisions about the adaption of access control policies, in order to get effective usage of the resources of cloud. The present paper presents an abstract representation of such model and its operational behaviour.

Keywords Access control model · Cloud computing

1 Introduction

Cloud computing [1, 17] is a paradigm that presents network access to pooled configurable computing resources on demand. The resources can be physical resources like CPU, memory and storage and/or logical resources like operating system, applications and API. An access control system controls and decides the activities of legitimate users as per the specifications of access permissions and privileges in access security policy. It consists of a set of components and methods. The cloud computing environment requires that the access control should have the

A. Kaur (🖂) · A. Verma

Punjabi University Regional Centre, Mohali, India e-mail: amardeep_tiet@yahoo.com

A. Verma e-mail: vaman71@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_28 269

capability and flexible enough to handle the diversity of services, versatility and randomness in behaviours of consumers. Resource management [2] deals with the management of the objects, their characteristics and relations among such objects. It is deemed to be a component of authorization management and access control in access control policy. Resource management has an immense role in authorization and access control. The number, categories and granularity of resources affect the representation of access control policy and the effect of access control. Resource allocation [3] often allocates more computing resources in order to meet the requirements of the particular application in its peak load. Overall, the underutilization of computing resources is a consequence of such peak-load-based static resource allocation. So to enhance the utilization of resources and reduction of the user usage cost, the allocation of the resources among the cloud computing applications is dynamic. Generally, in the duration of application, its workload fluctuates. The workload varies in amount and/or composition. Users most of the times overestimate the resources needed to compute a task. Generally, resource utilization and submission pattern varies significantly from user to user [4]. The complex nature of cloud workload broadens the gap between resource allocation and its demand and can be the reason of resource underutilization [5]. For the obvious reasons, avoidance of wasting of the resources that are by reason of underutilization, and reduction in lengthy response times that are because of over-utilization, is advantageous [6]. The aspects concerned to operational and situational responsiveness can influence an access control system. Audit is an essential phase for access control systems for the assessment of such factors. In access control systems, an audit has to record decisions, i.e. either grant or deny, and also accounts the grounds for such results. A flexible access control [7] decision system made future access decision decisions on the basis of outcomes of access control system. Depending on such decisions, access of the user to the resource should be correspondingly relaxed or restricted. The present study is intended to develop an adaptive access control model. The user behaviour is assessed in terms of the usage of resources by characterizing the cloud workload. This assessment is stored in the knowledge base. A recommender system uses the knowledge base to make the decisions about the adaption of access control policies, in order to get effective usage of the resources of cloud. The present paper is a part of this study and presents an abstract representation of such model and its operational behaviour.

2 Related Work

A self-adaptive system (SAS) is adaptable to dynamic user requirements, operating environment and resource availability [8]. Self-adaptive systems change their behaviour whenever the monitoring shows the system accomplishment is diverting from its stated purpose or its performance is below than expectation. Self-adaptive systems in general exercise a feedback mechanism for self-adaptation. The feedback loop involves four modules. The first module is to gather the essential data for self-adaptation. The application of model on gathered information performs the analysis in the second module. A decision to adapt the system so as to attain the desired state is the functionality of the third module. The implementation of re-configured system settings as a result of the decision made is the job of the fourth module. Another self-adaptive access control model [4] relied on feedback loop was proposed. The essential components to come to a decision on access requests are monitor, analyse, plan, execute parts and knowledge base, and the knowledge base is used. The knowledge base enrichment and enhancement with the passage of run-time of the system lead to the continuing improvement of the efficiency of access control decisions. Initially, the knowledge base consists some basic rules without any judgement knowledge a priori. The contents of knowledge gradually strengthened with the passage of time. The analysis of various performance features at hardware and software level workload modelling [4] was used. The workload performance analysis is a methodology to conclude the relationship involving the requirements of the user and the number of requests issued by the user, the variety of operations and other relevant workload parameters.

A hierarchical model [10] with three layers—users, application and services was devised for unified workload modelling of the varied applications with different users for a range of services in a cloud environment. Performance analysis and by this means, the assessment and amendment of policies with workload modelling [11] can be performed. The assessment of resource management policies agreed to better of cloud QoS. A method for workload estimation [12] for improving resource management decisions in the cloud was suggested. A generic black-box approach [13] for the establishment of relationship for resource attributes users' behaviour was presented. For optimization of the resource reallocation decision, a dynamic allocation of virtual resources among the cloud computing processes using threshold method [3] was presented.

3 Abstract Model for Adaptive Access Control

The model shown in Fig. 1 consists of number of components. The structure and interaction of the various components are as follows.

3.1 Abstract Model Representation

Various components of the model are defined below.

User This component consists of two modules, namely user profile and request profile. The inputs to this component are the credentials of the user that are used to verify the user and the request profile specify the request by the user. The user profile basically involves the user id, role, request submission rate, number and type



Fig. 1 Abstract model for adaptive access control

of submitted requests and any other information required by the access control module. The request profile gives the details of the request in terms of the type of request, number and types of resources and amount of resources required. This module is substantiated with the roles component for role profiles and role assignments. The role profile basically consists the type of tasks allowed for the stated role, and the role assignment is used to assign the roles to various users. This component is supported by the literature [10]. It is the user and the assigned role(s) that has direct effect on the access control and usage of the resources.

Access Control The access control component has policy enforcement point (PEP), policy decision point (PDP), policy database (PD) and policy manager (PM). The PEP is responsible for the enforcement of the defined policies. The PDP is to make a decision about the grant or denial of a request by the user. PD is a repository for defined policies, and the PM is attributed to administer the PD. This architecture is supported by a number of studies [7, 14]. This part is adaptive access control as it adapts to the behaviour of the user and role profiles. It is the central component of the model as it has the overall control over the access of resources of the cloud.

Workload Characterization Workload is a specification of a chosen VM together with its detailed application configuration, as well as the expected input and resource demands. Workload modelling is to analyse performance characteristics of a given system, both on the hardware and software levels. Workload characterization mainly has the evaluation module to characterize the workload on a cloud in terms of virtual machine, application and tasks with metrics like CPU usage, assigned memory, observed real memory usage, response time, input–output time and disk space for task monitoring [15]. A variety of references are based on it [4, 11, 12, 16]. This is the most important component of the model as the righteous behaviour of proposed model relies on the perfection of the workload characterization.

Knowledge Base It has two modules: one is to collect the data for the knowledge base and other is to organize such knowledge in order to create the knowledge base. This component is based on the idea presented in the paper [18]. A proper transformation of data to information and from information to knowledge is one of the goals of this component. An appropriate organization of the knowledge for accurate, multidimensional and quick access to the knowledge is desirable.

Recommender System It is with analysis and a decision module. The analysis is to analyse the knowledge bases for any recommendations to the ACM, and the decision module is to decide whether to apply the recommendations or not. The rationale behind this component is on the bases of studies in the literature [8, 9]. It is a suggestive module for an adaptive access control model for efficient utilization of the resources of the cloud.

Requirements of the Model The basic requirements of the stated model are as follows:

- All users have at least one role
- There are number of users with the same role
- A user may have number of requests
- A request belongs to single user
- A request may use number of applications for its purpose
- An application may be the requirement of number of requests
- An application may consist one or more tasks
- A single task may be the requirement of one or more application execution
- A task may use variety of resources for its completion
- A single resource may be virtually allocated to number of tasks

3.2 Operational Behaviour

User submits the credential and the request to user module. The credentials submitted by user assist in designating role. The user is supposed to have some role assigned by the role assignment with the role profile before any request for the usage of services. The request is about the task the user wishes to perform on the cloud. The request is in terms of resource and/or application requirements. The access control module ascertains whether to grant or denial of services to the user depending on the user profile, request profile and the policies defined in the system. The decision in any case is logged into the knowledge base. The suggestions by recommender system for updates to access control policies are also part of this module. This property makes the access control model adaptive in nature. It is also possible to make the system self-adaptive, but there may be some circumstances where it is not recommended to update the policies as per recommendations. The granted requests are evaluated for the characterization of the workload in terms of the resource usage or consumption (CPU utilization, RAM used, storage and network bandwidth) at various levels, i.e. VM, application and task [4, 5, 11, 15]. The workload is characterized by the assessment of behaviour at various stages together with utilization parameters as listed above. The evaluated results are sent to knowledge base as feedback. The workload characterization in the case of the cloud depends on the type of services, i.e. IaaS, PaaS or SaaS. The recommender system analyses the knowledge in the knowledge base and makes decisions if any recommendations to the access control module for the improvement of the resource management. The dimensional model for knowledge representation is shown in Fig. 2.



Fig. 2 Dimensional model for knowledge representation

3.3 Advantages and Applications

The presented model helps in the efficient usage of the resources of cloud that might be underutilized due to over-allocation of the cloud resources. Moreover, this model also helps in the allocation of more cloud resources to users/process that were under-allocated. The dimensional model view of knowledge representation helps to analyse the workload from various dimensions or perspectives. The application of such model is in the area where access control policies, apart from their security purposes, used to control the allocation of resources for better utilization.

4 Conclusion and Future Work

The paper presents an overview of the adaptive access control model for cloud computing to reduce the wastage of resources due to underutilization by characterizing the workload with the behaviour of users and thus may lead to an effective resource usage and its better utilization. The future work is to present the concrete implementation of this model.

References

- Younis, Y.A., Kifayat, K., Merabti, M.: An access control model for cloud computing. J. Inf. Secur. Appl. 19, 45–60 (2014)
- Xiong, H., Chen, X., Zhang, B., Wang, G.: A finer-grained resource management model oriented to role-based access control. In: CCIS 2014—Proceedings of 2014 IEEE 3rd International Conference on Cloud Computing Intelligence System, pp. 198–206 (2014)
- Lin, W., Wang, J.Z., Liang, C., Qi, D.: A threshold-based dynamic resource allocation scheme for cloud computing. Proc. Eng. 23, 695–703 (2011)
- Moreno, I.S., Garraghan, P., Townend, P., Xu, J.: Analysis, modeling and simulation of workload patterns in a large-scale utility cloud. IEEE Trans. Cloud Comput. 2, 208–221 (2014)
- Zhang, W., Liu, J., Liu, C., Zheng, Q., Zhang, W.: Workload modeling for virtual machine-hosted application. Expert Syst. Appl. 42, 1835–1844 (2015)
- Yazir, Y.O., Matthews, C., Farahbod, R., Neville, S., Guitouni, A., Ganti, S.: Dynamic resource allocation in computing clouds using distributed multiple criteria decision analysis. In: Cloud Computing (CLOUD), 2010 IEEE 3rd International Conference (2010)
- Shaikh, R.A., Adi, K., Logrippo, L.: Dynamic risk-based decision methods for access control systems. Comput. Secur. 31, 447–464 (2012)
- Malik, A.A., Anwar, H., Shibli, M.A.: Self-adaptive access control and delegation in cloud computing. In: 2016 IEEE/ACIS 17th International Conference Software Engineering Artificial Intelligence Network Parallel/Distributed Computing, SNPD 2016, pp. 169–176 (2016)
- 9. Ma, S., Wang, Y.: Self-adaptive access control model based on feedback loop. In: 2013 International Conference Cloud Computing Big Data, pp. 597–602 (2013)
- An, C., Zhou, J., Liu, S., Geihs, K.: A multi-tenant hierarchical modeling for cloud computing workload. Intell. Autom. Soft Comput. 8587, 1–8 (2016)
- 11. Magalhães, D., Calheiros, R.N., Buyya, R., Gomes, D.G.: Workload modeling for resource usage analysis and simulation in cloud computing. Comput. Electr. Eng. 47, 69–81 (2015)
- Patel, J., et al.: Workload estimation for improving resource management decisions in the cloud. In: Proceedings of 2015 IEEE 12th International Symposium Autonomous Decentralized System, ISADS 2015, pp. 25–32 (2015)

- Kousiouris, G., Menychtas, A., Kyriazis, D., Gogouvitis, S., Varvarigou, T.: Dynamic, behavioral-based estimation of resource provisioning based on high-level application terms in cloud platforms. Futur. Gener. Comput. Syst. 32, 27–40 (2014)
- Tavizi, T., Shajari, M., Dodangeh, P.: A usage control based architecture for cloud environments. In: 2012 IEEE 26th International Parallel Distributed Processing Symposium Workshops and PhD Forum, pp. 1534–1539 (2012)
- 15. Di, S., Kondo, D., Cappello, F.: Characterizing and modeling cloud applications/jobs on a Google data center. J. Supercomput. **69**, 139–160 (2014)
- Panneerselvam, J., Liu, L., Antonopoulos, N., Bo, Y.: Workload analysis for the scope of user demand prediction model evaluations in cloud environments. In: Proceedings of the 2014 IEEE/ACM 7th International Conference on Utility and Cloud Computing, UCC 2014, pp. 883–889 (2014)
- 17. Tiwari, V., Bindal, U., Pandey, S.: Cloud computing: a next generation revolution in IT with e-governance. Netw. Commun. Eng. 4(6), 324–330 (2012)
- Baumeister, J., Striffler, A.: Knowledge-driven systems for episodic decision support. Knowl. Based Syst. 88, 45–56 (2015)

Role of Electric Field on Peristaltic Flow of a Micropolar Fluid

M. K. Chaube

Abstract Peristaltic transport of a micropolar fluid is investigated in the view of an electric field. Debye-Hückel linearization is employed to simplify the problem, and electrical double layer (EDL) is considered very thin so that the effect of applied electric field is represented in terms of the electroosmotic slip velocity (i.e., Helmholtz–Smoluchowski velocity) at the channel walls. Axial velocity is achieved in the form of closed expression through low Reynolds number and long wavelength approximations. The effects of electric field and coupling number are shown by plotting graphs based on computational results. It is found that the axial velocity enhances with the electric field applied in the flow direction and diminishes with the electric field applied against the flow direction.

Keywords Peristaltic flow • Micropolar fluid • EDL • Helmholtz–Smoluchowski velocity

1 Introduction

The fluid flow induced by periodic contraction and relaxation of the wall of the conduit carrying a fluid is termed as peristaltic transport. Naturally, peristaltic transport occurs in the flow of urine from the kidney to the bladder, chyme in the gastrointestinal tract, food bolus through the esophagus, ovum in the female fallopian tube, and blood through small blood vessels. This principle is used in industry to develop roller and finger pumps to make the flow of the fluids like foods, slurries, corrosive fluids, and blood without being contaminated due to contact with pumping machinery. First, Chakraborty [1] investigated electroosmotic augmented peristaltic transport considering thin electric double layer (EDL) where

M. K. Chaube (🖂)

Dr. SPM-IIIT, New Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India e-mail: mithilesh@iiitnr.edu.in

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_29

the effects of charged surface, i.e., EDL phenomenon, are assumed negligible. Later on, several researchers [2–5] made improvements in this study considering EDL effects, MHD effects, power-law fluids, and couple stress fluids. In these studies, it is concluded that peristaltic pumping can be enhanced with applied external electric field. The literature lacks with the study of electroosmotic modulated peristaltic pumping of a micropolar fluid. Micropolar fluid represents the randomly oriented particles suspended in a viscous medium. It is applicable in physiological fluids transport where the suspension of particles plays an important role like in blood (suspension of RBC, WBC, and platelets). The concept of a micropolar fluid was first presented by Eringen [6]. After that, some researchers investigated peristaltic transport of a micropolar fluid [7–11]. In these studies, the effects of coupling parameter and micropolar parameter on peristaltic flow characteristics are discussed.

In this paper, electroosmotic augmented peristaltic transport of a micropolar fluid via a channel with sinusoidal wave trains traveling down has been discussed. Debye-Hückel linearization is employed to simplify the problem, and electrical double layer (EDL) is considered very thin so that the effect of applied electric field is represented in terms of the electroosmotic slip velocity (i.e., Helmholtz–Smoluchowski velocity) at the channel wails. Axial velocity is achieved in the form of closed expression through low Reynolds number and long wavelength approximations.

2 Mathematical Statement of Problem

We have taken the electroosmotic augmented peristaltic transport of an incompressible micropolar fluid via a microfluidic channel of width 2*a*. Let $Y = \pm H$ be the outer and inner boundaries of the channel. The movement is thought to be incited by sinusoidal wave trains spreading through the channel dividers with a steady speed *c*. The schematic diagram of the problem under consideration is depicted in Fig. 1 and mathematically considered as:

$$H = a + b \sin \frac{2\pi}{\lambda} (X' - ct'), \qquad (1)$$

where *b* is a wave amplitude, λ is a wave length, and *t'* is the time. The stream is precarious in the laboratory outline (X', Y'), while it is consistent if seen in the coordinate system (x', y'), named as wave frame, moving through the wave speed *c*. The changes between aforesaid two coordinate systems have been expressed as:

$$x' = X' - ct', \quad y' = Y', \quad u' = U' - c, \quad v' = V',$$
 (2)

where (u', v') and (U', V') are the speed segments that are considered as part of wave and laboratory frames.



Fig. 1 Schematic diagram of physical problem

Without body forces and the body couple, the representing conditions for the steady flow of an incompressible micropolar fluid driven by combined effects of peristaltic pumping and electroosmosis are expressed by

$$\frac{\partial u'}{\partial x'} + \frac{\partial v'}{\partial y'} = 0, \tag{3}$$

$$\rho\left(u'\frac{\partial u'}{\partial x'} + v'\frac{\partial u'}{\partial y'}\right) = -\frac{\partial p'}{\partial x'} + (\mu + \kappa)\left(\frac{\partial^2 u'}{\partial x'^2} + \frac{\partial^2 u'}{\partial y'^2}\right) + \kappa\frac{\partial w'}{\partial y'} + \rho_e E_x, \quad (4)$$

$$\rho\left(u'\frac{\partial v'}{\partial x'} + v'\frac{\partial v'}{\partial y'}\right) = -\frac{\partial p'}{\partial y'} + (\mu + \kappa)\left(\frac{\partial^2 v'}{\partial x'^2} + \frac{\partial^2 v'}{\partial y'^2}\right) - \kappa\frac{\partial w'}{\partial x'},\tag{5}$$

$$\rho J'\left(u'\frac{\partial w'}{\partial x'} + v'\frac{\partial w'}{\partial y'}\right) = -2\kappa w' + \gamma \left(\frac{\partial^2 w'}{\partial x'^2} + \frac{\partial^2 w'}{\partial y'^2}\right) + \kappa \left(\frac{\partial v'}{\partial x'} - \frac{\partial u'}{\partial y'}\right), \quad (6)$$

where u' and v' are the velocity segments in the corresponding x' and y' directions, ρ is the thickness of the liquid, p' is the pressure, w' is the microrotation speed component in the direction normal to both the x' and y' axes, J' is the micro-inertia constant, μ is the viscosity constant of the classical fluid dynamics, κ , γ are the viscosity constants for micropolar fluid, E_x is the outer electric field.

For further examination, we utilize the accompanying non-dimensional factors and parameters:

$$x = \frac{x'}{\lambda}, \quad y = \frac{y'}{a}, \quad u = \frac{u'}{c}, \quad v = \frac{v'}{\delta c}, \quad \delta = \frac{a}{\lambda},$$

$$w = \frac{aw'}{c}, \quad t = \frac{ct'}{\lambda}, \quad J = \frac{J'}{a^2}, \quad p = \frac{a^2 p'}{c\lambda\mu}, \quad \phi = \frac{b}{a},$$

$$h = \frac{H}{a}$$

$$\operatorname{Re} = \frac{\rho ca}{\mu}$$
(7)

where Re, δ and c represent the Reynolds number, wave number, and wave velocity, respectively. For thin EDL and weal electric field, the electrokinetic body force term may be dropped from momentum equation and it can be realized in terms of the electroosmotic slip velocity at the wall. Employing the non-dimensional variables in Eqs. (3–6) and using the low Reynolds number and long wavelength approximations, we get:

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} = 0, \tag{8}$$

$$\frac{\partial^2 u}{\partial y^2} + N \frac{\partial w}{\partial y} = (1 - N) \frac{\partial p}{\partial x},\tag{9}$$

$$\frac{\partial p}{\partial y} = 0, \tag{10}$$

$$-2w - \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} + \left(\frac{2-N}{M^2}\right)\frac{\partial^2 w}{\partial y^2} = 0,$$
(11)

where $N = \kappa/(\mu + \kappa)$ is the coupling number $(0 \le N \le 1)$, $M^2 = a^2 \kappa (2\mu + \kappa)/(\gamma(\mu + \kappa))$ is the micropolar parameter. The boundary conditions are imposed as:

$$u(x, y) = U_{HS} - 1, w(x, y) = 0$$
 at $y = \pm h(x)$, (12)

 U_{HS} is electroosmotic slip velocity.

Solving simultaneous partial differential Eqs. (9) and (11), with boundary conditions (12), the axial velocity is obtained as:

$$u = \left(\frac{1-N}{2-N}\right)(y^2 - h^2)\frac{\mathrm{d}p}{\mathrm{d}x} + \frac{N}{M}\left(\frac{1-N}{2-N}\right)h\frac{\mathrm{d}p}{\mathrm{d}x}\frac{(\cosh Mh - \cosh My)}{\sinh Mh} + U_{HS} - 1$$
(13)

3 Result and Discussion

In this section, graphs are drawn showing effects of electroosmotic slip velocity and coupling number on axial velocity based on numerical results. Figure 2 shows the effect of electroosmotic slip velocity on axial velocity at $\phi =$ 0.6, x = 1, dp/dx = -5, M = 2, N = 0.1. From Fig. 2, it is observed that the fluid velocity enhances with the electric field applied in the flow direction but diminishes with the electric field applied against the flow direction. Figure 3 shows the variwith coupling $\phi = 0.6, x = 1.$ ation in axial velocity number at dp/dx = -5, M = 2, $U_{HS} = 1$. From Fig. 3, it is observed that the fluid velocity decreases with increase in coupling number.



Fig. 2 Velocity profile at $\phi = 0.6$, x = 1, dp/dx = -5, M = 2, N = 0.1 for different values of U_{HS}



Fig. 3 Velocity profile at $\phi = 0.6$, x = 1, dp/dx = -5, M = 2, $U_{HS} = 1$ for different values of N

4 Conclusion

- The fluid velocity can be controlled by applying external electric field.
- The fluid velocity enhances with the electric field applied in the flow direction.
- The fluid velocity diminishes with the electric field applied against the flow direction.

The fluid velocity decreases with the increase in the coupling number.

References

- Chakraborty, S.: Augmentation of peristaltic microflows through electro-osmotic mechanisms. J. Phys. D Appl. Phys. 39(24), 5356 (2006)
- Goswami, P., Chakraborty, J., Bandopadhyay, A., Chakraborty, S.: Electrokinetically modulated peristaltic transport of power-law fluids. Microvasc. Res. 103, 41–54 (2016)
- Tripathi, D., Bhushan, S., Bég, O. A.: Transverse magnetic field driven modification in unsteady peristaltic transport with electrical double layer effects. Colloids Surf A Physicochem. Eng. Asp. (2016)
- 4. Tripathi, D., Mulchandani, J., Jhalani, S.: Electrokinetic transport in unsteady flow through peristaltic microchannel. In: 2nd International Conference On Emerging Technologies: Micro To Nano, Contributory Papers Presented in 2nd International Conference on Emerging Technologies: Micro to Nano 2015, vol. 1724, No. 1, p. 020043. AIP Publishing (2016)
- Shit, G.C., Ranjit, N.K., Sinha, A.: Electro-magnetohydrodynamic flow of biofluid induced by peristaltic wave: a non-Newtonian model. J. Bionic Eng. 13(3), 436–448 (2016)

- 6. Eringen, A.C.: Theory of micropolar fluids (No. RR-27). Purdue University Lafayette in School Of Aeronautics and Astronautics (1965)
- Pandey, S.K., Tripathi, D.: Unsteady peristaltic flow of micro-polar fluid in a finite channel. Zeitschriftfür Naturforschung A 66(3–4), 181–192 (2011)
- Tripathi, D., Chaube, M.K., Gupta, P.K.: Stokes flow of micro-polar fluids by peristaltic pumping through tube with slip boundary condition. Appl. Math. Mech. 32(12), 1587–1598 (2011)
- 9. Akbar, N.S., Nadeem, S.: Peristaltic flow of a micropolar fluid with nano particles in small intestine. Appl. Nanosci. **3**(6), 461–468 (2013)
- Shit, G.C., Roy, M.: Effect of slip velocity on peristaltic transport of a magneto-micropolar fluid through a porous non-uniform channel. Int. J. Appl. Computat. Math. 1(1), 121–141 (2015)
- Ravi Kiran, G., Radhakrishnamacharya, G., Anwar Bég, O.: Peristaltic flow and hydrodynamic dispersion of a reactive micropolar fluid-simulation of chemical effects in the digestive process. J. Mech. Med. Biol., p. 1750013 (2016)

Prevention of DOS and Routing Attack in OLSR Under MANET

Madhvi Chaurasia and Bhanu Pratap Singh

Abstract The flourishing packets delivery up to destination is necessary for better network performance. In MANET, group of nodes is capable to create a temporary dynamic link without the support of any centralized administration and stuck infrastructure. In this research, we focus on and proposed security against DoS and routing attacks. The DoS attack and routing attack is a type of attack that are work together in dynamic network and performing misbehavior by consume link capacity and drop of data packets. However, in network if sender has begun data transmission, then in that case, both of the attackers' mutual malicious behavior has produced a remarkable dump performance. In proposed security analysis, we proposed a novel detection and prevention security algorithm against both mutual attacks. In this research, we compare the performance of four protocols: first normal OLSR routing, OLSR routing with mutual attack, R-OLSR, and P-OLSR (proposed). The proposed scheme is able to provide secure communication and also improves the network performance. Through our proposal, we present secure as well as reliable communication in network from wormhole attack and compare the performance of different scenarios on the bases of parameters such as packet delivery magnitude relation, throughput, and routing load.

Keywords MANET · Security · OLSR · P-OLSR · R-OLSR DoS · Routing · Attacker

M. Chaurasia $(\boxtimes) \cdot B$. P. Singh

Department of Computer Science, Vindhya Institute of Technology & Science, Satna, India e-mail: maddy.26oct@gmail.com

B. P. Singh e-mail: bhanu.baghel@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_30

1 Introduction

A MANET could be a collection of mobile devices that are connected by wireless links while not the use of any mounted infrastructures or centralized access points. In MANET, every node acts not only as a bunch however additionally as router to forward messages for different nodes that is not among identical direct wireless transmission range. Routing protocols in MANET are classified into two categories: reactive protocol and proactive protocol. In proactive routing protocols, all nodes got to maintain an even read of the constellation. Once a constellation changes, individual updates should be propagated throughout the network to apprize the amendment. Reactive protocols for mobile ad hoc networks also are known as "on-demand" routing protocols. In a very reactive routing protocol, routing ways are hunted once required. Problems with OLSR are that it wants a lot of bandwidth and energy resources, overhead, no support for multicast and security. OLSR does not specify any special security measures. As a result, OLSR is at risk of varied forms of attacks such as flooding attack, link withholding attack, replay attack, DOS attack, and colluding mis-relay attack [1–7].

2 Literature Survey

Shivanakar and Thorat [8]—In this title, we observe the network vulnerabilities of a pre-active routing protocol. Analyzing attacks on optimized link state routing (OLSR) protocol which is proactive, we propose a reputation-based mechanism for prevention attacks. This mechanism is useful for securing the OLSR protocol against the denial-of-service attacks and is capable of finding whether or not a node is presenting correct network topology data or not by confirming its hello message. This mechanism brings few modification and still compatible with the OLSR protocol.

Vidhya and Priya [9]—In this title, we tend to analyze the vulnerabilities of a proactive routing protocol referred to as optimized link state routing (OLSR) in MANET. We tend to investigate the various routing attacks that may be launched in OLSR. Analyzing the attack, we tend to propose a mechanism to secure the OLSR protocol from specific routing attack referred to as node isolation attack.

Deshmukh and Kaushik [10]—In this title, early adds MANET analysis has mainly targeted on developing an efficient routing mechanism in such a extremely dynamic and resource unnatural network. Above all, we tend to examine routing attacks, like link spoofing and colluding mis-relay attacks, furthermore as countermeasures against such attacks in existing MANET protocols.

Bhavani et al. [11]—In this title, we introduce a solution to protect OLSR protocol from node isolation attack by using the same strategy used by the attack itself.

Varghese and Sankar [12]—In this title, we consider a specific type of DoS attack called as the node isolation attack in OLSR, a proactive routing protocol. A technique called eliminating malicious node in OLSR (EM-OLSR) is considered in which we detect and eliminate the malicious node in the network with the help of control packets and then protect these packets using Hardy algorithm.

Jelba and Gomathi [13]—Overview of OLSR, features of OLSR along with the attack detection and mitigation techniques comparisons are made.

Kannhavong et al. [14]—This title identifies a new routing attack, referred to as node isolation attack, against OLSR protocol, one among the four normal routing protocols for MANETs. As a primary step to defend against the attack, they present an easy technique to notice the attack and establish the source of the attack.

Yuvan Shankar et al. [15]—In this paper, we suggest a solution to defend such a type of attacks in the OLSR protocol from the DOS attack by using denial contradiction of fictitious node (DCFN) mechanism; by using this, we can access the fictitious nodes in network. We suggest a solution for this type of isolation attacks and also other similar DOS attacks on OLSR and the system recovery without system reconfiguration.

Sharma and Singh [1]—In this title, a detection mechanism has been proposed to find out the attacker that fools the opposite nodes within the network by exploitation over one identity at a time. The detection approach is predicated on the fact that everyone, the illegitimately no inheritable identities of an attacker, travels along on one physical device.

3 Proposed Work

Proactive routing in mobile ad hoc network is suitable while node motion is controllable manner, because it works on table-driven-based approach. In the table-driven or proactive routing, it generates the table in shortest path mechanism. While the communication breaks through some reasons and searches the route after some time, then the sender initially route searches within the previously created table, and if destination not found, then re-broadcast the route and established new path that is drawback of the proactive routing protocol. But security is a one measure challenge, because networks which are de-centralized manner spread over environment, where attacks from physical layer to application layer are open. In our proposed approach, our basic objective is to control the network and data link layer attacks under optimal link state routing (OLSR); in previous work security mechanism, only routing layer securities are detected but in our mechanism, more enhanced methods are used to prevent dual-layer security. For that purpose, we analyze the network behavior for identifying different attack under different layers, which helps to detect network and data link layer attacks and provide strength to prevention mechanism. During the data link layer attack, attacker node spreads the unwanted data in exponential manner and captures the ideal nodes from the network, which spread over the whole network in gradual manner that type of
symptoms sets as denial of attacks and detects based on network traffic identification as well as unwanted data flood by per second manner and further prevent it. Next attacker is a network layer attack and that is difficult to detect because in the network layer, various type of attacks are present, i.e., black hole, wormhole, grayhole, and route capturing but symptoms nearly common to all that is node ip modification and gaining the benefits by the data capturing from sender nodes, network layer attacks are detected by ip tracing mechanism, while ip address of destination is updated, it means network layer attackers modified the routing table for self gaining. Those attacks detect through watching the profile of network and then apply prevention mechanism, preventer nodes those are selected whose motion is slower and cover the maximum nodes, which treated like packet and behavior watcher of its entire neighbor. While the sender sends the data or routing packets through intermediate node and that node updates the routing table/modified destination node or drop data or captures, then preventer node immediately responses to sender regarding false node, so eliminated route are established else preventer node blocks the attacker node that behavior under the route attack; another attack is denial-of-service attack that type of attack protect through data analyzing or filtering methodology and blocking, in this type of attack, attacker spread unwanted data with unrecognized format data in unlimited range with every seconds while that packet traced by the preventer node than initially watch its symptoms and it match with unknown type of data than preventer block that type of packets and identifies the attacker node id, while detected the attacker nodes than block it and remove the denial-of-service attack from the network.

3.1 Proposed Algorithm

In this section, we describe proposed algorithm for prevention of denial-of-service and routing attacks using IP modification detection and data filtering methodology.

Initialization:

W: set of mobile nodes
T: transmitter nodes
R: receiver nodes
C: intermediate nodes
Ψ: radio range
U: attacker node
ipr: destination ip address
ipt: transmitter ip address
ipt: route table
rpkt: route packet
P: preventer node

```
Output: type of attack, attacker node, pdr, throughput
Routine:
        Execute OLSR routing for route establishment
        T search route in rtable
        If R exist in rtable then
                 Send data (T, R, data)
                   Else
                             Bcast_rpkt_OLSR (T, R, rpkt)
                            While C in \Psi \&\& C ! = R do
                                      C \leftarrow create rtable entry (T, R, C)
                                      Forward (T, R, C, rpkt) to next C
                            End do
                             If C == R then
                                       R ← update /create rtable(T,R,C)
                                       Send data (T, R, data)
                            End if
        End if
Attack Detection and Prevention
P execute to watch its neighbors
        If C in \Psi \& \& C! = R then
                   P check C ip address
                   Store ip of C in p_table
        While T brorcast rpkt do
                  C ← U
                   C \leftarrow update (ip_c = ip_r)
                   C \leftarrow send acknowledge to T
        P found (C update ipr as ipc)
                  Block the C as U node
        End do
If U broadcast unknown packet to W-1 nodes then
        W_i \leftarrow ideal
        W<sub>i</sub> receives unknown packets
        P check (U data)
                   If (data! = tcp||udp) then
                             U data as unknown
                             P block the U node
                             Broadcast U information to W-1 nodes
                   End if
```

End if End if

4 Simulation Parameters

The simulation parameters considered for simulation are mentioned in Table 1. According to these simulation parameters, the simulation of normal OLSR routing, DoS with routing attacker in OLSR routing, existing R-OLSR, and proposed security against DoS in OLSR routing are performed.

5 Result

DoS and Routing Attacker Analysis

The DoS with routing attacker detection in detected by proposed security scheme is mentioned in Table 2. In this table, the node number, packet capture by attacker, and attacker loss percentage are mentioned. About one-third of the 100% is only degraded by attacker; rest of the normal performance is affected when attacker is not counted.

In Table 2b, the malicious performance of routing attacker is evaluated by proposed security scheme and observed that two nodes are detected as malicious that drop the data packets, and their percentage ratio is also about 41%. The proposed scheme improves and blocks that attacker performance.

Packet Delivery Ratio Analysis

The performance in terms of percentage ratio of data packet receiving from sending is calculated through packet delivery ratio (PDR) in dynamic network. The packetdropping from sending shows the lesser amount of packets receiving in network. That degrades the network performance. The performance in presence of attack is almost negligible in network but performance pdf proposed prevention (P-OLSR) is highest in network; it provides about 95% data delivery (Fig. 1).

Network simulator Tool	NS-2.31
Mobile nodes	50
Dimension of simulation	800 m × 800 m
Network protocol	OLSR, R-OLSR, P-OLSR
Simulation time	100 s
Traffic type	FTP & CBR
Attack type	Denial-of-service attack, routing attack
Prevention type	Header identification and node blocking
Per packet size	1024 bytes
Number of connections	6
Node speed	Random
Transmission range	250 m

 Table 1
 Simulation parameters

	Packet capture Percentage of infection		
(a) DOS attacker			
49	1450	36.6	
(b) Routing attacker			
28	990	24.99	
34	658	16.61	

Table 2 Proposed security scheme



Fig. 1 PDR performance analysis

Attack Percentage Analysis

The DoS with routing attacker detection in detected by proposed security scheme is mentioned in given graph. These behaviors are to consume the data packets sending by senders in network. In this graph, loss percentage in case of routing (R-Infection %) is maximum 41% and malicious performance of DoS infection and calculate infection about 36 and 15% in network (Fig. 2).



Fig. 2 Attacker loss percentage analyses

6 Conclusion and Future Work

The attacker position is not fixed in MANET because it is necessary to apply the security scheme to catch the attacker's malicious activities. In MANET, a variety of attacks exist, but in this research, we consider the mutual effect of DoS attack and routing attack. This attacker's attack performed the malicious activity by flooding of unwanted packets and dropping data packets by forward false reply of link on path in between sender and receiver. This protection scheme provides the protection against DoS attack and routing attack and provides secure communication in dynamic network. However, proposed IPS scheme improves makeable performance or more than traditional OLSR routing. The normal performance is evaluated through traditional OLSR, the attacker mutual effect is measured from Attack-OLSR, the third one is the recent security scheme which is considered, i.e., R-OLSR, and at last the performance of P-OLSR is evaluated. The proposed scheme reduces the packet dropping that occurs due to presence of attacker's mutual effect and also improves the packet receiving. The performance of proposed scheme (P-OLSR) is better than R-OLSR existing secure routing technique in MANET.

In future, we tend to additionally examine the mutual behavior of different attacks like Jamming attack and Selfish attack and take a look at to create the protection schemes on that and additionally consider the performance of different routing protocols such as AODV and DSDV in presence of attack.

References

- Sharma, T., Singh, L.: A detection technique for identity based attacks in clustered mobile ad-hoc networks. In: 2015 International Conference on Advances in Computer Engineering and Applications (ICACEA) 978-1-4673-6911-4/15, IEEE (2015)
- Singha, S., Das, A.: Detection and elimination of the topological threats in mobile ad hoc network: a new approach, 978-1-4673-6911-4/15, IEEE (2015)
- Remya, S., Lakshmi, K.S.: SHARP: secured hierarchical anonymous routing protocol for MANETs. In: 2015 International Conference on Computer Communication and Informatics (ICCCI—2015), Jan 08–10, Coimbatore, India (2015)
- 4. Mane, A., Vora, D., Kelkar, S.: Design of a novel proactive link state routing approach to defense against node isolation attack in MANETs. Int. J. Sci. Eng. Res. 6(9) (2015)
- Balaji, B., HasanKhan, M., Kumar, R.P.: Enhanced OLSR for defense against node isolation attack in ad hoc networks. (IJCSIT) Int. J. Comput. Sci. Info. Technol. 4(6), 1004–1009 (2013)
- Johnson, D., Maltz, D., Hu, Y.-C.: The dynamic source routing protocol for mobile ad hoc networks. Internet Draft, draft-ietf-manetdsr-10.txt, work in progress, pp. 153–181 (2004)
- 7. Park, V.D., Corson, M.S.: Temporally-ordered routing algorithm (TORA) version 1: functional specification. Internet draft, draft-ietf-manettora-spec-01.txt (1998)
- Shivanakar, B.S., Thorat, S.A.: Addressing node isolation attack in OLSR protocol, 978-1-4799-8792-4/15, IEEE (2015)
- 9. Vidhya, K.U., Priya, M.M.: A novel technique for defending routing attacks in OLSR MANET. In: IEEE International Conference on Computational Intelligence and Computing Research (2010)
- Deshmukh, V.J., Kaushik, S.S.: Routing attack survey for mobile ad hoc network. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. 2(4) (2013)
- 11. Bhavani, S., Kanchana Devi, S., Jaisharma, K.(AP): Detection of isolation attack in OLSR on MANET. Int. J. Eng. Sci. Comput. (2016)
- Varghese, M.E., Sankar, P.: A secure OLSR against Dos attack in ad-hoc networks. Int. J. Adv. Res. Electro. Instrum. Eng. 4(3) (2015)
- Jelba, L.M.M., Gomathi, S.: Mitigating different attacks in OLSR protocol—a survey. Int. J. Innov. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. 4(6) (2016)
- Kannhavong, B., Nakayama, H., Jamalipour, A.: Analysis of the node isolation attack against OLSR-based mobile ad hoc networks. In: Proceeding of the Seventh IEEE International Symposium on Computer Network, ISCN (2006)
- Yuvan Shankar, R.K., Rama Prabha, K.P., Jayanthi, R.: Discovery against node isolation attack on MANET and it's node removal. Int. J. Pharm. Technol. IJPT 8(3), 16391–16398 (2016)

A Simulation-Based Comparison on Code Excited Linear Prediction (CELP) Coder at Different Bit Rates

Swati Joshi, Hemant Purohit and Rita Choudhary

Abstract A better speech quality is necessary for transmission of speech in mobile communication systems in Digital Telephony. Nowadays, the conversion of analog speech signals into digital format is required for effective transmission of speech over different channels at far ends. The technique for conversion of speech in digital form is very old and ordinary one which is termed as pulse code modulation (PCM), but the bandwidth of the digitally converted data is too large, so a better level of compression is needed to reduce the bandwidth and enhance the capacity of channel. The compression of speech in nowadays is performed by a procedure called speech coding. In this paper, the code excited linear predictive (CELP) coding is summarized with different bit rates. The MATLAB R2016a version is used for simulating the 9.6 and 16 kbps CELP coder, and performance analysis is done with parameters MSE and SNR.

Keywords Speech coding · LPC · CELP

1 Introduction

The speech coding is a procedure to represent a digitized speech signal with its minimum bit format necessary to transmit it over different channels. Speech coding is a wide area of research from late 80s to present. The advancement in speech coding techniques is necessary due to rapid increase in users of mobile communication and limited bandwidth of channels. The speech coders are creating a

S. Joshi (🖂)

Tula's Institute, Dehradun, India e-mail: joshi92swati@gmail.com

H. Purohit · R. Choudhary JIET Jodhpur, Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India e-mail: hemant.purohit@jietjodhpur.ac.in

R. Choudhary e-mail: rita.choudhary@jietjodhpur.ac.in

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent*

Advancement on Computer and Communication, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_31



competitive environment between the telecom provider giants; better speech quality with lower bit rates is demanding one. The basic building blocks for speech coders are shown in Fig. 1. The low bit rate and high speech quality are the main requirements to design a speech coder [1, 2]. The speech coders are classified into two terms.

- (a) Waveform coders—pulse code modulation (PCM), differential pulse code modulation (DPCM), adaptive differential pulse code modulation (ADPCM).
- (b) Parametric coders—linear predictive coding (LPC), residual excited linear prediction, mixed excited linear prediction, code excited linear prediction (RELP, MELP, CELP).

2 Literature Survey

The research on speech coding starts at Bell laboratories, and the first electronic voice synthesizer was invented by Homer W. Dudley in 1930 for secure voice transmission during world war. Motivation for speech coding research at that time is to design a system which is bandwidth efficient for telegraph cables. Dudley practically demonstrates the speech and figure out the redundancy in speech and finally set up with the new procedure of analysis by synthesis method for designing of speech coder [3].

The basic idea behind the first coder was to analyze speech in terms of its pitch spectrum by band-pass filter to analyze the periodic and random analysis of speech. The improvement on speech coders had been done during 1940s–1960s [4].

The early vocoder system is totally based upon the analog signal, and the digital representation gains interest because of its best encryption and better fidelity over long-range transmission. In 1940s, a new term introducing the speech coding named as pulse code modulation (PCM). PCM is a direct method for representation of discrete time and discrete amplitude of analog signals. The more advancement in this technique is started, and the best quantization capabilities were developed in

differential PCM, delta modulation, and adaptive DPCM were developed and speech coding in PCM with 64 kbps and with ADPCM 32 kbps become the standard of Consultative Committee for International Telephony and Telegraphy (CCITT) [2].

A great innovative invention was done by Prof. Fant in 1950s, the linear speech source system. The mode consists of linear time-varying coefficient of speech signals excited by periodic impulse train for both voiced (speech) and unvoiced (noise) signal, and this model becomes the basic building block for new generation linear predictive speech coding [4, 5].

Theoretical and practical aspect on linear predictive speech coding is analyzed by Markel and Gray in 1970s. In between 1970s and 1980s, the rapid growth in speech coders was done because of drastic boom in VLSI technology.

In the duration on 1980s–1990s, the low rate high-quality speech coders were planned to design. The invention of code excited linear prediction coding was major improvement in speech coders, CELP is originally proposed by M. R. Schroeder and B. S. Atal in 1985. CELP was capable of producing low rate speech for communication purpose [6, 7].

The concept for hybrid code is finalized with the use of different structured codebooks in CELP. An 8 kbps hybrid coder was first hybrid coder which was selected for North American Digital Telephone Network. The hybrid coders are also selected for satellite systems.

The research on this field is still going on and researchers continuously working on to increase the capacity of systems at minimal bandwidth.

3 Linear Predictive Coding

LPC technique is the most used technique in speech coding. LPC technique provides extremely accurate estimates of speech data sequence. Basic idea of linear prediction is that the current speech sample can be closely approximated as a linear combination of past samples, the block diagram for LPC filter is shown in Fig. 2.

The algorithm for LPC is given by the formula given below:

$$y(n) = \sum_{(i=1)}^{N} a y(n-i)$$
 (1)

The efficient estimation of LP coefficients is based on the Levinson–Durbin algorithm which uses a forward and backward prediction for speech samples.



The formula basically used for both forward and backward samples is:

$$r(i) = \sum_{n=0}^{N-1-i} s(n) \cdot s(n+i)$$
(2)

where r is a positive-definite matrix

$$r = [r(1)r(2)...r(n+1)] \begin{pmatrix} r1 & r2 & r(n) \\ r2 & r1 & r(n-1) \\ r(n) & r(n-1) & r1 \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} a1 \\ a2 \\ a(n+1) \end{pmatrix} = R(n)$$
(3)

4 Code Excited Linear Prediction (CELP)

Parametric coding is based on LP analysis, and CELP is standardized as parametric coder by CCITT in 1991 which is formally known as FS1016 CELP [8] and given the bit rate of 4.8 kbps. Advancement in this technique is observed in 1992, and an another big achievement was successfully done by International Telecommunication Union (ITU), and another version of CELP is finalized as ITU-T G.728 LD-CELP with bit rate 16 kbps and abbreviated as low-delay code excited linear predictive coder (LD-CELP) which was designed to provide delay of less than 20 ms.

The block diagram in Fig. 3 shows the basic building block of CELP. In CELP, coder a fixed codebook is designed to provide initial code vectors for data bit comparison and hence the high quality of speech is attained at much lower bit rate then waveform coders; thus, the bandwidth is optimized as compared to waveform coders. The perceptual weighted filter is used to provide a fixed delay for each sample, and it is a constant value in between 0.1 and 0.9.



5 Evaluation and Analysis

Analysis of 16 and 9.6 kbps CELP is done with the MATLAB simulating software version R2016a. The coder is designed to take audio speech samples at 8 kHz, and output is observed in 16 and 9.6 kbps. The 'hello' file is taken as input audio and 'xhat1' is decoded sound file in 16 kbps sampled format and 'xhat2' is 9.6 kbps decoded sound for CELP. Finally, the experiment is performed for a constant value of c = 0.25 and 0.65. The original sound is standard sound in ITU-T test signal library. The signal sampled in 86,169 samples and the 50 LP coefficients are calculated randomly from 86,169 samples. Fig. 4 shows the LP estimation of original speech. Similarly, Figs. 5 and 6 show the comparison graph between 16 kbps CELP and 9.6 kbps CELP with c = 0.25.

6 Performance Comparison

SNR is abbreviated as signal to noise ratio, and MSE is abbreviated as mean square error estimation of speech signals. The two signals 'xhat1' (16 kbps) and 'xhat2' (9.6 kbps) CELP are compared with 'hello' original signal, and values for SNR and MSE are shown in Table 1.







Fig. 6 Graph between

speech with c = 0.25

9.6 kbps CELP and original

Table 1 SNR and MSE parameters for 16 kbps/9.6 kbps CELP coder

Perceptual weighted constant	Different bit rates			
С	16 kbps CELP		9.6 kbps CELP	
	SNR	MSE	SNR	MSE
0.65	1.2815	0.0047	0.2769	0.0175
0.25	4.2851	0.0016	3.5234	0.0132



7 Result and Discussions

Here, a detail performance analysis of 16 kbps CELP and 9.6 kbps CELP with perceptual weighted value c = 0.65 and c = 0.25 is presented. This analysis is totally based on the value of perceptual weighted constant 'c.' The factor 'c' is highly affecting factor for the quality of speech coders. These simulation-based comparative analyses illustrate the output speech quality in terms of signal to noise ratio (SNR) and mean square error (MSE), and from the comparison, it is clear that lower value of c is needed for better results. In Figs. 7 and 8, the graphical representation for both parameters is shown for various values of c.

8 Conclusion

From the above experimental test it is clearly analyzed that at lower the value of c better the SNR and similarly at lower values of c MSE is lesser. From both 16 and 9.6 kbps, the ratings for 16 kbps are better than 9.6 kbps. It is clearly shown that at c = 0.25 values for both SNR and MSE among both the better results are considered for 16 kbps CELP.

The 16 kbps CELP is a parametric coder and best for audio speech processing. The exponential growth in telecom field needs a better version of speech and video processing both at same time for real-time implementation so research in this section is continuously growing and better quality of speech or video coder is implemented. The enhance voice services (EVS) and iLBC are example of it [9, 10].

References

- Ogunfunmi, T., Narasimha, M.J.: Speech over VoIP networks: advanced signal processing and system implementation. In: IEEE Circuits and Systems Magazine, Second Quarter, pp. 35–55 (2012)
- 2. Ogunfunmi, T., Narasimha, M.J.: Principles of speech coding. CRC Press (2010)
- 3. Neuhoff, D.L., Philip, T.I.: Design of a CELP coder and analysis of various quantization techniques. Technical Report, University of Michigan EECS 651 (2005)
- Ramo, A., Toukomaa, H.: On comparing speech quality of various NB and WB speech coders. 0-7803-9243-4/05/, pp. 603–606, IEEE Multimedia Technologies laboratory, Nokia Research Center, Tampere, Finland (2005)
- Edler, B., Schuller, G.: Perceptual audio coding using adaptive pre and post-filters and lossless compression. In: IEEE International Conference on Acoustics, Speech and Signal Processing (ICASSP), vol. 10, pp. 881–884 IEEE (2000)
- Pettigrew, R., Cuperman, V.: Backward pitch prediction for low-delay speech coding. In: IEEE Global Tele-Communications Conference and Exhibition Communications Technology for the 1990s and beyond, (GLOBECOM), United State Patent, pp. 1–12, Patent Number: 4,963,034 (1989)
- Pettigrew, R., Cuperman, V.: Robust low-complexity backward adaptive pitch predictor for low-delay speech coding. Proc. IEEE Commun. Speech Vis. 138(4), 19–22 (1991)
- 8. Shetty, N., Gibson, J.D.: Perceptual pre-weighting and post-inverse weighting for speech coding. Technical Report, University of California (2007)
- Dietz, M.: Overview of the EVS codec architecture. In: Proceedings of IEEE International Conference on Acoustics, Speech and Signal Processing ICASSP, 978-1-4673-6997-8/15/, pp. 5698–5602 (2015)
- 10. Qualcomm Inc., IWAENC .: Enhanced voice services. http://www.iwaenc2014.org/

A Survey of Feature Extraction for Content-Based Image Retrieval System

Neha Ghosh, Shikha Agrawal and Mahesh Motwani

Abstract Content-based image retrieval system (CBIR) is a challenging domain which is used in various fields of research today, such as scientific research, medical, Internet, and other communication media. CBIR is an approach that allows a user to obtain an image depends on a query from large datasets holding a huge amount of images. Images play a big role in any of the media today, where communication and data transmission held using the specific formats of data. Thus, for making communication and information sharing via images, it is needful to perform its extraction and then further processing with information content. A survey has been done on various content-based image retrieval techniques which are derived by the various authors for the feature extraction of images and which are further used for classification.

Keywords Content-based image retrieval (CBIR) · Feature extraction of image Image preprocessing

1 Introduction

Images have continuously been an assured unit of human communication and its roots millennia in the past. Pictures build the communication method more user-friendly and clear [1]. CBIR is the way toward finding images from huge datasets or a library of computerized images as indicating the images. In different phrases, it is the retrieving of images which have identical content of color, textures, or shapes. Processing with too amount of content commonly required bulk amount

N. Ghosh (🖂) · S. Agrawal · M. Motwani

Department of Computer Science & Engineering, UIT-RGPV, Bhopal, India e-mail: nehaghosh61@gmail.com

S. Agrawal e-mail: shikha@rgtu.net

M. Motwani e-mail: mahesh.bpl.7@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_32 of memory, computational power, and time. This overfits the training data and generalizes poorly new samples. So feature extraction is needed to solve these problems, which constructs combined set of elements still describing the overall information of images with adequate accuracy. In CBIR system, the image features are mainly grouped into three main classes: color, texture, and shape [2, 3]. Theoretically, those features must be united to produce a better distinction in the similarity measurement process. The overall architecture of CBIR system is shown in Fig. 1.

When a query image comes to the CBIR system, firstly its features are extracted, after that similarity measurement is done by using query feature vector and target image feature vector in which feature space/feature vector of the query image is compared with those feature space which already exists in the database. Color has an ease nature of retrieving color information form image [4, 5] that is why in CBIR; generally, the ordinary visual feature is color. Features play a complicated and expensive task on the perspective of shape and texture [6] which are generally produced by color features after the initial filtration. Several applications demand basic strategies for differentiating images from one to another, primarily based on universal looks. A universal solution for this problem is color histogram [7, 8] which represents the gray-stage or color division of an offered image, and they may be effective as computationally, but usually inconsiderate in small pixel areas. But there are some issues related to color histograms. A color histogram gives not any specific statistics; it simply represents the colors which are present within the images and the amount of color. The main function which is required to design the histogram-based techniques is suitable color space, a representation of histogram, a scheme for color quantization, and a comparison metric [9]. Most of the famous search engines provide image retrieval offering the uses of conventional textual content-based approach (i.e., captions) called text-based image retrieval (TBIR) [10].



When a user gives a query as a text for target images in search engine, user's query engine typically compares keywords with indexed terms related with database image. Textual-based image retrieval approaches are using a guide image notation by users and particularly based on the metadata. Tagging or notations are an indefinite and time-expended process. Text only is not enough for retrieving the images, to recover the disability CBIR uses the visual content of images.

2 CBIR and Feature Extraction

The overall framework of CBIR starts with the user. Firstly, an input image is put into the system as a query. Then query image as well as all the images which are present in database further processes in an identical way for relevant image retrieval. Secondly, a few preprocessing approaches are probably carried out on the images, which regularly depends upon a certain goal for better retrieval.

Preprocessing: "Image preprocessing is an approach for improving images previous to computational processing." The aim of image preprocessing is to enhance the visual appearance of images and database manipulation.

Feature Extraction: When input information to an algorithm is very large to being operated and it is supposed to be redundant, then it can be transformed into reduced set of important features named "Feature Vector" shown in Fig. 2.

This process is called "Feature Extraction." The extracted features hold all relevant information from the input data, so all the desired task can be executed by using reduced set of features instead of overall feature.

Color, texture, local descriptors, and shape are few basic retrieved features [11]. When a query image comes to the overall system, its feature space is compared with feature database [12]. According to the gap measure, most applicable images are returned. The retrieved images are generally shown according to the position of relevance. The relevancy degree of extracted images can determine through some techniques which give satisfaction measurement called relevance feedback. From Fig. 3, we can easily understand the overall process of a CBIR system with relevance feedback. By refreshing the query and comparison measurement, this will upgrade the efficiency of the overall extraction system. For decreasing the user



Fig. 2 Image feature extraction



Fig. 3 Content-based image retrieval

involvement and ignoring filtration of multiple iterations, computerized feedback and device self-training are used.

3 Literature Survey of Content-Based Image Retrieval Technique

In CBIR literature, some studies and surveys have shown to mark and analyze the very difficult issues generate on particular method. The survey on [2] has showed few facts about system engineering like system analysis, system architecture, and overall database. A scheme offered in [13] in terms of technical facts on the functionality of lots of images retrieval technique along with querying, feature extraction of image, comparing similarity, knowledge representation, and result in display. They have technically matched unique systems instead of basic architectures. Mechael et al. [14] present different reviews involved about content-based digital facts extraction and analyzed their task for contemporary studies guideline and limitations. Liu et al. [15] discussed a deep study inside the CBIR on unique facts to extra highlight on area-based retrieval of image, containing low-degree feature extraction of image, similarity dimension, and puts high-degree of semantic properties. Jun et al. [11] proposed a scheme for CBIR using color and texture merge feature of an image. The color space is used in the global and local histogram of color and both are applied to obtain color feature of the image. Lakshmi et al.

[16] use a technique that shows a better retrieval interpretation using the global distribution of local feature, then this feature which shows the global nature of image alone. The method combines the global texture (curvelet) and color feature with local features derived from the salient feature. Privatharshini et al. [17] have concentrated on a type of technique for analogous-based image feature extraction which united visual sign and textual sign, and their ranking process is used in the area of CBIR. Different studies showed especially related facts like relevance feedback [18], high-dimensional indexing [19], and image extraction learning [20]. Jenni et al. [12] prefer a method which is majorly concentrated on database classification and efficient image representation which helps to raise retrieval time and accuracy of the overall system. Feature extraction is done by using color string coding and comparisons. Jing-Ming et al. [21] worked in order-dither block truncation coding ODBTC for CBIR. ODBTC is used to compress the images into quantizer and bitmap image, further used to generate the color co-occurrence feature (CCF) and bit pattern feature (BPF), respectively, which are together used as feature vectors. Jing-Ming et al. [22] describe error diffusion block truncation coding feature which is applied over images which give two outputs-color and bitmap quantizer, which are further processed using vector quantization for generating the image feature descriptor. After that, color histogram feature (CHF) and bit pattern histogram feature (BHF) are computed by using color quantizer and bitmap image quantizer. Anu et al. [23] proposed a method of image retrieval using local texton XOR patterns. The method uses local binary pattern and texton which shows the overall structure feature of the image. Firstly, the RGB value of query image is changed into HSV value. After that, V space from the HSV value is divided into 2 * 2 sub-blocks and texton of the image is calculated. Then the XOR operation is executed on each pixel of texton image with its neighbor pixel. HSV histogram and local XOR pattern histogram are used to construct feature vector. Manno et al. [20] offer existing sketch-based image retrieval (SBIR) systems execute at a decreased level on real-life images, where background information may control image descriptors and retrieval results. Angelescu et al. [24] proposed SQL-based CBIR which is used to improve the query process on CBIR system. It is a portable solution written in the SQL programming language. Mack et al. [25] work in process for searching images from large database and they use a multi-page hashing scheme. Using the image itself to not only is efficient for identical images, but similar images to some degree of fuzziness and degree of similarity as well. Douik et al. [26] based on upper-lower of local binary pattern (UL-LBP) depend on local binary pattern (LBP) which is used to describe global features of overall image.

4 Comparisons of Various CBIR Techniques

In above section, we mention various (CBIR) techniques proposed by various authors. Now we compare some of these techniques to show distinction between them, and their advantages show why they are useful for those approaches. Table 1 shows short description on such schemes, and Table 2 describes advantage and disadvantage on such schemes, which helps to identify value of representing schemes and what is the importance of the particular method.

S. no.	Technique name	Authors	Description	Year
1.	CBIR using color- and texture-fused feature	Jun Yue, Zhenbo Li, Lu Liu b, Zetian Fu	This paper used color and texture feature together of an image for CBIR. global color histogram and local color histogram both are used to extract color feature, and co-occurrence matrix is used to extract the texture of an image	Year—2011
2.	CBIR using color string comparison	KommineniJenni, Satria Mandala1, MohdShahrizalSunar	In this paper, the proposed method mainly concentrated on database classification and efficient image representation which help to improve retrieval time and accuracy. The method for CBIR based on support vector machine (SVM) classifier	Year—2015
3.	ODBTC for content-based image retrieval	Jing-Ming, <i>Senior</i> <i>Member, IEEE</i> , and HeriPrasetyo	In this paper, ODBTC encoding is applied to compresses the image into quantizer and bitmap images which are used to generate the color co-occurrence feature and bit pattern feature used as feature vector	Year—2015
4.	EDBTC feature for content-based image retrieval	Jing-Ming, <i>Senior</i> <i>Member</i> IEEE, HeriPrasetyo, and Jen-Ho Chen	In this paper, EDBTC is used to extract the feature of the image. EDBTC coding is applied to generate quantization to generate the image	Year—2015

Table 1 Description of several CBIR methods

(continued)

S. no.	Technique name	Authors	Description	Year
			feature descriptor. Color quantizer and bitmap quantizer is used to generate CHF and BHF	
5.	Content-based image retrieval using local texton XOR patterns	AnuBala, TajinderKaur	In this paper, local binary pattern and texton which gives the overall structure feature of an image. RGB value of query image is converted into HSV which helps to find the textons. Then XOR operation is performed and feature vector is constructed with HSV histogram and local XOR pattern histogram is used for similarity measurement	Year—2015

Table 1 (continued)

Table 2 Comparison among several CBIR methods

Schemes	Advantage	Disadvantage
CBIR using color- and texture-fused feature [11]	Fused features are used which gives better visual retrieval than the single characterized feature retrieval	Spatial distribution of color information is lost
New curvelet features for image indexing and retrieval [16]	Redeem the problem which arise to characterize local feature by global feature	Calculation overhead in global space of local feature
CBIR using color string comparison [12]	Use database classification thus computational complexity is decreased	Computational overhead in string to string comparison in similarity measurement
ODBTC for content-based image retrieval [21]	Offer low level of computational complexity in bitmap image and two quantizer's generations	The quantization error cannot be compensated with the ordered dithering halftoning and thus QDBTC generates low image grads
EDBTC feature for content-based image retrieval [22]	Error kernel is used to yield a different bit/ halftoning pattern to utilize the dither property for solving the false counter problem	To solve a false counter problem, it takes prolonged processing time
Content-based image retrieval using local texton XOR patterns [23]	The new feature is introduced called local texton XOR pattern which grants the overall structure of query image and database	Ignore color appearance of much complexity and choose single color

5 Conclusion

Content-based image retrieval over large image datasets is popular among communication areas. Accuracy and performance time are major aspects of CBIR. In this paper, a survey has been done on some techniques of feature extraction. Some of mention technique got few lacking such as loss of important feature information, prolong processing time, computational overhead. It is found that large datasets always take more time to complete the searching task. That makes the overall system less effective. Thus, an effective, relevant image feature extraction is needed to get better results. If we minimize the problem associated with large dataset, then overall manipulation of the database will be decreased, and it will give better result of an image retrieval process. Therefore, in future our work is going to design a new better approach for better result optimization of content-based image retrieval system.

References

- Kashyap, R., Tiwari, V.: Energy-based active contour method for image segmentation. Int. J. Electron. Healthc. 9(2–3), 210–225 (2017)
- Smeulders, A.W.M., Santini, S., Worring, M., Gupta, A., Jain, R.: Content-based image retrieval at the end of the early years. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 22(12), 1349– 1380 (2000)
- Niblack, W., Barber, R., Equitz, W., Flickner, M., Glasman, E., Pektovic, D., Yanker, P., Faloutsos, C., Taubin, G.: The QBIC project: query images using content by color, texture and shape. In: Proceedings of the SPIE Storage and Retrieval for Databases of Image and Video, vol. 1908. SPIE (1993)
- Smith, J.R., Chang, S.F.: Visual SEEK: fully automated content-based image query system. In: Proceedings of Forth ACM International Conference on Multimedia 96, Boston, MA (1996)
- Wang, J.Z., Li, J., Wiederhold, G.: Simplicity: semantics-sensitive integrated matching for picture libraries. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 23(9), 947–963 (2001)
- Carson, C., Belongie, S., Greenspan, H., Malik, J.: Blobworld: image segmentation using expectation-maximization and its application for image querying. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 24(8), 1026–1038 (2002)
- Smith, J.R., Chang, S.F.: Visually searching the web for content. IEEE Multim. 4(3), 12–20 (1997)
- Sclaroff, S., LaCascia, M., Sethi, S., Taycher, L.: Unifying textual and visual cues for content-based image retrieval system on the world wide web. Comp. Vis. Image Underst. 75 (1–2), 86–98 (1999)
- Zhou, X.S., Huang, T.S.: CBIR: from low-level features to high level semantics. In: Proceedings of the SPIE, Image and Video Communication and Processing, vol. 3974, pp. 426–431 (2000)
- 10. Brunelli, R., Mich, O.: Image retrieval by examples. IEEE Trans. Multim. 2(3), 164–171 (2000)
- Yue, J., Li, Z., Liu, L.: Content-based image retrieval using color and texture fused features. Math. Comput. Model. 54, 1121–1127 (2011)

- Jenni, K., Mandala, S., Sunar, M.S.: CBIR using color string comparison. In: Procedia Comput. Sci. 50, 374–379 (2015)
- 13. Veltkamp, R.C., Tanase, M.: Content-based image retrieval systems: a survey (2000)
- Lew, M.S., Sebe, N., Djeraba, C., Jain, R.: Content-based multimedia information retrieval: state of the art and challenges. ACM Trans. Multim. Comput. Commun. Appl. 2(1), 1–19 (2006)
- 15. Liu, Y., Zhang, D., Lu, G., Ma, W.Y.: A survey for content-based image retrieval with high-level semantics. Pattern Recog. **40**(1), 262–282 (2007)
- Lakshmi A., Rakshit, S.: New curvelet features for image indexing and retrieval. In: Computer Networks and Intelligent Computing, vol. 157, pp. 492–501. Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg (2011)
- Priyatharshini, R., Chitrakala, S.: Association based image retrieval: a survey. In: Mobile Communication and Power Engineering, vol. 157, pp. 17–26. Springer, Berlin Heidelberg (2013)
- Li, J., Allinson, N.M.: Relevance feedback in content-based image retrieval: a survey. In: Handbook on Neural Information Processing, vol. 49, pp. 433–469. Springer, Berlin Heidelberg (2013)
- Ai, L., Yu, J., He, Y., Guan, T.: High-dimensional indexing technologies for large scale content-based image retrieval: a review. J. Zhejiang Univ. Sci. C 14(7), 505–520 (2013)
- Manno-Kovacs, A.: Content based image retrieval using salient orientation histograms. In: IEEE International Conference For Image Processing (ICIP), pp. 2480–2484. Phoenix, AZ, USA (2016)
- Guo, J.-M., Prasetyo, H.: Content-based image retrieval using features extracted from halftoning-based block truncation coding. IEEE Trans. Image Process. 24 (2015)
- 22. Guo, J.-M., Prasetyo, H., Chen, J.-H.: Content-based image retrieval using error diffusion block truncation coding features. IEEE Trans. Circ. Syst. Video Technol. **25** (2015)
- 23. Bala, A., Kaur, T.: Local texton XOR patterns: a new feature descriptor for content based image retrieval. Eng. Sci. Technol. Int. J. **19**(1), 101–112 (2016)
- Angelescu, N., Coanda, H.G., Caciula, I., Dragoi, C., Albu, F.: SQL query optimization in content based image retrieval systems. In: Internnational Conference on Communications COMM, pp. 395–398. Bucharest (2016)
- 25. Mack, P., Megherbi, D.B.: A content-based image retrieval technique with tolerance via multi-page differentiate hashing and binary-tree searching multi-object buckets. In: IEEE International Conference on Computational Intelligence and Virtual Environments for Measurement Systems and Applications (CIVEMSA), pp. 1–6. Budapest (2016)
- Douik, A., Abdellaoui, M., Kabbai, L.: Content based image retrieval using local and global features descriptor. In: 2nd International Conference on Advanced Technology for Signal and Image Processing (ATSIP), pp. 151–154. Monastir (2016)

A Use of Social Media for Opinion Mining: An Overview (With the Use of Hybrid Textual and Visual Sentiment Ontology)

Chandra Gupta Maurya, Sandeep Gore and Dharmendra Singh Rajput

Abstract In today's world, social media becomes very important for human beings. Twitter is one of them and used as a famous social media platform through which users can express their opinions on various events/matters/objects. These opinions in the form of messages are called as tweets. In this paper, an algorithm is used to find and classify tweets positive or negative with accuracy toward a specific subject. This proposed system is using the training data set dictionary to observe the semantic orientation of tweets. The sentiment analysis in Twitter is used to know how people feel about an object at a particular moment in time and also tracks how this opinion changes over time. Sentiment analysis is most important part for many social media analytics tasks. This type of sentiment analysis is useful for consumers at the time of purchasing and finding the services of any product online as it is helpful to provide the opinion of others for the same product or service. It is also helpful for marketers and manufacturers to research public opinion for their organization/product and services. This paper presents a new concept of hybrid approach (Text and Image) for social media sentiment analysis. The hybrid approach consists of aggregating sentiments for both textual and visual contents.

Keywords Opinion mining • Sentiment analysis • Feature extraction techniques Machine learning • Hybrid classification

C. G. Maurya (⊠) Computer Engineering, GHRCEM, Wagholi, Pune, India e-mail: cgmaurya.06@gmail.com

S. Gore · D. S. Rajput Vellore Institute of Technology University, Vellore 632014, India e-mail: sandeepgore4u@gmail.com

D. S. Rajput e-mail: dharmendrasingh@vit.ac.in

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_33

1 Introduction

This sentiment analysis is a process to determine the emotions and feelings in the form of words, attitudes, opinions, and emotions expressed within an online mention [1-4]. There are so many researchers who analyze sentiment either through text or through visual. When they analyze textual sentiment, it can cause to miss or loss of visual sentiments. On the contrary, when they analyze the visual sentiment, it can cause to loss of textual sentiments. We present a new concept hybrid approach (Text and Image) for social media sentiment analysis. We are using below process for sentiment analysis.

(a) Information searching and gathering, (b) Shorting, (c) Processing and analyzing.

Generally, facts have objective components but some textual contents are also there which denote the subjective characteristics. Textual contents having subjective characteristics are (1) opinions, (2) sentiments, (3) appraisals, (4) attitudes and emotions. It is very useful technique and applies to develop new applications. At present, there are huge amount of information which is available on micro-blogging sites or social sites like blogs, tweets, and social networks. A picture is worth a thousand words, and the sentiment analysis is very useful for extracting the user's sentiments toward the events individual, product, topics from such a large scale of visual contents. A basic steps or process for opinion mining and sentiment analysis of micro-blogging or social media sites (Fig. 1).

2 Basic Concept and Steps Followed for Sentiment Analysis

Sentiment analysis is a process that finds opinion, views, emotions, and attitudes of people or public from text, image, speech and visual tweets, and database sources through Natural Language Processing (NLP) [1, 3]. The opinions of people as a



Fig. 1 Process of sentiment analysis and opinion mining

sentiment about any object are divided into three parts. It may be positive, negative, and neutral [1]. The below given basic steps are used for both textual and visual sentiment analyses. It is useful to analyze people sentiments, attitudes, opinion and emotions, etc., toward products, individuals, topics, organizations, events, and various kinds of services [1, 5]. Basic steps for sentiment analysis in hybrid system are as follows:

- 1. Raw data collection.
- 2. Processing.
- 3. Parallel processing.
- 4. Sentiment scoring.
- 5. Final results.

Following are the methods used for opinion mining and sentiment analysis [2].

- (1) Naïve Bayes classifier.
- (2) Support vector machine (SVM).
- (3) Multilayer perception.
- (4) Clustering, etc.

3 Preprocess of Sentiment Analysis

We measured the valuable opinion data as a combination of verb, adverb, and adjectives in this paper. Training data set or dictionary-based method is used to find the semantic points of reference of verb, adverb, and adjectives [1, 2 6, 7]. The overall blogs sentiments and incorporates emotion intensifiers are calculated by using a linear equation.

3.1 Preprocessing of Tweets Data Sets

We prepare contains file that's called operation or transaction file. It is used to find opinion indicator, namely the verb, adverb, and adjective along with emotions. As an example, there is Table 1, which describes the sentiment text either positive or negative sentiment.

We categorize some emotion intensifiers, namely the percentage of the blog or tweet in caps, the length of repeated sequences (according to Table 1 line no. 6), and the number of symbolic exclamation marks, among others [1, 2, 6, 7]. The preprocess of the tweets is as follows:

(1) Remove hyperlinks and Web URLs, symbols (#topic), source and targets (@username), special character of blogs.

Item ID	Sentiment text	Sentiment
1	is so sad for my APL friend	Negative
2	I missed the New Moon trailer	Negative
3	omg its already 7:30 : O	Positive
4	I think mi bf is cheating on me!!! T_T	Negative
5	or i just worry too much?	Negative
6	Juusssst Chillin!!	Positive
7	handed in my uniform today. i miss you already	Positive

Table 1 Dictionary-set of emotions with their sentiment polarity

(2) By using the Dictionary Replace all the emotions with their sentiment polarity.

(3) Count the number of exclamation marks, and remove all punctuations.

(4) By using a Dictionary where we tag the sentiment polarity (negative/positive).

(5) Find the semantic point of reference of adjective, verbs, and adverbs.

3.2 Score of Adverbs and Verbs by Using Semantic Orientation

The sentiment of assured texts can be measured through semantic point of reference of the adjectives, but it is essential to include the adverbs. Because the various types of adverbs are in linguistics (such as "not") so it is very important to consider adverbs properly as it could change the meaning of adjective totally. As it represents the positive or negative point of reference conveyed by people. For example, one person says, "This is a reasonable mobile"; second person says, "This is not a reasonable mobile"; according to this example, if adverb is not considered, then both the sentences will present the same meaning and it will be a positive response toward a mobile. Where as first sentence represents the positive response, the second sentence represents negative response toward mobile. Now, at the other point of view the strength of the sentiment will not be measurable without considering adverb. In simple term, we can say that to consider adverb is essential as the adjective is just a describing word whereas adverb clarifies the intensity of opinion and sentiment [1, 2, 7]. For example, one person says "The quality of this mobile phone is too good." But second person says "The quality of mobile is good." As both the responses are positive, adjective alone cannot represent the intensity of opinion sentiment. So, we need the adverb for finding out the strength or the intensity of opinion toward any object. Adverb with the adjective gives a perfect description of response whether strongly positive opinion, slight positive opinion, or a less positive opinion. For finding the perfect positive or negative opinion, the measuring list or scale of positive and negative adverbs and verbs will be created and then grown by searching WordNet [2, 3]. It will be intuition-based such as "excellent, very good, good, neutral, poor" ranging from 5 to 1 or +1 to -1.

3.3 Procedure (Algorithm) for Predicting Adverb and Verb Polarity

a. Process to find out point of reference (target_Adverb/Verb wi, Adverb/ Verb_measuring list or Scale)

b. begin

- c. if (wi has synonym's in Adverb/Verb_measuring list or Scale)
- d. {wi's point of reference = s's point of reference;
- e. add wi with point of reference to Adverb/Verb_measuring list or Scale;}
- f. else if (wi has antonym's in Adverb/Verb_measuring list or Scale)
- g. {wi's point of reference = opposite point of reference of a's point of reference;
- h. add wi with point of reference to Adverb/Verb_measuring list or Scale;}
- i. end

3.4 Tweet Sentiment Scoring

We create three types of group.

(1) Adverbs cluster (advi_cluster), (2) Adjective cluster (adji_cluster), (3) Verb cluster (vbi_cluster).

We create a cluster consequently adverb and adjective concurrently and its call the adji_cluster; similarly we create a cluster the consequently verb and adverb concurrently and its call the vbi_cluster. The advi_cluster strength is calculated by the product of adji score and advi score, and the vbi cluster strength as the product of vbi score and advi score. Sometimes, there is no adverb in the opinion cluster, so the *S* (advi) is set as a default value 0.5.

$$S(T) = [(1 + (\text{TPc} + \log(\text{Nr}) + \log(\text{Nex}))/3) / |\text{OI}(\text{R})|] * \sum_{i=1}^{i=1} |\text{OI}(R)| S(\text{AC}i) + S(\text{VC}i) + \text{Ne}i * S(\text{E}i)$$

where

|OI(R)| size of the set of extracted opinion groups and emotions from the tweets, TPc fraction of tweets in caps,

Nrcount of recurrent letters,Nexexclamation marks count,S(ACi)ith adjective clusters score,

S(VCi) ith verb clusters score,



Fig. 2 Proposed hybrid system (text and visual) sentiment analysis

S(Ei) ith emotions score,

Ne*i* the count of *i*th.

TPc, Nr, and Nex represent emphasis on the sentiment to be conveyed so they can be collectively called sentiment intensifiers. If the calculated score of the tweet is more than 1 or less than -1, the score is taken as 1 or -1, respectively (Fig. 2).

4 Proposed Hybrid System (Text and Visual)

The hybrid approach consists of aggregating sentiments from both textual and visual contents. For textual mining, we are employing an approach such as Natural Language Processing (NLP)-based opinion clustering and analysis using R. For visual ontology, we will be using Microsoft Emotion API and Accord.Net machine learning API for image processing [1, 6]. After extracting sentiments from both approaches, they are then clustered and will be made available for analysis. For visual sentiment analysis, we have design architecture. Three major convolutional layers and some fully linked layers are presented in this architecture for the calculation of visual sentiment analysis. Our architectural model attempts to address the weakly labeled nature of the image training database, where some labels are generated by machine, a progressive leveraging training strategy, and a domain transfer strategy to fine-tune the neural network. Our result after evaluation suggests



Fig. 3 Data flow of proposed hybrid system (text and visual)

that this strategy is very effective for improving the performance of neural network in terms of generalizability.

The proposed system work, hybrid (textual and visual) sentiment ontology described in 3 layers (Fig. 3).

(1) Data layer, (2) Business layer, (3) Presentation layer.

5 Opinion Mining Using Visual Sentiment Ontology

In this module firstly we extract the image emotions using Microsoft Emotion API and then implement an automated emotion detection system. For developing this system, we have used a series of logical steps. In this automated system, we have used the given below steps. The API is divided into two parts [8, 9]: training database generation (Fig. 4a) and emotion detection (Fig. 4b).

In emotion detection [8-10], the algorithm matches the resulting final output of input image with the already existing templates in the training database [10].

A. Face Recognition

This technique is based on genetic algorithms and eigenface technologies. In this technique, the first binary image to be converted from RGB image will be converted. The average value of red, green, and blue (RGB) for each pixel will be calculated, and when the middling value is less than 110, it will be replaced by a black or a white pixel [8, 10]. That means, you can get binary images from RGB images. For the next step, the scanning image will start from midpoint to find a daily image caption [11] and after nonstop black pixel [8, 10, 12] we will try to find uninterrupted whites pixels. Then, you will try to discover the maximum width of a white pixel that will be searched both left and right on both sides of the pole. If you find that if the new width is more than half the previous one or more width, then we will break the scanning process when you reach down arrow. Then, we will cut the image from the beginning of the forehead and its height is 1.5 times of its width [11, 12].



Fig. 4 a Training database generation and b emotion detection

B. Eye Recognition

In this section, we will transform the face image of red, green, and blue (RGB) pattern into a binary pattern. Scanning will be done from F/4 to F - F/4, and it will be used on two eyes midpoint and high white nonstop pixels and the height between them. The range will be two eyes [8, 9] midpoint.

After that, you will find the top points of the two brushes and they are searching for it vertically. You get the midpoint of F/8 for the left eye and midpoint on F - F/8 for the correct figure. There may be some white pixels between eye and eyebrows. Black pixels will be attached to the eye from the wall, the black pixel lines will be kept between mi/2" to mi/4", and it will be for the left side eye. Then right eye followed by lines mi + (F - mi)/4 to mi + 3*(F - mi)/4 and black pixel-line height (*h*-geo) lines starting from the beginning of line)/4.

Here

- F width of selected picture,
- mi midpoint of two eyes,
- *h* height of the selected picture.

The next step would be to find the lower point of two eyes and that would be done by searching the vertical black pixels. We find the width of mi/4 to mi - mi/4 on the left eye. After, we find the mi + (F - mi)/4 to mi + 3 * (F - mi)/4'' width image then the starting point of the eyebrows downwards; it will have a right eye [8, 9]. Then you will find the left eye on the right and it will be through the search of black pixels that are horizontal so that from the beginning of the initial black pixels. Then, the search will be searched for the left side of the left-hand side and we find the beginning point of black pixels between the top and bottom sides of the right eye. Now, we get information on the left side of the left eye, this image is the starting point of the width, and the right eye on the right is the last frame of the image. Now the next step will be to lower the right side of the RGB image, at the lower position, the left side and the two eyes [11].

C. Lip Recognition

Lip box for lip detection will be fixed. Lip box will be considered to have lips. The difference between the forehead and the eye is that the height of the eye will be fixed at the height of the eye and the height of the box will be determined, which will be the lip. Now, in the left eye box, the box $\frac{1}{4}$ of the box will show the starting point of the box and the box on the right side will be shown in the box on the right and show the box's last height. So, you can say that there is only a lip in the box and there can be a part of the nose in it, and the RGB image will be cut according to the box [8–10].

D. Emotion Recognition

For emotion detection, it is essential to search the Bezier curve for both the eyes and lip in an image. After that, the width of the Bezier curve will be converted into 100 and the height will also be converted as per the width. Now when the image feelings, contents, and available information are matched in the training database, the program will know which emotion is the closest one and the closest or matched emotion will be given as final output by the program [8, 9], for example (1) happiness, (2) fear, (3) neutral, (4) surprise, (5) anger.

6 Conclusion

This paper includes a survey which is based on comparisons of sentiment (textual and visual), and there is an analysis of present techniques for opinion mining including hybrid approach for social media sentiment analysis. The hybrid approach consists of aggregate sentiments from both textual and visual contents. The hybrid approach methods are very effective for textual and visual opinion mining. We conclude that more effective and accurate results or data output can be obtained by using hybrid approach. Hybrid approach model provides better sentiment accuracy in comparison with other models. The initiative for the study of hybrid approach technique can be taken to improve the purity of sentiment categorization and adaptive capacity to variety of domains and different languages.

References

- Ahmed, K., El Tazi, N.: Sentiment Analysis Over Social Networks: An Overview. Faculty of Computers and Information, Cairo University, Cairo, Egypt, IEEE (2015). (978-1-4799-7492-4/15)
- Pak, A., Paroubek, P.: Twitter as a corpus for sentiment analysis and opinion mining. In: Proceedings of the Seventh Conference on International Language Resources and Evaluation, pp. 1320–1326 (2010)
- 3. You, Q., Luo, J., Jin, H., Yang, J.: Robust Image Sentiment Analysis Using Progressively Trained and Domain Transferred Deep Networks. Department of Computer Science, University of Rochester, Rochester, (2015)
- Pang, B., Lee, L.: Opinion mining and sentiment analysis. Found. Trends Inf. Retr. 2(1–2) (2008)
- Schreck, T., Keim, D.: Visual Analysis of Social Media Data. University of Konstanz, Germany, IEEE Computer Society (2013). (0018-9162/13)
- Yilin Wang, Baoxin Li: Sentiment analysis for social media images. In: IEEE 15th International Conference on Data Mining Workshops. School of Computer Science, Arizona State University Tempe, Arizona (2015)
- Kharde, V.A., Sonawane, S.S.: Sentiment analysis of twitter data: a survey of techniques. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 139(11), 0975–8887 (2016)
- Jones, M.J., Rehg, J.M.: Statistical color models with application to skin detection. Int. J. Comput. Vision (IJCV) 46(1), 81–96 (2002)
- Mahajan, N., Mahajan, H.: Emotion detection algorithm. Int. J. Electr. Electron. Res. 2(Issue 2), 56–60 (2014) (ISSN 2348-6988, Nagpur University-India, Amravati University India)
- Fink, B., Grammer, K., Matts, P.J.: Visible skin color distribution plays a role in the perception of age, attractiveness, and health in female faces. Evolut. Hum. Behav., 433–442 (2006)
- Wang, Y., Li, B.: Sentiment analysis for social media images. In: IEEE 15th International Conference on Data Mining Workshops, School of Computer Science, Arizona State University Tempe, Arizona (2015)
- Yuille, A.: Feature extraction from faces using deformable templates. Int. J. Comput. Vision, 99–111 (1992)

Learning Contextual Knowledge Structures from the Web for Facilitating Semantic Interpretation of Tweets

Nazura Javed and Muralidhara B. L.

Abstract Tweet analysis can provide valuable insight into societal issues and opinions. The terse, cryptic tweets, however, cannot be interpreted on face value. Interpretation assumes contextual knowledge. We propose a novel methodology of extracting structured contextual knowledge for popular topics/events and building knowledge structures using mining and computational linguistics techniques. We crunch relevant context contents from online sources and structure the same as contextual knowledge structures (CKSs). These automatically extracted CKS are (a) structured as subject–predicate–object triples, (b) they are relevant because they are built by mining contextual Web content, and (c) they are scalable to ontology and can be used for training classifiers. We demonstrate the feasibility and effectiveness of this methodology with an experiment which captures tweets of Indian political leaders, taps the related Web content, and transforms the same into CKS. The novel contribution of this work is its synergistic approach which combines acquisition, organization, and summarization with scalability to contextual ontology for social media analytics.

Keywords Social media mining • Contextual knowledge structures Text mining • Computational linguistics • Machine learning

1 Introduction

Social media has emerged as an inclusive medium for dissemination, sharing, and exchanging views or opinions. Interpretation of the social media content however has posed challenge because of the unstructured, flexible format, and nonadherence

Muralidhara B. L. e-mail: murali@bub.ernet.in

N. Javed (🖂) · Muralidhara B. L.

Department of Computer Science and Applications, Bangalore University, Bengaluru, India e-mail: nazuraj@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_34

to linguistic rules [1, 2]. Mining and analyzing microblogs like Twitter has proved more challenging because of the sparse content [3]. Tweets are brief and thus their interpretation is based on background knowledge. Human beings are able to decipher the sparse and cryptic tweets because they are guided by the *Contextual knowledge* [4]. The knowledge [5] that they possess enables them to interpret the terse and cryptic tweets. Thus, the objective of our work is to arm the machine with knowledge in the form of structured, supporting knowledge structures. These contextual knowledge structures (CKS) can be leveraged for discovering an association between cryptic tweets and the underlying events and thus *enable* the machine classification of tweets.

In our work, we discover the trending topics or events from the tweets and construct a pertinent search phrase for searching the contextual Web content. We capture the Web content and finally extract knowledge structures that represent the contextual knowledge. We automate the process of acquisition and representation of contextual knowledge by using text mining and computational linguistics techniques. We generate subject–predicate/verb–object triples that represent the highlights of any given popular event or topic. These acquired contextual knowledge structures can be potentially leveraged for tweet analysis and interpretation.

The relevance of this contribution is stated below:

- (a) Social media mining has assumed tremendous significance and relevance today. Issues are discussed, debated, questioned, and opinionated. Analysis of this dynamic content available online can provide valuable insight into political, social, economic climate, and public sentiments.
- (b) Standard KBs containing ontology, for example, DBpedia [6], ConceptNet [7], and yago [8] are available for utilization of research and business communities. However, these may not contain structures pertaining to day-to-day happenings, events, and other dynamic, temporal content. Hence, they may be unsuitable for adding context to the tweets. Thus, tapping the online resources, structuring them, and compiling them into a structured knowledge representation scheme are relevant.
- (c) We do not restrict or predefine the domain or topic for context generation. Rather, we discover the popular topics on the basis of the tweets, build context for them, and represent them as knowledge structures. Table 1, for example, contains some sample user tweets in their original form. These tweets are very difficult to mine even after they are cleaned. However, these tweets contain the associated URLs links. They also contain certain *distinct* keywords that can help to identify the underlying topic or event. Thus, if the distinct words

S. No.	User Tweet in its original form
1	rt @madhukishwar: puzzle why kanhaiyya arrested prior to investigation into his role while kashmiris who actually shouted tukde tukde slogaâ€
2	Heard kanhaiya's speech many times.amazing clarity of thought expressed.he said wat most people have been feeling.god bless him

Table 1 User tweets in their original form

pertaining to topic are discovered and structured as CKS, machine interpretation and classification can produce better results.

The remainder of the paper is structured as follows: In Sect. 2, we overview the related literature. Section 3 proposes the methodology for learning knowledge structures. Section 4 describes the experiments and the results thereof. This paper concludes by examining the scope/ boundary of the proposed techniques and future scope for enhancement and research.

2 Related Work

The relevance and challenges of social media analysis are discussed in the works [2, 9–11]. Social media analysis can provide valuable insights. However, we need to deal with several challenges such as semantic inconsistency or inaccuracies, misinformation, lack of structure, size, and dynamic nature [9]. The limited length of a tweet and nonrestrictive writing style results in grammatical errors, misspellings, and informal abbreviations [2, 10]. Tweets contain highly irregular syntax and nonstandard use of English. Thus, tweets need to be normalized and converted into standard form of English in order to make them suitable for machine translation and natural language processing (NLP) [11]. In our work, we preprocess the tweets; we remove stop words and punctuations, convert the phonetically spelled words into correct English words, split the conjoined words into standard form, and separate the hashtags, @tags, and embedded URLs. This makes them more amenable for processing.

Classification of short texts and the problems therein are discussed in [12]. Short texts do not provide sufficient word occurrences, and hence, traditional classification methods such as "Bag-Of-Words" fail. Hence, appending domain specific features to the tweets and enhancing them was the approach used in the above work. We address the problem of sparseness by following a different approach. We build contextual KS (CKS) with the objective of using them for machine learning.

The relevance of Web resources is highlighted in [13, 14]. The work [15] demonstrates the relevance of semantic models in interpretation and inference. In our work, we leverage the Web resources and build semantic structures in the form of KS. These CKS can be used for inferring topics or classifying the sparse tweets.

KBs have been used for tweet interpretation. It is difficult to interpret some tweets in isolation. But if the context of this tweet is available in the KB, then inference and interpretation are possible. Social genome a large real-time social knowledge base was built [3]. This was built, using Wikipedia, a set of other data sources and social media data. A detailed discussion on knowledge structures, their representations and their applicability are discussed in [16]. Our approach of building CKS is similar to this; but in our work, we tap the Web and social media content to extract the knowledge.
There are state-of-the-art KBs like DeepDive [17], NELL [18], and Knowledge Vault [19]. These are very comprehensive and are automatically generated from the Web content. Our CKS is not comprehensive or general. Each set of CKS is generated for one topic only. They are generated with the objective of training the machine with the terms related to a topic. Hence, CKS cannot be compared with these KBs which are general in purpose and comprehensive.

Works [20, 21] showcase webLyzard, a Web intelligence and media analytics platform that compile large archives of Web content from multiple online sources, and provides visual tools to access, and analyze this content [20]. The technique proposed by us is similar to the above work with respect to the aggregation of the Web and social media content for extraction of knowledge. But the methodology followed by us differs in the following respects: (a) We do not restrict the scope of knowledge extraction to a particular topic or event. We discover trending topics and events from tweets with the help of statistical and mining techniques.

3 Methodology

The objective of this work is to obtain relevant, representative knowledge structures for topics which are popular, discussed, questioned, and debated on social media. The proposed methodology enables us to automatically generate CKS for any trending topic or event. Learning CKS involves two main processing tasks: (a) building a filter vector and (b) extracting knowledge structures. These are discussed in the following subsections.

3.1 Building a Filter Vector

Filter vector $V_i = \{t_0, t_1, t_2...t_n | t_i \text{ is term } \in topic_i\}$ comprises of relevant and important terms pertaining to a specific topic. $V_i \leftrightarrow topic_i$, i.e., there is one vector associated with each topic. We use text mining techniques like vector space model to compute the relevance of the terms and derive this filter vector. Each vector contains only the significant and terms relevant for a particular topic. Since relatively irrelevant content is filtered out before constructing this vector, this step also achieves the objective of dimensionality reduction. The following are the steps involved in this process.

3.1.1 Capturing Popular Tweets

The political leaders with more than a million followers and belonging to different political of India are considered as popular leaders. The twitter messages tweeted by them are termed as "Popular tweets." Political entities or leaders tweet about the

current and relevant events, issues, or policies. Mining these tweets yield popular, trending *topics or events*.

3.1.2 Discovering Popular Topics

They are discovered using the following steps:

- i. Hashtags, if present, are extracted from the popular tweets. If the hashtag contains conjoined words, for example, #modibudgettest, the hashtag is split.
- ii. A document-term matrix (DTM) with term frequencies (TF) is constructed for all the popular tweets and the terms with the highest frequencies are extracted.
- iii. If the terms with highest frequencies are the same as the (split) hashtagged terms; they are selected as "Popular Topics" (PT).

3.1.3 Generating Context Search Phrase (CSP)

The PTs discovered may be specific terms like "Budget2016" or relatively general words like "JNU." In order to build a semantic context corpus, it is necessary to scrap out only the relevant Web content. Search for a general term like "JNU" may yield irrelevant Web content. Hence instead of searching for just the PT, we generate a context search phrase (CSP). We append the PT with the month of tweet, the year of tweet, and the country and generate a search phrase. Then, we use Google Trends for suggestions regarding the above search phrase. CSP is formed by concatenating the suggested words to the PT. CSP = PT \cup Suggestion by Google Trends.

3.1.4 Web Scraping

CSP is used as a search string and the related documents, news, blogs, and articles are searched from the Web. The contents from the retrieved URLs are scraped. These are organized into a corpus such that there is one folder for one topic.

3.1.5 Mine the Corpus

We (a) remove of punctuations, special symbols, and Unicode characters; (b) remove all stop words; (c) perform standardization of proper nouns. For example, Prime Minister Narendra Modi, PM Mr. Modi, PM Modi are the different ways in which Prime Minister Narendra Modi is represented. These nouns are translated into a standard form like "NarendraModi." After preprocessing, we generate a term-document matrix (TDM). One TDM is generated for each folder. The row sum represents the frequency of each term. The higher the frequency, the



Fig. 1 Generation of topic-wise filter vector

more is the significance of the term. We filter out the infrequent terms for reducing the dimensionality. This is done using the feature ranking method. The frequency of terms is considered as its rank. The top-ranked terms are selected using the Pareto analysis principle. The filter vector is constructed using the frequent terms. Figure 1 depicts the various steps involved in this process.

3.2 Extracting Knowledge Structures

We apply the filter vector to each document of the topic folder. This helps us to obtain a subset of sentences which are relevant and important for a specific topic. POS tagging, dependency parsing, and chunking enable us to extract meaningful verb phrases [22, 23]. Figure 2 is a representation of the process.

3.2.1 Filtration and Dimensionality Reduction

The filter vector $V_i = \{t_0, t_1, t_2...t_n | t_i \in topic_k\}$ comprises of relevant and important terms related to a topic. There is one filter vector for each topic. We apply the associated filter vector to the documents of topic-wise folder. From the documents, we select only the sentences that contain the vector terms and filter out the remaining. This filtration process has two advantages: (a) reduced dimensionality and (b) essence of the corpus is retained.



Fig. 2 Extraction of knowledge structures

3.2.2 Computational Linguistic Techniques

We extract CKS from the sentences by making use of computational linguistics techniques. POS tagging tags each morpheme of the sentence with its part of speech. Dependency parsing helps to parse the tagged sentences meaningfully. Dependency parsing considers the verb as the structural center of a phrase. This facilitates isolation of the verb phrases. The nouns are the potential subjects and the extraction of preposition clauses yields the object clauses. The verb phrases extracted are expressed as subject–predicate–object triples.

3.2.3 Duplication/Redundancy Elimination

We use two techniques for duplication elimination. (a) We eliminate the nonunique triples. (b) We filter out the triples which are a subset of others, i.e., *eliminate triple_i*, *if triple_i* \subset *triple_j*. For example, "create" "asset or infrastructure" "in rural area" is a superset of "create" "infrastructure" "in rural area." The remaining triples form the CKS.

4 Experiment and Results

We collected the tweets of the popular political leaders from India like Prime Minister of India, Mr. Narendra Modi, Chief Minister of Delhi Mr. Arvind Kejriwal, President of the Congress party, Mr. Rahul Gandhi using Python twitter Search API. We collected 482 tweets by them during the period of February 2016 to April 2016. We performed comprehensive preprocessing and built a clean corpus [20]. "JNU," "Mannkibaat," "MGNREGA" were identified as the PTs. We derived

Relevant sentences from corpus	Verb phrases (extracted using MontyLingua)	Contextual Knowledge Structures (CKS) Subject–predicate–object
In the Union Budget for 2016–17 the finance minister Arun Jaitley announced an allocation of Rs 38,500 crore for providing employment under MGNREGA	("Announce" "Finance Minister Arun Jaitley" "allocation" "of Rs 38,500 crore") ("Provide" "employment" "under MGNREGA")	"Finance Minister Arun Jaitley" "announce" "allocation of Rs 38,500 crore" "Employment" "provide" "under MGNREGA"
MGNREGA needed in urban areas too	("Need" "MGNREGA" "in urban area")	"MGNREGA" "need" "in urban area"

Table 2 Verb phrases generated using MontyLingua tool and the extracted KS

the CSP by augmenting these PTs. We then used Microsoft Bing API and Web scraping and built our contextual corpus. We had one folder for each PT. Each folder of the corpus was converted into a TDM containing term frequencies (TFs) using R mining tool. The frequent terms were determined and the filter vector was built. The documents were parsed using python code and sentences containing the frequent terms were selected. This yielded a single document which contained only important and relevant sentences. POS tagging and dependency parsing were done using MontyLingua [24]. MontyLingua yielded a comprehensive output comprising of chunks like noun phrases, verb phrases, subject–predicate–object Triples were formed using verb phrases. The triples were sorted, duplicity was eliminated and the resulting CKS were stored in a document. Table 2 shows the output verb phrases generated using MontyLingua tool and the extracted CKS.

5 Conclusion and Future Scope

The proposed technique yields topic-wise CKS. These CKS triples are representative, depictive, summaries which can potentially be transformed into predicate calculus or ontology and used for machine intelligence. The methodology proposed is simple, yet effective, and efficient. It is general and inclusive and can be applied for text analytics and interpretation in multiple areas. Interpretation of tweets, summary generation, and machine learning are some of its applications. The topics and associated domain terms and entities learn from the CKS can be used for Tweet —Topic Mapping. Classification and sentiment mining from tweets using CKS are the next milestone.

References

- 1. Batrinca, B., Treleaven, P.C.: Social media analytics: a survey of techniques, tools and platforms. AI Soc. **30**(1), 89–116 (2015)
- Javed, N., Muralidhara, B.L.: Automating corpora generation with semantic cleaning and tagging of tweets for multi-dimensional social media analytics. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 127(12), 11–16 (2015)
- Chai, X., Deshpande, O., Garera, N., Gattani, A., Lam, W., Lamba, D.S., Prasad, S.T.S.: Social media analytics: the Kosmix story. IEEE Data Eng. Bull. 36(3), 4–12 (2013)
- Tiwari, V., Thakur, R.S.: Pattern warehouse: context based modeling and quality issues. In: Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, India Section A: Physical Sciences, vol. 86, pp. 417–431. Springer, Berlin (2016)
- Tiwari, V., & Thakur, R.S.: Contextual snowflake modelling for pattern warehouse logical design. In: Sadhana-Academy Proceedings in Engineering Science, vol. 40, pp. 15–33. Springer, Berlin (2015)
- Lehmann, J., Isele, R., Jakob, M., Jentzsch, A., Kontokostas, D., Mendes, P.N., Bizer, C.: DBpedia—a large-scale, multilingual knowledge base extracted from Wikipedia. Semant. Web 6(2), 167–195 (2015)
- Liu, H., Singh, P.: ConceptNet—a practical commonsense reasoning tool-kit. BT Technol. J. 22(4), 211–226 (2004)
- https://www.mpi-inf.mpg.de/departments/databases-and-information-systems/research/yagonaga/yago/ (2012)
- Zeng, D., Chen, H., Lusch, R., Li, S.: Social media analytics and intelligence. IEEE Intell. Syst. 25(6), 13–16 (2010)
- Li, C., Sun, A., Weng, J., He, Q.: Tweet segmentation and its application to named entity recognition. IEEE Trans. Knowl. Data Eng. 27(2), 558–570 (2015)
- Kaufmann, J., Kalita, J.: Syntactic normalization of twitter messages. In: International Conference on Natural Language Processing (ICON 2011), December, Kharagpur, India, pp. 149–158 (2011)
- Sriram, B., Fuhry, D., Demir, E., Ferhatosmanoglu, H., Demirbas, M.: Short text classification in twitter to improve information filtering. In: Proceedings of the 33rd International ACM SIGIR Conference on Research and Development in Information Retrieval, pp. 841–842, ACM (2010)
- Gomadam, K., Yeh, P. Z., Verma, K., Miller, J. A. Data Enrichment using Web APIs. In: 2012 IEEE First International Conference on Services Economics, pp. 46–53, 2012
- Jadhav, A.S., Purohit, H., Kapanipathi, P., Anantharam, P., Ranabahu, A.H., Nguyen, V., Sheth, A.P.: Twitris 2.0: semantically empowered system for understanding perceptions from social data (2010)
- Villanueva, D., González-Carrasco, I., López-Cuadrado, J.L., Lado, N.: SMORE: towards a semantic modeling for knowledge representation on social media. Sci. Comput. Progr. (2015)
- 16. Warren, P., Davies, J., Simperl, E.: Context and semantics for knowledge management: technologies for personal productivity. Springer Science & Business Media (2011)
- Niu, F., Zhang, C., Ré, C., Shavlik, J.: Elementary: large-scale knowledge-base construction via machine learning and statistical inference. Int. J. Semant. Web Inf. Syst. (IJSWIS) 8(3), 42–73 (2012)
- 18. Carlson, A., Betteridge, J., Kisiel, B., Settles, B., Hruschka, Jr., E., Mitchell, T.: Toward an architecture for never-ending language learning. In: AAAI (2010)
- Dong, X., Gabrilovich, E., Heitz, G., Horn, W., Lao, N., Murphy, K., Zhang, W.: Knowledge vault: a web-scale approach to probabilistic knowledge fusion. In: Proceedings of the 20th ACM SIGKDD International Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, pp. 601–610. ACM (2014)
- 20. https://www.weblyzard.com/; web Intelligence and Visual Analytics

- Scharl, A., Weichselbraun, A., Rafelsberger, W., Kamolov, R.: Scalable knowledge extraction and visualization for web intelligence. In: 2016 49th Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences (HICSS), pp. 3749–3757 (2016)
- 22. http://nlp.stanford.edu/software/stanford-dependencies.shtml
- 23. De Marneffe, M.C., MacCartney, B., Manning, C.D.: Generating typed dependency parses from phrase structure parses. Proc. LREC 6(2006), 449–454 (2006)
- 24. Liu, H.: MontyLingua: an end-to-end natural language processor with common sense. Available at: http://web.media.mit.edu/~hugo/montylingua(2004)

An Efficient Technique for Online Iris Image Compression and Personal Identification

Kamta Nath Mishra

Abstract In this research article, an iris image compression and identification algorithm called Iris Image Compressor and Identifier is proposed which will convert the iris image of eve in the form of Laplace–Beltrami Spectra. Further, this Laplace–Beltrami Spectra will be converted into the form of Strakos matrix, and for these matrices the Eigen values are calculated which will be enough to identify a person. These Eigen values will be stored in the smart card memory for further identification and compression. Therefore, for checking whether two iris images are isometric or not, it is required to compare the first "n" Eigen values of the iris image spectra. If two iris images have the same Eigen values or same Riemannian Metrics values then it shows that both the irises are belonging to the same person. If two iris images have different Eigen values or different Riemannian Metrics values then it means that both the irises are belonging to different persons. We conducted the experiments for one hundred iris images of CASIA database. The robustness testing was conducted by modifying few pixels in specific regions and few pixels in overall image. But still the proposed method was able to identify individuals on the basis of their iris image patterns. The results of iris implementation reveal that the proposed method is an efficient and economically feasible.

Keywords Eigen values • Iris image • Laplace–Beltrami operator Noise removal • Shape matching

1 Introduction

Different pixel images can have different resolutions. But the Eigen values of Laplace–Miller Spectra for the same image with different resolutions will remain the same [1]. If we take different pictures from different angles for the same image

K. N. Mishra (🖂)

Department of Computer Science & Engineering, Birla Institute of Technology, Alld. Campus, Mesra, Ranchi, India e-mail: mishrakn@yahoo.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_35

then also all these pictures of the same image will have the same Eigen values [2]. Laplace–Beltrami Spectra-based method for image compression was used and deployed by Reuter [2] to compress the DNA sequences. Because the spectrum of the Laplace–Beltrami operator contains intrinsic shape information, therefore, it is called 'shape-DNA' [2]. We have seen that this shape-DNA can be used (like DNA test) to identify objects in practical applications. Identical twins exist with different shape but exactly the same shape-DNA. Therefore, shape-DNA-based method alone cannot be used for personal identification of human [3–5].

The basic idea of iris image recognition and its compression was given by Flom and Safir in the year 1987 [6]. After the work of Folm and Safir [6], many other techniques and software systems were developed by many other researchers like Daugman [7], Tisse et al. [8], and Ma [9] using 2D Gabor Filter and Hough Transform. Recently, Fourier Miller Transform-based cryptographically secure personal identification system was developed by SchonBerg and Kirovski [10]. These techniques were having high false rejection rate (FRR) and false acceptance rate (FAR). The objective of this paper is to compress the iris image in such a way that it should take minimum space and comparison time. If once the identity of a person is verified online then the person may be allowed to use the same smart card for different purposes including automated banking and confidential database access.

2 Literature Review

The CASIA dataset [11] became available in the year 2010 and since then it became possible to compare the results of proposed techniques using this dataset [12-15]. In general, face structure or fingerprint or DNA sequence is used to identify a person's identity. But these methods fail to identify a person in case of identical twins. To store the DNA sequence, we need huge amount of memory; furthermore, we cannot use DNA sequence for online identification of a person [4, 16]. Therefore, a technique is required which can identify identical twins and that takes minimum data storage space. The iris image-based personal identification technique can be used for the following purposes: National ID Card, Passport, Smart Card, Criminal Identification, Automated Banking, Credit Card, Government Benefit Distribution, Home Security System, Confidential Database Access, and Home Security System [16, 17]. But the iris image of the eye takes a large amount of memory like fingerprint technique and human DNA sequences. Iris image-based identification technique can be used for National ID Card, Criminal Investigation, Smart Card, Home Security System, and Confidential Database Access. There are certain hurdles that must be overcome before data can be used. The algorithm must not take up too much memory space, and in particular it must consume very little of the RAM. In addition, an acceptable compression speed should be achieved [3, 5, 7, 18].

3 Theoretical Background and Proposed System

In this section, the theoretical background of iris image and Laplace–Beltrami Spectra is described. Online iris image compression technique has three phases:

3.1 Iris Image Recognition

Iris image recognition is an important event in iris image compression method. The iris recognition is the act of taking an input image of the eye and separating it from the surrounding noise disturbances. The noise disturbances include the pupil, the cornea, the eyelashes, the eyebrows, and the surrounding skin. Therefore, we need to separate these noise disturbances from the iris image. The iris image recognition proceeds in three phases. In the first phase, the pupil will be detected as a dark circle in the image and its center will be identified. In the second phase, the outer edge of the iris image will be removed from the iris image. There are certain noise disturbance elements which can be removed easily, e.g., skin and eyebrow. But eliminating eyelashes (a type of noise disturbance) is one of the crucial parts of iris image compression [10]. Finally, the exact iris image is obtained which is required for dividing it into different blocks and then these blocks will be converted into Laplace–Beltrami Spectra. Further, this Laplace–Beltrami Spectra will be converted into Strakos matrix by using Lanczos algorithm.

3.2 Transformation of Iris Image into Laplace–Beltrami Spectra

Once the iris image is extracted, it should be divided into different blocks and then it should be transformed into Laplace–Beltrami Spectra. To convert an iris into Laplace–Beltrami Spectra, we may use Laplace–Kirchhoff operator for the well-known color Red–Green–Blue (RGB). The Laplace–Kirchhoff operator is a difference operator on *G* to a difference function $F': G \rightarrow R$. Here, we identify *F* and *F'* with vectors from R^n by $F_i = F(i)$ and get $F' = L \times F$. After that it is possible to represent a gray value image as a node-weighted graph by connecting each pixel with its four direct neighbors, and we will assign each pixel its gray value as a weight [12, 19].

At the time of storing iris data in the smart card we will not store the actual image of iris, instead we will store 1044 Eigen values of the person's iris image [17]. If two iris images are belonging to the same person then the value of Riemannian Metrics (G_{ij}) for both the iris images will be identical. To calculate the value of Riemannian Metrics, we will use the following formulae [2, 20]:

$$G_{11} = 1 + 3 \times F_{\mu}^2 \tag{1}$$

$$G_{22} = 1 + 3 \times F_{\nu}^2 \tag{2}$$

$$G_{12} = G_{21} = 3 \times F_u \times F_v \tag{3}$$

If two iris images are belonging to the same person but these images are taken from different angles then also their Riemannian Metrics values will be identical. The Riemannian Metrics values of two iris images will be different if both the irises are actually belonging to different persons. If two images share the same Riemannian Metrics values then one image is either the brighter image of the other or it is a negative image of other or it is a rotational image of other [20]. To transform an iris image into Laplace–Beltrami Spectra, we have converted iris image into 1400 × 200 rectangular blocks. This rectangular block is partitioned into 1044 square rectangular blocks. To extract local image, we will keep the size of each rectangular block equals to 16×16 [17]. Now, each 16×16 block will be transformed into Laplace–Beltrami Spectra. For each block, maximum Eigen value (λ_{max}) and minimum Eigen value (λ_{min}) will be calculated.

3.3 Converting Laplace–Beltrami Spectra into Strakos Matrix and Calculating Eigen Values

To calculate the Eigen values and Eigen functions, we will use Lanczos algorithm. The Eigen values for Laplace–Beltrami Spectra will be calculated using the following formula [19, 21, 22]:

$$\lambda_i = \lambda_1 + [(i-1)/(n+1)](\lambda_n - \lambda_1)\rho^{n-I}$$
(4)

Here, λ_1 will be 0.1, and the value of ρ will be equal to 0.40, or 0.60, or 0.80, or 0.90, or 1.0. The researchers have found that $\rho = 0.8$ gives higher Eigen values which are suitable for our purpose. All the Eigen values will be ranging from 0.1 to 100. After calculating λ_{max} and λ_{min} for each block, we will calculate its average (λ_{avg}). The λ_{avg} value for each block will be stored as iris image data for further identification. Thus, we need 1044 Eigen values to identify an iris image uniquely. Since, each Eigen value is ranging from 0.1 to 100. Therefore, we need a float variable to store each Eigen value (λ_{avg}). To store 1044 values of λ_{avg} or λ_{max} , we need a total of 1044 float type variables [19, 23].

The flowchart for converting an iris image into Eigen values is presented in Fig. 1. To find Max Eigen values and Min Eigen values of a Laplace–Beltrami Spectra, we will convert the Laplace–Beltrami Spectra into Strakos matrix and then Eigen values will be computed using the formula of Lanczos algorithm [19, 21, 22, 24]. If the starting vector has larger weight for the eigenvectors corresponding to the



Fig. 1 Iris image compression using Eigen factors

largest Eigen factors then the oblique straight line would move to the right and it will give a better approximation of the largest Eigen value [6, 20, 25]. The Eigen factors will be according to the value of ρ . For getting better results, $\rho = 0.7$ is taken to compute 1044 Eigen factors. It is found that these Eigen factors are floating point numbers. These values can be stored as double or float type variables [19, 24, 25].

4 Proposed Algorithm for Iris Image Compression

The researchers have used KL transformation-based approach to uniquely identify iris images [17]. But the Laplace–Beltrami Spectra-based algorithm can also be used to uniquely identify and compress iris images. For verifying the identity of a person, the Eigen values of person's iris image will be stored in the smart card memory. If a person inserts his smart card in a terminal then the camera of the terminal will take iris image of the person. After completing the phase of iris image recognition, the resultant iris image will be divided into 1044 blocks of same size and further these blocks will be transformed into the form of Laplace–Beltrami Spectra. Now, the Laplace–Beltrami Spectra will be converted into Strakos matrix format by using Lanczos algorithm. Further, Max, Min, and Avg Eigen values will be compared online with the stored Eigen values of smart card of the person. If once the identity of a person is verified then only the person will be permitted to proceed with further tasks like Automated Banking and Confidential Database Access. Any two iris images will be considered identical in the following two cases:

Case 1: If all the 1044 stored Max Eigen values are matching with the Max Eigen values of current iris image then it insures that both the iris images are belonging to the same person.

Case 2: If all the 1044 stored Avg Eigen values are matching with the Avg Eigen values of current iris image then it insures that both the iris images are belonging to the same person.

If neither case 1 nor case 2 is true then both iris images will be considered as belonging to different persons.

The iris image comparison method will have the following steps [20]:

- Step 1: Take the iris image of a person.
- Step 2: Remove the noise disturbances from the iris image and divide it into 1044 blocks where block size = 16×16 .
- Step 3: Convert each of the block in the form of Laplace-Beltrami Spectra.
- Step 4: Convert Laplace-Beltrami into Strakos matrix.
- Step 5: Calculate Max Eigen value, Min Eigen factor for each block of iris spectra.
- Step 6: Calculate Avg of Max Eigen factor and Min Eigen factor for each block of iris spectra.
- Step 7: Store Max Eigen factor of each block of iris image in the database for further comparison.
- Step 8: Store Avg Eigen value of each block of iris image in the database for further identification and comparison.
- Step 9: Take the iris image of a new person and remove all the noise disturbances.

- Step 10: Convert this new person's iris image into rectangular blocks and compute Max Eigen factor, Min Eigen factor, and Avg Eigen factor for each block of the new iris image online.
- Step 11: Compare the Max or Avg Eigen factors of new iris image with the Max or Avg Eigen factors of stored iris image.
- Step 12: Display the matching result.

5 Result Analysis and Robustness Testing

The proposed technique is similar to Sheng-Wen-Jin [17] technique in terms of expanding iris image into a rectangular block of size 1400×200 and then dividing it into 1044 blocks of same size where the size of each block is 16×16 . Further, in the proposed method each block is transformed into Laplace-Beltrami Spectra by using Laplace-Kirchhoff operator, whereas Sheng-Wen-Jin have used KL transform to calculate Eigen values. In the proposed method, Laplace-Beltrami Spectra is converted into Strakos matrix and then Lanczos algorithm is used to compute Max, Min, and Avg Eigen values. These Max and Avg Eigen values of each block will be stored in the smart card memory for online identity verification of a person. The numerical value of Eigen values may vary from 0.1 to 100. The researchers Sheng-Wen-Jin proved in their research paper [17] that these Eigen factors are sufficient to recognize an iris image. In a 16-bit processing system, a float variable takes 4 bytes of memory. Thus, if we store each Eigen value in a separate float variable then to store all 1044 Eigen values of an iris image we will need approximately $1044 \times 4 = 4176$ bytes of memory in a 16-bit processing system. Hence, it is needed approximately 0.0040 MB of memory space in a 16-bit processor for storing the floating point Eigen values of an iris image whose actual size is approximately 459 kB or 0.448 MB [11, 18, 20, 26].

While comparing the results of proposed algorithm with other existing algorithms, it is observed that the proposed algorithm takes approximately 0.0040 MB of memory space to store an iris image which has actual size 0.4–0.5 MB in a 16-bit processing system which is one of the best compression results for iris image compression. The proposed algorithm considers the cases of isospectral and isometric images.

Figure 2 is representing the actual iris image taken from CASIA dataset. The dimension and size of each iris image of Fig. 2 are presented in Table 1. The result comparison of iris images of Table 1 for different quadrants using our proposed algorithm shows that even if we modify approximately 15–18% pixels of an iris image then also the proposed approach is able to identify a person on the basis of iris images. To strengthen the data security, it is worth to add here that it is difficult for hackers to understand and alter the stored Eigen factors of iris images which we are using for unique identification of a person because backtracking is not possible in this algorithm.

Fig. 2 Raw images of three samples [11]



pllel



p3le1

s and	S. No.	Iris image	Dimension of each image	Size (in kB)
	1	p1le1	570 × 760	440
	2	p2re2	570 × 760	460
	3	p3le1	570 × 760	450

Table 1 Sample images its size in KBs

Conclusions and Future Work 6

In this chapter, it is shown that iris image compression and identification can be successfully completed using only few Eigen factors. Thus, it is possible to store an iris image in small memory of a smart card and it can be used to verify the identity of smart card holder within few seconds. In the proposed method, Lanczos algorithm is used to compute Eigen factors. In the experimentation, it is observed that the proposed method takes very less execution time (in few milliseconds) to compute, store, and compare Max, Min, and Avg Eigen values which are required to uniquely identify a person.

References

- 1. Kashyap, R., Tiwari, V.: Energy-based active contour method for image segmentation. Int. J. Electron. Healthc. 9(2-3), 210-225 (2017)
- 2. Reuter, M., Wolter, F.-E., Peinecke, N.: Laplace-Beltrami spectra as Shape DNA of surface and solids. J. Comput. Aided Des. 38, 342-366 (2006)

- 3. Belkin, M., Niyogi, P.: Laplace Eigenmaps for dimensionality reduction and data representation. Netural Netw. Comput. 15, 1373–1396 (2003)
- Karni, Z., Gotsman, C.: Special compression of mesh geometry. In: Akeley, K. (ed.) Singapore 2000, Computer Graphics Proceedings, pp. 279–86. ACM Press, New York (2000)
- 5. Turk, M.A., Pentland, A.P.: Face recognition using Eigen faces. In: IEEE Conference on Computer Vision and Pattern Recognition, pp. 586–591 (1991)
- 6. Folm, L., Safir, A.: Iris Recognition System, US Patent No. US4641349 (1987)
- 7. Daugman, J.: Recognizing Persons by Their Iris Patterns. Biometrics: Personal Identification in Networked Society. Kluwer Academic Publishers (1999)
- Tisse, C.: Person identification technique using human iris recognition. J. Syst. Res. 4, 67–75 (2003)
- 9. Ma, L.: Iris recognition using circular symmetric filters. In: International Conference on Pattern Recognition, vol. 2, pp. 414–417 (2002)
- SchonBerg, D., Kirovski, D.: Iris compression for cryptographically secure person identification. In: Proceedings of the Data Compression Conference (DCC04), IEEE Computer Society, pp. 1068–1074 (2004)
- 11. CASIA Iris Image Database. http://www.sinobiometrics.com. Last Accessed: Jan 2016
- 12. Reuter, M.: Laplace spectra for shape recognition. Ph.D. thesis, Division of Computer Graphics, Institute for Man Machine Interaction, University of Hannover (2005)
- Reuter, M., Wolter, F.E., Peienecke, N.: Laplace-spectra as a fingerprint for shape matching. In: SPM 05, Proceedings of the 05 ACM Symposium on Solid and Physical Modeling, pp. 101–106. ACM Press, New York (2005)
- Wildes, R.P.: Automated iris recognition: An emerging biometric technology. Proc. IEEE 85(9), 1348–1363 (1997)
- Lim, S.: Iris recognition through improvement of feature vector and classifier. ETRI J. 23(2), 61–70 (2001)
- 16. Jain, A.K., Bolle, R., Pankanti, S.: Biometrics: Personal Identification in Network Society. Kluwer Academic Publisher (1999)
- Chen, W.-S., Shih, S.-W., Lin, Y.-L., Lio, J.-C.: Automatic iris recognition technique base on divider dimension and Karhunen-Loeve transform. In: Proceedings of Computer Vision, Graphics and Image Processing, Taiwan, pp. 78–85 (2002)
- 18. Iridian Technologies. http://www.iriscan.com. Last Accessed on: 15 Jan 2016
- Meurant, G.: Lanczos: Conjugate Gradient Algorithms from Theory to Finite Precision Computations, pp. 1–300. Society for Industrial and Applied Mathematics, Philadelphia, USA (2006)
- Mishra, K.N.: An efficient Laplace-Beltrami spectra based technique for online iris image compression and identification. In: IEEE ICCCCM Proceedings, pp. 1–6 (2016)
- Calvetti, D., Reichel, L., Sorensen, D.C.: An implicitly restarted Lanczos method for large symmetric Eigen value problems. Electron. Trans. Numer. Anal. 2, 1–21 (1994)
- Tissuer, F., Dongarra, J.: A parallel divide and conquer algorithm for the symmetric eigenvalue problem on distributed memory architectures. SIAM J. Sci. Cornput. 20, 2223– 2236 (1999)
- Paige, C.C.: Accuracy and effectiveness of the Lanczos algorithm for the symmetric Eigen problem. Linear Algebra Appl. 34, 235–258 (1980)
- Strakos, Z.: On the real convergence rate of the conjugate gradient method. J. Linear Algebra Appl. 154, 535–549 (1999)
- Cullum, J.K., Willoughby, R.A.: Lanczos Algorithms for Large Symmetric Eigenvalue Computations, vol. I reprinted by SIAM in the series Classics in Applied Mathematics (2002)
- Daugman, J.: Genetically Identical Eyes Have Uncorrelated Iris codes, Text and Diagrams. Available online on the website http://www.cl.cam.ac.uk/users/jgd1000/genetics.html. Last Accessed on: 15 Jan 2016

Automatic Integration and Clustering of Marathi Documents in Different Formats for Effective Information Retrieval

Sonigara Prachi, Phuge Kirti, Newase Pooja, Sherekar Alisha and Vispute Sushma

Abstract With the advent of the Internet age, there has been an exponential increase in the generation of data due to the easy accessibility of the computational resources. Although the benefits of the information age have been reaped by every strata of the society, some are still lagging behind. One of the sections of society which has not been the main target of the software industry is the farming community. We intend to build a comprehensive product for the farming community wherein the farmer can get all the information he/she needs for the cultivation of crops. The data provided would be in Marathi language, the language of the common farmers in Maharashtra state. This will facilitate the user-friendliness and accessibility to the farmers. This paper presents a system which would accept the data in various multimedia formats and convert it into a common intermediate form. The intermediate form would be a text file. The system built would be capable of categorizing data automatically. The algorithm used for clustering is LINGO.

Keywords Clustering · Integration · Information retrieval · Categorization LINGO algorithm · Data preprocessing · Feature extraction

1 Introduction

In today's age of information overload, data is generated at an ever-increasing rate. The data is generated in diverse multimedia formats. In our system, the diverse data will be converted into an intermediate format that is text file. We can use search engines to get the relevant data but the current search systems output a ranked documents with limited data in response to the query the user wants to be processed. If the user enters the query in a vague and general format, it becomes strenuous to find the document the user wishes to retrieve. The user will have to browse and see a lengthy list of irrelevant search results. The end user of our system

S. Prachi (🖂) · P. Kirti · N. Pooja · S. Alisha · V. Sushma

Pimpri Chinchwad College of Engineering, Nigdi, Pune, Maharashtra, India e-mail: prachisonigra15@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_36

would be a farmer who would type in a query for which he needs relevant results. The query typed and the results provided would both be in Marathi. The search results provided would be the relevant documents clustered by using LINGO algorithm [1].

2 Block Diagram

Figure 1 shows block diagram of the proposed system. It has three main components.

- (1) The collection of documents in different formats like Excel, Doc, XML, etc., and transforming these documents into a standard format, i.e., txt files using Pentaho tool.
- (2) The second part involves the construction of knowledge base. Knowledge base creation involves:
 - Document preprocessing, i.e., Text filtering, Elimination of stop words, and Stemming
 - Formation of clusters using LINGO algorithm based on the user's query.
- (3) The final step displays the relevant document as per user's query. Further, the user will also be notified with latest government schemes and current news.



Fig. 1 System block diagram

2.1 Data Preprocessing

It is a vital step in the data mining process [1]. The main objective of the preprocessing is to discard all the letters and words from the input documents that can possibly affect the quality of clusters.

The preprocessing phase includes:

- (i) Text Filtering
- (ii) Stemming and Stop words marking
- (iii) Feature Extraction

(i) Filtering

Filtering of all words from input documents that would affect quality of cluster labels. Such terms are:

- Tags such as <PR>
- Special symbols like "\$", "%" or "#"

(ii) Stemming

Stemming process is the removal of prefixes and suffixes from keywords. Stemming process is important to match the word in any form [2]. For example, consider searching for input keyword "reading" there will be no match found even if its root form can be exists. However, if stemming is applied to the query, "reading" becomes "read", and process will be successful.

(iii) Stop-Words Removal

Stop-words are articles such as "the", "a", and "an", prepositions such as "for" and "of", and pronouns such as "I" and "his" in English language. For Marathi language, stop-words are "Aani", "Athava", "Va", etc. These words are not informative and need to remove from documents for better quality of clusters [1].

2.2 Extraction of Features from Documents

This phase includes basically discovery of the features or terms that are able to explain the verbal meaning [2].

For consideration of these features for the label of cluster:

- A term/phrase should satisfy frequency count threshold.
- A phrase should satisfy complete phrase criteria.
- Beginning and ending word should not be a stop word [2].

2.3 Identifying Cluster Label

This phase is used to identify meaningful group descriptions using singular value decomposition of the term-document matrix [2].

There are four steps:

- (a) Building of TERM-DOCUMENT matrix: A " $t \times d$ " matrix is designed from set of input documents.
- (b) Extraction of abstract concepts: SVD decomposition is applied on term-document matrix.
- (c) Phrase/Term matching and
- (d) "Pruning" and evaluation of cluster label: Remove overlapping labels and find best matching phrase [1].

2.4 Cluster Content Discovery

The input documents/snippets are assigned to the groups that were obtained from label discovery step by vector space model. This assignment resembles the documents searching based on the vector space model. Here, the input documents are matched against every single cluster label. Consider a matrix M, where a column vector is used to represent each cluster label. Let $D = M^T X$, where X is the term-document matrix. Element d_{ij} of the D matrix shows the weightage of the *j*th document in the *j*th group [3]. If element D matrix exceeds the Snippet Assignment Threshold then that document will be added to the cluster [1].

3 Pseudo-code for LINGO Algorithm

Pseudo-code _LINGO: Pseudo-code of the LINGO algorithm [3]

Input:= D \leftarrow Set of documents/snippets= {d1, d2,...dn}/ {s1, s2...sn} Output:= {C1, C2,...Cm}= Set of Clusters.

- I: Preprocessing of each snippet/document For_all s € S do
 - (i) Removal of stop words from s;
 - (ii) Do stemming

End_for

- II: Extraction of phrases
 - (i) P co \leftarrow find complete_phrases;

frequency (pc) > Term_Freq

- (ii) $P_f \leftarrow pc;$
- III: SVD to find group names
 - (i) MA \leftarrow t × d matrix;
 - (ii) \sum , U, V \leftarrow SVD (MA);
 - (iii) kc \leftarrow 0; {initialize with zero clusters}
 - (iv) $nc \leftarrow rank(MA)$;
 - (v) Repeat $k \leftarrow k + 1$; till qc < CLabel Threshold;
 - (vi) P m← Pf phrase matrix;
 - (vii) For_all cols of UkTp do
 - (i) Find largest component mi;
 - (ii) Cluster label set = Clutser label set U phrase; labelScore = mi; End_for
 - (viii) Cosine distance formula to find similar pairs of group labels;
 - (xv) Extract label groups those are greater than label threshold;
 - (x) For_all set of same labels do select label having top rank;r
- IV: Assign documents/snippets to cluster using vector space model
 - (1) For_all Lb € set of labels do
 - (i) Form cluster represented by Lb;
 - (ii) Assign document/snippet to C whose value is greater than threshold.
 - (2) documents not assigned to any group put in the "Others" label;
- V: Find cluster rank.

Calculate cluster scores for all clusters using below formula and merge clusters [2, 3]

 $cluster_Score = label_Score \times ||Cl||;$

3.1 Method of Vector Space Model (VSM)

VSM is an information retrieval method for text mining. Here, every document is represented by multi-dimensional vector. It uses tf-idf method to find a relationship between terms and documents [2].

$$w_{ii} = \log(N/df_i).tf_{ii}$$

where,

tf_{ij} #occurrences of term,

- df_i #documents in which term *i* occurs
- N #documents in the input set

In VSM, a document-term matrix is represented as $t \times d$ matrix, where t unique terms are described by a collection of d documents [2]. The document vector represents column vectors of the matrix for the documents present in the collection, whereas a term vector represents row vectors of the matrix where the terms are used in the process to index the collection. Here, user-specified query is represented by a q vector in $t \times d$ matrix. Similarities between query q and Doc d are calculated by Cosine distance formula given below:

$$\cos \theta_{j} = \frac{a_{j}^{T}q}{\|a_{j}\|\|q\|} = \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{t} a_{ij}q_{i}}{\sqrt{\sum_{i=1}^{t} a_{ij}^{2}}\sqrt{\sum_{i=1}^{t} q_{i}^{2}}}$$

4 Pentaho: A Data Integration Tool

Pentaho Data Integration is the part of Pentaho responsible for the Extraction, Transformation, and Loading (ETL) processes [4]. Even ETL tools can be used in data warehouses, PDI has different applications:

- Migration of different databases
- Export data into text files
- · Load huge amount of data into databases store
- Removing unwanted information
- Integration of different applications.

PDI can be used as a stand-alone application. It is the most popular tool available in market which effectively performs all ETL operations. PDI supports a variety of inputs and output formats which include datasheets, text-files along with free and commercial database systems.

4.1 Role of Pentaho

The data is present in different formats like Doc, Excel, and XML. The basic information of crops is present in Doc format, and the pesticide information is

present in Excel format. For performing analysis, it is necessary to convert these heterogeneous formats into a homogeneous format. So here, Pentaho tool is used. Pentaho converts these different file formats into text file. As shown in Fig. 2, the Doc consisting of basic information on crops and Excel file consisting of pesticide information are converted into text file. Similarly, all the other documents are converted into text file by Pentaho.

5 Online Fetching of Data Sources

Online fetching is collecting data dynamically from agricultural websites. In this module, the system will be able to fetch online data which gets updated periodically. This is implemented using Java libraries like HttpURLConnection, Socket, Proxy, and URL. The fetched data contains HTML tags also. To remove these tags, we have used regular expressions in java which will replace HTML tags with blank spaces. So, the final output of this code will be required data. Regular expression is a set of sequential symbols and characters which form a pattern to be searched in text.

For example: String s1=s.replaceAll("\\<.*?\\>", "");

where s contains fetched data with HTML tags in it. So this regular expression will match strings with mentioned regular expression patterns and will replace it with blank spaces.





Category	Precision(%)	Recall(%)	F Measure(%)
Temperature	88.88	100	94.11
Cotton	100	94	96.90
Maize	80	87	83.35
Average	89.62	93.66	91.45

Fig. 3 Performance evaluation results

6 Results and Evaluation

The two popular information retrieval metrics used for evaluation of LINGO: precision and recall. Consider there are total D documents in the database. When user fires query, a number of documents are displayed to the user. Let RL denote the set of relevant docs which are presented in database containing D documents.

Let R_A is the intersection of set R and set A [1].

Precision: Ratio of R_A to the A where R_A and A are defined previously.

Precision =
$$|RA|/|A|$$
.

Recall: Ratio of R_A to the RL

$$\text{Recall} = |RA|/|RL:|.$$

F-Score: A measure of combination of precision and recall [1](Fig. 3)

F-Score = (2 * Precision * Recall)/(Recall + Precision)

User will enter the query in Marathi. Considering the search query as "temperature", the relevant documents of temperature are 48, after firing query the retrieved documents obtained are 54. Out of which all the 48 are relevant and the remaining six are irrelevant to the search query.

Precision obtained is (48/54) = 88.88.

Recall obtained is (48/48) = 100.

The average of precision and recall obtained using LINGO clustering algorithm is 89.08 and 90.42%, respectively. The F-measure average is 89.17% which denotes the accuracy of LINGO algorithm for Marathi documents.

7 Conclusion

As the system proposed would be built in Marathi, it would be very user-friendly for the farmers in Maharashtra. An effective algorithm to group documents has been suggested which would be implemented for the Marathi language. This LINGO algorithm works well in retrieval of data. The system is capable of accepting data in diverse formats which are helpful since the data exists in heterogeneous formats. This makes the system more flexible and comprehensive. Lingo algorithm gives us an average of % for Marathi documents. This shows that Lingo has better accuracy than other clustering algorithms and is effective in classifying Marathi documents. Further scope can be extended for the documents in any other language.

Acknowledgements We express our sincere thanks to our Project Guide Prof. Sushma Vispute for her encouragement and support throughout our project, especially for the useful suggestions given during the course of project development. We would also like to thank Computer Engineering Department of Pimpri Chinchwad College of Engineering for their unwavering support.

References

- Sushma, V., Rahul, S., Siddheshwar, K., Abhijeet, K., Chaitanya, K., Prajakta, K.: Automatic personalized marathi content generation. In: CSCITA, pp. 294–299 (2014)
- Stanislaw, O., Jerzy, S., Dawid, W.: Lingo: Search Result Clustering Algorithm Based on Singular Value Decomposition, pp. 60–965. Institute of Computing Science, Poland (2006)
- Sushma, V., Potey, M.A., Automatic text categorization of marathi documents using clustering technique, In: 15th International Conference on Advanced Computing Technologies (ICACT). IEEE, India (2013)
- 4. Orhan, T., Jan, V.D.: Implementing BI concepts with Pentaho, an evaluation. Delft University of Technology, Delft, The Netherlands (2016)
- Shaker, H., Abdeltawab, M.A., Ali, H.B.: A proposed model for data warehouse ETL processes. J. King Saud Univ. Comput. Inf. Sci. (Saudi Arabia) 23(2), 91–104 (2011)
- Rangra, K., Bansal, K.L.: Comparative study of data mining tools. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Sci. Soft. Eng. (India) 4(6) (2014)
- Jarek, N., Cheng, L., Charles, V., Sandra, G., Milan, B.: Agriculture data for all-integrated tools for agriculture data integration, analytics and sharing. In: 2014 IEEE International Congress on Big Data. IEEE, USA (2014)
- Amandeep, K.M., Navneet, K.: Survey paper on clustering techniques. Int. J. Sci. Eng. Technol. Res. (IJSETR) 2(4) (2013)
- Mamta, T., Dr. Bharat, M.: Application of cluster analysis in agriculture—a review. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 36(4) (2011)
- Thirumagal, R., Suganthy, R., Mahima, S., Kesavaraj, G.: ETL tools in data mining—a review. Int. J. Res. Comput. Appl. 2(1), 62–69 (2014)
- 11. Jaideepsinh, R.K., Jatinderkumat, R.S.: Stop-word removal algorithm and its implementation for sanskrit language. Int. J. Comput. Appl. **150**(2) (2016)
- Dr Hari, S., Pritty, C., Joy, C.: A review on classification techniques over agricultural data. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Mob. Comput. 4(5), 491–495 (2015)
- Mythili, S., Madhiya, E.: An analysis on clustering algorithms in data mining. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Mobile Comput. 3(1), 334–340 (2014)
- Pentaho Cooperation: About Pentaho, World Wide Web (2008). http://www.pentaho.com/ about/
- Saleh, A.: Automated arabic text categorization using SVM and NB. Int. Arab J. e-Technol. 2(2) (2011)

Frequent Term-Based Text Clustering Using Hidden Support

Harsha Patil and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract As the use of Internet increases in all directions, generation of digital documents grow vigorously. Handling of these digital documents challenges the technology to get appropriate response to any query. Many researchers took this challenge and depict their interest to mine these digitalized treasure of knowledge and find hidden information. High dimensionality of text document is always a big challenge for researchers. Handling of high-dimensional text documents for classifying them into clusters with accuracy is another stone of challenge. In this paper, we proposed a method hidden term-based document clustering (HTBDC) which utilized frequent itemset-based mining method. Here in our approach, we try to trade off between high dimensionality with high accuracy of clustering and we got good results. We evaluate our method on the bases of F-score on standard datasets, and the results show that our method performs comparatively better.

Keywords Clustering · Text mining · F-score · Itemsets · Score function

1 Introduction

Document clustering is the process of subsetting text documents. Document clustering broadly can be categorized into three categories: partitioning method [1], agglomerative and divisive clustering [2], and itemset-based clustering [3]. As high dimensionality of text documents is big hurdle for accomplish text clustering, generation of frequent itemsets from text documents helps to solve this problem. A frequent itemset proposed by Agrawal et al. [4] is a set of terms, which are present together in documents frequently and can be better candidates for making

H. Patil

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

H. Patil $(\boxtimes) \cdot R$. S. Thakur

Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: harsha.kun.patil@gmail.com

Ashoka Center for Business and Computer Studies, Nashik, India

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_37

clusters. For becoming a candidate for making cluster, the frequency of itemset must be equal or greater than a certain user-specified threshold value. The threshold value is use to defined that a particular itemset or term is frequent or not. When we calculate minimum support of any itemset for whole corpus, it is considered as global support. Many researchers worked in this area. Working with frequent itemsets, global support has very import role. If we set high global support, quality of cluster may reduce. In another hand by setting low global support, number of frequent itemsets are increased which causes high execution time. These frequent sets can be efficiently generated by using algorithms such as FP, Apriori [4]. Application of frequent itemset for reducing drastically the dimensionality of the data is efficient way for huge databases.

The framework of this paper is as follows: Sect. 2 discusses prominent work done in area of document clustering. Section 3 provides details regarding proposed method, and Sect. 4 explains regarding experiment details of proposed method. The proposed hidden term-based document clustering (HTBDC) method is evaluated on three standard datasets: Classic4, WAP, and Reuters.

1.1 Document Clustering

Text data is ubiquitous in nature. In the age of Internet, generation of digital documents are very fast. These huge and high-dimensional text documents is big challenge in front of researcher for analyzing and managing it properly. Text mining approaches provide salutary solutions for handling the amplifying text data. Document clustering is one of the widely used applications of text mining. Document clustering is to allocate corpus of text documents into different c groups so that documents in the same group describe the same topic, such as movie description or sports details.

1.2 Document Clustering Process

Document clustering is a step-by-step process. It consist first document retrieval, preprocessing, clustering, and then evaluation (Fig. 1).





The first step of document clustering is locating interesting documents. An IR system accepts a query from a user and responds with a set of documents. This document collection may have some nonrelevant documents. Document collection process may include crawling, indexing, filtering. After retrieving documents, the next step is document preprocessing, which are used to indexing documents to store and retrieve them in a better way, and filter them to remove the extra data, for example, stop words. Preprocessing also includes representing the documents in a way that can be used for clustering. Vector model is mostly acceptable way for representing the documents. Researchers worked on many measures for finding similarity among documents. The last step of Document Clustering is evaluation, which is used to evaluate the performance of the clustering technique.

1.3 Itemset-Based Document Clustering Problem

Frequent pattern-based mining approach is a widely acceptable technique in the field of text mining for finding significant text patterns from documents. Frequent itemsets are terms which appeared together frequently in corpus. In the field of document clustering, frequent itemset is mostly referred as frequent termset as we are dealing with text documents. In this concept, frequent termsets are utilized in place of considering whole high-dimensional text documents for discovering clusters. Here, it is very important to mention that frequent termset is very good tool for providing precise description of a cluster. Frequent termset is also very good tool for describing any cluster. In the field of topic detection itemset, set-based clustering works appropriately.

Analogous to market-basket approach of transactional datasets, documents' keywords are considered as items and the documents can be considered as transactions. So corpus can be described as below,

$$d1-[wi1, wi2, wi3, \ldots]$$

$$d2-[w(i+1)1, w(i+1)2, w(i+1)3, \ldots]$$

$$d3-[w(i+2)1, w(i+2)2, w(i+2)3, \ldots]$$

...

Then, in this representation, frequent termsets, common to a group of documents, represent the same cluster.

2 Related Work

Document clustering is the growing area for researchers and had been widely studied in the computer science literature area of text mining. Researchers had proposed many methods for document clustering. Unweighted Pair Group Method with Arithmetic Mean (UPGMA) [2] is widely accepted agglomerative clustering method [5]. *K*-means and different variation of it are also keenly analyzed by researchers. Bisecting *K*-means proved its better performance among all its variations for partitioned clustering [5]. Nowadays, clustering text documents using frequent itemsets has been an area of widespread research. Researchers [6] discussed that Hierarchical Frequent Term-based Clustering (HFTC) [7] has been the first algorithm in this regard. But HFTC was not scalable. After that Fung et al. came up with Hierarchical Document Clustering using frequent itemsets (FIHC) [3] which leave behind HFTC. It provides a hierarchical clustering with labels to the clusters. In our approach, we present improved version of score function to improve accuracy of clusters.

Then Yu et al. proposed clustering algorithm based on closed frequent itemsets (TDC) [8] which provide improved way for assessing the support correctly. Recently, Malik et al. came up with efficient algorithm Hierarchical Clustering using Closed Interesting Itemsets (HCCI) [9], which utilized benefit of interest-ingness of closed itemset by which dimensionality of text further reduced. This reduction significantly results in good performance of clustering process and provides better quality clusters. Malik et al. used some measures like mutual information, added value, chi-square for finding interestingness of the closed itemsets. But HCCI results in loss of information, which effects on quality of clustering. Table 1 provides the summarized details of researcher works done in this area. Our approach method HTBDC falls into the category of hard clustering, frequent itemset-based document clustering. HTBDC outputs quality clusters in clustering process.

S. No.	Authors	Problem addressed	Clustering concepts	Output
1	Beil et al. [7] Algorithm: FTC, HFTC	High dimensionality of the data, clustering accuracy	Frequent itemset-based	Overlapping clusters with meaningful cluster labels, no semantic discovery
2	Fung et al. [3] Algorithm: FIHC	Quality of cluster in large document set	Frequent itemset-based	Meaningful cluster labels, no semantic discovery, and no soft clustering
3	Treeratpituk and Callan [12]	Accuracy in cluster labeling	Hierarchical document clustering	Automatic generation of labels

Table 1 Summarized literature review of different document clustering algorithms

(continued)

S. No.	Authors	Problem addressed	Clustering concepts	Output
4	Hotho et al. [13] Wordnet improves text document clustering	Semantic analysis for text	Partitioning	Semantic discovery, no soft clustering, no meaningful cluster label
5	Malik et al. [9]	Clustering accuracy	Closed frequent itemsets	Loss of information
6	Su et al. [14] Algorithm: MFTSC	Clustering accuracy	Maximal frequent termset clustering	Hard clustering
7	Chen et al. [15]	Semantic analysis for text	Frequent itemsets	Semantic discovery, no soft clustering, meaningful cluster label
8	Kiran et al. [6]	Semantic analysis for text	Frequent itemsets	Semantic discovery
9	Negam et al. [16]	Clustering accuracy, work for improvement in output of association rule mining algorithms	Frequent itemsets	Quality cluster, cluster labels
10	Noor et al. [17]	Clustering quality	Maximal frequent itemsets	Meaning cluster labels

Table 1 (continued)

3 Proposed Method: Overview

In our HTBDC approach, we first apply Apriori algorithm on all the documents to mine the frequent itemsets and then start to create initial cluster. These initial clusters are soft clusters; it means they have overlapping of documents. After constructing initial clusters, we move toward creation of final clusters. Final clusters are constructed by using improved score function. Our method is explained in detail in the following part of this section.

3.1 Constructing Clusters

Cohesiveness is important characteristics which are expected in output of clustering; i.e., document under the same cluster should share more common itemsets than those under different cluster.

Set of terms that appear together in more than a specified fraction of the corpus is called global frequent itemsets. A global support for any itemset is a percentage of all documents which support that itemsets. Any global frequent itemsets are called cluster frequent for any cluster Ci if they are present in some minimum fraction of documents in Ci. A minimum cluster support is used to find cluster frequent items.

Our method constructs clusters in two steps: constructing initial clusters, then finding final cluster for removing overlapping.

3.2 Constructing Initial Clusters

We construct one cluster for each global frequent itemset, which encompass all the documents that have this itemset. So, number of global frequent itemsets determined number of clusters. Since any document may have more than one global frequent itemsets, so these clusters are overlapped.

There are two important properties in these initial clusters:

- All the documents in a cluster contain all the items in the cluster label.
- Document may appear in multiple initial clusters.

3.3 Finding Final Cluster

This step finds final cluster for each document. Final clustering outputs hard clustering. Final cluster is basically most suitable cluster for any document. Similarity between document and cluster defined the final cluster for any document. For finding the similarity between document and cluster, we need to calculate cluster frequent items. A global k frequent item is cluster frequent in a cluster Ci if the item is contained in some minimum fraction of documents in Ci. After that we can compare the global frequent items in a document with the cluster frequent items of each of its initial cluster. Score function proposed by Fung et al. [3] is used to measure the similarity between a document against a cluster.

3.4 Score Function

Score function proposed by Fung et al. [3] has two parts: The first part is rewarding part, and the second one is penalty part. Suppose that any item x appear in docj. If that item also appears in cluster Ci then we reward Ci otherwise we penalize Ci.

$$Score(Ci \leftarrow docj) = \left[\sum_{x} n(x) * cluster_support(x)\right] \\ - \left[\sum_{x} n(x') * global_support(x')\right]$$
(1)

In next section, we proposed improved version of score function for finding more accurate disjoint cluster.

3.5 Improvement in Score Function

In our method, the improved version of score function has three parts. The first part is rewarding part, and the second one is penalty part. The third part HS is bonus part. The HS is global_support (hidden term) of the hidden term which has less threshold support than global threshold value, but it is present in document and also has a particular minimum support to the cluster label. This minimum support is less than global threshold support but greater than a predefined support. We called it hidden support, and this hidden support is weighted to find accurate cluster of the documents. Hidden term weightage can be taken by only that cluster which has all terms of cluster label supported by hidden term. So if the hidden term is fully supported with the cluster label then only hidden weight will be given otherwise it will be ignored. Proposed score function with semantic benefit is:

$$SScore(Ci \leftarrow docj) = \left[\sum_{x} n(x) * cluster_support(x)\right] - \left[\sum_{x} n(x') * global_support(x')\right] + HS$$
(2)

4 Experimental Evaluation

This section presents the experimental evaluation of the proposed HTBDC, and we are using F-score method to compare its results with its parent algorithm, i.e., FIHC

Data Sets

Classic4, Reuters, and WAP datasets were used for experiment purpose.

- 1. **Reuters**: This dataset of 21,578 news articles that appeared on Reuters newswire in 1987. Out of 21,578 articles, 8654 articles are uniquely assigned to one of these classes.
- 2. **WAP**: This dataset has 1560 Web pages collected during WebACE project [10] from the Yahoo! Subject hierarchy. This dataset consists of 20 different classes. Datasets for clustering were obtained from Cluto clustering toolkit [11].
- 3. **Classic4**: Classic collection consists of four different document collections: CACM, CISI, CRAN, and MED.

Table 2 describes the summary of these datasets.

Table 2 Test data sets				
	Dataset	Classes	Documents	
	Reuters	52	8654	
	WAP	20	1560	
	Classic4	4	7095	

Table 3 Comparison of F-score using our approach	Datasets	TDC	FIHC	HTBDC
	Reuters	0.46	0.506	0.591
	WAP	0.47	0.391	0.52
	Classic4	0.61	0.623	0.594

The experiment results of some algorithms like UPGMA, Bisecting *K*-means, FIHC [3] were taken from the results reported in HCCI [9]. HCCI [9] presents many approaches for clustering; we have taken the best scores out of all of them.

Our hidden term support-based document clustering method reduces the cluster overlapping and produces more qualitative final clusters. In HTBDC method, we work with improvements to existing score function used in FIHC. The Table 3 mentioned the HTBDC algorithm results, which prove that HTBDC algorithm outperform its parent algorithms.

5 Conclusion and Future Work

In this paper, we presented document clustering using frequent itemsets with hidden support. Proposed algorithm also removes duplication of documents and constructs the final clusters. Proposed method also works for trade-off between cluster quality and clustering run time by calculating proper support value using score function. We evaluate our result on three standard datasets and found that our algorithm result is better than its parent algorithm. The Proposed algorithm can be applied to other numerous datasets to evaluate and precisely defined its scope and applicability. The experiment result shows that algorithm performs well in terms of accuracy, efficiency, and scalability. In future, we would like to select hidden term through semantic relation with cluster label.

References

- Steinbach, M., Karypis, G., Kumar, V.: A comparison of document clustering techniques. In: KDD workshop on text mining'00 (2000)
- Kaufman, L., Rousseeuw, P.J.: Finding Groups in Data, An Introduction to Cluster Analysis. Wiley, NJ (1990)
- Fung, B., Wang, K., Ester, M.: Hierarchical document clustering using frequent itemsets. In: Proceedings of SIAM International Conference on Data Mining (2003)
- 4. Agrawal, R., Srikant R.: Fast algorithms for mining association rules in large databases. In: Proceeding of VLDB Conference'94, Santiago de Chile, Chile, pp. 487–499 (1994)
- Zhao, Y., Karypis, G.: Evaluation of hierarchical clustering algorithms for document datasets. In: Proceedings of International Conference on Information and Knowledge Management (2002)

- Kiran, G.V.R., Shankar, R., Pudi, V.: Frequent itemset based hierarchical document clustering using wikipedia as external knowledge. In: Proceedings of the 14th International Conference on Knowledge-Based and Intelligent Information and Engineering Systems (2010)
- 7. Beil, F., Ester, M., Xu, X.: Frequent term-based text clustering. In: Proceedings of International Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining (2002)
- 8. Yu, H., Searsmith, D., Li, X., Han, J.: Scalable construction of topic directory with nonparametric closed termset mining. In: Proceedings of Fourth IEEE International Conference on Data Mining (2004)
- 9. Malik, H.H., Kender, J.R. High quality, efficient hierarchical document clustering using closed interesting itemsets. In: Proceedings of IEEE International Conference on Data Mining (2006)
- Han, E.-H., Boley, D., Gini, M., Gross, R., Hastings, K., Karypis, G., Kumar, V., Mobasher, B., Moore, J.: WebAce: a web agent for document categorization and exploration. In: Proceedings of the 2nd International Conference on Autonomous Agents (Agents'98) (1998)
 Charles and Alexandre and Alexandr
- 11. Cluto .: http://glaros.dtc.umn.edu/gkhome/views/cluto
- Treeratpituk, P., Callan, J.: Automatically labeling hierarchical clusters. In: Proceedings of the Sixth National Conference on Digital Government Research. San Diego, CA, pp. 167–176 (2006)
- 13. Hotho, A., Staab, S.: Wordnet improves text document clustering. In: Proceedings of Semantic Web Workshop, the 26th Annual International ACM SIGIR Conference (2003)
- 14. Su, C., Chen, Q., Wang, X., Meng, X.: Text clustering approach based on maximal frequent term sets. In: Proceeding of 2003 IEEE International Conference on—Systems, Man and Cybernetics, Harbin Institute of Technology, Shenzhen, China, pp. 1551–1556 (2009)
- Chen, C.L., Tseng, F.S.C., Liang, T.: Mining fuzzy frequent itemsets for hierarchical document clustering. Inf. Process. Manag. 46(2), 193–211 (2010)
- Negm, N., Elkafrawy, P., Amin, M., Salem, A.M.: Investigate the performance of document clustering approach based on association rules mining. Int. J. Adv. Comput. Sci. Appl. 4(8), 142–151 (2013)
- Asmat, N., Rehman, S.U., Ashraf, J., Habib, A.: Maximal frequent itemsets based hierarchical strategy for document clustering. In: International Conference on Computer Science, Data Mining and Mechanical Engineering (ICCDMME'2015), Bangkok (Thailand), 20–21 Apr 2015

Breast Cancer Diagnosis from Digital Mammograms Using RF and RF-ELM

R. D. Ghongade and D. G. Wakde

Abstract Artificial neural network is used as emerging diagnostic tool for breast cancer. The objective of this research is to diagnose breast cancer with a machine learning method based on random forest (RF) and RF-ELM classifier. MIAS database is used for digital mammogram images. Preprocessing is generally needed to improve the low quality of image. The region of interest (ROI) is determined according to the size of suspicious area. After the suspicious region is segmented, features are extracted by texture analysis. Gray-level co-occurrence matrix (GLCM) is used as a texture attribute to extract the suspicious area. From all extracted features, best features are selected with the help of correlation-based feature (CBF) selection. Selected features to improve the accuracy of classification are mean, standard deviation, kurtosis, variance, entropy, and correlation coefficient. RF and RF-ELM are used as classifiers. The results of present work show that the CAD system using RF-ELM classifier is very effective and achieves the best result in the diagnosis of breast cancer.

Keywords Breast cancer · CAD · ELM · Feature selection · Mammogram RF-ELM

1 Introduction

Breast cancer is extensively identified in women worldwide and is one of the primary causes of cancer demise among them. It is the most successive reason for malignancy demise in ladies in less developed regions and second reason for malignancy demise in developed regions after lung tumor. It has been anticipated

R. D. Ghongade (🖂)

SGB Amravati University, Amravati, Maharashtra, India e-mail: rahulghongade@rediffmail.com

D. G. Wakde

P. R. Patil College of Engineering & Technology, Amravati, Maharashtra, India e-mail: director_prpce@rediffmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_38

Table 1Estimated breastcancer cases and casualties inUSA, 2017	Estimated new cases			Estimated deaths		
	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
	2470	252,710	255,180	460	40,610	4107

that more than 1.6 million cases of breast cancer are registered worldwide in 2010 [1, 2]. The survey of 2013 indicates that 230,815 women and 2109 men in the USA were diagnosed with breast cancer. Anticipated new breast cancer cases and casualties by sex, USA, 2017, are as shown in Table 1 [3].

As per the study at NCI's Division of Cancer Epidemiology and Genetics, breast cancer will raise from 283,000 cases in 2011 to 441,000 in 2030—a more than 50% increase [4].

Early diagnosis is very important for survival, particularly in developing countries where the diseases are diagnosed very late. Mammography is the preeminent screening tool that uses X-ray to produce an image of the breast to diagnosis breast tumor. Mammography has been more effectual in screening asymptomatic woman to lessen transience. In some cases, result might be confused when a mammogram discovers somewhat that similar to cancer but turns out to be benign. On mammograms, dense breast tissue looks white. Breast masses or tumors also look white; hence sometimes dense tissue hides tumors. Even qualified and experienced radiologists may miss breast cancers due to the density of breast [5]. The capable markers of malignancy regularly utilized as a part of assessing mammograms are masses and micro-calcifications. Mass detection is a troublesome and testing issue than the recognition of miniaturized scale calcifications; this is because of variation in size and shape observed in a mammogram and also masses often exhibit deprived image contrast [6]. The CAD system developed here will identify the abnormality in digital mammograms and help radiologists to spot the areas of concern. Hence, CAD system for breast cancer has been turned out to be a capable supplementary tool in the battle against breast malignancy. It improves detection rate especially in younger women, where cancer masses are hidden because of dense breast tissue [7, 8]. This paper proposes a novel approach for breast cancer segmentation and detection from digital mammogram images. The approach has been done with the help of morphological operations and artificial neural networks.

2 Literature Review

A literature review showed the recent developments in computer-aided diagnosis system for breast cancer using statistical approaches and artificial neural networks.

Karahaliou et al. [9] proposed a method where they used gray-level and wavelet coefficient texture features of the tissue neighboring MC clusters on mammograms.
Probabilistic neural network is used for differentiating malignant from benign with AUC of 0.989.

Marcano-Cedeno et al. [10] proposed artificial metaplasticity multilayer perceptron algorithm that gives need in refreshing the weights for the less incessant actuations over the more regular ones. AMMLP accomplishes a more proficient training while at the same time keeping up MLP execution. Wisconsin Breast Cancer Database is used in present work. The performance is tested using classification accuracy, sensitivity, specificity, and confusion matrix. Evaluated classification accuracy is to the extent of 99.26%.

Jiji and Marsilin [11] identified the right phase of breast disease from the tumor. Low-level features are extracted. KNN algorithm is used for the classification, and classification rate accomplished is 93.5% accuracy. For pattern relationship, Euclidean distance is used. Retrieval performance is evaluated by comparing Euclidean distance metric and Mahalanobis distance metric.

Ahmad et al. [12] introduce a system for diagnosis of breast tumor with genetic algorithm for concurrent feature selection and parameter optimization of artificial neural networks. This is called GAANN_RP algorithm, which use Wisconsin Breast Cancer Dataset to produce the best and average, 99.43 and 98.29% exact classification, respectively. Performance is evaluated using three variations of BP training, namely the RP, LM, and GD.

Nugroho et al. [13] used multilayer perceptron (MLP) as a classifier and CFS for the feature selection toward breast cancer identification on mammograms. Features are extracted based on histogram and gray-level co-occurrence matrix (GLCM).

Dheeba et al. [14] proposed a novel classification approach based on PSOWNN for detection of breast cancer in digital mammograms. Performance of the proposed system is evaluated by the area under the ROC curve.

Xie et al. [15] presented an imaginative technique for finding of breast disease in view of an extreme learning machine. The performance of proposed CAD system is compared with SVM and PSO-SVM. This framework accomplishes the great execution with precision of 96.02%.

Mohebian et al. [16] presented hybrid predictor of breast cancer recurrence (HPBCR), a hybrid technique including statistical features selection, meta-heuristic population-based optimization, and ensemble learning to predict breast cancer recurrence in the first 5 years after the diagnosis.

3 Methodology

The approach in this research used for the detection of abnormality in mammograms is shown in Fig. 1 and described as follows:

In the present work, mammogram images with 1024×1024 pixels are imported from MIAS database. To enhance the contrast of the image and to smoothen image, preprocessing is done which will be helpful in further stages. Then segmenting the breast region is carried out in order to find out the suspicious area from breast



Fig. 1 Structure of the proposed CAD system for the diagnosis of breast cancer

segments. Later extraction of texture features and texture statistics computation is performed. Some relevant features are selected by correlation-based feature selection (CBF) method, and these features are used for classification to determine the masses or non-masses.

3.1 Preprocessing

The principle issue for extracting features of the mammographic images is noise, different resolution, quality, and low contrast of mammograms. This makes location of tumor considerably harder. Preprocessing is required to conquer this issue and makes efficient feature extraction of image possible. Mammographic image is taken from MIAS database for the preprocessing. Firstly, the Gaussian filter is applied for smoothing of images. The Gaussian blur is a type of image-blurring filter that uses a Gaussian function for calculating the transformation to apply to each pixel in the image. It is used to 'blur' image and remove noise. Then adaptive histogram equalization is used to enhance the contrast of grayscale image by transforming the values.

Gaussian kernel coefficients are sampled from the 2D Gaussian functions as shown in Eq. (1).

$$G(x, y) = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\pi\sigma^2}} e^{-\frac{x^2 + y^2}{2\sigma^2}}$$
(1)

where

x is the distance from the origin in the horizontal axis,

y is the distance from the origin in the vertical axis, and

 σ is the standard deviation of the distribution.

3.2 Segmentation

A significant segmentation process is needed that recognize and extract the malignant tumors. Region-based segmentation is used to segment masses from its background. Otsu's strategy is utilized to naturally perform clustering-based image thresholding. The algorithm supposes that the image contains two classes of pixels following bimodal histogram (foreground pixels and background pixels), and it then calculates the optimum threshold separating the two classes so that their intra-class variance is minimal. After image is segmented (binary mask), it is multiplied with the original image as the normalization process. Thresholding is performed using Eq. (2).

$$G(x, y) = 1, \quad \text{for } f(x, y) > T$$

= 0,
$$\text{for } f(x, y) \le T$$
 (2)

where T has chosen the value of threshold.

3.3 Feature Extraction

The gray-level co-occurrence matrix (GLCM) is used as a statistical technique to extract the texture features. These features are contrast, correlation coefficient, energy, homogeneity, mean, standard deviation, entropy, variance, smoothness, kurtosis, skewness, and inverse different moment (IDM). On the other hand, shape features such as area, solidity, eccentricity, perimeter, and major axis length are extracted.

3.4 Feature Selection

Feature selection is the way to select a subset of appropriate features. It is used to reduce the feature space to improve the accuracy of classification. This also minimizes the computation time. Correlation-based feature selection (CBF) is used to select the high-dimensional features. Out of seventeen features, only six features are

selected for further process. It is a correlation-based feature selection method which is significantly faster than other subset selection methods. The CBF assesses subsets of features on the premise of accompanying theory 'Good feature subset contains features highly correlated with classification, yet uncorrelated to each other.' Following Eq. (3) shows merit of a feature subset 'S' comprising of 'k' features:

Merit,
$$S_k = \frac{k\overline{r_{cf}}}{\sqrt{k + k(k-1)\overline{r_{ff}}}}$$
 (3)

Here,

 $\overline{r_{cf}}$ average value of all feature-classification correlations, and

 $\overline{r_{ff}}$ average value of all feature–feature correlations.

Selected six features are mean, standard deviation, kurtosis, variance, entropy, and correlation coefficient.

3.5 Classification

Random forest (RF) is used as a classifier. RF is an approach proposed by Breiman for classification tasks. It principally originates from the blend of tree-organized classifiers with the randomness and robustness provided by bagging and random feature selection. The classification is performed by sending a sample down in each tree and assigning it the label of the terminal node. At the end, the normal vote of all trees is accounted for the classification. Bagging process of RF method of classification is well defined using mathematical Eq. (4).

Let $X = x_1, x_2, ..., x_n$ be the training set having set of responses $Y = y_1, y_2, ..., y_n$ for Z times.

Then for z = 1 to Z, predictions for all such unseen samples are denoted by \hat{x} and can be defined as

$$\hat{f} = \frac{1}{Z} \sum_{z=1}^{Z} f_z(\hat{x})$$
 (4)

RF is very efficient with large datasets and high-dimensional data. The ELM training algorithm learns a model of the form

$$\mathbf{Y} = \mathbf{W}_2 \sigma(\mathbf{W}_1 x)$$

where \mathbf{W}_1 is the matrix of input-to-hidden-layer weights, σ is some activation function, and \mathbf{W}_2 is the matrix of hidden-to-output-layer weights.

The algorithm proceeds as follows:

- 1. Fill W_1 with Gaussian random noise;
- 2. Estimate W_2 by least-squares fit to a matrix of response variables Y, computed using the pseudo-inverse. +, given a design matrix X:

$$\mathbf{W}_2 = \sigma(\mathbf{W}_1 \mathbf{X})^+ \mathbf{Y}$$

RF-ELM is a combination of RF and ELM algorithms which improves the accuracy more than other classifiers.

3.6 Performance Evaluation

Confusion matrix, ROC curve with AUC score is the parameters to evaluate the performance of classification algorithm. Confusion matrix helps to get information about both actual and predicted class classifications.

The TPR and FPR are used to plot the ROC curve. The TPR is used to calculate correctly classified malignant ROIs from all available malignant ROIs. The FPR parameter can calculate incorrectly classified benign ROIs among the total number of benign ROIs. At the end, accuracy, precision, sensitivity, and specificity parameters are calculated to assess the system performance.

4 **Experiments**

To conduct experiments in the proposed method, MIAS database is used. MIAS database is a set of mammogram images. This database was created to contain two experimental datasets on the same images. In the first dataset, the images are split into two classes: normal or abnormal, and in the second dataset, the images are split into three classes: benign, malign, and normal. The abnormal images in this database contain the coordinates and the radius. The first dataset of all extracted features is created, and the process of Gaussian filter and histogram equalization is implemented in this research. The RF classifier is used for classification. The following steps briefly describe the experiment in this research:

- Step 1: From mammogram, the region of interest (ROI) is extracted. The ROI was extracted from abnormal images depending on the information contained in the dataset.
- Step 2: To remove noise from mammogram images and improve the quality of the ROI, the Gaussian filter and Adaptive histogram equalization are applied.



Fig. 2 Results of processes to find abnormalities using RF-ELM approach. a Original image, b enhanced image, c ROI image, and d classified abnormalities

- Step 3: The features are extracted from the normalized image regions using GLCM. Then from these features, only six features are selected by CBF selection method to improve the accuracy.
- Step 4: Mammogram images are classified using RF and RF-ELM classification algorithms. If both algorithm results are same, then it classifies the tumor, else it gets back to the classification stage.
- Step 5: Confusion matrix, ROC curve with AUC score are used to evaluate the performance of the classification algorithm.

Figure 2 shows the results of the various processes to find abnormalities using RF_ELM approach.

5 Results and Discussion

True positives (TP), false positives (FP), true negatives (TN), and false negatives (FN) are four different possible outcomes of a single prediction for a two-class case. Accuracy, sensitivity, specificity, and ROC curve with AUC score are statistical parameters that help to evaluate the performance. Sensitivity measures the extent of genuine positives which are appropriately perceived when the mammogram contains malignancies tissues in it. Specificity quantifies the extent of negatives which are legitimately perceived when disease is absent in the mammogram. Evaluated performance of CAD system using RF and RF-ELM classifiers is provided in Table 2.

Method	Accuracy		Sensitivity		Specificity		AUC (µ)	
	Best	Av	Best	Av	Best	Av	Best	Av
RF	89	80	90	80	92	81	2	0.9
RF-ELM	98	95	97.9	89	97	91	2.5	1.9

Table 2 Performance evaluation of CAD system with various statistical parameters



ROC Curves for RF, RF-ELM and Naive Bayes Classifiction

Fig. 3 ROC curve for various classifiers

Comparison of receiver operating characteristics (ROC) curve for RF, RF-ELM, and Naive Bayes classifiers is shown in Fig. 3.

6 Conclusion

This paper proposed a CAD system, which classifies mammograms into normal, benign, and malignant. After preprocessing of the digital mammogram and the selection of ROI, features are extracted and then classified using RF and RF-ELM classifiers. Otsu's method is used for image segmentation to produce the better result. The result shows that RF-ELM classifier provides significantly better classification accuracy by reducing the FPs and FNs, and it also depends upon the optimization of feature selection. This finding is exceptionally valuable for the radiologist in identifying the malignancy from digital mammograms.

References

 Jemal, A., Bray, F., Center, M.M., Ferlay, J., Ward, E., Forman, D.: Global cancer statistics. CA Cancer J. Clin. 61(2), 69–90 (2011)

- Forouzanfar, M.H., Foreman, K.J., Delossantos, A.M.: Breast and cervical cancer in 187 countries between 1980 and 2010: a systematic analysis. Lancet 378(9801), 1461–84 (2011)
- 3. Rebecca, L., Siegel, M.P.H., Miller, K.D., Ahmedin Jemal, D.V.M.: Cancer statistics, 2017. CA A Cancer J. Clin. (2017)
- 4. Study Forecasts New Breast Cancer Cases by 2030. By NCI Staff, National Cancer Institute at the National Institutes of Health, USA (2015)
- Kolb, T.M., Lichy, J., Newhouse, J.H.: Comparison of the performance of screening mammography, physical examination, and breast US and evaluation of factors that influence them: an analysis of 27,825 patient evaluations. Radiology 225(1), 165–175 (2002)
- Cheng, H.D., Cai, X., Chen, X., Hu, L., Lou, X.: Computer-aided detection and classification of microcalcifications in mammograms: a survey. Pattern Recogn. 36(12), 2967–2991 (2003)
- Cheng, H.D., Shi, X.J., Min, R., Hu, L.M., Cai, X.P., Du, H.N.: Approaches for automated detection and classification of masses in mammograms. Pattern Recogn. 39(4), 646–668 (2006)
- Motakis, E., Ivshina, A.V., Kuznetsov, V.A.: Data-driven approach to predict survival of cancer patients. IEEE Eng. Med. Biol. Mag. 28(4), 58–66 (2009)
- Karahaliou, A.N., Boniatis, I.S., Skiadopoulos, S.G., Sakellaropoulos, F.N., Arikidis, N.S., Likaki, E.A.: Breast cancer diagnosis: analyzing texture of tissue surrounding microcalcifications. IEEE Trans. Inf. Technol. Biomed. 12(6), 731–738 (2008)
- Marcano-Cedeño, J., Quintanilla-Domínguez, D.: Andina: WBCD breast cancer database classification applying artificial metaplasticity neural network. Expert Syst. Appl. 38(2011), 9573–9579 (2011)
- Jiji, G.W., Marsilin, J.R.: Automatic diagnose of the stages of breast cancer using intelligent technique. J. Inst. Eng. India Ser. B 93(4), 209–215 (2013)
- Ahmad, F., Isa, N.A.M., Noor, M.H.M., Hussain, Z.: Intelligent breast cancer diagnosis using hybrid GA-ANN. In: 2013 Fifth International Conference (IEEE) on Computational Intelligence, Communication Systems and Networks, pp. 9–12 (2013)
- Nugroho, H.A., Faisal, N., Soesanti, I. and Choridah, L.: Analysis of computer aided diagnosis on digital mammogram images. In: 2014 International Conference (IEEE) on Computer, Control, Informatics and Its Applications, pp. 25–29 (2014)
- Dheeba, J., Albert Singh, N., Tamil Selvi, s: Computer-aided detection of breast cancer on mammograms: a swarm intelligence optimized wavelet neural network approach. J. Biomed. Inf. 49, 45–52 (2014)
- 15. Xie, W., Li, Y., Ma, Y.: Breast mass classification in digital mammography based on extreme learning machine. Neurocomputing (2015) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- Mohebian, M.R., Marateb, H.R., Mansourian, M., Mañanas, M.A., Mokarian, F.: A hybrid computer-aided-diagnosis system for prediction of breast cancer recurrence (HPBCR) using optimized ensemble learning. Comput. Struct. Biotechnol., 75–85 (2017)

Home Automation Using Internet of Things (IoT) for Smart Cities

Vipra Chudasam, Nikit Somaiya, Dipali Badgujar and Era Johri

Abstract Growing applications of ubiquitous computing have helped life getting better in every way. Pervasive computing has led its way in the advancement of IoT as well as rapid increase in applications. Everyday objects are embedded with microcontrollers to make computer-to-human (C2H) interaction environment to collect information to make it customised for tasks for users (Biradar et al. in Ubiquit Comput Secur Syst (UbiCC J) 4, 2010 [15]). In this paper, we propose smart environment for interaction to automate home security system with the help of ubiquitous computing. System is deployed in modules and as per requirements and can be adjusted. Currently deployed modules include fire detection system, RFID, alarm system, router, emergency contact system, database, motion detection system with the central control unit of android app and storing data at root location and away from direct access over network. The system acts dynamically according to sensors input. System is designed especially for commoners in terms of security issues and affordability making their life comfortable (Jain et al. in Raspberry Pi-based interactive home automation system through e-mail: optimization, reliability and information technology (ICROIT), 2014 [1]).

Keywords Internet of things • Home automation • Smart automation Smart cities • Motion sensors • Control unit-android app • Fire detection system Ubiquitous computing • Home security system • Alarm system Raspberry Pi

N. Somaiya e-mail: nikit.s@somaiya.edu

D. Badgujar e-mail: dipali.badgujar@somaiya.edu

E. Johri e-mail: erajohri@somaiya.edu

V. Chudasam (🖂) · N. Somaiya · D. Badgujar · E. Johri

IT Department, K.J Somaiya Collage of Engineering, Vidyavihar, Mumbai, India e-mail: vipra.c@somaiya.edu

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_39

1 Introduction

With the advancement in technologies, the demand for luxurious lifestyle is increasing constantly. Smart environment eliminates tedious H2H or H2C interaction with the help of IoT which transfer data over a network. Smart mode is connection and communication of world with the help of IoT to draw useful information to develop smarter devices. With upcoming researches and development in nanotechnology, device size is shrinking everyday making it possible for palm-tops compared to computer when inverted. Similarly, big data, cloud computing and pervasive computing made it possible to improve the quality of life and empowering businesses making whole world as one big information system. IoT has evolved from the convergence of microelectromechanical (MEMS) systems, wireless technologies (WT) and Internet. The concept of 'IoT' has a deep relation with the upcoming security system for smart cities. In this paper, various technologies and standalone application modules, an app which is central control unit are converged [1].

2 Literature Review

The various detection systems that have been deployed till now are having different types of data gathering and processing units. The data types of different outputs that are been generated from these detection systems needed to be processed on a common platform using IoT techniques [1].

2.1 The Fire Detection System

This system is a static system located at home and collecting the entire sensors data, processing it and finally sending its processed output to an app for emergency control. This module includes two important hardware components namely—LPG sensor, flame detector which send data to Raspberry Pi bit by bit in '0' and '1'. In a situation in which the router will keep check on incoming data and in absence of incoming traffic, action of notifying can be taken. WSN security protocols like LEAP which provides 2S namely security and support to sensor networks by using micro TESLA which represents timed, efficient, streaming, loss-tolerant, authentication [2, 3].

LPG Sensor (MQ-6). MQ-6 is highly sensitive sensor with adjustability of sensitivity, fast response time and capable of sensing liquefied petroleum gas, iso-butane and propane in concentration anywhere between 200 and 10,000 ppm (parts per million) [4]. The main advantage is its stability, long life, a simple drive circuit and low power up to 5 V only.

Flame Sensor Module. It is a simple circuit for detection of flame and warns with digital interface of a LED. It can sense wavelengths between 760 and 1100 nm infrared with 60° of detection angle. Even the accuracy of this sensor is adjustable according to an area of uses.

2.2 Radio Frequency Identification (RFID)

Another module is RFID used for identifying the persons entering in the house. This is useful to buzzer alarm in case of emergency when someone is present inside the house. RFID used for 802.11 WLAN works on 2450–5800 MHz frequency with a very high speed in the range of 1-2 m [4].

2.3 Alarm

The alarm is used in the approached system to alert the persons in house that there is an emergency. If the input from RFID indicates that someone is present inside the house, then control from Raspberry Pi is sent to alarm and alarm start to buzz to notify the person about the disaster (Figs. 2 and 3).

2.4 Raspberry Pi 3 Module B+

Raspberry Pi is a credit card-sized computer with features which includes an ARM compatible CPU speed range from 700 MHz to 1.2 GHz, an on-chip GPU, 12 GHz 64-bit quad-cores ARMv8 CPU, Bluetooth 4.1, BLE and 802.11 wireless LAN, 1 GB of RAM, 4 USB ports, 40 GPIO pins, CSI, DSI, micro-SD card slot, Ethernet port and full HDMI port [4]. In system, the Raspberry Pi is the main processing unit at home which takes all the sensors data and process on it and takes the appropriate decisions (Fig. 4).

2.5 Router Working

It is a layer 3 device which uses IP address and routing protocol to exchange information. It is the main module in sending information from home to mobile nodes using WT. All the sensor information is processed in Raspberry Pi and forwarded to router to the android application. The data send using routing protocols in encrypted for security using IPsec. The routing protocol used here is Border Gateway protocol which is an exterior routing protocol to exchange route between distinctly separated networks. In case of power outage at a house then no sensor will capture data and all the modules will sit ideal in waiting for the electricity to overcome this there is a backup plan having a high capacity of the battery to provide power to the system. The batteries used are the rechargeable battery so no need to replace them again and again [5]. In case fire starts from router than router gets fail than it will not send data to an android application. If the application is not receiving data for more than 2 min, then there is issue with router. In such case, alarm will buzz indicating router failure and if there is no one inside home, then system will work intelligently by taking a decision to turn OFF power by ceiling mounted tub faucet to slower the circulation of smoke. In case of data collision, it can happen that due to traffic or other issue, data is collapse during transmission [6]. To overcome this issue, CSMA/CA protocol is used to overcome problem of collision.

2.6 Android Application for Emergency Control System

The emergency control unit is nothing but an android application which is the software unit to control the system functionality and notify the system user that there is a disaster at house. An android app has two modules—first is sensor status module, and second is emergency module. Together with this main module, an app can provide many other features like screenshot option to capture the current screen status and store this in a database for evaluation purpose. This system provides normal calling system too. Suppose the emergency contact we saved in the app is not answering the call, then another person can be called with same feature. The next feature is a history system; in this, a log file will be maintained. The log file will contain the sensor status so that user or administrator can get details about each any every sensor data like when sensor senses the fire or exactly when it is turned OFF [3].

The main functional modules of the android application consist of:

Sensor Status Information. The first module shows the working status of all the sensors including LPG sensor, flame sensor, RFID, Raspberry Pi and router too. When data is coming in the app, all this sensors and units will show green signal and if any sensor or hardware unit fails to send the information, then it will be notified by a red signal indicating something is wrong in the system [7].

Emergency Calling System. The emergency calling system also works in two ways. As an automatic system, if the user is getting a notification but he is not responding to them, then the system will switch to automatic mode and will call to the ambulance, fire brigade and favourite number automatically. It consists of three main modules such as ambulance calling system, fire brigade calling system, emergency personal calling system. These modules are designed to make call just by tapping on the button.

2.7 Database

The database used in this system is default android database SQLite [7]. SQLite comes with a security feature that is SQLiteCipher which provides AES encryption with 256-bit transparent key for database file encryption [7, 8]. AES is a specification for the encryption of electronic data [9]. AES has 14 rounds for 256-bit keys, and this is really hard to crack the key as key length is very long [10]. Thus, data store in the database is highly secure. All the data is stored for the analysis purpose. Periodically, analysis is done on this historical data and result is produced with future analysis prediction to analyse how much the home system is secure by using this system.

3 Methodology

The whole system consists of different modules which are interconnected and communicating with each other using wireless communication system. The modules are as shown in the Fig. 1. These modules are performing their relevant tasks and sending all their data to Raspberry Pi where all the processing of the sensor data is done. Then through the router located at home, the information is sent to Android application, which is an emergency control unit for the whole system. Finally, all the historical data is stored in database and analysis is taken out periodically (Fig. 5).

Fig. 1 LPG sensor (MQ-6)

Fig. 2 Flame sensor





Fig. 3 RFID tags, chip



Fig. 4 Raspberry pi



Fig. 5 Interacting modules and their connectivity

All sensing modules are connected to the router using single-hop wireless communication. As modules are connected using star wireless sensor network (WSN) topology, all sensors directly communicate with central point nothing but the router which is in range of 30–100 m [3, 11].

4 Mechanism

App is control unit of the system which helps to control device and perform all necessary task. Sensors data \rightarrow Raspberry Pi \rightarrow App which are on the network. Received data is analysed and processed and information. According to information, decision is made and actions are taken keeping each and every log record in the database timely [10]. Similar to airplanes, which have black box to keep a permanent record of received data. The fire system which has a fire detector sensor when sends a positive signal, the database moves the incoming data to a permanent storage so that it can act as a black box with which the user can get to know how the incident occurred. In similar manner, it goes for motion detection system. Once the fire system gives out a positive signal, the motion detectors are notified and they start detection motion in the house and this data is stored in the black box. Since the world is continuously moving to new technology, we have used wireless medium for communication in the house. Consider all the sensors as data collecting nodes; these nodes will be connected to a central chipset. When the nodes collect data, they send it to the central chipset. This chipset is connected to an App via Wi-Fi router configured inside the house. This is one of the features of the system. Another main feature is the security of the house [12]. If ever the user is not present in the house during an accident, the app will automatically do the necessary actions like calling the fire brigade during a fire accident in the house. If someone is inside the house, then it will notify ambulance as well as notify emergency contacts.

5 Security Issues

Security issues must be addressed throughout the lifecycle of the system starting from the designing platform to operational environment of system; therefore, newer versions of software are required minimize the vulnerable functions and loop holes of earlier version [4].

5.1 Secure Booting

To maintain integrity and authenticity of the system and prevent it from intruders, crypto-generated digital signatures are used [13].

5.2 Access Control and Device Authentication

According to their credentials privileges of the device components and applications are granted to minimize intruder activity. The authentication of device based on the set of store credentials in database the devices are provided with network access is the step [14].

5.3 Firewalling And IPS

They are first line of defence which helps in inspection of packets, controlling traffic and preventing 80% of spam and malicious packets.

6 Conclusion

Automating security system for home using Internet of things has had always proven to work at its best by connecting different smart devices to form a complete system. A ubiquitous system can be operated and controlled from anywhere at any time having Internet connection via an app [15]. The proposed system does not only help to monitor the sensor's data like temperature, its intensity, motion sensor, gas leakage but also actuated process according to requirements. Data is stored at home location thus making it available physically only. This part is being planned by keeping security at top and to minimise cyber attacks. The emergency management module helps the user to acknowledge dynamical situation to near and dear ones including helpline numbers of fire brigade, ambulance, police and other customized helpline number. The power unit helps to contact and call on just one click of button making it easy user interaction device. Power unit is important, but system can be operated without it as well. Whole system can be turned off manually; this can risk the security measures; therefore, notification on app will appear displaying message when system loses contact with app or either it turns off manually. Convenience to use due to easy interface, energy management and low power consumption, secure data transfer over network are few advantages of the system.

References

- 1. Jain, S., Vaibhav, A., Goyal, L.: Raspberry Pi based interactive home automation system through E-mail: optimization, reliability, and information technology (ICROIT). In: International Conference, IEEE (2014)
- Yadav, C., Raksha, K., Hegde, S., Anjana, C, Sandeep Kumar, E.: Security techniques in wireless sensor networks: a survey. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. 4(4) (2015)

- Yadav, S.G.S.P., Dr. Chitra, A.: Wireless Sensor networks—architectures, protocols, simulators and applications: a survey. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Sci. Softw. Eng. 2(5) (2012)
- 4. Naeem, T., Loo, K.: Common security issues and challenges in wireless sensor networks and IEEE 802.11 wireless mesh networks. Int. J. Digital Content Technol. Appl. **3**(1) (2009)
- 5. Roslin, S.E.: Comparative study of proposed topology control algorithms for energy efficient wireless sensor network. Indian J. Comput. Sci. Eng. (IJCSE) 2(4) (2011)
- Jian-min, B., Bao-chuan, F., Yin, Z.: Real time data collecting based on embedded database. Control Autom 21(12), 5–8 (2005)
- Yue, K., Jiang, L., Yang, L., Pang, H.: Research of embedded database SQLite application in intelligent remote monitoring system. In: International Forum on Information Technology and Applications, IEEE, vol. 3 (2010)
- Patil, P., Bhutkar, S., Ashtaputre, N.: Amanda back-up of SQLite. In: International Conference on Communication, Information & Computing Technology. IEEE Xplore (2012)
- 9. Advanced encryption standard (AES). Federal Information Processing Standards Publication 197 (2001)
- Jing-qian, W., Li-xin, W.: Comparison of open-source embedded databases berkeley DB and SQLite. Microcontrollers Embed. Syst. 2, 5–8 (2005)
- 11. Soparia, J., Bhatt, N.: A survey on comparative study of wireless sensor network topologies. Int. J. Comput. Appl. **87**(1) (2014)
- 12. Akyildiz, F.: A survey on sensor networks. IEEE Commun. Mag. 40(8), 102-114 (2002)
- Zhou, Y., Fang, Y.: Securing wireless sensor networks: a survey. IEEE Commun. Surv. Tutor. 10(3) (2008)
- Habaebi, M.H., Khamis, R.O., Zyoud, A., Islam, M.R.: RSS based localization techniques for ZigBee wireless sensor network. In: Computer and Communication Engineering (ICCCE) International Conference on, pp. 72–75 (2014)
- Biradar, R.V., Patil, V.C., Dr. Sawant, S.R., Dr. Mudholkar, R.R: Classification and comparison of routing protocols in wireless sensor networks. Special Issue on Ubiquit. Comput. Secur. Syst. (UbiCC Journal) 4 (2010)
- Wan, J., Yuan, D., Xu, X.: A review of routing protocols in wireless sensor networks. In: IEEE Xplore 4th International Conference on Wireless Communications, Networking and Mobile Computing (2008)

Review on Interface Designing and Human–Computer Interaction

Siddharth Kanaskar, Khushboo Satpute and Minal Chalakh

Abstract Humans are social animals, and interaction has been one of the major factors for the development of humans. Invention of computer was a benchmark in technological progress achieved by humans. Proper communication technique between humans and electronic appliances has eased out our lives. But due to improper designing of interfaces of systems, nuclear mishaps like Three Mile Island accident have also taken place. To avoid such huge man-made disasters and to facilitate and equip every common man with technology, proper interfacing of technology such that novice as well as experts can use it to reap the full benefits out of any electronic instrument is a must.

Keywords Interaction · Interface · Marketing

1 Introduction

In today's world, intersection of various fields has led to marvels viz. biochemistry (Biology + Chemistry), nutraceuticals (Nutrition + Pharmaceuticals), and astrophysics (Astronomy + Physics). Medical electronics has given the doctors different ways to analyze and understand different conditions of the subject like if he is critical or normal and deciding the apt treatment for him/her. One such technique is nuclear detection. In almost all the fields, automation has taken over, providing cheaper options for delivering end commodity. While this automation taking place, one important aspect of how normal and non-technical people can use it has always

S. Kanaskar (🖂) · K. Satpute · M. Chalakh

MIT College of Engineering, Kothrud, Paud Road, Kothrud,

Pune 411038, Maharashtra, India

e-mail: siddharth.kanaskar@gmail.com

K. Satpute e-mail: khushboo.satpute@mitcoe.edu.in

M. Chalakh e-mail: minal.chalakh@mitcoe.edu.in

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_40

been a challenge. In fields where there is no room for errors, professional technicians are installed for using the instruments in the appropriate manner. A very simple example of this is the X-ray technicians.

2 The Crossovers

Human–Computer Interaction is a blend of psychology, sociology, behavioral science, and physiology. Intersection of such a great number of fields has not only attracted the researchers, but due to the consequences and the changes in sales just by minor changes in the aesthetics and the ways of interaction (which also includes ways of displaying) has led to a huge attraction of all the MNCs. Experts from every field are trying to give their contribution to improvise on various techniques for interacting with the computers. Designers, psychologists, and programmers play a critical role in this field.

3 Instance of Changes Made in the History

A good start begins with a good groundwork, and as we all know, a good start is half done. Understanding the needs of the customer is important, as this field deals with the end commodity which directly connects a human to its gizmo, but what is even more important is to understand the changing needs of the customers. Introduction of computer was a revolution practically all possible fields. Automation stepped in, dropping the prices of essential commodities conversely increasing the availability of common man. In the initial states, various projects were carried out to improve the hardware as hardware is the backbone of any system [1].

Once the hardware and its corresponding software were dealt with to a sufficient extent, to run a business, it was important to appropriately not only introduce but to interface a layman to this astoundingly manipulated binary machine. That is actually where interfaces stepped in. Researchers started exploring various techniques of interfacing the computer and its functionalities with the user. After a while, the much-accepted windows, Macintosh and Linux, came into picture [2]. Portability being one of the major constraints, laptops came into picture. Also, communication needed to be done from a non-stationary point to any other non-stationary points due to which mobile phones and palmtops came into picture. All these appliances apart from laptops needed to be properly connected to the user where various platforms came into picture on which operating systems are built. Proper construction of user interface was essential which would not only serve the purpose of a device but also give additional benefits and customization features so the customer would pay a handsome amount for appliances [3].

4 The Interaction

Figure 1 describes the interaction of the user with the computer. The overall flow of information, reception, and interpretation is described in the figure. Over the years, ways of giving the input and receiving the output have changed. In the old DOS computers, input was given with the help of keyboard, whereas now, we can directly click and open the required application or utilize a function of any



Fig. 1 Flow of information between user and the system

application with the help of a mouse click [4]. Similarly, in case of mobile phones, buttons were used to provide input during the introductory phase, whereas now, finger touch is used to provide the input. In short, the ways of communication with a system has evolved over years. Enormous research is being carried out in the mobile application interfaces as cell phones are most commonly used gadget which has tremendous amount of applications and has now led to the concept of app-fatigue among the users [4]. The flowchart represents the flow of information in a system. It indicates how the communication between human and computer takes place. Initially when we start our computer, a start message along with welcome line is given by the system after which the system asks for password.

- Now, this output of the system is thought about by the user. Although it is not advisable to strain the user by making him/her remember various things, password is must for the security of the user. It helps in maintaining the privacy of the user and his data. This also helps in data security.
- Coming back to the diagram, the output of the system (taking an example of system requesting for password) is thought of by the user. In other words, the user's brain interprets and processes the data. He then remembers the password. The password is then typed by the user, which we can say is the output from the user.
- This output from the user acts as an input to the system. Interpretation of the user's output is done. The user request (here to log-in to his account) is processed by the system. After the request is processed, there is a very important task which is converting the output of the system into a readable output for the user.
- The output of the system is viewed, interpreted and understood, and processed by the user, and corresponding commands are given which again acts as an input. This cycle goes on and on until the user opts for a shutdown option.
- If the users want to shutdown the computer, option is given out by the system asking the user if. This is viewed, interpreted, and responded by the user. If it is a 'yes', the system will take the output of the user as an input, process the request of shutdown, and switch the computer off; or else if the user changes his mind on the request of shutdown, i.e., the user presses a 'no', the system will understand and then process the request. Shutdown shall be aborted by the system and the home screen or desktop shall be visible to the user [5].

4.1 Factors to Be Taken into Consideration

Various factors are taken into consideration while interfacing the application, graphical user interface (GUI), appliances, gizmos, etc., with the user [6].

• The main factor to be taken into consideration is the type of customers which the application or appliance is targeting. Hence, designing a system, or a user

interface that shall be understandable even to a layman, is very important aspect for success of that particular appliance [7].

- Nevertheless, aesthetics play a crucial role in the design of interfaces of systems. Small things like placing of buttons at the right place, all buttons of same size, etc. play a deceptive role in the success of any end product. Eye-candy yet not flashy is one of the secrets of good aesthetics.
- Simplicity also is an inevitable component while designing the interfaces. It is advisable that the various functions provided by the system should preferably have an individual button for itself which will in turn reduce the confusion of the available functionalities.
- A critical role is played by the font size, background color, and color schemes used. A well-readable font size should be opted. Due care must be taken that the user need not put any additional efforts for just reading the available options. Bad readability frustrates the users, indirectly affecting verbal publicity of the system or appliance, conversely reducing the sales and profits of the company.
- Due care must be taken that the user should not be strained in any possible way while performing any task or activity. Any small thing like a phone number or email-id can be copied and pasted reducing the strain given to the user's memory. Such small features are appreciated by the users leading to better sales and business of the manufacturers. Such small features give the manufacturers a cutting edge in comparison with its competitors [8].

While designing an HCI, a review of the following three types of user activity should be considered to gauge the degree of user activity.

- (i) Cognitive: It involves the actual interaction and understanding of the system by the user.
- (ii) Physical: It deals with the extent and practicalities of interaction between the user and the HCI.
- (iii) Affective: It involves engaging the user in a way that pleases the user to continue using the system. It may also involve adapting to the needs and requirements of the user to keep him engaged [9].

4.2 Interaction Styles

A machine can understand just two input values, i.e., 0 and 1, as well as term it a binary language. But, the way these 0s and 1s have been so beautifully manipulated and utilized along with the correct hardware has eased out our working by providing us complex systems like computers and mobiles.

We can also say that Human–Computer Interaction is a way in which computer takes an input, interprets it, processes our request, and gives the necessary output. Various ways of interaction with computers are enlisted below:

- Command Line Argument (CLI) This includes the very basic type of input technique that is text. Command line arguments have a set of statements that are assigned to perform particular tasks.
 Complete Line Line (CLU)
- Graphical User Interface (GUI) Under this type, a visual format is used to display the various available options. Icons and buttons are assigned various tasks.
- Keyboard and mouse They are responsible to take input in the form of alphabets or clicks. Device drivers are must for interpreting the directions and clicks of the mouse or keys pressed on the keyboard.
- Zoom-in interface A zoom-in interface is used to improve the readability of the document if the visibility is less.
- Cross-based interface Features like mouse-over effects and hierarchical menus improve the user experience.
- Hardware buttons (e.g., power ON/OFF button on every device) These are the buttons present on the physical hardware of the appliances. They interact directly with the hardware with any intermediate software [9].

5 Development of HCI

Human–Computer Interaction is a field which involves trial-and-error technique. Understanding the demands of the customers of various types and categories is important to be taken into consideration while designing any interface. For a better understanding, it is important to interact with them. Various surveys need to be conducted, so that the demands' habits and behaviors of varied types of users are better interpreted and appropriate changes can be made in the existing system.

One of the most convenient yet extremely efficient options opted by the manufacturers is allowing the users to customize their own devices. Every user has different individual demands that may not be required by other user. Hence, the manufacturers have facilitated the users allowing them to place various functionalities, buttons, and other components of interface as per their convenience which is a good option too because it not only reduces the efforts of the manufacturers but also gives satisfaction to the users [10].

5.1 Ways of Interaction

Inventions and methods of interactions have been developed for the physically disabled people letting them interact with the system and various devices in the best possible ways.

The development of advanced wheelchairs for victims of features like triple-tap zoom-in has been developed in the android for people with impaired vision.

Physiological Interaction

Physiological interaction is a technique developed that the system can understand and interpret the physical activities of the user and accordingly perform any particular task. Physiological interaction understands the user's activities which include talking, height, and weight. A lot of research work is being carried out on in this field giving out gifts to humankind like automatic speech recognition (ASR), virtual reality, and cave automatic virtual environment (CAVE). Physiological interactions turn out to be extremely useful for the older people. For example, older people having impaired vision can take the help of ASR (automatic speech recognition) for proper interaction with the systems [11].

- Automatic Speech Recognition It is a technique that captures the voice of the user and converts it into text that can be read by the user.
- Virtual Reality

In this technique, an artificial 3-dimensional environment is created, and the user physically takes part in the environment.

A very good example of this is the simulation exercise provided to the pilots during their training.

External gears are required to spectate or view things and surroundings to create the necessary effects [12].

- Automatic Virtual Environments
 Virtual reality and automatic virtual environments have a very thin line between them and that is 'external devices need not be used to view the effects.'
 A proper 3-dimensional environment is created where they personally can see and feel the effects as if they are real and existing right in front of them.
- Biometrics

This technique is used for the identification of the user interpreting the data of the user from various sensors used to interpret human actions and behaviors.

Many of these techniques are used in our mobile phones too like fingerprint scanner and facial detection.

Other features that come under this category are the retina scanners and DNA analyzers.

These features have taken safety and personalization to a whole new level facilitating data security and also giving users a satisfying, reliable provision to keep their personal data safe [5].

Eyes	View the output given by the system
Ears	Listen to audio format of the output (if any) given by the system
Touch	Hands and eyes together are used to provide input to the system
Smell	Although detection of odor is not of any use to computer, lie detection tests are carried out by connecting appropriate sensors to analyze the breathing patterns of the suspect and corresponding to the output determination if the suspect is lying or not is done
Taste	Not applicable for interaction with computers

Table 1 Sensory organs and their use in computing

Factor	Description	
Simplicity	Reducing the use of submenus. Available options should preferably displin one single frame	
Type of customer	Understanding the set and type of targeted customers helps to plot a better marketing strategy	
Aesthetics	First impression is the last impression	
Font sizing	Adequately spaced and proper use of font size should be done to reduce the strain on users to read any particular thing	

 Table 2
 Factors to be taken into consideration while designing any interface

From Table 1, human body has five sensory organs namely eyesight, touch, hearing, smell, and taste. A human body interprets the output given by the system by viewing it. The brain interprets what our eyes see and gives corresponding input using hand in the form of touch or key press or mouse click with the help of eyes to understand where the buttons are located. Audio can be heard. If a user wants to listen to a song, then a corresponding request is given to the system and the user can hear it when the system plays the music track in some media player [13].

Table 2 describes the essential factors taken into consideration while designing of any interfaces. It should be simple, easy to read and understand, with good final touch in terms of aesthetics. The customer type should be decided well in advance. This is extremely important to derive the marketing as price structure of the commodity [14].

Acknowledgements I am extremely thankful to Prof. Khushboo Satpute (Project guide) for the support she has extended; also, sincere regards to my parents who have been very cordial and supportive all the while and for encouraging me during the low times. Not to forget, my college MIT-COE and all the staff members for bringing out the best of me, and my sincere regards to the Head of IT Department of MIT-COE for his additional support.

References

- 1. Shneiderman, B., Plaisant, C.: Designing the User Interface: Strategies for Effective Human-Computer Interaction, 4th edn. Pearson/Addison-Wesley, Boston (2004)
- 2. Te'eni, D., Carey, J., Zhang, P.: Human Computer Interaction: Developing Effective Organizational Information Systems. Wiley, Hoboken (2007)
- Turner, P.: HCI Redux-the promise of post cognitive interaction. Springer Publication (2016). ISBN: 978-3-319-42233-6
- Kjeldskov, J., Graham, C.: A review of mobile HCI research methods. Hum. Comput. Interact. Mob. Devices Serv. 317–335 (2003)
- 5. Nielsen, J.: Usability Engineering. Morgan Kaufman, San Francisco (1994)
- Zajicek, M.: Aspects of HCI research for older people. Univ. Access Inf. Soc. 5(3), 279–286 (2006)
- Jonathan, L., Feng, J.H., Hochheiser, H.: Research Methods in Human-Computer Interaction. Wiley (2010)
- 8. Universal access in Human Computer Interaction. Access to day to day technologies, 9th International Conference, UAHCI 2015, Los Angeles, CA, USA (2015)
- 9. Norman, D.: Cognitive engineering. In: Norman, D., Draper, S. (eds.) User Centered Design: New Perspective on Human-Computer Interaction. Lawrence Erlbaum, Hillsdale (1986)
- 10. Jacko, J.A. (ed): The Human-Computer Interaction Handbook, 3rd edn. CRC Press (2012)
- Dix, A.: Human-computer interaction: In: Encyclopedia of database systems, pp. 1327–1331. Springer, US (2009)
- 12. Li, K., Tiwari, A., Alcock, J., Bermell Garcia, P.: Categorization of visualization methods to support design of human-computer interaction systems. Appl. Ergon. **55** (2016)
- Baecker, R.M., Grudin, J., Buxton, W.A.S., Greenberg, S. (eds): Readings in Human-Computer Interaction: Toward the Year 2000, 2nd edn. Morgan-Kaufmann Publishers, Los Altos, CA (1995)
- 14. Picard, R.W.: Affective Computing. MIT Press, Cambridge (1997)
- Biswas, P., Duarte, C., Langdon, P., Almeida, L. (eds.): Human–Computer Interaction Series: A Multimodal End-2-End Approach to Accessible Computing, 2nd edn, Springer, London (2015)

Computational Model of Episodic Memory Formation, Recalling, and Forgetting

Rahul Shrivastava and Sudhakar Tripathi

Abstract Our motivation in this paper is to provide a computational model of episodic memory, which is agent and domain independent like human being. Proposed model is smart enough to encode experiences in response to continuous sensory input and able to store in the form of an episode of temporally correlated events based on reward and motivation of agent. In proposed mechanism, event (personal experience) is subdivided into its constituent's coactive activities, where each constituent activity is shared among different events with certain participation strength in different events. Model dynamically allows forgetting of unimportant activities and events based on participation strength which is recalling and reward dependent. This model extracts the key event based on reward which further incorporates in episode formation by clustering of temporal and correlated events with the key event. Recalling is also supported on coming of noisy and erroneous cue or incomplete pattern. To validate the proposed model, an empirical study was conducted, where the proposed episodic memory model is evaluated based on the recall accuracy using partial and erroneous cues and deployed in a car race environment, where agent learns the episode with reward to play by itself. The analysis shows that the proposed model significantly associated with encoding and recalling of events and episodes even with incomplete and noisy cues.

Keywords Episodic memory · Encoding · Recalling · Forgetting Reward learning

S. Tripathi e-mail: stripathi.cse@nitp.ac.in

R. Shrivastava (🖂) · S. Tripathi

Department of Computer Science & Engineering, National Institute of Technology, Patna, Bihar, India e-mail: rahul.vidishaa@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_41

1 Introduction

1.1 Episodic Memory

An episodic memory (EM) is able to encode, store our personal experiences of our daily lives, and support recalling of these experiences on coming of cue [1]. The concept of EM was introduced by Endel Tulving in the early 70s. Episodic system stores experiences with contextual detail of what, where, and when it happened, and it is consciously accessible [2]. Episode formation in EM is dependent on reward, emotions of ongoing experiences [3, 4]. This EM provides the episodic learning, which changes the behavior as a result of events of EM [5]. In this article, we proposed a computational EM model based on some biological findings which are discussed in the paper. Model encodes and stores the events, and then dynamically creates episodes of related temporal events based on reward which supports recalling of previous past experiences (sequence of events) and supports forgetting of unimportant events. Our motivation is to provide a computational model of EM, which is agent and domain independent like human being, and should be smart enough to encode his experiences, and able to store in the form of a episode of temporally related events which would be useful in gaming, robotics, navigation tools, and in predictions [6].

2 Background

Event encoding is the first step for event formation. Shastri and Venkat [7] proposed a new event encoding technique which makes use of binding of subject with its role, such type of binding is used in our model as an activity of an event. It is accepted that hippocampus is the brain region responsible for EM formation and recalling [8], and it is suggested that hippocampus is required to have an autoassociative property for learning, pattern completion and recalling [9, 10], and also it should have competitive network mechanism for pattern separation and sparse memory generation [11, 12]. Edmund [11] proposed a hippocampus model using autoassociative network (for CA3 region) and competitive network (for DG region), but this model does not support Ebinghaus forgetting [13] based on recalling which is supported in our model. Michael and Zachariah [14] proposed competitive trace theory (CTT), which relates EM with semantic memory formation. According to the theory, at the time of encoding (event creation), event is highly contextualize and less semantic, but on further recalling with time event gets less contextualize and more semantic; this theory is very well supported in our model. Budhitama and Ah-Hwee [15] proposed a model for episodic memory, but this model also not

supported the Ebbinghaus forgetting mechanism and Recency Primacy effect. These mentioned problems resolved in our proposed model in very well manner.

3 Procedure

3.1 Event Encoding

Here in our model, each experience of life is stored as a sequence of events, where each event is an association of different coactive activities and each activity is a dynamic binding of subject and role played by the subject in the event [7]. For example: Mohan gave Sita a rose. Here <Giver, Mohan>, <Object, Rose>, <Receipt, Sita> are the binding of role 'giver' with the subject 'Mohan', 'Object' with 'rose' and 'Receipt' with 'Sita' are the three different coactive bindings which represent the events. Latter, these events recall on coming of cue (activities). As shown in Fig. 1, event node (diamond) is connected to different activity nodes (circle nodes) through links which are having weights (connection strength). These links weight depends on reward/impact of event; latter these weights decide the event to recall.



Fig. 1 Here in given figure, circles are representing the activity nodes and events are represented by diamond shape. Different subsets of these activity nodes are the constituents of an event node. These constituent activity nodes are connected with event node by a link which is having some connection strength. After identifying the event, calculate the reward (reward score) of event node. Individual connection strength of activity is evaluated based on reward score and individual cardinality of activity node

Connection Strength (CS): In the process of encoding, not only the binding of role and role player is required but also there is a need to know how much this binding is participating in the event. Here each activity (binding) is connected by link with those events in which it is present. This link weight between event node and activity node represents the participation of activity (binding) in an event.

3.2 Reward Mechanism

Reward represents that the present event is having some impact which makes it more probable to recall in future. Reward can either be positive or negative. For example, in car race environment, accident is having negative reward and refueling of car is having positive reward. These past events reward helps in making decision in environment similar to past environment. At the time of occurrence of an event, a reward score of occurred event is evaluated based on semantics of event and motivation of agent and later these reward score derives the links weight (connection strength). Hypothesize that any event will return high reward score when any one of activity present in the event is important and rare so that connection strength of that crucial activity will be high in event in which it is present. Event recalls on the basis of this CS value of the context (activities) presented to agent as a cue.

Let suppose there is an event node 'e' and act_1 , act_2 , act_3, act_n are the activity nodes present in the event 'e', reward (e) is the reward score of event 'e', and card (act_i) is the cardinality of activity node 'i', then connection strength between event node 'e' and activity node 'i' (CS (e, act_i)) will be derived according to Eq. (1).

$$CS (e, act_i) = \frac{Reward (e)}{Card (i)}$$
(1)

Reward (e) Derives from the motivation of agent.

Card (i) Cardinality of a set of event in which activity 'i' is present.

In Eq. 1, connection strength of activity in a particular event 'e' will decreases when reward of the event is absent or cardinality of activity is high (activity is so common/ordinary) and increases when impact/reward of event is present and cardinality of activity is low (activity is rare/important).

Algorithm 1: Event Encoding

- (1) While (Input from sensor == True).
- (2) Input to different sensors activates the activity nodes (binding of role and subject) of different fields.

- (3) Make association between activated activity nodes.
- (4) Create new event node 'e' and connect to all current activated activity nodes
 S = (act₁, act₂, act₃..... act_n) through links.
- (5) Assign weight (connection strength) to each link between event node 'e' and activity node 'i' where 'i' \in S.

$$CS(e, act_i) = Reward(e)/card(i)$$

(6) End of while.

3.3 Episode Formation

An episode is a sequence of temporally and contextually correlated events. A new episode forms when reward score of occurred event is greater than threshold value, and we call this occurred event as key event, and this key event agglomerates other temporally local and correlated events to formation of episode. To check whether the temporal local events will come in the cluster of key event or not, cluster ratio evaluates for temporal local events. If ratio value is greater than threshold value, then the event joins the episode of key event.

Cluster Ratio (j) =
$$\frac{\forall i \in K (\sum CS (key event, i))}{\forall h \in I (\sum CS (key event, h))}$$
 (2)

where 'K' is the set of activity nodes present in both key event and temporal local event 'j' and 'l' is the set of activity nodes present in the key event.

Algorithm 2: Episode formation

- (1) First step is to check whether the current event is a key event or not by evaluating the impact score of current event
- (2) If impact score(current event) > threshold value
 - (i) Key event = event occurred at current time step
 - (ii) Initialize a set 'S' with events which are temporally local to key events
 - (iii) Evaluate ratio for each temporal event $\in S$

Cluster Ratio(j) =
$$\frac{\forall i \in K (\sum CS (key event, i))}{\forall h \in I (\sum CS (key event, h))}$$
,

where 'K' is the set of activity nodes, which are commonly present in both key event and event 'j' and 'l' is the set of activity nodes which are present in the key event

(iv) If cluster ratio (j) > threshold value

Event 'j' \in episode (cluster) of key event

(3) Else

(4) No episode formation.

3.4 Recalling

Recalling is the replay of previous episode on coming of cue. Cue activates the set of activity nodes, for example on coming of cue, 'red car' activates the activity nodes (bindings) in which red car is playing some role, and then these activated activity nodes recall the event like event of accident with similar red car. To recall any event, a value "recall score" will be evaluated for each event on basis of matched activities of the event with the activities present in cue. The event which is having highest recall score resonates, and the decisions which the episode resonated event possesses will be recall.

$$\label{eq:Recall Score} \text{Recall Score}\left(j\right) \ = \forall i \in K \sum CS \ (j,i) \tag{3}$$

where 'j' is the event number and K is the set of activated activity nodes and CS (j, i) is the connection strength between event 'j' and activity 'i'

Algorithm 3: Recalling

- (1) Input = cue (partial input/incomplete pattern)
- (2) Input activates the set of activity nodes $K = (act_1, act_2, \dots, act_k)$
- (3) Evaluate the recall score of each event 'j' using the connection strength with the activated activity nodes
 Recall score (j) = ∀i ∈ K ∑CS j, i), where K is the set of activated activity node (activated in step2)

CS (j, i) is the connection strength of event 'j' with activity node 'i'.

- (4) Max score = max {recall score (i)}
- (5) Resonate event = i, where recall score (i) = max score Resonate event is the event which has maximum recall score, and then episode in which resonate event is present recalls.

3.5 Forgetting

At each iteration, a new event is encoded. So there is a need to remove unimportant events and also need to convert some event into a semantic knowledge which is frequently accessed/recalls.

As we discussed before in this paper, activities have certain participation weights for each event in which they present. These weights are dynamic with respect to time; if agent does not recall an event, then CS value of all activities present in that event will decrease exponentially. But if any reference occurs for the event, then reduction rate will be minimized and after the certain references it will not reduce further.

$$CS(e, j) = CS(e, j) * e^{-\left(\propto \frac{t}{r(e, j)}\right)}$$
(4)

Equation 4 is the formulae for CS where CS (e, j) is the connection strength of activity 'j' in event 'e' which reduces exponentially [13], ' \propto ' is a reduction rate parameter and r (e, j) is the recalling of activity 'j' in event 'e' and 't' is the time elapsed from the time of last recalling.

4 Case Study

4.1 Car Race Environment

Proposed model is used in car race environment where the agent (car) uses the episodic memory to accomplish its task of completion of the race in less time. This agent can accelerate the car and can move left and right to avoid accident from the hurdles present on track. This EM-based greedy agent learns the different scenarios and takes decision based on previous similar feature activation of event. On getting input from the environment, agent can recall all the episodes containing event similar to present feature vector and make decision on the basis of previous reward to achieve high score.

5 Result

To evaluate the proposed model, we created two agents, one is random agent and other one is episodic agent. Random agent takes decision randomly based on some static rules to score high, for example if in front of agent, a car is present then move either left or right to avoid accident. On other side, episodic agent takes decision based on recalled episode, where recalling is based on current contextual information. We have performed experiment three times, and agents allowed retaining his previous experiences between experiments. Result is shown in Fig. 2 where



Fig. 2 Showing results of three trials of random agent and episodic agent. Blue bar showing the score of random agent, and red bar showing the result of episodic agent. Vertical axis is representing the score earned by both agents

blue bar represents the performance of random agent and red bar represents the episodic agent. As you can see in first iteration, both random and episodic agent performance is quite similar because initially episodic agent has no episode to take guidance for right move. But in second and third iteration, performance of episodic agent is increased.

6 Conclusion

We presented a new computational model of episodic memory, which is able to take decision based on previous experiences. We performed empirical study on model in car race environment. Various tests are conducted on the model to check its efficiency in memory retrieving during the game. We have done a comparative study between episodic memory-based car agent and a random car agent which uses static rules. Our result shows that our model is able to take decision based on previous episode reward and performed well in comparison to random agent. Its forgetting nature of unimportant events and activities makes it space efficient which removes illusory details so that it is able to recall on giving the noisy cue as input.

References

- Tulving, E.: Organization of memory: quo vadis? In: Gazzaniga, M.S. (ed.) The Cognitive Neuroscience, pp. 839–847 (1995)
- Rugg, M.D., Kaia, L.V.: Brain networks underlying episodic memory retrieval. Curr. Opin. Neurobiol. 23(2), 255–260 (2013)
- 3. Vertes, R.P., Kocsis, B.: Brainstemdiencephalo-septohippocampal systems controlling the theta rhythm of the hippocampus. Neuroscience **81**, 893–926 (1997)
- 4. McGaugh, J.L.: Memory-a century of consolidation. Science 287, 248-251 (2000)
- 5. Squire, L.R.: Declarative and nondeclarative memory: multiple brain systems supporting learning and memory. J. Cogn. Neurosci. 4(3), 232–243 (1992)
- 6. Janie, B., Thomas, S.: Recalling yesterday and predicting tomorrow. Cogn. Dev. 20(3), 362–372 (2005)

- Shastri, L., Venkat, A.: From simple associations to systematic reasoning: a connectionist representation of rules, variables and dynamic bindings using temporal synchrony. Behav. Brain Sci. 16(03), 417–451 (1993)
- Amaral, D.G., Witter, M.P.: Hippocampal formation. In: Paxinos, G. (ed.) The Rat Nervous System, 2nd edn, pp. 443–493. Academic Press, London (1995)
- 9. Rolls, E.T.: Information representation, processing and storage in the brain: analysis at the single neuron level. Neural Mol. Bases Learn. 503–540 (1987)
- Atallah, H.E., Frank, M.J., O'reilly, R.C.: Hippocampus, cortex, and basal ganglia: Insights from computational models of complementary learning systems. Neurobiol. Learn. Mem. 82(3), 253–267 (2004)
- 11. Edmund, T.R.: A computational theory of episodic memory formation in the hippocampus. Behav. Brain Res. **215**(2) (2010)
- 12. Gilbert, P. E., Kesner, R.P., Lee, I.: Dissociating hippocampal subregions: a double dissociation between dentate gyrus and CA1. Hippocampus. **11**(6), pp. 626–636 (2001)
- 13. Hermann, E.: Remembering Ebbinghaus. Contemp. Psychol. 30(7), 519–523 (1985)
- 14. Michael, A.Y., Zachariah M. R.: Competitive trace theory: a role for the hippocampus in contextual interference during retrieval. Front. Behav. Neurosci. 7, 107 (2013)
- 15. Budhitama, S., Ah-Hwee, T.: Neural modeling of sequential inferences and learning over episodic memory. Neurocomputing 161, 229–242 (2015)

Heart Risk Prediction System Based on Supervised ANN

Ashima Kalra, Richa Tomar and Udit Tomar

Abstract As well said "health is wealth", good health is the key to human happiness. But nowadays due to bad eating habits, stressful life and unawareness among people, the number of cases of death due to heart diseases is increasing day by day. With the help of machine learning techniques, this hazard can be minimized up to some extent by helping healthcare professionals in the quick and efficient prediction of diseases. The motive of this study is to detect the risk of heart disease through a supervised learning network. The paper uses the back propagation approach of neural network. The data set here consists of 180 samples with four attributes adapted from UCI Machine Repository. We have set 70% data for training, 15% data for validation and 15% data for testing. The system gives a better accuracy as compared to the previous researches and with a good figure. It shows an accuracy of 91% for training part which is a good value for any data.

Keywords Neural network · Attributes · Training · Error back propagation

1 Introduction

According to the World Health Organization (WHO) fact sheet on cardiovascular diseases (CVDs), around 17.5 million people die from CVD in 2012 which represent 31% of all global deaths [1]. We have very advanced medical facilities to treat heart diseases, but still the count is increasing day by day. The reason is data gathered by heart-care industry is very big and complex too, and it is not feasible to

A. Kalra $(\boxtimes) \cdot R$. Tomar $\cdot U$. Tomar

Electronics and Communication Engineering,

Chandigarh Engineering College, Landran, Mohali, India e-mail: uppal.ashi@gmail.com

R. Tomar e-mail: richa2486@gmail.com

U. Tomar e-mail: udittomar24@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_42
handle it manually. Therefore in order to minimize the death rate occurred due to heart diseases, machine learning is required. According to Samuel (1959), "machine learning is the field of study that gives computers the ability to learn without being explicitly programmed" [2]. According to TOM (1998), "well-posed machine learning problem: a computer program is said to learn from experience E with respect to some task T and some performance measure P, if this performance on T, as measured by P, improves with experience E" [3]. Among all machine learning methods, several researchers are using artificial neural network (ANN) that proved to be the best option because of its advantages such as self-learning, associative memory, high parallelism strength, high speed and error tolerance against noises [4]. Feed-forward ANN which is trained by using back propagation learning algorithm is classified into three groups: multilayer perceptron (MLP), radial basis function (RBF) and possible ANN (PANN) [5]. Back propagation learning algorithm is a systematic method for training multilayer artificial neural network. It is a supervised learning method which uses extend gradient descent-based delta learning rule and minimizes the total squared error of the output calculated by the network. The aim of this network is to train the net to achieve a balance between the ability to respond correctly to the input patterns that are used for training and the ability to provide good responses to the input that are similar [6, 7]. K et al. [8] state that the multilayer perceptron model gives the best result in comparison with other models using back propagation learning algorithm. This paper concentrates on training the ANN using back propagation algorithm for the MLP model so that physician can identify the diseases at early stages so as to save one's life.

2 Related Work

Various researchers have presented techniques for the diagnosis of heart diseases. A survey on wearable health monitoring system by Alexandros [9] made it clear that neural network can be used to design such wearable systems for the diagnosis of heart diseases. Jaymin [10] predicts heart diseases using machine learning and data mining techniques with accuracy of 56.76%. Arti [11] analyses the heart risk using ANN with accuracy of 70%. Heart diseases diagnosis by Obaloluwa [12] using back propagation neural network achieve accuracy of 85%. Jasdeep et al. (2012) in [13] approached different method scaled conjugate gradient and Levenberg Marquardt propagation to diagnose the thyroid diseases. The thyroid data set is first trained using LM propagation, and the output is noted. Then, the data set is trained by conjugate gradient back propagation. This has three layers. Hidden layer consists of 20 neurons. This paper consists of 7200 patients' data set. This data set is divided into three categories-normal, hyper- and subnormal functioning. For training, 5040 samples are used, 1030 are used for validation, and 1030 are used for testing. Gokul et al. (2013) [14] presented the application of a fully complex-valued radial basis function network (McFCRBF) and extreme learning machine (ELM) for the diagnosis of Parkinson's disease. It consists of two components: cognitive and metacognitive components. It is a neurological degenerative effect. This disease slows down the movement and also affects speaking and writing abilities. They concluded that MC-FCRBF is more appropriate method as compared to FCRBF and ELM. Ayush et al. (2015) [15] illustrated that the diabetes is worse than all other diseases. Diabetes causes many diseases such as blindness, Alzheimer's and kidney failure. This paper illustrates that human lifestyle such as sleeping habit, physical activities and eating habit plays a major role for any disease. Diabetes is chronic disease which occurs either when pancreas does not produce enough insulin or when the body cannot use properly the insulin produced. The questionnaires set made for interaction with doctor and then these questionnaires asked localities to collect data. It depends on amount of sugar intake, physical activities performed, fried food intake, rice intake and sleeping time. These are the important factors which cause diabetes. Other factors are body mass index (BMI and hereditary diabetes history of chronic disease. Two types of data set were prepared-diabetic person and non-diabetic person. After than data visualization because collected data couldn't be easily interpreted. So they need to correlate some relation between them. K-fold cross-validation method is used for result validation. In that, k = 5 (means data divide into 5 parts). By this method, the author got the accuracy of 75% correct from the collected data set. Agrawal et al. (2016) in [16] discussed the most effective and friendly model for an expert to help in medical field.

The model was motivated by biological nervous system. ANN can be categorized into many types—single-layer feed-forward network, multilayer feed-forward network. ANN has the ability of learning. ANN has three types of learning process —supervised, unsupervised and reinforcement learning. This study illustrates the usefulness of artificial neural network technique in the diagnosis of cancer. In ANN 2, methods are used for best result—MLP gives 97% accuracy and PNN gives 96% accuracy, and ART shows 92% accuracy. Bharti et al. in [17, 18] also proposed the prediction of diseases (three) with success rate of 84% with varying number of attributes.

3 Structure of Neural Network

A rich vast review on the architectures of neural network and learning techniques is available in the literature [19, 20]. Out of all classical approaches, LM comes out the best approach with minimum mean square error as per the literature survey [21, 22]. The neural network comprises of three specific layers with feed-forward set-up, i.e. input layer, hidden layer and output layer. The input layer of this system is an arrangement which contains all the information and is totally connected to all hidden layers, and these hidden layers are now connected to the output layers. The final response is obtained from the output layer. Figure 1 shows the architecture of neural network.



4 Data Used and Methodology

4.1 Objective

The main aim of our research is to find out the easiest, faster and reliable solution to detect the heart diseases at the early stages. To fulfil this goal, we proposed here machine learning by using ANN. Unhealthy diet, lack of exercise, obesity, stress, smoking habits, high blood pressure and diabetes have increased the risk of heart attacks. Among all these, some factors can be avoided to some extent by spreading awareness among people, but factors such as stress and diabetes problem due to some genetical factors cannot be avoided. Therefore to ensure an accurate medical guidance, machine learning is required because sometimes human perception and visualization is not correct, especially in cases of heart disease prediction which requires a lot of experience.

4.2 Working of Proposed Model

Figure 2 shows the complete methodology, i.e. how our proposed technique will work to detect heart diseases.

4.3 Data Used and Methodology

We have decided to consider certain attributes based on the general information of humans which could be helpful to predict any kind of the risk of heart disease. Table 1 represents the attributes taken for predicting heart attack risk by applying artificial neural network. Here, we have selected four attributes which are of very high significance in predicting heart disease risk. Sample data is taken from UCI Machine Repository. The data set consists of 180 samples.



Fig. 2 Methodology

Table	1	Data	description
-------	---	------	-------------

S. No	Attributes	Description	Range	Values
1	Testbps	Resting blood pressure	70-140 mm hg (normal)	0
2	Chol	Serum cholesterol	<240 mg/dl (normal)	0
3	Fbs	Fasting blood sugar	>120 mg/dl	1
4	Restecg	Resting electrocardiographic results	0—normal 1—ST-T wave abnormality 2—probable or left ventricular hypertrophy	

Normalization of data

In order to get better accuracy, here we are normalizing our sample data by finding out the maximum value of each attribute and then dividing each feature with its own attribute.

Normalized value = (Each attribute sample)/(corresponding maximum value)

(1)

After normalizing the data, each value lies between 0 and 1.

	Samples	MSE	R
Training	123	2.8322e-2	9.40535e-1
Validation	27	2.64750e-2	9.30776e-1
Testing	27	1.03467e-1	7.65897e-1

Table 2 Values of MSE and R for the training, testing and validation samples

4.4 Experimental Results

The experimental results of this heart disease diagnosis approach are carried out on MATLAB R2012a, and neural network toolbox is used for implementing the algorithm. Here, we are using TRAINLM, i.e. "levenberg-marquardt back propagation" as a training function. Here, we are taking 180 samples with four attributes each; from this, 15% data is used for validation and testing each; the rest 70% is used as training data. The number of neurons in hidden layer is taken as 10. Table 2 represents the value of mean square error (MSE) and regression (R) for the training, testing and validation data.



Fig. 3 Regression plot of neural network



Fig. 4 Performance plot of neural network

Figure 3 shows the regression plot, which indicates training accuracy of 94%, validation accuracy of 93%, testing accuracy of 76.595 and overall accuracy of 91%, and Fig. 4 shows the performance plot.

5 Conclusion

This paper shows the application of ANN to predict the risk of heart disease. The proposed network shows 91% accuracy in training. It is believed that these results will be proved helpful for the specialist in predicting the heart diseases and will also help in reducing the man-made errors. Besides, in this research work, we have discovered that one of the major causes of heart disease is the lack of awareness among people at the initial stages of the diseases. A regular health check-up can help to cure the diseases at the early stage. Finally, the bad habits that are the main cause of heart diseases should also be stopped. To avoid critical case of diseases, unhealthy diet, irregular exercises and smoking should be stopped. We have taken just four attributes, the very basic one which is directly related to the functioning of heart. We can do further possible improvements that could be done to make this prediction system more scalable and accurate by increasing the number of attributes.

References

- 1. http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs317/en/
- 2. Samuel, A.L.: Some studies in machine learning using the game of checkers. IBM J. Res. Dev. (1959)
- 3. Tom, M.M.: Machine learning. McGraw-Hill Science/Engineering/Math (1997)
- Sana, A., Imran, S., Aiza, A., Jamil, A., Syed, I.S.: Diagnosis of liver disease induced by hepatitis virus using artificial neural networks. In: IEEE 14th International Multitopic Conference (INMIC), pp. 8–12, IEEE, Karachi, Pakistan (2011)
- Lijuan, L., Mingrong, D.: An evolutionary artificial neural network approach for breast cancer diagnosis. In: Third International Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining (WKDD), pp. 593–596, IEEE, Phuket, Thailand (2010)
- 6. Sumathi, S., Deepa, S.N., Sivanandam, S.N.: Introduction to neural network using matlab 6.0. Tata McGraw-Hill Education Pvt. Ltd (2012)
- 7. Dimitrios, H.M., George, A., Dimitrios, K.L.: Medical disease prediction using artificial neural networks. In: 8th IEEE International Conference on Bio Informatics and Bio Engineering, Research Gate (2008)
- Balachandran, K., Anitha, R.: Dimensionality reduction based on the classifier models. In: Performance Issues In The Prediction of Lung cancer, 2012 CSI Sixth International Conference on Software Engineering (CONSEG), IEEE (2012)
- Alexandros, P., Nikolaos, G.B.: A survey on wearable sensor-based systems for health monitoring and prognosis. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern. Part C Appl. Rev. 40(1), 1–12 (2010) (ieee)
- Jaymin, P., Tejal, U., Samir, P.: Heart diseases prediction using machine learning and data mining technique. IJCSS 7, 129–137 (2015)
- Aarti, L., Amol, J.: Analyzing the risk of heart diseases using ANN. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Eng. Technol. 5(3), 569–572 (2016)
- 12. Ebenezer, O.O., Oyebade, K.O., Khashman, A.: Heart diseases diagnosis using neural network arbitration. Int. J. Intell. Syst. Appl. **12**, 75–82s (2015) (Mecs)
- Bhalla, J.S., Agarwal, A.: A Novel method for Medical disease diagnosis using artificial neural network. In: The International Conference on Biomedical Engineering and Informatics (2008)
- Gokul, S., Shivachitra, M., Vijaychitra, S.: Parkinson's disease prediction using machine learning approaches. In: Proceeding IEEE 5th International Conference on Advanced Computing (2013)
- 15. Anand, A., Shakti, D.: Prediction of diabetes based on personal lifestyle indicators. In: First International Conference on Next Generation Computing Technologies (IEEE) (2015)
- Agarwal, S., Agarwal, J.: Neural network technique for cancer prediction: a survey. In: 19th International Conference on Knowledge Based and Intelligent Information and Engineering System, Elsevier (2015)
- Bharti,Y., Shilpi, S., Ashwani, K.Y., Vaishali.: Prediction of diseases using neural network. IJCTA 9(22), pp. 223–231, International Science Press (2016)
- Bharti, Y., Ashima K., Shilpi.: Supervised learning technique for prediction of diseases. In: Springer- ICICCD-2017, AISC-Advances in Intelligent Systems and Computing Book Series of Springer (scopus indexed) (2017)
- Ankeeta, R.P., Maulin, M.J.: Heart diseases diagnosis using neural network. In: 4th IEEE International Conference on Computing, Communications and Networking Technologies, ICCCNT, pp. 1–5 (2013)

- Nilakshi, P.W., Nilima, P.P.: Genetic neural approach for heart disease prediction. Int. J. Adv. Comput. Res. 4(16), 778–784 (2014)
- Ashima, K., Shakti, K., Sukhbir, S.W.: ANN training: A survey of classical & soft computing approaches. Int. J. Control Theory Appl. 9(34), pp. 715–736 (2016) (International Science Press)
- Ashima, K. et al.: ANN training: review of soft computing approaches. Int. J. Electr. Electron. Eng. 2(Spl. Issue. 2), 193–205 (2015) (RIECE)

Automated Path Search and Optimization of Robotic Motion Using Hybrid ART-SOM Neural Networks

V. M. Aparanji, Uday V. Wali and R. Aparna

Abstract This paper proposes a new type of unsupervised, path optimizing artificial neural network (ANN) suitable for autonomous motion control of multi-joint robotic mechanisms with arbitrary degrees of freedom (DoF). The ANN can search through the robot's workspace and select an optimal path avoiding obstacles, among several possible paths. This approach does not require computation of nonlinear inverse kinematic expressions generally used for such mechanisms. The proposed ANN combines features of adaptive resonance theory (ART) and self-organizing maps (SOMs). It is a sparse hierarchical multilayer deep learning network with specific features implemented at each layer. Cells in lower levels classify input using a ART/SOM hybrid structure. Higher levels will successively identify and optimize paths that can be used to solve motion problems. The paper describes the cellular automata required to implement the path optimizing network. These ANNs have been implemented using R simulation language. Results for various types of joint systems are presented.

Keywords Adaptive resonance theory (ART) • Artificial neural networks (ANNs) Deep learning • Motion control • Self-organizing maps (SOMs)

V. M. Aparanji (🖂)

U. V. Wali

R. Aparna

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

Department of E&CE, Siddaganga Institute of Technology, Tumakuru, Karnataka, India e-mail: vma1508@gmail.com

Department of E&CE, KLE Dr. MSS CET, Belagavi, Karnataka, India e-mail: udaywali@gmail.com

Department of ISE, Siddaganga Institute of Technology, Tumakuru, Karnataka, India e-mail: raparna27@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_43

1 Introduction

Complexities involved with simulation of robotic systems pose a great challenge especially when such system has to work in real time, autonomously, in human-like environments. Recent effort by DARPA shows that there is a need to review control strategies for such systems [1]. This research indicated use of soft control algorithms instead of analytical or iterative solutions. Some of the machine learning techniques suitable for solving nonlinear problems are back-propagation, multilayer perceptron, recurrent neural networks, support vector machines, etc. [2, 3]. Recently, many new structures like convolution neural networks (CNN), long short-term memory (LSTM), belief systems, adversarial networks, etc., have been suggested. These networks have shown high degree of success in solving complex problems in recognition, estimation, and prediction [4]. Success of an ANN depends on how a real-life problem is mapped to a suitable ANN structure. Capability of an ANN to solve a specific problem at hand depends on the structure used to implement the ANN.

Identification of dynamic equations of robotic systems is complex, and works are still being reported [5]. External environment in which the multi-segmented joint is working can change dynamically, adding to further complexity. Examples of such situations are location of obstacles, effect of gravity at various angles of motion, etc. Robotic control systems using adaptive resonance theory (ART) networks have been discussed in the literature [6]. ART networks start with no or few neurons and grow as inputs are applied. Each node (neuron) records the input pattern. If the input matches the stored value, it produces full output. Node producing the best output will be the winner. The winner will strengthen its weights. If the output of the winner is below a threshold, a new cell is added to the network with the applied input values. Adjustment of weights is controlled by the learning rate. Each node learns independent of the other. ART-2 networks have an elaborate scheme for reorientation and scaling of input to achieve correct classification of input.

Networks based on self-organizing maps (SOM) [7, 8] on the other hand start with a large, fixed number of randomly initiated cells. As the input is applied, the best matching node wins the classification problem and strengthens its weights. Simultaneously, neighbors of the winning cell will adjust their weights toward the weights of the winner. That way, spatially close cells form clusters that identify an input class. Due to this strategy, a new input or input with noise will be recognized correctly. However, in case of large output set, as in case of robotic motion, the size of a SOM network will be very large.

Multilayered neural networks with large number of nodes are now being used for robotic motion. Some of these contemporary works that report neural networks controlling robotic motion include self-organizing maps and particle swarm optimization for path planning [5, 9], adaptive neural networks for biped motion [10, 11], deep learning for robotic motion [4], etc. Several tools for developing neural systems are being developed in recent years [12]. Availability of high-performance parallel computing using GPUs and low-cost memory,

implementing large multilayer ANNs, has become feasible. Other reasons for the increased popularity of ANNs are ease with which they can be built, adaptability to various problems, ability to be trained in unsupervised or supervised modes [10], reinforcement learning [11], etc. Such networks have been able to address problems associated with dead zones in workspace and plan motion around obstacles [13].

A biological joint works with pull-relax mechanism while most of the mechanical systems use a constrained rotary motion to drive the joints. Some recent work has been reported in implementation of pull-relax activation for mechanical systems [14]. Initial ideas that contributed to our work were based on the pull-relax model of joint control. From these observations, we can see that development of a generalized neural net to solve kinematic problems can be very useful. We have developed a new type of neural network called auto resonance network (ARN) that can be used in this direction [15, 16]. The new architecture takes clues from ART and SOM networks but is different from both. Overall idea of the network is to store known solutions and their perturbations. This neural network grows and improves its accuracy as more input is applied. Variable resonance of the neurons at the matching input provides cover for noise tolerance as well as recognition of input with no historic record. Perturbation of the network enhances this capability.

In this paper, we have presented a multilayered, hierarchical ANN to solve the path searching problem of robotic mechanisms with multi-segmented joints. The system does not require any inverse kinematic solutions. A scatter function is assumed to describe how the endpoint of the multi-segmented joint moves when it is perturbed from a known stable position. This scatter function can be a first- or second-order function of joint angles and positions. Second method does not assume scatter function but uses forward computation of kinematic equations to compute endpoint location by perturbing the joint angles.

2 Hybrid ANN for Motion Control

A model of mechanisms with multi-segmented joints controlled by a neural network is shown in Fig. 1a. During training, the system will excite the joint angles to random values, which will take the endpoint to a computable point in $\{x, y, z\}$ space covered by the mechanism. The network remembers these input and endpoint location as a pair in a node. On further usage, new nodes are sprouted between and around existing nodes. A scatter function is used to assign initial values to these sprouted nodes. Scatter function can be linear or shape function to fit the endpoint space. Each of these nodes approximates a location and a range of possible input values. Coverage of each of these nodes is a learning parameter. Nodes adapt over period of time and adjust their values to fit the incoming data using statistical information. Error is computed as a difference between the desired location and the location reached by the endpoint. Note that the distribution of sprouted nodes is influenced by the joint system. For example, *x*-displacement from a known location



Fig. 1 a Model of a joint system, b multi-level path search and optimization



Fig. 2 a Two 'Folds' of solutions for the joint system shown in (b)

has to increase from left to right. Therefore, the distribution has to account for the direction of endpoint motion.

In a multi-segment joint system, most of the points in the endpoint space can be reached using different sets of joint angles. When a particular location can be reached by more than one possible set of joint angles, each such solution is 'memorized' by a separate cell. When such a cell is added to the network, it generates a neighborhood of cells that are similar to it. This could be construed as folds within the solution space. For example, Fig. 2a shows two folds generated in endpoint space for a two segmented planar joint shown in Fig. 2b. Moving the endpoint within a fold of solution space is less expensive than jumping across folds as it requires large change to at least some of the joint angles. Therefore, shifting between folds is effected by the network only when endpoint cannot reach the desired location within a fold. This is akin to switching in human thought processes.

ARN network uses a single layer of neurons called resonators, with no connection between them. On the other hand, cells in SOM layer impose a spatial relation among nodes and affect the way the network learns. Note that all nodes in traditional ART or SOM are connected to the input and output layers. We have used a separate layer to connect nodes at the output of ARN layer. This layer assigns a spatial orientation on ARN nodes, necessary to decide location in the endpoint space. This is illustrated in Fig. 1b as a second layer of nodes. Similar to SOM networks, these hybrid ANNs can train neighbors of winner node. Unlike the SOM network where nodes are predefined, neighbor nodes in ARN sprout dynamically as the network learns from the input. Two more layers of ARN type are added to recognize optimum path to move from one point to other in endpoint space. These layers are shown in Fig. 1b.

During run time, the desired location of the endpoint is input to the neural network. The network selects one of the possible joint angles based on a cost function. When the endpoint has to traverse a path from current location to the desired location, every cell on the path sequentially triggers the neighboring cells to cause a displacement toward the endpoint. The process is repeated by every cell on path till the endpoint is reached. This sequence of nodes participating in this process represents a path of solution between the current location and desired point. As the process of finding the path is dynamically chosen, it is possible to circumvent any obstructions as and when they arise.

These sets of nodes representing a path are stored in upper layer of cells. Parameters necessary to shift the joint angles are provided by the connections between neighboring cells. A higher layer of the neural network memorizes the paths traversed to reach an end point. Top layer of cells can then select among various available paths and select an optimal path among them. The network represents a set of cellular automata: Each cell in a layer performs identical function but varies only by the weights corresponding to the input. However, cells differ from layer to layer in their functionality. Cells in the higher layers are generic in their function while those at lower levels are highly specialized. In this way, the network can be seen as a complex neural network with specialized layers of cells that can control a given multi-segment joint system. Each of the nodes in the network acts like local memory relating the input to joint angles and end point. Therefore, there is no need for other supervisory confirmation of result. As the same end point can be reached using several sets of joint angles, the network creates folds which can be used to optimize cost of displacement. Sprouted nodes, which are always in a single fold in the network, learn from repeated randomized motion, allowing reinforcement learning. Therefore, the network is suitable for use in fully autonomous motion control.

3 The Control Network

The hierarchical ARN learns by moving the joints arbitrarily and recording the effective end point location and the excitation values applied to each of the joint control inputs. This is similar to a learning process of a child. Suitability of such network for motion control in various types of joint configurations has been



discussed in [16]. We present details of learning in such networks here. Much like any other ART network, the initial network has no or a very few nodes in the first layer, called the resonator layer (see Fig. 1b). Whenever the output value of the winning node falls below a threshold, a new node is added to the network. The network adds cells as more training data is applied. When a new location is identified, a set of new cells are added to the network. A cell corresponding to the input and effective end point location is added first. Its weights are computed such that the cell resonates (generates maximum output value) when the same input is applied again. Therefore, the cell acts like a long-term memory that will not change over period of time. After the first few resonating cells are added, a set of cells are added in the neighborhood of these cells. Neighbor cells can be added using perturbation of end point or by perturbation of joint angles. Coverage of each of the nodes depends on a single parameter that is adjusted by the cell as shown in Fig. 3. Coverage parameter p depends on the precision and resolution required to control end point location. Higher value of p gives a sharper control.

4 Automated Path Search and Optimization

The network given in Fig. 1b extends the ART-SOM network described in [15] and section above to include the paths of motion. When a new target is to be reached, a traversal through existing neighbors is attempted. As the search progresses, new cells are added to the path layer. Each path is associated with a cost function. The cost is defined by two parameters:

- (a) Total length of the path
- (b) Angles subtended between the sections of path.



Fig. 4 a One segment of joint configuration in x, y, z space, **b** a multi-segment joint using detail shown in (**a**), **c** space coverage of cells in a spherical joint

Acute angles are more expensive in terms of power and hence cost. They are also slow to traverse. For the type of joint given in Fig. 4, the cost function can be written as

$$C = L + s \Sigma c(\pi - a) \tag{1}$$

where *C* is the cost of the path, *L* is the length of the path in terms of segments, *s* is a scaling factor, and *c* is cost of angle a measured in degrees. We use $(\pi - a)$ because angle of π radians between sections implies that there is no deflection in the path, and hence the cost is zero. The cells in the path-layer store the path cost. This information is used by cells in the higher layers to select an appropriate path among several possible paths. New paths are created using ARN type of learning when existing paths are obstructed.

For a given source and destination locations, a path is optimized by reducing the path length. This is achieved at a higher layer by exploring the chord edges between alternating cells. Chord edges reduce cost of path. Repeated occurrence of the same source and destination forces alternate paths to be searched. The best path is obtained from the multiple paths based on the cost function.

Notable advantages of the proposed network are its simplicity and scalability. We are not making any assumptions on the number of joints in the mechanism. Only forward calculations are used. In a physical system, these are available automatically during training. The network is self-learning. End point resolution that can be arbitrarily set as learning parameter is node specific and not common to all nodes. Hence, much like in a biological system, the network learns from the environment continuously, growing with experience over period of time.



Fig. 5 a Formation of edges, b best solution among multiple optimized solutions

5 Implementation and Results

Figure 4a shows a spherical joint with a single segment in $\{x,y,z\}$ space, and Fig. 4b shows a joint system using that type of joints. The goal of moving the joints is to reach a particular location in $\{x,y,z\}$, which can be achieved by a specific set of excitation values to be applied to the joint depending on the degrees of freedom (DoF). Each neuron is set-associative: When training input is given, the endpoint location associated with the given input is stored as a set. When target location (or goal) is given, corresponding excitation values to activate motors at each DoF are emitted. Figure 4c shows the space coverage of cells in a spherical joint. Refer [10] for more details on folds of solutions and the computation of forward displacement. The space covered by each of the nodes is specific to the node itself, which in turn depends on training data.

Figure 5a shows the edges created between the cells for a spherical joint with three segments. Only two inputs (cells represented by large black dots at the center) are given to the network. Cells in black color represent the neighbors created for the inputs. Edges are represented by lines (gray) between two cells.

Multiple paths obtained for a set of source and destination are shown in a single plot as shown in Fig. 5b. Different paths are represented by different colors. Each path in the plot represents optimized path. In Fig. 5b, the path with thick line is the best path obtained among the multiple paths. Best path is determined based on cost function which is dependent on path length and cost angle.

6 Conclusion

A new type of unsupervised multilayered artificial neural network is proposed to search through a workspace and select an optimal path by controlling the joint angles. Combination of neuronal resonance, perturbation, and path optimization in a new way is the special feature of this network. It can handle arbitrary spaces covered by set of joints with large number of DoF. Cellular automata required to implement the path optimizing network is described. Results of simulation using R language are presented. Considering that path optimization can be seen as a generic problem solver, the proposed network can be used in many areas of research, e.g., natural language processing (NLP), scene identification, nonlinear control, etc.

Acknowledgements The authors would like to thank Siddaganga Institute of Technology, Tumakuru, C-Quad, Belagavi and KLE Dr. M S Sheshgiri College of Engineering & Technology, Belagavi for all the support.

References

- 1. Aguero, C.E., Koenig, N., Chen, I., Boyer, H., et al.: Inside the virtual robotics challenge: simulating real-time robotic disaster response. IEEE Trans. Autom. Sci. Eng. **12**(2) (2015)
- 2. Wali, A.: Clojure for Machine Learning. Packt Publishing, Birmingham UK (2014)
- 3. Kumar, S.: Neural Networks: A classroom approach. Tata McGraw-Hill Publishing Co Ltd., New Delhi (2004)
- 4. Tai L., Liu M.: Deep-learning in mobile robotics—from perception to control systems: a survey on why and why not. Online: Cornell University Archives, arXiv:1612.07139v3 [cs.RO], 1 (2017)
- 5. He, W., Ge, W., Li, Y., Liu, Y., Yang, C., Sun, C.: Model identification and control design for a humanoid robot. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern. Syst. **47**(1), 45–57 (2017)
- Ai, J., Funt, B., Shi L.: A new type of ART2 architecture and application to color image segmentation, pp. 89–98. Springer, LNCS 5163, ICANN (2008)
- Yin, H., Allinson, N.M.: Self-organising mixture networks for probability density estimation. IEEE Trans. Neural Networks 12(2), 405–411 (2001)
- Yeo, N.C., Lee, K.H., Venkatesh, Y.V., Ong, S.H.: Colour image segmentation using the self-organizing map and adaptive resonance theory. Image Vision Comput. 23(12), 1060–1079 (2005)
- Faigl, J.: An application of self-organizing map for multirobot multigoal path planning with minmax objective. Comput. Intell. Neurosci. Hindawi, 2016, Article ID 2720630. Available online http://dx.doi.org/10.1155/2016/2720630 (2016)
- Sun, C., He, W., Ge, W., Chang, C.: Adaptive neural network control of Biped robots. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern. Syst. 47(2), 315–326 (2017)
- 11. Benbrahmin, H.: Biped dynamic walking using reinforcement learning, Ph.D. Dissertation, University of New Hampshire (1996)
- Chetlur, S., Woolley, C.: cuDNN: efficient primitives for deep learning. Cornell University archives, arXiv:1410.0759v3 [cs.NE] (2014)
- 13. He, W., David, O., Yin, E.Z., Sun, C.: Neural network control of a robotic manipulator with input deadzone and output constraints. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern. Syst. 46(6) (2016)
- Potlonjak, V., Svetozarevic, B., Jovanovic, K., Holland, O.: The puller-follower control of compliant and non-compliant antagonistic tendon drives in robotic systems. Int. J. Adv. Rob. Syst. 8(5), 143–155 (2011)
- Aparanji, V.M., Wali, U.V., Aparna, R.: A novel neural network structure for motion control in joints. In: ICEECCOT Mysore, Dec 2016, pp. 227–232 (2017) (also available from IEEE Xplore)
- Aparanji, V.M., Wali, U.V., Aparna, R.: Robotic motion control using machine learning techniques. In: 6th IEEE International Conference on Communication and Signal Processing, Melmaravattur, (ICCSP 2017) Apr. 2017, IEEE Xplore (in press)

Data Mining Models for Anomaly Detection Using Artificial Immune System

Vaishali Mehare and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract In this paper, a new technique is used by implementing artificial immune system (AIS). Artificial immune system is inspired by the human immune system (HIS). It has been applied for solving complex computational problem in classification, pattern recognition, and optimization. Proposed method developed a new model for anomaly detection process by negative selection algorithm (NSA) and classification algorithm. NSA algorithm of AIS is based on the principle of self- and nonself-discrimination in the immune system.

Keywords Artificial immune system • Data mining • Negative selection algorithm Classification • Anomaly detection

1 Introduction

Data mining [1] is the activity of extracting relevant information from a huge amount of data. Data mining is a process to take out information and knowledge from a large number of incomplete, fuzzy, random data, and noisy data. Data mining [2] involves following elements transform, extract, and load transaction data onto the data warehouse system. We used classification technique for detecting the anomaly. An anomaly is an abnormality. Anomaly detection also calls outlier

V. Mehare (🖂)

Department of Computer Application, Barkatullah University, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India

e-mail: vaishalimehare18@gmail.com

R. S. Thakur Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_44

detection. Artificial immune system (AIS) is a new technology of computer science. It is inspired by human immune system. The immune system may use to solve the computer virus problem. Applications of artificial immune system are anomaly detection, fault diagnosis, data mining and retrieval, pattern recognition, computer security, robotics, etc. AIS includes the algorithms for solving the computational problems. In this paper, we used the negative selection algorithm.

2 Data Mining

Data mining is a process of filtering the meaningful information from the large database. Data mining [3] consists of four classes of task; they are association rule learning, clustering, classification, and regression. In this paper, the classification techniques are used for anomaly detection. Classification is the supervised learning. An algorithm that implements classification is known as a classifier. Classifier is a supervised function, where the target attribute is class label. It is used after the learning process to classify new data by giving them the best target attribute. In case of anomaly detection, it will classify the data generally into two categories, namely normal or abnormal (Fig. 1).

3 Anomaly Detection

Anomaly detection [4] is the outcome of patterns in a dataset whose actions are not normal on probable. These unpredicted behaviors called anomalies or outliers. Figure 2 shows the mechanism of anomaly detection technique [5].

The data contains of four types of attacks [6]: denial-of-service (DoS), user to root (U2R), remote-to-local (R2L), and probing (Table 1).



Fig. 1 Classification techniques for anomaly detection



Fig. 2 Mechanism of anomaly detection technique

Detection of attack	Means
False alarm rate or False positive (FP)	Number of detected attacks, but it is normal
True positive (TP)	Number of detected attacks, and it is in actuality attack
False negative (FN)	This type of attacks is the aim of intrusion detection systems (IDSs)
True negative (TN)	Number of detected normal instances, and it is really normal

Table 1 Detection of attack [6] can be calculated by the following terms and their meaning

4 Artificial Immune System (AIS)

Artificial immune system (AIS) which is encouraged by the human immune system (HIS) has been applied for solving difficult computational problem in pattern recognition, classification, and optimization. The main task of a human immune system (HIS) is to protect the body from foreign molecules that called antigens. AIS is computational programming that carries out data manipulation, calculation and uses representation methodologies that are based on mechanism of HIS. Computational algorithm of AIS is:

- (1) Clonal selection
- (2) Negative selection algorithm
- (3) Danger theory
- (4) Immune network model.

In this proposed method, negative selection algorithm [5] is used and it is the computational algorithm of self (normal)-/nonself (abnormal)-discrimination. This algorithm generates detector set and monitoring process detector set.

Negative Selection Algorithm [7]

Algorithm

The procedure for negative selection algorithm is as follows: Input S_{seen} = set of seen known self-elements

Output: D = set of generated detectors

Begin Repeat

- Randomly generate potential detectors and place them in a set *P*.
- Determine the affinity of each member of P with each member of the self-set $S_{\text{seen.}}$
- If at least one element in S recognizes a detector in P according to a recognition threshold, then the detector is rejected; otherwise, it is added to the set of available detectors D.
- Until stopping criterion has been met.

End

Detector generation process can be understood by the following chart, where detectors (R) are complement of self-strings (S) which show normal state of the system (Figs. 3 and 4).

In monitoring process, detector set (R) generated in the previous phase is matched with the newly produced string. If this string is present in the detector set, then it can be nonself-elements.





5 Literature Review

Forrest et al. [8]: This paper describes a technique for change detection which is based the creation of T cells in the immune system. This shows how the method applied to the problem of computer viruses. Dasgupta et al. [7]: This presents a technique that is inspired by the negative selection mechanism of the immune system that can detect foreign patterns in the complement (nonself) space. GonZalez and Dasgupta [9]: This paper describes a real-valued representation for the negative selection algorithm and its applications to anomaly detection. Zhengbing et al. [10]: This paper discuss the intrusion detection and comparison of several paper. Tiwari et al. [11]: In this paper, comparison is made in 23 papers for finding out the situation of intrusion detection nowadays.

Lingxi et al. [12]: This paper introduces dynamic anomaly detection algorithm with NSA named as DADAI; it is a generic anomaly detection model. This paper describes the data mining approaches which detect the intrusion in network [13]. Alsharafi and Omar [14]: This paper introduced a detector-generating algorithm to generate effective detectors which lead to improve the standard of NSA, which in turn leads to improve the NSA-based anomaly intrusion detection. Results show that the improved algorithm able to generate more effective detectors and keeping the space and time complexities better than the standard of NSA. Shikha and Jitendra [3]: This is the survey paper. It reviews the various data mining techniques for anomaly detection. Freitas and Timmis [15]: This paper advocates a problem-oriented approach for the design of artificial immune systems (AISs) for data mining.

6 Proposed Methodology

In proposed work, use of negative selection algorithm for discrimination in self (normal)- and nonself (abnormal)- contents and apply the classification model of data mining. Classification is the supervised learning.

Figure 5 shows a new model for anomaly detection process by NSA and classification algorithm by three phases. Phase 1 and Phase 2 are NSA algorithm of AIS, and Phase 3 is classification algorithm of data mining. Phase 1 generates the detector set. In the detector generation process detectors (R) are just complement of self-strings (S) which shows normal state of the system. In the Phase 2 monitoring process, detector set (R) generated in the previous phase is matched with the protected or newly produced string. If this string is present in the detector set, then it can be stated as nonself-elements. In Phase 3, apply the classification algorithm of data mining for anomaly detection in nonself-detected data get by NSA in the



Fig. 5 A new model for anomaly detection process by NSA and classification algorithm

previous two phases. Anomaly detection is classifying the data into two categories normal or abnormal.

The proposed work include the following tasks-The required data will be gathered from the standard data set then artificial immune system and data mining literature will be reviewed after review the training of the data set will be done with method of artificial immune system then apply the classification method of data mining for anomaly detection. Then implementation of the model with random data set will be analysed and result will be evaluated and comparison will be done.

7 Conclusions

Proposed approach developing the model which detects the anomaly using artificial immune system and data mining. In future, this model will also applicable various applications. The expected outcomes of the proposed model will be able to produce a good approximation of the structure of the self-/nonself-space. It will help to improve the anomaly detection accuracy and also improve the NSA's efficiency. Complexity will be observed, and it will be able to achieve high-detection rate and low-false alarm rate, self-learning, and adaption.

References

- 1. Abhya, K.K., Ranjeeta, J., Sumaiya, A.: Data mining techniques for intrusion detection: a review. IJARCCE 3(6), 6938–6942 (2014)
- Tammayee, S.S., Suhasini, A.: A survey and comparative study of different data mining techniques for implementation of intrusion detection system. INPRESSCO Int. J. Curr. Eng. Technol. 4(3), 1288–1291 (2014)
- Shikha, A., Jitendra, A.: Survey on anomaly detection using data mining techniques. In: 19th International Conference on Knowledge Based Intelligent Information and Engineering System, pp. 708–713. Elsevier (2015)
- 4. Nema, A., Tiwari, B., Tiwari, V.: Improving accuracy for intrusion detection through layered approach using support vector machine with feature reduction. In: Proceedings of the ACM Symposium on Women in Research 2016, pp. 26–31, ACM (2016)
- Chandola, V., Banerjee, A., Kumar, V.: Anomaly detection: a survey. ACM Comput. Surv. (CSUR) 41(3) (2009)
- Sushil, K.C., Vineet, R., Nirupama, T.: Anomaly detection in network using data mining techniques. Int. J. Emerg. Technol. Adv. Eng. 2(5), 1–7 (2012)
- Dasgupta, D., Ji, Z., Gonzalez, F.: Artificial Immune System (AIS) research in the last five years. In: Congress Evolutionary Computation (CEC'03), vol. 1, pp. 123–130 (2003)
- Forrest, S., Perelson, A.S., Allen, L., Cherukuri, R.: Self-nonself discrimination in a computer. In: Research in Security and Privacy 1994, Proceedings, pp. 202–292 1994 IEEE Computer Society Symposium (1994)
- 9. Gonzalez, F., Dasgupta, D., Kozma, R.: Combining negative selection an classification techniques for anomaly detection, IEEE (2007)

- Zhengbing, H., Ji, Z., Ping, M.: A novel anomaly detection algorithm based on real-valued negative selection system. In: IEEE Workshop on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, pp. 499–502 (2008)
- 11. Tiwari, K.K., Tiwari, S., Yadav, S.: Anomaly intrusion detection using data mining techniques. Int. J. Adv. Comput. Technol. 2(4), 21–25 (2010), ISSN-2319-7900
- Lingxi, P., Chen, W., Xieh, D., Gao, Y., Liang, C.: Dynamically real-time anomaly detection algorithm with immune negative selection. Int. J. Appl. Math. Info. Sci. 7(3), 1157–1163 (2013)
- Kalarani, P., Brunda, S.S.: A survey on efficient data mining techniques for network intrusion detection system (IDS). IJARCCE Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. 3(9), 8028–8031 (2014). ISSN 2278-1021
- 14. Alsharafi, W.M., Omar, M.N.: A detector generating algorithm for intrusion detection inspired by AIS. ARPN J. Eng. Appl. Sci. **10**(2) (2015). ISSN-1819-6608
- Freitas, A.A., Timmis, J.: Revisiting the foundations of artificial immune systems for data mining. IEEE Trans. Evol. Comput. 11(4), 521–540 (2007)
- Swati, P., Nipin, G.: Basics of artificial immune system and its application. IJSAE Int. J. Sci. Res. Educ. 3(5), 3509–3516 (2015)
- 17. Jinquan, Z., Xiaojie, L., Caiming, L., Lingxi, P., Feixian, S.: A self-adaptive negative selection algorithm used for anomaly detection. Prog. Nat. Sci **19**(2), 261–266 (2009)
- Zheng, X., Zhou, Y., Fang, Y.: The dual negative selection algorithm based on pattern recognition receptor theory and its application in two class data classification. J. Comput. Sci. 8(8), 1951–1959 (2013)
- Zeng, J.: Computer malicious executables detection based on real-valued negative selection algorithm. Int. J. Appl. Math. Info. Sci. 9(2), 1089–1094 (2015)
- 20. Daudi, J.: An overview of application of artificial immune system in swarm robotic, research article, ARA. Adv. Robot. Autom. an open access journal 4(1) 2015, ISSN-2168-9695
- 21. Markowska-Kaczmar, U., Kordas, B.: Negative selection based method for multi-class problem classification. In: Sixth International Conference on Intelligent Systems Design and Applications, IEEE (2006)
- 22. Dasgupta, D., Majumdar, N.S.: Anomaly detection in multidimensional data using negative selection algorithm, IEEE (2002)
- 23. Dasguptaa, D., Yua, S., Ninob, F.: Recent advances in artificial immune systems: models and applications. Appl. Soft Comput. **11**, 1574–1587 (2011)
- García-Teodoroa, P., Díaz-Verdejoa, J., Maciá-Fernándeza, G., Vázquezb, E.: Anomaly-based network intrusion detection techniques, systems and challenges. Comput. Secur. 28(1), 18–28 (2009)
- Dasgupta, D.: Advances in artificial immune systems. IEEE Comput. Intell. Mag. 1(4), 40–49 (2006)

A Framework for Weblog Data Analysis Using HIVE in Hadoop Framework

Pushpendra Kumar and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract Web usage mining is the application of web mining, which performs analysis of user click-stream data. As growth of Internet users is increasing rapidly hence to gather information, analyze user behavior from click stream can be helpful to recommendation system and intelligent e-commerce applications. This paper presents the analysis of weblog data using Apache Hive which is Hadoop ecosystem.

Keywords Web mining \cdot Web log analysis \cdot Hadoop \cdot MapReduce Hive

1 Introduction

Nowadays, World Wide Web is the most effective and interactive ways of broadcasting information which leads to unexpected growth of web logs. In today's digital competitive business environment, web service providers are enthusiastic to know whether they provide the best service/product to customers or not. Web service providers should require knowing how to make their web application attractive to buyers and how to enhance advertising strategies to attract them [1]. Answer of such types of question can be found by analysis of log files. Log file is a file that stores all the activities performed by the web user. Web mining is the application of data mining on web data which is used for extraction of exciting and constructive facts and inherent information from actions related to the WWW [2].

P. Kumar $(\boxtimes) \cdot R$. S. Thakur

Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: pushpendra7589@gmail.com

R. S. Thakur e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_45

Web mining can be categorized into web content mining, web structure mining, and web usages mining [3, 4]. Data in the web pages that are designed to convey to the users is called web content. The process of extracting useful information from the web content is called web content mining. Web structure mining uses hyperlinks between websites to gain information. Web usages mining focuses on development of technique that could predict user behavior from web logs. There is a problem in analysis of web log is that a single computer cannot manipulate weblog adequately to meet the demands of the people [5, 6]. A Hadoop-based weblog analysis method uses Hadoop ecosystem to process all the aggregated logs as well as to carry out a different parallelization study that resolves the challenges of traditional setups, such as simultaneous data handling and collection of data, also reduces the congestion efficiency of computing power as well as depository volume, saves the processing time, and increases the effectiveness [5].

2 Related Work

Some author has worked in order to know any existing queries of organization such as no. of hits per hour, top most visitors of web site, server error, and visit stay length.

Neha and Jha [7] have presented the study of web access log data using the automated web analyzer tool called web log expert to know the behavior of users who access an astrology web site.

Brijesh and Ghanshyam [8] have presented the analysis of web usage mining data for which web log analyzer tool "Deep Log Analyzer" is used to find out ideal information from particular server and also developed an ontology which consists the relation among efficient web apart of web usage mining.

Pushkar et al. [9] have proposed a system which is useful for processing of web server logs that can help in examining traffic on the different web site and help developers of the web site to make changes accordingly as per results of analysis using Hadoop ecosystem Flume.

Milind et al. [10] have proposed generic log analyzer using Hadoop MapReduce framework that can analyze different kinds of log files such as e-mail logs, web logs, firewall logs, server logs, call data logs.

Vinod and Ramjeevan [11] have proposed a paper that will help to analyze the set of tools currently available and help to hook the right tool for analyzing logs of a particular organization.

Jaya and Alagarsamy [12] have analyzed web log expert tool which will give you information about your web site visitors: accessed files, paths through the site, activity statistics, information about referring pages, search engines, browsers, operating systems.

3 Hadoop MapReduce

Hadoop is a distributed software framework which is written in Java majorly used for storing and processing of huge amount of data and works on top of commodity hardware [13]. It is an open-source framework which is developed by the Apache Software Foundation [14]. It is designed to work with from a single server with thousands of computational independent computers and petabytes of data. Hadoop is consisting of mainly two parts:

3.1. HDFS

3.2. MapReduce Framework

3.1 Hadoop Distributed File System (HDFS)

The Hadoop file system is developed using distributed file system design [5, 15], and it is responsible for storing huge amount of unstructured data. Unlike other distributive systems, HDFS is highly fault-tolerant because HDFS replicates files for a number of times and re-replicates automatically for that data block on nodes that have failed and designed to run on commodity hardware. With the help of HDFS, we can create, copy, and delete, but cannot update a file. The architecture of HDFS is shown in Fig. 1, which consists of three elements.



Fig. 1 Architecture of HDFS

Name node: The name node is software that can be run on commodity hardware. There is only one name node in the cluster. The system having the name node performs as the master server, and it stores all the metadata for the file system. This information maintained by the name node is needed for fetching data spread within the Hadoop cluster across many computers.

Data node: The data node is commodity hardware where the actual data resides. A data node is present for each node in a Hadoop cluster. Data nodes execute reading and writing operations upon file setups, as per user request. Data nodes carry out the activities like creating a block, deleting a block, as well as replicating a block as per name node command. All data nodes send a special signal called heartbeat to the name node in every 3 s to say that they are alive. If the name node does not receive this signal from any data node for 10 min, then it considers that data node to be dead and name node initiates replication of blocks which were hosted on that data node.

Block: Hadoop distributed file system stores the data in terms of blocks. A block is the smallest data quantity which is favorable for reading and writing by HDFS. By default, the size of a block is 64 MB. It is possible to extend it if we want to implement a modification while configuring HDFS.

3.2 MapReduce

MapReduce is a core component of the Hadoop framework for easily writing applications which process huge amounts of data in parallel by dividing a job into a set of an independent job in a reliable and fault-tolerant manner. The architecture of MapReduce is shown in Fig. 2.



Fig. 2 Architecture of MapReduce

Map stage: The job of mapper function is to process the input data; the map function is written by the user. The input file is passed to the mapper function line by line and produces a set of key/value pairs.

Shuffle and sort phase: The shuffling is the process by which the system performs transferring data from the mappers to the reducer. This phase works after the Map phase and before the beginning of the Reduce phase. In other ways, the shuffle is called the heart of MapReduce.

Reduce phase: The Reduce function is also written by the user. This function receives the various results and merges all intermediate values associated with the same key to answer the larger problem that the master node needs to solve. No reduction can begin until maping is completed.

4 Proposed Approach

In our proposed approach, we are using Apache Hive for log data analysis. Hive is a data warehousing technique which is constructed on top of the Hadoop to manage and process structural data. To work with Hive, there is no need to learn any additional language. It works with SQL-like queries called Hive Query Language (HQL).

In Fig. 3, we have raw data, and this data is in the unstructured format, so we cannot perform any analysis or apply any technique on this data; to overcome this problem, first of all, we have to preprocess this raw data and convert it into our desired format. Here, we are using some preprocessing technique for converting raw data into a structured format. After preprocessing the raw data, we are using Apache Hive for analysis of the structured weblog data and obtaining results as a user and number of times visited by that user to the web site. We are also determining the top K visitor count of the web site.

5 Conclusion

This paper presents a detailed look about the weblog analysis using the Apache Hive, a Hadoop ecosystem. Apache Hive works for heavy structured datasets giving efficient results in less time than other weblog analysis tool. This result helps a business organization to recommend a new product to the top K visitor of the web site. In the future, we can analyze different parameters of weblog such as time spent by a user on a particular page, username, and referrer. Our proposed approach is beneficial for advertisement or recommendation for the particular user.



Fig. 3 Framework for weblog analysis

References

- 1. Lavanya, K.S., Srinivasa, R.: Customer behavior analysis of web server logs using Hive in Hadoop framework. Int. J. Adv. Netw. Appl. (IJANA), 409–412
- Rosli, O., Abu, O. M.T., Zainatul, S.A.: Web usage mining: a review of recent works. In: Information and Communication Technology for The Muslim World (ICT4M). IEEE, Malaysia, pp. 1–5 (2014)
- 3. Vinod, K., Ramjeevan, S.T.: Exploring behavior of visitors activity at granular level from web log data using deep log analyzer. Int. J. Syst. Softw. Eng. 4, 16–26 (2016)

- Shaily, G.L., Mehul, P.B., Darshak, B.M.: Web usage mining using association rule mining on clustered data for pattern discovery. Int. J. Data Mining Tech. Appl 02, 141–150 (2013)
- Pooja, D.S., Debnath, B., Tai-hoon, K.: Hadoop based weblog analysis: a review. Int. J. Softw. Eng. Appl. 10, 13–30 (2016)
- Bina, K., Ankit K., Bhaskar, P., RH G.: Big data: mining of log file through Hadoop. In: International Conference on Human Computer Interactions (ICHCI). IEEE, Chennai, pp. 1–7 (2013)
- Neha, G., Jha, C.K.: Analyzing users behavior from web access logs using automated log analyzer tool. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 62, 29–33 (2013)
- Brijesh, B., Ghanshyam, S.T.: user behavior analysis from web log using log analyzer tool. IJCSNS 1, 41–52 (2013)
- 9. Pushkar, G., Bhavika, G., Smruti, I., Seema, Y.: web server log processing using Hadoop. Int. J. Res. Eng. Appl. Manag. (IJREAM) 1 (2016)
- Milind, B., Vikas, N.: Generic log analyzer using Hadoop MapReduce framework. Int. J. Emerg. Technol. Adv. Eng. 3, 603–609 (2013)
- Vinod, K., Ramjeevan, S.T.: A Brief investigation on web usage mining tools. Saudi J. Eng. Technol., pp. 1–11 (2017)
- Jaya, V.K., Alagarsamy, K.: Analyzing server log file using web log expert in web, data mining. Int. J. Sci. Environ. Technol. 2, 1008–1016 (2013)
- 13. Dhruba, B.: The Hadoop distributed file system: architecture and design. Hadoop Project Website (2007)
- 14. Hadoop Tutorial: https://www.tutorialspoint.com/hadoop/hadoop_hdfs_overview.htm
- Madhvaraj, M.S., Manjaiah, D.H.: Data security in Hadoop distributed file system. In: International Conference on Emerging Technological Trends (ICETT), Kollam, pp. 1–5 (2016)

Sentiment Analysis Using Lexicon and Machine Learning-Based Approaches: A Survey

Binita Verma and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract Sentiment analysis is the process of automatic identification of people's orientation toward individuals, products, services, issues, and events. Task of sentiment analysis requires mining of textual data through natural language processing (NLP). Text method of communication like tweets blog is necessary to examine the emotion of user by studying the input text. Sentiment analysis of social networking sites is a way to identify the user's opinion. Determination of opinion and strength of the sentiment of user toward entity is growing need of current times. In this paper, a survey on sentiment analysis is done. Text reviews, techniques, lexicon, and machine learning approaches are discussed.

Keywords Sentiment analysis • Machine learning technique • Lexicon-based technique • Hybrid technique

1 Introduction

Social media has turned into another correspondence channel between consumers and organizations. From social networking sites like Twitter, Facebook, Tumblr users are provided with a platform to publish and express their emotions, views, and likings about various topics, people, product, and services. Traditionally, text and reviews are collected through questions are prepared by researcher. This method of data collection was time consuming and difficult to manage. With the advancement of technology and Internet, consumer is using social media to provide feedback and comments in form of unstructured text. Opinions expressed in social media can be

B. Verma (🖂)

BU, Bhopal, India e-mail: vinu_v05@rediffmail.com

R. S. Thakur Department of Computer Application and Mathematics, Maulana Azad National Intitute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

441

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_46

classified to determine the orientation (negative, positive, neutral) of the posted text. Sentiment strength and intensity of the post is determined with the aim to identify opinion and emotion of the user about a specific product or service. To analyze the text and reviews, sentiment analysis is used.

Social networking sites are required to keep customers happy to overcome the competition and retain them. One way to achieve customer satisfaction is to be able to present and display the products of customer's interests, inform them about upcoming sale on products of customer's interests, suggest them with new products similar to user's preference studied on social sites. The contents of the social Web are dynamic and quickly changing to reflect the social and emotional ups and downs of users [1].

Recently, one of the most popular sources of personal opinion about any topic people or product is blog. As the demand of internet increases, the blog pages are also growing at a great rate. For sentiment analysis, blogs are used as a source of opinion available in social Webs. For a consumer review sites are helpful to speculate about the product or services which is available on the internet [2].

Nowadays, users spend their time on social media sites like Twitter, Orkut, Tumblr, MySpace to create short messages to be posted that can be used as data source for sentiment classification.

2 Related Work

Process flow of sentiment analysis is shown in Fig. 1. Information obtained from various papers that are related to sentiment analysis.

Hanen and Salma [3] suggested linguistic approach of sentiment classification by using lexicon words. Large data corpus was collected from using Facebook API. They demonstrated automatic technique for compiling and collecting words in



corpus into positive and negative dictionaries. They updated the dictionary by exploiting emotion symbols like emoticons, acronyms, and exclamation words.

Augustniak et al. [4] presented fast and efficient approach for extracting lexicon using bag of words (Bow) for sentiment determination. They combined the word frequency measure approach to build lexicon with ensemble method, exploiting the efficiency provided by machine learning, and performance provided by lexicon-based methods.

Dang et al. [5] proposed a framework with combination of machine learning and lexicon-based approach for sentiment classification to improve the performance of sentiment classification.

Goodarzi et al. [6] proposed lexicon-based framework for sentiment analysis of citation on research contents. They determined sentiment orientation, polarity, and strength. They also compared the performance of SentiWordNet, Bing Liu, and AFINN lexica for PubMed schema-based research contents.

Liu et al. [7] presented scalable implementation of Naive Bayes algorithm to analyze sentiment sentences of millions of movie reviews. They build big data analyzing system using simple mapreduce analyzing jobs and workflow controller (WFC), user terminal, result collector, and data parser.

3 Sentiment Analysis

Sentiment analysis is a way to determining whether the given sentence or document is positive negative or neutral. It derives the opinion or attitude of a speaker. Sentiment analysis aims to determine the polarity of users opinion on a certain topic or a whole document.

Sentiment text available on social networking sites is composed of 3 Os [8]

- Opinion Holder: User who provides his view/opinion.
- Object: Entity about which view is presented.
- Opinion: Actual view present in form of text.

3.1 Techniques of Sentiment Classification

Sentiment classification [9] also known as the polarity classification of identifying and designating of certain opinion based on the polarity such as positive or negative opinion. A sentiment analysis is a technique of analyzing and studying the subjective information from large texts.

Technically, following are ways to perform sentiment analysis [10-12].

3.1.1 Machine Learning (ML) Approach

These learning approaches are based on building classifiers from labeled instances of textual posts. They perform well for the domain on which they are trained.

Machine learning can be divided into two approaches [12].

a. Supervised learning

The supervised learning approaches use labeled training documents. Supervised learning is based on automatic text classification. A labeled training set with pre-defined category is used. A classification model builds to predict the class of document based on pre-defined category [12, 13].

Supervised learning algorithms are [13].

- 1. Probabilistic classifiers like Naïve Bayes, Bayesian network maximum entropy.
- 2. Linear classifiers determine good separators with can best separate the space into different classes. Most famous linear classifiers are support vector machine (SVM) and neutral network.
- 3. Rule-based classifiers divide the data into set of rule. Rule in the form of "IF condition THEN conclusion" is generated during the training phase. Decision rules classification method classifies documents to annotated categories.
- 4. Decision tree classifiers build a hierarchical tree-like structure with true/false queries based on categorization of training document.

b. Unsupervised Learning

Unlike supervised learning approaches, unsupervised learning approaches do not depend on the domain and topic of training data. Unsupervised learning approaches overcome the difficulty of collecting and creating labeled training data.

3.1.2 Lexicon-Based Approach

Lexicon-based sentiment analysis of text is a data analysis task performed by employing opinion words and phrases with no prior knowledge Opinion bearing words are compiled and collected. Positive and negative words along with opinion phrases are collectively called opinion lexicon. Lexicon-based approach used lexicon and unlabeled data [14]. Words in the text are evaluated based on opinion lexicon to determine their orientation and henceforth the sentiment of the text. Opinion lexicon generation is crucial to lexicon-based sentiment analysis process. Generation of opinion lexicon is generally performed using one of the three approaches [12, 13].

a. Manual Approach—Opinion words are collected manually based on individuals domain knowledge and language understanding. This is a time-consuming process. This approach is mostly combined with automated approaches to improve on mistakes done by automated approaches.
- b. Dictionary-Based Approach—Opinion words with known orientation are collected from lexicographical resources like online dictionary. It uses synonyms, antonyms, and hierarchies in opinion lexicons to determine word sentiments. Since there is no knowledge of domain, dictionary-based approaches have limitations on identifying context-specific sentiment. The dictionary used may be WordNet, SentiWordNet, secticNet, sentifull, and others [15].
- c. Corpus-Based Approach—Corpus-based approach exploits the syntactic pattern of co-occurrence words along with opinion words to identify and compile opinion words in large corpus. Corpus-based approach eliminates limitation of context-specific classification of opinion words in dictionary-based approach. However, dictionary-based techniques are more efficient. Corpus-based approach used labeled data [16].

3.1.3 Hybrid Approach

Hybrid technique is the combination of both lexicon and machine learning approaches. Researchers proved that the combination of both the approaches gives improved performance of classification [17]. The advantage of hybrid approach is it makes the detection and measurement of sentiment at the concept level, and high accuracy from a powerful supervised learning algorithm [18] (Table 1).

Name of the technique	Sub-technique	Approaches	Type of data	Pros & cons
Machine learning technique	Supervised technique	Naive Bayes SVM Maximum entropy	All data is labeled and the algorithm learn to predict the output from the input data	Easily create trained model for given purpose
		Bayesian network	Labeled be costl	Labeled data could be costly due to this
	Unsupervised technique	Neural network	All data is unlabeled and the	applicability of new data low
		Semantic orientation	algorithm learn to inherent structure from the input data	

Table 1 Sentiment analysis techniques and their approaches

(continued)

Name of the technique	Sub-technique	Approaches	Type of data	Pros & cons
Lexicon-based technique		Manual approaches	Lexicon and optionally on	Covered wide range of terms
			unlabeled data	
		Dictionary based	Lexicon and optionally on unlabeled data	Lot of words in a lexicon and assign sentiment scores to
		Corpus based	Labeled data	each word
Hybrid technique		Combination of machine learning and lexicon-based approaches	Labeled data and lexicon, optionally with unlabeled data	Concept-level measurement of sentiment and lesser sensitivity to change in topic domain
				Noisy data

Table 1 (continued)

4 Conclusion

This survey paper presented an overview on the various classification techniques, and their methods of sentiment analysis. Every kind of classification techniques has its own advantages and disadvantages. Machine learning techniques like supervised learning methods are better than unsupervised learning methods. In future, we have analyzed various machine learning algorithms can be applied in datasets which can analyze the sentiments.

References

- 1. Rodriguez, C., Grivolla, J., Codina, J.: A hybrid framework for scalable opinion Mining in Social Media. In: Proceeding of the Workshop on Semantic Analysis in Social Media (2012)
- 2. Priya Mohana, R.: Sentiment Analysis and Opinion mining using SentiwordNet: A Survey (2015)
- 3. Hanen, A., Salma, J.: Dynamic construction of dictionaries for sentiment classification. In: Third International Conference on Cloud and Green Computing (CGC), Karlsruhe (2013)
- 4. Augustniak, L., Kajdanowicz,T., et al.: Simple is better? Lexicon based ensemble sentiment classification beats supervised methods. In: IEEE/ACM International Conference on Advances in Social Networks Analysis and Mining (ASONAM), Beijing (2014)
- 5. Dang, Y., Zhang, Y., Chen, H.: A lexicon-enhanced method for sentiment classification: an experiment on online product reviews. IEEE Intell. Syst. **25**(4), 46–53 (2009)
- Goodarzi, M., Mahmoudi, M., Zamani, R.: A framework for sentiment analysis on schema-based research content via lexical analysis. In: 7th International Symposium on Telecommunications (IST), Tehran (2014)
- Liu, B., Blasch, E., Chen, Y., Shen, D.: Scalable sentiment classification for big data analysis using Naïve Bayes Classifier. In: IEEE International Conference on Big Data, Silicon Valley, CA (2013)

- 8. Yongzehng, Z., Dan, S., Catherine, B.: Sentiment analysis in Practice, Dec (2011)
- 9. Zhou, X., Tao, X., Yong, J., Yang, Z.: Sentiment analysis on tweets for social events. In: Proceedings of the 2013 IEEE 17th International Conference on Computer Supported Cooperative Work in Design (2013)
- Bing, L., Lei, Z.: A Survey of Opinion Mining and Sentiment Analysis. Springer, pp. 415– 463 (2012)
- 11. Hailong, Z., Wenyan, G., Bo, J.: Machine Learning and Lexicon Based Methods for Sentiment Classification, IEEE, vol. 11, pp. 262–265 (2014)
- Walaa, M., Ahmed, H., Korashy, H.: Sentiment analysis algorithms and applications: a survey. Ain Shams Eng. J. 5(4), 1093–1113 (2013)
- 13. Baharum, B., Lam, H.L., Khairullah, K.: A review of machine learning algorithms for text-documents classification. J. Adv. Inf. Technol. 1(1), 4–20 (2010)
- 14. Wan, X.: Using Bilingual knowledge and ensemble technique for unsupervised Chinese sentiment analysis. In: Proceedings of the Conference on Empirical Methods in Natural Language Processing. Association for Computational Linguistics, pp. 553–561 (2008)
- 15. Hardeniya, T., Borikar, D.A.: Dictionary based approach to sentiment analysis—a review. In: IJAEMS: Open Access International Journal, vol. 2(5). Infogain Publication (2016)
- Ye, Q., Zhang, Z., Law, R.: Sentiment classification of online reviews to travel destinations by supervised machine learning approaches. Expert Syst. Appl. 36, 6527–6535 (2009). https:// doi.org/10.1016/j.eswa.2008.07.035
- Sindhwani, V, Melville, P.: Document-word co-regularization for semi-supervised sentiment analysis. In: Eight IEEE International Conference on Data Mining, 2008.ICDM 08, pp. 1025–1030. IEEE (2008)
- D'Andrea, A., Ferri, F., Grifoni, P., Guzzo, T.: Approaches, tools and applications for sentiment analysis implementation. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975-8887) 125(3) (2015)

A Survey on Hyperspectral Image Segmentation Approaches with the Integration of Numerical Techniques

Satish Kumar Soni, Ramjeevan Singh Thakur and Anil Kumar Gupta

Abstract Technological advancements in various sectors of science and IT-enabled services have broadened the spectrum and quantum of data in very large scale. The picture is even more furious than assumptions, and a huge volume of static and dynamic data is being produced every second by various means such as air traffic control systems, remote sensing and GPS satellites, social media, imaging techniques used in medical radiology and so many other datasets in the form of texts, images, audios, videos, etc. Same way, a very rich dataset is generated by ultra-sensitive electronic sensors which are used in modern imaging systems, known as hyperspectral images. This data may give variety of information, useful for solving the problems of real world, but gathering or extracting meaningful information from that much data are as difficult as 'getting the needle from a havstack.' Machine learning approaches have been proven to be useful for analyzing large datasets of various types and formats. This paper is an honest effort of presenting a comprehensive survey of various machine learning approaches like clustering along with numerical methods used by researchers worldwide for analyzing hyperspectral image data.

Keywords Machine learning • Datasets • Hyperspectral images Numerical techniques

S. K. Soni (🖂) · A. K. Gupta

Department of Computer Science and Applications, Barkatullaha University, Bhopal, India e-mail: satishkumarsoni15@gmail.com

A. K. Gupta e-mail: akgupta_bu@yahoo.co.in

R. S. Thakur Department of Mathematics and Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Intitute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_47

1 Introduction

The pace of revolution in information technology has changed the way of communications among persons, devices, human-machine and cloud computing and also drastically changed the way of using IT resources. Now, the world is full of bulk data of homogenous and heterogeneous nature. Since, storage of huge datasets is not an issue because of easy availability of economical storage devices and various free cloud storages available in the market like Google drive, Wuala, Zoolz, OneDrive, and Rackspace. However, analyzing these huge datasets is a big issue nowadays.

Hyperspectral images are the resources of a very rich dataset which is generated by ultra-sensitive electronic sensors that are used in modern imaging systems, known as hyperspectral images. Hyperspectral imaging gathers and processes knowledge from almost all of the electromagnetic spectrum. The main purpose of hyperspectral imaging is to obtain the band for each pixel in the image of a scene, with the purpose of finding things, identifying materials or detecting processes [1, 2]. It is figured that hyperspectral sensors gather information as a set of 'images.' Every part of image characterizes a fine wavelength range of the electromagnetic spectrum, also identified as a spectral band. These 'images' are combined to form a three-dimensional (a, b, λ) hyperspectral data cube for processing and exploration, where a and b represent two spatial dimensions of the scene of an image, and λ represents the spectral dimension [3]. This type of data may give variety of information, useful for solving the problems of farming, eye care, food processing, mineralogy, surveillance, astronomy, biological imaging, environmental science, and other real world, but gathering or extracting meaningful information from that much data are as difficult. A very important task in hyperspectral data processing is the segmentation of spectral images without any loss of generic information. Various researchers have discussed about the use of clustering techniques for segmentation of hyperspectral images [4–6].

Clustering approaches can be used in two ways: Supervised learning which is based on number of clusters to be generated from the datasets is predefined; in unsupervised learning or probabilistic learning, the number of clusters to be generated is not decided in advance, and author in [7] has discussed about the use of unsupervised clustering with an application to hyperspectral images. In [8], author has presented a brief analysis of various area in which clustering algorithms can be used to draw useful information. Whereas in [9], authors have presented an approach using weighted features for cluster space analysis using HyMap data. In [10], authors have tried to investigate data mining-based techniques for processing and analyzing the data for useful information extractions, and for better results and accuracy, least squares method has been proposed for clustering approach as least square which is applicable on most of the datasets available today. This paper will try to explore various spectral image segmentation approaches with the integration of numerical methods in analysis of hyperspectral images for efficient classification and extraction of knowledge.

2 Hyperspectral Image Processing

Hyperspectral images produced by various sources are very useful in research areas like pattern matching, computer vision, information retrieval, and image processing (Remote Sensing). High spectral images are usually images of high wavelength which is recorded from visible wavelength to infrared wavelength capturing all together hundreds of spectral bands (channels) [6, 9]. These images are different from usual images captured from mobile camera or other camera devices, whereas the processing of normal images is simple task, high spectral image processing is bit complicated. The process of normal image processing depicted in Fig. 1 and the process of hyperspectral image processing as a framework of IT-based hyperspectral image processing are depicted in Fig. 2.

For capturing hyperspectral images, sensor-based network is used, and image datasets collected by the sensor are represented as vector of specific wavelength [6]. Presently, hyperspectral images are used in various areas like military application, geological sciences, and hydrological sciences. Figure 2 depicts the framework of IT-based hyperspectral image processing [6, 10, 11].

Steps in Processing the Hyperspectral Images

- 1. Input from various sources captured by sensors placed at different locations.
- 2. Image datasets obtained from sensor are placed in different bands.
- 3. Dimensionality reduction approaches are applied to these bands for reducing band size.
- 4. Reduced band sizes are merged or fused, and a single image is obtained.







5. Partitioning the pixels of image so obtained into multiple regions based on their similarity in features.

Analysis of hyperspectral images is very useful in many aspects like early detection of stages of complicated diseases, accurate weather forecasting, mineral detections, and target detection in defense sectors [6].

Dimensionality Reduction Approaches

In fact, hyperspectral datasets contain thousands of bands consisting of fine spectral resolution and spatial information and in this large volume of all of the bands are not usually useful and also sometimes, it is difficult to store these bulk datasets.

Here, dimensionality reduction techniques are used to reduce the dimension of such datasets by removing redundant band using supervised and unsupervised approaches. Various metrics are used for selecting useful bands among these huge datasets [6].

Euclidean Distance

Since data collected by sensor are represented in the form of vector, Euclidean distance can be applied for finding related Bands for selection.

Say A and B be two vectors then Euclidean distance between is given as

$$E_{\text{Euclidean}} = \sqrt{\sum_{k=1} (A_i - B_i)^2}$$

where A_i and B_i denote various points, and lesser the distance among vectors indicates closeness of bands for merging as single band.

Spectral Angle Mapper and Spectral correlation Mapper

It is an approach in which an angle is measured between two vectors *A* and *B*, and spectral correlation mapper is a correlation measure which measures the strength of the linear relationships between two vectors.

3 Clustering Approaches for Segmentation

Clustering techniques partition the data into certain number of clusters by taking into account internal homogeneity and external separation, which means that the pattern in same cluster should be similar to each other while pattern in different cluster should be dissimilar [8]. For measurement of similarity and dissimilarity measures among the clusters, various measures have been used which include Minkowski distance, Euclidean distance, Pearson's correlation, cosine similarity, Mahalanobis distance, and point symmetry distance [4, 5, 8] etc.

Various clustering approaches have been used on high- and small-dimensional datasets. For high-dimensional datasets, various algorithms like CURE, DENCLUE, FC, CLIQUE, OptiGrid, and ORCLUS are usually used, and K-means clustering, hierarchal clustering, BIRCH, DBSCAN, and CLARANS are used for small-dimensional datasets [8]. Among numerical techniques, Runge–Kutta technique has been used to reduce the gap between two clusters so that Euclidean distance metrics give better results. Similarly, bisection methods have been used in integration with clustering algorithms to find clusters falling in same intervals. Brief details of data mining techniques in integration with numerical techniques are depicted in Table 1.

From the table, we analyze that most numerical techniques have been used in classification of various datasets.

In Table 2, brief description about the data mining techniques in hyperspectral images used is given.

Techniques	Datasets	Efficiency
Multivariable linear regression	Numerical and nominal data	Reducing a high-dimensional feature space to a smaller dimension still retains significant characteristic knowledge
Transformation approach for Boolean attributes	Boolean datasets	Boolean attributes do not disclose any private information
Classification by using fuzzy rules	Students datasets of various universities	More efficient than others in terms of performance
Human behavior modeling and data mining to predict human errors	Numerical datasets	Outperformed benchmarking scenarios

 Table 1 Data mining techniques in integration with numerical techniques [12, 13]

Techniques	Datasets	Efficiency
2-D extension to singular spectrum analysis	Hyperspectral imaging datasets	Effective spatial-spectral feature extraction and dimension reduction in HS
Compressive sampling of multichannel signal datasets	Acquisition of the hyperspectral images	An accurate, low cost, and fast recovery
Probabilistic graphical model	Hyperspectral image (HIS)	Significant improvements over existing approaches in classification

 Table 2 Data mining techniques in hyperspectral images [14–16]

The table depicts that in analysis of hyperspectral images, numerical techniques have played very crucial role by improving the result. The comparison is made on the basis of efficiency of different techniques and applicable datasets. There are different parameters which can be obtained from different hyperspectral images for identifying numerous components and the objects in images.

4 Conclusion

In this paper, we have presented an approach to deal with hyperspectral datasets using clustering algorithms and the process of analysis is divided into two stages, which includes dimensionality reduction and segmentation. In fact, image fusion techniques, which is not mentioned, also come as a part of the process. It has been seen that integration of numerical techniques has improved the cluster analysis process. We have seen that in classification of various types of datasets, numerical techniques have improved the result obtained. We propose to integrate numerical techniques in hyperspectral images as correct and efficient prediction of hyperspectral datasets that can result in useful decision making in various segments depending upon types of hyperspectral images.

References

- 1. Chang, C.I.: Hyperspectral Imaging: Techniques for Spectral Detection and Classification. Springer Science & Business Media (2003)
- 2. Grahn, H., Geladi, P.: Techniques and applications of hyperspectral image analysis, 1st edn. Wiley, Chichester (2007)
- Spectral Imaging and Linear Unmixing. Nikon's Microscopyu. http://www.microscopyu.com/ articles/confocal/spectralimaging.html
- Jain, A.K., Flynn, P.J., Murty, M.N.: Data clustering: a review. ACM Comput. Surv. 31(3), 264–323 (1999)
- Jain, A.K.: Data clustering: 50 years beyond K-means. Pattern Recogn. 31(8), 651–666 (2010)

- Teja, B.R., Venkatarao, K.: A framework for hyperspectral image segmentation. In: CSI Communications, pp. 28–29 (2016)
- 7. Cariou, C., Chehdi, K.: Unsupervised nearest neighbors clustering with application to hyperspectral images. IEEE J. Sel. Topics Signal Process. 9(6), 1105–1116 (2015)
- 8. Xu, R.: Survey of clustering algorithms. IEEE Trans. Neural Netw. 16(3) (2005)
- Theam, F., Xiuping, J., Pham, T.D.: Weighted features for cluster space classification of hyperspectral images. In: 4th Workshop on Hyperspectral Image and Signal Processing (WHISPERS), pp. 2–4 (2012)
- Kalavathy, R., Rao, M.N., Rani, N.S.: Design and development of data mining systems using numerical methods. In: International Conference on Information and Communication Technology in Electrical Sciences (ICTES), pp. 1101–1104 (2007)
- 11. Doan, T., Kalita, J.: Selecting machine learning algorithms using regression models. In: IEEE International Conference on Data Mining Workshop (ICDMW), pp. 1498–1505 (2015)
- Kaur, R., Bansal, M.: Transformation approach for boolean attributes in privacy preserving data mining. In: 1st International Conference on Next Generation Computing Technologies (NGCT), pp. 644–648 (2015)
- Taneja, S., Suri, B., Narwal, H., Jain, A., Kathuria, A., Gupta, S.: A new approach for data classification using Fuzzy logic. In: 6th International Conference on Cloud System and Big Data Engineering (Confluence), pp. 22–27 (2016)
- Lin, C.J., Wu, C., Chaovalitwongse, W.A.: Integrating human behavior modeling and data mining techniques to predict human errors in numerical typing. IEEE Trans. Human-Mach. Syst. 45(1), 39–50 (2015)
- Zabalza, J., Ren, J., Zheng, J., Han, J., Zhao, H., Li, S., Marshall, S.: Novel two-dimensional singular spectrum analysis for effective feature extraction and data classification in hyperspectral imaging. IEEE Trans. Geosci. Remote Sens. 53(8), 4418–4433 (2015)
- Srinivas, U., Chen, Y., Monga, V., Nasrabadi, N., Tran, T.: Exploiting sparsity in hyperspectral image classification via graphical models. IEEE Geosci. Remote Sens. Lett. 10 (3), 505–509 (2012)

An Efficient Image Enhancement Method for Dark Images

P. V. V. S. Srinivas, Lakshmana Phaneendra Maguluri and Maganti Syamala

Abstract Image enhancement is a technique to give a better quality of an image in terms of its clarity, brightness, and to give the human eye comfortable to look at. There are different types of techniques to give good quality to an image. Global image contrast enhancement is one of the most commonly used techniques to enhance the quality of an image, but it has some disadvantages with the fact that it does not consider the local details of an image, that is the detailed texture of an image. In local contrast enhancement, it addresses the local details of an image and preserves the local details of the image. Local details of an image are very important while analyzing an image, which is that of the scientific study of an image like the image taken from planetary bodies, satellite image, and also in medical images. Local details of an image are very important for diagnosing a particular ailment. When we used either local contrast enhancement or global contrast enhancement alone, we faced the loss of brightness of the image. In order to address and reduce this discrepancy of individual enhancement methods, a new proposal that uses both these methods on the same image. First, the image is locally enhanced and the output is again processed by the global enhancement method, thereby giving a properly enhanced image without losing the brightness of the image. This enhancement method is simulated in MATLAB, and results are verified on the parameters of image.

Keywords Image enhancement · Image sharpening · Unsharp masking Global contrast stretching · Local contrast stretching

P. V. V. S. Srinivas · L. P. Maguluri (🖂) · M. Syamala

Department of Computer Science and Engineering, K L University, Green Fields, Vaddeswaram, Guntur 522502, Andhra Pradesh, India e-mail: phanendra51@gmail.com

P. V. V. S. Srinivas · L. P. Maguluri · M. Syamala Dhanekula Institute of Engineering and Technology, Ganguru, Vijayawada 521139, India

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_48

1 Introduction

The human visual perception of an image can be greatly affected by the contrast of an image. Contrast has defined as the difference in the pixel intensity value of a particular pixel to its neighboring pixels. If the difference in the intensity is more, then we can say that the contrast is more of that image. The more contrast gives us better clarity of an image in terms of local details. The more details in the local information of an image are very important if the image is of medical or astronomical for analyzing it and extracting information of that image and proper diagnosing of the ailments based upon the image of a cell. So with the advancement of science and technology, especially in the field of signal processing, the quality of an image can be enhanced so that it gives clear and detailed information about the image [1]. There are various techniques for enhancing the image quality, and many techniques have been proposed to address various aspects of an image over the years.

Since long back, many scholars have developed techniques for enhancing an image. The equalization of the histogram of an image for enhancement of the image is very common and effective. One single technique cannot be used as a universal technique that can be applied to all types of images [2]. One technique may give a very good result to a specific type of image but may not give a satisfactory result to another image.

Various contrast stretching methods have been proposed to enhance the image of leukemia, a medical image in [3]. When a dark stretch is performed, the bright portions of the image or the bright pixels are more brighten. A better way to address such problem is to enhance the dark regions by keeping the bright regions untouched [4]. They have shown the effects of various contrast stretching techniques like global stretching, local contrast stretching, and partial contrast stretching [5], and which one is best suitable for which type of image is studied. The problems of a blurred image, which is caused by the motion of the object while taking the image, and how to avoid, are presented in [6]. It also used local edge detection to de-blur the original image. In [7], the effect of application of both global and local contrast enhancements is studied on grayscale image, and only the brightness [8] parameter of the image has been studied. This method is being used on this paper on the dark color image, image enhancement parameters like mean and measure of enhancement [9] factor are calculated, and the output image is compared with the existing image enhancement techniques.

This paper is organized as follows: In Sect. 2, the image enhancement techniques are presented. Section 3 describes the methodology of the algorithm. In Sect. 4, the implementation of methodology and results is explained, and Sect. 5 concludes the paper.

2 Image Enhancement Techniques

Image enhancement techniques have been widely used to get a good quality of an image for the human interpretation. Image [10] enhancement techniques may be broadly classified as local image enhancement and global image enhancement.

2.1 Local Enhancement of the Image

The local enhancement is employed to get the minute details of an image. It enhances the local details in terms of the gradient of the image which gives useful information to the analyzer of the image. It addresses those pixels which would be ignored by the global method. The local enhancement method employed here is the unsharp masking. In this method [11], the image is sharpened by subtracting an unsharp that is a blurred or smoothed image from the original image, so the name unsharp masking is derived. In this method, the following steps are involved:

- 1. Blurring of the image
- 2. Subtracting the blurred image from the original image to make the mask
- 3. Adding the mask to the original image

If the blurred image is denoted as b(i, j) and the image as p(i, j), then the mask m (i, j) is given according to Eq. (1)

$$m(i,j) = p(i,j) - b(i,j) \tag{1}$$

Then, a weighted portion of the mask is added to the original image to get the sharpened image s(i, j) as given by equation

$$s(i,j) = p(i,j) + w * m(i,j)$$
 (2)

where "w" is the weight, generally greater than zero. When the weight is equal to 1, it is the unsharp masking and when greater than 1, then it is called high-boost filtering.

2.2 Global Enhancement of the Image

The global enhancement of the image is used to increase the contrast of the image. In this process, each pixel of the image is adjusted so that it gives a better visualization of the image [5]. In spatial contrast enhancement, the operation is done on the pixel directly. Different methods can be used to improve the image quality. In HE, for the discrete image, the probabilities of the pixel value are taken. To take the probabilities, first the corresponding number of pixels should have a pixel intensity value; it is calculated and divided by the total number of the pixels present in the image. The probability of occurrence of pixel intensity level "k" in the digital image is given by Eq. (3)

$$p(r_k) = \frac{n_k}{N * M} \tag{3}$$

where N * M is the total number of pixels in the image, and n_k is the total number of pixels having intensity level "*k*." The pixels are transformed per the following transformation equation in discrete form [8].

$$t_k = L(r_k) = (G-1)\sum_{i=0}^k p(r_1) = \frac{G-1}{N*M}\sum_{i=0}^k$$
(4)

where *G* is the highest intensity level or value, L(.) is the transform function and k = 0, 1, 2, 3, ..., G - 1. So the output image pixel is obtained by mapping each input pixel r_i to the new transformed value t_k . The processed output value may have fractional value so a rounding function to the nearest integer value is needed. While doing so, some of the image pixels may go to the new value and some of the intensity pixel values may not be present in the transformed image.

3 Methodology

Figure 1 shows the methodology to be incorporated in the paper to get a good quality image and algorithm of combining both local enhancement and global enhancement of a color image. It mainly consists of the following four steps:

- Step 1 Get the color image and convert it into Hue Saturation and Value (HSV) color space and take the luminance of that image.
- Step 2 Apply the local enhancement method to enhance the local details of image.
- Step 3 The local output is again given as global input and perform global image enhancement.
- Step 4 Recombine the components and reconvert it back to color image.

Here in order to enhance the local gradients or the local details, an existing local enhancement method has been used. Here, the unsharp masking is used as local details of enhancement method. As the name suggests, it uses the blurred image to make the mask and enhances the local details in the form of edge sharpening. The sharpened image is used as the input to the global enhancement method. The global enhancement methods.

At first, a color image to be enhanced is taken, and it is converted to the HSV color space. From that color space the luminance portion is taken. The enhancement in the hue and saturation is not done. The enhancement of image [12] is performed



Fig. 1 Flow graph of the algorithm

only in the luminance plane of the image. The local details of an image can be accessed or addressed through the luminance only.

4 Implementation and Results

To see the effect of the combination of local and global enhancement methods to a given image, the above-mentioned algorithm is applied to the image. The color image or digital color image to be enhanced is taken and converted to the HSV color space to apply the algorithm. The image plane slicing is performed, and the image is divided into three different planes each of hue, saturation, and value. To enhance the edges which is consider as the local features of an image, the local contrast stretching process, that is unsharp [13] masking, is applied. This is the first step of the enhancement method. At the end of this step, a locally enhanced image

S. No.	Image name	Input mean value	Output mean value	MEF
1	Low-light image	0.37	0.42	1.75
2	Shadow afternoon image	0.38	0.4	3.05
3	Evening image	0.37	0.38	2.95

Table 1 Comparison of input and output images







(i) Original image (ii) Enhanced image(b) shadow afternoon image



(i) Original image (ii) Enhanced image (c) Evening image

Fig. 2 Input and output images of three different images

is obtained. It gives a clear picture of the local information of the image but deficient in the overall brightness of the image. The working of the algorithm can be verified with the help of image quality parameters. One of the very common parameters is the Measure of enhancement and Measure [14] of enhancement factor (MEF). In order to find the MEF, the measures of enhancement of the input and output have been calculated individually. MEF is the ratio of the measure of enhancement of output image to the measure of enhancement of the input image. A better value of MEF implies that the visual quality of the enhanced image is good. The mean of the input original image and enhanced output image is also calculated. The comparisons of the input and output image are done, and the comparison is shown in Table 1. The original images and its enhanced images by performing [15] proposed algorithm are shown in Fig. 2. It is also compared with some of the existing methods like histogram equalization (HE), discrete shearlet transform (DST) as shown in Fig. 3.



Fig. 3 Comparison between different methods

5 Conclusion

The results are successfully carried out in MATLAB R2014a. A combination of both local and global contrast enhancement techniques, where a local enhancement method is applied first to enhance the local details of the image, which is not taken care and usually neglected in the global contrast enhancement. The locally enhanced image is given to the input of global enhancement for better visual perceptions and increases the brightness to a level which gives pleasant sensation to the human eye. This method works fine in most of the dark images. It has more significance to those images where we need local minute gradient information such as the image of planetary and heavenly bodies, satellite images, and medical images. The comparison is done with a couple of the existing methods. The different local and global methods have been used and tested their effectiveness of the different combinations of the local and global methods.

References

- 1. Celik, T., Tjahjadi, T.: Contextual and variational contrast enhancement. IEEE Trans. Image Process. **20**(12), 3431–3441 (2011)
- 2. Chen, S., Ramli, A.: Preserving brightness in histogram equalization based contrast enhancement techniques. Digit. Signal Proc. 14(5), 413–428 (2004)

- 3. Premkumar, S., Parthasarathi, K.A.: An efficient approach for colour image enhancement using Discrete Shearlet Transform. In: IEEE International Conference on Current Trends in Engineering and Technology (ICCTET) (2014)
- Lal, S., Chandra, M.: Efficient algorithm for contrast enhancement of natural images. Int. Arab J. Inf. Technol. 11(1), 95–102 (2014)
- Chen, S., Ramli, A.: Contrast enhancement using recursive mean-separate histogram equalization for scalable brightness preservation. IEEE Trans. Consum. Electron. 49(4), 1301–1309 (2003)
- Chen, S., Suleiman, A.: Scalable global histogram equalization with selective enhancement for photo processing. In: Proceedings of the 4th International Conference on Information Technology and Multimedia, Malaysia, pp. 744–752 (2008)
- Pathak, S.S., Dahiwale, P., Padole, G.: A combined effect of local and global method for contrast image enhancement. In: IEEE International Conference on Engineering and Technology (ICETECH) (2015)
- 8. Gonzalez, R.C., Woods, R.E.: Digital Image Processing, 3rd edn. Pearson Publication
- Jung, C., Wang, X.: Detail-Preserving Tone Mapping for Low Dynamic Range Displays with Adaptive Gamma Correction, pp. 1–5 (2015)
- Li, X., Yang, Z., Shang, M., Hao, J.: Underwater Image Enhancement via Dark Channel Prior and Luminance Adjustment, pp. 1–5 (2016)
- Vani, V., Prashanth, K.V.M.: Color image enhancement techniques in Wireless Capsule Endoscopy. In: International Conference on Trends in Automation, Communications and Computing Technology (I-TACT-15), pp. 1–6 (2015)
- Su, H., Jung, C.: Low light image enhancement based on two-step noise suppression. In: IEEE International Conference on Acoustics, Speech and Signal Processing (ICASSP), pp. 1977–1981 (2017)
- Chondro, P., Hu, H.-C., Hung, H.-Y., Chang, S.-Y., Li, L.P.-H.: An effective occipitomental view enhancement based on adaptive morphological texture analysis. IEEE J. Biomed. Health Inform. 21(4), 1105–1113 (2017)
- Shi, W., Chen, C., Jiang, F., Zhao, D., Shen, W.: Group-based sparse representation for low lighting image enhancement. In: IEEE International Conference on Image Processing (ICIP), pp. 4082–4086 (2016)
- Haicheng, W., Mingxia, X., Ling, Z., Miaojun, W., Xing, W., Xiuxia, Z., Bai, Z.: Study on monitoring technology of UAV aerial image enhancement for burning straw. In: Chinese Control and Decision Conference (CCDC), pp. 4321–4325 (2016)

Finding Adulteration of Food Grains with Novel Digital Weighing Scale

K. D. Gaikwad and P. B. Dahikar

Abstract The digital weighing scales highly required in industrial application. consumer application to the research area, from weighing the big objects in food industries to weighing a small sample of the chemical in a research lab. As far as the general use of weighing scale is used to measure the weight of food items in ration shop. So in day-to-day life, the food item mixes with some adulterant, now digital weighing scale measure the weight of food item with adulterant. The customer paying for that adulterant food item not for a pure food item. In this paper, they proposed a digital weighing scale model that measures the weight of food items and also finds the adulteration from the food item. In the proposed system, the digital weighing scale interfaces with bulk density finder apparatus. The bulk density finder apparatus works on the principle of variation in density of food grains. The density of pure food grains and adulterant are different then this variation easily identified by the density finder. This proposed system makes very effective change in the consumer and nation point of view. With the perks of utilities for every class of the person, this research work will really bring a great change in traditional weighing scheme with the assurance of new retailer-consumer management.

Keywords Food grains • Density • Bulk density finder apparatus Microcontroller • Weighing scale

K. D. Gaikwad (🖂)

P. B. Dahikar

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

Department of Electronics, ASC College, Chopda, Jalgaon, India e-mail: akunal2@yahoo.co.in

Department of Electronics, Kamla Nehru College, Nagpur, India e-mail: pbdahikarns@rediffmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_49

1 Introduction

A measurement is a series of manipulations of physical objects, or systems according to a defined protocol, which results in a number [1]. The number represents the range defined by the specification limits compliant to customer requirements by using process control. Measuring weight is a dynamic and essential part of many industrial, commercial, and research purposes. It is very difficult to measure weight with proper accuracy because of errors, so that it causes many losses like customers revenue. Load cell is used for accurate and errorless weight measurements. Load cells are transducers used to measure force or weight. Load cells that are used in the weighing industry are based on strain gauges [2]. The small change in resistance in strain gauge bridge detected and converted into digital form with 24 bit ADC [3]. This can be interfaced with the microcontroller through the digitizer at 5 V. This output can be used to display or for analysis. After measuring the weight of food grains with accuracy and precision, the issue of purity of food grains is still not solve. A part of ongoing research in the field of digital weighing scale is more focused on precision and accuracy. Besides this, research vision is focused on the contamination of food. The contamination of food is big issue in customers' point of view. The contamination is the addition of unwanted substance in due to intention [4]. The biggest physical contamination is called adulteration; it should be try to minimize with this proposed system. In the previous method, adulteration of food grains is finding with the help of color variation of food grains. The color variation of pure food sample and adulterated food sample detected by image processing mechanism. This mechanism is made by very high speed IC hardware description language (VHDL). FPGA Vertex4 has been used for the hardware implementation [5]. In our research paper, the mechanism used for finding the adulteration is with the help of density parameter of food grains. Density is a physical characteristic of substances related to several other physical, chemical, and mechanical properties [6]. The density of pure food grains and adulterated food grains having variation; it should be detected by bulk density finder [7]. This bulk density finder has lockable funnel of fixed dimension; the known size and dimension of food grains are gives out from the outlet. This pure food grains should be measured with the help of digital weighing scale attached in the proposed system. This system makes it very easier for the customer taking pure form of food grains with proper weight. The focus of this paper weighing the load with zero error in the weighing system. This proposed system not only measures the weight of a food grains, it also finds the adulteration.

2 Literature Review

The purpose of this literature review is to provide the knowledge of the work done about measuring systems, load cell, adulteration, and purity. We first focused on the previous work of researcher on measuring systems, the measuring system is basically developed to study of variation of fundamental sources which affects the system [8]. The measurement system can also be defined as the system which can compute the accuracy, precision, and repeatability. Weight measurement is a basic requirement of industries and marketable areas, but measuring weight without error with accuracy is a tough job. This causes the loss of revenue of consumers. So to overcome this problem, load cell is used for error-free measurement.

The load cell is a transducer which can convert pressure into electrical signals. Load cell which is used in many industries consists of strains gauges [2]. Strains gauges consist of resistors bridges; it is used for sensing minor variation in resistance. The sensing signal is very small so that it can be amplified by the instrumentation amplifier. The measurement of bridges is importantly done by analog to digital convertors (ADCs). This type of ADCs has very vital features such as differential inputs, internal amplifiers, automatic zero calibration, high common-mode rejection, and digital noise filtering [9]. The precision 24 bit ADC used with a programmable gain amplifier; it communicates with serial peripheral mode (SPI) [10, 11]. This SPI mode ADCs send signal further for processing serially to the digitizer block. The output from digitizer directly interfaces to a microcontroller or the PC through the RS232 with MAX232 to get final readings of the measurement [11]. This system can measure various load successfully with accuracy. This type of measurement system can be implemented easily in any environment like industries or in research area. It can measure load sophisticatedly, still there is some possibility for further improvement of the system [12]. The food grains is measured precisely with the measuring system still the issue adulteration and purity of weighted food grains. So I focused on adulteration issue of food grains and its measurement. Adulterant is a substance that found with other substance that is not allowed for legal or other reasons. The mixing of adulterant is called adulteration. The term contamination is usually used for the inclusion of unwanted substances due to accident or negligence rather than intent [4]. Adulteration is one of the major physical contaminations. Adulteration is the mixing of poorer quality material or superior substance to the superior product, which reduces the nature, quality, and originality in taste, color, odor, and nutritional value causing ill effects to the health of the consumers. For detection of adulteration, previous researcher makes comparison of images of impure sample with pure sample with help of image processing techniques. But digital color imaging technique is exchange other technique as it is low cost, reliable methods. In this digital color imaging technique, food sample images are acquired as reference images. This reference images compared with the images of tested sample whether it is adulterated or not. The comparison is based on the color variation parameter. In the very-large-scale integration (VLSI) implementation, field-programmable gate array (FPGA) is used to store the images for high-speed comparison [5]. In this proposed system, I take density as comparison parameter for finding adulteration of food grains. Density is physical property of material associated with chemical, mechanical, & physical properties [6]. This property is basically focused on shape and size of the food grains. If the adulterant food grains have different size and shape as compared to pure food grains then the density change. This affects the bulk density; it is detected by bulk density finder apparatus [7]. This bulk density finder apparatus is attached to the weighing scale, and it gives out the weight of food grains without adulterant.

3 Weight Measurement

In many areas like commercial, industrial, defence, medical weighing process a vital process. Weighing gives you information that information use for other purposes in the system. But many customers face the problem of accuracy in weighing process; it is a loss of customer directly. So to provide a solution to this problem, the proposed weighing scale system made up of the load cell. The load cell is nothing but the transducer which gives out an electrical signal, its magnitude is proportional to force applied to load cell. There are many types of load cell-like strain gauge, hydraulic, a pneumatic load cell. In the prototype system, strain gauge type load cell is used which is work on the principle of change in resistance. The architecture of weighing a load with the digital weighing system is as shown in Fig. 1. In this diagram, strain gauge load cell senses the change in resistance and sends this signal to the instrumentation amplifier. The signal coming from the load cell is very weak, so it has to be amplified that's why we needed instrumentation amplifier. The instrumentation amplifier has very high gain; it amplifies the weak signal coming from the load cell send it to the next block for further process [11]. The next block is analog to digital converter (ADC) of 24 bit which is used to convert the amplified analog input into the digital output [17]. This digital output is fed to the digitizer block.

This digitizer block directly interfaces to the PC or to the microcontroller with its serial output feature. The baud rate of serial data transfer is about 9600 bps. This gives the result in kg on the PC terminal, when it directly connects to the PC port [13].



Fig. 1 Architecture of weighing scale

4 Adulteration

Adulterated food is impure, unsafe, or unwholesome food. Incidents of food contamination have occurred because of poor harvesting or storage of grain, use of banned veterinary products, industrial discharges, human error, and deliberate adulteration and fraud. Adulteration is one of the major physical contaminations. Adulteration is the mixing of inferior quality material or superior substance to the superior product, which reduces the nature, quality, and originality in taste, color, odor, and nutritional value causing ill effects to the health of the consumers. Adulterants when used in illicit drugs are called cutting agents, while the deliberate addition of toxic adulterants to food or other products for human consumption is known as poisoning. Some of the following examples of adulterant are as follows:

(i) The cow/buffalo milk can be adulterated with starch, milk powder, and urea; it causes cancer or acute renal failure. (ii) Metanil yellow, a non-permitted color, is a common adulterant in food items like laddu, tur dal, and turmeric; it causes tumor and cancer. (iii) Ghee essence is used in vanaspati or cheaper oils and passed off as pure ghee. This type of ghee will not solidify like normal ghee. It may also not have that grainy texture of pure ghee; it causes cancer or acute renal failure. So at the time of purchasing the food items from shop then there should be system that should indicate that this food item contains adulterant. This gives the solution of adulteration problem at the time of purchase the product. So in the proposed system try to find adulteration and measuring the weight of food grains.

5 Density of Food Grains

The density means mass per unit volume. It is denoted by ρ . There are following types of densities like apparent density, bulk density, envelop density, true density, and skeletal density. Apparent density means the mass of a particle divided by its apparent volume. Bulk density is defined as it is the ratio of mass to the given volume of grain sample. The bulk density is basically depending on the mass of food grains, the composition of grains, shape, and size of the particles. Figure 2 shows apparatus used in determining apparent density is used in the prototype system.

This bulk density is a very vital parameter for deciding the quality of the food grains [7]. So I used this parameter for deciding the quality and adulteration from pure food sample. This apparatus is interfaced with the prototype system. If the adulterant mixes in the pure food then its bulk density of the food grains changes, it can be detected by this apparatus.

Fig. 2 Apparatus determining bulk density [7]



6 Prototype Development

I would use microcontroller PIC18F252; it is 18F252 and has 28 pin and 10 bit A/D converter inbuilt with five input channels. It is operated at 40 MHz, it has 32 kb program memory, and data memory is of 1536 bytes. All the ports are used for interfacing of different peripheral devices [10]. One of the ports is used for bulk density finder apparatus interfacing, that detects the falling of food grains from the topmost position. The changes in density of adulterant that is different from density of pure food. It can be detected by bulk density finder apparatus placing in front of falling tray of food grains as shown in Fig. 3, and it shows the basic block diagram of a prototype of the system. The bulk density finder apparatus used for detection of adulterant is interfaced with the microcontroller, bulk density finder apparatus sense change in density of adulterant to the microcontroller and controller process the



Fig. 3 Block diagram of prototype development of a system

signal. The microcontroller after processing the signal sends the commands according to the programming. As per the programming, the microcontroller shows the result of percentage of adulteration on the display unit. The display unit shows the total weight of a pure food without adulterant.

7 System Software Development

The microcontroller used for the system development is PIC18F series, so the programmer for the programming used is MPLAB IDE [14]. This is integrated development environment for the development system tools. The MPLAB IDE consists of MPLAB IDE project manager, MPLAB editor, and MPLAB SIM simulator, as well as general editing and debugging features [14]. It is a flash-based, power-managed, PIC microcontroller family; it can be suitable for low power design requirements including driving the LCD display in sleep mode. PIC microcontroller can also equip with all other desired features. With the ability to select from an array of available LCD PIC microcontrollers, a designer can provide additional value by creating scalable designs and products. This gives the designer flexibility to offer different solutions based on the demand of varying market segments all from a single design. When the system assembles all the units as shown in block diagram, the system worked as per the schedule. The system workflow is explained in detail in the following flowchart Fig. 4. When the system starts, it weighs food grains with adulteration and then food grains falls into the bulk density finder. It detects the change in bulk density of food grains. Bulk density finder gives the signal to the microcontroller, and it takes action according to the programming.

Figure 4 explains the system working flow using system flow chart, as per the system flow chart the system takes a decision and displays the adulterant result.



Fig. 4 Flow chart of prototype system

S.No.Calibration point (gm)Value on standard (gm)Value on UCC (kg)1100100.01010.12200199.9580.23400399.85250.34500499.96230.5510001000.29011620001999.88562730002998.9765385000499.93855910,0009994.9990101015,00014,994.499814.991119,00018,994.845618.99				
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	S.No.	Calibration point (gm)	Value on standard (gm)	Value on UCC (kg)
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	1	100	100.0101	0.1
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	2	200	199.958	0.2
4500499.96230.5510001000.29011620001999.88562730002998.97653850004999.93855910,0009994.9990101015,00014,994.499814.991119,00018,994.845618.99	3	400	399.8525	0.3
5 1000 1000.2901 1 6 2000 1999.8856 2 7 3000 2998.9765 3 8 5000 4999.9385 5 9 10,000 9994.9990 10 10 15,000 14,994.4998 14.99 11 19,000 18,994.8456 18.99	4	500	499.9623	0.5
620001999.88562730002998.97653850004999.93855910,0009994.9990101015,00014,994.499814.991119,00018,994.845618.99	5	1000	1000.2901	1
7 3000 2998.9765 3 8 5000 4999.9385 5 9 10,000 9994.9990 10 10 15,000 14,994.4998 14.99 11 19,000 18,994.8456 18.99	6	2000	1999.8856	2
8 5000 4999.9385 5 9 10,000 9994.9990 10 10 15,000 14,994.4998 14.99 11 19,000 18,994.8456 18.99	7	3000	2998.9765	3
9 10,000 9994.9990 10 10 15,000 14,994.4998 14.99 11 19,000 18,994.8456 18.99	8	5000	4999.9385	5
10 15,000 14,994.4998 14.99 11 19,000 18,994.8456 18.99	9	10,000	9994.9990	10
11 19,000 18,994.8456 18.99	10	15,000	14,994.4998	14.99
	11	19,000	18,994.8456	18.99

Table 1 Testing with load cell for digital weigh scale system

8 Result

8.1 Weighing the Load

This system has been principally manufactured for forecasting the weight of food grains without error less result. The system test includes load cell carrier pan interfaced with the amplifier and digitizer. It sends serial signals to the PC via a RS232 port connector. These readings compared with the standard reading are almost the same. Table 1 shows the readings of load cell testing for accuracy.

The readings should be accurate if slight calibrations have to be done to accelerate the performance of the weighing system. The platform on which the system is placed should be perfectly flat. So the error the percentage is reduced.

8.2 Adulteration

The density parameter of food grains is very vital as far as adulteration is concerned. So for finding adulteration from pure food, this density parameter is used in this proposed system. This parameter is beneficial for a researcher who works in the field of adulteration. This paper trying to propose a system that should find the proper weight of pure food grains without adulterant.

References

- 1. Benbow, D.W., Berger, R.W., Elshennawy, A.K., Walker, H.F.: The Certified Quality Engineer Handbook. Quality Press, Milwaukee (2002)
- 2. Hernandez, W.: Improving the response of a load cell by using optimal filtering. Sensor 6, 697–711 (2006)
- 3. Hoeschele, D.F.: Analog-to-Digital and Digital-to-Analog Conversion Techniques. Wiley, Hoboken (1994)
- 4. Information site. www.wikepediya.com
- Rajkumar, G., Manimeglai, D.: FPGA implementation of dip based adulteration identification in food samples. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975–8887) 35(1) (2011)
- Lagourette, B., Boned, C., Saint-Guirons, H., Xans, P.: Densimeter calibration method versus temperature and pressure. Meas. Sci. Technol. 3, 699–703 (1992)
- 7. Powder and Bulk Solid process equipment solutions. www.pawtec.de
- 8. Breyfogle III, F.W.: Implementing Six Sigma. Wiley, New York (1999)
- 9. Application note 3426. www.maxim-ic.com/an3426
- Kunal, D.G., Pradip, B.D.: Development of digital weighing scale system for finding adulteration & cost standardization. IJSER 5(10), 22–30 (2014)
- Kunal, D.G., Pradip, B.D.: Design and development of novel weighing scale system. IJERT 2 (6), 1668–1671 (2013)
- Buwono, A.S., Akbar, H., Usino, W.: PC based weight scale system with load cell for product inspection. In: Proceedings of International Conference on Computer Engineering and Technology, pp. 343–346 (2010)
- 13. Sunrom Electronics/Technology. www.sunrom.com
- 14. A Software, MPLAB IDE v7.21

Review of Clustering Methods: Toward Phylogenetic Tree Constructions

Akansha Sharma, Shailesh Jaloree and Ramjeevan Singh Thakur

Abstract In modern context, integrated approach of science and technology has given new subjects such as bioinformatics. This discipline of informatics gave a pathway to understand the larger data of various biological systems in much simplified manner. The various attributes studied in the form of computational patterns result in phylogenetic tree construction. These phylogenetic trees establish both similarities and dissimilarities among organisms. Different algorithms of clustering were studied and compared on various parameters to establish the best among them and utilities of others methods as well. The current text makes us informative about clustering methods used to generate phylogenetic trees by both distance- and character-based analyses.

Keywords Species • Phylogenetic tree • Neighbor joining • UPGMA Maximum parsimony • Maximum likelihood Felsenstein

1 Introduction

The branch of bioinformatics is mainly based on analysis of various biological data such as physiological, biochemical, and genetic information with the help of modern software and data already existing as result of numerous observation made by contributors. The large number of data present helps to generate information about living world [1, 2]. Phylogenetic tree is a pictorial representation of

A. Sharma (🖂)

S. Jaloree SATI, Vidisha, M.P., India

R. S. Thakur Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com

475

Anand Vihar College for Women, Bhopal, M.P., India e-mail: akansha_dolly@yahoo.co.in

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_50

progressive relationship among organism. Their branching shows that how much species is evolved with common ancestor. The distance of one group from the other groups indicates the degree of relationship; i.e., closely related groups are located on branches close to one another and vice versa [3]. To identify these close groups, clusters emerge as more robust method.

Cluster analysis commonly represented as clustering is a method in which we can group a set of objects or characters of similar factors more close to each other. Each cluster formed is viewed as class of objects. The objects thus clustered are based on the phenomenon of intra-class maximization in similarity and minimizing the inter-class similarity. Their grouping based on similarities and dissimilarities in their physical and genetic characteristic. The construction of graphical phylogenetic tree reveals similarity as well as dissimilarity among organisms [4]. To make a cluster or group of similar organism in the tree, various clustering methods are applied. Such observations also make the appearance of organism in relation to time. Phylogenetic tree represents branches and nodes. Basically, phylogenetic tree is categorized as follows [5].

- (1) Rooted Tree: Rooted trees are single node consist of a common sector and a uncommon path emerging from it across evolutionary time to any other node.
- (2) Un-rooted Tree: Un-rooted trees help in specifying the relationship among nodes and depict nothing about the direction in which evolution happens.

Phylogenetic trees based on sequence data give the more accurate encryption of patterns of relatedness. It also gives the Linnaean classification of new species. Phylogenetical technique is now commonly used to assess DNA evidence presented under law to inform situations. Molecular sequencing techniques with assistance of phylogenetic approaches are now in use to learn more about a new pathogen outbreak. This includes finding out about which species the pathogen is related to and subsequently the likely source of transmission. This gave the direction to new approaches recommended for public health policy. Besides this, phylogenetical recommendations help us by informing conservation policy for various uniquely identified extinct species [6].

2 Methodology

2.1 Distance-Based Method

2.1.1 UPGMA

The phonograms are result of agglomerative or hierarchical clustering applied in bioinformatics. Pair-wise distance matrix (similarity index) is major tool which is to study applying algorithm, which results in the structure and construct of a rooted tree, i.e., genogram [7] (Fig. 1).





2.1.2 Neighbor Joining Method

The DNA or protein sequence data obtained after wet laboratory analysis is used for production of trees based on algorithm which generates a pair-wise distances of taxa resulting into construct. Neighbor joining is an application of distance matrix explaining the distance between each pair of taxa. Presently, neighbor joining also known as bottom clustering is frequently used technology to generate phenograms [8, 9] (Fig. 2).



Fig. 2 Flowchart showing steps of neighbor joining method

2.2 Character-Based Method

2.2.1 Maximum Parsimony

This technique is the widely accepted and is based on the assumption that the most preferable tree generated depends upon the requirement of minimum number of alteration to depict the data used in alignment [10, 11]. The minimum length of the branches indicates most parsimonious tree and is considered as best representative of the evolutionary pattern. The minimum alterations within the tree construct have always been the basic approach of MP. The minimum number of changes within the tree is generated using post-order traversal activity initiating from the leaf of the tree leading toward the root [12, 13] (Fig. 3).



2.2.2 Maximum Likelihood Felsenstein

It is one of the most computationally intensive approaches. The model of nucleotide evolution and tree topology is optimal requirement of this methodology. ML is used to specify model of evolution using data available. The process also defines the greatest probability of observed data. Since ML depends upon purely probability or likelihood, it makes no similarity with other existing methods. The probability or likelihood is obtained where L = P (data/tree), indicating probability of observing data. The ML provides advantage of statistical comparisons between topologies. It is one of the robust methods used by the scientists. On the other hand the disadvantage of the process that one can observe multiple maximum likelihood for a given phylogenetic tree, which demands more detailed computational exercise [14, 15].

S. No.	Method	Advantage	Disadvantage
1	UPGMA	Fast	More assumptions
2	Neighbor joining	Fast	Unreliable due to loss of information
3	Maximum parsimony	Fast, robust	Performance is not satisfactory
4	Maximum likelihood	Phylogeny is clear	Slow

Table 1 Comparison of methods

3 Conclusion

In all exercise, generation of construct using given sequence or data requires high degree of accuracy, thus achieving an optimal alignment along with reduction in complexity of sequences. Such results are obtained with the use of distance-based and character-based techniques. The large number of models can be constructed using distance-based method; on the other hand, phenotypic and genotypic attributes are generated using character-based method (Table 1).

References

- Egan, A.N., Crandall, K.A.: Theory of Phylogenetic Estimation. Evolutionary Genetics Concepts and Case Studies, 1st edn., pp. 426–436. Oxford University Press, USA (2006)
- 2. Fitch, W.: Toward defining the course of evolution: minimum change for a specified tree topology. Syst. Zool. **20**, 406–416 (1971)
- 3. Rizzo, J., Rouchka, E.C.: Review of phylogenetic tree construction. Bioinform. Rev. (2007)
- 4. Kaur, S., Singh, H., Singh, R.: Implementing UPGMA and NJ method for phylogenetic tree construction using hierarchical clustering. IJCST 4 (2013)
- 5. Munjal, G., Hanmandlu, M., Gaur, D.: A new alignment free method for phylogenetic tree construction. Int. J. Database Theory Appl. 8, 111–124 (2015)
- Singha, R.S., Dasgupta, R., Bagchi, A.: A review on phylogenetic analysis: a journey through modern era. Comput. Mol. Biosci. 4, 39–45 (2014)
- 7. Kaur, M., Singh, R.: Phylogenetic tree construction revision. IJARCSSE 6 (2016)
- Yadav, D.R.K., Ercal, G.: A comparative analysis of progressive multiple sequence alignment approaches using UPGMA and neighbor join based guide trees. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Eng. Inf. Technol. (IJCSEIT) 5(3/4) (2015)
- 9. Needleman, S.B., Wunsch, C.D.: A general method applicable to the search for similarities in the amino acid sequence of two proteins. J. Mol. Biol. **48**, 443–453 (1970)
- 10. Chen, L.: The research of data mining algorithm based on association rules. In: The 2nd International Conference on Computer Application and System Modeling (2012)
- 11. Pujari, A.: Data Mining Techniques. Universities Press, Nancy (2001)
- 12. Sturn, A., Quackenbush, J., Trajanoski, Z.: Genesis: cluster analysis of microarray data. Bioinformatics 18, 207–208 (2002)
- Verma, G., Verma, V.: Role and applications of genetic algorithm in data mining. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 4 (2012)
- 14. Wodajo, B., Mustefa, F.B., Tesfaye, K.: Clustering analysis of ethiopian safflower (*Carthamus tinctorius*) using ISSR Markers. Int. J. Sci. Res. Publ. **5** (2015)
- Jayapriya, J., Arock, M.: Enhanced bio-inspired algorithm for constructing phylogenetic tree. ICTACT J. Soft Comput. 6 (2015)

A New Method to Preserve Privacy of Utility Item Sets Using Differential Privacy

Lavi Bandil, Rishi Soni and Sugandha Rathi

Abstract Utility mining being a new branch of data mining is focused upon the profit earned from the item sets. Though it is a great technique to the world, the privacy issues are rising higher with the increasing usage. Previously, various techniques proposed are discussed here with brief idea about them. Due to lack of effective preservation technique, a new concept has been proposed in this research for preserving the HUI using differential privacy. A proficient method that provides privacy of HUI using Laplace mechanism has been described in detail with help of flowchart. No such work has ever done before in this field. So, it is an attempt to preserve HUI using the differential privacy concept.

Keywords Differential privacy • Frequent pattern mining • Utility mining Privacy preservation

1 Introduction

In recent years, there have been some major concerns about the privacy issues in data mining. While a lot of valuable information can be uncovered by data mining techniques, this is a controversial issue for customers that their privacy may be compromised. Privacy-preserving data mining is an area of research that is concerned about privacy determined from personally individual information considered with data mining [1]. Several organizations are precautious about their data and are averse to join in the exploration of possible profit from data mining. Typically, the

Department of Computer Science Engineering, ITM, Gwalior, India e-mail: lavibandil@gmail.com

R. Soni e-mail: rishisoni17@gmail.com

S. Rathi

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

L. Bandil $(\boxtimes) \cdot R$. Soni

Department of Computer Science Engineering, RJIT, Tekanpur, India e-mail: sugandharathi@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_51

mining result is numerical and refers to a large set of cases as a summary and therefore does not pose any threat to the confidentiality of individuals.

However, in the method of data mining, each individual processing unit may select data from different sources and it is there that the privacy issue may be significant.

Privacy is a charged term meaning different things to different people and even different things to the same person, according to the context. In the digital information area, the flow of information is generally associated with loss of privacy, or to manage the purposes for which information is employed. To achieve privacy, a new technique emerged known as *Differential Privacy* [2].

1.1 Frequent Pattern Mining

Frequent pattern can become valuable for financial and research purposes [3]. The pattern observed through the user-searched data is termed as frequent pattern [4]. The mining of frequent pattern is a fundamental concept in data mining. There are some algorithms that came into existence to find frequent pattern from the transactional database, i.e., FP growth, Apriori algorithm, etc. Here, the key concern about the releasing of frequent item set in public can breach privacy.

1.2 Utility Mining

Utility mining emerged through the frequent pattern mining. The major intent of Utility mining is to recognize the item sets with maximum utilities, by taking into consideration profit, quantity, cost, or other customer preferences [5]. User-specified threshold is used to mine high-utility items from the database. In numerous real-life applications, rare items are found from high-utility item set. For example, in a mall, customers buy television or cooker rarely as compared to soap, toothpaste. But the previous transactions give more profit to the mall. The utility is used to quantify that how valuable or profitable an item set *Y* is. The utility of an item set *Y*, i.e., it is the addition of the utilities of item set *Y* in all the transactions that have *Y*, is denoted by u(Y). If $u(Y) \ge \min_{i=1}^{n} utility$ then only item set *Y* is called a high-utility item set, where min_utility is a predefined lowest utility threshold. The core goal of high-utility data mining is to find all those item sets that have utility greater or equal to user-defined minimum utility threshold.

1.3 Differential Privacy

A statistic is an output of many sample queries; when result of a sample query is exposed to the population, it should focus only on the information without breaking one's private data. The question arises in this area that how to retrieve valuable data from the underlying population while preserving the privacy of individuals. We therefore take care of the problem of privacy-preserving study of data. Cynthia Dwork proposed a novel method for this problem termed as differential privacy [2].

 ε -differential privacy can be calculated with the help of special function *K*, if two data sets *D* and *D'* differing on at most one row, and all $S \subseteq \text{Range}(K)$,

$$\Pr[K(D) \in S] \le \exp(\in) \times \Pr[K(D') \in S]$$

It means that the risk to one's privacy should not significantly (as bounded by ε) raised as a consequence of participating in a S database. Thus, an invader should only be able to learn any information about any participant. If the participant does not involve in the database, they could not learn anything. It clearly means that participating in the database may lead to the risk of individual privacy. The function K() is our method that is used for adding this noise and D for database [6]. Different mechanism can be used to achieve differential privacy such as Laplace mechanism, exponential mechanism etc. Here, the question arises that how much noise should be added to achieve differential privacy? For this problem, we have a mathematical solution known as sensitivity of the query.

$$\Delta f = \max_{D,D'} \| f(D) - F(D') \|$$
(1)

In simple words, it is the highest dissimilarity in the values that the f query may take on a pair of database that differ only in one row. There is a clear proof which shows that a result of adding up a random Laplace $(\Delta f/\varepsilon)$ variable to a query gives guaranteed ε -differential.

In differentially private analysis, the chief concern is about minimizing privacy loss and maximizing utility.

2 Literature Review

To conserve the privacy of frequent item set in two-dimensional sites, a semi-join concept was proposed by Ke Wang. The concept is used to return only those tuples of one relation which is the outcome of 'join' operation with another relation that gratify some additional condition. It may also use with star schema in distributed database [7]. Luca Bonomi proposed methods for exact frequent pattern. For exact pattern, prefix tree and two-phase algorithm were introduced and to capture noisy pattern, two definitions were proposed (i.e., Θ -approximate occurrences and gapped pattern occurrences) [4]. Mined frequent pattern can be encrypted with noise to
assure privacy [8]. This work is done by a novel two-phase algorithm having preprocessing and mining phase. Transaction splitting-based differential private FIM is proposed. The technique divides long transaction into sub-transactions whose length is within a particular limit. This technique results in high data utility and high level of privacy.

Expansion of frequent pattern mining is utility mining [5]. Items having high utilities come under utility mining. Another mining strategy named rare item set mining is also defined. Rare item set is those which are least frequent in a record but having high profit rate. Mengchi Liu and Junfeng Qu proposed an algorithm named HIU-Miner to mine high-utility item set. High Item set Utility Miner (HIU-Miner) uses utility list rather than candidate generation to work efficiently with low run time and less memory consumption [9]. Utility list contains utility information regarding an item set as well as heuristic information whether the item set should be pruned or not. They also compared the result of this algorithm with state-of-the-art algorithm.

Costly join operation for each pattern is performed in HIU-Miner. This is the limitation of HIU-Miner. To reduce join operation on the basis of item co-occurrence, a new algorithm is introduced called Fast High-Utility Miner (FHM) [10]. In FHM, a novel structure Estimated Utility Co-occurrence Structure (EUCS) is built. EUCS performs only one database scan and implements in the form of triangular matrix. It is more efficient in terms of execution time, pruning effectiveness, and memory overhead. Occurrence of mined item set from database changes over time. In traditional ARM, utility values are static over a particular period of time. This type of uncertainty can be handled with a temporal-weighted item set utility mining approach [11]. This approach allowed utility values to be dynamic over a specified time. Fuzzy values and continuous values can also be used with this approach.

To preserve privacy in utility mining is a new challenge in data mining. Two algorithms were proposed to hide the sensitive data, namely Hiding High-Utility Item First (HHUIF) algorithm and Maximum Sensitive Item set Conflict First (MSICF) algorithm [12]. The main goal of the HHUIF algorithm is to diminish the utility value of each item set by modifying the values of items contained in the sensitive item set. MSICF is a method that selects a suitable item which has the highest conflict count among items in the sensitive item sets to reduce the number of modified items from the original database. Two-phase algorithm consists of two phases; in first phase, high transaction-weighed utilization item sets are identified, and in second phase, database is scanned only once to sort out the high transaction-weighted utilization item sets that are definitely low-utility item sets [13]. An approach is introduced to avoid the selection of top K item set from large candidate set. These define the notion of basis set with small width. Θ -basis set $B = \{B1, B2..., Bw\}$, where each Bi is a set of items which have the property that any item set with frequency higher than Θ is a subset of some basis B [3]. From these basis set, the most frequent item set can be selected. This technique also preserves differential privacy and gives definition of frequency threshold. Cynthia Dwork proposed a mathematical method called differential privacy to preserve individual security by adding noise to the item set [6]. Addition of noise can be done with various methods like Gaussian approach, exponential method, Laplace mechanism.

Differential privacy can be applied to many fields like location pattern mining, health data mining, social network [14]. Laplace noise addition mechanism is used to satisfy differential privacy that may be vulnerable to a tracker attack [15]. The mechanism is applied on the numeric data, and Laplace distribution is used here.

3 Proposed Work

In this work, we are applying differential privacy on high-utility item sets to preserve privacy. For this we proposed a hybrid algorithm that uses the concept of two-phase strategy with Laplace distribution.

Firstly, the flowchart of algorithm is shown. It has many phases and each phase defines how the whole process is working to secure high-utility item set with the proposed algorithm. Later, we develop an algorithm with all the given measurements (Fig. 1).

The phases involved in algorithm are as follows:

- 1. Data is collected and preprocessed from database.
- 2. High-utility item sets are mined out from the collecting data using high-utility mining algorithm.
- 3. Condition to check whether the mined item sets are high-utility item sets or not. For this predefined threshold is used; items whose utility is greater than threshold will be preserved and rest are discarded.
- 4. Laplace distribution is used to append noise to the high-utility item set to preserve differential privacy. The mathematical formula used in it is as follows

$$f(x|\mu, u) = \frac{1}{2b} \left(-\frac{x-\mu}{b} \right)$$
$$= \frac{1}{2b} \left\{ \exp\left(-\frac{\mu-x}{b}\right), \quad \text{if } x < \mu \right\}$$
$$= \frac{1}{2b} \left\{ \exp\left(-\frac{x-\mu}{b}\right), \quad \text{if } x \ge \mu \right\}$$

Here, μ is the threshold value, x is the high-utility item, and b is scale parameter.

- 5. These noisy item sets are then considered, and items with frequency less than threshold will be deleted from the database before a final reply is formed.
- 6. The item set greater than threshold is saved in a new database, and privacy is preserved using proposed algorithm.



Fig. 1 Flowchart of proposed algorithm

4 Conclusion

Differential privacy being a new area of research has very less work done. The area selected in the research shows that it can also be used in utility mining. As the proposed work suggests that to preserve privacy of high utility item set through Differential privacy will be a crucial task to implement. The results will be better than any previous algorithm designed, and a comparative study will be shown later. Few measures will be taken as the benchmark to prove the work's clarity and usefulness.

References

- Natarajan, R., Sugumar, R., Mahendraz, M., Anbazhagan, K.: A survey on privacy preserving data mining. Int. J. Adv. Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. 1(1), 103–112 (2012)
- 2. Dwork, C.: Differential privacy. In: ICALP (2006)
- Li, N., Qardaji, W., Su, D., Cao, J.: PrivBasis: frequent itemset mining with differential privacy. Proc. VLDB Endowm. 5(11), 1340–1351 (2012). (In the 38th International Conference on Very Large Data Bases, Istanbul, Turkey)
- Bonomi, L.: Mining frequent patterns with differential privacy. Proc. VLDB Endow. 6(12) (2013) (In the 39th International Conferences on Very Large Data Bases, Riva del Garda, Trento, Italy)
- Pillai, J., Vyas, O.P.: Overview of Item set utility mining and its applications. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975–8887) 5(11), 9–13 (2010)
- Dwork, C.: The promise of differential privacy a tutorial on algorithmic techniques. In: Microsoft Research, Silicon Valley, Mountain View, CA 94043 (2011)
- Fu, A.W.-C., Wong, R.C.-W., Wang, K.: Privacy-preserving frequent pattern mining across private databases. In: Proceedings of the Fifth IEEE International Conference on Data Mining (ICDM'05) 1550-4786/05, IEEE Computer Society (2005)
- Vijayan, A.: Privacy preserving closed frequent pattern mining. Int. J. Sci. Res. (IJSR) 4(11), 1165–1168 (2014). (Paper ID: NOV151382)
- Liu, M., Qu, J.: Mining high utility item sets without candidate generation. In: CIKM'12, pp. 55–64, Maui, HI, USA (2012)
- Fournier-Viger, P., Wu, C.-W., Zida, S., Tseng, V.S.: FHM: faster high-utility item set mining using estimated utility co-occurrence pruning. In: Proceedings of 21st International Symposium on Methodologies for Intelligent Systems (ISMIS), pp. 83–92. Springer, LNAI (2014)
- Pillai, J., Vyas, O.P., Soni, S.: A conceptual approach to temporal weighted item set utility mining. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975–8887) 1(28), 55–60 (2010)
- 12. Yeh, J.-S., Hsu, P.-C.: HHUIF and MSICF: novel algorithms for privacy preserving utility mining. Expert Syst. Appl. **37**, 4779–4786 (2010)
- Liu, Y., Liao, W., Choudhary, A.: A fast high utility item sets mining algorithm. In: UBDM '05, Chicago, Illinois, USA (2005)
- 14. Hilton, M.: Differential privacy: a historical survey. In: Cal Poly State University
- 15. Sarathz, R., Muralidhar, K.: Evaluating laplace noise addition to satisfy differential privacy for numeric data. Trans. Data Priv. 4(1), 1–12 (2011)

Face Detection in Hybrid Color Space Using HBF-KNN

Vinay Singh and Deepa Aswani

Abstract Biometrics cannot be lost or forgotten. They are difficult for attackers to forge. Face is a peculiar characteristic that falls in the category of biometrics. Thus, face detection plays a trivial role in identification of person system. There are various challenges of illumination, occlusion, and others. Detection of face from the large similar set of image database becomes very essential. In this paper, we propose a method which uses KNN and high boost filter. The KNN classifier is used to select skin and non-skin pixel and then high boost filter approach is applied which can eliminate the noise and blur from the image. We also use Gaussian probability density function to model the skin color in HSV and YCbCr color space sand and also use canny edge detection technique to sharp the edge of images. The experimental analysis of the proposed system is done using performance-measuring parameters such as accuracy.

Keywords Face detection · KNN · High boost filter · Histogram equalization

1 Introduction

In recent years, face recognition attracted attention of researchers and neuroscientists in the area of application of computer vision communication and automatic access control system. Automatic face recognition is the first step of face detection. Face detection is as simple approach but it has many challenges of image appearance, such as pose variation, occlusion, image orientation, lighting condition, and facial expression. The first [1, 9] important step is to identify the presence of human face and position of the face which includes posture and scale, face

V. Singh (🖂) · D. Aswani

Department of Computer Science & Engineering, SISTec, Gandhi Nagar, Bhopal, India e-mail: vinay.cse5@gmail.com

D. Aswani e-mail: deepa.aswani3@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and

Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_52



Fig. 1 a Input image, \mathbf{b} segmented region using HIS color model, \mathbf{c} segmented region using YCbCr model

orientation, facial expression, ethnicity, and skin color. External background's inconsistent illumination condition and quality of image may also contribute significantly to the overall problem. Skin-based face detection has been proposed by many researches. Some popular techniques are RGB, normalized RGB, YCbCr, and HSI (Hue, Saturation, and Intensity). HSV and YCbCr color [7, 8] spaces help to identify and locate the face based on intensity variations in color space. There is distribution of skin color in humans. When source light changes, the appearance of face image changes significantly. The transformation simplicity and explicit separation of luminance and chrominance components make YCbCr color model very popular. Thresholds should be chosen carefully, [Cr1; Cr2] and [Cb1; Cb2], a pixel is classified to skin tone if the chromaticity values (Cr; Cb) fall within the ranges, i.e., $Cr1 \leq Cr \leq Cr2$ and $Cb1 \leq Cb \leq Cb2$ (Fig. 1).

2 Background Theory

Face detection methods are broadly classified in four areas: template matching methods, feature invariant methods, knowledge-based methods, and appearance-based methods.

- (1) Template matching methods: In template matching [2] method, it stores standard pattern to identify the face. It is a way to detect the face up to certain level of correlation with basic feature of face. When an image is given, certain value of counter is calculated such as distance of eyes, nose, lips, and eyebrow. Then with the help of these counter values, face is detected. Template matching is used for face localization and detection. It also has some difficulties to represent standard templates fit for different poses, orientations, facial expression, illumination conditions, etc.
- (2) Feature invariant methods: This algorithm [5] aim is to find out structural feature such as face even lightning conditions, pose, and viewpoint variations etc. It uses facial features such as eyes, nose, ear, lip, and skin color for face detection.

- (3) **Knowledge-based methods**: These methods [4, 5] are based on rules. In this method, the relationship between facial features is captured. But accuracy of this method is greatly affected by rules designed for face detection. Strong rules in algorithm can increase the face detection rate while weak rule can decrease the face detection rate.
- (4) **Appearance-based methods**: Appearance-based [6, 11] method is trained through some set of images. After training, the trained model is prepared and then test images are applied for face detection. Neural network-based face detection technique is related to appearance-based methods.

3 Related Work

Thakur et al. [1] introduced face detection using skin tone segmentation. In this paper, an improved segmentation algorithm for face detection in color images with multiple faces and skin tone region is proposed. Algorithm uses skin color model and RGB-HS-Cb-Cr for identification of faces. Many techniques are based on pixel, which classifies the skin and "non-skin" region of pixel with its neighbor. This algorithm uses the hue and chrominance effect with RGB properties, which is used to improve the discriminality between skin and "non-skin" pixel.

Morphological Operation: Morphological operation [7] is used to refine the skin regions which are extracted from above operation. First step is hole- and gap-filling operation. Then removal based on width-to-height ratio [2]. By applying trial and error on training set, we have found that the good range of values lies between 1.1 and 0.4. Ratio values which are greater than 1.1 would not be a face since human face's vertical height is greater than width.

In Fig. 2a, the skin color is detected and connected region is eliminated, and then in Fig. 2b, face is detected using morphological operation. Kang et al. [2] suggested a method to improve the speed of face detection with the help of sliding window and skin color modeling. This method controls the size of window and detection areas which help in reducing the processing time. In this paper, color image is taken



Fig. 2 a Connected region eliminated in training image, b face-detected training image

and then skin modeling is done. Skin segmentation operation is performed. Skin color modeling [3, 12] requires the process of selecting one color model. Color model includes RGB, normalized RGB, HIS (hue, saturation, and intensity), HSL (hue, saturation, and lightness), TSL (tint, saturation, and luminance), and YCbCr. After performing color modeling, the non-skin area is rejected. Removal of area smaller than 24×24 is done, which is minimum size of a face according to the face-learning data collected by the face detector. The sliding window over the skin region helps to improve the speed of face detection by reducing the area to be scanned.

4 Proposed Work

Face detection identifies the presence of any face and locate where it is. It does the modeling of face and segments it. Image is selected from the database, and portion is selected where the operation is performed. The portion is selected from image which is identified on the basis of [15] color hybrid color space. Then Gaussian probability density function is applied to model the skin and non-skin pixel. For classification purpose of skin and non-skin pixel, KNN classifier is used. High boost filter technique is applied for removing the blur edges from image. Eventually to remove the noise from image, canny edge detection is used.

Gaussian Probability Density Function

Gaussian or normal PDF is called the Gaussian probability density function. It is the vertically normalized PDF. Function of Gaussian probability density is produced from a signal that has purely random errors. The normal probability density function is:

$$f(x) = \frac{1}{\sigma\sqrt{2\pi}} e^{-\frac{(x-\mu)^2}{2\sigma^2}}$$

K-Nearest Neighbor Classifier

The *K*-nearest neighbor (*K*NN) classifier [14] is an extended version of the simple nearest neighbor (NN) classifier system. The nearest neighbor classifier works on an easy nonparametric decision. Every query is answered on the basis of its distance of feature. The nearest neighbor is found from image which has the minimum distance from the query image in the feature space. The distance between two features can be found with the help of distance functions such as city block distance d_1 , and Euclidean distance d_2 or cosine distance d_{cos} .

Face Detection in Hybrid Color Space Using HBF-KNN

$$d_{1}(x, y) = \sum_{i=1}^{N} |x_{i} - y_{i}|$$
$$d_{2}(x, y) = \sqrt{\sum_{i=1}^{N} |x_{i} - y_{i}|}$$
$$d_{\cos}(x, y) = 1 - \frac{\vec{x} \cdot \vec{y}}{|x||y|}$$

High Boost Filter (HBF)

A high boost filter [10] belongs to a category of spatial filtering. A high boost filter is used to retain some of the low-frequency components. In this filter, the input image f(m, n) is multiplied with an amplification factor "Af" before subtracting. The low-pass images are discussed as follows. HBF = $Af \times f(m, n) - LP$, adding and subtracting 1 with the gain factor,

$$HB = Af - 1 \times f(m, n) + f(m, n) - LP$$

where f(m, n)—LP – HP

$$HBF = Af - 1 \times f(m, n) + HP,$$

where,

HBF High boost filter LP Low pass Hp High pass Af Amplification factor

Proposed Step:

The multistep process is shown in Fig. 3 and explained as follows:

- Step 1. Select an image randomly either from a database or from own galleries which consist of single and multiple faces.
- Step 2. First skin detection is done. Color space combinations, such as luma and chroma component, are explicitly separated. Convert the RGB color pixels into YCbCr and HSV color pixel. The skin color pixel should satisfy the following condition in HSV color space $0 \le H \le 0.26$; $0.16 \le S$; ≥ 0.1 , and for YCbCr, it should satisfy $141 \le Cr \le 164$; $141 \le Cb \le 194$.

- Step 3. Gaussian probability density function is used to successfully model for skin color. This can be obtained via maximum likelihood criteria mean vector and covariance matrix that maximizes the likelihood function. Segmentation is done on the basis of them.
- Step 4. After the low-level process of skin and non-skin pixel detection, K-nearest neighbor classifier is used for classification and segmentation process is also run which is used for removal of the unwanted skin regions like neck and shoulder part.
- Step 5. We use contrast enhancement technique along with high boost filter so that probability of object gets enhanced and the difference between face and background should be clear, and this is done using contrast stretch.
- Step 6. Binary mask has been created by removing noises (gaps and holes) from morphological phase.
- Step 7. Now in the noise removal process, we use high boost filter and Gaussian filter.
- Step 8. To identify and locate sharp discontinuities of an image, we use edge detection method which is [13] canny edge detection method. The edges identified still contain noise so the noise removal process starts in a loop with canny edge and the desired output detected faces.

5 Experimental Result

To verify the effectiveness of the proposed scheme, MATLAB simulated experiments are performed. Most frequently used databases for face detection are PIE, CMU, MIT databases which consist of single frontal gray color images. Therefore, images from own photo gallery and from Internet are taken into consideration which consist of both single and multiple group images with various poses and illumination conditions. The test is performed on 10 group images containing 121 different faces. The examples of part experimental result are shown in Figs. 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10.

The performance of the proposed scheme is evaluated in terms of true detection rate and defined as:

Detection rate (%) = (True detected faces $\times 100$)/(Total no. of faces).



Fig. 3 Block diagram of the proposed method

Fig. 4 Input test image and its skin-detected image



Fig. 5 HBF-enhanced image and successfully detected face





Fig. 6 Input group image



Fig. 7 HBF-enhanced image



Fig. 8 Noise removal process



Fig. 9 Edges detected using canny edge



Fig. 10 Successfully detected faces in group image

Database image	Total faces	Detection		Misses	Detection rate (%)
		True	False		
nasa1	17	16	3	1	94.1
nasa2	23	13	0	10	56.5
group1	11	7	6	4	63.6
group2	4	4	6	0	100.0
group3	20	20	0	0	100.0
group4	13	11	3	2	84.6
group5	12	8	1	4	66.7
group6	8	1	2	7	12.5
Spicycity	13	0	4	13	0.0

Table 1 Result analysis of existing method

Database images	Total faces	Detection		Misses	Detection rate (%)
		True	False		
nasa1	17	17	0	0	100
nasa2	23	23	1	0	100
group1	11	11	0	0	100
group2	4	4	0	0	100
group3	20	16	0	4	80
group4	13	13	1	0	100
group5	12	9	0	3	75
group6	8	8	0	0	100
Spicycity	13	13	0	0	100

Table 2 Result analysis of proposed method

Experimental results show that the proposed scheme achieves 95% true detection rate for colored group images. Proposed method claims high detection rate because geometric features are being used. The statistical data is shown in Tables 1 and 2.

6 Conclusion

We have presented a novel model for face detection. First skin color segmentation is performed and then *K*-nearest neighbor (*K*NN) classifier is used. Canny edge detection is used for edge detection. The experimental result showed that our approach achieves good detection and success rate. Experimental results show that the proposed scheme achieves 95% true detection rate for colored group images. When nasa1 image is tested in existing method, there are 17 faces in the image; the true detection is 16 and detection rate is 94.1%. When the same image is tested in the proposed method, the detection rate is almost zero in the proposed method.

References

- 1. Thakur, S., Paul, S., Mondal, A.: Face detection using skin tone segmentation. IEEE (2011)
- 2. Kang, S., Choi, B., Jo, D.: Face detection method based on skin color modeling. J. Syst. Archit. (2015)
- Verma, A., Raj, S.A, Midya, A., Chakraborty, J..: Face detection using skin color modeling and geometric feature. In: IEEE International Conference on Informatics, Electronics and Vision (2014)
- Yadav, S., Nain, N.: Fast face detection based on skin segmentation and facial features. IEEE (2015)
- 5. Yang, M.H., Kriegman, D.J., Ahuja, N.: Detecting faces in images: a survey. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 24, 1 (2002)
- Zhan, S., Tao, Q.-Q., Li, X.-H.: Face detection using representation learning. In: Neurocomputing, vol. 3. Elsevier, New York (2015)
- Kashayap, R., Tiwari, V.: Energy-based active contour method for image segmentation. Int. J. Electron. Healthc. 9(3), 210–225 (2017)
- Vijay Lakshmi, H.C., PatilKulakarni, S.: Segmentation algorithm for multiple face detection in color images with skin tone regions using color spaces and edge detection techniques. Int. J. Comput. Theory Eng. 2 (2010)
- 9. Modi, M., Macwa, F.: Face detection approaches: a survey. Int. J. Innov. Res. Sci. Eng. Technol. 3 (2014)
- Hemalatha, G., Sumathi, C.P.: A study of techniques for facial detection and expression classification. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Eng. Survey (IJCSES) 5(2) (2014)
- 11. Ravi, S., Wilson, S.: Face detection with facial features and gender classification based on support vector machine. Int. J. Imaging Sci. Eng. (2010)
- 12. Kang, S., Choi, B., Jo, D.: Faces detection method based on skin color modeling. J. Syst. Archit. (2015)
- Pawar, K.B., Nalbalwar, S.: Distributed canny edge using morphological filter. In: IEEE International Conference on Recent Trends in Electronics, Information & Communication Technology, Banglore, India, pp. 1523–1527 (2016)
- Chen, Y.N., Han, C.C., Wang, C.T., Jeng, B.S., Fan, K.C.: A cnn-based face detector with a simple feature map and a coarse-to-fine classifier. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 99, 1–13 (2009)
- Qiang-rong, J., Hua-Lan, L.: Robust human face detection in complicated color images. In: The 2nd IEEE International Conference on IEEE Information Management and Engineering (ICIME), pp. 218–221 (2010)

Multi-channel-Based Neighbor Discovery in Cognitive Radio Ad Hoc Networks

Rajiv Kumar Berwer and Santosh Kumar

Abstract Cognitive radio ad hoc networks (CRANs) provide the better utilization of already assigned channels. Cognitive radio networks enable an unlicensed or secondary user (SU) to use the frequency owned by licensed or primary users (PUs) when the PUs not using the frequency. It is difficult to share information of neighbor and available channel in CRANs environment. Neighbor discovery algorithm for better communication of neighbor discovery is most important in cognitive radio ad hoc network (CRAN) for better communication between nodes because in CRANs, nodes have the different channel. There are very less algorithms on multi-channel environment, and our goal is to find out the common channel for communication among nodes and to reduce the total number of message for neighbor discovery. For termination, threshold time *t* is defined for every node, where if reply comes within time *t*, then accept and increment the neighbor list. Our simulation result indicates that time complexity is linear and message complexity is $O(n^2)$ (reduce the number of message for neighbor discovery).

Keywords Cognitive radio network • Multi-channel • Neighbor discovery Broadcasting

1 Introduction

Cognitive radio ad hoc networks (CRANs) empower the utilization of idle channel in an opportunistic way. In CRANs, secondary user (SU) allows using free or idle portion of the spectrum without making any obstruction to primary user (PU). Channel is owned by the authorized user, i.e., PU and remaining users are SU.

R. K. Berwer (🖂) · S. Kumar

Department of Computer Engineering, National Institute of Technology, Kurukshetra, Haryana, India e-mail: rkberwer@gmail.com

S. Kumar e-mail: santosh.iet06@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_53

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

When the authorized user renter the channel, secondary user leaves the channel and switches to another accessible channel [1]. The channel is considerably available when the messages can be sent or received by the secondary user on that channel when authorized user is not using the channel. In cognitive radio ad hoc networks (CRANs), when two nodes lying inside each other's transmission scope with one common channel at minimum, then these two nodes are considered to be neighbors [2]. Every node is prepared to do time-to-time checking and recognizing the accessible channel for that node. Since the usage of channel from one region to another changes widely, dynamic channel assignment scheme is used for communication between clients. With a specific end goal to arrange a cognitive radio network, nodes are required to find their neighboring nodes and available channels for communication between them. Initially, nodes do not have any prior information about the topology of the framework and neighboring nodes [3]. Due to the geological partition between nodes, distinct cognitive radio nodes might have sets of distinct accessible channel. After sometime, accessible set of channel changes because of entry and exit of authorized users. Additionally, new cognitive radio nodes may join the system at any instant of time. Given features of cognitive radio network need new calculations to configure and form cognitive radio systems [4]. All calculations, which address the above issues, require none of the accompanying inquiries.

- 1. Neighbors of each node?
- 2. Channel that may be utilized communication between neighbors?

The goal is to develop an efficient algorithm to answer above inquiries.

2 Related Work

Despite the fact that neighbor discovery algorithm in cognitive radio ad hoc networks (CRANs), very little work has been done addressing the multiple channel systems.

Chanaka et al. [5] have developed an asynchronous neighbor discovery algorithm that searches single-hop neighbor and channel in CRN. But there is no algorithm for multiple channels in CRANs.

Chao and Hsu [6] develop a fast neighbor discovery algorithm that uses Chinese remainder theorem to find neighbor node to quickly discover the nodes.

Krishnamurthy et al. [7, 8] have developed some neighbor discovery algorithms for CR networks with single- and multi-transceiver CR nodes. But these algorithms have problem with node synchronization.

Mittal et al. [9] have on neighbor discovery algorithms in cognitive radio networks operate over multiple channels. Due to the geological partition between nodes, distinct cognitive radio nodes might have sets of distinct accessible channel. After sometime, accessible set of channel changes because of entry and exit of authorized users. Wang et al. [10] have a neighbor discovery algorithm, which uses two modes for communication—master mode and slave mode.

Islam et al. [8] have a neighbor discovery algorithm, which uses channel hopping sequence method using Tower of Hanoi (ToH) algorithm for multi-channel system. But it cannot provide complete medium access solution for cognitive radio network.

Jia [11] proposed a message passing protocols for cognitive radio networks which manage and exchange user information. However, algorithm has limitation such as it only share the information of node, and it does not tell about channels and its neighboring node.

Htike et al. [12] proposed a message broadcasting mechanism over multi-channel cognitive radio ad hoc networks. It is a message broadcasting protocol for multi-channel in CRANs.

3 System Model

- 1. Set of node (V): The symbol V represents the number of node in the cognitive radio ad hoc networks.
- 2. Channel for node i (C_i): The symbol C_i represents the number of channel with node i, in the cognitive radio ad hoc networks each node may have different channels for communication.
- 3. Channel list for node i (C_{li}): The symbol C_{li} represents the total number of channel in the cognitive radio ad hoc networks environment.
- 4. Broadcast_i (hello, C_i): The symbol represents node *i* broadcast the hello message for channel C_i so that the node which having same channel can get hello message.
- 5. N_{li} : The symbol represents the neighbor list for each node *i* in the CRANs environment, such that each node has information about its neighboring nodes.
- 6. N_c : The symbol represents the number of neighbor node with each node in CRANs environment.

3.1 Proposed Work

The cognitive radio ad hoc networks (CRANs) require specific algorithm to form and configure cognitive radio (CR) systems. We have proposed an algorithm, which will address the issues of finding neighbors of each node and the common channel among them for communication. The existing neighbor discovery algorithm is based on single channel. We improvised the existing neighbor discovery algorithm which is working on single channel environment [3, 13]. The node which having common channels (multiple channels with each node) among its neighbors can communicate easily over that channel and able to make a list of neighbors of each node.

3.2 Proposed Algorithm

1. Initialization

begin

∃i:i€V

for $\forall C_i : C_i \in C_{li}$

broadcast_i (hello, C_i);

endfor ;

waits for a time threshold t

end.

First of all, select a node *i* randomly from a set of nodes, i.e., *V* (set of nodes) and select channel over which send hello message to its neighbor which is having common channels among them [14, 15], i.e., *broadcast_i* (*hello*, C_i). Wait for sometime (threshold time *t*) so that the node does not wait for long time for Ack().

2. Action was taken on reception of hello message by node j

Begin

```
 \begin{array}{ll} \mbox{for} & j: j \in V \\ & \mbox{if ( Ack()_i != Send ) then } Ack()_i \mbox{to } i & \mbox{// node } j \mbox{ sends } ack \mbox{ to node } i \mbox{ only if it has not sent } \\ & \mbox{already} \\ & \forall \ C_j \ : \ C_j \in C_{ij} \\ & \mbox{ broadcast}_j \mbox{ (hello, } C_j) \\ & \mbox{ endfor } ; \\ & \mbox{ waits for a time threshold } \\ \end{array}
```

Node *j* sends Ack() message to node *i* only if it has not send Ack() message, and after sending Ack() message, node *j* selects channel (C_j) over which sends hello message to its neighbor which is having common channels (C_j) among them, i.e., *broadcast_j* (*hello*, C_j). Wait for sometime (threshold time *t*) so that the node does not wait for long time for Ack() message.

3. Action was taken by node *i* after broadcasting hello message

begin

on expiry of time threshold t

for all node j, from which node i has received acknowledgement

```
for j: j \in V (\text{Recv}()==\text{Ack}())
N_{ij}=N_{ij} \cup j
```

```
N_{c}=N_{c}+1;
```

endfor;

end.

After expiring of t (threshold time), all nodes were getting the Ack() message from its neighbor node. They make list of N_{li} (Neighbor list of node i) and N_c (count number of neighbor).

Let us discuss neighbor discovery in multi-channel algorithm by example as shown in Fig. 1. Assume that, there are six nodes in network and each node has set of available channels. At starting of algorithm, first, Fig. 1a, select an initiator node, i.e., 0 and node having set of available channels (c1, c2). According to the algorithm, node 0 broadcasts the hello message() for each of its available channels, i.e., *broadcast*₁ (*hello*, C_1) to its neighboring node which have common channel with node 0. So, node 0 sends hello message to node 1 and 4 over common channel among the channel c1, and similarly, *broadcast*₂ (*hello*, C_2) common channel for node 2 and node 3 is channel c2 and wait for threshold time t for Ack() from nodes.

Now other node are active i.e. node 1 can Fig. 1b broadcast the hello message() for each of its available channels $broadcast_1$ (*hello*, C_1) to its neighboring node which have common channel with node 1. So, node 1 send hello message to node 6 common channel c1 and similarly $broadcast_3$ (*hello*, C_3) common channel for node 5 is channel c3, and wait for threshold time t for ACK() from nodes. Meanwhile node 4 and node 3 Ack() to node 0 as shown in Fig. 1c.



Fig. 1 Example of neighbor discovery in multi-channel

4 Complexity

We simulated the neighbor discovery algorithm in multi-channel cognitive radio ad hoc networks (CRANs) environment. In this complexity section, we analyze the message complexity and time complexity of our neighbor discovery algorithm.

To analysis the time complexity, we have two important sections; reception of hello message and action taken by node after broadcast of hello message. We get the time complexity of neighbor discovery is $O(n^2)$ where *n* is number of nodes. Analyzing the message complexity of neighbor discovery algorithm includes total number of message from initialization of node to receiving message to node. During initialization process, each node transmits broadcast (hello message) to its neighboring nodes and neighboring node first replies for that hello message, after which they repeat initialization step and ensures that not to broadcast (hello message) to previously initiator node (because it is already discovered its neighbor in starting). Therefore, the number of duplicate message in neighbor discovery is reduced. Therefore, the total message complexity of algorithm is $O(n^2)$.

Proof: Let us take worst case

M is the number of channel with each node

n is number of nodes

node sends one hello message and receives one Ack message (two message for each node)

1st node	2M(n	-1)
2nd node	2M(n	- 2)
3rd node	2M(n	- 3)
4th node	2M(n)	(-4)

So, like that up to *n* node.....

(n-1)st node ----2*n*th node ----1 Sum of node is:

$$2M(1) + 2M(2) + 2M(3) + 2M(4) + \dots + 2M(n-3) + 2M(n-2) + 2M(n-1)$$

take 2M common from series:

$$2M(1+2+3+4+\dots+(n-3)+(n-2)+(n-1))
\frac{2M(n-1)n}{2}
O(M n^2)
But $M \ll n
O(n^2)$$$

where M (number of channel) is much smaller as compare to (n) number of nodes. Therefore, we neglect M.

5 Results

At first round, the number of message may be more but as the next round starts, the overall number of message is reduced. We maintain two arrays; first is neighboring list (NL) and second is number of neighbors (In) with each node so that the list of neighbor not having duplicate values.

The results of algorithm are shown in Fig. 2. Figure 2b shows that the message complexity for neighbor discovery algorithm with multi-channel is $O(n^2)$, and we are able to cut down the number of duplicate messages. Figure 2a shows that termination is done using threshold time *t* for every node.



Fig. 2 Simulation evaluation

6 Conclusion

We have addressed the multi-channel environment for neighbor discovery in cognitive radio network. There were very less amount of work that has been done in this regard. With our algorithm, we have achieved time complexity of $O(n^2)$ with message complexity of $O(n^2)$. Further, the duplicity of messages is completely removed from the neighbor discovery process in our algorithm. We have also considered the possible chance of infinite waiting stage for a reply message and avoided it with the help of threshold time *t* defined for each node. As an extension of this work, we are working on reducing the message complexity of the algorithm.

References

- Mansoor, N., Islam, A.K.M.M., Zareei, M., Baharun, S., Wakabayashi, T., Komaki, S.: Cognitive radio ad-hoc network architectures: a survey. Int. J. Wirel. Pers. Commun. 81(3), 1117–1142 (2015)
- De Nardis, L., Di Benedetto, M.G., Holland, O., Akhtar, A., Aghvami, H.: Neighbor and network discovery in cognitive radio networks: research activities and results in the ACROPOLIS network of excellence. In: IEEE European Wireless 2013 19th European Wireless Conference, pp. 1–6. IEEE, Guildford (2013)
- 3. Htike, Z., Hong, C.S.: Neighbor discovery for cognitive radio ad-hoc networks. In: Proceedings of the 7th International Conference on Ubiquitous Information Management and Communication, p. 102. ACM, Kota Kinabalu (2013)
- 4. Borbash, S.A., Ephremides, A., McGlynn, M.J.: An asynchronous neighbor discovery algorithm for wireless sensor networks. J. Ad-Hoc Netw. **5**(7), 998–1016 (2007)
- Arachchige, C.J.L., Venkatesan, S., Mittal, N.: An asynchronous neighbor discovery algorithm for cognitive radio network. In: 3rd IEEE Symposium on New Frontiers in Dynamic Spectrum access Networks, pp. 1–5. IEEE, Chicago (2008)
- Chao, C.M., Hsu, C.Y.: Supporting fast neighbor discovery for cognitive radio networks. In: IEEE 2013 International Conference on Computational Problem-Solving (ICCP), pp. 123– 126. IEEE, Jiuzhai (2013)
- Krishnamurthy, S., Chandrasekaran, R., Mittal, N., Venkatesan, S.: Synchronous distributed algorithms for node discovery and configuration in multi-channel cognitive radio networks. In: DISC 2006 International Symposium on Distributed Computing, vol. 4167, pp. 572–574. Springer, Heidelberg (2006)
- Islam, M.R. et al.: A neighbor discovery approach for cognitive radio networks using Tower of Hanoi sequence based channel rendezvous. In: The 5th International Conference on Information and Communication Technology for The Muslim World (ICT4 M), pp. 1–6. IEEE, Kuching (2014)
- Mittal, N., Krishnamurthy, S., Chandrasekaran, R., Venkatesan, S., Zeng, Y.: On neighbor discovery in cognitive radio networks (CRN). J. Parallel Distrib. Comput. 69(7), 623–637 (2009)
- Wang, F. et al.: Neighbor discovery based on group frequency hopping without common control channel for cognitive radio ad hoc networks. In: Communication Technology (ICCT) 15th IEEE International Conference on Communication Technology, pp. 483–487. IEEE, Guilin (2013)
- Jia, J.: Message passing based rendezvous protocols in cognitive radio networks. In: 2012 International Symposium on Communications and Information Technologies (ISCIT), pp. 382–387. IEEE, Australia (2012)
- Htike, Z., et al.: Cooperative message broadcasting in multichannel cognitive radio ad hoc networks. IEICE Transac. Fundam. Electron. Commun. Comput. Sci. 96(11), 2099–2105 (2013)
- Mahmud, A., Lee, A.D., Koo, I.S.: An efficient cooperative neighbor discovery framework of cognitive radio ad-hoc networks. Int. J. Wirel. Person. Commun. 91(4), 1603–1620 (2016)
- Song, Y., Xie, T.: A distributed broadcast protocol in multihop cognitive radio ad hoc networks without a common control channel. In.: Proceedings of IEEE INFOCOM 2012, pp. 2273–2281. IEEE, Orlando (2012)
- Song, Y., Xie, J., Wang, X.: A novel unified analytical model for broadcast protocols in multi-hop cognitive radio ad hoc networks. IEEE Trans. Mobile Computing. 13(8), 1653– 1667 (2014)

New Approach for Animal Migration Optimization Algorithm

Riya Rai and Virendra Singh Kushwah

Abstract Animal migration optimization has few limitations such as movement probability, limitations of certain factors for reproduction and limited growth of individuals. In this paper, we aim to propose an innovative approach for animal migration optimization which is being proposed for a better animal migration optimization that can work on multiple factors and will lead to a new algorithm that can work on multiple scenarios. An overview using a flow chart is given to explain the overview of the new proposed algorithm. The results have been calculated on four benchmark functions which show the enactment of the animal migration algorithm and its working. Mean standard deviation and global minima are factors which are calculated.

Keywords Animal migration optimization \cdot Cuckoo search \cdot Firefly algorithm Ant bee colony \cdot Bat algorithm \cdot Particle swarm optimization

1 Introduction

Data mining is a procedure to mining excerpt striking, inherent, beforehand unknown and hypothetically valuable information or patterns from facts in huge databases. The ultimate objective of this data assembly is to be capable to utilize this knowledge to expand a viable frame by founding beforehand unidentified patterns in the data which is used for the process of decision making [1]. An input junction of operation research and data mining is in the use of optimization algorithms, either unswervingly practical as data mining algorithms or used parameters of other algorithms [2]. These methods are started from a primary collection of variables, finding the global optimal solution by repeating the procedure [3].

R. Rai (🖂) · V. S. Kushwah

Department of Computer Science Engineering, ITM, Gwalior, India e-mail: rai.riya1811@gmail.com

V. S. Kushwah e-mail: kushwah.virendra248@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_54 509

The first popular algorithm might be genetic algorithm. In animal deeds ecosystem, migration is a general existence in the animal kingdom which has been studied deeply. The migration is unrelenting and straightens out association pretentious by the animal's own locomotors exertions transport them to novel habitats. The long distance society of animals' movement is referred as animal migration, usually on a seasonal basis [4] optimization algorithm.

2 Literature Review

Li et al. [5] proposed BAMO that is binary animal migration optimization. With the help of BAMO, we can select optimal subset of instructive features. BAMO is most pertinent for classification. With the jackknife cross-validation, a classifier *K*-nearest approach is used. Dataset including 317 proteins is tested by BAMO with *K*-nearest neighbour approach (BAMOKNN). A total of 92.43% accuracy is achieved in this approach. This model also tests dataset including 98 apoptosis, obtains 94.90% accuracy. For identification of apoptosis protein location, BAMO is a successful approach.

Huynh Thi Thanh Binh et al. [6] proposed a new method for solving a travelling salesman problem through biography-based optimization algorithm by using a new migration operator. There are several optimization problems solved by BBO. In BBO, the good information among solution is efficiently shared with the help of migration operator. The result shows that the new operator is more effective and provides good solutions for data instances.

Ezgi Deniz Ulker et al. proposed a method used for solving optimization problem based on complex array design. The remarkable results are produced by the swarm intelligence algorithm when it is used for complex optimizing problems. Animal migration optimization algorithm is one of the swarm intelligence algorithms. When AMO is used for solving complex array optimization problem, high-quality results are produced and by using its attributes, it is able to defeat local optima points. When high excellence solution is desired in complex array design, then animal migration optimization (AMO) problem is an influential algorithm.

Li et al. [7] proposed animal migration optimization algorithm which is a new type of heuristic optimization search method. In all groups of animal, we generally saw migration behaviour. To prove the presentation of AMO employs 23 benchmark functions. The author compares other optimization algorithms with AMO. Li and Yin [8] proposed an opposition-based differential evolution algorithm (ODDE). This algorithm is used for variation flow shop scheduling founded on diversity degree. The proposed ODDE algorithm performs better than other algorithms. The author compares the ODDE algorithm with several states of PSPF algorithm and with several benchmark function problems of PSPF.

Tang et al. [9] proposed a wolf search algorithm. The idea behind this algorithm comes from the wolf's hunting behaviour in which they shift as a bunch. Every individual probing practice of agent hunts. It is understandable that wolves unite by

rousing their present locations to their respective peers' locations. When the performance of the novel terrains is far better than the previous ones, it is significant that every wolf has possessed visual range and only be in action in tariff trip. This is the whole process of penetrating food.

Boussaïd et al. [10] describe some main meta-heuristics. They proposed a method to verify the similarities and differences among all the meta-heuristics. They describe various meta-heuristic ethos, some are single solution based and other are population based.

Voges et al. [11] explain a new method to describe rough cluster through template and data structures. It also clarifies the impression of evolutionary algorithm. These evolutionary algorithms are used to develop viable cluster, providing the description of cluster that contains the number of templates.

Ramos and Vale [12] proposed an electricity medium voltage (MV) consumers uniqueness and categorization. By comparing three algorithms beguiling the numeral of clusters, it adjoins the novel tariff structures to increase each customer class.

Richardson [13] in 2008 author explains the techniques worn by fellow's reactions and feedback from the students by integrated data mining and software engineering. Engineering principle-based project is STEP and is pertinent to student's life. To rush the certainty and learning aptitudes of students using STEM subject's jumbo miming mart is planned to understand correlations in a familiar situation and periodic table.

de Castro and Timmis [14] proposed opt-aiNet. On the basis of similarities, aiNET shows the communiqué of network cell and by a self-control procedure that get rid of those cells whose affinities are fewer than a stick threshold.

Alonso et al. [15] make a variation of aiNet to typical an agent that productions the Iterated Prisoner's Dilemma (IPD) that try to discover a strategy (most stimulated B-cell) in the resistant memory. In the memory mechanism of aiNET, the main alteration is made. If a B-cell is supplementary to memory, it will certainly not be detached. In this paper, we focus on immune network algorithms as a focal branch of artificial immune systems for irregularity discovery to replicate adaptive resistant scheme of optional technique.

3 Proposed Work

In proposed work, we tried to modify the AMO algorithm to perform efficiently with respect to the time. We made some changes in current algorithm from previous one. Here we used four benchmark functions to calculate the performance of AMO. So the new proposed algorithm steps are as follows:

- Generate the population through genetic algorithm.
- Mutate the population.
- Apply AMO algorithm.

- Compute the rate of fitness function $(Xi)^2$.
- For calculating the fitness function here we take ten situations. Two situations are belonging to climate and five conditions as of food.
- When we select situation, multiply the rate of fitness function with "score".
- On the origin of fitness function, animal will travel.

The AMO has few limitations like:

- 1. Movement probability.
- 2. Limitations of certain factors for reproduction.
- 3. Limited growth of individuals.



Fig. 1 Flow chart of animal migration optimization algorithm

Thus, a new approach for AMO is being proposed for a better AMO that can work on multiple factors and will lead to a new algorithm that can work on multiple scenarios.

An overview using a flow chart is given to explain the overview of the new proposed algorithm (Fig. 1).

4 Result Analysis

Here we use MATLAB 2016a for the coding of algorithm, and the experiments were performed on HP workstation with 3.0 GHz processor with 1.0 GB memory. The code is run on 64-bit operating system of Windows 10. The results have been intended on four benchmark functions. The factors which are considered in AMO are mean, standard deviation and global minima. The benchmark functions taken are Sum, Ackley, Beale and Rosenbrock. These results show the results on various benchmark functions which are considered as standard functions in order to show the results on multiple factors and functions. Mean value is represented by this result, standard deviation and global minimum. The results are represented in form of graphs (Table 1).

The results are represented in form of graphs, and a comparison has been shown for the values (Figs. 2, 3, 4 and 5).

S. No.	Functions	Algorithm	AMO
1.	Sum	Glob_min	2.5768e+04
		std	42.4393
		mean	-0.8524
2.	Ackley	Glob_min	518.4355
		std	55.4974
		mean	3.6531
3.	Beale	Glob_min	426.0937
		std	50.7612
		mean	9.6272
4.	Rosenbrock	Glob_min	2.7610e+10
		std	63.3607
		mean	-1.3503

Table 1Global minimum,standard deviation and meanvalues of benchmarkfunctions





.



5 Conclusion

In this paper, we proposed a new approach for animal migration optimization (AMO) and analysed the performance of AMO on the basis of few benchmark functions. The factors which calculated the performance of AMO are global minimum, mean and standard deviation. The performance of AMO is shown in the format of graph. There are many optimization techniques that are used for clustering, but they do not provide efficient results. Here we modify AMO to provide efficient solution. We calculate mean, global minima and standard deviation through AMO. The problem with the AMO is that it does not provide efficient results with respect to time. Here we improved the performance of AMO.

References

- 1. Han, J., Kambe, M.: Data Mining: Concepts and Techniques, vol. 8, pp. 3–6. China Machine Press (2001)
- 2. Melanie, M.: An Introduction to Genetic Algorithms. MIT, Cambridge (1999)
- 3. Sivanandam, S.N., Deepa, S.N.: Introduction to Genetic Algorithms. Springer, Berlin (2008)
- 4. Dyer, J.R.G., Ioanno, C.C., Morrell, L.J., Croft, D.P., Couzin, I.D., Waters, D.A., Krause, J.: Consensus decision making in human crowd. Anim. Behav. **75**(2), 461–470 (2008)
- Shenzhen: BAMOKNN: a novel computational method for predicting the apoptosis protein locations. In: 2016 IEEE International Conference on Bioinformatics and Biomedicine (BIBM) (2016)
- Alerstam, T., Hedenström, A., Åkesson, S.: Long-distance migration: evolution and determinants. Oikos 103(2), 247–260 (2003)
- 7. Li, X.: Animal Migration Optimization: An Optimization Algorithm Inspired by Animal Migration Behavior. Springer, London (2013)
- 8. Li, X., Yin, M.: An opposition-based differential evolution algorithm for permutation flowshop scheduling based on diversity measure. Adv. Eng. Softw. **55**, 10–31 (2013)
- Tang, R., Fong, S., Yang, X.-S., Deb, S.: Wolf search algorithm with ephemeral memory. In: IEEE Seventh International Conference on Digital Information Management (ICDIM) (2012)

- Boussaïd, I., Lepagnot, J., Siarry, P.: A survey of optimization metahuristics. Inf. Sci. 237, 82–117 (2013)
- 11. Voges, K.E., Pope, N.K.L.: Rough clustering using an evolutionary algorithm. In: 45th Hawaii International Conference of System Sciences (2012)
- Ramos, S., Vale, Z.: Data mining techniques application in power distribution utilities. In: Transmission and Distribution Conference and Exposition, 2008. T&D. IEEE/PES, pp. 1–8. IEEE (2008)
- 13. Linoff, G.S., Berry, M.J.A.: Data Mining Techniques: For Marketing, Sales, and Customer Relationship Management. Wiley, New York (2011)
- de Castro, L.N., Timmis, J.: An artificial immune network for multimodal optimisation. In: Congress on Evolutionary Computation, IEEE. Part of the 2002 IEEE World Congress on Computational Intelligence, pp. 699–704, Honolulu, Hawaii, USA (2002)
- Alonso, O.M., Nino, F., Velez, M.: A robust immune based approach to the iterated prisoner's dilemma. In: Nicosia, G., Cutello, V., Bentley, P.J., Timmis, J. (eds.) Proceeding of the Third Conference ICARIS, pp. 290–301, Edinburg, UK (2004)

A Character Image Classification Technique for Collecting Training Data for Very Large Classes

Dharam Veer Sharma and Harmohan Sharma

Abstract The major task in any pattern recognition application is collection of training data which is sufficient representative of the underlying patterns. In Urdu, this problem is aggravated due to the difficulty in the segmentation of words into characters. Due to the structure of Urdu scripts, Naskh or Nastaleeq, it becomes very difficult to segment a word into identifiable individual characters. Segmentation is only possible up to ligatures, where a ligature is a word or part of the word and consists of one or more characters. Corpora analysis has revealed that there are more than 25,000 ligatures which make the problem of image data collection and classification very gigantic. For the current work, the set of most commonly used ligatures, which comes out to be 1197 primary components and covers maximum ligatures used, has been considered. More than 850,000 ligatures have been isolated from scanned pages of 30 Urdu books. Manually classifying these ligature components into different classes for training is extremely time-consuming, monotonous, and error-prone task. The current work focuses on automatically separating isolated primary components of ligature images into separate classes based on their similarity.

Keywords OCR · Urdu · Nastaleeq script · Ligatures

1 Introduction

For development of any OCR system, some input images are required for training and testing of the system. Collection of such images is a very tedious task, and it becomes more difficult for scripts with very large number of classes like Chinese

H. Sharma (🖂)

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

D. V. Sharma

Department of Computer Science, Punjabi University, Patiala, India e-mail: dveer72@hotmail.com

Department of Computer Science, M. M. Modi College, Patiala, India e-mail: harmohan.sharma@gmail.com

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_55

and Nastaleeq script of Urdu. Urdu text images cannot be segmented up to character level, particularly if Nastaleeq script is used for writing the text, as the shape of some of the characters change with its location within the word. Some characters may have entirely different shapes based on their position.

All Urdu characters can be categorized into two sub-categories aptly named non-joiners and joiners. The joiners can be in either the isolated, initial, medial, or final shape and can also merge with the succeeding character, whereas in a contrast, the non-joiners acquire only the isolated and final shape and, as expected, do not join with the next character. A ligature emerges with the confluence of a collection of joiners and/or non-joiner joined or interconnected with each other. A ligature might end either with a space or optionally with a character of the non-joining character type. We can figure out a ligature clearly as a connected component of characters. Each individual word in Urdu is a congregation of one or more ligatures. To cite an example, the word (j, j, j) (Hindustan) is composed of three ligatures j, j, and j. Each of the first two ligatures is further comprised of three individual characters while the third ligature is an isolated character.

- *، بند* = + · · + ℓ
- ستا = ^س + ^ت + ¹

Statistical analysis of Urdu corpus reveals that there are in all around 25,000 unique ligatures used in Nastaleeq script. Of these, 2190 primary components and 17 secondary components of ligatures cover about 98% of the total text. For the purpose of development of an Urdu OCR using Nastaleeq script, a total of 2190 primary components are sufficient to achieve a reasonable degree of accuracy. Considering the entire set of nearly 25,000 distinctive ligatures for development of an OCR will reduce the recognition accuracy causing more confusion. The rest of the paper contains properties of Nastaleeq script in Sect. 2, review of the literature in Sect. 3, proposed system in Sect. 4, conclusion in Sect. 5, and references at the end of the paper.

2 Properties of Nastaleeq Script

Urdu is a Central Indo-Aryan language of the Indo-Iranian branch, belonging to the Indo-European family of languages practically spoken/written by millions of people in India, Pakistan, and other neighboring countries as primary or secondary language. Urdu has also been declared as the national language of Pakistan, and one among the 23 scheduled languages spoken in the various states/regions of India and at the same time, enjoys the status of being one of the official languages of five Indian states.

Urdu, written in the Nastaleeq style of Persian calligraphy, has 40 characters and 10 diacritical marks. The other characters/symbols used in Urdu are 20 digits (both Roman and Urdu), 7 punctuation marks, 5 honorifics, and 2 poetic marks. Many other sources give slightly different character set.

Urdu characters do not distinguish between lower-case and upper-case forms. They relatively change their shapes according to the contextual use, often depending upon the characters that precede or follows. In general, they tend to acquire one of four shapes, namely isolated or standalone, initial, medial, and final in the word. Urdu character set and both Urdu and Roman numerals are given in Fig. 1. Non-joiners and joiners are given in Figs. 2 and 3.

It is also interesting to note that the 40 main characters in Urdu script can be segregated into 21 classes on the basis of visual similarity. The similar looking characters in same class can be differentiated by presence/absence of dots, diacritic marks, or a small line. The above property can be used for reducing the ligature classes for identification. Instead of taking 40 basic characters, we consider the basic shapes of the characters and classify the dots and diacritic marks separately. This reduces the basic classes at character level from 40 to 21. A ligature usually is comprised of 1–8 Urdu characters. A compound character or a ligature is a combination of two or more characters written in such a way that there is no space between the characters, i.e., all the characters in a group are connected to each other. Every single word in Urdu is an assortment of ligatures, whereas every ligature is a compilation of well-connected components. One or a set of ligatures gives rise to an Urdu word. From OCR point of view, a ligature consists of one primary connected component and zero or more secondary connected components. The primary component is the contiguous part of a ligature that is written at a

Fig. 1 Urdu character set and both Urdu and Roman numerals



Fig. 2 Isolated form of non-joiners

Fig. 3 Isolated form of joiners in Urdu

stretch, without any break, while the secondary connected component corresponds to the set of dots, diacritic marks, and special symbols written above or below the associated ligature. Very clearly the primary component gives the visual characteristic of a ligature.

The writing style of Nastaleeq is observed to be highly cursive in nature with multiple baselines and an obvious overlapping of characters in adjacent ligatures, along with a vertical stacking of characters within a single ligature. As expected, these characteristics make the character recognition in Nastaleeq more complex and difficult. Some of the characteristics are as follows:

- It is written diagonally, directionally from top right to bottom left with a accompanied stacking of characters. It is observed that all the ligatures tend to be categorically tilted to a certain degree to the right side.
- Being highly context sensitive, Nastaleeq imposes a characteristic to the letters to adapt different shapes. The shape of a character depends on the succeeding characters. A character may end up to a whopping 45 different shapes.
- Significant vertical overlapping, both within ligatures and among ligatures, is observed.
- The position of the Nuktas (dots) may be replaced during joining process. The Nuktas present in Urdu characters may change their positions when joined with other characters.

3 Review of the Literature

The field of OCR has received significant focus in the recent years. A number of methodologies for the recognition of Latin script [1] and Chinese script [2] have been proposed. The Oriya language leads the Indian scripts on which a lot of research has been done [3], Bangla [4, 5], and Devnagari [6, 7] scripts. Some studies have also been reported on Gurmukhi [8], Telugu [9], and Tamil [10] scripts. Naz et al. [11] endeavor to provide survey on OCR work on Urdu-like cursive scripts with special emphasis on segmentation-based and segmentation-free Nastaleeq and Naskh scripts. The survey encompasses work related to the recognition of printed, handwritten, online character, and on the various techniques being applied for preprocessing, segmentation, feature extraction, classification, and recognition. The study of the current recognition methods for Urdu OCR acknowledges that most of the research focused on isolated characters or ligature-based recognition. Sharma and Sharma [12] also discussed state-of-the-art in Nastaleeq Script Recognition.

At CENPARMI in Montreal, Canada, authors [13] have created an Urdu handwriting database of 109,588 images from 343 various writers from the various regions of the world for the Urdu off-line handwriting recognition, which includes 14,890 samples of 44 isolated characters, 60,329 samples of isolated digits, 1705 samples of five special symbols, 19,432 samples of 57 financial related Urdu words,
12,914 samples of numeral strings with/without decimal points, and 318 samples of Urdu dates in different patterns. Experiments are conducted on Urdu digits recognition with an accuracy of 98.61%.

In a paper presented by [14], they have discussed the variety of shapes of Urdu characters. The aim of this paper is to identify all possible shapes of characters based on the context in which they occur in ligatures. Since it is not possible to study all possible ligatures, they have limited their study up to four character ligatures. The study mentions 474 shapes of different ligatures based on the classification of Urdu characters.

Pal and Sarkar [15] have suggested a system for recognition of text printed in Urdu. In this system, a scanned image of the document is captured using a flatbed scanner and then pipelined through the subsequent procedures of skew correction, line segmentation, and character segmentation modules, in that order. By combining techniques like topological features, contour-based features to name a few, the recognition of individual characters is done. The system thus developed has been used to conduct a prototype test on printed Urdu characters. The system recognizes basic characters only and does not deal with recognition of compound character segmentation accuracy is 96.6%. The segmentation errors largely exist because of touching characters. The recognition rate for the basic characters and numerals is 97.8%.

The online handwriting recognition has great potential to improve user and computer communication. Online handwriting recognition requires a transducer that captures the writing as it is written. The most common of these devices is the electronic tablet or digitizer. These devices use a pen that is digital in nature. Malik and Khan [16] created a system that accepted online Urdu characters written by the user with the help of stylus pen or mouse, and converted the inputted information into Urdu text. The system had the capability to recognize only individual characters and Urdu numerals though the ligatures were not addressed. The system performs the recognition of 39 Urdu characters, 10 numerals, and 200 words (two character words). There are, in all, six phases involved in the process of online handwritten text recognition. Individually, each phase is implemented using a different technique depending on the speed of the input and the level of accuracy. A tree-based dictionary search for the classification of characters has been used resulting in a recognition rate for isolated characters and numerals as 93 and 78%, respectively, (for two character words).

Husain et al. [17] devised an approach involving the cursive Urdu Nastaleeq script which is specifically handwritten. About 250 ligatures are recognized presently. In this system, there is a minimization of errors by using segmentation-free approach. There has been a substantial increase in the number of identified ligatures, therefore recognizing 250 base ligatures and 6 secondary strokes. When combined, they form 864 single characters, 2 characters, and 3 character ligatures and can recognize 50,000 common words from Urdu dictionary successfully. The recognition rate of base ligatures was 93% and of the secondary strokes was 98%.

An OCR for Urdu Nastaleeq with a recognition rate of 93.4% has been developed [18]. This technique revolves around the approach avoiding the usage of a lexicon for the purpose of OCR of Urdu Script using the inherent complexity of Urdu script for character recognition. A word is scanned and analyzed for the level of complexity and as the level changes; the point is marked for a character. Following this, the character is segmented and later fed to a neural network. Three-step character segmentation is explained in the sequence—lines of text are identified, secondly words are identified, and finally each character is segmented and extracted from a word/ sub-word using its complexity level. Once this phase is covered, then the output of segmentation is fed into the neural network for final classification/recognition.

Javed et al. [19] proposed a technique implemented on Nastaleeq Urdu wherein the ligatures are used without breaking them up into smaller segmental units. Extraction of global transformational features from a non-segmented ligature followed by which the extracted data is fed into the Hidden Markov Model (HMM) recognizer. First the shape of the character is identified by its shape and then recognized sectioning it into the class of feature vector. Using this, a count of 3655 ligatures were tested and 3375 ligatures were identified perfectly thus giving an accuracy of 92%.

A system in which an Arabic word as a single unit using a HMM is recognized. The system works on a predefined lexicon acting as a look-up word list. The skeleton of the word is derived using the thinning algorithm using the centroid of the skeleton is calculated. After all the skeletal segments are extracted, resulting in an eight-dimensional feature vector. Each feature vector is mapped to the closest symbol in the codebook. A 294-word lexicon acquired from a variety of script sources using this methodology, and recognition rates of up to 97% have been achieved [20].

Pathan et al. [21] brought up a technique to recognize off-line handwritten isolated Urdu characters based on the concepts of invariant moments, primary and secondary component separation. The characters of Urdu alphabet were segregated into single component and multi-component characters. If the letter is multi-component, it was further segmented into primary and secondary components, with their invariant moments being calculated and classified using SVM. The developed technique was then implemented on a Dataset of 36,800 isolated characters. 200 image samples were used for training and 600 for testing, for each of the 46 characters. This system resulted in an overall recognition rate for all off-line handwritten isolated Urdu characters with the accuracy of 93.59%.

A hybrid approach was adopted for breaking up the text by the line segmentation implemented by the top-down technique, while the bottom-up segmentation furnished the contributing ligatures. This approach, [22] faced quite a few intermediary challenges like the horizontal overlapping of ligatures, diacritic issues, merged ligatures, or even broken lines. The count of associated primary and secondary components is also analyzed. 42,441 connected components from 45 Urdu images are considered, and it is found that 55.5% of the components are primary and remaining are secondary components. The system is tested to classify the primary and secondary components correctly with 99.02% accuracy.

The recognition set of ligatures is componentized into different the primary and secondary classes of connected components using the connected component analysis procedure. Though the individual count of the ligatures covered stands at 4657 (90% coverage), which is substantially reduced to 2212 post segmentation, thereby increasing the percentile of data coverage to about 99%. The split-up of this count is 2190 primary connected components and 22 secondary connected components. Urdu script also has 41 isolated characters that are further classified as 21 primary and secondary connected components. It is concluded thus that classes for recognition of Urdu text stands at 2233 inclusive of 2211 primary and 22 secondary components [23].

Lehal and Rana [24] proposed a recognition system applied on a total of 9262 ligatures formed from 2190 primary components and 17 secondary components. The usage of DCT, Gabor filters, and Zoning-based features coupled with kNN, HMM, and SVM (polynomial) classifiers have been experimented to attain a recognition accuracy of 98% on presegmented ligatures. The Unicode string of the ligature is constructed once the primary and secondary components are identified. For the same, a binary search tree is structured with all the nodes in the BST represent the primary component codes. The associated secondary components are nicely managed using the linked list data structure. The search sequence in a binary search tree starts off from the node of the primary component, moving on to the secondary level linked list attached to a specific node, resulting finally in a Unicode string.

4 Proposed System

The proposed system is meant for classifying the unknown images based on [23] from the collection of ligature images to known classes. For the purpose of collection of images of ligatures, 2467 pages from 30 books of Urdu have been scanned and more than 850,000 ligatures have been extracted using connected component analysis. Manually, filtering the unknown images of more than 850,000 ligatures into 1197 classes is an extremely difficult and time-consuming task. For the purpose of classification single image of each primary component of the known 1197 is used and compared with the unknown images. Different feature extraction methods including zoning, moments, DCT and DTW have been tried. Moments based methods are ruled out due to their time complexity and after analysis zoning was found to be the most suitable method of feature extraction. For classification of unknown images into know classes, technique like kNN and SVM have been tried.

During filtering process, the unknown images are divided into two categories. One of those images whose Euclidean distance under kNN comes out to be less than 0.5 and other whose distance is between 0.5 and 1.1. The images of second category are manually scanned for wrong classification.

5 Conclusion

Since the task of comparing known 1197 images with more than 850,000 unknown images is quite difficult the need of automation was felt. The system has successfully classified the unknown images to known classes with accuracy of 97.64%. The degree of accuracy has been manually calculated by observing all unknown images after their classification into know 1197 classes. Though the system has been used for filtering ligatures of Urdu in Nastaleeq script, it can be used for any other script as well. However, its suitability remains to be tested for other scripts. The filtered images can also serve as a benchmarking database.

References

- 1. Mori, S., Suen, C.Y., Yamamoto, K.: Historical review of OCR research and development. Proc. IEEE. **80**, 1029–1058 (1992)
- Nagy, G.: Chinese character recognition—a twenty five years retrospective. In: Proceedings of 9th ICPR, pp. 109–114 (1988)
- 3. Chaudhuri, B.B., Pal, U., Mitra, M.: Automatic recognition of printed Oriya script. Sadhana 27(1), 23–34 (2002)
- Chaudhuri, B.B., Pal, U.: A complete printed Bangla OCR system. Pattern Recogn. 31, 531– 549 (1998)
- Alam, M.M., Kashem, M.A.: A complete Bangla OCR system for printed characters. J. Commun. Inf. Technol. 1(01), 30–35 (2010)
- Pal, U., Chaudhuri, B.B.: Printed Devanagari script OCR system. Vivek-BOMBAY 10, 12– 24 (1997)
- Dongre, V.J., Mankar, V.H.: A review of research on Devanagari character recognition. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 12(2), 8–15 (2010)
- Lehal, G., Singh, C.: A Gurumukhi script recognition system. In: Proceedings of 15th ICPR, 2, pp. 557–560 (2000)
- 9. Negi, A., Bhagvati, C., Krishna, B.: An OCR system for Telugu. In: Proceedings of 6th ICDAR, pp. 1110–1114 (2001)
- Sirmony, G., Chandrasekaran, R., Chandrasekaran, M.: Computer recognition of printed Tamil characters. Pattern Recogn. 10, 243–247 (1978)
- Naz, S., Hayat, K., Razzak, M.I., Anwar, M.W., Madani, S.A., Khan, S.U.: The optical character recognition of Urdu-like cursive scripts. Pattern Recogn. 47(3), 1229–1248 (2014)
- 12. Sharma, H., Sharma, D.V.: State of the art in Nastaleeq script recognition. Int. J. Comput. Trends Technol. **39**(1), 40–46 (2016)
- Sagheer, M.W., He, C.L., Nobile, N., Suen, C.Y.: A new large Urdu database for off-line handwriting recognition. In: Image Analysis and Processing (ICIAP 2009), pp. 5716, 538– 546 (2009)
- Wali, A., Gulzar, A., Zia, A., Ghazali, M.A., Rafiq, M. I., Niaz, M. S., Hussain, S., Bashir, S.: Contextual shape analysis of Nastaleeq. CRULP Annual Student Report, pp. 288–302 (2002)
- 15. Pal, U., Sarkar, A.: Recognition of printed Urdu script. In Proceedings of the 7th ICDAR, 1183–1187 (2003)
- Malik, S., Khan, S.A.: Urdu online handwriting recognition. In: Proceedings of IEEE International Conference on Emerging Technologies, Islamabad, Pakistan, pp. 27–31 (2005)

- Husain, S.A., Sajjad, A., Anwar, F.: Online Urdu character recognition system. In: Proceedings of IAPR Conference on Machine Vision Applications, Tokyo, Japan, pp. 98–102 (2007)
- Ahmad, Z., Orakzai, J.K., Shamsher, I., Adnan, A.: Urdu Nastaleeq optical character recognition. Proc. World Acad. Sci. Eng. Technol. 26, 249–252 (2007)
- Javed, S.T., Hussain, S., Maqbool, A., Asloob, S., Jamil, S., Huma, M.: Segmentation free Nastalique Urdu OCR. World Acad. Sci. Eng. Technol. 70, 457–462 (2010)
- Khorsheed, M.S., Clocksin, W.F.: Structural features of cursive Arabic script. In: Proceedings of 10th British Machine Vision Conference, Nottingham, UK, 422–431 (1999)
- Pathan, I.K., Ali, A.A., Ramteke, R.J.: Recognition of offline handwritten isolated Urdu character. Adv. Comput. Res. 4(1), 117–121 (2012)
- 22. Lehal, G.S.: Ligature segmentation for Urdu OCR. In: Proceedings of the 12th International Conference on Document Analysis and Recognition (ICDAR) USA, 1130–1134 (2013)
- 23. Lehal, G.S.: Choice of recognizable units for URDU OCR. In: Proceedings of the workshop on Document Analysis and Recognition (DAR), pp. 79–85 (2012)
- 24. Lehal, G.S., Rana, A.: Recognition of Nastalique Urdu ligatures. In: Proceedings of the 4th International Workshop on Multilingual OCR, USA (2013)

Feature Extraction and Classification Techniques in Character Recognition Systems—A Comparative Study

Preeti Malviya and Maya Ingle

Abstract Character recognition (CR) process has been extensively used in transformational research areas of computer science. It has been observed that these areas mainly cover recognition of various languages such as Devnagari, Marathi, Gurumukhi, Bangla, Malayalam, and Modi. Feature extraction and classification techniques play an important role in CR. Accuracy of recognition is subjective to selected feature extraction and classification techniques. These techniques involve mainly chain code, zoning, Zernike moments, projection histogram, template matching, etc. A comparative study of various feature extraction and classification techniques has been carried out based on some vital parameters such as data type, sample size, accuracy. Some important observations have been presented at a glance out of this study. These observations will be highly useful to the researchers putting efforts in the domain of recognition of characters in terms of improving the recognition rate highly.

Keywords Character recognition \cdot Feature extraction \cdot Classification SVM \cdot ANN

1 Introduction

Character recognition (CR) process has always grappled its importance in various research domains of computer science. There exist different recognizers for various languages such as Devnagari, Marathi, Gurumukhi, Bangla, Malayalam, Chinese, Arabic, Modi accompanied with different feature extraction and classification techniques. In this perspective, there subsist different feature extraction techniques

P. Malviya (🖂) · M. Ingle

School of Computer Science & Information Technology, DAVV, Indore, Madhya Pradesh, India

e-mail: Preetiamalviya@gmail.com

M. Ingle e-mail: Mayaingle22@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and

Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_56

such as intersection, shadow chain code, histogram, and straight line recognition along with fitting including multilayer perceptron classifier in order to recognize handwritten Devnagari characters. In this regard, an experiment is performed with a data set of 4900 samples and overall recognition rate observed is 92.80% using a decision algorithm based on weighted majority voting technique [1]. In case of recognizing Devnagari numerals, an Automated Numeral Extraction and Segmentation Program (ANESP) operated along with moment invariant and Affine Moment Invariant feature extraction techniques. Further, extracted features (i.e., 18) are classified using Support Vector Machine (SVM), providing 99.48% accuracy [2]. In order to recognize Bangla characters, a model is developed using template matching algorithm based on normalized cross-correlation. Experiment is carried out over 1250 character images that are captured by digital camera with .jpg format and gained 93.92% average accuracy [3]. Additionally, Arabic printed characters identify in a manner that it reduces data processing time and increases efficiency of recognition. In this view, features of characters have been extracted and used instead of the whole character matrix. For that purpose, skeleton of characters and structural information are traced using an algorithm. It provides thinned image which is used for feature extraction. After extracting appropriate features, backpropagation neural network is used for classification and gaining 97% accuracy [4]. Moreover, numerals of Modi script recognized using decision tree as classifier along with morphological operations. At each node of decision tree, these operations are used to extract features of input data set, obtaining 75% recognition rate [5]. It is observed that a lot of research efforts have been made on the CR for various languages. However, there exists a wide scope to present the comparative study of different feature extraction and classification techniques explored at a glance so as to provide ease of use guidance to the research community.

Numerous feature extraction and classification techniques play an important role in character recognition. Recognition rate depends on selected feature extraction techniques. Section 2 deals with existing feature extraction techniques in brief. Extracted features may be efficiently classified using classification techniques such as SVM, template matching. Recognition rate may be improved by applying appropriate classifier. Different classification techniques are elaborated in Sect. 3. We present comparative study of various languages on the basis of different parameters mainly sample type, sample size, recognition rate, etc. in Sect. 4. Finally, we listed important observation and conclude the results in Sect. 5.

2 Existing Feature Extraction Techniques

In general, feature extraction techniques are applied to extract features from image and construct feature vector for training data set images. Literature reveals that there exist different types of feature extraction techniques for various existing languages such as Devnagari, Modi, Bangla, Chinese. Accordingly, feature extraction techniques are further classified on the basis of features mainly statistical, geometrical, structural, topological, global transformation, series expansion, etc., [6, 7]. Few of them are discussed briefly as follows.

2.1 Statistical Features Based Techniques

In general, statistical feature extraction techniques are based on some quantitative measurement. It is used to reduce the dimension of the feature set and provide high speed and low complexity, whereas these techniques do not allow reconstruction of the original image. There subsist different statistical feature-based techniques such as zoning, projection histograms, N-tuples, crossings and distances [8–10]. We discuss them as follows.

Zoning

In this method, the character frame is divided into N \times M zones and feature vector is created from extracted features of each zone. The density of each zone is calculated using D(i) = N(i)/T(i), where D is density of each zone, *i* represents number of pixels, whereas N and T are number of foreground pixels and total number of pixels in each zone, respectively. It is noticed that using zoning method, different combinations of pattern pixels may yield to same feature values. In order to overcome the problem, zone-based method applied in such a manner that each pattern pixel contributes a unique value to feature computation. Hence, modified feature values provide 88.9% recognition rate for Devnagari handwritten numerals as well as characters [11]. Also, zone-based method for feature extraction along with SVM as classifier is used to develop a system called PANHINDA. It recognizes handwritten articles in offline mode using a set of 200 sample images providing 99.5% accuracy [12]. In addition, zone-based hybrid approach is used to recognize Tamil characters. It extracts 54 directional features from characters image, namely number of horizontal, vertical, and directional lines along with their total length of each zone. After extracting zonal features, Euler number is calculated as an extra feature for entire image. Total 55 features are extracted using Artificial Neural Network (ANN), gaining 98% accuracy [13]. A system has been developed to recognize Arabic digits using zone-based features including SVM classifier, providing 97.9% accuracy [14].

Projection Histogram

Projection histogram method is used to extract number of black pixels in the vertical and horizontal directions of the specified area of particular character. Projection histogram, run histogram, and entropy are used to extract features from compressed data in spite of decompressed data in order to reduce decompression time. Using above-mentioned techniques, extracted features from compressed data are identical as compared to features extracted from decompressed data [15]. Furthermore, Hidden Markov Model (HMM) has been used to recognize action along with projection histogram and shape descriptors as feature sets on the UT Tower and Weizmann data set. Projection histogram provided 96% accuracy. On

the other hand, the better results may be achieved using shape descriptors as compared to projection histogram on Weizmann data set [16]. Moreover, a comparative study is performed on projection histogram, zonal features, chain code histogram, and histogram of oriented grade features in recognition of Malayalam characters. Performance of these techniques is analyzed by two-layered feed-forward network classifier, gaining best accuracy of 94.23% using histogram of oriented gradient features [17].

2.2 Global Transformation and Series Expansion-Based Techniques

Global transformation and series expansion is compact encoding of the linear combination of the coefficient. Deformations such as translation and rotations are invariant under global transformation and series expansion. This class pertains to various techniques mainly wavelets, Zernike moments, Fourier transform, Gabor transform, Karhunen–Loeve expansion, etc. [7, 8]. Here, few of them are discussed as follows.

Wavelets

Wavelet transform is used to recognize Chinese character-type information (i.e., font families, printed/handwritten) of character image. It extracts wavelet features from the transformed image and achieves 95.84% accuracy using MQDF classifier [18]. Furthermore, multistage feature extraction and classification scheme along with single-level wavelet decomposition are used to recognize Marathi compound characters. Generated approximation coefficients are again modified and used as another set of features. The recognition rate of 96.14 and 94.22% is achieved for training set and testing samples with wavelet approximation features, respectively. Similarly, the recognition rate of 96.68 and 96.23% is achieved with same training set and testing set with modified wavelet features, respectively [19]. In order to recognize Arabic characters, ANN is used along with Discrete Wavelet Transform (DWT) and Discrete Cosine Transform (DCT) on 5600 character data set, respectively. It is observed that DCT technique provides higher recognition rate as compared to DWT technique [20].

Zernike Moments

Zernike moments are used to feature extraction along with SVM as well as K-NN classifier to recognize handwritten Devnagari (Marathi) compound characters. An experiment has been performed with 27,000 handwritten character images into 30×30 pixel images. The overall recognition rate of 98.37 and 95.82% is obtained using SVM and K-NN classifier, respectively [21]. It is observed that reliability and accuracy of Zernike moments attained better than Hu's seven invariant moments for recognition of handwritten Modi numerals. Zernike moment with Zernike features depicted 86.66% recognition result higher than recognition rate achieved by Hu's

seven moments [22]. On the other hand, central moment along with density-based zoning method recognizes 12,690 isolated Marathi numerals with 5-fold cross-validation process. It has been noticed that 97.80% accuracy obtained using SVM, whereas 96.31 and 96.55% accuracy was achieved using minimum distance classifier and K-NN classifier, respectively [23].

2.3 Structural Features Based Techniques

Structural features are related to the geometry of the character set such as concavities and convexities in the characters, number of end points, number of holes, number of loops, number of turns in the characters. Different techniques are used to extract these features such as coding, graphs, and trees, extracting and counting topological structures, measuring and approximating the geometrical properties [7, 8]. Discussion of aforementioned techniques is presented as follows.

Chain Code Method

It is used to represent the boundary by a connected sequence of straight line segment of specified length and direction [24]. Normalized chain codes and wavelet filters are used to design an algorithm to recognize handwritten Kannada vowels, gaining 95.3% accuracy [25]. Also, 80% accuracy has been gained in recognition of offline cursive characters using chain code method along with neural network classifier [26]. On the contrary, to improve the recognition rate of Modi vowels, an additional feature centroid of the image is employed using chain code method. Applied method along with two-layered feed-forward network provides 68.15% accuracy [27]. Directional features of Modi numerals are usually composed of triangular, rectangular, and horizontal cells which are recognized using chain code algorithm providing 95% detection rate [28].

Extracting and Counting Topological Structures

In this method, predefined structure is searched in a character or word for feature extraction. Characters and words are represented by extracting and counting many topological features such as dots, extreme points, number of holes, vertical end points of character etc. [6, 7]. In this context, several topological features are used to recognize Telugu printed numeric characters. These features are extracted for particular character based on counting the number of closed regions (holes) of that character. Further, different types of morphological unification performed to extract specific attributes of the targeted characters. Above-mentioned technique provides better accuracy as compared to other existing techniques and especially suitable for Indian languages such as Hindi, Telugu. [29]. Besides, convex hull feature set is used to recognize Bangla character and numeral data set. Graham scan algorithm is used to compute convex hull features over data set that are designed with 10,000 samples of Bangla character including 1200 samples of numeral data.

Consequently, 76.86 and 99.45% accuracy is achieved for Bangla characters and numerals, respectively, using multilayer perceptron (MLP) [30].

3 Classification Techniques

It is the decision making part of a recognition system that utilizes extracted features to create class membership in CR. Numerous techniques for classification are available such as statistical method, syntactic or structural method, template matching, Artificial Neural Network, Support Vector Machine [6, 8]. Here, we discuss few of them as follows.

3.1 Template Matching

Template matching method is used to recognize images by matching recognized character with stored prototype [8]. It is deployed with optical character recognition system that is implemented using MATLAB to recognize multifont (i.e., font style, size). Templates are designed in such a way that includes varieties of font size and style. Due to this variety, system recognizes character irrespective of font size and font style. Accuracy is tested over 5 different character sets, each set formed with different font size and style gaining 90% detection rate [31]. In addition, different template matching techniques, specifically, normalized cross-correlation, correlation techniques, and performance index method, are used and compared in recognition process of scanned document images which contain characters (both uppercase and lowercase) and numerals. It has been noticed that performance index method provided better accuracy as compared to normalized cross-correlation method for document images [32]. Besides, template matching is used to extract normalized Musnad Arabic characters. Further, extracted characters are compared with each template in database to match closest representation of that character. Classification has been performed using matching metric that is computed using 2D correlation coefficient. Consequently, 100% accuracy is obtained for 512×512 and 256×256 pixel resolution images, whereas it reduced (i.e., 90%) for 128×128 resolution images [33]. In the same manner, an algorithm is developed for Offline Typewritten Odia Character Recognition using template matching using Unicode Mapping. Aforestated algorithm extracted features and matched the template with Unicode from each individual character, providing 97% precision rate [34].

3.2 Artificial Neural Network

In general, ANN architectures can be classified into two major groups, namely feed-forward and feedback (recurrent) networks. The most common ANNs are used in the CR systems, namely multilayer perceptron of the feed-forward networks and the Kohonen's self-organizing map of the feedback networks [8]. In this perspective, Kohonen neural network is used to develop Modi Script Character Recognizer System (MSCR) using Otsu's binarization algorithm. It recognizes 22 different characters of Modi script including vowels as well as consonants, achieving 72.6% accuracy with certain limitations [35]. In the same view, ANN followed by backpropagation algorithm is used to recognize English language character set and numerals. However, characters used for recognition purpose are captured by digital camera and preprocessed to remove noise before feature extraction. The recognition rate gained by implementation is 85% for all the data set [36]. Further, Malayalam language has been investigated for recognition of its characters using Hu invariant moments. Neural network is used for classification providing 93.7% recognition rate [37]. Moreover, neural network including multistage multifeature scheme is used to recognize compound character of Marathi language. Neural network is trained and tested by huge compound character data set collected from different writers. Next, different multilayer perceptrons (MLPs) are used for classification gaining 97.95% accuracy [38].

3.3 Support Vector Machine

SVM is used as pairwise discriminating classifier that is able to identify decision boundary with maximal margin. SVM is compared with K-NN method in recognition of handwritten and printed Devnagari characters. Using SVM, 82 and 94% accuracy has been achieved for handwritten and printed characters, respectively. It provides better accuracy as compared to K-NN classifier [39]. In the same manner, three different feature extraction techniques along with SVM are used to identify 12,240 Devnagari character data sets, obtaining 94.89% accuracy [40]. In case of Gurumukhi character recognition, SVM-based system has been developed. It prepared skeleton of character in order to extract diagonal, open end point, and intersection features. SVM is used to classify these features using different kernels such as linear kernel, polynomial kernel, and RBF kernel. Therefore, SVM using polynomial kernel provides higher accuracy 94.29% as compared to other approaches [41].

4 Comparative Study

We have explored various feature extraction and classification techniques in CR for several languages in detail. The parameters of interest are data type, sample size, number of extracted features, data validation, and accuracy as depicted in Table 1. It is worth to state that CR is highly influenced by above-mentioned parameters. The parameter data type defines nature of data that is used in recognition process. It is classified into two categories, namely printed and handwritten. Further, numerals and characters are sub-types of aforementioned categories. Sample size represents the total number of characters/numerals in a sample. Additionally, sample size is divided into training data set and testing data set. The training data set is used to train classifiers, whereas testing set is used to test performance of that classifier. Moreover, number of extracted features defines total number of features extracted using feature extraction techniques. The data validation process ensures the integrity of results obtained using recognition process. Lastly, accuracy is used to evaluate the recognition rate.

5 Results and Conclusion

In this paper, different parameters such as data type, sample size, number of extracted features and accuracy. are used to compare various feature extraction and classification techniques. The following are the important observations associated with the performance issues of feature extraction and classification techniques in CR.

- Higher accuracy 99.5% has been achieved in recognition of English language using zone based features extraction method with SVM classifier.
- SVM and K-NN along with Zernike moments have been used to recognize Devnagari characters. The recognition rate 98.37 and 95.82% obtained using SVM and K-NN, respectively. Using SVM, 94.89% recognition rate achieved for Devnagari characters with the sample size 12,240 and 10-fold cross-validation. On the other hand, SVM using zone-based method has been acquired the lowest recognition rate 88.9% with 4750 sample size of Devnagari characters.
- In recognition of Modi characters, accuracy of 68.15 and 72.6% has been achieved using chain code method and Kohonen's NN, respectively.
- In recognition of Modi numerals, the highest recognition rate of 95% using chain code method has been obtained, whereas the lowest recognition rate is observed as 75% using morphology approach.
- The recognition rate majorly depends on feature extraction techniques and classification techniques as well as on sample size, character type, and number of extracted features.

Table 1 C	omparativ	'e study of	different	languages								
Source	Data type				Sample si	ize		Feature extraction	Total	Classification	Data validation	Accuracy
language	Printed		Handwritte	en				techniques	extracted	techniques	method	(%)
	Numeral	Character	Numeral	Character	Total size	Training set	Testing set		features			
English [12]	No	No	No	Yes	200	100	100	Zone-based	1	SVM	I	99.5
Devnagari [1, 11, 21, 40]	No	No	No	Yes	4900	3332	1568	Chain code, histogram intersection, shadow features, straight line fitting features	1	ANN	3-fold cross-validation	92.80
	No	No	Yes	Yes	4750	1	1	Zone-based	64	SVM	1	88.9
	No	No	No	Yes	27,000	0096	17,400	Zernike moments	1	SVM and K-NN	5-fold cross-validation	98.37 (SVM) 95.82 (K-NN)
	No	No	No	Yes	12,240	1	1	Foreground pixel, distribution zone density features, background direction distribution features	314	WAS	10-fold cross-validation	94.89
Modi [5,	No	No	Yes	No	60		1	Morphology	1	Decision table	I	75
22, 27, 28,	No	No	Yes	No	100	70	30	Zernike moment	I	-	1	86.66
رد د	No	No	No	Yes	65 pages	70%	15%	Chain code method	I	Two-layered fee forward network	I	68.15
	No	No	Yes	No	I		I	Chain code method	1	1	1	95
	No	No	No	Yes	I	1	I	I	I	Kohonen NN	I	72.6
											9	continued)

Feature Extraction and Classification Techniques in Character ...

Table 1 (c	continued)											
Source	Data type				Sample s	ize		Feature extraction	Total	Classification	Data validation	Accuracy
language	Printed		Handwritte	u				techniques	extracted	techniques	method	(%)
	Numeral	Character	Numeral	Character	Total size	Training set	Testing set		features			
Tamil [13]	No	No	No	Yes	200	100	100	Zone-based hybrid	55	Feed-forward	I	98
								approach		backpropagation ANN		
Arabic [4, 14]	No	Yes	No	No	I	I	I	1	I	Backpropagation NN	1	97
	Yes	No	No	No	I	1	I	Zone-based method	I	SVM	1	97.9
Chinese [18]	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	730 Set	635	95	Wavelet transform	702	MQDF	I	95.84
Bangla [3]	No	No	No	Yes	1250	1	1	I	I	Template	I	93.92
										matching		

536

• The study reveals that there exist a few researches in recognition of Modi script, thereby providing a vast scope of research in the same domain.

The observations drawn will be useful to the researchers putting efforts in the domain of recognition of characters in terms of improving the recognition rate highly.

References

- Arora, S., Bhattacharjee, D., Nasipuri, M., Basu, D., Kunda, M.: Combining Multiple Feature Extraction Techniques for Handwritten Devnagari Character Recognition. IEEE Region Colloquium and the Third ICIIS, Kharagpur, India, pp. 342–347 (2008)
- Support vector machine for handwritten Devnagari numeral recognition: Shrivastava, S.K., Gharde., S.S. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 7, 9–14 (2010)
- Uddin, M.A.: Handwritten Bangla character recognition using normalized cross correlation. J. Comput. Eng. (IOSR-JCE) 16(3), 55–60 (2014)
- Haithem, A.-A., Dhannoon, B.N., Abass, H.M.: Printed Arabic Character recognition using neural network. J. Emerg. Trends Comput. Inf. Sci. 5(1) (2014). ISSN: 2079-8407
- 5. Besekar, D.N.: Recognition of numerals of Modi script using Morphology approach. Int. Ref. Res. J. **3**(27) (2008)
- Verm, R., Ali, J.: Survey of feature extraction and classification techniques in OCR systems. Int. J. Comput. Appl. Inf. Technol. 1(3), 1–3 (2012)
- Tawde, G.Y., Kundargi, J.M.: An overview of feature extraction techniques in OCR for Indian scripts focused on offline handwriting. Int. J. Eng. Res. Appl. (IJERA) 3(1), 919–926 (2013)
- 8. Arica, N., Yarman, F.T.: An overview of character recognition focused on off-line handwriting. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern-Part C: Appl. Rev. **31**(2), 16–233 (2001)
- Jain, A.K., Duin, R.P.W., Mao, J.: Statistical pattern recognition: a review. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 22(1), 4–38 (2000)
- Devijer, P.A., Kittler, J.: Pattern Recognition: A Statistical Approach. Prentice-Hall, Englewood Cliffs (1982)
- Murthy, R.O.V., Hanmandlu, M.: Zoning based Devanagari character recognition. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 27(4) (2011)
- Dassanayake, D.M.D.S.S., Yasara, R.A.D.D., Fonseka, H.S.R., HeshanSandeepa, E., Seneviratne, L.: Panhinda-Offline Character Recognition System for Handwritten Articles. IEEE, pp. 1–4 (2013)
- Safi, L.A., Srinivasagan, K.G.: Offline Tamil handwritten character recognition using zone based hybrid feature extraction technique. Int. J. Comput. Appl. 65(1), 12–16 (2013)
- Sinha, G., Kumar, J.: Arabic numeral recognition using SVM classifier. Int. J. Emerg. Res. Manag. Technol. 2 (2013). ISSN: 2278-9359
- 15. Mohammed, J., Nagabhushan, P., Chaudhuri, B.B.: Extraction of projection profile, run-histogram and entropy features straight from run-length compressed text-documents. Computer Vision and Pattern Recognition Unit Indian Statistical Institute, Kolkata, India
- 16. Vezzani, R., Baltieri, D., Cucchiara, R.: HMM based action recognition with projection histogram features. http://citeseerx.ist.psu.edu/viewdoc/summary?doi=10.1.1.415.4028
- 17. Mary, A., Chacko, M.O., Dhanya, P.M.: A comparative study of different feature extraction techniques for offline Malayalam character recognition. In: International Conference on Computational Intelligence in Data Mining, vol. 2, pp. 9–18. Springer, India (2015)
- Chen, L., Ding, X.: A universal method for single character type recognition. In: 17th International Conference on Pattern Recognition (ICPR'04), IEEE, 1051-4651/04

- Shelk, S., Apte, S.: A multistage handwritten Marathi compound character recognition scheme using neural networks and wavelet features. Int. J. Signal Process. Image Process. Pattern Recognit. 4(1) (2011)
- Lawgali, A., Bouridane, A., Angelova, M., Ghassemlooy, Z.: Handwritten Arabic character recognition: which feature extraction method? Int. J. Adv. Sci. Technol. 34 (2011)
- Kale, K.V., Deshmukh, P.D., Shriniwas V.C., Kazi, M.M., Rode, Y.S.: Zernike moment feature extraction for handwritten Devanagari (Marathi) compound character. Int. J. Adv. Res. Artif. Intell. (IJARAI) 3 (2014)
- 22. Sadanand, A., Kulkarni, P., Borde, L., Ramesh R., Manza, R., Yannawar, P.: Recognition of handwritten MODI numerals using Hu and Zernike features. https://www.google.co.in/?gfe_rd=cr&ei=m0lvVLfHLs3N8ge10oCYAQ#q=Recognition+of+Handwritten+MODI+Numerals +using+Hu+and+Zernike+features
- 23. Mali, S.M.: Moment and density based handwritten Marathi numeral recognition. Indian J. Comput. Sci. Eng. (IJCSE) 3(5), 707–712 (2012). ISSN: 0976-5166
- 24. Gonzalez, R.C., Woods, R.E.: Digital Image Processing, 2nd edn. PHI
- 25. Dhandra, B.V., Parameshwarpa, S., Mukarambi, S.G.: Kannada handwritten vowels recognition based on normalized chain code and wavelet filters. Int. J. Comput. Appl. Recent Adv. Inf. Technol. (2014)
- Tushar, P.N., Upadhyay, S.: Chain code based handwritten cursive character recognition system with better segmentation using neural network. Int. J. Comput. Eng. Res. 3(5) (2013)
- Besekar, D.N.: Special approach for recognition of handwritten MODI Script's vowels. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (IJCA) Medha (2012)
- 28. Besekar, D.N., Ramteke, R.J.: Chain code approach for recognizing Modi Script numerals. Indian J. Appl. Res. 1(3) (2011)
- Ramalingeswara Rao, K.V., Bhaskara Rao, N., Ramesh Babu, D.R.: Telugu character recognition based on topological feature alterations after selective morphological unification of the target image. In: 8th IRF International Conference, Pune, India (2014). ISBN: 978-93-84209-12
- Das, N., Pramanik, S., Basu, S., Saha, P.K.: Recognition of handwritten Bangla basic characters and digits using convex hull based feature set. In: International Conference on Artificial Intelligence and Pattern Recognition (AIPR-09) (2009)
- 31. Pai, N.R., Vijaykumar, S.K.: Design and implementation of optical character recognition using template matching for multi fonts. Int. J. Res. Eng. Technol. 4(2) (2015)
- 32. Vijayarani, S., Sakila, A.: Template matching technique of searching words in documents of images. Int. J. Cybern. Inform. (IJCI) 4(6) (2015)
- 33. Qatran, M.A.: Template matching method for recognition Musnad characters based on correlation analysis (2011)
- 34. Panda, S.R., Tripathy, J.: Odia Offline Typewritten Character Recognition using Template Matching with Unicode Mapping. ISACC (2015)
- 35. Anam, S., Gupta, S.: An approach for recognizing Modi Lipi using Ostu's Binarization Algorithm and Kohenen neural network. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975–8887) 2 (2015)
- Sharma, A., Chaudhary, D.R.: Character recognition using neural network. Int. J. Eng. Trends Technol. (IJETT) 4(4) (2013)
- Raj, P., Wahi, A.,: Zone based method to classify isolated Malayalam handwritten characters using Hu-Invariant moments and neural network. In: International Innovations in Intelligent Instrumentation, Optimization and Signal Processing (ICIIIOSP-2013) (2013)
- Shelke, S., Apte, S.: Multistage handwritten Marathi compound character recognition using neural networks. J. Pattern Recognit. Res. 253–268 (2011)
- Holambe, A.N., Thool, R.C.: Printed and handwritten character & number recognition of Devanagari script using SVM and KNN. Int. J. Recent Trends Eng. Technol. 3(2) (2010)
- Jangid, M.: Devanagari isolated character recognition by using statistical features. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Eng. (IJCSE) 3(6), 2400–2407 (2011). ISSN: 0975-3397
- 41. Kumar, M., Jindal, M.K., Sharma, R.K.: SVM Based Offline Handwritten Gurmukhi Character Recognition. SCAKD, Russia (2011)

Capability-Based Multipath Routing for Increasing Scalability and Reliability in Ad hoc Networks

Jyoti Shrama and Ashish Singh Baghel

Abstract The mobile sensors or nodes in mobile ad hoc network (MANET) are in motion continuously without presence of any authorized administration or authority. The dynamic link in between sender and receiver is created through intermediate nodes. The routing protocol MANET is completely different from traditional wired and wireless routing protocols. In this research, we proposed the reliable and scalable multipath routing with OLSR routing protocol in MANET to control congestion in dynamic network. The normal OLSR protocol is proactive in nature and stores routing information for communication. The updation in OLSR is multipath OLSR, i.e. M-CML. M-CML performance is better than OLSR because more than one route is available for data sending. In proposed congestion control routing scheme, we slightly improved the performance of OLSR through estimating the processing capability of mobile node and link capacity with queue management. The nodes and link between nodes which have minimum load are selected for routing the data in network. The heavy-loaded shortest paths are ignored because the possibility of congestion is more. The proposed protocol improves the packet receiving and minimizes the routing overhead which is the sign of better network performance. The packet dropping is minimized because of that the delay in network is also reduced. The performance of three protocols including the proposed protocol is evaluated in this research, and in each metrics, the proposed protocol is more robust and reliable for communication.

Keywords OLSR · M-CML · Proposed routing · Congestion · MANET

J. Shrama (🖂) · A. S. Baghel

A. S. Baghel e-mail: baghel.ash.12@gmail.com

Department of Computer Science, Vindhya Institute of Technology and Science, Satna, India e-mail: jyotisharma0patnaha@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_57

1 Introduction

Depending on the network behaviour, the infrastructureless and infrastructure-based are the two categories of the wireless sensor network. While the base station present in the scenario that that type of the network form star topology and other side while each node capable to containing and managing route table and dynamical change the network topology it means network is infrastructureless [1]. Wireless mobile ad hoc network offers number of advantages as compared to wired network because it is a self-configured, distributed management, costless communication and lightweight device. In comparison to wired solution, the key attraction of the MANET is its fluctuating mobility of the node. The established path between senders and receivers pair contains multiple intermediate nodes, and each node takes the responsibility as a router. Route decision in mobile ad hoc network [2] has been a difficult job because node mobility is not controlled by other nodes or devices. Number of protocols are developed to accomplish this task. There are many variety of problems that have an effect on the dependability of ad hoc networks and limit their viability for various scenarios; lack of centralized structure among MANET needs that every individual node should act as a router and is answerable for performing packet routing tasks; this is often done using one or a lot of common routing protocols across the MANET [3]. Carrying out routing tasks needs memory and computation power, but mobile devices feature physical size and weight limitations essential for his or her quality; this reduces the obtainable memory and process resources moreover as limiting battery power. MANETs containing a lot of nodes need larger processing power, memory and bandwidth to keep up precise routing data; this introduces traffic overhead into the network as nodes communicate routing information, and this successively uses a lot of battery power. The frequent movement of nodes is additionally a serious issue inside MANETs as a result of restricted wireless transmission range; this may cause the configuration to vary unpredictably as nodes enter and leave the network [4–7]. The paper contains the proposed multipath routing that has the network scalability with dependability exploiting multiple path existence between source and receiver node.

2 Literature Survey

Ladas et al. [1–8] projected a title "Multipath Routing Approach to boost Resiliency and scalability in Ad hoc Networks". The title substantiates the efficiency of the protocol through a simulation scenario at intervals of a MANET utilizing the NS-3 machine. The non-hereditary results indicate that M-CML routing approach combined with associate intelligent link metric just like the ETX reduces the results of link instabilities and enhances the network performance in terms of resiliency and quality. Liu and Li [2–9] projected a title "Quality of service aware and load balancing for mobile ad hoc network". During this paper, scientists focussed to mix the multiple constraints primarily based on QoS to attain and balance the network load that choose the trail between origin and receiver. Author traces the load of every intermediate node and alters the trail according to network scenario or its utilization.

Rama Devi and Srinivasa Rao [3–10] projected a title "QoS enhanced Hybrid Multipath Routing Protocol for Mobile Ad hoc Networks". Throughout this title, we have got an inclination to propose a QoS-increased hybrid multipath routing protocol for MANET. Throughout this protocol, topology discovery is performed proactively and route discovery is performed at intervals of the reactive manner. In proactive topology discovery section, each node collects the battery power, queue length and residual system of measurement of every various nodes and stores at intervals of the topology information table (TIT). By exchanging the TIT among the nodes, the topology is discovered. Once the origin node wishes to forward the knowledge packet to the destination, it utilizes the reactive route discovery technique where the multiple strategies are established by applying multipath Dijkstra algorithm. Once any intermediate node does not acknowledge following 2-hop information from TIT towards destination, the new multipath route discovery is performed. By simulation results, it is shown that the projected approach reduces the overhead.

Ali et al. [4–11] projected a title "QoS Aware Multipath Threshold Routing for Mobile ad hoc Networks". In this title, a different threshold-based multipath routing approach for enhanced QoS in MANETs is presented. In this approach, once the out there system of measurement of a link decreases below a defined threshold or average load or the forwarding delay at a node can increase on the so much aspect a defined threshold, traffic is distributed over fail-safe multiple routes to chop back the load at a full node. Through simulation results, we have got an inclination to point out that the projected approach achieves improved QoS in terms of end-to-end delay, packet delivery relation and output for constant bit rate (CBR) traffic when compared to optimized link state routing (OLSR), a popular single-path proactive protocol for MANETs.

Chopra and Kumar [5–12] projected a title "Efficient Resource Management for Multicast Ad Hoc Network: Survey". Throughout this title, multicast routing protocol got to be able to manage those resources as a result of their consumption depends upon varied factors, i.e. Unicast/Multicast network operations, dynamic topology attributable to quality, management overhead attributable to quality, packet loss and retransmission attributable to collision and congestion etc. of those factors may cause unnecessary network load, delay and unfair resource utilization. Multicast impromptu routing protocols are lot economical than unicast routing protocols, but they collectively suffer from performance degradation factors mentioned on prime of researchers who have developed various layerwise solutions for resource improvement. During this title, we will explore the varied schemes for truthful utilization of network resources.

Singh et al. [6–13] projected a title "A Survey on challenges in Multipath Routing for Ad hoc Networks". Throughout this analysis title, we have got

mentioned about the issues of multipath routing in MANETs and performances of such MANETs which are compared for application of multipath routing and its effects on completely different labels to remain QoS.

Yi et al. [7–15] projected a title "M-OLSR for mobile ad hoc sensor network". During this title, they described multipath routing through Dijkstra algorithm which is projected to induce multiple ways. The algorithm gains nice flexibility and extensibility by exploiting entirely different link metrics and value functions. In addition, route recovery and loop detection are implemented in MP-OLSR and thus it boosts the quality of service regarding OLSR. The backward compatibility with OLSR supported science offer routing is studied in addition. Simulation-supported QualNet machine is performed in many things. A test bed is in addition begun to validate the protocol in planet. The results reveal that MP-OLSR is acceptable for mobile, huge and dense networks with huge traffic and can satisfy necessary transmission applications with high on time constraints.

3 Our Approach for Network Congestion Control

In this section, we describe our proposed mechanism that represents how the network behaviour performed while we apply enhanced AOMDV protocol in MANET. The reliable scheme uses the multipath concept and also measures the link capacity and nodes storing and forwarding capacity. The main role in communication is that the networks are intermediate nodes responsible for receiving and forwarding data in network. In this section, given algorithm balances the network load and increases the reliability as well as scalability of the network using node capability-based load distribution methodology. Proposed routing mechanism initially searches the multiple routes from source to destination on the basis of node capability and selects the multiple paths based on capability of intermediate nodes. Link capability between two nodes identifies basis on data rate and bandwidth retrieval methodology. Select the link based on available bandwidth of the link and arrange the multipath with higher availability base. We also use the queuing technique that is useful for data storing and forward mechanism while the outgoing link bandwidth is lower than the incoming link bandwidth. The proposed multipath link estimation and node identification are totally different ways that will enhance the capability of AOMDV route selection mechanism which corrects load equalization in network.

The proposed algorithm controls congestion and provides reliable routing in MANET.

The number of senders = S_{s} , Number of receivers = R_{R} and number of mobile nodes considered for simulation is M_{n} .

Step1 Sender (S_s) Broadcast Route Request (RREQ) and receive RREP to neighbours for finding Receiver (R_R)

Step 2 Select MPR units for further flooding of routing packets // MPR selection is reduces unnecessary flooding.

Step 3	If (Route in between S_S to R_R found)
Step 4	If (route > one) // alternative path are available
- {	
Step 5	If (Queue Length <=50 && Link Bandwidth <=10mbps)
Step 6	Select nodes for data transmission having maximum queue length
space and link l	has maximum remaining bandwidth capacity.
Step 7	Send data through that path up to destination;
	}
Step 8	else
-	{
Step 9	Go to step number 6
-	}
	Else
	{
Steps 10	go to step 2
-	}
Step 11	else
•	
,	Route not exist
}	
}	

The unipath OLSR protocol is not able to handle the load in network but the proposed multipath is the protocol that handles the load in network efficiently by providing the alternative path possibility in network. In OLSR, each RREQ, respectively, RREP arriving at a node defines an alternate path to the source or destination. Just accepting all such copies will lead to the formation of routing loops.

4 Result Analysis

In this section, we measure the performance of normal OLSR proactive routing protocol. The multipath version of same OLSR protocol is named as Multipath-Cha Me Leon (M-CML) protocol. The third protocol proposed is multipath approach to extend performance by available node buffer capacity and link capacity with queue management.

A. Packet Delivery Ratio Analysis

The performance of proposed protocol is better as compared to existing OLSR and proposed M-CML protocol. The packets percentage is more because with multipath routing, the proposed approach also identifies the nodes and link that have maximum available capacity for communication. This shows that the proposed multipath protocol is able to handle more load in dynamic network. PDR performance of proposed protocol is about 99% in node density scenario of 20, 30 and 40 but in 10, the performance is about 94% while rest of the two protocol performance are not more than 85% in network. This shows that the performance of proposed protocol performance in MANET (Fig. 1).

B. Average End-to-End Delay Analysis

The delay in network disturbs the whole performance, and this performance is affected by congestion and dropping of packets. In this performance metrics, the performance of proposed protocol is improved. The delay in all scenarios of node density of proposed routing is not more than 0.1 ms but the rest of the performance is more than 1.2 ms. The maximum delay in routing is measured in normal OLSR protocol. The proposed scheme minimizes packet dropping and reduces the possibility of retransmission that is why delay performance is also minimum (Fig. 2).



Fig. 1 PDR analysis



Fig. 2 Average delay analysis

C. Throughput Analysis

The proposed multipath protocol has better throughput as compared to existing normal OLSR and multipath M-CML. The throughput is evaluated to measure the performance of packets received per unit of time. In this graph, different node density scenarios show the better throughput performance. The throughput is almost about three times more as compared to normal OLSR and existing M-CML. The congestion control proposed scheme provides the lightly loaded path because of that the congestion possibility does not occur and packets receiving is increasing in dynamic network (Fig. 3).

5 Conclusion and Future Work

The congestion occurrence in MANET is due to limited bandwidth and node's limited processing capability. The link in between two nodes up to destination from source is creating the complete path in between source and destination. In this research, we compared the performance of three protocols. First one is original OLSR proactive routing protocol, i.e. routing table created on each node. Second scenario represents the performance of multipath version of OLSR, i.e. M-CML.



Fig. 3 Throughput analysis

Here the performance of normal OLSR is modified and provides the alternative path for routing to sender. In the third proposed scenario, OLSR protocol performance with multipath is measured but also including the new concept of more than one path selection on the basis of minimum available link and node's processing capability with nodes buffer management in MANET. As we know that if data load in network is routed through lightly loaded path that means the congestion possibility reduces in network. The proposed routing is degrades the drop of packets by that clearly visualized in results the routing overhead and delay in network is really more than two times is reduced. The performance of proposed scheme improves the network performance by providing better throughput and packets percentage ratio in dynamic network. The proposed routing performance is better than existing two protocols in MANET.

References

- Ladas, A., Pavlatos, N., Weerasinghe, N., Politis, C.: Multipath routing approach to enhance resiliency and scalability in ad-hoc networks. In: ICC Ad-hoc and Sensor Networking Symposium, IEEE (2016)
- Liu, C., Liu, K., Li, L.: Research of QoS—aware routing protocol with load balancing for mobile ad-hoc networks. In: WiCom'08, 4th International Conference on Wireless Communication (2008)
- 3. Rama Devi, P., Srinivasa Rao, D.: Qos enhanced hybrid multipath routing protocol for mobile ad-hoc networks. Int. J. Distrib. Parall. Syst. (IJDPS) **3**(6) (2012)
- Ali, M., Stewart, B.G., Shahrabi, A., Vallavaraj, A.: QoS aware multipath threshold routing for mobile ad hoc networks. Int. J. Appl. Inf. Syst. (IJAIS) 7(1) (2014)
- Chopra, A., Kumar, R.: Efficient resource management for multicast ad-hoc network: survey. Int. J. Comput. Netw. Inf. Secur. 9, 48–55 (2016)
- Singh, D., Sharma, B.K., Kumar, A.: A survey on challenges in multipath routing for ad-hoc networks. In: International Conference on Advanced Developments in Engineering and Technology, vol. 4, Special Issue 1 (2014)
- 7. Yi, J., Adnane, A., David, S., Parrein, B.: Multipath optimized link state routing for mobile ad hoc networks. In: Ad Hoc Networks. Elsevier, New York, pp. 28–47 (2010)
- Toh, C.K.: Ad Hoc Mobile Wireless Networks Protocols and Systems, 1st edn. Prentice Hall Inc, USA (2002)
- Walaia, G.K., Singh, C.: Simulation based performance evaluation and comparison of proactive and reactive routing protocols in mobile ad-hoc networks. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Technol. 1235–1239 (2011)
- Schmidt, R.O., Trentin, M.A.S.: MANETs routing protocols evaluation in a scenario with high mobility: MANET routing protocols performance and behaviour. In: Network Operations and Management Symposium, 2008. NOMS 2008. IEEE, Salvador, Bahia, pp. 883–886 (2008)
- Khamayseh, Y., Darwish, O.M., Wedian, S.A.: MA-AODV: mobility aware routing protocols for mobile ad hoc networks. In: Proceedings of Fourth International Conference on Systems and Networks Communications, IEEE, pp. 25–29 (2009)
- Wang, W., Amza, C.: Motion-based routing for opportunistic ad-hoc networks. In: Proceedings of 14th ACM international conference on modeling, analysis and simulation of wireless and mobile systems, pp. 169–178 (2011)
- 13. Hong, X., Xu, K., Gerla, M.: Scalable routing protocols for mobile ad hoc networks (2002)
- 14. Abolhasan, M., Wysocki, T., Dutkiewicz, E.: A review of routing protocols for mobile ad-hoc networks. J. Ad Hoc Netw. **2**, 1–22 (2004)
- Yi, J., Adnane, A., David, S., Parrein, B.: Multipath optimized link state routing for mobile ad hoc networks. Ad-Hoc Netw. 9, 28–47 (2011)

A Comparative Study of Various Techniques Used in Current HGRSs

Akanksha Mantri and Maya Ingle

Abstract As computers become an integral part of our society, advancement in human–computer interaction (HCI) has benefited differently abled individuals. The absolute aim of HCI is to provide ease for interaction with computers and keep it as natural as interaction among humans. Communication through hand gesture is universally performed, though there are unresolved existing issues such as sensitivity to shape and size of hand, identification of gesture in less illuminated environment. However, there exists a lot of scope of research in Hand Gesture Recognition System (HGRS). In this paper, we present the current techniques used in each phase of the HGRS. A comparative study covers twenty-five current HGRSs based on key parameters which includes recognition rate, recognition time, techniques used for image enhancement, image acquisition. The main goal of the study is to explore the opportunities for research aspirants in this domain.

Keywords Hand Gesture Recognition System (HGRS) • Human–computer interaction (HCI) • Feature extraction • Recognition

1 Introduction

Human–computer interaction (HCI) has been one of the most prominent areas of research since early 1980s, and since then it has evolved from the use of punch cards to multimedia user interface [1]. HCI system includes character recognition, hand gesture recognition, voice identification, facial expression identification, facial expression recognition, etc. There has been a substantial increase in development of Hand Gesture Recognition System (HGRS) especially in perception of sign

A. Mantri (🖂) · M. Ingle

School of Computer Science & Information Technology,

D.A.V.V, Indore, MP, India

e-mail: aakankshakutumbale@gmail.com

M. Ingle e-mail: mayaingle22@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_58

language. The foremost HGRS has been developed using hand gloves in 1981, and since then numerous systems have been evolved for different sign languages, for instance Indian Sign Language (ISL), Bangla Sign Language, American Sign Language (ASL), Chinese Sign Language (CSL), Brazilian Sign Language [2–6]. However, the intended users specifically the hearing- and speech-impaired audience are unable to exercise HGRS for interaction purpose. The problem of limited usability has arisen due to some limitations in the present systems such as availability of high-tech cameras or electronic gloves to the user. In this paper, a comparative study is performed to identify the limitations which will be an aid to the researchers for developing a user-friendly HGRS. Different techniques are used in HGRSs focusing mainly on accuracy and recognition time. Section 2 provides an overview of these techniques employed in current HGRSs especially. A comparative study of various HGRSs based on some vital parameters is presented in Sect. 3. Finally, we conclude with some important results in Sect. 4.

2 Hand Gesture Recognition Systems (HGRSs)

HGRS comprises of various phases, namely image acquisition, image enhancement, feature extraction, segmentation, gesture recognition, and translation. Over the years, a large variety of methods have been used in each phase to realize HGRS which decides the applicability of the system. The methods employed in current HGRSs are discussed briefly as follows.

2.1 Image Acquisition

Image acquisition is the initial phase of the HGRS which involves capturing gestures using sensors, camera(s)/electronic gloves. Before an image is captured, a number of specifications which includes the type of camera used, image frame resolution, lighting conditions, type of background, type of gestures have to be speculated. HGRS using three-axis accelerometer (ACC) and multichannel electromyography (EMG) recognizes 40 CSL sentences, 72 CSL words, and 18 hand gestures [2]. Other devices such as Kinect RGB-D sensor camera, CyberGolve II, and stereo camera have been used in HGRS which provides additional information about the gesture formed. To recognize the ISL gestures with single hand and double hand, Kinect RGB-D sensor camera has been used [3]. The Nuvo Minrou stereo camera made it easier to capture six motional hand gestures and six fingerspell gestures in variable lighting condition [7]. A four-camera HGRS model consisting of three black and white cameras, and one color camera captures images in the static plain background, produces images of 312×214 frame size, and identifies ASL gestures with optimum accuracy [8]. User wearing black sleeves during the image acquisition process using a simple web camera helps greatly in segmentation phase [9].

2.2 Image Enhancement

In this phase, feature of interest is highlighted from an image exercising various techniques, for instance color space conversion, image resizing, noise removal, image smoothing. Color space conversion is most commonly used technique in HGRS in which the RGB image is commonly converted into gray scale, YCbCr, CIE, HSV, or CMYK [4, 10, 11]. Image resizing is observed to be useful when capturing images of varying size, while it is generally avoided when the frame size is held constant during image acquisition phase [5, 9]. Generally, smoothening of the image is succeeded by using Butterworth low-pass filter, Gaussian filter, Median filter, Kalman circular filter, and homomorphic filter which are likewise utilized for image sharpening [12–15]. Hamming window is a sophisticated method to smooth images and works better with ACC and EMG sensors [2].

2.3 Feature Extraction

Feature extraction phase incorporates techniques that extract features, for example edge, finger spelling, gradients, haar-like feature, contour, moments, depth. The Canny edge detection algorithm gives much better results in HGRS as compared to other algorithms, especially when compared to Sobel [15–17]. The edge oriented histograms (EOH) technique does not yield satisfactory results in accurately distinguishing gestures when compared to aforementioned techniques [5]. The histogram of oriented gradients (HOG) technique depends on the pixel intensity and incurs best results with RGB-D sensors [3]. Contour and silhouettes are yet another way of using pixel intensity, though they do not produce consistent results [6, 14]. Haar-like feature is advancement over the above-mentioned intensity-based features and provides faster results, especially when used with SVM classifier [18-20]. HGRS based on depth provides the least recognition time [21, 22]. Moments are easily extracted from the images captured using stereo camera and yield better results as compared to features extracted from images captured using a normal webcam [7, 10]. HGRS employing finger spelling has limited application and is not consistent with a variety of gestures [23].

2.4 Segmentation

Segmentation phase incorporates techniques that comprise of background subtraction, color-based segmentation, contouring, thresholding, etc. In this phase, an image is segregated into its elements such that Region of Interest (ROI) is received from the remaining section. The remaining section is normally experienced as background and ROI as the foreground of the picture. The background subtraction technique is suitable only when the background is static and images are captured in constant lighting condition [15]. Color-based segmentation is majorly used in HGRS considering skin color isolates the hand gesture and it can be applied in combination with contouring, K-means clustering, or blob detection [7, 9]. Thresholding is the most trivial approach for segmentation based on the intensity difference of the ROI and background. Otsu's method for optimum global thresholding is frequently employed to carve up the hand and face from the background. It also assists in noticing the hand trajectory in the frame sequence [13]. In some cases, variable data obtained from sensor device such as Kinect helps to segment the ROI [6].

2.5 Gesture Recognition

Gesture recognition phase consists of techniques based on pattern recognition and classification. Classification techniques are mainly of two types of classification based on decision-theoretic methods and structural methods [12]. Dynamic time wrapping (DTW), feature covariance matrix, support vector machine (SVM), and hidden Markov model (HMM) are some popular techniques used for gesture recognition. DTW is able to cope with different speeds of motional gestures, and it helps in recognition of motional hand gestures [7]. Image-to-class DTW (I2C-DTW) is an innovative approach to classify ASL-based gesture. Using the method, static gestures are classified based on the concept of fingerlets and hand trajectory gestures are classified based on the concept of stroklets [16]. Feature covariance matrix has been a convenient way to classify the multiple features extracted from the images and creates a compact representation of gestures [8]. Similarly, SVM is more efficient means of classifying gestures based on multiple features [6, 9, 14, 19]. HMM embedded in level building algorithm efficiently classifies the CSL sentences with five signs each. This method reduces the error rate from 33.80% (using threshold HMM) to 13.40% [24]. The Euclidean distance, Manhattan distance, K-Nearest Neighbor (KNN) and Artificial Neural Network (ANN) are pattern recognition techniques used to identify gestures [13, 15, 25].

2.6 Translation

The last phase of HGRS is the translation phase which is responsible for generating the actual output of the HGRS based on the functionality of the system. Generally, the recognized character/word/sentence is displayed on screen after the recognition of gesture(s) [2, 12]. Instead of only displaying the result on screen, an audio sound can be produced which helps the differently abled population to communicate hassle-free with common public. We can also take some action such as controlling the position of the mouse pointer based on the movements of hand [26].

3 Comparative Study of Existing HGRSs

We have examined discrete HGRSs for several languages, and thus analysis is based on different techniques used in each phase. The techniques implemented in the image acquisition phase determine the usability of the system in variable environments, by scrutinizing the system based on specific hardware. In image enhancement phase, the preferred techniques selection depends on the image captured, for instance image captured in ideal environment with constant lighting condition and plain background. Also, if images are captured using multiple cameras, image resizing is necessary as features are based on the size of the image. The techniques involved in feature extraction phase determine the complexity of the system and the recognition time required by it. The low-level features based on pixels are less complex to deduce than the high-level features. On the other hand, recognition time of the system is huge for low-level features as compared to high-level features. The high-level features such as moments, finger spelling, HOG, depth, like feature are obtained from depth-based cameras as well as electronic gloves. The segmentation techniques totally depend on how an image was captured, identical to image enhancement techniques. The Kinect RGB-D sensor camera allows to segment an image using largest blob extraction method. The classification technique used in gesture recognition phase is the key factor to decide the size of the database required. Hence, Euclidean distance requires larger database and ANN requires a small set of training database. In translation phase, the techniques used define the application domain of the system where the system that produces an audio sound for the gesture recognized will be useful for the deaf and dumb audience to directly interact with normal audience. The comparative study includes distinct HGRSs that have unique combination of different techniques to analyze all on a common base, and few parameters have been defined. The parameters used to compare HGRSs are mainly database size, type of gesture to be recognized, recognition rate as well as recognition time. These parameters allow us to investigate the influence of various methods on the overall performance of HGRS. Database size reveals the amount of space required by the system for recognition of gestures. Further, larger database as compared to the number of distinct gestures to

554

AC	Recog. Recog. admo.	0.16% 0.5 s	e Study of Not 12.92 Not given	Various To	vg Not Not Silven	Used in Cu	trrent HGF	5.7% 2.56 s S	4.62% 3.81 ms	9.60% Not given
	Type of gesture R	26 ASL alphabets 9	50 isolated ASL 2 gestures et	34 Brazilian Sign (C Language	ASL gestures a	ASL alphabets 8	Digits 0-5	4 hand postures 9	4 dynamic and 2 9 static gestures	Not given 8
	Database size	2600 samples	RWTH-BOSTON-50	Not given	UESTC-HTG 1600 and UESTC-ASL digits 1100	390 gestures	180 images	450 samples of 4 postures	Not given	MSR gesture 3D dataset
	Translation	Text	Output on screen	Output on screen	Output on screen	Output on screen	Output on screen	Output on screen	Output on screen	Output on screen
	Gesture recognition	Euclidean distance	Absolute difference between histograms	SVM and Hamming distance	Image-to-class dynamic time wrapping (I2C-DTW)	The Gaussian three membership curves	Manhattan distance	AdaBoost algorithm	SVM	Feature selection-based class separability
	Feature extraction	Sobel edge detection	Horn-Schunck method	Using sensor data	Canny edge detection	Sobel edge detection and area calculation	Polygon regression fitting curve	Haar-like feature	Haar-like feature	Haar-like feature
	Segmentation	Background subtraction	Otsu's method	ROI through Kinect sensors	Contour extraction	Skin color segmentation	Contour extraction	Sub-window	Color-based ROI	Hand segmentation
	Image enhancement	Median and Gaussian filters	Median and mode filters	NA	NA	Morphological dilation	Median filter	Not given	Color space conversion, RGB to gray	Not given
(continued)	Image acquisition	Vision-based	Vision-based	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	Vision-based	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	Vision-based	Vision-based	RGB-D sensors
Table 1	Ref. paper	[15]	[12]	9	[16]	[1]	[13]	[18]	[19]	[20]

Table	1 (continued	(1								
Ref. paper	Image acquisition	Image enhancement	Segmentation	Feature extraction	Gesture recognition	Translation	Database size	Type of gesture	Recog. rate	Recog. time
[21]	RGB-D sensors	Not given	Based on depth maps	Mean subtraction	Convolutional neural networks (CNN)	Output on screen	31,000 depth maps	Not given	%66.66	3 ms
[22]	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	Not given	Depth motion maps	ЮОН	DOH+ MMG	Output on screen	MSR gesture 3D dataset	Not given	94.94%	Not given
[23]	Vision-based	Color space conversion, RGB to YCbCr	Skin color segmentation	Parallel edge feature	Proposed finger detection	Output on screen	85-150 sample of 14 gestures	14 gesture	Not given	Not given
[27]	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	Linguistic filter	Sensor-based	Guided cross-vali Bakis HMM	dation a(HCCV) with	h three-state	CASIIE-SL-Database 1200 samples	Not given	Word error rate - 2.98%	Not given
[14]	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	Circular and Kalman filter	Hu moments	Centroid of ROI	SVM	Output on screen	80 gestures	ISL	97.50%	Not given
[25]	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	NA	DTW and Vertibi	SIFT and BOW model	KNN	Output on screen	ChaLearn gesture dataset	Not given	19.26% Levantine distance	Not given
[28]	Kinect RGB-D sensor camera	NA	Sensor-based	Level building fast HMM	MMH	Output on screen	100 sentences	CSL	12.20% method error rate	8.98 s per sentence

556

be recognized scales down the efficiency of HGRS. It is important to determine the range of gestures a system has identified in such a way that it implies its usability. The recognition rate expresses the accuracy of the system to identify correct gesture where recognition time states the overall speed of the system. A comparative study of discrete HGRSs and their performance is summarized in Table 1.

4 Results and Conclusion

The comparative study of various HGRSs performed using the aforementioned parameters and techniques reveals the following observations correlated with the overall performance and usability of the existing system.

- More serious outcomes are obtained when high-tech cameras and sensors are used/when user wears gloves during image acquisition phase, whereas result depicts that the system becomes extremely dependent on the hardware configuration.
- Color space conversion method using YCbCr and HSV provides the best outcome with the highest recognition rate, but it only works for certain color background.
- HGRS using high-level features attains recognition rate above 90%, while it is highly dependent on the hardware configuration.
- Two-Hand Gesture Recognition System provides 100% recognition rate much as this system calls for constant lighting conditions and training images have to be provided before actual recognition [4].
- Finger spelling HGRS gives 99.99% recognition rate where it is highly dependent on depth data that reduces its usability which employs simple cameras. Similarly, it takes a much larger database and lowers the overall efficiency of the system [21].
- I2C-DTW HGRS obtains a recognition rate of 96.14% using edge detection techniques based on depth-based camera that reduces system's usability with a simple camera [16].
- Real-time HGRS provides 90.16% recognition rate that requires smaller database as compared to the aforementioned systems. Also, the images are captured with a simple USB camera with complex background that widens system's usability [15].

These observations reveal that though high accuracy is obtained using high-tech cameras however, computing high-level features has limited usability. However, systems using USB cameras/any simple camera that extract low-level features have wider usability. Consequently, a great deal of scope still exists in the development of HGRS using simple cameras. These deduced observations will be helpful to the researchers from the domain of hand gesture recognition.

References

- Tartter, V.C., Knowlton, K.C.: Perception of sign language from an array of 27 moving spots. Nature 289, 676–678 (1981)
- Zhang, X., Chen, X., Li, Y., Lantz, V., Wang, K., Yang, J.: A framework for hand gesture recognition based on accelerometer and EMG sensors. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man, Cybern. 41, 1064–1076 (2011)
- Gupta, B., Shukla, P.: K-nearest correlated neighbor classification for Indian sign language gesture recognition using feature fusion. In: Computer Communication and Informatics, pp. 1–5. IEEE, Coimbatore (2016)
- Yasir, R., Khan, R.A.: Two-handed hand gesture recognition for Bangla sign language using LDA and ANN. 2014 8th International Conference on Software Knowledge, Information Management and Applications (SKIMA), pp. 1–5. IEEE, Dhaka (2014)
- Pansare, J.R., Ingle, M.: Vision-based approach for American sign language recognition using edge orientation histogram. International Conference on Image Vision and Computing (ICIVC), pp. 86–90. IEEE, Portsmouth (2016)
- Almeida, S.G.M., Guimarães, F.G., Ramírez, J.A.: Feature extraction in Brazilian sign language recognition based on phonological structure and using RGB-D sensors. Expert Syst. Appl. 41, 7259–7271 (2014)
- Liu, K., Kehtarnavaz, N.: Real-time robust vision-based hand gesture recognition using stereo images. J. Real-Time Image Process. 11, 201–209 (2016)
- Lim, K.M., Tan, A.W., Tan, S.C.: A feature covariance matrix with serial particle filter for isolated sign language recognition. Expert Syst. Appl. 54, 208–218 (2016)
- Sheenu, Joshi, G., Vig, R.: Histograms of orientation gradient investigation for static hand gestures. International Conference on Computing Communication & Automation, pp. 1100–1103. IEEE, Noida (2015)
- Yun, L., Lifeng, Z., Shujun, Z.: A hand gesture recognition method based on multi-feature fusion and template matching. Proceedia Eng. 29, 1678–1684 (2012)
- 11. Dharani, M., Nayak, M.K., Talukdar, A.K.: Recent trends in intelligent and emerging systems. Springer India (2015)
- 12. Lim, K.M., Tan, A.W., Tan, S.C.: Block-based histogram of optical flow for isolated sign language recognition. J. Vis. Commun. Image Represent. 40, 538–545 (2016)
- Lan, Y., Li, J., Ju, Z.: Data fusion-based real-time hand gesture recognition with Kinect V2. In: 9th International Conference on Human System Interactions, pp. 307–310. IEEE, Portsmouth (2016)
- Raheja, J.L., Mishra, A., Chaudhary, A.: Indian sign language recognition using SVM. Pattern Recognit. Image Anal. 26, 434–441 (2016)
- Pansare, J.R., Gawande, S.H., Ingle, M.: Real-time static hand gesture recognition for American Sign Language (ASL) in complex background. J. Signal Inf. Process. 3, 364–367 (2012)
- Cheng, H., Dai, Z., Liu, Z., Zhao, Y.: An image-to-class dynamic time warping approach for both 3D static and trajectory hand gesture recognition. Pattern Recognit. 55, 137–147 (2015)
- Saha, S., Bhattacharya, S., Konar, A.: Comparison between type-1 fuzzy membership functions for sign language applications. International Conference on Microelectronics, Computing and Communications, pp. 1–6. IEEE, Durgapur (2016)
- Chen, Q., Georganas, N.D., Petriu, E.M.: Real-time vision-based hand gesture recognition using Haar-like features. In: Instrumentation and Measurement Technology Conference, pp. 1–6. IEEE, Warsaw (2007)
- Hsieh, C.C., Liou, D.H.: Novel Haar features for real-time hand gesture recognition using SVM. J. Real-Time Image Process. 10, 357–370 (2015)
- Liu, C., Chen, Y.Y., Fu, L.C.: Robust dynamic hand gesture recognition system with sparse steric Haar-like feature for human robot interaction. In: 55th Annual Conference of the Society of Instrument and Control Engineers of Japan, pp. 148–153. IEEE, Tsukuba (2016)
- Kang, B., Tripathi, S., Nguyen, T.Q.: Real-time sign language fingerspelling recognition using convolutional neural networks from depth map. In: 3rd IAPR Asian Conference on Pattern Recognition, pp. 136–140. IEEE, Kuala Lumpur (2015)
- Yang, X., Zhang, C., Tian, Y.: Recognizing actions using depth motion maps-based histograms of oriented gradients. In: Proceedings of the 20th ACM International Conference on Multimedia, pp. 1057–1060. ACM, Nara (2012)
- 23. Zhou, Y., Jiang, G., Lin, Y.: A novel finger and hand pose estimation technique for real-time hand gesture recognition. Pattern Recognit. **49**, 102–114 (2016)
- 24. Gonzalez, R.C., Woods, R.E.: Digital Image Processing. Pearson Education, India (2009)
- 25. Jiang, F., Ren, J., Lee, C., Shiw, W., Liu, S. Zhao, D.: Spatial and temporal pyramid based real time gesture recognition. J. Real-Time Image Proc. 1–13 (2016)
- Lalithamani, N.: Gesture control using single camera for PC. Procedia Comput. Sci. 78, 146– 152 (2016)
- Zhou, Y., Yang, X., Zhang, Y., Xu, X., Wang, Y., Chai, X., Lin, W.: Unsupervised adaptive sign language recognition based on hypothesis comparison guided cross validation and linguistic prior filtering. Neurocomputing 149, 1604–1612 (2015)
- Yang, W., Tao, J., Ye, Z.: Continuous sign language recognition using level building based on fast hidden Markov model. Pattern Recognit. 78, 28–35 (2016)

A Compact Monopole Antenna Using Meander Lines and Defected Ground Structure for Applications in TV Band

Sanjeev Kumar, Ajinkya Joshi and Neela Rayavarapu

Abstract The paper presents an antenna design suitable for applications in TV white space frequency band. Monopole antenna incorporating meander lines and defected ground structure (DGS) are proposed in this paper. The antenna is designed on Rogers RO3203 substrate fed by microstrip line over DGS. Meander lines and DGS techniques are combined together to reduce the physical size of proposed antenna and to enhance the performance. Meandering structure helps in increasing effective electrical length while DGS provides improvement in bandwidth. The fabricated antenna resonates at 620 MHz with reflection coefficient of -16 dB and wide 98 MHz bandwidth. Also measured VSWR is less than 2. In addition, omnidirectional radiation patterns are observed at operating frequency.

Keywords TV white space \cdot Meander lines \cdot Defected ground structure (DGS) Microstrip patch antenna

1 Introduction

TV white space (TVWS) range of frequencies is unused broadcasting frequencies after conversion of analog TV transmission to digital TV transmissions, worldwide. TVWS band at sub-GHz frequency range has excellent propagation characteristics and is being widely considered for wireless applications to meet the growing demand for data. To design an antenna which will serve wireless handheld

S. Kumar (🖂) · A. Joshi · N. Rayavarapu

Department of Electronics & Telecommunication, Symbiosis Institute of Technology, Pune, India

e-mail: sanjeevkumar@sitpune.edu.in

A. Joshi e-mail: ajinkya.joshi@sitpune.edu.in

N. Rayavarapu e-mail: neela.rayavarapu@sitpune.edu.in

561

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9 59

applications at these frequencies, size is a major consideration. The challenge is to shrink the size of the antenna.

Various methods have been implemented to reduce the size of an antenna. Illustration of TVWS spectrum sharing and details about 802.11af standard are available in [1]. Different methods for antenna miniaturization have been enumerated in [2]. In [3], three designs have been implemented by using meander line and planar inverted-F antenna (PIFA) methods in the sub-GHz range. Meander lines increase the path for current flow hence helps in reducing antenna size. In [4], a compact dual-band monopole antenna using meander line is proposed which has operating frequency above 2.4 GHz. Defected ground structure (DGS) is an etched recurrent or irregular cascaded layout defect in ground of a planar transmission line (e.g., microstrip, coplanar, and conductor-backed coplanar waveguide) which interrupts the shield current distribution in the ground plane. In [5], the fundamental idea and transmission characteristics of DGS segment and the identical circuit models of DGS segments are presented. DGS is a suitable way to realize the slow wave effect. It has been broadly used in the progress of miniaturized antennas [6-8]. In [9], partial ground plane is proposed for ultra-wideband (UWB) antenna which has reduced antenna size. A compact printed monopole antenna using DGS for applications in TVWS is reported in [10].

However, almost all the reported methods and designs are being used for antennas operating above one GHz range. This paper, however, presents antenna design which incorporates two different miniaturization methods to obtain better results. The TVWS refers to the frequency range of 470–790 MHz, which is the lower part of UHF band. Among the techniques to reduce the size of the antenna, meander line and DGS have been discussed in the literature as separate techniques. The paper describes the use of both of these techniques together in the proposed design.

2 Methodology

The aim of this paper is to design an antenna for a handheld device which will work at TVWS band of frequencies. This paper describes the use of meander lines and DGS for reducing the size of an antenna. The antenna is designed, simulated, and analyzed using ANSYS HFSS tool.

2.1 Meander Lines

Meander line structure geometry helps in obtaining broadband performance in small antenna envelope. Meander lines increase effective electrical dimensions of the patch. This, in turn, makes the antenna work at a lower range of frequencies without further increment or change in antenna dimensions. Meander line antennas also feature reduced specific absorption rate (SAR) due to their distributed near-field radiation. Therefore, meander line antennas can be safely used in handheld mobile devices as it can cause lesser amount of damage from radiation to human bodies.

2.2 Defected Ground Structure (DGS)

DGS means intentionally designed defects in the ground plane, which creates beneficial inductive and capacitive effects on the designed structure. DGS is an etched recurrent or irregular cascaded layout defect in ground of a planar transmission line (e.g., microstrip, coplanar, and conductor-backed coplanar waveguide) which interrupts the shield current distribution in the ground plane. This interruption will modify characteristics of a transmission line such as line capacitance and inductance. Essentially, any fault etched in the ground plane of the microstrip can give soar to enlarging effective capacitance and inductance.

The disadvantage in patch antennas is the stimulation of surface waves that takes place in the substrate layer. Surface waves are unwanted because when a patch antenna radiates, a part of total obtainable radiated power becomes trapped across the surface of the substrate. It can divert total obtainable power for radiation to this space wave. Therefore, a surface wave can minimize the antenna efficiency, gain, and bandwidth. This can be overcome with the use of DGS.

Thus, these two size reduction methods are combined together in the proposed design to achieve better results. The meander line can increase the effective electrical length of the patch and because of defected ground plane can result into higher bandwidth.

3 Antenna Design and Simulation

The configuration of the proposed antenna is shown in Fig. 1. The antenna is designed on 76 mm × 44 mm Rogers RO3203 substrate with dielectric constant of $\varepsilon_r = 3.02$ and thickness h = 1.6 mm. The antenna is fed by a 4 mm width microstrip line over DGS as shown in Fig. 1. The size of meander line structure is 54 mm × 44 mm with a width of 2 mm and a gap of 2 mm between the spirals.

Figures 1 and 2 show the design of the proposed antenna along with associated dimensions in simulation tool. Since the direction of the current on the meander line is usually opposite for neighboring wire, therefore, the antenna gain will be low. To overcome this problem in our proposed design, the current in the meander wire follows the same direction, and thus, the transmission gain and the radiation efficiency are enhanced. Modifications are intentionally done in ground plane to increase the bandwidth. Such modifications in a ground plane also help in miniaturization. The main advantage of defected ground plane is to reduce the excitation



Fig. 1 Meander line patch



Fig. 2 Ground plane

of surface waves which arise in substrate layer due to which transmitting power is trapped between substrate. Thus, maximum power is being used for radiation.

Plots of S_{11} and 2D radiation have been shown in Figs. 3 and 4, respectively. The reported antenna design in [3] can be compared with the proposed design in the paper. Reported design in [3] uses partial ground plane with measured reflection coefficient of -23 dB at 825 MHz and around 50 MHz bandwidth at -10 dB as mentioned. The reflection coefficient of -26 dB at 737 MHz is obtained during simulation of the proposed antenna design. Also the -10 dB bandwidth of 94 MHz is obtained. Generally, the patch antenna or planar antennas have low bandwidth. Here the use of DGS improves the bandwidth by a significant amount. Comparing the bandwidth mentioned in [3], it is almost doubled in the proposed design.

The 2D radiation plot of the proposed antenna is shown in Fig. 4. The maximum radiation occurs on the broadside axis, i.e., 0° -180°. The gain of the antenna is



Fig. 3 Simulated S-Parameter plot



Fig. 4 Simulated 2D radiation pattern

maximum on the broadside, and it reduces as the angle increases with the broadside axis.

Figures 5 and 6 show the current distribution in patch and ground plane, respectively. The maximum current on the feedline is about 8 A/m. It gets distributed as it encounters meander line, and then, it starts to reduce as we go on

Jsurf	[A/m]		
_	9.1878E+000		
	8.5780E+000		
	7.9681E+000		
	7.3583E+000		
	6.7485E+000		
_	6.1387E+000		
	5.5289E+000		the second se
	4.9191E+000	- Adda	
	4.3093E+000		
_	3.6994E+000		
	3.0896E+000		
	2.4798E+000		
	1.8700E+000		
	1.2602E+000		
	6.5038E-001		
	4.0562E-002		

Fig. 5 Current distribution in patch



Fig. 6 Current distribution in ground plane

further. The vector represents the radiation which shows that the proposed antenna radiates from its edges just like a regular patch antenna. In Fig. 6 the ground plane experiences current of about 4 A/m on the area which is exactly below feedline. The current is maximum, i.e., 5 A/m near the port and as you move along y-axis in both directions from the port the current starts to reduce. Current is more focused on the straight area from the port and then at the end of the structure it gets distributed. It can be understood from Fig. 6 that most of the current is associated with the edges. Figure 7 depicts simulated value of voltage standing wave ratio (VSWR). Table 1 shows a comparison of simulated and measured value of SWR. The amount of reflected power has been observed to be more in case of measured parameter due to the impedance mismatch.



Fig. 7 Plot of VSWR

Table 1	SWR	versus	reflected	power
				00000

Parameter	Simulated	Measured
SWR	1.09	1.6
% power reflected	0.185	5.30

4 Fabrication and Results

Figures 8 and 9 show patch and ground surfaces, respectively, of the fabricated antenna. It can be seen from Figs. 8 and 9 that the size of an antenna is $76 \times 44 \text{ mm}^2$, and thus, it can be installed into mobile handheld devices easily.

The fabricated antenna was subjected to test on a ROHDE & SCHWARZ ZVB4 vector network analyzer having a range from 300 kHz to 4 GHz. Figure 10 shows screenshot of the measured results of standing wave ratio (SWR), S_{11} (*S*-Parameters), and Smith chart.

The fabricated antenna resonates at lesser frequency compared to simulated design results. It can be seen from Fig. 9 that the fabricated antenna radiates at 620 MHz which fits into the required frequency band. The value of S11 is -16 dB at 620 MHz as shown in Fig. 10. The measured bandwidth is about 98 MHz at -10 dB which is an encouraging result. SWR of 1.6 is obtained at 620 MHz which is also in the acceptable range. The plot of Smith chart which shows impedance value of around 56 Ω which is close to the characteristic impedance of 50 Ω of the transmission line.



Fig. 8 Meandering patch structure





Overall, the results of the fabricated antenna observed on the vector network analyzer are in the acceptable range. Hence, proposed antenna design can be useful in real-time applications. Table 2 shows comparison of simulated and measured quantities of the different parameters.

File Trace Channel Display System Window	nfo Help
Trc1 S11 SWR 1 U/ Ref1 U Cal int 1	2 S11 dB Mag 10 dB / Ref0 dB Calint 2 41.doc*
•M1 620 89552 MHz 1.6391 U	M1 620.89552 MHz -16.318 dB Trace Search
	0 10 10
	Min Search
	Next Peak
Ch1 fb Start 400 MHz Pb 0 dBm Stop 800 MHz Trc3 S11 Smith Ref1 U Calint	to Start 400 MHz Pb 0 dBm Stop 800 MHz 3 Search >
511 0.5	M1 620 89552 MHz 56.697 0 125.722 0 6.593 nH Search
0 0.2 0.5	Target
	Marker Tracking
Ch1 fb Start 400 MHz Pb 0	- More - 1/2
Trc1 S11 SWR 1U/Ref1U Ch1 Calint	LOCAL

Fig. 10 Results on vector network analyzer

S ₁₁ (S-Paramete	er)	Bandwidth		SWR	
Simulated	Measured	Simulated	Measured	Simulated	Measured
-26.6 at 737 MHz	-16.31 at 620 MHz	94 MHz at -10 dB	98 MHz at -10 dB	1.09 at 737 MHz	1.6 at 620 MHz

Table 2 Comparison chart of simulated and measured results

5 Conclusion and Future Directions

In this paper, the design of miniaturized antenna with the combination of meander lines and DGS techniques suitable to function at sub-GHz TV white space range is proposed. The simulated and measured results are compared, and it can be stated that the results of the fabricated antenna are at a lesser resonant frequency compared to simulated results. There is some difference in the resonating frequency between simulated and fabricated design but bandwidth obtained is almost same in both the cases. The variation in results is attributed to impedance mismatch which can be improved upon. Optimizing the parameters of designed antenna in ANSYS HFSS leads to achieving better results.

References

- 1. Adriana, F., Ryan, G., Edward, K., Peter, E., Santosh, P.: IEEE 802.11af: a standard for TV White Space spectrum sharing. IEEE Commun. Mag. (2013)
- Ghulam, R., Garima, S.: A review on antennas for TV White Space spectrum communication. Int. J. Electr. Electron. Eng. 3(4), 17–20 (2016)
- Abou-Shahine, M., Al-Husseini, M., Ramadan, A., Kabalan, K., Nasser, Y.: Antenna designs for cognitive radio application in the TV band. Int. J. Sci. Eng. Res. 6(2), 975–980 (2015)
- Hsu, C., Song, H.: Design, fabrication, and characterization of a dual-band electrically small meander-line monopole antenna for wireless communications. Int. J. f Electromagn. Appl. 3 (2), 27–34 (2013)
- 5. Weng, L., Guo, Y., Shi, X., Chen, X.: An overview on defected ground. Progress Electromagn. Res. B 7, 173–189 (2008)
- Liu, J., Yin, W., He, S.: A new defected ground structure and its application for miniaturized switchable antenna. Progress Electromagn. Res. 107, 115–128 (2010)
- Saeed, L., Lotfollah, S., Satish, S.: Bandwidth enhancement and size reduction of microstrip slot antennas. IEEE Trans. Antennas Propag. 53(3), 994–1003 (2005)
- Punita, M.S.P., Pradeep, D.: Comparative study of microstrip antenna for different substrate material at different frequencies. Int. J. Emerg. Eng. Res. Technol. 2(9), 18–23 (2014)
- 9. Zhi, C., Terence, S., Xianming, Q.: Small printed ultra-wideband antenna with reduced ground plane effect. IEEE Trans. Antennas Propag. **55**(2), 383–388 (2007)
- Gite, S., Niture, D.: A compact monopole antenna for TV White Space applications using defected ground structure. In: International Conference on Information Processing, Pune (2015)

Interference and Congestion Control Using Multichannel Energy-Based Routing in MANET

Astha Mishra and Ashish Singh Baghel

Abstract Mobile ad hoc sensor communication is a recent trend of network structure which provides dynamic, decentralized service to the end users. Due to node mobility and energy issue, these networks face many challenges, i.e., security, interferences, congestion limited channel availability. In this paper, we incorporate various existing research studies and found that most of them resolve the problem of congestion and energy issues. So here we proposed a methodology that overcomes the problem of interference, congestion using multichannel energy-based routing approach. In the result section, we compare the outcome through packet delivery ratio, throughput, delay analysis in three different cases, i.e., ITCD, enhanced ITCD, and our proposed approach, and conclude that proposed approach is more suitable for the MANET environment.

Keywords MANET · ITCD · Delay · Multichannel · Energy AODV

1 Introduction

Nowadays, wireless mobile ad hoc sensor communication is incredibly the research area in the field of network communication. In mobile ad hoc sensor network each device are dynamic move and form infrastructure less communication. That also generates the interference because multiple nodes simultaneously execute single route, interference consume the power of transmission of nodes and drop the data packets. While another side, wired communication easily manage the interference because cable connection protect the interference between links [1]. In this paper we enhanced the AODV routing protocol using interference and delay control

A. Mishra · A. S. Baghel (🖂)

Department of Computer Science, Vindhya Institute of Technology and Science, Satna, India e-mail: baghel.ash.12@gmail.com

A. Mishra e-mail: asthamishra391@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_60

mechanism that work increase the network lifetime and minimized the data drop from the network. In this title, we control the interference with the multichannel and clear to send/request to send methodology. In any case while the multiple node wants the channel through same intermediate nodes than request to send message generate by the each sender and forward to the intermediate nodes and while the intermediate node receives those RTS message than generate the CTS message and assign the priority order as well as grant the different channel to the sender node so that no collision and interference occur in the network. A network partitioning will occur where the topology becomes too distributed. Similarly, a network that is just too dense is at risk of interference at the medium access (MAC) layer, the physical layer of the network. If the network got to neither be too dense nor too distributed for reasonable communication amongst nodes to want place. Mobile spontaneous wireless networks are energy-based approach since nodes operate with restricted battery energy. If some nodes die early owing to lack of energy, they cannot communicate with one another. Therefore, undue consumption of nodes energy ought to be prevented. Node energy consumption ought to be balanced so as to extend the energy awareness [2-4] of networks and determine the theme has been planned that utilizes energy standing of every mobile node and less energy consumption methods.

2 Literature Survey

In MANET, power aware is important challenge issue to improve the communication energy efficiency at individual nodes. Most of the researchers have recently started to consider power-aware development of efficient protocols for MANET which is discussed below:

Namdev et al. [1] proposed a paper on the title "Interference based network topology management mechanism for delay constrains mobile ad hoc communication"; in his title, they provide link stability method using interference identification of nodes and increase reliability of the network.

In his work, they select the route from source to destination using higher energy of nodes with minimum movement. If the node movement is considered low than the possibility of nodes out of radio range is really minimum and due to sufficient amount of energy presence in node is not unpredictably break of link and provide minimum interference based communication. Rajaram and Muthuramalingam [5] work in network clustering algorithm minimized the number of network clusters and enhanced the network load balancing factor that also increase the network lifetime. The proposed mechanism managed the network structure as well as energy consumption on the bases of node coverage range. If the interference of nodes is near than required signal strength is higher and required transmission power is lower. The proposed approach provides the reliable communication between communicator nodes. Thuan et al. [6] proposed a local tree-based reliable topology that modified the effects on network connectivity. It uses the edge connectivity which is greatly reliable as compared to another approach. Those mechanism increases the network coverage area under mobile ad hoc network. Their simulation result gives better result as compared to existing mechanism and increases the transmission range of the network.

Qin [7] has proposed a mechanism that construct network topology and fulfill the requirement of quality of service of the data with low power utilization of the network that work layer wise different significant work are done i.e. physical layer, it is adopted that cooperative communication which combines partial signals to obtain completer information and network layer perform, the whole routing strategies and suitable route are selected from source to destination nodes. In this title, they also work in the field of energy-based routing that provides the strength to meet quality of service for the communication. Saranya and Bharathi [8] proposed a secure adaptive decentralized control algorithm which provides control topology with secure communication to the network connected nodes that work in four phases, i.e. attacker node detection, group generation, security key allocation, and security key regeneration. For the attacker node, detection encryption and decryption methodology apply and detect the attacker nodes from the network. In the group formation or cluster formation election message are broadcasted and elected the cluster head that manage the communication and treated like a head of the network. In next step, of security key allocation that provide by the cluster head is allocated key to all sender nodes so that the data exchanged in secure manner. Rout et al. [9] proposed distance primarily-based sleep scheduling to modify topology management drawback at network layer and additionally facilitate to cut back total energy consumption of network to maximize network life in this protocol; it takes farthest node in its transmission range for routing. That node is geographically nearer to the destination. The amount of nodes in packet transferring is a smaller amount. Energy conservation is completed by utilizing energy of little set of nodes. Sleep based mode, is mostly approaches for the opposite idle node minimizes energy consumption of the network. Uma and Shantharajah [10] proposed energy-efficient network topology management mechanism under mobile sensor network. Their proposed work dynamically regulates the transmission, receiving power of mobile sensor devices and builds a new topology which convenes the requirement of bandwidth and network end-to-end delay and further minimizes the overall power consumption of network. That model has been evaluate through comparison between on-demand (AODV) with table-driven (DSDV) protocols in constant bit rate traffic model, and also the simulation experiment shows that the proposed mechanism provides greater performance as compared to existing system.

Zhang et al. [11] proposed a communication link delay and interfering control between nodes using decent coordination of CTS/RTS mechanism under mobile ad hoc network and minimized the network delay as well as interferences of the communication. In this title, they adjust the power of transmission, network topology management that satisfied the condition of delay constraint and interference control. However, those work balances the all network aspect parameters. When the link distance is greater between two nodes, the required transmission power is greater. Those identified path are remove from the communication path

and minimized the power utilization and delay of the network. Sisodia et al. [12] proposed a energy issue under table-driven protocol and evaluated the experiments results. Their proposed work is divided into two segments named as receiver mobile node expected position estimation and other is mobile node power-aware methodology. In first step, they found the node expected location in real-time scenario and then established route from source to receiver using energy utilization-based link. In this technique we are aware the network life time, energy utilization by each nodes, remaining energy of nodes and identifies the dead nodes.

3 Proposed Work

After survey, we decided to propose the new scheme to reduce delay and interference in dynamic network, maximizing the lifetime of the network. The node lifetime completely depends on the energy depletion of mobile nodes. That is why it is necessary to reduce the energy consumption of mobile nodes to improve the routing performance on network. All number of nodes that are participating in routing have different energy and all these nodes working capability are decided through of them and this capability is decided amount of data sending and receiving in dynamic network. Another issue to control the network performance is delay and interference. Interference in network, due to delay in transmission of data by sender and also the delay in receiving of data through receiver in network also interference occur while multiple sender simultaneously sends the data through single channel or link. The proposed scheme improves the lifetime of network by improving the energy-efficient consumption of node energy. The energy-efficient routing provides the connection between sender to receiver and minimizes the delay of network. The proposed scheme controls the transmission energy according to range of mobile nodes. The long-range communication required more energy for sending data packets, and short-range communication required less energy for communication. That is why the energy consumption is reduced and lifetime is enhanced.

In our proposed mechanism, use the multichannel-based communication that sends the data using more than one channel by the single or multiple senders. Multichannel wireless mobile ad hoc network minimized the interference, collision, and delay of the network while the multiple sender simultaneously demands the channel from the intermediate nodes.

4 Proposed Algorithm

Algorithm: Interference and congestion control using multichannel energy-based routing

Parameters: M: Mobile nodes S: Sender nodes R: receiver's nodes I: Intermediate nodes Req₂: required node energy CTS: clear to send i.: interferences Č_n: multichannel d: delay R_r: radio range 550 Output: Delay, throughput, data drop, routing and PDR impact Proto: ITCD **Procedure:** S use ITCD routing ITCD(S, R, E, C)If M in range && M! = R then M check self status busy or idle If M idle then Check E of M If Req_{e} of M is $\leq \operatorname{Req}_{e}$ of M-1 then M set as intermediate node Forward route pkt to next hop Else Other path select Else M busy Other path select If next hop == R then $R \leftarrow$ cerate backward path $R_{ack} \leftarrow R$ sends acknowledgment Call send(S, R, data) Else R not found or out of range Else M not in range network congested Send(S, R, data) S sends data to R by available path Check intermediate node status If I receive data by > one S nodes then Synchronized all senders Remove collision using CTS msg Calculate delay If delay > normal delay && i_s in C_n by S senders then

- Assign $C_n > 1$ to higher priority S node
- Stop communication of lower priority S node

Else

Normal communication

Else

Sends data to R nodes

5 Simulation Result

In this section, analyze the result through network simulator-2 and compare the performance with respect to packet delivery ratio, throughput, routing load, and other parameters; those are described in pointwise.

A. Routing load

Routing load is a number of routing packet or search packets broadcasted by the senders or intermediate nodes for the path finding between sources to link. More routing packet means more overhead of the network that increases the network delay and congestion (Fig. 1).

During our simulation, we take hundred mobile nodes and analyzed the routing overhead in three cases—ITCD, enhanced ITCD, and proposed multichannel-based mechanism. In this graph, X-axis shows simulation time in seconds and Y-axis shows number of routing packets broadcasted by the senders. Proposed approach case routing overhead is lower than the other two cases, where existing approach gives more overhead as compared to two other approaches.

B. Packet Delivery Ratio Analysis

The below graph shows the packet delivery ratio analysis during ITCD, existing and proposed methodology time. Packet delivery ratio is a percentage of data



Fig. 1 Routing overhead analysis



Fig. 2 Packet delivery ratio analysis

received, where *x*-axis shows simulation time in seconds and *y*-axis shows percentage of data received. In the Fig. 2 proposed multichannel gives better result it's nearly about 90% but in case of ITCD the performance is nearly to 85%.

C. Throughput Analysis

Throughput is a data received per unit time by the receivers, while throughput is inversely proportional to end-to-end delay. If the throughput is greater then end-to-end delay is lower. In this graph, our proposed multichannel energy-based routing gives higher throughput as compared to existing routing and ITCD (Fig. 3).

D. Overall Analysis

In this below table the network behavior is analyzed in all aspect of network. Resultant table shows that our proposed multichannel energy-based routing is efficient in all aspects of network, i.e., provide better PDF, minimum data drop, and delay (Table 1).



Fig. 3 Throughput analysis

Table 1	Overall summary	
analysis		

Overall summary			
Parameters	ITCD	Existing	Proposed
SEND	4728	5922	6183
RECV	3497	4816	5268
ROUTINGPKTS	58,544	41560	25,403
PDF	73.96	81.32	85.2
Average e-e delay (ms)	86.96	80.92	79.44
NRL	16.74	8.63	4.82
All type packet drop analyst	is		
Drop from contention	222	183	203
Drop from queue	673	680	294
Total drop via congestion	336	243	418
Total drop	1231	1106	915
Percentage drop (%)	26.04	18.68	14.80

6 Conclusion and Future Work

Mobile ad hoc network provides the uncertainty for the communication, due to node mobility, interferences, and energy issues. In this paper, we overcome the problem of interference, congestion, energy discharging using multichannel and energy-aware-based route selection methodology and compare the result under three different cases—ITCD, enhanced ITCD, and our proposed approach. Result concludes that proposed approach is more suitable under all aspects of network parameter while communication is mobile ad hoc environment. In future the work will be more realistic and we must apply security for the communication.

References

- Namdev, A., Mishra, A.: Interference-based Topology Control Algorithm for Delay-constrained Mobile Ad hoc Networks, IEEE. 978-1-4673-7918-2/16
- Sivasankar, P., Chellappan, C., Balaji, S.: Performance Evaluation of Energy Efficient On demand Routing Algorithms for MANET. 2008 IEEE Region 10 Colloquium and the Third ICIIS, Kharagpur, India, pp. 1–5 (2010)
- Wu, J., Dai, F.: Mobility-sensitive topology control in mobile ad hoc networks. In: Proceedings of the 18th International Parallel and Distributed Processing Symposium, pp. 1–29 (2004)
- Karunakaran, S., Thangaraj, P.: Topology control using efficient power management. J. Comput. Sci. 7(4), 561–567 (2011)
- Muthuramalingam, S., Rajaram, R.: A Transmission Range based Clustering Algorithm for Topology Control MANET. Int. J Appl Graph Theory Wirel. Ad Hoc Netw. Sens. Netw. (GRAPH-HOC) 2(3), 68–76 (2010)
- Thuan, N.D., Nishiyama, H., Ansari N., Kato, N.: On performance evaluation of reliable topology control algorithms in mobile ad hoc networks. In: IEEE Conferences, pp. 1–5 (2010)
- Qin, F.: QoS topology control with energy efficiency for MANET. J. Convergence Inf. Technol. 6(6), 300–307 (2011)
- 8. Bharathi, R., Saranya, A.V.: High throughput analysis using topological control & authentication scheme in MANET. Int. J. Emerg. Technol. Adv. Eng. 3(3), 857–861 (2013)
- 9. Rout, S., Turuk, A.K., Sahoo, B.: Energy aware routing protocol in MANET using power efficient topology control method. Int. J. Comput. (2010)
- Uma, S., Shantharajah, S.P.: MANET energy efficiency analysis using MST based topology control algorithm and comparison with reactive and proactive protocols. Int. J. Adv. Comput. Netw. Secur. 2(2), 23–27, Applications (0975–8887). 43(5), 33–42 (2012)
- Zhang, X.M., Zhang, Y., Yan, F., Vasilakos, A.V.: Interference-based topology control algorithm for delay-constrained mobile ad hoc networks. IEEE Trans. Mobile Comput. 741–752 (2014)
- 12. Sisodia, S., Raghwanshi, S.: Performance evaluation of a table driven and on-demand routing protocol in energy constraint MANETs. In: 2013 International Conference on Computer Communication and Informatics (ICCCI–2013), 04–06 Jan, Coimbatore, India (2013)

Computational Study of Duality in Facial Expressions

Ritesh Joshi and Maya Ingle

Abstract Automatic detection of human facial expressions grappled the interest of researchers in last decade. The face is the most obvious modality for recognition of human affective states. Facial expressions may be broadly classified as postured or natural. Humans recognize duality of facial expressions equally well and accurately, but the challenge lies in the computational aspect of distinguishing this duality. A comprehensive study of various postured, spontaneous, and posed versus spontaneous facial expression recognition methods has been carried out based on some vital parameters such as the number of subjects, sample size, cue used, discrimination basis, accuracy. Facial features extracted and classification methods used highly affect performance. Some important observations have been drawn from the study. These observations will be useful to the researchers putting efforts in distinguishing the duality of facial expressions with high accuracy.

Keywords Facial expression recognition • Facial duality • Emotion recognition Posed and spontaneous expressions

1 Introduction

Automatic detection of human emotion expressions is an important research area. Face is considered to be the most important modality for determining human affective states. Most of the research in emotion computation has focused on recognition of six fundamental emotions, namely joy, sadness, fear, disgust, surprise, and annoyance. Mostly the information has been postured on request and recorded in research laboratory settings [1]. In recent years, there exists a shift

M. Ingle e-mail: Mayaingle22@gmail.com

R. Joshi (🖂) · M. Ingle

School of Computer Science & Information Technology, DAVV, Indore, Madhya Pradesh, India

e-mail: Riteshjoshi.indore@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_61

toward recording affective cues in naturalistic settings as opposed to posed ones. It switches emotion computation research toward uninterrupted and context-specific interpretations of emotional displays captured in real-world settings. In addition, it is oriented toward combining multiple modalities such as vocal intonations, facial displays, head movements, physiological signals, hand postures, body movements, and postures for recognition and analysis of human emotions [2]. Further, research is also directed in exclusively chosen subclass of expressions such as eyelid movements, smile, temporal dynamics of facial behavior, and eyebrow actions [3–5].

Human facial expressions are broadly classified as postured or natural. The notion of humans to display dual (posed as well as natural) expressions needs to be revealed during human–computer interactions (HCI). Humans recognize the duality of facial expressions equally well and accurately but challenge lies in the computational aspect of distinguishing the duality. Volitional expressions are considerably different from naturalistic expressions in manifestation, timing, head movements, and some other body gestures [4]. Differentiating spontaneous from posed facial expressions has many applications. It plays a significant role in safety, security, health care, behavioral sciences and psychiatry, deception detection, and visual analysis of human affective states. For example, police may use it for surveillance systems; doctors may recognize genuine pain in patients, student's boredom may be recognized while interacting with auto-tutor [6].

In this paper, the theories, methods, and data that support the identification of duality in facial expression have been identified. Section 2 focuses on facial expression recognition based on posed expressions recorded in laboratory settings. Later, efforts have been made to recognize spontaneous expressions recorded in real-world settings, and it is the focus of Sect. 3. Further, research has been directed in discrimination of naturalistic and volitional expressions, and it has been addressed in Sect. 4. Various parameters are detailed in psychological research for discrimination between posed and spontaneous expressions, and these parameters have been experimented in vision-based affect recognition systems. Section 5 covers these evaluating parameters for discrimination between naturalistic and volitional facial expressions. In Sect. 6, we conclude with discussion of evaluating parameters.

2 Facial Expression Recognition—Posed Expressions

The majority of earlier affect detection research has concentrated on detecting the fundamental emotions from postured facial expressions. Automated facial expression analysis comprises of three steps: face discovery in an image or sequence of frames, facial data derivation from detected face region, and facial expression classification. There exist numerous models and algorithms for face detection in an image such as Point Distribution Model (PDM), HSV color model, analytic model, potential net, AdaBoost learning algorithm, Piecewise Bezier Volume Deformation (PBVD) tracker [7–12]. After face detection in an image, the next step is feature

extraction. For feature extraction, three models are broadly used: holistic, analytic, and hybrid. Based on the selected model, a feature-based method or a template-based may be applied for feature extraction. Template-based methods fit well in a holistic face model while the feature-based methods suit to analytic face model [9, 13, 14]. The last step is facial expression classification. There exist various methods for classification, namely template-based, neural network-based, or rule-based. Principal component analysis (PCA), elastic graph matching, hidden Markov model (HMM), and linear discriminant analysis (LDA) are some methods used in template-based classification. Neural network with back propagation and neural network with RPROP propagation are some methods used in rule-based classification, and expert system rules are used in rule-based classification [15, 16].

Active appearance model (AAM) is one of the holistic approaches that are used for interpreting face images and series of image frames. The training data has been used for extracting features, and AAM decouples them into ID and non-ID parts. For static face identification, AAM proves to be as consistent as labeling the images manually, and classification accuracy of 88% is achieved [17]. Universality of Facial Action Coding System (FACS) for recognition of facial expressions is evident from its wide acceptance. In FACS system, facial expressions are recognized based on facial muscle activities which are grouped in 44 action units (AUs). Automatic coding of AUs in frontal and profile view images has been achieved using multi-detector approach for localization of facial feature and to spatially sample the facial components and profile contours. From these extracted contours, 29 fiducial points (10 profile contours and 19 facial component contours) have been extracted. A rule-based reasoning has been applied on these extracted contours, and a recognition rate of 86% is achieved [19]. A spatiotemporal approach for recognizing six prototypic emotion expressions has been reported to achieve a recognition rate of 90.9% on fivefold cross-validation Cohn-Kanade facial expression dataset. A two-step classification approach is adopted. Firstly, in training phase, a linear classifier is applied and characteristic signatures are produced. Secondly, these signatures are used to train discrete HMM corresponding to each facial expression [20].

3 Facial Expression Recognition—Spontaneous Expressions

Efforts have been made in automatic recognition of AUs based on the semantic relationship among AUs and their dynamics. Human intervention is generally required in initial frames to ensure the reliable reference to subsequent frames in both the holistic or local approaches of feature extraction. Further, AUs classification may be performed using either spatial or spatiotemporal approach. The dynamic Bayesian network is applied to model the relationship between AUs.

A recognition rate of 93.27% has been reported for Cohn–Kanade database [22]. Facial subregions are found to be effective for automatic detection of duality in facial expressions. Specifically, different facial subregions on the face such as lips, eyes, nose, facial muscles, and eyebrows are identified as means of edifying posed and naturalistic expressions [4, 5]. The automatic detection of voluntary and naturalistic facial elucidations has application in the medical domain such as automatic discrimination of real from fake pain or monitoring of depression [23, 24].

Automatic recognition of spontaneous facial actions has been performed based on the 3D wrapping of images into canonical views. Facial appearance feature like Gabor filter has been used for feature extraction. Classification accuracy of 75–98% has been achieved using Support Vector Machine (SVM) and HMM [25]. Emotion-inducing videos are used to record subject's affective reactions and self-report labels to code data. Facial features have been extracted by Piecewise Bezier Volume Deformation 3D face tracker. Classification accuracy of 95% is achieved on Cohn–Kanade database using k-Nearest Neighbor (k-NN) [26].

4 Discriminating Posed and Spontaneous Facial Expressions

Characteristics of facial expressions, such as symmetry, speed, and timing advocate that diverse facial portions contribute differently to the discrimination of duality of facial expressions. The facial dynamics for diverse face portions and the eye region incorporate the most useful clues for spontaneous and posed expression identification [4, 27, 28]. Postured smiles usually only comprise of the movement of the mouth (zygomaticus), while natural smiles are more symmetrical and also comprise of the muscles neighboring the eyes (orbicularis oculi). Further, posed smiles are more irregular with respect to amplitude and duration than spontaneous smiles with smaller amplitude [4, 29]. Lip-corner movement in fabricated or social smiles appears discontinuous as compared to felt smiles. This exhibit may be due to disparity in neural control to the degree that fabricated smiles involve conscious efforts, and hence showing difference in the proportionate equilibrium of cortical and subcortical control [30].

Distance-based and angular physiognomy of eyelid motions has been used to classify natural versus postured smiles. The trustworthiness of these features has been assessed with continuous HMM, Naive Bayes, and k-NN classifiers on BBC and Cohn–Kanade public datasets with classification rates up to 91% for postured smiles and up to 80% for natural smiles [3]. Temporal dynamics of brow actions revealed that speed, time interval, and chronological order of brow actions are highly related parameters for discriminating posed and naturalistic brow actions. Further, it is observed that automatic recognition of AUs and the temporal partitions (onset, apex, offset) produced due to brow actions significantly shore in discriminating posed from spontaneous brow actions [5, 32]. Emotional facial expressions

with facial asymmetries divulge prominent cues that comply with the fact that they are produced and apparent asymmetrically. The onset asymmetry has been recorded, and it is observed that naturalistic expressions begin earlier in the left-hemi-face (LHF), as opposed to postured ones that begin earlier in right-hemi-face (RHF). Onset asymmetry (OAS) mostly influences the recognition of the upper-face emotional expressions (e.g., anger expressions) with limited influence on the lower-face emotional expressions (e.g., happy expressions) [33].

5 Evaluating Parameters for Discriminating Duality of Expressions

Existing psychological research revealed that temporal characteristics of the face such as morphology, apex overlap, symmetry, total duration, and the speed of onset and offset are essential for revealing duality in facial expressions. The association of morphology is with the occurrence of an AUs and its temporal phase, whereas total duration refers to the episode of particular emotional expression (e.g., smile) [28, 48]. Apex overlap process refers to such facial expressions where multiple independent facial actions are involved, and it is highly probable that their apex overlaps. Speed of onset and offset of a facial expression (e.g., smile) refers to the fact that posed expressions are quicker as compare to their spontaneous counterpart [49]. It is observed that posed smiles are more asymmetrical as compared to spontaneous smiles [27]. We have explored various feature extraction and classification methods for emotion recognition using facial modality, and Table 1 covers the same with classification accuracy. The table also depicts the basis of discrimination between posed and spontaneous expressions with other relevant parameters: expression type (posed or spontaneous), number of subjects, sample size, modality/cue used, discrimination basis (posed versus spontaneous), system process images or videos, facial characteristics used, and classification accuracy. Facial feature used indicates the feature used to extract the appropriate features from recorded facial image. Classification method indicates classifiers experimented for detecting posed, spontaneous and posed versus spontaneous expressions. Subjects and facial characteristic parameter indicates the number of subjects participated and facial characteristics exercised for experimentation. Modality/Cue indicates the modality/facial subcue used, and stimulus highlights the method used to induce particular emotional expression among subjects. A challenge lies in building the dynamic posed and spontaneous emotion discrimination system.

			וו זמכוו	enorecord vo n					
Ref.	Facial feature used	Classification method	Exp	P versus S basis	Sub.	Facial characteristic	Modality/cue	Sample size	Accuracy
[17]	Active appearance model (AAM)	LDA	Ρ		400	Discriminant parameters	Face	Im: 400	88%
[18]	Piecewise Bezier	Template	Р		5	Eye/eyebrows and	Temporal	Im:	89%
	volume Deformation Tracker	using dynamic Drog & HMM				moun region	cues		
		1105. CC 11	4				. 5		0.704
61	29 fiducial points	Horizontal,	Ъ,		5	Facial muscle	Prohle view	Im:	86%
		vertical mouth classifier				activity	face images		
[20]	Spatiotemporal	Linear	Р		97	Apex frames	Eyes, lip	Vi: 480	96.2-100%
	features	classifier and					corners	sedneuces	
_		discrete HMM						1	
[21]	18 characteristic	One	Р		55	Occurrence order	Eyes, lips,	Vi:	87.5-100%
	points (eyes,	association					mouth,	Sequences	
	eyebrows, and	rule-based					eyebrows		
	mouth corners)	classification							
[39]	64 facial	SVM	S		80	25 facial action units	Eyes, lips,	Im:	79%
	landmarks						nose regions		
[40]	Facial texture	One class	S		2	Geometric	3D face	Vi: AAI	200%
	points	classification					tracker		
[42]	Deformation,	Sequence	S		20	Eyes, eyebrows,	Nasal root	Thermal heat	92%
	transient features,	expression				mouth	wrinkles,	stimulation	
	contextual info.	classification					context		
[43]	20 facial feature	BLSTM-NNs,	S		4	Eyebrows, eyes,	Face,	Im:, Vi	64.2–79.6%
	points	SVR				nose, mouth, and	shoulder,		
						chin	acoustic		
									(continued)

Table 1 Parameters for detection of duality in facial expressions

586

Table	1 (continued)								
Ref.	Facial feature used	Classification method	Exp	P versus S basis	Sub.	Facial characteristic	Modality/cue	Sample size	Accuracy
<u>[</u>	Block features	MKL, SVM, RF	s		7	Spatiotemporal	Macro- and micro-facial expressions	Vi: film clips	78.8%
[33]	OAS side (left, right) for emotion (happy and angry)	Onset asymmetries categorization	P, S	Varied OAS timings for LHF and RHF	68	Facial asymmetry, symmetrical images of avatar faces	Video displayed onset asymmetries	Vi: 96 trials, 32 trials	97.21% OAS detection
[4]	Lips, eye corners and 12 other points	Linear discriminant classifier	P, S	Dynamic changes in appearance over time	81	Amplitude and duration of smile onsets	Smile	Im: Sequence	93%
[2]	4 points on brow, 2 on nostrils, and 2 on inner corners of nose	Gentle relevance vector machines (RVM)	P, S	Temporal dynamics of brow actions	52	AUs + Temporal segment (onset, apex, offset)	Brow actions	60:MMI, 63: CK, 139: DS118	90.7%
[34]	4 action units (onset, apex, offset, neutral)	Dynamic Bayesian network	P, S	Morphology, apex overlap, duration, symmetry, speed of onset and offset	18: S 111: P	4 Temporal phases of AUs: neutral, onset, offset, apex	Smile	MMI: 50 Vi	97%
[35]	20 action units	SVM and AdaBoost	P, S	Dynamics of facial muscles	119	Speed of onset and offset	Brow raise, head pose	False opinion paradigm	93%
[36]	11 facial feature points	SVM	P, S	Temporal phases of smile	400	Fusion of facial features over different regions	Smile, dynamics of eyelid, cheek, lip comers	Vi:	87.10%

(continued)

Table	1 (continued)								
Ref.	Facial feature used	Classification method	Exp	P versus S basis	Sub.	Facial characteristic	Modality/cue	Sample size	Accuracy
[31]	Cylindrical head tracker, 12 fiducial points on face	Kernel method	P, S	Fusion of head, face, shoulder, temporal dynamics	102	Head, face, and shoulder	Smile	Vi: Cartoons, clips nauseating footage	94%
[37]	10 points on the face	SVM with n-class classification	P, S	Micro-expressions	76	6 regions (eye brows, left and right eye, between eyes, nose, and mouth)	Facial subregions	Im: Vi: CK dataset	95% on images 80% on videos
[38]	Temperature different of apex, onset images, 6 statistical features	Bayesian networks	P, S	Infrared thermal images	40	Apex and onset facial expression frames	Temperature variances on face	Im: USTC-NVIE database	76.7%
[41]	20 action units	Nonlinear SVM,	P, S	Effect of cortical, subcortical system	26	Combination of AUs	Posed and real pain expressions	Im: Cold pressor pain	72%
[3]	21 facial features in 4 groups	Continuous hidden Markov k-NN, Naive Bayes	P, S	Eyelid movements	100	Eyebrows, eyelids, eye corners, nose tip, mouth corner	Smile	Im:	80-91%
[45]	68 facial fiducial points	SVM with RBF	P, S	Discriminative texture and geometric features	215	Facial animation parameters (FAP)	Distance between key points on face	Vi:	76.1–83.4%
[46]	22 feature points	Binary SVM classifier	P, S	Deviation in geometric and appearance features	52	Active appearance model	Geometric and texture features	ΪЩ	91%
									(continued)

588

ued)
contin
1
le
[ab

	Accuracy	82.38- 93.93%
	Sample size	Im:
	Modality/cue	Eye brow, lid, chin
	Facial characteristic	Geometric and appearance features (Gabor + LBP)
	Sub.	846
	P versus S basis	Difference images (apex and onset images)
	Exp	P, S
	Classification method	Bayesian network
1 (continued)	Facial feature used	27 feature points (intensity and orientation features)
Table	Ref.	[47]

Exp posed/spontaneous expression, Im/Vi image/video based, Sub. number of subjects

6 Results and Conclusion

In this paper, we attempted to identify some vital parameters for discrimination between posed and spontaneous expressions such as expression type, the number of features extracted, sample size, modality/cue used, discrimination basis. Some important observations have been drawn from this study and are as below:

- Higher accuracy up to 96.2–100% is achieved for posed surprise, joy, and sad expressions using the occurrence order of facial actions and spatiotemporal features, respectively.
- Automatic detection of non-basic affective states such as boredom, engagement/ flow, frustration, pain, fatigue, confusion, and neutral has been experimented, and accuracy of 72–90.9% has been achieved.
- Initial efforts have been made for discriminating postured from naturalistic expressions using infrared thermal images, and classification accuracy of 76.7% is achieved.
- Facial asymmetries have experimented for discrimination between postured and naturalistic expressions. Onset asymmetry is recorded, and it is observed that naturalistic expressions begin earlier in the left-hemi-face (LHF), as opposed to postured ones that begin earlier in right-hemi-face (RHF). Classification accuracy of 97.2% is achieved for emotion categorization.
- The study reveals that most of the research efforts have been put forward only in discrimination of posed and spontaneous smile expressions, thus there exist vast scope in the same domain.

Automatic detection of duality in facial expressions has received an immense attention as it helps in discriminating posed and spontaneous expressions in real-world settings. This study provides the review of available ways to discriminate the emotional facial expressions captured in the form of images or video clips. The observations drawn will be useful to the researchers putting efforts in the domain of discriminating posed and spontaneous expressions in terms of improving the recognition rate highly.

References

- 1. Keltner, D., Ekman, P.: Facial expressions of emotion. In: Lewis, M., Havil-Jones, J.M. (eds.) Handbook of Emotions, pp. 236–249. New York: Guilford Press (2000)
- Zeng, Z., Pantic, M., Roisman, G.I., Huang, T.S.: A survey of affect recognition methods: audio, visual, spontaneous expressions. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 31(1), 39–58 (2009)
- Dibeklioglu, H., Valenti, R., Salah, A.A., Gevers, T.: Eyes do not lie: spontaneous versus posed smiles. In: Proceedings ACM International Conference Multimedia, pp. 703–706 (2010)

- Cohn, J., Schmidt, K.: The timing of facial motion in posed spontaneous smiles. J. Wavelets Multiresolut. Inf. Process. 2, 1–12 (2004)
- Valstar, M.F., Pantic, M.Z., Ambadar, Cohn, J.F.: Spontaneous vs. posed facial behavior: automatic analysis of brow actions. In: Proceeding Eighth International Conference Multimodal Interfaces (ICMI'06), pp. 162–170 (2006)
- Craig, K.D., Hyde, S.A., Patrick, C.J.: Genuine, suppressed, faked facial behavior during exacerbation of chronic low back pain. Pain 46, 161–172 (1991)
- Huang, C.L., Huang, Y.M.: Facial expression recognition using model-based feature extraction action parameters classification. J. Visual Comm. Image Represent. 8(3), 278–290 (1997)
- Pantic, M., Rothkrantz, L.J.M.: Expert system for automatic analysis of facial expression. Image Vis. Comput. J. 18(11), 881–905 (2000)
- Kobayashi, H., Hara, F.: Facial interaction between animated 3D face robot human beings. In: Proceeding International Conference Systems, Man, Cybernetics, pp. 3732–3737 (1997)
- Kimura, S., Yachida, M.: Facial expression recognition its degree estimation. In: Proceeding Computer Vision Pattern Recognition, pp. 295–300 (1997)
- Viola, P., Jones, M.J.: Robust real-time object detection. Int J. Comput. Vision 57(2), 137– 154 (2004)
- Tao, H., Huang, T.S.: A piecewise Bezier volume deformation model its applications in facial motion capture. In: Bovik, A.C., Chen, C.W., Goldgof, D.B. (eds.) Advances in Image Processing Understanding: A Festschrift for Thomas S. Huang (2002)
- 13. Terzopoulos, D., Waters, K.: Analysis synthesis of facial image sequences using physical anatomical models. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. **15**(6), 569–579 (1993)
- Kearney, G.D., McKenzie, S.: Machine interpretation of emotion: design of memory-based expert system for interpreting facial expressions in terms of signaled emotions (JANUS). Cogn. Sci. 17(4), 589–622 (1993)
- Pantic, M., Rothkrantz, L.J.M.: Automatic analysis of facial expressions: the state of the art. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 22(12), 1424–1445 (2000)
- 16. Pantic, M.: Facial expression recognition. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg (2009)
- Edwards, G.J., Cootes, T.F., Taylor, C.J.: Face recognition using active appearance models. Proc. Eur. Conf. Comput. Vis. 2, 581–695 (1998)
- Cohen, L., Sebe, N., Garg, A., Chen, L., Huang, T.: Facial expression recognition from video sequences: temporal static modeling. Comput. Vis. Image Underst. 91(1–2), 160–187 (2003)
- 19. Pantic, M., Leon, J., Rothkrantz, M.: Facial action recognition for facial expression analysis from static face images. IEEE Trans. Syst. Man Cybern. **34**(3), 1449–1461 (2004)
- Yeasin, M., Bullot, B., Sharma, R.: Recognition of facial expressions and measurement of levels of interest from video. IEEE Trans. Multimedia 8(3), 500–508 (2006)
- Ghanem, K., Caplier, A.: Occurrence order detection of face features deformations in posed expressions. In: ICIEIS, Part II, CCIS 252, pp. 56–66, Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg (2011)
- Tong, Y., Liao, W., Ji, Q.: Facial Action unit recognition by exploiting their dynamic semantic relationships. IEEE Trans. Pattern Anal. Mach. Intell. 29(10), 1–17 (2007)
- Ashraf, A., Lucey, S., Cohn, J.F., Chen, T., Ambadar, Z., Prkachin, K., Solomon, P., Theobald, B.: The painful face: pain expression recognition using active appearance models. In: Proceeding of the 9th International Conference on Multimodal Interfaces, pp. 9–14. ACM (2007)
- Cohn, J.F., Kruez, T., Matthews, I., Yang, Y., Nguyen, M., Padilla, M., Zhou, F., Torre, F.D.: Detecting depression from facial actions vocal prosody. In: Affective Computing Intelligent Interaction Workshops, ACII (2009). 3rd International Conference, pp. 1–7 (2009)
- Bartlett, M.S., Littlewort, G., Braathen, P., Sejnowski, T.J., Movellan, J.R.: A prototype for automatic recognition of spontaneous facial actions. Adv. Neural. Inf. Process. Syst. 15, 1271–1278 (2003)

- Sebe, N., Lew, M.S., Cohen, I., Sun, Y., Gevers, T., Huang, T.S.: Authentic Facial Expression Analysis. In: Proceeding IEEE International Conference Automatic Face Gesture Recognition (AFGR) (2004)
- Ekman, P., Hager, J.C., Friesen, W.V.: The symmetry of emotional deliberate facial actions. Psychophysiology 18, 101–106 (1981)
- Ekman, P., Friesen, W.V.: Felt, false, miserable smiles. J. Nonverbal Behav. 6, 238–252 (1982)
- 29. Cohn, J.F.: Automated analysis of the configuration timing of facial expression. In: Ekman, P., Rosenberg, E. (eds.) What the face reveals (2nd edn): Basic applied studies of spontaneous expression using the Facial Action Coding System (FACS). Oxford University Press Series in Affective Science, New York: Oxford (20050)
- 30. Rinn, W.E.: The neuropsychology of facial expression. Psychol. Bull. 52-77 (1984)
- Valstar, M.F., Gunes, H., Pantic, M.: How to distinguish posed from spontaneous smiles using geometric features. In: Proceeding Ninth International Conference Multimodal Interfaces (ICMI'07), pp. 38–45 (2007)
- Ekman, P., Friesen, W.V., Hager, J.C.: Facial action coding system. A human face. Salt Lake City (2002)
- Carr, E.W., Korb, S., Niedenthal, P.M., Winkielman, P.: The two sides of spontaneity: movement onset asymmetries in facial expressions influence social judgments. J. Exp. Soc. Psychol. 31–36 (2014)
- Seckington, M.: Using dynamic Bayesian networks for posed versus spontaneous facial expression recognition. Mater Thesis, Department of Computer Science, Delft University of Technology (2011)
- 35. Bartlett, M., Littlewort, G., Frank, M.G., Lainscsek, C., Fasel, I.R., Movellan, J.R.: Automatic recognition of facial actions in spontaneous expressions. J. Multimedia 1(6) (2006)
- 36. Dibeklioglu, H., Salah, A.A., Gevers, T.: Recognition of genuine smiles. In: IEEE Trans on Multimedia (2014)
- 37. Donia, M.M.F., Youssif, A.A.A., Hashad, A.: Spontaneous facial expression recognition based on histogram of oriented gradients descriptor. Comput. Inf. Sci. 7(3) (2014)
- Liu, Z., Wang, S.: Posed and spontaneous expression distinguishment from infrared thermal images. International Conference on Pattern Recognition (ICPR), Tsukuba, Japan, pp. 1108– 1111, January (2012)
- Girard, J.M., Cohn, J.F., Jeni, L.A., Sayette, M.A., Torre, F.D.L.: Spontaneous facial expression in unscripted social interactions can be measured automatically. Behav. Res. Methods 47(4), 1136–1147 (2015)
- Zeng, Z., Fu, Y., Roisman, G.I., Wen, Z., Hu, Y., Huang, T.S.: One-class classification for spontaneous facial expression analysis. In: Proceedings of IEEE International Conference Automation Face Gesture Recognition, pp. 281–286 (2006)
- Littlewort, G.C., Bartlett, M.S., Lee, K.: Faces of pain: automated measurement of spontaneous facial expressions of genuine posed pain. In: ICMI'07 12–15 November, Nagoya, Aichi, Japan (2007)
- Hammal, Z., Kunz, M., Arguin, M., Gosselin, F.: Spontaneous pain expression recognition in video sequences. In: International Academic Conference on Visions of Computer Society. British Computer Society (BCS), pp. 191–210 (2012)
- Nicolaou, M., Gunes, H., Pantic, M.: Continuous prediction of spontaneous affect from multiple cues modalities in valence-arousal space. IEEE Trans. Affect. Comput. 2(2), 92–105 (2011)
- Pfister, T., Li, X., Zhao, G., Pietikainen, M.: Recognizing spontaneous facial micro-expressions. In: Computer Vision (ICCV) (2011) IEEE International Conference on, IEEE, pp. 1449–1456 (2011)
- Zhang, L., Tjondronegoro, D., Chran, V.: Geometry vs. appearance for discriminating between posed spontaneous emotions. In: Proceedings ICONIP, pp. 431–440 (2011)

- Bhaskar, H., Al-Mualla, M.: Spontaneous vs. Posed Facial Expression Analysis Using Deformable Feature Models Aggregated Classifiers. In: International Conference on Information Fusion (FUSION), July (2013)
- 47. He, M., Wang, S., Liu, Z., Chen, X.: Analyses of the differences between posed spontaneous facial expressions. In: Proceedings ACII, pp. 79–84 (2013)
- 48. Ekman P., Eds, E.: What the face reveals: basic applied studies of spontaneous expression using the Facial Action Coding System. Oxford University Press (2005)
- 49. Ekman, P.: Darwin, deception facial expression. Ann. N. Y. Acad. Sci. 205-221 (2003)

Computation Offloading in Hand-Held Devices Using Ternary Decision Maker in Accountance with Time and Energy

N. L. Chourasiya and Tanu Preet Singh

Abstract Nowadays smartphones have become popular among people since they are running more number of applications at the same time, which helps the user do things quicker and easier. Few computation-intensive task applications cannot be run on smartphone due to availability of limited resources such as storage space, network speed and processor performance. We have addressed this problem to implement the task offloading system for smartphone to increase the efficiency of its energy level and time. This mechanism determines part of applications to be offloaded for cloud execution. The TDM framework is used to take the correct decisions of choosing the appropriate device (i.e. android phone or cloud process) for performing the offloading process. This results in reducing the computation power of using our applications in mobile cloud rather in smartphone. In addition to that, it also provides security for offloading data in mobile cloud.

Keywords Smartphone \cdot Android app \cdot Offloading \cdot Security AES \cdot TDM \cdot Mobile cloud

1 Introduction

Rapid raise in the usage of hand-held devices and the growing demand for availability of technology at fingertips had led smartphones as a part of day-to-day life. Nowadays these mobile devices equipped with latest hardware configurations to meet the users demand of execution of almost any kind of application software up

N. L. Chourasiya (🖂) · T. P. Singh

Department of Computer Science, Punjab Technical University, Jalandhar, Kapurthala, India e-mail: Chourasiya.neelesh@gmail.com

T. P. Singh e-mail: tanupreet.singh@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_62

to an extent. But still due to the growing demand of heavier application software, these devices lack their hardware support. All of these devices come with a word processor, image processor, voice recognition and video processor, and these are the software applications that consume a huge computational power, system memory and bandwidth, resource constraints. Battery power is drained due to more number of applications. The growing trend of using compact devices had led people to stop using laptop and desktop computers, and usage of smartphones is raising substantially which in turn demands more hardware to fulfil their needs and these mobile devices have a limited power house, i.e. its battery.

Smart android devices are not capable to do complex task which laptop or desktop can do. Mobility solution using cloud computation is the resolution for resource limitation. Using this concept, the task that requires more hardware and power, calculated by using a decision maker known as Ternary Decision Maker and shifted it to the cloud, which in turn reduce the resource usage from hand-held devices.

1.1 Mobility Cloud Computing

Cloud computing in mobility devices is combination of cloud and mobile services. Mobility cloud is accessible using Internet and applications. It can considered as a layer service, to which user can upload all kind of data. Cloud provides its users with flexibility of demand access to an ocean of manually configurable computing environment. This environment consists of online servers and storage solutions, online hardware availability, online rack of applications, and its services and features can be accessed or made available to almost unlimited number of users. The only need to reach these services is Internet. Cloud services provide industries with various options to store, access and process their data in the way they want. Cloud computing offers its users with portability, i.e. users are free to get access to their data from anywhere across the globe irrespective of the devices they use. These services can be accessed using any of the mobile networks or using wireless Internet. Cloud computing is a cost-effective way of resource management.

Smartphones use computation-offloading approach as per which computations performed remotely in the cloud instead of executing on a device due to which the device can become resource constraint free. Once the execution is completed, the results are transferred and showed on the device. This mechanism proves out as an efficient way for application quick response and energy management in smart mobile devices (Fig. 1).





1.2 Computational Offloading

The technique of computational offloading is used in resource-constrained devices. Once the user executes application from smartphone device, a decision maker called as Ternary Decision Maker came into scenario, which then has responsibility to check whether device supports computation offloading. Part of application, i.e. computation, will get transfer to cloud and processed. If any of two factors came out negative, i.e. Internet availability or device cloud support, then rest of operation is performed in device itself. Any kind of variations in above-mentioned two parameters will not be allowed for successful offloading implementation.

Several offloading techniques used by systems to overcome these limitations, out of which opportunistic communication, have proved out to be an efficient way to computation offloading. Opportunistic communication takes place when two device networks are in each other's proximity range in a way such that both devices can manage to set up a local connection, i.e. peer-to-peer. These type of connections can be created using Bluetooth, NFC, Wi-fi, WLAN, etc. This type of local connection also depends upon several factors such as distance between devices, signal strength, network quality, atmospheric constraints and device battery. This type of communication is based on the active behaviour of the user's device; therefore, it is not a reliable solution to depend upon.

To address this problem, existing catechist solution needs to carefully analysed and using the heterogeneous node, mobility content has to disseminate. Then an ideal strategy needs to be find out which will cut the load on hand-held devices, especially the smartphone, while these meet the above-mentioned constraints. Computation offloading has proved out as a great solution to increase performance and device power. Offloading proves out as a standard resolution to overcome the
constraints; previously mobility devices address especially in the key areas like time and energy. Hence, it is clear that there is practical need of an offloading framework, which has to perform the decision-making mechanism before performing the offloading task. After performing several researches, TDM, i.e. Ternary Decision Maker, framework has developed to cut the response time as well as power consumption in the hand-held devices at the same time.

Reducing the energy consumption and extending the life of device battery found out to be the most challenging task that needs to be addressed. Battery constraint becomes a major factor in case of compact devices. Manufacturers use profiling partitioning mechanism to reduce power consumption in offloading devices. They first analysed the energy consumption of each application and its function and developed a cost graph. In this graph, every node represents the task needs to done, and each edge of the graph depicts the data to be transferred. Algorithms like optimization, maximum flow and minimum cut implemented to partition the graph and to find out the server and client parts to reduce the energy consumption. Afterwards, partitioned parts executed in the cloud. Lin et al. found out the chances of uploading data to the network processors and reducing the mobility computational load from the mobile devices.

Ternary Decision Maker internally uses several algorithms to disseminate application, time and energy components analysed, and then parts and functions executed.

1.3 Cloud Management

Cloud management can be done in various ways. Performance is the key factor in field of computation. Work management in cloud usually depends on number of users accessing cloud at a time. Resources configured and distributed among users determine response time of the server. Load balancing techniques were opted to handle workload in cloud server systems. Therefore, it is very important that our offloading framework should adapt with workload on cloud server.

Cloud Architecture. In computation offloading, cloud services play a very important role and cloud architecture defines the network layout for resources available in the cloud. It opens several ways and provides us with several opportunities to use the hand-held devices without any technical barrier in almost any kind of environment. Many limitations, which have faced due to the limited hardware availability, have possibly sorted out as the usage of cloud become popular.

Execution time of an application directly depends upon resource device possessed, and more resources in a device are directly proportional to more power consumption that means battery drainage time will be very less. To overcome the problem, a decision-making framework is necessary to perform the computational offloading in these hand-held devices, and hence Ternary Decision Maker, i.e. TDM, has been introduced to reduce the latency time and power consumption concurrently.

The purpose of this system is to:

- Minimize energy consumption by maintaining low delay for processing.
- Calculate memory utilization and the execution time for making decision where system application executes.
- Provide affordable and quality energy-efficient analysis system to every user.
- Analyse steep complexity like no. of sharp turns, potholes, etc.
- Computation on mobile can be offloaded into cloud system for reducing mobile overhead, less power consumption, etc.

2 Related Work

Many techniques have been previously introduced for offloading mechanism in smartphones, which consist of full and partial offloading. Bowen et al. [1] suggest a method to find appropriate cloud resources in which code based on the cellular network available. Some resources used public cloud, cloudlets, MANET, etc. The wireless interface is selected based on different criteria, such as energy consumption, cost, link, accuracy, network reach ability, data link performance, vulnerable cost and annexation level of channel by using AHP and TOPSIS algorithms. This algorithm gives a suitable cloud resource management that utilizes execution time, found by cost estimation system model. It enhances system performance.

Shiraz et al. [2] describe an offloading code frame that reduces the number of computational intensive data, migrated to cloud and decreases the overhead, generated by system components. Firstly, this application runs on android devices, then implementation method is used for application execution time. Pandey et al. [3] presented a dynamic offloading decision method that uses depth first search (DFS) algorithm for calculating the offloading point at runtime. Control flow graph consists of different nodes in this method. Each node represents its execution cost and transmission cost. Call sequence is generated from call flow graph by using depth first search sorting algorithm. Linear searching is used to find the best beginning and ending offloading points.

Saab et al. [4] proposed a free sequence rule that accomplished application effectual by using control flow graph. The work extended to include the safety measures for smartphones. The author used min-cut algorithm for system partitioning to resolve energy optimization problem. This algorithm consists a profiler. To calculate the software and hardware engine that provides decision by using min-cut maximum flow algorithm and android device application based on FSP. Results show that it saves energy consumption and improves performance.

Dinh et al. [5] finalized the idea of offloading and explained its several applications. Kaur et al. [6] a comparative study of code offloading techniques and application partitioningmethods in mobile cloud computing. Lin et al. [7] extended their work. A Firefox framework is used to transparently compute in cloud server. These works used special package software to reduce energy losses in android device. Ben et al. [8] a mobile cloud computing system consisting of one user with multiple tasks, one CAP, and one remote cloud server has been considered. We aim to minimize a weighted total cost of energy, computation, and delay through optimal tasks offloading by the mobile user. Ben et al. [8] gave semi-definite relaxation approach to mobile cloud offloading with computing access point. Lee et al. [9] finalized the idea of offloading and explained its several applications. Sharifi et al. and Gao et al. [10] proposed an application execution framework in mobile cloud server. This method firstly started in mobile device, then process stopped, and information report saved the state of execution framework and sent this report to cloud server and finally executed in server. Loss of input is neglected by integrating application with a state saving method. The data synchronization prioritized by adding application and categorization of information. computational offloading to be used. Lin Gao et al. [7].

3 Problem Formulation

This paper mainly focuses on energy consumption, energy efficiency and system response time of offloading devices. Energy consumption has categorized into mainly two categories: computational energy and communication energy, and this system targets consumption of both types of energy in hand-held devices. Several previous works introduced offloading mechanism by assembling existing software modules rather than coding it from scratch. Hence, it becomes very difficult to extend their interfaces to multiple execution environments.

Control flow graph is used which consists of different nodes. Each node represents its execution cost and transmission cost. Call sequence is generated from call flow graph by using depth first search sorting algorithm. Linear searching is used to find the best beginning and ending offloading points.

In reference to Table 1, application consists of a data processing module, which processes data at a size of N_{input} and stored into memory. Saved data are then executed by the processing unit, which could be device or cloud. Later N_{output} , i.e. the result data, fed back to memory. T_{cpu} represents time of execution if application executed in a local system. T_{cpu} divided into two. First is transmission time, i.e. t_{trans} , used for data fetching. Second is t_{comp} , i.e. computation time, time taken by processing unit to execute.

3.1 Challenge

In a heterogeneous computational environment, correlation between time and energy of the system may not be directly linked.

Lot of previous works have proved that as execution time get reduced energy consumption in that system will reduced. This concept does not prove good

Cost function			Definition		
Target			Major unit for computation, e.g. CPU/coprocessor/ cloud		
T _{target}			Measured execution time when execute on target		
T _{target}			Estimated execution time when execute on target		
<i>E</i> _{target}			Measured energy consumption when execute on target		
Etarget			Estimated energy consumption when execute on		
			target		
Decision	Unit	Variable	Definition		
factor					
В	[Kbps]	0	Transmission bandwidth		
T _{comp}	[Second]	0	Module execution time on mobile CPU		
T _{input}	[KB]	0	Amount of processing data into processing unit		
T _{output}	[KB]	0	Amount of resulting data from processing unit		
μ_{cpu}	[MHz]	X	Mobile CPU speed		
$\mu_{\rm cop}$	[MHz]	X	Mobile coprocessor speed		
$\mu_{\rm cld}$	[MHz]	0	Cloud speed		
$\mu_{\rm mem}$	[Mbps]	X	Memory access bandwidth		
P _{basic}	[Watt]	X	Basic power when idle		
P _{cpu}	[Watt]	X	Mobile CPU running power		
P _{cop}	[Watt]	X	Mobile coprocessor running power		
P _{nic}	[Watt]	X	Network interface power consumption		

 Table 1
 Notation table

especially in a multicore computation environment. In a multicore development environment, execution time of CPU and GPU may vary and their energy consumption of few tests have shown that even though execution time of GPU to complete a task is lower as compared to CPU, still energy consumption is more than CPU. Therefore, main factor, i.e. execution time reduction and overall energy consummation, still stands as an unsolved challenge.

Execution time and energy consumption both are having different standard measures to calculate and hence different units, so it becomes necessary to maintain a function, which can hold summation of time of execution and consumption of energy, which is not a suitable solution to the problem. Therefore, a naïve function needs to develop which can depict both the above-mentioned factors properly. All equipment mainly work under heterogeneous environment where system power is a key factor therefore a method for cross-platform energy calculation desired, So that upon whose calculation, the decision maker can make proper decisions for offloading. However, most of the hand-held devices do not contain any metres or energy data acquisition card, and absence of these components in the hand-held devices makes it more difficult to obtain certain data necessary for decision-making. Therefore, a software-based power consumption measurement method, which is cross-platform based, required to achieve the desired results.

4 Proposed Method

For mobility devices, we evaluate an offloading technique as a solution to constrained optimization problem, to reduce power usage by mobility devices. System develops a framework, called Ternary Decision Maker (TDM). We proposed a real-world application, i.e. to find road roughness. When the task will start using maximum energy consumption and time, it will be shifted to the cloud. We find the operational platform on which execution will be carried out. It may be android device or cloud service execution.

We introduced a computational offloading framework to tackle offloading task and reduce the energy consumption on mobility and cloud services, considering time delay factor. Nowadays, mobile devices can support sensors, for example accelerometer, gyro and proximity sensors. Thus, road bump analysis technology is required to access all information from these sensors and compute operations on mobile devices. System is targeted to decrease the battery usage of mobile devices and cloud engines in a low delay. For mobility devices, "Time-and-Energy-Aware Computation Offloading in Hand-held Devices to Coprocessor and Clouds" introduced an offloading mechanism to delay optimization problem. For cloud engines, we developed this offloading mechanism to reduce stability optimization problem. System is introduced an algorithm to dispatch tasks to engines, which can decrease power usage while confirming queue stability. By properly selecting the control variable, this introduced algorithm takes off three used algorithms, having low time average power usage and queue length. Therefore, a naïve function needs to be developed which can show both the above-mentioned factors properly, which needs to be solved.

The purpose of this system is to reduce power consumption by maintaining low delay time for processing, calculating memory utilization and execution time for making decision where system application execute, providing affordable and quality energy-efficient analysis system to every user. Road bump analysis using accelerometer and orientation sensor and analyzing steep complexity like number of sharp turns, potholes, etc., offloading in mobility devices can be done using cloud system by Ternary Decision Maker to reduce mobile overhead, which results in less power consumption.

5 Implementation and Result

In this work, a computational offloading framework is introduced whose decision entirely depends on device's time of execution and device's battery usage. We aim to reduce both device time of execution and battery usage at the same interval. Binary decisions are considered in previous works, Project enhancement of existing technique by using code-partitioning techniques, reliable for several offloading targets. Here research is presented to evaluate the efficiency in different

Create factor table	Without partitioning		With partitioning	
	Existing time	Existing energy	Time (ms)	Energy (mJ)
Factors	3150	2150	2000	400
Collected factors	850	2000	580	200
Build cost function	52	2425	1400	635
Make decision	3000	1775	10	315
Update factor table	1730	1200	500	20

Table 2 Factor table

environment. On basis of this framework, matrix multiplication module tends to uploaded to processors that are more capable.

5.1 Code-Partitioning Techniques

A test case design technique called partitioning is used to multiply the software input into several parallel data-level classes. Equivalence data class needs test cases to design. Processing of test object is influenced by input data derived from the requirements specifications of the equivalence partition. This testing method reduces time factor for software testing by using effective test cases. In this method, only one condition is tested from each partition as it assumes that each partition reacts in a common manner, i.e. proper working of one partition implies the whole system's proper functioning and vice versa. Equivalence testing technique consists of setting values into the classes (Table 2).

Valid Input = holds all inputs, i.e. valid. Invalid Input = holds all inputs, i.e. invalid.

5.2 Measurement of Decision Factor

1. Calculation of bandwidth with reference Table 1

Wireless bandwidth (B)

$$B = (\text{data sent in } \text{kb})/(\text{time in second}) = [\text{kb/s}]$$
(1)

2. Component speed: μ_{cpu} , μ_{cld} , μ_{mem}

To calculate the local CPU speed, i.e. μ_{cpu} , and transfer it to the cloud environment at runtime to calculate the cloud engine speed, i.e. μ_{cld} ,

 $\mu_{mem} = (\text{amount of data accessed in mb})/\text{time in second}(20 \text{ s}) = [\text{mb/s}]$ (2)

3. Execution time: T_{comp} , T_{trans}

$$T_{\rm comp} = T_{\rm cpu} - T_{\rm trans} \tag{3}$$

where total execution time and memory transmission time are denoted by T_{cpu} and T_{trans} .

Ternary Decision Maker: After intense study of the situation, an offloading framework has proposed, to reduce the time of execution, device to cloud response time and power usage reduction at the same moment. Under this newly developed offloading environment, execution targets mainly consist of a mobile CPU, a board build GPU and cloud environment which is actively connected to the hand-held devices which include smartphones and several other compact devices. Both execution time slot and power consumption are having different standard units to calculate, hence it becomes necessary to maintain a function, which can hold summation of time of execution and consumption of energy, which is not a suitable solution to the problem.

First, we consider time of CPU's execution, i.e. T_{cpu} , as shown in Eq. (4). CPU's execution is divided into two parts, i.e.

$$T_{\rm cpu} = t_{\rm trans} + t_{\rm comp}.$$
 (4)

First part calculates the time taken for transmission, which mentioned as t_{trans} , whose function is insertion and retrieval of data from system's memory; similarly second part calculates the computation time, which denoted as t_{comp} , i.e. the time consumed by the device's CPU to execute the line of codes. Transmission time purely depends on processed data amount. Here we have,

$$T_{\rm trans} = N_{\rm input} + N_{\rm output} \ \mu_{\rm mem}.$$
 (5)

Power consumption by the local CPU can be calculated as

$$E_{\rm cpu} = \left(P_{\rm basic} + P_{\rm cpu}\right) \times T_{\rm cpu}.\tag{6}$$

If the task is performed by the GPU of the hand-held device, then its time of execution is estimated by T_{cop} , i.e.

$$T_{\rm cop} = t_{\rm trans} + t_{\rm comp} \times \mu_{\rm cpu} \mu_{\rm cop}.$$
 (7)



Fig. 2 Bump index

Finally the overall consumption of energy, i.e. E_{cop} , is measured as

$$E_{\rm cop} = (P_{\rm basic} + P_{\rm cop}) \times T_{\rm cop} \tag{8}$$

After calculating the above factors, time of execution and power consumption in cloud engine, computation offloading performed needs to be considered. Modules' estimated time of execution, i.e. shown by T_{cld} also needs to be calculated while offloading performed (Figure 2).

6 Experiment Result

After application of the above-considered logic, road bump analysis test has been performed whose output on 50[ms] Z-axis standard deviation of acceleration or vertical direction $SD_z(i)$ is drawn. Byz(i), i.e. Bump, index is drawn below:

Result graph with reference Figs. 3 and 4 shows the improvement in the execution time and device energy-saving up to 90% by implementing the proposed methodology.



Fig. 4 Energy consumption of proposed versus existing system

7 Conclusion

In this work, an effort has been put to design and implement a computation-offloading decision-making framework, whose decision-making is purely based on estimation of device execution and response time as well as device power consumption. In addition, this offloading framework is suitable for inter-platform offloading tasks. After implementing the above framework into the system, we achieve almost 75% faster execution timings and 56% increase in the device's power consumption.

Existing Energy

(mj)

2150

2425

1775

1200

2000

The proposed work has shown considerable amount reduction of both time and energy consumption. These results exhibit that the energy-saving in batteries is possible because of closing down of applications used for execution.

Acknowledgements This work is promoted by Amritsar College of Engineering and Technology, as the Punjab Technical University, Kapurthala, India, All support is gratefully acknowledged.

References

- Bowen, Z., Amir, V.D., Rodrigo, N.C., Raj Kumar, B., Satish, N.S.: A context sensitive 369 offloading scheme for mobile cloud computing service. In: Cloud Computing (CLOUD), 2015 IEEE 8th International Conference, vol. 10, pp. 869–876. IEEE, New York, USA (2015)
- Shiraz, M., Ahmed, E., Gani, A., Han, Q.: Investigation on runtime partitioning of elastic mobile applications for mobile cloud computing. J. Supercomput. 67(1), 84–103 (2014)
- Pandey, V., Singh, S., Tapaswi, S.: Energy and time efficient algorithm for cloud offloading using dynamic profiling. Wireless Pers. Commun. 80(4), 1687–1701. Springer, New York (2015)
- Saab, A., Farah, S., Kayssi, A., Chehab, A., Elhajj, H.: Partial mobile application offloading to the cloud for energy-efficiency with security measures. In ELSEVIER Sustain. Comput. Inf. Syst. 8, 38–46 (2015)
- 5. Dinh, H., Lee, C., Niyato, D., Wang, P.: A survey of mobile cloud computing: architecture, applications, and approaches. Wirel. Commun. Mobile Comput. 2(2/3), 237–257 (2013)
- Kaur, A., Kaur, K.: Comparative study of code offloading techniques and application partitioning methods in mobile cloud computing. Int J Comput Appl. 143(13), pp.1–8, June (2016)
- Lin, G., Iosifidis, G., Huang, J., Tassiulas, L.: Economics of mobile data offloading. In: 2013 29th IEEE Conference on Computer Communications Workshops, vol. 30, pp. 351–356, IEEE INFOCOM, Turin, Italy (2013)
- Ben, L., Meng, H.C., Min, D.: A semidefinite relaxation approach to mobile cloud offloading with computing access point. In: Signal Processing Advances in Wireless Communications (SPAWC), IEEE 16th International Workshop, pp. 186–190, IEEE, Stockholm, Sweden (2015)
- 9. Lee, C., Niyato, D., Wang, P., Dinh, H.T.: A survey of mobile cloud computing: architecture, applications, and approaches. Wirel. Commun. Mobile Comput. (2013)
- Gao, L., Iosifidis, G., Huang, J. Tassiulas, L.: Economics of mobile data offloading. In: 2013 IEEE Conference on Computer Communications Workshops (INFOCOM WKSHPS), pp. 351–356. IEEE
- 11. Anwar, E.S., Ahmed, U.Z., Xia, F.: Cloudlet deployment in local wireless networks: motivation, architectures, applications, and open challenges. J. Netw. Comput. Appl. (2016)
- Kosta, S., Aucinas, A., Hui, P., Mortier, R., Zhang, X.: Think air: dynamic resource allocation and parallel execution in the cloud for mobile code offloading. In: 31st Annual IEEE INFOCOM International Conference Computational Communication (2015)
- 13. Abolfazli, S., Sanaei, Z., Gani, A.: Mobile cloud computing: a review on smart phoneaugmentation approaches. In: Proceedings of the 1st International Conference on Computing, Information Systems and Communications (2012)

Modelling of Tunnel Field-Effect Transistor for Ultra-low-power Applications

C. H. Pavan Kumar and K. Sivani

Abstract The IC technology always aims at increasing the package density and the speed. The VLSI technology is governed by MOSFETs for the past couple of decades. In the process of increasing the package density, the size of the MOSFETs has been scaled down continuously. Due to this, in MOSFETs the subthreshold leakage current and leakage power increase. And also the scaling of MOSFETs has reached its inactiveness mainly because of short channel effects. Hence, in this regard, an alternative to the MOSFETs has to be studied widely. That particular investigation is a tunnel field-effect transistor (TFET). The particular distinct characteristics of TFET are subthermal SS, delayed saturation, greater gm/IDS, higher output resistance, low on-current and higher miller capacitance. TFET, even with its low on-current, finds important applications in ultra-low-power electronic applications. Sub-nw power range enabled by TFET is unattainable in MOSFET mainly due to the higher MOSFET leakage. However, MOSFET outperforms TFET at a higher performance/power condition. Therefore, TFET presents many opportunities for the ultra-low-power designs/applications. In this paper, we have modelled TFET in such a way that it can be better suitable for circuit simulations. Design parameters for our design are L = 20n and W = 1u. HSPICE results for tunnel field-effect transistor, and its device designs are shown in this paper.

Keywords Quantum mechanical band-to-band tunnelling (BTBT) Subthreshold slope (SS) • Ultra-low-power applications

KITSW, Warangal, Telangana, India e-mail: k_sivani@yahoo.co.in

K. Sivani e-mail: dattapavan834@gmail.com

C. H. P. Kumar (🖂) · K. Sivani

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_63

1 Introduction

For many decades, the performance improvement of microelectronic circuits and devices has been based only on continuously scaling down the size of Si MOSFET transistors [1-3]. As scaling reaches the end, a new type of conventional, innovative device architectures, novel materials and new device concepts are required for continuous enhancement of performance [4-13]. The emerging candidate for ultra-low-power applications is tunnel field-effect transistors (TFETs). The I_{ds} in TFETs is produced by quantum mechanical band-to-band tunnelling (BTBT). Tunnelling is a quantum phenomenon, in which a particle is able to cross a potential barrier even though it does not have the energy to overcome this barrier. Such behaviour is not observed in the case of classical particles. Therefore, any classical analogy used to explain the phenomenon of quantum mechanical tunnelling would necessarily be inaccurate. Instead of taking such a classical analogy, it would be more fruitful to picture the quantum particle as a wave and form a link between this quantum mechanical behaviour and the behaviour displayed by waves. In semiconductors, two different types of models are used to calculate the current resulting from tunnelling—local and non-local models. Non-local models treat tunnelling as a process that occurs in spatial coordinates, where electrons tunnel from one point in space to another. The WKB approximation and Landauer's tunnelling formula are classified as non-local models [13]. Local models, on the other hand, treat tunnelling as a phenomenon taking place from one energy band to another in the Ek space of the material. Two commonly used local models for calculating the tunnelling rate in semiconductors. Kane's model developed by E. O. Kane in 1959, this is one of the most widely used models for calculating the band-to-band tunnelling rate in TFET models. Hurkx model was developed by Hurkx in 1992 as a recombination model that included the effects of tunnelling. However, the Hurkx model is also used as a tunnelling model by many device simulators. The advantage of the Hurkx model over Kane's model is the inclusion of effects of trap-assisted tunnelling and density of states.

2 Working Principle of TFET

Figure 1a shows the basic structure of an n-channel TFET. The device has three regions—the source, the channel and the drain. Comparing the structure of an n-channel TFET with that of an n-channel MOSFET, we find that the source doping in a TFET is p-type, whereas it is n-type in the MOSFET. This is the only major difference between a TFET and a MOSFET. The channel region in the TFET is usually intrinsic or very lightly doped. We will now qualitatively examine the behaviour of TFETs. The behaviour of any transistor is usually described by its current characteristics, a plot of the current flowing in the device under various biasing conditions. For a transistor, the most significant current characteristics are

the transfer characteristics and the output characteristics. These are plots of the drain current in the transistor with respect to the gate and the drain bias, respectively. In this section, we will develop a qualitative understanding of the behaviour of a TFET. The effect of biasing on the drain current of a TFET is best understood by observing the band diagrams of a TFET under various biasing conditions. While studying these, we will qualitatively predict the variation of the drain current with various biases. This makes the analytical modelling of BTBT in these devices very difficult, and numerical simulation in 2- or 3-dimensions is needed for accurate modelling of transistor. Since band-to-band tunnelling is a quantum mechanical phenomenon, a quantum transport formalism is required to simulate the BTBT current more rigorously.

From the Fig. 2 n-channel TFET energy band diagram of Schematic and Cross section of both in OFF and ON states. Initially, device is in off state. If we apply greater than 0 V to gate potential, then as a result, tunnelling window (qV_{TW}) opens up. So CB (of channel) as to be shifted just below the VB (of a source). Then all electrons in VB will acquire energy and by using tunnelling window, electrons tunnel or enter into the empty states (of channel). Then this mode of operation for transistor is viewed as ON state. Then the principle of operation for p-channel TFET is same as n-channel TFET, but just reverse case. And also switching is same as in n-channel TFET. Illustrating that conventional mode of operation for n-channel TFET, tunnel current or Ids is suppressed when we apply low V_{GS} . If V_{GS} is greater than 0 V, as a result tunnel window at the source junction is opened. TFET (tunnel field-effect transistor) can be turned on at channel drain junction, only when gate bias should be applied as sufficiently negative.



Fig. 1 Basic structure of a tunnel field-effect transistor



Fig. 2 Cross section of schematic and energy band diagram of an n-channel TFET, when it is operated in \mathbf{a} OFF state, \mathbf{b} ON state and \mathbf{c} Ambipolar state

As shown in below Fig. 2c, if we apply gate bias as in negative, as a result electrons tunnelling occurs from the channel into the drain area. Therefore, we can conclude that tunnelling window (qV_{TW}) opens up once again with tunnelling junction is just shifted from the source-channel junction to drain-channel junction. When this particular state occurs, channel conduction changes or modifies from one carrier type to another. As that particular transfer characteristics are known to be ambipolar state. Then we can call this type of behaviour is generally universal across any TFET geometries.

Tunnel field-effect transistors (TFETs) come under steep-slope transistor group. TFET has been emerged as a leading contender in entire semiconductor industry. This is only due to its capability on scaling down the operating voltage (i.e. operating with low voltages). Then this reduces the power consumption for the circuit. Then it is suitable for ultra-low power design applications. Current generation in TFETs is only due to the band-to-band tunnelling (BTBT) at the source-channel junction. By which the carriers at the high energy tail of the Fermi– Dirac distribution are filtered by a tunnelling window. Then, subthreshold slope (SS) is less than or equal to 60 mV/decade can be achieved by TFET.

From Fig. 3, we can point out the transfer characteristics stating the difference between MOSFET and TFET.

Fig. 3 Transfer characteristics stating the difference between MOSFET and TFET



3 Subthreshold Swing (SS)

In MOSFETs, the current generation is found by the thermionic emission of particular high energy carriers. But only carriers with energy exceeding the source-channel electrostatic potential barrier will only contribute to the on-state current. And these high energy carriers will follow the Fermi–Dirac distribution. Hence thermal subthreshold slope limited of 60 mV/decade at the 300 K (room temperature) it have an energy slope of kT (where k is the Boltzmann constant, T is the absolute temperature). Unlike MOSFETs, TFETs as asymmetrical source/drain doping (p-i-n) like as reverse biased gated p-i-n diodes.

4 Band-to-Band Tunnelling (BTBT)

For semiconductor device simulation and modelling, the modelling of band-to-band tunnelling (BTBT) process is an important aspect. BTBT has been traditionally considered as a second-order effect for mainstream CMOS technology because it contributes to leakage current. Recently, it is proved that simulation of BTBT attracted interest to realize tunnelling transistor (TFET) that gives steep switching characteristics [1–14]. In both TFET and MOSFET, w.r.t location only the direction of band-to-band tunnelling current depends.

5 Simulation Results

HSPICE simulation of tunnel field-effect transistor model.

As shown in Figs. 4 and 5, both ON and OFF states of TFET are also shown in Fig. 6.

As a result of continues scaling the Supply voltage (V_{DD}) we can reduce the power consumption, But without neglecting the performance of the device. For efficient tunnel field-effect transistor design, the following significant parameters have to be improved such as tunnelling reduction of SS and Ion (On-current). For any design of tunnel field-effect transistor, we should involve in reduction of tunnelling barrier. This can be achieved by following parameters like gate electrostatics improvement, low band-gap materials, low interface states to suppress trap-assisted tunnelling (TAT) [13, 15–18] and hetero-band alignment. Simulations of a TFET-based inverter and ring oscillator are shown in Figs. 7 and 8. And device parameters are also shown in Table 1. From that it is evident that TFET is operating with less than or equal to 0.6 V.



Fig. 4 $I_{\rm DS}$ versus $V_{\rm GS}$ characteristics



Fig. 5 Tunnel field-effect transistor ON state



Fig. 6 Tunnel field-effect transistor OFF state



Fig. 7 Tunnel field-effect transistor Ring Oscillator



Fig. 8 Tunnel field-effect transistor Inverter

Table 1 Device	parameters
----------------	------------

Parameters	Value
CHARGE	1.6021918e-19
HBAR	1.05458e-34
PI	3.141592653
EPS0	8.85418782e-12
VDSMIN	1e-12
DELTA	5
VMIN	0.0001
AMIN	0.0001
LENGTH	20n
WIDTH	1u

6 Conclusion

In this paper, we have shown the TFET-based inverter and oscillator simulations. First, it is modelled using HSPICE and Table 1 shows the design parameters that are used for simulation. TFETs are one of the promising candidates for steep-slope switch. Its operating supply voltage is significantly low or equal to 0.6 V, and then, it offers significant power dissipation savings. And because of its low off-currents, they are ideally suitable for both ultra-low power and low standby power logic applications, operating at moderate frequencies.

References

- 1. Han, G., Yeo, Y.-C.: Silicon-based tunnelling field-effect transistor with elevated germanium source formed on (110) silicon substrate. Appl. Phys. Lett. **98**, 153502 (2011)
- Yadav, M.: Two dimensional analytical modelling for asymmetric 3T and 4T double gate tunnel FET in sub threshold region: potential and electric field. 44(12), 1251–1259 (2013) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- 3. Patel, N., Mahapatra, S.: Drive current boosting of n-type tunnel FET with strained SiGe layer at source. **39**(12), 1671–1677 (2008) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- 4. Narang, R., Saxena, M., Gupta, R.S., Gupta, M.: Drain current model for agate all around (GAA) p-n-p-n tunnel FET. **44**(6), 479–488 (2013) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- Graef, M., Holtij, T., Hain, F., Kloes, A., Iñíguez, B.: A 2D closed form model for the electrostatics in hetero-junction double-gate tunnel-FETs for calculation of band-to-band tunneling current. 45(9), 1144–1153 (2014) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- Fan, M.-L.: Single-trap-induced random telegraph noise for Fin FET, Si/Ge Nano wire FET, Tunnel FET, SRAM and logic circuits. 54(4), 698–711 (2014) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- Le Royer, C., Villalon, A., Hutin, L., Vinet, M.: Fabrication and electrical characterizations of SGOI tunnel FETs with gate length down to 50 nm. 115, Part B, 167–172 (2016) (Elsevier Ltd.)
- 8. Kim, S.K., Choi, W.Y.: Impact of gate dielectric constant variation on tunnel field-effect transistors (TFETs). Solid State Electron. **116**, 88–94 (2015) (Elsevier)
- 9. Seabaugh, A.C., Zhang, Q.: Low-voltage tunnel transistors for beyond CMOS logic. Proc. IEEE **98**(12), 2095–2110 (2010)
- 10. Wu, C., Huang, R.: Design guideline for complementary hetero structure tunnel FETs with steep slope and improved output behaviour. IEEE Electron Device Lett. **37**(1) (2016)
- 11. Wang, J., Wang, Y.: A novel tunnel FET design with stacked source configuration for average subthreshold swing reduction. IEEE Trans. Electron Devices **63**(12) (2016)
- 12. Ilatikhameneh, H., Klimeck, G., Rahman, R.: Can homo junction tunnel FETs scale below 10 nm? IEEE Electron Device Lett. **37**(1) (2016)
- 13. Ma, W.C.-Y., Chen, Y.-H.: Digital performance improvement of poly-Si tunnel FETs by trap density reduction. IEEE Trans. Electron Devices **63**(2) (2016)
- Hutin, L., Oeflein, R.P.: Investigation of ambipolar signature in SiGeOI homo junction tunnel FETs. In: IEEE EUROSOI-ULIS 2015: Joint International EUROSOI Workshop and International Conference on Ultimate Integration on Silicon (2015)
- Wu, J., Taur, Y.: A continuous semi analytic current model for DG and NW TFETs. IEEE Trans. Electron Devices 63(2) (2016)
- Tura, A., Woo, J.C.S.: Performance comparison of silicon steep subthreshold FETs. IEEE Trans. Electron Devices 57(6) (2010)
- Pala, M.G., Esseni, D.: Interface traps in InAs nanowire tunnel-FETs and MOSFETs—Part I: model description and single trap analysis in tunnel-FETs. IEEE Trans. Electron Devices 60 (9), 2795–2801 (2013)
- Sedighi, B., Hu, X.S., Liu, H., Nahas, J.J.: Analog circuit design using tunnel-FETs. IEEE Trans. Circuits Syst. I: Regular Papers 62(1) (2015)

Genetic Annealing-Based IDS System for Attack Detection

Soumya Bajpai and Ashish Gupta

Abstract Through proposed work, a new trend of machine learning based on evolution and genetics has been tried to be brought in an innovative way. IDS has been a part of our system development for a very long time, but there is no very effective way to create a new and very efficient system. Due to increasing use of computers and new technologies, threat to the system information has been increasing at an alarming rate. The first step toward it is to increase the capability of the system to detect the attacks and then to encounter them. So, here a new approach has been proposed to detect the attacks with high precision and accuracy. The proposed approach gives a new term "genetic annealing," which is a hybrid of genetic algorithm and simulated annealing technique. The results show the effectiveness of the results, and the proper working of the algorithm is explained in the paper.

Keywords IDS · Attack detection · Genetic algorithm · Simulated annealing

1 Introduction

In our day-to-day life, the use of computer networks is effectively increasing, so security also plays a very vital role for a network. To overcome this problem, we develop protective software systems which can help us to identify the security goals which are confidentiality, authentication, and integrity [1]. This system was first introduced by Anderson in 1980. This system can easily identify the illegal activities. The drawback was in terms of handling high-dimensional data, false positives, and false negatives [2]. The technology to process highly complex algorithm and improve accuracy was needed. The curse of dimensionality is that

A. Gupta e-mail: guptaashishnitm@gmail.com

S. Bajpai (🖂) · A. Gupta

NITM, Gwalior, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: Soumyabajpai2013@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_64

when we include something new in our result, we get performance degradation. One of the techniques we used is feature selection which uses limited features and leads to dimensionality reduction. For strong security point of view, there are different soft computing techniques. IDS is a device which monitors suspicious programs, applications, or activities of a system or a software [3]. An intrusion is also defined as the problem of identifying individuals who are using their computer unauthorized and who have legitimate access to the system but are abusing their privileges.

When we find out the irregular activities in the system which tend to the misuse or change in integrity, confidentiality, or availability of a computer resource, then the process to find out this problem in the system or in the network is known as intrusion detection. There are two types of methods for detection: First one is signature based, which is mainly used for trying to match the action of a system and stored in the system, and the second type is anomaly based, which is used to detect the anomalies by the first learning characteristics of a normal activity. The most important component in this work was to set a benchmark of dataset KDD Cup which is used to carry out the experiments. Therefore, the benchmark dataset KDD Cup is used as database. In this dataset, we use 41 attributes which are used by each record to characterize network traffic behavior. In these 41 attributes, 38 are numeric and 3 are symbolic [4–6].

Genetic algorithm (GA) is an optimization technique from evolutionary computation. It uses the principle of survival of the fittest. It uses the mutation and crossover to provide the optimal number of features. This theory mainly defines that individuals that are adaptable to changing environment or thus fit in that scenario will move further, and the rest of the weak population will be eliminated [7, 8].

In soft computing technology [9–11], the neural network is usually applied in intrusion detection research. Hierarchical perception (MLP), hierarchical BP neural network model, and self-organizing map (SOM) network have gained great experimental effect in the application of intrusion detection. Genetic fuzzy rule mining-based intrusion detection mainly studies rule encoding, fitness function evaluation, genetic operator design, etc. The basic framework of negative selection and genetic process remains unchanged.

2 Literature Review

In this paper [12], an IDS using genetic algorithm-based feature selection approach has been proposed. For machine learning, SVM is used. SVM classifies the data and hence improves the results when evaluated.

In this paper [13], main focus was on a part of IDS which was anomaly detection. The research was focused on false-positive rate (FPR). As the value of FPR reduces, the accuracy and performance of the system increase.

In this paper [14], the authors worked toward finding the solution to intrusion detection by proposing a hybrid approach. The work was done on fuzzy and genetic

algorithm. For feature selection to the processing and finding results, the fuzzy genetic algorithm was applied. Crossover and mutation rate were prefixed in this work. The accuracy of the work was improved, while the computation time was increased considerably.

In this work [15], the approach was hybrid but was focused on different databases. They applied their research to both discrete and continuous attributes. Many association rules were derived to enhance the detection ability. The proposed method was flexible and can be applied for both misuse and anomaly detection in data intrusion and detection problems. It worked on improving the process data model and also used clusters and centroids to convert the dataset into training set.

3 Proposed Work

The proposed work is based on genetic approach using simulated annealing as an important aspect affecting the intrusion detection system. There are few main phases in the process:

- i. The KDD Cup 99 dataset is used as the dataset. The data are loaded first.
- ii. In the feature selection phase, out of 41 attributes, only the important attributes are selected using the soft set theory. The soft set theory helps in selection of the data which are used for the result deduction in less time.
- iii. The selected attribute-based data are then saved in a file. The file is further processed using the genetic algorithm and simulated annealing concept to create file having only the data which need to be processed further to get the final result.
- iv. The file is then processed in Weka using the classification of the attributes. The algorithm used is tree based and is known as simple cart.
- v. Finally, the results are obtained having the measurement parameters named as: TP rate, FP rate, precision, recall, accuracy, etc.

The steps in the proposed algorithm are explained in detail:

- 1. Loading the dataset: The KDD Cup dataset is not loaded fully. Only the 10% of the dataset is used. For this, the dataset is divided using sql query and then loaded in the MATLAB.
- 2. The next step is feature selection which aims at determining a minimal feature subset from the problem so as to find the results with high accuracy. The feature selection is a necessity as it contains redundant and irrelevant data too. A feature is considered to be redundant if it is highly correlated with other features. These data need to be removed by various methods. The reduction in unnecessary data will lead to better, accurate, and faster results.
- 3. The file is saved and soft set; GA and simulated annealing are applied further.

- i. The soft set approach is applied on the data so as to reduce the redundant sets.
- ii. The data are converted into binary form, i.e., 0 and 1, to represent the data in form of chromosomes. These chromosomes perform crossover at random locations among themselves. Few chromosomes turn out to be the same after crossover is performed, for that a process known as simulated annealing is performed. The chromosomes are changed totally, and the newly formed chromosomes are slowly taken to the point where they may vary with the other chromosomes but have at least 75% features same as others. This process improves the accuracy and diversification both. The coding can be represented as:

```
for i=1:row
     for j=1:col
           if(data< range)
                  chromosome = 0
            else
                  chromosome = 1
     end
end
if(chromosome(i) == chromosome(loc))
     matched = matched+1
%perform crossover
b1= [first(1, 1:cp), second(1,cp+1:end)];
b2= [second(1, 1:cp), first(1, cp+1:end)];
%perform SA
for(chromosome(i) <= chromosome(i+1))</pre>
      first = chromosome(setall('1'));
      s chromosome(k,:)=first - '0';
end
```

4. The final results are calculated using Weka. The algorithm is simple cart. The results generated are discussed further in detail. The results obtained are better than the previous results obtained from the base algorithm.

3.1 Measurement Factors

The final results are shown in the form of confusion matrix. In IDS, the measurement parameters are represented using the confusion matrix having attributes as: TP (true positive), FN (false negative), FP (false positive), and TN (true negative). The matrix is represented in Table 1:

	Correctly classified	Incorrectly classified
Valid record	True negative (TN)	False positive (FP)
Attack record	True positive (TP)	False negative (FN)

Table 1 Confusion matrix for TN, TP, FP, and FN

where TP (true positive), FN (false negative), FP (false positive), and TN (true negative) are defined as follows:

- True negative (TN): These are the negative tuples that were correctly labeled by the classifier.
- True positive (TP): These are the positive tuples that were correctly labeled by the classifier.
- False positive (FP): These are the negative tuples that were incorrectly labeled as positive.
- False negative (FN): These are the positive tuples that were mislabeled as negative.
- i. **Precision**: Precision refers to the closeness of two or more measurements to each other. Precision is defined as the number of true positives over the number of true positives plus the number of false positives.

$$Precision = \frac{t_{\rm p}}{t_{\rm p} + f_{\rm p}} \tag{1}$$

ii. **Recall**: Recall is defined as the number of true positives over the number of true positives plus the number of false negatives.

$$\operatorname{Recall} = \frac{t_{\rm p}}{t_{\rm p} + f_{\rm n}} \tag{2}$$

iii. Accuracy: Accuracy refers to the closeness of a measured value to a standard or known value.

Accuracy =
$$\frac{t_{\rm p} + t_{\rm n}}{t_{\rm p} + t_{\rm n} + f_{\rm p} + f_{\rm n}}$$
(3)

iv. **Kappa: Cohen's kappa** is a measure of the agreement between two raters that determine which category a finite number of subjects belong to, whereby

agreement due to chance is factored out. The two raters either agree on their rating (i.e., the category that a subject is assigned to) or disagree; there are no degrees of disagreement (i.e., no weightings).

$$Pr(a) = \frac{t_{\rm p} + t_{\rm n}}{t_{\rm p} + t_{\rm n} + f_{\rm p} + f_{\rm n}} \tag{4}$$

$$Pr(e) = \frac{(f_{\rm p} + t_{\rm n}) * (t_{\rm p} + t_{\rm n})}{(f_{\rm p} + f_{\rm n}) * (t_{\rm p} + f_{\rm n})}$$
(5)

$$k = \frac{(Pr(a) - Pr(e))}{1 - Pr(e)} \tag{6}$$

v. **True-positive rate (TPR)**: The true-positive rate shows the correctly classified attack types, and thus, the value should be higher.

$$TPR = \frac{TP}{TP + FN}$$
(7)

vi. False-positive rate (FPR):

$$FPR = \frac{FP}{TN + FP}$$
(8)

The tools used are MATLAB 2016 and Weka. The feature selection, genetic algorithm, and simulated annealing have been implemented on MATLAB, while the final confusion matrix and the measurement parameters are calculated on Weka. Weka supports various standard data mining job, more specifically data pre-processing, clustering, classification, feature selection, and visualization. We need to classify the KDD Cup dataset and hence, Weka is used.

4 Results and Analysis

This part shows the experimental results calculated from genetic annealing model of IDS in comparison with the fuzzy-based IDS method. The two different algorithms when compared show that the proposed algorithm is better than the base algorithm in all terms. Both the algorithms consequently result in the data classification as

Table 2 Comparison of base and proposed results		Base	Proposed
	Correctly classified instances (%)	99.887	99.927
	Incorrectly classified instances (%)	0.104	0.073
	Kappa statistic	0.9968	0.9978
	Mean absolute error	0.0006	0.0004
	Relative absolute error (%)	0.434	0.3311
	Total number of instances	32,833	33,162

attack type accordingly. Also, the accuracy obtained for genetic annealing-based IDS is raised appreciably than fuzzy-based IDS (Table 2).

Other factors are also better when compared with the base work. The results are compared further using the graphs that show the differences in the TPR rate along with precision and time factors.

TP rate: The increase in TP rate shows the increase in better results as this results in finding better attributes in terms of performance and accuracy. The graph in Fig. 1 shows the comparison of the TP rate of the base and proposed algorithm.

Precision: It is an important factor to calculate the working efficiency of the algorithm. The precision of the algorithm should be high. A comparative graph-based study is shown in Fig. 2 to ensure the positive working of the proposed work:

Recall: Recall of the proposed algorithm should be high and it is also one of the measures for the calculation of the working of the proposed algorithm (Fig. 3).



Fig. 1 Comparison for TP rate of the base and proposed algorithm



Fig. 2 Comparison for precision of the base and proposed algorithm



Fig. 3 Comparison for recall of the base and proposed algorithm

5 Conclusion

The proposed research worked a lot over making better IDS. The requirement is increasing and so the research methodologies. The increasing need for a perfect system is leading to the research of the new techniques in this field. IDS is a worth detecting system, and thus, all the work for the betterment of the system is going on. The proposed research has shown better results on comparison. Simulated annealing has never been a part of the research in IDS. This is first time that IDS is created with the help of simulated annealing concept and has proved to be a better system.

References

- Nema, A., Tiwari, B., Tiwari, V.: Improving accuracy for intrusion detection through layered approach using support vector machine with feature reduction. In: Proceedings of the ACM Symposium on Women in Research 2016, ACM, New York, pp. 26–31 (2016)
- Manikandan, R., Oviya, P., Hemalatha, C.: A new data mining based network intrusion detection model. J. Comput. Appl. 5(EICA2012-1), 1–10 (2012)
- 3. Wenke, L., Salvatore, J.: Data mining approaches for intrusion detection. In: Proceedings of the 7th USENIX Security Symposium San Antonio, Texas (1998)
- 4. Mahbod, T.: A detailed analysis of the KDD CUP 99 data set. In: IEEE Symposium on Computational Intelligence in Security and Defence Applications (2009)
- Heady, R., Luger, G., Maccabe, A., Servilla, M.: The architecture of a network level intrusion detection system. Technical report, Computer Science Department, University of New Mexico (1990)
- Trupti, P., Apashabi, P.: A survey of intrusion detection system using different data mining techniques. Int. J. Innovative Res. Comput. Commun. Eng. (An ISO 3297: 2007 Certified Organization) 2(11), 6801–6807 (2014)
- Sugandha, R., Rishi, S.: Privacy preservation in utility mining based on genetic algorithm: a new approach. In: Proceedings of Fifth International Conference on Soft Computing for Problem Solving, Springer, Berlin, pp. 71–80 (2016)
- 8. Davis, L.: Handbook of genetic algorithms. Van Nostrand Reinhold (1991)
- Herawan, T., Mustafa, M.: A direct proof of every rough set is a soft set. In: Proceeding of International Conference AMS, IEEE Press, New Jersey, pp. 119–124 (2009)
- Maji, P., Roy, A., Biswas, R.: An application of soft sets in a decision making problem. Comput. Math. Appl. 44 (2002)
- Mukkamala, S., Janoski, G., Sung, A.: Intrusion detection using neural networks and support vector machines. In: Proceedings of the 2002 International Joint Conference on Neural Networks, IJCNN'02, vol. 2, IEEE, New Jersey, pp. 1702–1707 (2007)
- Senthilnayakiet, B.: Intrusion detection using optimal genetic feature selection and SVM based classifier. In: 3rd International Conference on Signal Processing, Communication and Networking (ICSCN) (2015)
- Dipika, N., Ompriya, K.: Optimizing false positive in anomaly based intrusion detection using genetic algorithm. In: IEEE 3rd International Conference on MOOCs, Innovation and Technology in Education (MITE) (2015)
- 14. Ganesh, R., Sachi, N.: A hybrid approach for network intrusion detection. In: Fifth International Conference on Communication Systems and Network Technologies (2015)
- 15. Jabez, J., Anadha, M.: A Study on Genetic-Fuzzy Based Automatic Intrusion Detection on Network Datasets. IEEE (2012)

Artificial Immune Recognition System-Based Classification Technique

Kirti Bala Bahekar and Anil Kumar Gupta

Abstract Nowadays, data mining methods are being applied in the field of knowledge generation, which helps in decision making and intersects many disciplines of computer science such as artificial intelligence, database, statistics, visualization, and high-performance parallel computing. An artificial immune system has a set of algorithm inspired by biological immune system. This algorithm supports machine learning, and they are designed to solve difficult problems such as intrusion detection and prevention, data clustering, classification, and exploration. The proposed method focuses on executing a supervised learning algorithm AIRS, i.e., artificial immune recognition system of AIS for classification. AIRS exhibits characteristics as self-regulation, performance empirical, and parameter stability.

Keywords Data mining • Artificial intelligence • Artificial immune system Artificial immune recognition system

1 Introduction

Data mining is to turn data that are facts, numbers or text into processed information by the computer. It is a method of analyzing and summarizing data from different perspectives and converting it into useful information [1, 2]. Many modern techniques are inspired by the human body like genetic algorithms, neural network, artificial immune system. AIS has an important characteristic, that is, to defend the body from foreign substance known as antigens. It has immune capability to recognize and distinguish between foreign cells entering the body and the body cells [3, 4]. Artificial immune system methods applies biological reckoning as advanced approaches of artificial intelligence. A strong biological process (i.e., immune system) is responsible for destroying microorganisms which may harm our body. It has distributed mechanism with parallel action which is adopted by AIS, designed

K. B. Bahekar (🖂) · A. K. Gupta

Department of Computer Science and Applications, Barkatullaha University, Bhopal, India e-mail: kkirti06@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_65

to solve complex, compound, or obstinate complications of artificial intelligence [5].

Artificial immune system (AIS) has standard methods of computation which involves, experiential immune functions, applied to solve engineering applications [6].

2 Literature Review

2.1 State of the Art

In modern era, researchers have substantial interest toward developing methods of artificial immune systems for computer and engineering applications. More and more present scientific researches inspires and guides in the direction of machine learning. Dasgupta et al. [7] have introduced immunity-inspired algorithms which gained popularity in the field of artificial intelligence (AI). AIS concept is based on the three immunological principles like immune network theory, the mechanisms of negative selection, and the clonal selection principles. Stepney et al. [8] state that bio-inspired algorithms are best to implement new technologies in context of a different conceptual framework; artificial immune system (AIS) has become an increasingly popular area for study by computer science in recent years. The term AIS refers to computational intelligence technique which is inspired by the human immune system.

2.2 Human Immune System

Dasgupta and Nino [4] have given the theory of immune system as an organized regular system. The major function of immune system is to classify, objects encounter as *self* or *non-self*. Non-self is the objects which harm the immune system and require to be destroyed, like bacteria, viruses, and cancer or tumor cells. Usually elements those keeps body healthy should be identified as self and they should be remain undamaged by the system. The *antigens* are those elements which the immune system is able to identify. Antigens are fundamental elements that may be included in both the human cells and pathogens such as bacteria. The self and non-self classification is based on the antigenic patterns done at the cell surface.

Castro and Timmis [9] describe anatomy of the immune system, in which the tissues and organs that compose the immune system are distributed throughout the body (Fig. 1). These are known as lymphoid organs, once they are related to the production, growing and development of lymphocytes, other organs are tonsils and adenoids, lymphatic vessels, bone marrow, lymph nodes, thymus, spleen, and peyer's patches.



Lymphocyte is classified into two types, B cells and T cells, and they both are responsible for observing and answering antigenic patterns. Receptors in the shape space allow for binding or *matching antigenic* material, composing of higher affinity between the receptor and antigenic material, which indicates strong bond. Several methods can be used to measure affinity such as Euclidean distance, which finds relations between AIS elements.

2.3 Artificial Immune System

Computational immunology and biological theory are quite separate from AIS. They use to mimic immunology using computational and mathematical models to make immune system utilities, even though such models introduce fields of AIS and continue to offer inspiration. Jacob et al. [5] and Jitha et al. [10] introduced AIS as computational programming that performs data manipulation, reasoning and use representation methodologies that are based on mechanism of HIS. Forest et al. [11] has mentioned application areas of artificial immune system like Computer security, Anomaly Detection and Fault Diagnosis, Data Mining and Retrieval, Pattern Recognition, Adaptive Control, Chemical Pattern Recognition, Robotics, Optimization

problems, Web Mining, Fault Tolerance, Autonomous Systems, Engineering Design Optimization. Different Computational models are:

- (1) Negative selection algorithm
- (2) Clonal selection
- (3) Immune network model
- (4) Danger theory.

3 Proposed Methodology

The field of AIS research has been around for approximately 15 years, and for the majority of its history has been concerned with feature extraction (data clustering), and change or anomaly identification, such as intrusion detection systems. In the proposed method, artificial immune recognition system (AIRS) algorithm will be used for classification problems. Artificial immune recognition system (AIRS) is an original immune stimulated and resource-limited supervised learning algorithm [2]. This algorithm has two major steps:

- I. Learning or training phase
- II. Classification phase or testing.

3.1 Learning or Training Phase

In this phase, activities like affinity maturation, memory cell formation, clonal selection, and resource competition are used for learning. It includes the following steps:

- A. Initialization
- B. Selection of memory cell and ARB generation
- C. Resources competition and development of ARB pool
- D. Identification of candidate memory cell.
- A. Initialization phase: Data are preprocessed in this phase as:
 - (a) All vectors are normalized such that distance between antigens and ARBs or between two ARBs is in the range [0, 1].
 - (b) Euclidean distance is used to calculate the affinity and stimulation values as shown in Eq. (1).

Artificial Immune Recognition System-Based ...

Euclidean distance =
$$\sqrt{\sum_{i=1}^{n} (x - y)^2}$$
 (1)

where x and y are feature vectors and is number of attributes in data.

B. Selection of memory cell and ARB generation

Here, training antigen is selected to become memory cells and most stimulated memory cell is cloned; this is an iterative process. Stimulation levels are calculated as shown in Eq. (2)

$$Stimulation(x, y) = \begin{cases} affinity(x, y), & \text{if class of } x = \text{class of } y\\ 1 - affinity(x, y), & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$
(2)

where affinity is given by Eq. (3)

affinity
$$(x, y) = 1$$
 – Euclidean distance (x, y) (3)

C. Resources competition and development of ARB pool

Now candidate memory cell is developed by the following method:

- i. In ARB pool, all training antigens are exposed to all ARBs and ARB affinity value is used to update resource numbers according to the class.
- ii. If required number of resources exceeds the number of resources allowed, in that case, resources with lower affinity values are removed, and this process continues till it satisfies the required number of resources.
- iii. All stimulated values of ARBs are used to calculate an average stimulated value of each class. If average values are lower than the stimulated threshold assigned by the user, then mutation is applied on ARBs belonging to the class, and generated ARBs are added to the pool.
- iv. This process is performed until average stimulation values of all class exceed the threshold stimulation. Average stimulation is calculated as shown in Eq. (4).

$$\frac{\sum_{j=1}^{|\mathsf{ARB}_i|} \operatorname{arb}_j * \operatorname{stim}}{|\mathsf{ARB}_i|} = s, \ \operatorname{arb}_j \in \mathsf{ARB}_i \tag{4}$$

Here i = 1....n

 $S = (s_1, s_2, s_3, \dots, s_{nc})$ |ARB*i*| = number of ARBs belonging to class *i*th abr_i * stim = stimulation level of *j*th ARB of class *i*th.

D. Identification of candidate memory cell ARB generation

Now for each class, when ARBs reaches at stimulation threshold, then ARB with maximum affinity is identified as candidate memory cell of that class. If the stimulation valve between the training antigen and candidate memory cell is larger than the value between initial memory cell and training antigen, then the selected candidate cell is added to the memory cell pool. The above-mentioned four steps will be executed for each training antigens. Then trained data sets are used for testing and classification.

3.2 Classification or Testing

In this phase, the trained data sets are used for testing data; here k nearest neighbor K-NN algorithm will be applied for classification of test data. The class of an antigen is determined by majority voting among the k most stimulated memory cell, i.e., k value under defined parameters.

4 Conclusion

Following outcomes are expected from the proposed research:

- Classification performance will be checked on various benchmark data sets, and results will be compared with the previous classification techniques.
- (2) Improvements in results will be analyzed for classification accuracy.
- (3) Time complexity of the algorithm will be observed.
- (4) Overfitting will be tried to reduce.

References

- Tiwari, V., Tiwari, V., Gupta, S., Tiwari, R.: Association rule mining: a graph based approach for mining frequent itemsets. In: International Conference on Networking and Information Technology (ICNIT), pp. 309–313, IEEE (2010)
- Wang, W., Tang, Z.: Improved pattern recognition with complex artificial immune system. Soft Comput. 13, 1209–1217 (2009)
- 3. Babu, M.S.P., Katta, S.: Artificial immune recognition systems in medical diagnosis, pp. 882–887, IEEE (2015)
- 4. Dasgupta, D., Nino, L.F.: Immunological computation theory and application. CRC press (2009)
- Jackson, J.T., Gunsch, G.H., Claypoole, R.L., Lamont, G.B.: Novel steganography detection using an artificial immune system approach. In: CEC IEEE, pp. 139–145 (2003)

- Timmis, J., Neal, M., Hunt, J.: An artificial immune system for data analysis. Biosystems 55 (1/3), 143–150 (2000)
- Dasgupta, D., Ji, Z.: Gonzalez: artificial immune system [AIS] research in the last five years. In: Evolutionary Computation, CEC'03, vol. 1, pp. 123–130. The 2003 Congress (2003)
- Stepney, S., Smith, R.E., Timmis, J., Tyrrell, A.M.: Towars a conceptual framework for artificial immune systems. In: International Conference on Artificial Immune System, LNCS 3239, pp. 52–64 (2004)
- 9. Castro de, L.N., von Zuben, F.: An evolutionary immune network for data clustering. In: SBRN, pp. 187–204. Brazil (2000)
- Jitha, R.T., Sivadasan, E.T.: A survey paper on various reversible data hiding techniques in encrypted images. In: International Advance Computing Conference [IACC], 2015 IEEE International, pp. 1039–1043 (2015)
- Forrest, S., Perelson, A.S., Allen, L., Cherukuri, R.: Self-nonself discrimination in a computer. In: Research in Security and Privacy, Proceedings, 1994 IEEE Computer Society Symposium, pp. 202–292 (1994)

Optimization of EHR Data Flow Toward Healthcare Analytics

Vivek Tiwari, Ramjeevan Singh Thakur and Basant Tiwari

Abstract An EHR data warehouse (EDW) is a huge, brought together, standardized, integrated vault of data extricated from one or more administrative and clinical information system (frequently called "operational" or "transaction" frameworks). While operational frameworks are intended to deal with high volumes of exchange procedures, data warehouses incorporate elements to bolster high volumes and varieties of analytic procedures that assist to understand patterns in data. The EDW seems as an analytical system for health care for budgetary, operational, quality, and process enhancement and works as the source framework for populating different databases. By expanding the existing data warehouse to accommodate patterns persistently instead of building new ones, not exclusively is cost of duplicative frameworks and also increase the overall system cost. In this view, the work is presented to explore the applicability and feasibility of such hybrid system for healthcare industry.

Keywords EHR data warehouse • Healthcare analytics • Persistent pattern Clinical data • Pattern • Data preprocessing

V. Tiwari (🖂)

DSPM IIIT, Naya Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India e-mail: vivek@iiitnr.edu.in

R. S. Thakur

B. Tiwari Hawassa University, Awassa, Ethiopia e-mail: basanttiw@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_66

Department of Computer Applications, Maulana Azad National Institute of Technology, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, India e-mail: ramthakur2000@yahoo.com
1 Background

In the view that electronic health records (EHRs) have conveyed a few advantages to social insurance, many advantages have not been completely figured it out [1–3]. For instance, EHRs increase the storage capacity of clinical information created every day, but couple of frameworks have possessed the capacity to successfully put those information to use by allowing productive recovery of data in a way that encourages quality, analytics, and security [3, 4]. The EDW utilizes a propelled structure for changing and incorporating information from different source frameworks. It stores information as discrete components and has one picture for each of the accompanying, paying little heed to number of sources [5–8]. An EHR-based clinical data warehouse involves the accompanying benefits:

- A database for organizing and possess raw information
- An integrated and profoundly extensible information model
- Efficient data transformation tool
- · Facilitate process to reused processed data
- · To remove, change, and load information from different frameworks
- A business knowledge database improved for systematic healthcare analytics
- A healthcare analytics tool that dispenses with the need to compose SQL, empowers publishing of reports
- It is fit for creating an extensive range of visualization (charts, cross-tabs, tables, and graph)

The principle center behind this work is to plan a committed framework which can store EHR information with EHR artifacts together forever. At the end of the day, we can state that framework gives the capacity to recover "ready to use" patterns for prediction, budgeting, optimization, and many more.

2 EHR Pattern-cum-Data Warehouse

The EHR data examination is a pivot point of any patient disease examination [9, 10]. These days, the vast majority of the work focusing just observation of EHR information specifically case by case [11-13]. It will support just only discover and get understanding against specific patient. These days, EHR information is immense and dynamic. Accordingly a variety of and complex EHR artifacts are extracted [14, 15]. In this way, more intricate systems are required keeping in mind the end goal to extract the concealed information and make these patterns profitable to the experts [16, 17]. Information management can be considered in three courses, administration of day-by-day value-based information, administration of historical information, and administration of artifacts. Value-based (operational) information is overseen and kept up by operational databases and is known as database management system (DBMS) [16]. Historical information is overseen by data

warehouse, and it is utilized for investigation and analytics. Pattern warehouse center is new ideas, and little accentuation has been given till date. Pattern warehouse is as appealing as information distribution center as the primary storehouse of artifacts and is utilized for reporting and forecasting [16]. By nature, patterns are not diligent, i.e., each time when you require pattern need to execute underlying technique over and over. Pattern warehouse center is an approach to make pattern persevering by putting away them forever.

2.1 Significance of Embedded EHR Pattern Warehouse

We require framework that will allow us to manipulate, extract, transform, and operate on pattern so that knowledge can be presented as per need. Following section focuses on the reasons behind the need to dedicated pattern repository system:

- 1. Instant access to EHR pattern, trends, and analysis (save time), i.e., patterns are available on demand
- 2. Convert EHR data into actionable form [18]
- 3. Decrease computational cost and increase productivity, i.e., provide various kinds of trend reports quickly
- 4. Maintain the historical EHR patterns even when underline data source not available
- 5. Integrate EHR patterns from multiple source systems, enabling a central view across the enterprise
- 6. Provide a single and common platform for as a EHR pattern container regardless of its heterogeneity
- 7. Compare the EHR patterns that it makes sense to the business users
- 8. Aggregate the EHR patterns so that it delivers excellent query performance without touching underline data source
- 9. Make system more independent from other EHR data sources
- 10. Allow to run complex pattern extraction methods (data mining) once and then make available result forever
- 11. Make analyst to view trends in multiple way in efficient and effective way
- 12. Reduce high-cost data preprocessing.
- 13. Generate a high ROI (return on investment)
- 14. Support green computing

Figure 1 presents a framework of an EHR pattern-cum-data warehouse that can be used to manipulate, extract, and transform the patterns and as well as EHR and other clinical data.



Fig. 1 Framework of an EHR pattern

3 EHR Pattern-cum-Data Warehouse Benefits

A few advantages exist when EHR data warehouses center is implemented. In the first place, data warehouse centers join information from numerous unique sources including legacy and operational systems and reduce the requirement for tedious manual extraction and absorption of information from various frameworks [3, 19, 20]. Moreover, as information is consolidated, they are frequently standardized to enable to manipulate, extract, transform. Second, the connection with tools to execute data mining and statistical analyses permits a wide assortment of exploratory investigations to be quickly performed [19, 21]. Third, since data warehouse centers are separate from the operational frameworks that hold the source information, performing analytics do not bring about extra load and reduce the response time for critical clinical practice. At long last, dissimilar to EHRs that

normally store information in a patient-driven way, data warehouse centers store information in an organized way that effortlessly permits cross-patient inquiries [17]. The major applications of such framework are given below:

Criticality of IT Usage

- Data quality issues
- Reporting requirements
- Monthly summaries of their health system's
- Show organizational performance in respect to companions and national benchmarks. National benchmarks
- Automate the integration of disparate data sources
- Tracking outcomes across patient populations (cross-study analysis)
- Improving clinical processes and practices
- Reporting to regulatory bodies
- Quality assurance
- Ongoing medical review
- Single data storage for visualization/analysis tools
- Ensuring consistent data everyone can trust
- Enabling meaningful, targeted quality improvement

Return on Investment

- Financial data comparisons
- Repeatedly and reliably delivered information that combines clinical, financial performance, quality, cost, and patient experience data
- Facilitate analysis on demand rather procuring
- Tracking financial performance
- Clinical research
- Improving business processes and practices

Improvement in Customer Services

- Negotiating with insurance companies
- Tools that effectively extricate basic information at present secured EMRs, claims, and charging frameworks to make information procurement repeatable
- Enabling a more efficient, scalable reporting process

4 Future Research Direction and Conclusion

Future work includes the dynamics of changing, modifying, and updating of EHR patterns in warehouse. We must address the pattern's storage technology and schema toward quantity, quality, and heterogeneity. There are also need to explore about duplication, compression, optimization, and pattern placement. EHR pattern warehouse refreshment problem is very important to handle carefully. There is need

to investigate techniques those update the warehouse as underlying source data changed.

References

- Weiskopf, N.G., Hripcsak, G., Swaminathan, S., Weng, C.: Defining and measuring completeness of electronic health records for secondary use. J. Biomed. Inform. 46(5), 830– 836 (2013)
- Tiwari, B., Kumar, A.: Role based access control through on-demand classification of electronic health record. Int J Electr Healthc. (IJEH)-Inderscience 8(1), 9–24 (2015)
- SGIM Forum Report, Vol. 35, No-03, 2012. http://www.sgim.org/File%20Library/SGIM/ Resource%20Library/Forum/2012/SGIM-March-2012-WEB.pdf. Accessed Feb 2017
- Wu, P.Y., Cheng, C.W., Kaddi, C.D., Venugopalan, J., Hoffman, R., Wang, M.D.: Omic and Electronic Health Record Big Data Analytics for Precision Medicine. IEEE Trans. Biomed. Eng. 64(2), 263–273 (2017)
- Bates, D.W., Saria, S., Ohno-Machado, L., Shah, A., Escobar, G.: Big data in health care: using analytics to identify and manage high-risk and high-cost patients. Health Aff. 33, 1123– 1131 (2014)
- Hillestad, R., Bigelow, J., Bower, A., Girosi, F., Meili, R., Scoville, R., Taylor, R.: Can electronic medical record systems transform health care? Potential Health Benef. Sav. Costs Health Aff. 24(5), 1103–1117 (2005)
- 7. Jensen, P.B., Jensen, L.J., Brunak, S.: Mining electronic health records: towards better research applications and clinical care. Nat. Rev. Genet. **13**, 395–405 (2012)
- Lau, E.C., Mowat, F.S., Kelsh, M.A., Legg, J.C., Engel-Nitz, N.M., Watson, H.N., Whyte, J.L.: Use of electronic medical records (EMR) for oncology outcomes research: assessing the comparability of EMR information to patient registry and health claims data. Clin. Epidemiol. 3, 259 (2011)
- Fernald, G.H., Capriotti, E., Daneshjou, R., Karczewski, K.J., Altman, R.S.: Bioinformatics challenges for personalized medicine. Bioinformatics 27(13), 1741–1748 (2011)
- Andreu-Perez, J., Poon, C.C., Merrifield, R.D., Wong, S.T., Yang, G.Z.: Big data for health. IEEE J. Biom. Health Informat. 19(4), 1193–1208 (2015)
- Chondrogiannis, E., Andronikou, V., Tagaris, A., Karanastasis, E., Varvarigou, T., Tsuji, M.: A novel semantic representation for eligibility criteria in clinical trials. J. Biomed. Inform. 69, 10–23 (2017)
- Murdoch, T.B., Detsky, A.S.: The inevitable application of big data to health care. JAMA 309, 1351–1352 (2013)
- Banaee, H., Ahmed, M.U., Loutfi, A.: Data mining for wearable sensors in health monitoring systems: a review of recent trends and challenges. Sensors 13, 17472–17500 (2013)
- Labarère, J., Bertrand, R., Fine, M.J.: How to derive and validate clinical prediction models for use in intensive care medicine. Intensive Care Med. 40, 513–527 (2014)
- Harpaz, R., DuMouchel, W., Shah, N.H., Madigan, D., Ryan, P., Friedman, C.: Novel data-mining methodologies for adverse drug event discovery and analysis. Clin. Pharmacol. Therapeutics 91, 1010–1021 (2012)
- Tiwari, V., Thakur, R.S.: Pattern warehouse: context based modeling and quality issues. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci., India, Sect. A 86(3), 417–431 (2016)
- Tiwari, V., Gupta, S., Tiwari, V.: Association rule mining: a graph based approach for mining frequent itemsets. In: International Conference of Networking and Information Technology (ICNIT), pp. 309–313, IEEE (2010)

- Romano, P.S., Roos, L.L., Luft, H.S., Jollis, J.G., Doliszny, K., Ischemic: A comparison of administrative versus clinical data: coronary artery bypass surgery as an example. J. Clin. Epidemiol. 47, 249–260 (1994)
- 19. Kimball, R., Ross, M.: The Data Warehouse Toolkit. Wiley (2002)
- 20. Han, J., Pei, J., Kamber, M.: Data Mining: Concepts and Techniques. Elsevier (2011)
- Clark, K., Vendt, B., Smith, K., Freymann, J., Kirby, J., Koppel, P.: Tarbox: The Cancer Imaging Archive (TCIA): maintaining and operating a public information repository. J. Digit. Imag. 26, 1045–1057 (2013)

Multiclustered Energy-Efficient Routing Algorithm with Mobile Sink Node Moving in Clockwise Direction

Habila Basumatary and Moirangthem Marjit Singh

Abstract Wireless sensor networks (WSNs) consist of densely deployed small and low-cost sensor nodes which can sense data from the environment and process the same. The focus of the paper is on the communication protocols of wireless sensor network with an emphasis on efficient utilization of energy towards maximization of network lifetime. An algorithm named 'multiclustered energy-efficient routing algorithm with mobile sink node moving in clockwise direction (MERAM-C)' is proposed in the paper. Here, the sink node moves in a clockwise direction with a fixed trajectory across the network area. In this approach, the randomly deployed homogeneous sensor nodes are clustered into several regions each having its own cluster head (CH) nodes. MERAM-C algorithm is implemented and simulated. From the results of simulation, it can be seen that the lifetime of the WSNs using MERAM-C is longer than the lifetime of the WSNs using LEACH (the standard WSN protocol).

Keywords WSN · LEACH · Cluster heads (CHs) · Sink mobility

1 Introduction

The sensor nodes in wireless sensor network (WSN) monitor its surrounding area, gather the information and transmit the gathered information to the sink node where all the forwarded information gets accumulated and then can be accessed by the user. The application areas of wireless sensor network include military, home industry automation, environmental monitoring or health monitoring. The sensor nodes are just dropped randomly to form ad hoc network where the nodes work

H. Basumatary (🖂) · M. M. Singh

Department of Computer Science and Engineering, North Eastern Regional Institute of Science and Technology (NERIST), Nirjuli 791109, Arunachal Pradesh, India e-mail: habilabasumatary6@gmail.com

M. M. Singh e-mail: marjitm@gmail.com

[©] Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_67

automatically [1–4]. The sensor nodes communicate in the peer-to-peer network and transfer the sensed data from one node to another. An in-built source of power supplies the energy required for the node to perform the programmed task. Since the sensor nodes are low battery powered with the on-board power supply, the high energy consumption by the sensor nodes in performing its intended tasks is the main issue in WSN. Generally, the energy consumption in terms of data transmission is comparatively much higher than the data sensing and processing [5].

2 Related Work

A large number of proposals in terms of distributed and centralized algorithms for clustering in WSNs can be found in the literature at present. Clustering in WSN based on coverage area of network helps to achieve better energy efficiency [6, 7]. The WSN area is split up into many clusters depending on some established characteristics. Only the CH (cluster head) node is able to communicate with the sink node, and hence, its role in WSN is significant [8]. Authors in [9] have furnished a routing protocol that can be used for mobile ad hoc networks based on clustering approach that split up the entire network area into many isolated or established multihop clusters. Formation of multiple chains among sensor nodes is found in the protocol proposed by the authors in [10] where every node is connected to one another to form a chain and the sink node is kept stationary. The network area is divided into several clusters based on its distance from sink node. Applying some intermediate procedure, several routes can be produced in order to transmit data so that waiting for a particular route is not required [11]. The flat routing protocols used in WSN are not good for lifetime enhancement even though there is an appropriate criterion taking lesser time. But the multipath routing protocols are suitable for enhancing the lifetime of WSN [12]. Jafri et al. in [13] introduced the mobility of the sink node in an improved version of PEGASIS-based IEEPB protocol, namely MIEEPB. The MIEEPB is based on the concepts of multiclustering and multichain formation with introduction of sink node mobility. The mobility of the sink node affects the lifetime of the WSN to a large extent. In MIEEPB, a $100 \times 100 \text{ m}^2$ area of network was considered and divided equally into four different sections.

2.1 LEACH Protocol

The first hierarchical and clustering-based energy-efficient routing protocol for WSN is the LEACH protocol [14]. It was developed to maximize the lifetime of WSN by minimizing energy usage by the sensor nodes. It uses random rotation of local base stations (CHs) by selecting them in a static manner.





The LEACH operation is based on rounds which are performed using the following phases:

- (a) Set-up phase: in this phase, CHs are chosen based on a threshold value.
- (b) Steady state: clusters are formed, and data is transmitted between nodes.

In LEACH, the energy of the sensor nodes disappears slowly within their clusters. The cluster head consumes more energy if the sink node is positioned at a farther distance from the network area. A scenario of cluster formation in LEACH is shown in Fig. 1.

3 Proposed Work

By dividing the sensor nodes into several clusters through the application of clustering algorithm [14], we propose a multiclustered routing algorithm called as MERAM-C for WSN in this paper. Each cluster has its own local base stations (cluster heads) to which they send their sensed data. The sink node having unlimited power source [13] travels across the whole network area in a clockwise direction in a fixed trajectory, and it collects the aggregated data from CH nodes. To save battery power, basically the following four steps are followed:

I. Deployment of Sensor Node:

To achieve efficient communication, random deployment of sensor nodes at fixed positions within the WSN area is adopted in the proposed multiclustered algorithm. Every deployed sensor node is assumed to possess similar properties having limited and equal amount of battery power. There is an uninterrupted flow of information to the mobile sink node that moves continuously at various locations within the entire WSN area in each round.

II. Clustering:

To create clusters, each node decides either to become a CH or to remain as the normal node for the round at present [14–16]. Based on a percentage suggested by the user, this decision of the sensor nodes is made. To become a CH, a number (say q whose value is found between 0 and 1) is chosen at random by

every sensor node. Then, T(n) (a threshold value) is calculated using the suggested percentage of becoming CH, *P* and the current round *r*. The threshold *T* (*n*) calculation is given in Eq. (1) and is taken from the LEACH protocol:

$$T(n) = \begin{cases} \frac{P}{1 - P * (r \mod \frac{1}{P})} & \text{if } n \in G\\ 0, & \text{else} \end{cases}$$
(1)

G represents the list of nodes that were not CHs in the last $\frac{1}{P}$ rounds. Every sensor node will utilize an equal amount of energy in order to become a CH.

III. Energy Model:

The radio/energy models discussed in [14] are used in this paper. The energy models are given in Eqs. (2)–(6). To run the trans-receiver process, an amount of 50 nJ/bit (E_{elec}) energy is spent and 100 pJ/bit/m² (ε_{amp}) energy for running transmitter amplifier. Figure 2 shows the energy model:

$$E_{\text{TRS}}(k,d) = E_{\text{TRS_elec}}(k) + \mathcal{E}_{\text{amp}}(k,d)$$
(2)

$$E_{\text{TRS}}(k,d) = E_{\text{elec}} * k + \mathcal{E}_{\text{amp}} * k * d^2$$
(3)

$$E_{\rm RCV}(k) = E_{\rm RCV_elec}(k) \tag{4}$$

$$E_{\rm RCV}(k) = E_{\rm elec} * k \tag{5}$$

$$d_0 = \sqrt{\text{Efs}/\text{Emp}} \tag{6}$$



Fig. 2 Utilization of energy for trans-receiver process at "d" distance



IV. Sink Mobility:

We assumed that the sink node has unlimited power source to complete the programmed task [13]. The performance of WSN is measured in round parameter [14]. When the sensed data is sent to the CH from where it is collected by the sink node, it is considered as the completion of one round. The sink node moves continuously, starting from the location (20, 80) in a clockwise direction with a pre-defined fixed path. The sink node moves into forward, downward, backward and upward directions, respectively, to complete its data collection from the cluster head nodes. Figure 3 shows the pre-defined fixed path of the sink node. This movement of the sink node continues till the simulation reaches to its last round.

Figure 4 shows the movement of the sink node across the whole network area with the above-mentioned pre-defined path during the simulation process. Here, all member nodes are represented by small circle symbols, CHs are represented by star symbols, and the large red circle represents the sink node. As we can see only the location of the sink node and the cluster heads are changed in every round, the coordinates of the other sensor nodes remain same.

V. Proposed Algorithm:

The pseudocode of the proposed multiclustered energy-efficient routing algorithm with mobile sink node moving in a clockwise direction (MERAM-C) is given below:

- 1. Deploy the sensor nodes randomly across the network area.
- 2. for all sensor nodes do i = 1 to n, $S(i) = (X_i, Y_i)$
- 3. Randomly establish the sensor nodes.
- 4. end for
- 5. Elect the cluster heads (CHs) based on T(n).
- 6. Form the clusters, using elected CH.
- 7. for every cluster

- 8. Transmit the sensed data to the CH.
- 9. CH forwards it to the sink node.
- 10. end for
- 11. Move the sink node to its next location.

4 Simulation and Result Analysis

The proposed protocol MERAM-C is simulated through MATLAB, and its results are compared with the LEACH protocol. The simulation is carried out using fixed parameters which are shown in Table 1. Initializing each sensor nodes with an equal amount of energy ($E_0 = 0.5$ J), the simulation is started and we noted down the number of rounds the LEACH protocol and MERAM-C reach when 1, 50 and 100% of sensor nodes die. Once a node reaches its residual energy level 0, that node



Fig. 4 Sensor node deployment, cluster formation of sensor nodes and movement of sink node

SI. No.	Network parameter	Value
1	Network size	$100 \times 100 \text{ m}^2$
2	Total number of nodes	n = 100
3	Initial energy of sensor nodes	$E_0 = 0.5 \text{ J}$
4	Packet size	k = 4000 bits
5	Data aggregation energy consumption	EDA = 5 nJ/bit
6	Amplification energy $(d > d_0)$	$Emp = 10 \text{ pJ/bit/m}^2$
7	Amplification energy $(d \leq d_0)$	$Efs = 0.0013 \text{ pJ/bit/m}^2$
8	Transmitter electronics $(E_{\text{TRS}_\text{elec}})$	$E_{\rm elec} = 50 \ \rm nJ/bit$
	Receiver electronics $(E_{\text{RCV}_\text{elec}})$	
9	Transmit amplifier (€ _{amp})	100 pJ/bit/m ²

 Table 1
 Network parameters

Table 2 Total rounds reached when 1, 50 and 100% nodes die during simulation

Protocol	1% (first node died)	50% (half node died)	100% (last node died)
LEACH	795 rounds	976 rounds	1334 rounds
MERAM-C	995 rounds	1226 rounds	1542 rounds

is considered dead for the rest of the simulation. In the LEACH protocol, the sink node is fixed and located at a position which was farther from the network area [14], whereas in MERAM-C, the sink node moves across the network area in a clockwise direction with a fixed trajectory continuously. The total number of alive nodes was collected in each round up to 2000 rounds where 100 alive nodes were considered initially.

Table 2 shows the number of rounds that was reached when 1, 50 and 100% nodes die during the simulation for a $100 \times 100 \text{ m}^2$ network area. Figure 5 shows the comparison plot for dead nodes versus number of rounds in LEACH and MERAM-C. In MERAM-C, the first node died at 995th round, but in LEACH, the first node died at 795th round. The last node died at 1334th round in LEACH, and in MERAM-C, the last node died at 1542nd round. Figure 6 shows the comparison plot for alive nodes versus number of rounds that each node completes before reaching to energy level zero. The lifetime of the network reached at 1300th rounds in LEACH, whereas in MERAM-C the network lifetime reached at 1500th rounds. From the figures, it is shown that the lifetime of WSNs using the proposed MERAM-C protocol is longer than using LEACH protocol.



Figure 7 shows the comparison plot for packets sent to the base station versus number of rounds in the MERAM-C and LEACH protocols. The number of packets transmitted in the LEACH protocol was 10,967, whereas in MERAM-C the number of packets transmitted was 27,090 which shows that the results of MERAM-C are better than the LEACH protocol.



5 Conclusion

In this paper, a multiclustered energy-efficient routing algorithm (MERAM-C) was proposed. It was also shown that the lifetime of the WSN using the proposed protocol (MERAM-C) is longer than the lifetime of the WSN using the standard WSN LEACH protocol. It was also observed that the mobility of sink node not only decreases the load on the cluster head but also enhances the network lifetime. Further improvement can be done on the mobility pattern of the sink node considering larger network area for wireless sensor networks.

References

- Padmalaya, N., Pallavi, S.: Comparison of routing protocols in WSN using NetSim simulator: LEACH Vs LEACH-C. Int. J. Comput. Appl. (0975–8887) 106(11) (2014)
- Estrin, D.: Next century challenges: scalable coordination in sensor networks. In: Proceedings of the 5th Annual ACM/IEEE International Conference on Mobile Computing and Networking (MobiCom_99), Seattle, WA (1999)
- Akyildiz, I.F., et al.: Wireless sensor networks: a survey. Comput. Netw. 38(2002), 393–422 (2002)
- Wang, H.: Target classification and localization in habitat monitoring. In: Proceeding of IEEE International Conference on Acoustics, Speech, and Signal Processing (ICASSP 2003), Hong Kong, China (2003)
- Raghunathan, V., Schurghers, C., Park, S., Srivastava, M.: Energy-aware wireless microsensor networks. IEEE Sig. Process. Mag. 40–50 (2002)
- Kusdaryono, A., Lee, K.: Optimized chain-based hierarchical routing protocol. J. Next Gener. Inf. Technol. (JNIT) 4(8) (2013)

- Ben-Othman, J., Yahya, B.: Energy efficient and QoS based routing protocol for wireless sensor networks. J. Parallel Distrib. Comput. 70, 849–857 (2010)
- Gupta, P., Kumar, P.R.: Critical power for asymptotic connectivity in wireless network. In: Stochastic Analysis, Control, Optimization and Applications, pp. 547–566. Birkhauser, Boston (1999)
- 9. Jiang, M., Li, J., Tay, Y.C.: Cluster Based Routing Protocol. Internet Draft (1999)
- Nayak, S.P., Rai, S.C., Pradhan, S.K.: MERA-A multi clustered energy efficient routing algorithm in WSN. In: Proceedings of 14th International Conference on Information Technology, pp. 37–42, Bhubaneswar, India, 21–23 December 2015
- Nayak, B.K., Rai, S.C., Misra, B.B.: A high connectivity cluster routing for energy-balanced wireless sensor network. In: Proceeding of 2012 International Conference on Computing, Communication and Applications (ICCCA), pp. 1–6, Dindigul, Tamil Nadu, India. IEEE (2012)
- Kandris, D., Tsioumas, P., Tzes, A., Pantazis, N., Vergados, D.: Hierarchical energy efficient routing in wireless sensor networks. In: Proceedings of 16th IEEE Mediterranean Conference on Control and Automation, pp. 1856–1861, Ajaccio, France, 25–27 June 2008
- 13. Jafri, M.R., Javaid, N., Javaid, A., Khan, Z.A.: Maximizing the lifetime of multi-chain PEGASIS using sink mobility. World Appl. Sci. J. **21**(9), 1283–1289 (2013)
- Heinzelman, W., Chandrakasan, A., Balakrishnan, H.: Energy-efficient communication protocol for wireless microsensor networks. In: Proceedings of the 33rd Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences, pp. 1–10, Maui, HI, USA, 4–7 January 2000
- Singh, I., Pooja, Varsha: Clustering with mobile sink in WSN. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Inf. Technol. (IJCSIT) 8(2), 212–216 (2017)
- 16. Mottaghi, S., Zahabi, M.Z.: Optimizing LEACH clustering algorithm with mobile sink and rendezvous nodes. AEU-Int. J. Electron. Commun. (AEUE) **69**(2), 507–514 (2015)

A Detection Technique for Overhead Minimization in Tunneling Attack

Sunil Kumar Jangir and Naveen Hemrajani

Abstract Mobile ad hoc networks (MANETs) are wireless infrastructure-less networks. Predefined infrastructure does not exist in this type of network. Thus, a structure is formed on the basis of nodes present at the time whenever a node has a packet to deliver. Because of this property, MANETs are attacked by many intruders. One of the most severe attacks includes wormhole attack. In wormhole attack two wormholes or nodes set up a link, and through this link they can create an illusion of shortest path and in future can work for data dropping. The link they form is also called as tunnel and that is why the other name for this attack is "tunneling attack." The proposed algorithm works perfectly for the detection of a wormhole and gives minimum overheads. This approach uses the concept of timer and queue.

Keywords MANET · Wormhole · Tunneling attack · Intruders

1 Introduction

A mobile ad hoc network (MANET) is a multi-hop, wireless, infrastructure-less network. This wireless nature of MANETs exposes it to a huge challenge of security issues while system designed Ad hoc networks are generally open to anyone [1]. All mobile hosts in MANET operate without centralized infrastructure. Sometimes due to radio power limitation and channel utilization, host-to-host communication may take place in a multi-hop fashion, where each mobile host acts as a router [2].

S. K. Jangir (🖂) · N. Hemrajani

Department of Computer Science & Engineering, JECRC University, Jaipur, Rajasthan, India e-mail: sunil.jangir07@gmail.com

N. Hemrajani e-mail: naven_h@yahoo.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018

B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_68 Few features of MANET like open medium, dynamic change in topology, lack of central monitoring and management, cooperative algorithm, and no clear defense mechanism make it vulnerable to various security attacks [3].

2 Wormhole Attack

Wormhole attack is one of the most severe attacks on MANET. It cannot be detected easily because in such an attack two malicious or attacker nodes join together and create tunnels between them. The proposed technique discovers an alternative route to the target node since the shortest path might have the malicious attack [4]. In such an attack, each node acts as a sender or a receiver or a router so it is quite difficult to detect whether the data has been sent or received by the true node or the malicious attacker thus increasing chances of loss of data as well as reception of fake data [5]. Since the wormhole attack involves off-channel transmission of data, it is very hard to be detected by the nodes participating in the MANET. Attackers may use high power transmission, packet relay, or encapsulation technique to tunnel packets to colluding nodes. This process creates confusion, for the nodes that are actually multi-hops apart showing them as immediate neighbors. The wormhole nodes can create a tunnel even for the packets not addressed to them. This tunnel creates a route that is much smaller than the original route, and hence nodes pursue the path through these nodes considering it the shortest path. This illusion can be used in future to degrade, disrupt, or analyze the traffic stream in the network [6-10].

A. Classification of Wormhole Attack

Wormhole attacks can be classified on a number of bases like in the way these nodes are implemented, the medium chosen by these nodes, in the way they attack, on the basis of their visibility. Depending upon whether wormhole nodes put their identity into packets headers when tunneling (visibility), they are classified as:

- 1. **Open Wormhole Attack**: Open wormhole attack is also known as exposed attack. In this type of attack, nodes identity is contained in the packet header. Hence, the legitimate nodes are aware of the presence of the wormhole nodes but do not know that they are wormhole nodes.
- 2. Closed Wormhole Attack: Closed attack is also known as hidden attack. It does not affect the packet header at the time of route discovery, and hence legitimate nodes do not know its existence.
- 3. Half Open Wormhole Attack: In this attack, one malicious node is visible to the legitimate nodes as it updates its entries in the packet header and the other node is invisible [11, 12].

3 Detection Techniques

Aarfa et al. proposed a detection technique termed as Normalized Wormhole Local Intrusion Detection Algorithm. It is a modification over Local Intrusion Detection (LID) [13]. Vandana et al. proposed a method that detected wormhole nodes at the early stage of route discovery process in an AODV. This method is known as multilayered detection mechanism. This method consists of four main layers in the architecture, and each layer has a predefined task [14].

Sun et al. suggested a technique called Wormhole Attack Prevention (WAP) based on the use of a timer called Wormhole Prevention Timer (WTP). The technique assumes that the nodes can also listen to the traffic not intended to them; i.e., they can hear the messages even if they are not the recipients. Neighbor node monitoring detects all the neighbors that are not within the transmission range of the node. Transmission range is the one-hop range. The value of Wormhole Prevention Timer (WPT) depends upon whether or not the nodes have mobility. If the nodes are fixed sensor, WPT is given by: WPT = $(2 \times \text{Transmission Range TR})/Vp$ [15].

4 **Proposed Solution**

Here, we propose an algorithm which is an extension of the algorithm using Wormhole Prevention Timer. The previous algorithm was for DSR protocol and suffered from the drawback of overheads due to overhearing of messages by all one-hop neighbors. This algorithm detects wormhole attack using a similar concept as the previous one but works for AODV protocol. Since there is no problem of overhearing in AODV protocol, the overheads due to overhearing are avoided by themselves. We assume there is a queue that stores the value of counters. The counter here denotes the number at which the node is in the path. Therefore, the last value of the counter will give the total number of nodes in the path.

The purpose of using the queue is very straightforward, and queue works in FIFO manner. The values in the queue are thus multiplied in reverse order or we can say that is the order in which the node appears while sending RREP. For example, the value of queue after the destination D receives the RREQ will be 1 2 3 4.

Steps of the algorithm:

for each sender s ∈ S do

 s ⇒ RREQ
 RRWQ ⇒ HOP_Neighbors;
 Intermediate_Nodes ⇒ HOP_Neighbors;
 Initializes Buffer;
 while timer > 0 && for each RREP
 Buffer <= RREP
 end while

 Counter is initialized by s to 1 Counter is stored in Queue by s s ⇒ (Counter + RREQ)

Nodes sending the RREQ increments the Counter and Store in their queue $d \leftarrow RREQ$

- 3. d <= RREQ
 - $d \Rightarrow RREP$ along with queue using reverse path
- Node after receiving the RREQ calculates the value of its Wormhole Prevention Timer using following formula WPT = (n*2*TR)/Vp

wr $I = (II^2 Z^2 IK)/Vp$

where, n = value at front of the queue

TR = Transmission range or one hop distance

Vp = Velocity of Packet

5. The time taken for RREP to reach the node back after sending the RREQ is calculated by:

Ttaken = TRREP - TRREQ

- 6. If the time taken exceeds the WPT in the link is suspected to be the wormhole link. The information is broadcasted to the network, The wormhole link is not included in further communications.
- 7. end for

While calculating WPT, C will be the first to receive RREP, and hence value of n for C will be 1, B will be 2. This value of n therefore is a multiplier to calculate time based on the distance. If the value of WPT is less than the time taken then the link is suspected to be wormhole. While if WPT is greater than the time taken then the link is not a wormhole link and is safe to use for communications (Fig. 1).

The source A first starts sending RREQ to its one-hop neighbor B. A attaches a queue with the RREQ packet to be forwarded. It puts the value 1 in the queue. It also passes a counter initialized to 1 with the packet. The node receiving the RREQ checks if the node itself is the destination node. If it is not the destination node, it forwards the RREQ to its neighbors. It also increments the counter and stores it in the queue. The nodes also keep a record of the time at which they sent the RREQ to their neighbors (Figs. 2 and 3).



Fig. 1 RREQ from source to neighbor



Fig. 2 RREQ reached destination



Fig. 3 Destination sends RREP

Once the RREQ reaches the destination E, it identifies itself as the destination. Next, it starts sending RREP toward the source A through the same route. Once the neighbor D receives the RREP packet, it calculates time taken by RREQ packet to reach E and then RREP to reach it. Then, E calculates WPT by the value in the queue. It then compares the two values calculated by it. Here WPT is larger than the time taken, and hence the link turns out to be safe. If at any node the value of WPT comes out to be smaller than the time taken, or in other words the RREP packet reaches the node after the expiration of WPT, the link is suspected to be wormhole link. The information about wormhole link is broadcasted to the entire network. Thus, any future communication through this link (B C) will be avoided (Figs. 4 and 5).

The same procedure is followed at all nodes receiving the RREP packet.



Fig. 4 RREP transmitted further (normal case)



Fig. 5 RREP transmitted further (wormhole detected)

5 Simulation

A. Simulation Environment

Wormhole attack and our proposed algorithms are implemented in ns-3. For our simulations, we use Traffic type Constant Bit Rate (CBR) application, UDP/IP, IEEE 802.11b MAC, and wireless channel based on random waypoint mobility model. The simulated network consists of 10–50 randomly allocated wireless nodes in a 1000 by 1000 m² flat space. Data rate is 2.0 Mb, and the min speed and max speed of nodes are 0.5 and 1.5 m/s, and the no. of wormhole link kept is 0,1. The selected pause time is 10 s.

B. Results and Discussion

Wormhole attack is simulated along with the AODV protocol, and AODV is also simulated without any malicious node, and finally our proposed algorithm is simulated with 0,1 wormhole link in the network, and the performance is measured by performance metrics like average PDR, average EED, normalized routing overhead. As shown in Fig. 6, the Average packet delivery Ratio is highest when



Fig. 6 Average PDR under increasing NON

there is no malicious condition. In our proposed algorithm, the result is slight good as compared with the wormhole attack which occurred in the network.

Packet delivery ratio is defined as the ratio of number of packets sent from the sender side and the number of packets actually received by the receiver. As shown in the diagram when the AODV is in wormhole, the average PDR is constantly decreasing with the increasing number of nodes and vice versa is true when the AODV is not in wormhole. By using the proposed algorithm, the average packet delivery ratio can be increased as wormhole nodes will be detected at initial states; then it would not harm the network and cause less damage.

The source–destination pair ratio is always fixed, and with the increasing number of nodes, only the effect of attackers on network parameters is enhanced. As shown in Fig. 7, the average end-to-end delay of the network increases with the increasing number of nodes because the attackers or wormhole nodes will either drop the packets or they will increase the delay. Thus, the worst case of this situation is shown in the figure when the AODV is in wormhole. By using the proposed algorithm, it can be balanced. In routing, routing overheads contribute the control packets and the route breaks. As per shown in Fig. 8, the normalized routing overheads are increasing with the increasing number of nodes. Therefore the increased number of nodes will result in more number of control packets for their broadcasting and more route breaks. This algorithm can be used to minimize the number of control packets and to control route breaks, thus resulting in lower routing overheads (Figs. 7 and 8).



Fig. 7 Average EED under increasing NON



Fig. 8 NRO under increasing NON

6 Conclusion

In this paper, the various aspects and classifications of a wormhole attack are discussed. The proposed algorithm works for the detection of a wormhole in the network and mechanism to diminish the consequences. This approach works equally well with the defined three classifications of a wormhole attack. Two key points of this algorithm are (1) the timer approach and (2) the queue implementation. The use of the timer approach results in minimum number of overheads

which is the basis con in every approach, while the queues work in FIFO manner. Thus, we store the node appearing order in it. This results in the identification of the wormhole attack, and the illusion created by the wormhole nodes can be broken. A threshold value, i.e., Wormhole Prevention Timer value, is calculated according to the mentioned formula. Thus, this algorithm works better in the sense of less number of overheads and the time taken in the detection of a wormhole attack.

References

- Nagrath, P.: Wormhole attacks in wireless adhoc networks and their counter measurements: a survey. In: 3rd International Conference Electronics Computer Technology (ICECT), pp. 245–250. IEEE, Kanyakumari, India (2011)
- Tseng, Y.C., Wu, S.L., Liao, W.H.: Mobile ad hoc networks and routing protocols. In: Ivan S (ed.) Handbook of Wireless Networks and Mobile Computing, pp. 371–392. Wiley, New York (2002)
- Ullah, I., Rehman, S.U.: Analysis of black hole attack on MANETs using different MANET routing protocols. Master thesis, School of Engineering at Blekinge Institute of Technology, Electrical Engineering, Sweden (2010)
- Gupta, C., Pathak, P.: Movement based or neighbor based technique for preventing wormhole attack in MANET. In: Symposium on Colossal Data Analysis and Networking (CDAN), pp. 419–423. IEEE, Indore, India (2016)
- Gupta, N., Singh, S.N.: Wormhole attacks in MANET. In: 6th International Conference -Cloud System and Big Data Engineering, pp. 236–240. IEEE, Noida, India (2016) http:// ieeexplore.ieee.org/document/7508120/references
- Shrivastava, A., Dubey, R.: Wormhole attack in mobile ad-hoc network: a survey. Int. J. Secur. Appl. 9(7), 293–298 (SERSC, 2015)
- Anita, E.M., Bai, V.T., Raj, E.K., Prabhu, B.: Defending against worm hole attacks in multicast routing protocols for mobile ad hoc networks. In: 2nd International Conference on Wireless Communication, Vehicular Technology, Information Theory and Aerospace & Electronic Systems Technology (Wireless VITAE), pp. 1–5. IEEE, Chennai, India (2011)
- Hu, Y.C., Perrig, A., Johnson, D.B.: Packet leashes: a defense against wormhole attacks in wireless ad hoc networks. In: Proceedings of ACM Workshop on Wireless Security (WiSe), pp. 30–40. ACM, San Diego, CA, USA (2003)
- Hu, L., Evans, D.: Using directional antennas to prevent worm-hole attacks. In: Proceedings of the 11th Network and Distributed System Security Symposium, pp. 131–141. California, USA (2004)
- Jangir, S.K., Hemrajani, N.: A comprehensive review on detection of wormhole attack in MANET. In: International Conference on ICT in Business Industry & Government (ICTBIG 2016), pp. 1–8. IEEE, Indore, India (2016)
- Maulik, R., Chaki, N.: A comprehensive review on wormhole attacks in MANET. In: Proceeding of 9th International Conference on Computer Information Systems and Industrial Management Applications, pp. 233–238. IEEE, Kraków, Poland (2010)
- Upadhyay, S., Chaurasia, B.K.: Impact of wormhole attacks on MANETs. Int. J. Comput. Sci. Emerg. Technol. 2(1), 77–82 (2011)
- Khan, A., Shrivastava, S., Richariya, V.: Normalized worm-hole local intrusion detection algorithm (NWLIDA). In: International Conference on Computer Communication and Informatics, pp 1–6. IEEE, Coimbatore, India (2014)

- 14. Vandana, C.P., Devaraj, A.F.S.: MLDW—a multilayered detection mechanism for wormhole attacks in AODV based MANET. Int. J. Secur. Priv. Trust Manag. 2(3), 29–41 (2013)
- Choi, S., Kim, D.Y., Lee, D.H., Jung, J.I.: WAP: wormhole attack prevention algorithm in mobile ad hoc networks. In: International Conference on Sensor Networks, Ubiquitous and Trustworthy Computing, pp. 343–348. IEEE, Taichung, Taiwan (2008)

A Review of the Quality of Service for Time-Sensitive Applications Through Admission Control in 802.11 WLAN

Dharm Singh Jat, Arun Shejwal, Guy Lusilao and Charu Singh

Abstract Today, the text, voice, and video communications have become the integrated part of our society. All spheres of life, from industry to leisure, now depend upon received data and its reliable and in-time transmission. This paper provides an understanding of the current challenges of Quality of Service (QoS) for real-time application through Admission Control in the network based on IEEE 802.11 WLAN protocol. It explains the gaps in research and limitations that exist in current admission control schemes. The study proposal gives out work method to develop the efficient and effective admission control scheme for 802.11 WLAN and bridge the gap in research.

Keywords QoS • Admission control • Video over IP • Voice over IP (VoIP) Videoconferencing

1 Introduction

In general, the data communication networks can be broad categories as a backbone network and access networks. There are many types of access technologies for deploying access network on campus. Each of these technologies has its own advantages and limitations. In the present and the future scenario, one of the promising candidate access technologies for wireless communication is IEEE

D. S. Jat (🖂) · A. Shejwal · G. Lusilao

Namibia University of Science and Technology, Windhoek, Namibia e-mail: dsingh@nust.na

A. Shejwal e-mail: arunshejwal@gmail.com

G. Lusilao e-mail: gzodi@nust.na

C. Singh VIT University, Vellore, India e-mail: charusingh2194@gmail.com

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_69 802.11 Wireless Local Area Network (WLAN) standard. Simplicity in deployment and high bandwidth capacity has led to the rapid deployment of WLANs almost everywhere.

In recent years, there has been consistent growth in the use of real-time communications for businesses [1]. The popular real-time applications are a voice over IP (VoIP), video over IP, videoconferencing, instant messaging (IM), networked games, and other time-sensitive critical applications. The real-time communication employs application program that operates in time domain where the user feels the effect as immediate or real time. In this type of communication, the latency parameters are expected to be less than a pre-defined value which is generally measured in microseconds.

The WLAN based on the original 802.11 IEEE standard is capable of provisioning only best-effort services. Many developments have been proposed over vanilla 802.11 WLAN to improve its performance for supporting real-time communication. Most of the improvements are directed toward enhancing the raw data rate supported by the network. Many variations are suggested to original standard incorporating changes in the specification of PHY layer. One of such improvement proposed is 802.11n standard [2]. The standard proposes the concept of multiple inputs multiple outputs (MIMO), using multiple antennas in wireless stations. This standard also incorporates Frame Aggregation technique for higher data rates. The standard is expected to support data rates up to 600 Mbps.

The improvements in data rates have certainly resulted in better performance offered by WLAN to time-sensitive services. However, frequently it has been observed that the high data rate network based on 802.11n fails to provide QoS guarantees under heavy traffic conditions. Hence, it is necessary to design and implement a mechanism to control the admission of flows in the network to ensure below saturation performance of the WLAN [3].

2 **QoS Requirements**

In last few years, the interactive multimedia services have gained a lot of importance in almost all occupations. It became, even more, buzzword when personal computers were connected via networks. In service Video on Demand, the client can choose a movie that he/she wants to watch. The contents are delivered via network instantly. VoIP telephony, which is highly interactive, is now widely used to exchange information between people. Many servers store set of audio and video streams. In service audio and video streaming, the client can tune into one of the stored streams using a streaming capable application and consume the content. These enhanced services require definite bounds for the Quality of Services (QoS) metrics such as guaranteed bandwidth, delay, jitter, and packet loss. The different types of services have varying QoS requirements [4]. The typical performance requirement for text-, audio-, and video-based services are discussed in Table 1.

Class	Application	One-way delay	Jitter*	Packet loss rate
Real time	VoIP, videoconferencing	<150 ms	1 ms	1% (Video) 3% (Audio)
Streaming	Streaming video/audio	Up to 10 s	1 ms	1%
Best effort	Browsing, e-mailing, FTP	Minutes	NA	0%

Table 1 Performance requirement for text-, audio-, and video-based services

3 Amendments to IEEE 802.11 Standards

The original 802.11 standard specifies the capability of data rates ranging from 2 Mbps extending to few Gbps. It defines the operation of WLAN at 2.4 GHz in unlicensed the industrial, scientific, and medical (ISM) frequency band. WLANs have a limited coverage area and typically cover up to a maximum range of 100 m. In July 2003, yet another amendment to the original standard was ratified as an 802.11 g specification. Similar to 802.11a, it also uses OFDM allowing the maximum theoretical raw data rate of 54 Mbps but in practical maximum network throughput range is 20 Mbps.

3.1 IEEE 802.11e

All of the amendments 802.11a/b/g employ the enhancements in technology at the physical layer to boost the data rate of the channel. Due to higher data rates, these standards do provide better QoS that original 802.11 standard-based WLAN. However, they do not ensure QoS guarantees to different services as they lack differentiation among services. As an enhancement to MAC layer, an amendment IEEE 802.11e standard was defined. This standard proposes new MAC layer function known as hybrid coordination function (HCF) [5]. The enhanced new standard IEEE 802.11e facilitates running QoS-sensitive services over WLAN. Albeit it offers better QoS performance than its predecessor plain MAC standard, it is not self-sufficient to extend guaranteed QoS in network overload environment [6]. It is, therefore, essential to control the volume of traffic in order to assure QoS support to existing flows. If admission restrictions are not in place to control the traffic allowed into the network, an appreciable throughput degradation and high medium access delay result in unacceptable performance to enhanced services.

3.2 IEEE 802.11n

However, provision of different access categories at MAC layer in 802.11e is allowed WLAN to differentiate the traffic flows and provided different priorities; the usable throughput of 802.11e WLAN was limited to 25 Mbps. In order to cater for higher throughput, another standard IEEE had formed a new task group in 2004. New standard 802.11n for wireless local network communications got ratified in 2009. Standard 802.11n employs the PHY layer technology that can achieve raw data rates up to 600 Mbps [2]. The standard employs MAC layer features to record usable throughput up to 400 Mbps. The standard holds the backward compatibility to 802.11 a/g devices. The fundamental requirement considered for development of this standard was incorporating support for at least 100 Mbps MAC throughput, almost four times the throughput of 802.11a/g. In order to achieve this, the specifications are amended at both PHY as well as MAC layer.

4 Admission Control in WLAN

Even though EDCA provides the service differentiation by using ACs, the QoS guarantees for the flows cannot be assured under near full load [6]. This limitation is due to the finite capacity of the channel. It is possible for the new flow to enter the network and jeopardize the QoS received by existing flows. Hence, employing admission control has become imperative to prevent any degradation in guaranteed QoS due to channel overloading [7]. According to the 802.11 WLAN standards, QoS-aware access point should have the Hybrid Coordinator (HC). This coordinator would decide on the admission of data flow at the access point. Traffic Specification (TSPEC) messages were defined by IEEE WLAN 802.11n task group for negotiating admission control in WLAN. Through this message, wireless stations use to inform the access point HC their traffic flow requirements such as packet size, delay, and service interval and data rate. Based on the prevailing loading of the network, the HC would accept or reject a new flow.

4.1 EDCA Admission Control Mechanisms

Most of the suggested admission control schemes for WLAN are based on network parameter measurement and estimation of channel capacity using theoretical network model [6]. In solely measurement-based schemes, the value of the concerned network parameter(s), such as the channel busy time in a specified interval, is monitored continuously and the call admission decision is taken by comparing measured values with a pre-defined threshold value for that parameter. Model-based schemes seek to develop a suitable model for the MAC process at the node and use this model to predict one of the QoS metrics such as the achievable throughput, the MAC service time, or the queuing delay at the time of addition of new flow into the network. Depending on the predicted value of the underlying metric, call admission decision is taken.

4.2 EDCA Distributed Admission Control (DAC)

DAC [8] is proposed initially as a part of the 802.11e standard but dropped subsequently. It is developed to protect existing flows by denying new flows into the network based on transmission budgets allocated for each (AC). The algorithm is executed in the following manner.

- At QAP (QoS enabled access point), the uplink and downlink transmission time for each AC is measured.
- QAP announces budget and utilization per AC in each beacon interval.
- Each QSTA (QoS enabled station) works out availability of transmission opportunity in each AC which equals to difference between budget and utilization.
- Each QSTA determines whether there is a scope of adding new flow or increasing transmission in each AC based on availability calculated above.

4.3 Two-Level Protection Scheme

This scheme [8] is an extension of DAC. At first level, the scheme attempts to protect existing priority flow from other priority flows, both existing and new. At second level, a protection is provided from best-effort traffic. First-level protection is implemented by enhancing the DAC algorithm by adding two new techniques known as early protection and tried and known. With early protection, no new flow is admitted using the same principle of DAC. With tried and known technique, a newly added flow is killed if guarantees of flows cannot be met with. At second level, the best-effort traffic is deferred further and further by increasing initial contention window size and inter-frame spacing. The main issues of the implementation are same as DAC scheme.

4.4 Admission Control Based on Threshold

In this scheme, each wireless station measures the traffic on the channel. Two different ways are proposed for admission control. One is based on relative occupied bandwidth and other is based on collision experienced by stations.

- In relative occupied bandwidth scheme, each station measures the busy time of the channel over a sample window period and calculate occupied bandwidth (B_{occu}) as the ratio of busy time to window time. Two different threshold values, T_{high} and T_{low} , are defined. When current B_{occu} is lower than T_{low} , then inactive AC is activated. If B_{occu} is more than T_{high} , then low priority AC is deactivated.
- In collision-based admission control, all stations calculate average collision as the ratio of a number of collisions occurred and the number of transmissions made over sample window period. Again, two thresholds are defined for making a decision in a similar way as done in the technique described above.

When the channel traffic is between the threshold values, the admission control schemes do not kick in any action. When the network load goes above the higher threshold, admission control scheme stops the transmission from the lowest priority active AC for the next beacon period. When the network load goes below the lower threshold value, the highest priority inactive AC resumes the process during the next beacon period. The implementation of this admission control scheme is very easy on both infrastructure and ad hoc WLAN mode. However, the challenge is to set appropriate threshold values. Also, the low priority data flows are stopped and started intermittently degrading service to flows in those access categories.

4.5 Model-Based Admission Control

In IEEE 802.11 WLAN admission control scheme, most of the proposed schemes are based on two-state Markov chain model in the literature [9]. The method tries to estimate the achievable bandwidth by the existing data flows if a new flow with certain parameters is admitted. On calculation, if it is found that the new flow can meet its own QoS requirements without threatening the QoS guarantees for all other existing flows; then only new data flow is permitted in the network. In the literature [10], the proposed model considered the EDCA parameters, i.e., transmission opportunity (TXOP), contention window minimum CW_{min} and measured collisions in the network. Bianchi Model for DCF and Extension of Bianchi Model for EDCA are two main schemes for measurement of available bandwidth in a WLAN [9, 11].

5 Research Gaps

The study presents the aim and design criteria of 802.11ax protocol for QoS provision in WLAN [12]. The study concludes that a design of perfect PHY and MAC layer protocols for advanced WLAN is a daunting task. The research further emphasized upon the need of appropriate admission scheme for ensuring the QoS for the video traffic. Mansoor et al. (2017) proposed feedback admission control in order to ensure maximum utilization of a channel capacity [13]. The scheme utilizes the piggyback information for decision making. For testing, performance study used MPEG4 video traffic and considers the end-to-end delay and unutilised time of the channel for IEEE 802.11e WLAN. A fuzzy-based admission control system (FACS) to estimate the performance of the FACS suggested a system for 803.11e WLAN [14]. There is a need to develop an improved admission control for more advanced protocols like 802.11n.

The authors showed the concept of dynamically adapting the contention window has been presented to optimise the network performance in IEEE 802.11e wireless networks [15]. The study considers the various network parameters for resetting contention window. The study has considered the standard 802.11e. There is need to extend the work to the newer protocol to evaluate the strategy proposed for network optimisation for QoS. This study presents the aspects related to the performance degradation in WLAN [16]. It also proposed a mechanism for improving the QoS in 802.11e WLAN. The scheme proposes adjusting the contention window backoff timing based on active wireless stations. The scheme measures the delay, throughput, and collision rate for different traffic scenarios. The scheme needs to be extended to the 802.11n by improving the model developed for measuring collision rate in 802.11e. The focus has been on adjusting two MAC layer parameters related to the transmission timing control in 802.11e WLAN [17]. The study proposes a throughput control scheme based on the queue length and virtual collision rate. The scheme results are validated for 802.11e WLAN and need to be confirmed for newer WLAN standard such as 802.11n.

6 Conclusions and Recommendations

In this paper legacy, IEEE 802.11 MAC layer QoS limitation is discussed [18] and the review explained added features of the IEEE 802.11e standard that support QoS features for time-sensitive applications in WLANs. QoS support limitation of 802.11e under heavy load provoked many to research into the field of admission control. The good admission control mechanism is to protect admitted flow in WLAN from the new request and allowing the maximum traffic flow according to the capacity of networks. Furthermore, this review looked at the literature on modeling the bandwidth availability and delay analysis for WLANs using analytical models. Hence, it necessary to present a model based on measurement of network parameters to reduce computation complexity, for throughput and delay estimation in WLAN.

References

- Tagove.: How Real-Time Communications Is Empowering Business. (2016, August 28). Retrieved 10 May 2017, from https://www.tagove.com/real-time-communicationsempowering-business/
- Mishra, N., Chaurasia, A., Kallavi, A., Raman, B., Kulkarni, P.: Usage of 802.11 n in practice: a measurement study. In: Communication Systems and Networks (COMSNETS), 2015 7th International Conference on, pp. 1–8. IEEE, New York (2015)
- Charfi, E., Fourati, L. C., Kamoun, L.: QoS support of voice/video services under IEEE 802.11 n WLANs. In: Communication Systems, Networks & Digital Signal Processing (CSNDSP), 2014 9th International Symposium on, pp. 600–605. IEEE, New York (2014)
- Cisco Press. (2016, February 09). Retrieved 14 July 2016, from http://www.ciscopress.com/ articles/article.asp?p=471096&seqNum=6
- Zhu, H., Li, M., Chlamtac, I., Prabhakaran, B.: A survey of quality of service in IEEE 802.11 networks. IEEE Wirel. Commun. 11(4), 6–14 (2004)
- Gao, D., Cai, J., Ngan, K.N.: Admission control in IEEE 802.11 e wireless LANs. IEEE Netw. 19(4), 6–13 (2005)
- Ahemd, F.U., Sarma, S.K.: QoS and admission controller in IEEE 802.11 e WLAN. In: Intelligent Systems Modelling & Simulation (ISMS), 2013 4th International Conference on, pp. 468–471. IEEE, New York (2013)
- Xiao, Y., Li, H.: Evaluation of distributed admission control for the IEEE 802.11 e EDCA. IEEE Commun. Mag. 42(9), S20–S24 (2004)
- 9. Bianchi, G.: Performance analysis of the IEEE 802.11 distributed coordination function. IEEE J. Sel. Areas Commun. 18(3), 535–547 (2000)
- Pong, D., Moors, T.: Call admission control for IEEE 802.11 contention access mechanism. In: Global Telecommunications Conference, 2003. GLOBECOM'03. IEEE, vol. 1, pp. 174– 178. IEEE, New York (2003)
- Tay, Y.C., Chua, K.C.: A capacity analysis for the IEEE 802.11 MAC protocol. Wireless Netw. 7(2), 159–171 (2001)
- Deng, D.J., Lien, S.Y., Lee, J., Chen, K.C.: On quality-of-service provisioning in IEEE 802.11ax WLANs. IEEE Access 4, 6086–6104 (2016). https://doi.org/10.1109/ACCESS. 2016.2602281
- Mansoor, A.M., Al-Maqri, M.A., Sabri, A.Q., Jalab, H., Wahab, A.W.A., Al-kopati, W.K.: A feedback-based admission control unit for QoS provision of video transmission over WLANs. In: 2017 IEEE 7th Annual Computing and Communication Workshop and Conference (CCWC), Las Vegas, NV, pp. 1–6 (2017). https://doi.org/10.1109/ccwc.2017.7868367
- Inaba, T., Sakamoto, S., Oda, T., Ikeda, M., Barolli, L.: A QoS-aware admission control system for WLAN using fuzzy logic. In: 30th International Conference on Advanced Information Networking and Applications Workshops, pp 499–505 (2016)
- Bhandari, S., Kaur, P.: A novel scheme for optimizing contention window adjustment in IEEE 802.11e wireless networks. In: International Conference on ICT in Business Industry & Government (ICTBIG), Indore, pp. 1–3 (2016). https://doi.org/10.1109/ictbig.2016.7892707
- Syed I., Shin S. H., Roh B.H., Adnan M.: Performance improvement of QoS-enabled WLANs using adaptive contention window backoff algorithm. IEEE Syst. J. 99, 1–11 (2017). https:// doi.org/10.1109/jsyst.2017.2694859
- Chen, M., Zeng, X., Jian, X.: An adaptive transmission timing control scheme for IEEE 802.11 WLAN. In: 2016 International Conference on Electronics, Information, and Communications (ICEIC), Da Nang, pp. 1–8 (2016). https://doi.org/10.1109/elinfocom. 2016.7562924
- Chatzimisios, P., Boucouvalas, A. C., Vitsas, V.: Performance analysis of the IEEE 802.11 MAC protocol for wireless LANs. Int. J. Commun. Syst. 18(6), 545–569. https://doi.org/10. 1002/dac.717

Internet Victimization Patterns Over Mobile Phone in Namibia

Husin Jazri, Elizabeth Paulus, Dharm Singh Jat and Durgesh Kumar Mishra

Abstract The growing evidences are suggesting that Internet victimization patterns are increasing as smartphone technology and mobile phone applications evolve. This research examines mobile phone-based Internet victimization in the 14 regions across Namibia. This research uses samples of 232 participants across Namibia with a 26-question-based survey. The survey explains in some detail the behavior of online victimizations over mobile phone. Based on the Internet victimizations scorecard, males are found to experience more instances of victimization than women in Namibia. Social networking, forum, and blog use predicted Internet victimization more than any other means. This research finding revealed that this country is in need of specific measures to curb the increase of Internet victimization and educate its citizen on this issue urgently.

Keywords Internet victimization • Mobile phone risks • Cyber-attacks Internet security

E. Paulus e-mail: queenpaulus@gmail.com

D. S. Jat e-mail: dsingh@nust.na

D. K. Mishra e-mail: durgeshmishra@ieee.org

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9_70

H. Jazri (⊠) · E. Paulus · D. S. Jat · D. K. Mishra Namibia University of Science and Technology, Windhoek, Namibia e-mail: hjazri@nust.na

1 Introduction

Mobile phone usage such as text messaging, emails, voice calls, and social networking interactions has taken over as the principal means of communication on a daily basis in Namibia. Smartphones also are becoming trends of social status in addition to tool for communication channel.

Internet victimization refers to any malicious intent translated into some kind of actions that can make victims feel so uneasy, unsecure, and harmful in whatever form in digital space intentionally placing them in a reasonable fear of harm or perceived danger [1]. Internet victimization may include, but not limited to, sending angry, rude, or vulgar messages online over mobile phone, computers, and other digital communication media. Aggressive acts like sexually harassing someone, requesting pornographic pictures, monitoring specific activities with intention to gain access to private data are among those acts that lead to the Internet victimizations. Excessive behaviors like threatening, teasing, stalking, harassing, blackmailing are also common symptoms of Internet victimization, which are happening on a daily basis. Victimizer sometimes pretends to be someone else and sends specific materials to make the victim look bad or to get the victim into trouble by posting information that is against the law or personal in nature. Serious crimes like identity theft, money laundering and blackmailing individuals for prostitution, drug trafficking activities, and other illegal activities are also on the rise and if committed online can be included as part of Internet victimization cases [2].

Namibia is still at its infancy of systematic recording and tracking of these mentioned issues. Victims of Internet victimization were reported to experience many different effects which include anger and sadness [3], emotional distress [4], low self-esteem [5], high levels of depression and social anxiety [4], academic problems in universities and schools, and low productivity at workplace [3, 6]. Youth who are being cyber victimized are reported to have feeling of emotionally distressed and afraid [6]. In one study, adolescents being cyber bullied were reported to be feeling sad, hopeless, and powerless [7]. Relationship between psychological vulnerability and Internet victimization existed [8] which tends to support the argument of [9] that Internet victimization interrupts and affects many aspects of the victims' lives.

The main problem that exists in Namibia is that not everyone is aware of Internet victimization issues and worst still many do not know what to do about it once hit. Thus, this paper intends to highlight the urgency to have appropriate measures to protect Namibian Internet and mobile phone users from online predators. With this in view, this research attempts to highlight how serious the problems are and to understand the common actions of the attackers and reaction of victims empirically, so that we can protect ourselves better.
1.1 Mobile Phones Vulnerabilities

Mobile phone stores sensitive information such as contact details and passwords. Mobile phone also enables users to conduct online transactions, such as Internet banking, buying products or services, and processing point-of-sale payments. There are an increasing number of Internet activities on mobile phone nowadays, and this makes them attractive targets for attackers.

Security solutions specifically designed for mobile phones cannot ensure security in all aspects. Technical measures such as personal firewalls, antivirus, and encryption lead to inconveniences to mobile phones. Countless users fail to enable their mobile phone security features as advised, or they just simply ignore it due to complexities and limited memory space in the phone. The very portability features of mobile phone make them easy target and can be misplaced and stolen away. Sophisticated attacker can wipe the phone memory and gain access to any data stored in the phone [10] and worst still anyone can download freely available mobile forensic tools from the Internet and use it to extract any data they like despite password protection offers by the phone security.

1.2 Impact of Internet Victimization

The study on the impact and consequences of Internet victimization in Namibia is still at its infancy. According to DePaolis and Williford [11], majority of youth victimized on the Internet experienced negative psychological problems such as lose focus, lower self-esteem, higher levels of depression, social anxiety, dropped in school grades, increased tardiness, and skipping classes. Youth who had been cyber bullied were reported to experience emotional distress, anger, and frustrations.

1.3 Response to Internet Victimization

Having a better understanding as how victims respond to Internet victimization experiences and its behavioral effects on mobile phone can help to develop better efforts to protect individuals from harmful acts over the Internet [12]. Victims are encouraged to seek social support to protect them from continuous harm and share those traumatic emotions. Deleting the message or completely blocking the perpetrators sometimes may not be the best way to remedy the situation as it may destroy traces of digital evidences that lead to the prosecution of the culprit.

2 Research Methodology and Design

2.1 Survey Participants

The analysis sample consists of 232 mobile Internet users, who answered 35 question items Web-based survey. Qualitative methodology is used. Survey results are shown using tables, graphs, and pie charts as a summary data from the respondents. The samplings are selected using Convenience Sampling Approach.

2.2 Data Collection Tool

Survey questions designs were to find more about online participants' experiences and to investigate common Internet victimization patterns in Namibia. Consequences of Internet victimizations were a particular focus. The frequency of victimization instances was investigated on 5 category of Likert Scale, ranges from 1 to 5 where 1 represents Strongly Disagree, 2 represents Disagree, 3 represents Undecided, 4 represents Agree and 5 represents Strongly Agree.

The Structured Exploratory Factor Analysis was employed which provides a YES or NO answer in order to eliminate complex or ambiguity answers items. An Assenting Factor Analysis was conducted on more than four-category items scale, where participants select the best answer.

3 Data Analysis and Results

The bulk data derived from the study was qualitative research in focus. The samples included 232 individuals ranging from various regions in Namibia using convenient sampling method. The respondents who answered the questionnaire comprised of 111 females and 121 males, aged between 18 and 75. Representation of qualitative statistics used in this research includes use of graphs and pie charts to summarize survey data collected from the respondents. This research survey was deployed using surveyplanet.com as an online tool to assist in presentation and collation of research findings.

Out of 232 participants surveyed, 59.9% used mobile phones on a daily basis to access the Internet (Fig. 1); 74% of the respondents claimed that they have been victimized at least once (Fig. 2); 68.25% of participants claimed not to have experience any Internet victimization over mobile phone; and 31.75% of the participants have been victimized more than twice a month. It was found that 39.2% stated never experienced any Internet victimization (Fig. 3), 12.5% experienced it through text messages, 15.5% through emails, 15.5% through chat rooms, 11.2% through social networking, 3.4% through Web site, and 2.6% through blogs



Fig. 1 Devices used to access the Internet on a daily basis



Fig. 2 Internet victimization over mobile phone

(Fig. 4). Victims of Internet fraud ranged from non-delivery of merchandise (12.5%), Internet auction (9.1%), identity theft (7.8%), and credit card cloning (6%). Those who were threatened online reported that socioeconomic status (16.4%) played a major role in the victim being victimized online, followed by the way you look/dress (8.6%), race and religious beliefs (6.9%). Internet victimization occurs across a diverse range of media, with the most common being the use of a blogs (20.3%), social networking (19.4%), Web sites (19%), chat rooms (11.6%), and receiving harassing emails (8.6%). Many of those victimized were left feeling stressed and depressed (28%), afraid and scared (18.5%), alone and isolated (15.5%), defenseless (15.1%), embarrassed (5.2%), and worried (3.9%).



Fig. 3 Internet perpetrator over mobile phone



Fig. 4 Online impersonation over mobile phone

Our findings also show that 30.2% of those surveyed used someone else's password without permission to access others mobile phone data. 29.3% have used bad language on the Internet via mobile phone to show or vent their anger and frustration. In addition, a staggering 18.5% have sexually harassed an individual online, 20.7% have requested sexy or nude pictures from a stranger online. The results obtained highlight that 20.7% have participated in teasing, threatening, or cyber stalking someone online over mobile phone; 19% have impersonated someone online; 21.6% have forwarded malicious links via email enticing individuals to enter their bank details.

Three critical variables such as age, educational level, and frequent Internet user did not have a direct relationship with Internet victimization scores. Average Internet victimization score of males was significantly higher than that of females suggesting that males experienced more instances of victimization as they have the tendency to go into a much riskier Internet sites.

4 Discussions

This research indicates that about 74% of participants surveyed experienced at least one type of Internet victimization pattern within past three months. The ratio is found to be very high and should raise concern to many. This research findings also support the notion that Internet victimization also occurs at an increasing trend on every newly introduced mobile devices with no exception [13–15].

Our findings indicate that male mobile users are more likely to be victims than female mobile users because of their Internet usage pattern and the Web site they choose to visit. This research has also established a relationship between the use of social media and Internet victimization. Namibians need to be more careful particularly when they use online forums and blogs. Internet victimization patterns could be reduced by educating Namibians to have some control over their behavioral pattern when using mobile phone. Educating users means that Namibian should have more discussions, participations, and research on this topic focusing on local context and cases.

Further research should be done to scrutinize different variables that cause Internet victimization and measures to stop it. We are also proposing that more participatory research are forthcoming to share experiences, administers and publish more information surrounding many issues of Internet victimization so that it can reach out to the larger population of Namibia effectively. Finally, deeper research about the nature of Internet victimization along with the potential extent of emotional damage should be initiated so that we can get to the root cause of these issues. It is in our view that specific institutions should be established urgently in Namibia looking after Internet victimization pattern so that citizen can be better protected from these abuses and misuse of mobile technology.

5 Conclusions and Recommendations

This research provides an overview of Internet victimization pattern based on the Namibian context. One of the most harmful aspects of the Internet is that people can remain anonymous and thus increase the motivation of Internet perpetrators to intimidate victims thinking that they can get away with it. The fact that 74% of respondents have experienced at least once in the last three months and 25% of respondents had been victimized more than twice in a month indicates that the problem is more serious than we initially thought. Even the least popular Internet victimization pattern, which occurred to participants at least once, had a proportion over 23% in the current study. This is such a big ratio to be ignored by authorities and service providers without urgent and concrete actions to address it.

Another important finding of this research is that the line between perpetrators and victims is blurring. Most participants surveyed accessed someone else's password without owner's permission. This is a huge risk, as it invades privacy and leads to fraud-related crimes. The survey focused exclusively on different patterns of Internet victimization with no in-depth questions asked about victims' perception of Internet victimization to maintain simplicity. Despite these limitations, the current study provides a good insight into the profiles of victims and perpetrators, and it pinpoints the relationship between Internet victimization and other part of mobile online risk behaviors.

References

- 1. Kowalski, R.M, Limber, S.P., Agatston, P.W.: Cyberbullying: Bullying in the Digital Age, 2nd edn, pp. 40–83. Blackwell Publishing Ltd, Oxford (2008)
- Katzer, C., Fetchenhauer, D., Belschak, F.: Cyberbullying: who are the victims? A comparison of victimization in internet chatrooms and victimization in school. J. Media Psychol. 21, 25–36 (2009)
- 3. Wade, A., Beran, T.: Cyberbullying: the new era of bullying. Can. J. Sch. Psychol. **26**, 44–61 (2011)
- 4. Juvonen, J., Gross, E.F.: Bullying experiences in cyberspace. J. Sch. Health **78**, 496–505. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1746-1561.2008.00335.x (2008)
- Patchin, J.W., Hinduja, S.: Cyberbullying Prevention and Response: Expert Perspectives. pp. 57–71. Routledge, New York, NY (2012). ISBN-13: 978-0415892377
- Ybarra, M.L., Diener-West, M., Leaf, P.J.: Examining the overlap in internet harassment and school bullying: implications for school intervention. J. Adolesc. Health 41, S42–S50 (2007)
- Raskauskas, J., Stoltz, A.D.: Involvement in traditional and electronic bullying among adolescents. Dev. Psychol. 43, 564–575 (2007)
- Nishina, A., Juvonen, J., Witkow, M.: Sticks and stones may break my bones, but names will make me feel sick: the psychosocial, somatic, and scholastic consequences of peer harassment. J. Clin. Child Adolesc. Psychology 34(1), 37–48 (2005)
- 9. Feinberg, T., Robey, N.: Cyberbullying. Princ. Leadersh. 9(1), 10–14. Retrieved 2 Aug 2016 from https://researchingschools2013wikispaces.com/file/view/Cyberbullying.pdf (2008)
- Ruggiero, P., Foote., J.: Cyber threats to mobile phones. US-CERT. Carnegie Mellon University. Retrieved 18 Aug 2016 from https://www.us-cert.gov/sites/default/files/publications/cyber_ threats-to_mobile_phones.pdf (2011)
- 11. DePaolis, K., Williford, A.: The nature and prevalence of cyber victimization among elementary school children. Child Youth Care Forum **44**, 377–393 (2014)
- 12. Priebe, G., Mitchel, K.J., Finkelhor, D.: To tell or not to tell? Youth's responses to unwanted internet experiences. Cyberpsychol. J. Psychosoc. Res. Cyberspace **7**(1), article 1 (2013)
- Klijakovic, M., Hunt, C., Jose, P.E.: Incidence of bullying and victimization among adolescents in New Zealand. N. Z. J. Psychol. Retrieved 13 Oct 2016 from https://www. questia.com/library/journal/1G1-436231189/incidence-of-bullying-and-victimisation-amongadolescents (2015)
- Popovac, M., Leoschut, L.: Cyber bullying in South Africa: impact and responses. Centre for Justice and Crime Prevention. CJCP Issue Paper No. 13. Retrieved 11 Oct 2016 from http:// www.lse.ac.uk/media@lse/research/Research-Projects/Researching-Childrens-Rights/pdf/ Issue-Paper-13—Cyberbullying-in-SA—Impact-and-Responses.pdf (2012)
- Willard, N.: Educator's guide to cyberbullying addressing the harm caused by outline social cruelty. Retrieved 02 Aug 2016 from http://www.asdk12.org/MiddleLink/AVB/bully_topics/ EducatorsGuide_Cyberbullying.pdf (2005)

Author Index

A

Adhikari, Debashis, 83 Adithya, Lalit, 171 Agarwal, Aditya Vikram, 223 Agrawal, Pankaj, 143 Agrawal, Shikha, 305 Alisha, Sherekar, 345 Anand, Neetu, 213 Anjaneyulu, M., 243 Aparanji, V.M., 415 Aparna, R., 415 Aswani, Deepa, 489 Auti, Rajesh A., 161

B

Badgujar, Dipali, 375 Baghel, Ashish Singh, 539, 571 Bahekar, Kirti Bala, 629 Bajpai, Soumya, 619 Bali, Vikram, 19 Bandil, Lavi, 481 Bansod, Prashant P., 205 Basha, Syed Muzamil, 11 Basumatary, Habila, 645 Berwer, Rajiv Kumar, 499 Bhandari, Vijay, 51 B. L., Muralidhara, 325

С

Chalakh, Minal, 385 Chaube, M.K., 279 Chaube, Mithilesh, 637 Chaurasia, Madhvi, 287 Choudhary, Rita, 297 Chourasiya, N.L., 595 Chudasam, Vipra, 375

D

Dahikar, P. B., 465 Dayalani, Geeta G., 161 Dayma, Ankita, 151

G

Gaikwad, K.D., 465 Gajul, Vaijayanti, 95 Ghongade, R.D., 365 Ghosh, Neha, 305 Gidhe, Pornima, 63 Gore, Sandeep, 315 Goyal, Dhruvi, 213 Gupta, Anil Kumar, 449, 629 Gupta, Ashish, 619 Gupta, Sanjeev Kumar, 29 Gupta, Shashikant, 105

H

Hasan, Aasif, 51 Hemrajani, Naveen, 655

I

Ingle, Maya, 527, 549, 581

J

Jaloree, Shailesh, 185, 253, 475 Jangir, Sunil Kumar, 655 Jat, Dharm Singh, 665, 673 Javed, Nazura, 325 Jazri, Husin, 673 Johri, Era, 375 Joshi, Ajinkya, 561

© Springer Nature Singapore Pte Ltd. 2018 B. Tiwari et al. (eds.), *Proceedings of International Conference on Recent Advancement on Computer and Communication*, Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems 34, https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-8198-9 Joshi, Akshay Kumar, 73 Joshi, Ritesh, 581 Joshi, Swati, 297

K

Kalra, Ashima, 405 Kamley, Sachin, 185 Kanaskar, Siddharth, 385 Kaur, Amardeep, 269 Kavya, N.P., 171 Khatri, Pallavi, 105 Khule, Manish, 125 Kirti, Phuge, 345 Kumar, Abhay, 205 Kumar, C.H. Pavan, 609 Kumar, Naresh, 233 Kumar, Navdeep, 19 Kumar, Pushpendra, 433 Kumar, Sanjeev, 223, 561 Kumar, Santosh, 499 Kumar, Tapas, 213 Kumar, Vinod, 135 Kushwah, Virendra Singh, 509

L

Lunawat, Raj Rajeshwari, 83 Lusilao, Guy, 665

Μ

Maguluri, Lakshmana Phaneendra, 457 Malviya, Preeti, 527 Manoria, Manish, 151 Mantri, Akanksha, 549 Maurya, Chandra Gupta, 315 Mehare, Vaishali, 425 Mishra, Astha, 571 Mishra, Balmukund, 19 Mishra, Durgesh Kumar, 673 Mishra, Kamta Nath, 115, 335 Mohammed, Ahmed Qasim, 263 Motwani, Mahesh, 305

Ν

Nagaprasad, S., 243

Р

Palkar, Pravin, 143 Patil, Balkrishna K., 161 Patil, Harsha, 355 Paulus, Elizabeth, 673 Pawar, Reeta, 29 Pawar, Smita S., 95 Pooja, Newase, 345 Prajapat, Shaligram, 41 Premchander, K., 243 Purohit, Hemant, 297

R

Ragha, Leena, 63 Rai, Anurag S.D., 29 Rai, Riya, 509 Rajput, Dharmendra Singh, 11, 315 Rathi, Sugandha, 481 Rayavarapu, Neela, 561 Richhariya, Prashant, 195

S

Sabharwal, Vaibhav, 41 Sampada, K.S., 171 Sarma, S. S. V. N., 243 Satpute, Khushboo, 385 Saxena, Aradhana, 125 Saxena, Aumreesh Kumar, 51, 151 Sen, Shaurabh, 29 Sharangdhar, Pranita, 95 Sharma, Akansha, 475 Sharma, Dharam Veer, 517 Sharma, Durga, 29 Sharma, Harmohan, 517 Sharma, Sanjay, 73 Shejwal, Arun, 665 Shinde, Shanta, 95 Shrama, Jyoti, 539 Shrivastava, Amit, 151 Shrivastava, Manish, 1 Shrivastava, Rahul, 395 Shukla, Piyush, 51 Singh, Aman, 263 Singh, Bhanu Pratap, 287 Singh, Charu, 665 Singh, Moirangthem Marjit, 645 Singh, Tanu Preet, 595 Singh, Vinay, 489 Sinha, Sitesh Kumar, 51 Sinha, Sumitra Ranjan, 105 Sivani, K., 609 Somaiya, Nikit, 375 Soni, Rishi, 481 Soni, Santosh, 1 Soni, Satish Kumar, 449 Srinivas, P. V. V. S., 457 Sushma, Vispute, 345 Syamala, Maganti, 457

Т

Thakur, Ramjeevan Singh, 135, 185, 253, 355, 425, 433, 441, 449, 475, 637 Tikariha, Pritha, 195 Author Index

Tiwari, Basant, 637 Tiwari, Vibha, 205 Tiwari, Vivek, 637 Tomar, Richa, 405 Tomar, Udit, 405 Tripathi, Sudhakar, 395

V

Vaishali, K., 243 Verma, Amandeep, 269 Verma, Binita, 441 Verma, Navneet, 223 Verma, Sushil Kumar, 253 Vijaypal Reddy, P., 243

W

Wadhwani, Varun, 41 Waghmare, Priyanka Tupe, 83 Wakde, D.G., 365 Wali, Uday V., 415